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ERRATA.

Wilson v. Pearson, page 87, 8th line from the bottom, read " inoperative," for

" in operation." On the bottom of same page, read " vests," for "rests."

Chapman v. McGrew, page 102, 4th line from the bottom, read "Selhy," for

" McGrew." On page 103, 22nd line from the bottom, read "necessary," for " un-

necessary."

Swift V. Whitney, page 145, 4th line from the bottom, read " negotiated," for

"negotiable."

Warner v. Crane, page 151, 15th line from top, read "against," for "by." On
same page, 31st line from the top, read " the former," for "either."

Bishop V. Newton, page 179, 3rd and 2nd line from bottom, read "consideration,"

for " condition." '

Hempstead v. Dickson, page 195, 23rd line from top, read " intent," for " interest."

The City of Chicago v. Rock Island Railroad Co., page 290, 19th line from the

bottom, read "1851," for " 1857."

McCormick v. Tate, page 337, bottom line, read "hy," for "of." On page 338,

between 23rd and 24th lines from the top, supply " not " between the words " does
"

and " abridge."

Dunlap V. Daugherty, page 400, 6th line from bottom, read " West," for " East."

Page 59, last paragraph of syllabus, first line, supply the word "not" between

the words " property" and "exempt."

The opinion of Mr. Justice Scates, in this volume, was in a case which

was heard before that gentleman left the bench.
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DECISIONS
OF

THE SUPREME COURT
OF THE

STATE OF ILLINOIS,

APRIL TERM, 1858, AT OTTAWA,

The Chicago, Burlington and Qdincy Railroad Company,

Appellant, v. Elias Minard et al, Appellees.

APPEAL FROM LA SALLE. n

The court will take notice of a summons issued by a justice of the peace, and of

the indorsements thereon, if set out in a bill of exceptions ; and if the judgment
is for a greater amount than is claimed on the back of the summons and interest,

it is erroneous and will be reversed.

This action was originally brought before a justice of the

peace by the plaintiff below, to recover from defendant below,

damages for the loss of a quantity of corn delivered to said de-

fendant, to transport to Chicago. Brought by appeal into the

La Salle county Circuit Court.

There was a trial by jury, and verdict for plaintiff below,

assessing damages at $60. Plaintiff remitted five dollars of

said verdict. Defendant below moved for a new trial, and in

arrest of judgment. Motions overruled. Judgment for plain-

tiffs below for $55 and costs. Defendant appealed to Supreme
Court.

The bill of exceptions shows the original summons from said

justice, being in the words and figures following, to wit :

STATE OF ILLINOIS,
LA SALLE COUNTY.

> SS.

The People of the State of Illinois to any Constable of said County, greeting :

You are hereby commanded to summon Chicago, Burlington & Quincy Railroad

Company to aj^pear before me at my ofSce in Whitfield, on the 18th day of April,

2
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Chicago, Burlington and Quincy Railroad Company v. Miuard et al.

1857, at 1 o'clock P. M., to answer the complaint of Elias Minard and Charles E.

Pooler, for a failure to pay them a certain demand not exceeding one hundred

dollars, and thereof make due return as the law directs.

Given under my hand and seal this 9th day of April, A. D. 1857.

JOHN READ, [seal.]

Justice of the Peace.

Upon which said summons were the following indorsements

:

Demand, $45 ; costs, $0.56 ; April 10th, personally served

on John H. Jenkins, Agent C, B. & Q. R. R. Co. ; by reading

and leaving copy; service, 25; copy, 12i ; mileage, J-, 38.

James J. Miliary, Const,

This cause was tried by Hollister, Judge, and a jury, at

November term, 1857, of the La Salle Circuit Court.

Hough & Bascom, for Appellant.

Glover & Cook, for Appellees.

Caton, C. J. This was an appeal from the judgment of a

justice of the peace, to the Circuit Court. The error here

assigned is, that the judgment in the Circuit Court was for

more than the amount claimed on the back of the summons.

The answer made to this is, that this court cannot see what was
the amount of the claim indorsed on the summons. A copy of

the summons is not given as a part of the original record, but it

is set out and certified to by the judge in the bill of exceptions.

It is insisted by the defendants in error, that it was not such a

paper as could be certified to in the bill of exceptions, it being

a part of the record which should be certified to by the clerk,

instead of the judge. We think the objection altogether too

technical. Although it may have been a part of the record to

which the clerk might certify, we think it was none the less so

when set out in the bill of exceptions and certified to by the

judge, a copy of which bill, containing the summons, is certified

to by the clerk. We think we are judicially informed of the

contents of the summons and of the amount of the claim in-

dorsed upon it, and that the judgment of the Circuit Court was
for more than the amount of such claim and interest, which was
erroneous.

The judgment must be reversed and the cause remanded.
Judgment reversed.
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Cronise v. Kellogg.

Henry G. W. Cronise, Appellant, v. John Kellogg,
Appellee.

APPEAL FROM LA SALLE COUNTY COURT.

It is no defense to an action upon a bill of exchange that it was accepted for the
accommodation of the drawer, of which the drawee had notice, and that time
was given the drawer to make payment, bv the drawee, after the maturity of the
bill

The acceptor of a bill of exchange is primarily liable to pay it, whether he has
funds of the drawer in his hands or not. An accommodation acceptor is in the
same position as one who accepts with funds, as to all persons who receive the
bill for value.

The acceptor of a bill can never be discharged except by payment or a release,

except in cases where to enforce the payment by the acceptor, would be in viola-

tion of the agreement of the parties at the time of the acceptance.

The holder of a bill of exchange is not under obligation to the acceptor to seek
payment of it from any other party.

This was an action of assumpsit, brought in the La Salle County
Court, at the December term, A. D. 1857, by appellee against

appellant, on his acceptance of an inland bill of exchange,
which purported to have been drawn at thirty days, for ^500,
by one Thomas M. Hobbs, in favor of appellee, and directed to

and accepted by appellant.

The declaration contained a special count on the acceptance,

and the common counts.

To which appellant (defendant below) pleaded,

1st. The general issue.

2nd. That appellant accepted said bill merely for the accom-
modation of said Hobbs, and for no other consideration what-

ever ; that at the time of said acceptance, appellant had no
effects of said Hobbs in his hands ; of all which appellee had
notice at the time of said acceptance, and at the time he re-

ceived said bill. That afterwards, at, etc., on, etc., when said

bill fell due, appellee received from said Hobbs $25, in part

payment of said bill, and then and there, without the knowledge
or consent of appellant, in consideration of one dollar paid by

said Hobbs to appellee, extended the time of payment of said

bill thirty days ; by means whereof, appellant was wholly dis-

charged from his liability as such acceptor.

Appellee demurred to said second plea ; the court below sus-

tained his demurrer.

Appellee then read in evidence the said bill and acceptance

thereof; to the reading of which in evidence appellant objected,

and the court below overruled his objection.

This was all the evidence in the case.
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Cronise v. Kellogg.

The trial was by the court ; issues found for appellee, and
damages assessed at $529.90. Motion for new trial overruled

;

appellant excepted : judgment rendered for $529.90 and costs

;

whereupon defendant prays an appeal.

W. H. L. Wallace, for Appellant. Cited 2 Campbell R.

185 ; 3 ibid. 281 ; 2 Stark. R.^; 3 Eng. Com. Law R. 361,

304, 419, 518, 531 ; 17 ibid. 366 ; Story on Notes, § 190 ; 1

Zabriskie R. 665 ; 8 Pickering R. 155 ; 2 Denio R. 621.

C. Blanchard, for Appellee.

An acceptor of a bill of exchange is primarily liable to the

holder thereof. All the other parties are only collaterally

liable ; and nothing but payment or release will discharge the

acceptor, though it was accepted for the accommodation of the

drawer, and the holder had notice that it was so accepted at the

time he received the bill. Barbary et al. v. Peyton, 2 Wheat.
R. 385 ; Kutum v. Pocock, 1 English Common Law R. (5
Taunt.) 105 ; Price v, Edmonds, 21 Eng. Com. Law R. 135

;

Mchols V. Norris, 23 ibid. 28 ; Harrison's Digest, vol. 1, 1312
-1340 ; Kerrison v. Cook, 3 Campbell R. 362 ; Bacon's Ab.,
vol. 6, 811 ; Whatehj v. Tucker, 1 Campbell R. 35 ; Dingivcdl
V. Damter, 1 Douglass R. 247 ; Anderson v. Cleavland, 13
East R. 217, 430 ; Townsley v. Sumvall, 2 Pet. R. 183 ; 3
Esp. R. 46 ; 1 Taunt. R. 22-24 ; Anderson v. Anderson, 4 Dana
(Ky.) R., Goode's case, 352 ; Chitty on Bills, 310, 311, and
•315, note ; Story on Bills, sec. 268 ; 9 Sargeant and Rawle R.
229 ; 12 ibid. 382 ; 9 Pickering R. 547 ; 2 Blackford (Ind.) R.
137 ; 3 Kent's Com. 104.

Accommodation paper is now governed by the same rules as
other paper. 7 Wend. R. 228, note ; 3 Kent's Com. 86 ; 5
Taunt. R. 192 ; 6 Dow's Pari. Cas. 234 ; 9 Sargeant and Rawle
R.^229 ; 6 Cowen R. 484 ; 7 How. 292.
To the acceptor the equitable doctrine respecting sureties

does not apply. 4 Dana (Ky.) R. 352.

Caton, C. J. This action is against the acceptor of a bill of
exchange, and the defense relied upon, is that the acceptance
was for the accommodation of the drawer, which was known to
the drawee at the time he took the bill, and that the drawee
gave time to the drawer after maturity. The court properly
decided that this constituted no defense to the action. Bills of
exchange are the highest class of commercial paper known to
the law, and it has ever been a cherished object of the law mer-
chant,—which has been permitted by the courts of England to
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Cronise v. Kellogg.

insinuate itself into the common law, till it now forms, and has

for a long time formed a part of that code,—to uphold them
inviolate, as far as possible—to give them an absolute effect,

according to their purport. They were invented to form a me-

dium of exchange, and to supercede the necessity of transport-

ing coin from one place to another, and the nearer they are

brought to the absolute certainty of coin in value, the better do
they perform the functions for which they were designed.

While the lex mercatoria is deeply impregnated with the princi-

ples of equity, those principles have been chiefly marked in

furtherance of these objects, and to enable the courts of law to

enforce equitable rights, and upon this principle was the negoti-

ability of bills of exchange insisted upon and finally maintained

at the common law. When, however, the principles of equity

have been invoked for the purpose of destroying the validity

and security of bills of exchange, they have been listened to

with great disfavor, and admitted as exceptional cases. The
wider the door is opened to admit defenses to bills of ex-

change, the more is their general value impaired, and the more
are commerce and exchange embarrassed. The acceptor of a

bill of exchange has always been considered the party prima-

rily liable to pay it. He expressly agrees to pay it, whether he

has funds of the drawer in his hands or not, even though he

expects to be in funds from the drawer. An accommodation
acceptor occupies precisely the same position as one who ac-

cepts with funds, as to all persons who receive the bill for value,

whether they know that it was an accommodation acceptance

or not. And it is a general maxim, that an acceptor of a bill

of exchange can never be discharged, except by payment or a

release. The exceptions to this rule are rare, and only when to

enforce the payment by the acceptor, would be in violation of

the agreement of the parties at the time of the acceptance, as

where a bill is accepted for the accommodation of the indorser,

who, after putting it in circulation, afterwards receives it in the

course of business. There, as between the original parties to

the bill, it was his primary duty to pay it. And he cannot col-

lect it of the acceptor, and should he again put it in circulation,

it is probable that the acceptor would not be liable to any one

who should receive it with notice. It has been often said that

the acceptor of a bill of exchange incurs the same liability as

the maker of a promissory note. And this is true by the

English law, since the statute of Ann. But it is unnecessary

now to inquire what are the rights of an accommodation maker
of a promissory note. It is enough to know that the holder of

a bill of exchange is under no obligation to the acceptor, to use

any diligence or make any effort to collect it of any body else.
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Smith V. Rankin.

It is the contract of the acceptor, and it is his duty to pay it at

maturity, without waiting for any one else to do it, and if he

neglects to do this, he shall not complain that an effort was

made, even though injudiciously, to collect it of one who was

under a moral obligation to pay it.

The judgment below must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

James A. Smith, Plaintiff in Error, v. William Rankin,

Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO MARSHALL.

Ancient deeds will not be admitted as evidence, without proof of their execution

in some way which shall be satisfactory to tlie court. The party producing such

papers must do everything in his power to raise a presumption in favor of their

genuineness.

This was an action of ejectment, brought by Rankin, in the

Circuit Court of Marshall county, for the recovery of the N. E.

quarter of section No. 19, in township 13 N., range No. 9 E. of

4th P. M.
Declaration, notice, bond for costs and affidavit of service,

filed December 21, 1854.

At the xVpril term of said court, 1855, defendant was ruled

to plead to plaintiff's declaration, and filed plea of not guilty.

The cause was tried by jury, at the April term of said court,

1856, HoLLiSTER, Judge, presiding.

The plaintiff first offered in evidence a patent from the United
States to Lemuel Tucker for said premises, which was admitted
in evidence without objection.

The plaintiff next offered in evidence a deed from Lemuel
Tucker to Christopher Vanzant, to wit

:

This Indenture, Made this fifteenth day of January, one thousand eight Iiun-

dred and nineteen, between Lemuel Tucker, of Davidson county, and State of

Tennessee, of the one part, and Christopher Vanzant, of the county of Davidson,

and State of Tennessee, of the other part, witnesseth, that the said Lemuel Tucker,

for and in consideration of the sum of one hundred and sixty dollars 00 cents, to

him in hand paid the said Christopher Yanzant, the receipt whereof is hereby ac-

knowledged, hath given, granted, bargained, sold, aliened, conveyed and confirmed

unto the said Christopher Vanzant, his heirs and assigns forever, a certain tract or

parcel of laud, situated, lying and being in the territory of Illinois, and distin-

guished in the plan of survej-s made to satisfy the bounty land of soldiers in said

territory, as the north-cast quarter of section nineteen, of township thirteen north,
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in range nine east, supjDOsed to contain one hundred and sixty acres of land, be the

same more or less, which land was patented to the said Jeremiah Tucker by the

President of the United States, the 29th of November, 1817.

To have and to hold the aforesaid land, with all and singular the rights, profits,

emoluments, hereditaments and appurtenances of, in and to the same belonging,

or in anywise appertaining, to the only proper use and behoof, him, the said

Christopher Vanzant, his heirs and assigns forever. And the Lemuel Tucker, for

himself, his heirs, executors and administrators, doth covenant and agree with the

said Christopher Vanzant, his heirs or assigns, that the before recited land and

bargained premises he will warrant and forever defend against the right, title,

interest or claim of all and every person whatsoever.

* In witness whereof, the said Lemuel Tucker hath hereunto set his hand and

affixed his seal the day and year above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered J LEMUEL TUCKER, [seal.]

in the presence of
)

On the back of said deed appear the following indorsements,

to wit

:

State of Tennessee,

Davidaon County Court,

January Session, 1819.

This indenture of bargain and sale, between Lemuel Tucker, of the one part,

and Christopher Vanzant, of the other part, dated the 15th day of January, 1819,

for 160 acres of land in the Illinois territory, was acknowledged in open court by

the said Lemuel Tucker to be his act and deed, and ordered to be so certified.

The probate being of record in this court.

In testimony whereof, I, Nathan Ewing, clerk of said court, have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the seal of said court, at office at Nashville, this 20th day

[seal.] of January, in the year of our Lord 1819, and 43rd year of American

Independence. ' NATHAN EWING.

Recorder's Office, Edwardsville, Madison co., Illinois. I, Josias Rundle, Re-

corder for Madison county, do certify the within deed to be duly recorded and

examined in Book vol. 4, page 29, this 1 day of Jan., 1820.

JOSIAS RUNDLE.
{Tit.)

No. 6869.

Eecorded Vol. 4, p. 29.

Exd. J. Rundle. 150.

Lemuel Tucker ')

To >Deed. 160 ^cres.

Christopher Vansant. )

To which defendant's counsel objected.

The plaintiff then read in evidence the deposition of Charles

A. Rankin, for the purpose of laying a foundation for the intro-

duction of said deed, to which defendant objected.

Deposition of Charles A. Piankin. I am 28 years of age

;

am a tailor by trade ; residence, Shelbyville, Ky. I am ac-

quainted with William Rankin, the plaintiff ; he is my brother

;

I am also acquainted wdth Mr. Smith, the defendant in this suit

;
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have known him since the 1st of April, 1853. I do not know
Henry Clapp. I do not, of ray own knowledge, know of Henry
Clapp ever calling on William Eankin, sen., in his lifetime. I

know nothing of the land Mr. Clapp wished to purchase of my
father or any one else.

I took possession of the N. E. i section 19, in township 13 N.,

of range 9 East of the 4th principal meridian, in the spring of

the year 1853. I took possession of the land in behalf of

William Rankin, and there was no one in possession of the land

when I took possession of it in the year above named.

I had a conversation with Mr. Smith, defendant in this suit, a

few days after I took possession of the land. I left the land for

a day or two, and went to the town of Henry, and when I

returned I found Mr. Smith on the land ; he had put up a shanty,

and claimed the land. I told him that the land belonged to my
father ; that I could show him the title deeds. Smith said that

he had bought the laud of Mr. Lombard ; that he (Lombard)
stood between him and danger. He also stated that he had
been to see Lombard, and Lombard told him that if he was
dissatisfied, he would take it back. When I first took possession

of the land, I had some lumber hauled to build a house. Mr.
Smith took my lumber and threw it in the by-road.

I had a communication with Mr. Lombard some time after I

took possession of the land. Mr. Lombard told me that he did

not expect to hold the land with his deed, but he thought his

tax title would hold it,

Mr. Smith, the defendant, told me that he knew of my father's

claim before he bought it. Mr. Smith also told Mr. George
Bonham, that he knew Rankin claimed the land before he
bought it.

Plaintiff offered to read the aforesaid deed in evidence. De-
fendant's counsel objected. The court overruled defendant's

objection, and allowed the aforesaid deed to be read in evidence.

The plaintifl" offered to read in evidence a deed from Christo-

pher Vanzant to William Rankin, to wit

:

This Indenture, Made and entered into this 3rd day of October, 1825, between

Christopher Vanzant and Louisa his wife, of Shelbyville, Kentucky, of the one

part, and William Eankin, of the same place, of the other part, witnesseth, that

the said Vanzant, for and in consideration of the sum of two hundred and ninety

dollars, to him in hand paid, the receipt of which he does hereby acknowledge,

hath granted, bargained and sold, and by these presents does hereby grant, bargain,

sell and convey unto the said William Rankin and his heirs forever, a certain tract

and parcel of land, situate, lying and being in the State of Illinois, containing one

hundred and sixty acres, being the north-east quarter of section nineteen, in town-

ship thirteen north, in range nine east, in the tract appropriated by the acts of

Congress for military bounties, in the territory, now State of Illinois, being the
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same tract of land granted by }he United States of America to Lemuel Tucker, by

grant bearing date the 29th day of November, 1817, and by said Lemuel Tucker

conveyed to the said Christopher Vanzant. To have and to hold the said tract of

land hereinbefore described, to the said William Rankin and his heirs forever, and

the said Christopher Vanzant and Louisa his wife will warrant and defend the right

and title thereof against the claim of themselves and their heirs, and all and every

person or persons whatsoever, claiming or to claim the same.

In testimony whereof, the said Vanzant and wife have hereunto set their hands

and affixed their seals the day and year first above written.

CHRISTOPHER VANSANT. [seal.]

Witness

:

[seal.]

STATE OF KENTUCKY, ) ^
^

SHELBY COUNTY, i
^ Ij Hcctor Alhiniu, clerk of the county

court for the county aforesaid, certify that this deed from Christopher Vanzant to

William Rankin was produced to my predecessor in office (or his deputy), on the

11th day of October, 1825, and acknowledged by the said Christopher Vanzant to

be his act and deed, as appears from an indorsement on said deed in these words

and figures, (to wit) :
" 1825, 60, Oct. 11th, A. by C. Vanzant."

In testimony whereof, I have hereto subscribed my name and affixed the

[seal.] seal of said court, at Shelbyville, this 8th day of March, 1853, and in

the 61st year of the Commonwealth.

HECTOR ALHININ, Clerk Shelby County Court.

STATE OF KENTUCKY, )

SHELBY COUNTY, ) ' I, Robcrt Doak, Presiding judge of the

Shelby County Court, certify that Hector A. Chinn, whose Jinueine signature

appears to the foregoing certificuit, is now, and was at the time of signing the

sam, clerk of the County Court, duly elected, commishion and qualified, and due

credit should be given to all of his official acts. Given under my hand this 31st

day of March, 1853. ROBERT DOAK, P. J. S. C. C.

On the back of which are the following indorsements

:

Clmstopher Vanzant ")

To > Deed.

William Rankin. ;

160 a. Illinois.

1825, C. 0. Oct. Uth.

A. by Va72za7it.

Vanzant cj" Wife

To

Will Rankin.

1825, C 0. Oct. Uth.

A. by Vanzant.

Filed for record March 21st, at 7 o'clock A. M., A. D. 1853, and recorded in

book M, page 450. G. L. FORT,
Recorder of Marshall Co.

To which defendant's counsel objected, which objection was
overruled by the court, on the ground that said deed was thirty
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years old, and, therefore, proved itself. To wliich ruling

defendant then and there excepted. Said deed was read to the

The plaintiff then offered to read in evidence a qmt-claim

deed for said premises, from William Rankin, Sen., to William

Rankin, Jr., to which defendant objected. The objection was
overruled, and the deed read in evidence to the jury.

The plaintiff then called Samuel Flemming', who testified

that the deed of Lemuel Tucker to Christopher Vansant, with

the other papers in said suit, were handed to him by plaintiff.

First. Said deed, prior to the date of the deed from William

Rankin, Sen., to William Rankin, Jr., to wit, August 15, 1853.

Did not know whether he took said deeds from plaintiff since

the commencement of suit, but thinks he did. The plaintiff

claimed title through said deed. Knows Charles Rankin ; first

saw him in the summer of 1853. Don't know as any one intro-

duced him ; thinks he introduced himself. He was in Lacon.

Thinks he remained in Lacon a month or two, during which
time he worked for J. D. Coullett, as a journeyman tailor.

The land in question is about eight miles from Lacon. Said

Charles Rankin told him he had been out and taken possession

of the land, and to look at it, and said he had hauled on a load

of lumber, for the purpose of putting up a house. Thinks he

went there before he came to see us.

That he did not learn from him that he did more than to haul

lumber upon said land to build a house—the quantity not stated

;

that Rankin did not live on said land, but that it was vacant
and unoccupied at the time, and was natural prairie. Does not

know what became of said Charles A. Rankin. He said he was
agent for Mr. Rankin, the plaintiff in this suit.

Verdict for plaintiff.

Defendant moved the court for a new trial, because improper
evidence had been permitted to go to the jury ; that the verdict

was against the law and evidence ; that the instructions given

by the court at the request of the plaintiif arc not the law, and
that the instructions asked by the defendant, and refused by the

court, ought to have been given as the law governing the case.

The court overruled the motion for new trial, and rendered
judgment in favor of the plaintiff.

Hazaed & Purple, for Plaintiff in Error.

W. Lander, for Defendant in Error.

Caton, C. J. The only questions in this case are as to admis-

sibility of the two deeds, which were admitted as ancien.t deeds,
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without proof of their execution in any way. One of these

deeds bears date in 1819, and there is a certificate upon it,

purporting to show that it was acknowledged in open court in

Tennessee, in the same year of its date ; and from a certificate

of the recorder of Madison county, where the lands were situ-

ated, it appears that it was recorded in the recorder's office in

that county, in the year 1820. There is no pretense that the

certificate of acknowledgment was sufficient under our law.

The other deed, which was admitted in evidence without

proof of its execution, bears date in 1825 ; has no subscribing

witness, has no certificate of acknowledgment, and was never

recorded till 1853, and purports to have been executed in Ken-
tucky. To this deed is attached the following certificate :

STATE OF KENTUCKY, )

SHELBY COUNTY. ) ' I, Hector Alhinin, clerk of the County

Court for the county aforesaid, certify that this deed, from Christopher Vanzant to

William Eankin, was produced to my predecessor in office (or his deputy) on the

11th day of October, 1825, and acknowledged by the said Christopher Vanzant to

be his act and deed, as appears from an indorsement on said deed, in these words

and figures (to wit) : "1825, 60, Oct. 11th, A. by C. Vanzant.

I In testimony whereof, I have hereto subscribed my name and

[seal.] affixed the seal of said court at Shelbyville, this 8th day of March,

1853, and in the 61st year of the Commonwealth.

HECTOR ALHININ, Clk Shelby County Court.

All we know of the custody of either of these deeds is from

the testimony of Flemming, who testifies that they were pro-

duced to him in 1853, by the plaintiff", who now claims under
them ; and all there is of any proof of possession of the prem-

ises under the deeds is, that Charles A. Rankin, claiming to act

as the agent of the grantee in the second deed, in 1853, hauled

some timber on to the land, which was then vacant prairie, for

the purpose of building a house thereon, and that the defendant,

a few days thereafter, threw the lumber off the land into a

by-way, and took possession of the premises himself, by erecting

a house thereon. This presents all there is in this record, as

laying the foundation for the introduction of these deeds.

Deeds over thirty years old, are called ancient deeds, and
may be read in evidence without proof of the hand-writing of

the grantor or subscribing witness, where there is one. But in

order to allow this, certain corroborating circumstances must be

shown. Formerly, possession under the deed during the thirty

years was an- indispensable circumstance to raise the presumption
of its genuineness, but lately, many courts have either limited

the time of possession to a shorter period, or dispensed with it

altogether, while others have strictly adhered to the original

rule. Indorsements or memoranda, upon the deed or ancient
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paper, have been considered as circumstances indicating that

they are genuine, where such indorsements or memoranda are

of such a character as to show to a cautious and discriminating

mind, that they would not be there, had the paper been a for-

gery. When the present state of the authorities on this subject

is considered, it is difficult to lay down a general rule for the

admission of ancient deeds, which shall properly protect the

rights of those claiming under them, and at the same time

guard others against forgeries. To say that the bare produc-

tion of a deed by the party claiming under it, bearing date more
than thirty years ago, is sufficient to raise a presumption of gen-

uineness, and to admit it in evidence, would be opening a door

to frauds which would unsettle all land titles at once. It is as

easy to date a deed 1815 as 1850, and it is as easy to forge a

fraudulent memorandum upon a deed, as it is to forge the deed
itself. There was, at least, some degree of safety, in the

rule which required a long continued possession under the deed
for that could not be got up secretly, and on the spur of the

moment, as a forgery may. Great weight, formerly, with much
propriety, was attached to the appearance of the document,
denoting its real antiquity, but that has ceased to be entitled to

any considerable consideration, for it is well known that mod-
ern chemistry will, in a single day, produce a paper, having
every appearance, both in texture and writing, of the greatest

antiquity. When we remember that skill in forgery has kept
pace with the rapid advance in the arts and sciences, which is

peculiar to our own times, and that the integrity of mankind is

not a whit improved with the improvement of the age, we are

solemnly admonished, that increased vigilance is necessary to

protect the public against the designs of those who are capable
of committing crimes. In certain portions of our State the fa-

cility now offered by our recording laws, for the perpetration of
frauds and forgeries is such, that it has been said that no man
feels secure that his estate may not be taken from him at any
moment, and it is only necessary that we should open this

new door to such practices, to totally destroy all sense of secu-

rity in land titles. Let this court once proclaim, that a deed of

ancient appearance and ancient date, with plausible memoranda
upon it, may be read in evidence, without other proof of its

genuineness, and there will shortly be such a resurrection of old
parchment, as was never before heard of. The facility for

proving forged deeds genuine, would be only equalled by the
difficulty of proving their falsity. If the party claiming under
the ancient deed, produces it, it is said to come from the proper
custody, and hence, we shall presume it genuine. And suppose
it a forgery, who else should produce it, but the forger who is
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to be benefited by it ? Indeed, if a forged deed, we should

expect to find it nowhere but in the hands of the forger, or else

there might be some means of accounting for or detecting it.

If the party is bound to show, by legitimate and competent

proof, that the paper has been actually in existence the thirty

years, there may be some security in the fact, that the paper has

not been got up for the immediate occasion, and if the memo-
randa upon it are required to be proved by legitimate evidence

to be genuine, then we shall know that the whole, at least, is

not a forgery, and if along continued possession, under the deed,

or at least, consistent with it, is proved, that may afford some
evidence at least, that those interested in the subject matter of

the conveyance, knew of its existence, and believed it to be
genuine. Here there is nothing of the sort. There is nothing

shown to the court which might not have been produced the day
before it was shown to Mr. Flemming, while the papers them-
selves show, that if genuine, evidence of a very satisfactory

character might have been produced of the genuineness of the

indorsements upon them, and of the actual antiquity of the

deeds. Let us consider for a moment the indorsements upon
the first deed. They are as follows

:

State of Tennessee,
Davidson County Court,

January Session, 1819.

This indenture of bargain and sale, between Lemuel Tucker of the one part

and Christopher Vanzant of the other part, dated the 15th day of January, 1819,

for 160 acres of land in the Illinois territory, was acknowledged in open court by

the said Lemuel Tucker to be his act and deed, and ordered to be so certified.

The probate being of record in this court.

In testimony whereof, I, Nathan Ewing, clerk of said court, have

hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said court at office

[seal.] at Nashville, this 20th day of January, in the year of our Lord

1819, and 43rd year of American Independence.

NATHAN EWING.

Recorder's office, Edwardsville, Madison Co., Illinois. I, Josias Rundle, Re-

corder for Madison county, do certify the within deed to be duly recorded and

examined in Book vol. 4, page 29, this 1 day of Jan., 1820.

JOSIAS RUNDLE.
(Tit.)

No. 6869.

Recorded Vol. 4, p. 29.

Exd. J. Rimdls. 150.
^»^

Lemuel Tucker )

To > Deed. 160 Acres.

Christopher Vansant. )

Now this first certificate, if genuine, shows that the probate

of the deed is of record in the Davidson County Court, in Ten-
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nessee, and if there be any such record there, it was the easiest

thing imaginable to show it, and if shown, it would have afforded

a strong presumption that the deed produced was the one referred

to in the record. But more satisfactory still might have been

the records of Madison county. If the certificate of Rundle is

genuine, that this same deed was spread upon the records of

that county, and although not authorized by law to be recorded,

if an exact copy of this deed be actually there found, in a place

in the record book corresponding to the date of the certificate,

it would show very satisfactorily that there was an original pa-

per in existence at that time, corresponding to the one produced,

and which might reasonably be inferred to be the same. It is

no answer to say that these things were proved by the certifi-

cates themselves, the first of which is attested by the seal of the

court. If the certificate of the clerk, attested by the seal of

the court, purported to give an examplified copy of a record of

that court, there would be force in the suggestion. It purports

to give the substance of what took place in the court, and that

there is a record in the court, but what that record is, it does

not profess to give. That certificate and seal is not in conform-

ity to the law of Congress so as to make it evidence, and if it

is not such evidence, it proves nothing. And the same may be

said of the certificate of the recorder of Madison. He had no

legal authority for recording the document, and hence the record

was void. It was not a record, and hence he could by his cer-

tificate make no competent evidence in relation to it. He might

as well have recorded an ancient ballad and certified that fact,

and thereby proved the existence of the old song at that time.

It must be remembered that ofiicial certificates are only evidence

by force of positive law, and that except where they are by law
declared to be evidence, they are not proof of what they certify

to. Still it was not beyond the reach of the party to prove

there are such records, or entries purporting to be such records,

in the old record books ; and as they would have afibrded evidence

tending to prove the fact that the deed produced was actually

in existence in 1819 and 1820, it was the duty of the party to

produce it. Surely, when the party is asking the court to dis-

pense with a general rule of law, and to presume so much in his

favor as to admit his deed on trust, or on mere suspicion, he
ought to do everything which it is in his power to do, to satisfy

the court that the deed is genuine. It may be supposed that

this rule, that the party shall produce the best evidence of which
the nature of the case is susceptible, is not applicable when an-

cient deeds are offered, because although it may be shown that

the subscribing witness is still living, he need not be produced

to prove the deed; but we apprehend that such indulgence



APRIL TERM, 1858. 23

Illinois Central Railroad Company v. Alexander et al.

would not be granted, were it shown that the party producing

the deed knew the witness was living, and had it in his power to

produce him. So absurd a proposition as that, is not and cannot

be the law, unless made so by the legislature, and if any courts

have ever so held, they have misinterpreted the common law.

If there ever was a case where the party should exhaust every

effort to satisfy the court that the presumption which he asks

the court to draw in his favor, that his deed is genuine, is con-

sistent with the very fact, it is a case of this sort, where at least

we can never feel satisfied that we are not lending our aid to

fraud and forgery.

The second deed admitted has much less the indicia of genu-

ineness than the first, but we deem it unnecessary to enter into a

minute discussion of it.- Without saying at this time when we
will or will not admit papers as ancient deeds without proof of

their execution, it is sufficient to say that we are very clear that

these deeds were improperly admitted. We choose to proceed

cautiously before attempting to lay down any general rule

which shall govern all cases of the sort. Indeed, it may be

almost impossible to lay down such a general rule with safety,

but we may safely say that in all cases the party shall do every-

thing in his power to raise the presumption of genuineness. To
do less than this, it would be better to repudiate the rule alto-

gether ; but this we are not at liberty to do, for it certainly is

a part of the common law ; but we are satisfied that security to

property requires that it should not be loosely extended.

The judgment must be reversed and the cause remanded.
Judgment reversed.

The Illinois Central Railroad Company, Appellant, v.

Basil W. Alexander et al, Appellees.

APPEAL FROM JO DAVIESS.

A Railroad Company may assume the double character of carriers and warehouse-
men, and that their duty as carriers is ended when they have placed goods en-

trusted to them in a safe depot of tlieir own, or in any other safe warehouse.

Such companies have a right to charge a reasonable compensation for warehouse
services ; and are to be considered and treated like other warehousemen. And
may retain goods in possession until reasonable warehouse charges thereon shall

have been paid.

This was an action of trover brought by appellees againt the

appellant for eight hundred and twenty-one sacks of salt. De-

claration in the usual form in trover.
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1st Plea, General issue.

2nd Plea, That defendant was a common carrier and ware-

houseman, and as such received the salt in question, and at the

time when, etc., a large sum was due to the Railroad Company
for transportation, and also a sum as warehouse charges, which

sum the plaintiffs refused to pay, and defendant kept possession

of the salt until the charges should be paid.

. 3rd Plea, That defendant had a lien upon the salt in ques-

tion, as warehouseman, for storage, at the time when, etc.

General replication, denying that any sum was due either for

freight or storage, and issues thereon.

On the trial, George W. Campbell, a witness for the plain-

tiffs, testified : That the salt in question was the property of the

plaintiffs ; that he was the consignee of said salt ; that there

were 1,000 sacks of it in all, 179 of which were received in

good order in December last ; the balance, 821 sacks, came to

Galena at various times between January 1st and March 1st,

1857, on defendant's railroad ; the sacks were frozen together,

and were broken in getting them out of the cars ; witness re-

fused to receive these 821 sacks as in good order ; defendant's

depot in Galena was divided across the centre by a rope ; the

defendant occupied the east half, and the witness and H. F.

McClaskey the west half; witness proposed to put the salt on

his side of the depot, not as a delivery, but subject to the order

of defendant's agent, but said agent objected ; witness claimed

damages on the salt, and offered to refer that question to referees,

on condition that the damages caused by the delay in the trans-

portation of the salt should not be included in the reference

;

defendant's agent, Petrie, would not agree to it.

About loth March, 1857, everything relating to damage to

sacks of salt was, by agreement, referred to referees, who made
the following award :

" Galena, March 13th, 1857. We, the

undersigned, being called upon by the freight agent of the Illi-

nois Central Railroad Company, and George W. Campbell, to

assess the damages on 821 sacks of salt, now lying in the freight

depot, consigned to George W. Campbell, Galena, by Alexander
& Lansing, of St. Louis, have examined the same, and assessed

the damage at fifteen cents per sack, which does not include the

damage by delay." This was on Friday or Saturday, witness

thinks Saturday ; the damages, fifteen cents per sack, were de-

ducted from the freight, and the witness paid the balance of the

freight on the salt ; on Monday witness sent to remove the salt,

and afterwards went over himself; Petrie presented bill of 20
cents per sack for storage of the salt, and 2* per cent, commis-
sions for advances made by defendant ; 175 of the sacks were
on witness' side of the depot ; Petrie said he would not deliver
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the salt until the bill Avas paid ; witness refused to pay it ; the

175 sacks of salt were then removed from witness' side of the

depot to defendant's side, without the consent of witness ; this

was within a few days after the reference, don't remember the
exact time.

Plaintiff's counsel then asked the witness this question:
" What was the value of the salt at the time you went over ?

"

which was objected to by defendant. Objection overruled, and
exception taken.

Witness said salt was selling at $2.50 to $2.75 per sack ; I

demanded the salt that had been consigned to me by Alexander
& Lansing ; I was a forwarding and commission merchant ; salt

was consigned to me for sale on their account ; the prices for

storage of a lot of salt of that kind at that time was ten cents

per sack, for all the time that that salt was in store ; the salt

came at different times ; the reference was on the 13th of March

;

some of the salt had been in store three months, some not one
month ; the salt has ever since remained in possession of the

defendant ; witness has never attempted to get it since ; witness

saw the salt before the commencement of this suit, and a con-

siderable time after damages were assessed ; that it was very
much damaged ; sacks were torn and badly damaged.

Defendant's counsel objected to any evidence as to the condi-

tion of the salt, after the assessment of damages, on the ground
that the damages^had been paid. Objection overruled, and ex-

ception taken.

Witness further testified that Petrie subsequently offered to

give him the salt free of charges, but he refused to receive it.

On his cross-examination the witness testified tliat the depot
was divided by a rope running across it, and by no other divi-

sion. When witness went over for the salt, he told Petrie he
was surprised at the amount of the bill which he, Petrie, pre-

sented ; Petrie told him he could not have the salt until it was
paid. Salt ran down in price during the summer ; it was worth
$2 per sack at the middle of March.

Charles E. Diier was then called by plaintiffs, and testified

as follows : I was in the employ of George W. Campbell on the

13th day of March, 1857, and had been for two or three years

before ; I know the salt in controversy ; after the damages were
assessed, I went and paid the freight to the defendants, less the

damages as assessed ; defendant's agent receipted the bills for

freight, witness receipted for the salt ; 175 to 200 sacks of salt

were then on Campbell's side of the depot ; balance were on
defendant's side ; Campbell had told Petrie that they might put

the whole of the salt on his side of the depot until the damages
were settled ; witness notified Petrie not to remove the salt
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from Campbell's side of the depot ; that he considered the whole

of tlie«alt received, although a portion of it was on defendant's

side of depot ; Petrie said that we should not remove it until

the bill of storage was paid ; sometime after, Petrie notified us

that he was willing we should remove the salt, free of charge
;

this was several weeks after the damages were assessed ; the

salt was then in a much worse condition than it was when the

damages were assessed ; it had thawed out.

Defendant's counsel objected to all testimony as to the condi-

tion of the salt after the damage had been assessed. Objection

overruled, and exception taken.

Witness then testified that defendant wasted a good deal of

salt in moving it, putting it down a slide into the lower story of

the depot ; how much was wasted he could not tell. On his

cross-examination witness said Mr. Campbell said, when he told

Petrie to put salt on his side of the depot, that he would not

consider it received until the damages were assessed.

John Louvain called by plaintiffs and testified as follows : Am
a forwarding and commission merchant in Galena ; know the

warehouse of defendant ; saw the salt in dispute when it ar-

rived ; saw it about 13th of March, piled up in the depot ; have

seen it since ; the only damage that could happen to the salt

while in the depot was in putting it down the slide into the

lower story ; it was thrown down the slide without care, and
roughly handled ; some of the salt was wasted in this way ; can't

say how much.

Geo. W. Campbell was then recalled by plaintiffs. Plaintiffs'

counsel asked him :
" Did you act under the instructions of

the plaintiffs in relation to this salt, as their agent? " Defend-

ant objected to this question as improper, because witness should

state what he did in the matter. Objection overruled, and ex-

ception taken. Witness answered that he acted in the capacity

of agent for the plaintiff's and corresponded with them in rela-

tion to the matter, and that the salt was consigned to him as a

commission merchant originally.

J. M. Ryan was called by defendant. His testimony tended

to show that the salt was worth $2 per sack, in Galena, on the

13th of March.

Henry Petrie, whose deposition was read by defendant, testi-

fied as follows : I was station agent for defendant from 22nd
of November, 1856, to 10th of August, 1857 ; was engaged in

warehouse business for several years before that time ; the salt

in question was received in defendant's warehouse in the months
of January and February last, to the best of my recollection,

and remained there when I left ; I should think the storage was
worth ten cents per hundred for the first month ; after that I
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should charge according to the warehouse room aud locality
;

the freight on the salt was paid by Mr. Campbell, the consignee
;

15 cents per sack was deducted from the transportation for dam-
age done to the sacks ; the salt was frozen very hard, and crow-

bars had to be used to get them out of the cars ; I made a

warehouse charge on that salt and presented it to the consignee
;

it was not paid ; don't remember what reason was assigned for

not paying it ; nothing was ever settled in regard to the salt and
freight ; I presented the bill for warehouse charges the next

day after the freight was settled ; the warehouse charges were
not paid, and for that reason I retained the salt ; afterwards I

was instructed by the general freight agent to deliver the salt

free from warehouse charge, and I olTered to do so to Mr. Cam}>
bell before the commencement of this suit, or before the service

of process on me ; the oifer was made before the 23rd day of July

last, I think ; Campbell did not receive the salt : he objected, I

think, not on account of the amount of the charges, but objected

to paying warehouse charges at all ; when the salt was received

I had no special instructions in relation to the warehouse charge

on the salt ; I charged it because I thought it was right ; Mr.
Campbell and myself disagreed about it ; I asked time to refer

it to the general freight office, to which he consented ; they in-

structed me to collect the charge, of which I informed him
;

afterwards I was instructed to deliver the salt to him free of

charge, and offered to do so as before stated ; neither plaintilfs

nor their agent ever asked for said salt after said offer, to my
knowledge ; if they had, they would have got it.

Cross-examined. The freight and damages were settled about

the 13th of March, 1857; it was not our practice to present

freight bills, but the practice was to give the parties notice that

the goods were there and the amount of charges at the time of

the receipt of the goods. I think Mr. Campbell had such

notice ; at any rate he knew that the salt was there. It was our

practice when we gave such notice, to include all charges upon
the goods up to the time the notice was given ; this was the

only warehouse charge I ever attempted to collect for the rail-

road company, at the time I was agent for it ; it was not cus-

tomary to make warehouse charges on goods received at the

Galena office. Mr. Campbell did not, during the winter or

spring, offer to receive the salt and pay the charges on it, if the

defendant would settle the damages to the sacks ; at first he

refused to receive the salt on account of delay in transportation
;

afterwards abondoned that claim, and set up a claim for dam-
ages to sacks, at fifty cents per sack. I offered to refer it at

the time ; he refused at first, but afterwards agreed to it, as

before stated.
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Geo. L. Evret, called by defendant, testified as follows : Have

been in the employ of defendant as clerk in the freight house at

Galena, since a year ago last August. There are printed rules

on the freight bills ; the printed freight bills and the rules

thereon are the same as have always been used by defendant

since witness has been in the service.

The printed freight bill shown to the witness is itself attached

to the record, and was read in evidence, together with the rules

thereon, some of v/hich rules are as follows

:

All the articles of freight arriving at their place of destina-

tion, consigned to residents, and they notified of, within busi-

ness hours, must be taken away the same day ; and if consigned

to non-residents, must be taken away within twenty-three hours

after being unloaded from the cars, the company reserving the

right of charging for storage on the same, if they see fit, after

those stated periods.

The company will be responsible only as warehousemen for

property in their warehouse.

Geo. W. Campbell., called by defendant, and testified as fol-

lows : That he had receipts of defendant for freight paid on

the 179 sacks of salt, received in December, which receipts he

produced, and they were read in evidence with the printed rules

on the back of them. Witness testified that he had received

perhaps a thousand of these receipts. Witness then produced

the receipts for the 831 sacks of salt in controversy, which were

read to the jury.

Said witness, CampheU., on cross-examination, testified : That

he had never read the matter on the back of these receipts

;

that he had done business with defendant ever since he came to

Galena, and never paid storage before ; that this was the only

charge for storage made him ; that it was very common to leave

goods in the depot longer than the time named in the printed

rules ; never knew a storage bill made by defendant before

;

witness and defendant were never particular about the line

dividing their respective parts of the depot ; company frequently

had goods on his side of the line, and he on their side ; I think

there was no uniform custom of the defendant to charge storage

at Galena.

The jury found a verdict for the plaintiffs for $1,876.03. The
defendant moved the court for a new trial, which motion was
overruled, and the defendants excepted.

J. M. Douglass, Glover & Cook, and G. Campbell, for

Appellant.

Leland & Leland, for Appellees.
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Caton, C. J. The law is now too well settled to bear discus-

sion, that a railroad company may assume the double character

of carriers and warehousemen. That tlieir duty as carriers

is ended when they have placed the goods in a safe depot of

their own or any other safe warehouse. That their depot is

their warehouse, and that for warehouse services thev have a

right to charge a reasonable compensation, the same as other

warehousemen. The railroad company in this case, after their

relation to the goods as common carriers had ceased, is then to

be considered and treated the same as other warehousemen
would be considered and treated in case the goods had been

placed in another warehouse. The agent of the plaintiffs below
had abundant notice that the company claimed the right to

charge for storage after the goods had remained in the depot

one day, and by sufiering the goods to remain in the warehouse
for any length of time, when by such rule they would be sub-

ject to charge, he impliedly agreed for his principal to pay
reasonable charges for the storage, and until these charges were
paid, the company were not bound to let the goods go. While
a lien for these charges existed, which the agent of the plaintills

neglected or refused to pay, the company Avas not guilty of a

conversion, by retaining the goods for such non-payment. If

the charges claimed for the storage were unreasonable, Campbell
should have tendered a reasonable auiount for the charges, and
then if the company had refused to receive it and deliver the

goods, it would have been guilty of a conversion. There is so

much evidence tending to show that the company had a fair and
legitimate claim on these goods for storage, which would justify

their retention, that we are of opinion that the case should be

submitted to another jury. A new trial is therefore ordered.

The judgment is reversed and the cause remanded.
Ji{dg7ne7it reversed.

Thomas W. Baird et al, Appellants, v. William Evans

et al, Appellees.

APPEAL FROM LA SALLE COUNTY COURT.

In an action upon an agreement, by which it was stipulated that plaintiffs should

dig a stock well, break the prairie that was unbroken, build a stable, crib and
bin room, and have the farm fenced with a lawful fence, and which conditions it

was alleged were all performed, it was held that from the nature of the contract,

that the foregoing were conditions precedent to be performed, and proof of per-

formance of which was necessary before the rent, $400, should be required to be

paid.
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Before a party can recover on a contract, he must have performed his part of it, or

have been ready and willing to do so, unless prevented or excused from so

doing.

The first count of this declaration was upon an agreement in

writing, made between the appellants of the first part, and the

appellees of the second part, by which the appellees leased to

the appellants their farm, (describing it,) from the 1st of March,

1855, to the 1st of March, 1856, for the sum of $400, to be

paid on the 1st day of October, 1855. By said agreement said

Evans and Evans contracted to put suitable and sufficient stable

room for three span of horses on said farm ; also to furnish

sufficient crib and bin room for the grain raised upon said farm,

and to break the prairie sod remaining then unbroken on said

farm, in season to be planted in corn, provided the prairie was
in suitable condition ; also, to dig a stock well, and to have said

farm fenced with a lawful fence.

The plaintiffs aver that they did put on the stables, cribs and
bins, and did break the prairie sod that remained unbroken on
said farm, in season to be planted in corn, and had said farm
fenced with a lawful fence, and that Baird and Graham occupied

the premises during the term, and refused to pay the rent.

The second count was a common count for use and occupation.

Plea, the general issue. An agreement was made by the

parties, and entered of record, that all evidence might bo given
under the general issue, that could be given under any well

drawn special pleas.

The jury found a verdict for the plaintiffs belov/, for $330.
A motion for a new trial was overruled.

On the trial, the plaintiffs read in evidence the agreement set

out in the first count of declaration, which is as follows

:

" Eden, La Salle County, III.

" Article of agreement, made and entered into between
William and Jas. F. Evans of the first part, and Thomas W.
Baird and Benjamin M. Graham of the second part, this the 28th
November, 1854. The said Wm. and J. F. Evans, parties of
the first part, agree to lease to the said Thomas W. Baird and
Benjamin M. Graham, parties of the second part, their farm,
described as being the north-west quarter of section ten, town.
32, range one east of the third principal meridian, from the
first of March, 1855, to the first of March, 1850, in and for

the consideration of the sum of four hundred ($400) dollars,

to be paid on the first of October, 1855. The said parties of
the first part do further agree to put suitable and sufficient

stable room for three span of horses ; also to furnish sufficient

crib and bin room for the grain raised upon the said farm, and
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to break the prairie sod that remains unbroken on the said

farm, in season to be planted in corn, provided the prairie is in

suitable condition ; also, to dig a stock well, and to have the

said farm fenced with a lawful fence. The said Thomas W.
Baird and Benjamin M. Graham, parties of the second part, do
agree to pay to Wm. and J. F. Evans, parties of the first part,

the four hundred ($400) dollars on the first of October, 1855,
for the consideration before mentioned. The said parties agree

that either of the parties sliall be entitled to the pasture of the

stalks, wlien the ground is in a suitable condition."

Glover & Cook, for Appellants.

Leland & Leland, for Appellees.

Walker, J. This was an action of assumpsit, brought in the

La Salle County Court, by William and James F. Evans against

Thomas W. Baird and Benjamin M. Graham. The declaration

contained a special count, upon an agreement in writing made
between the parties plaintiff', of the one part, and defendants, of

the other part, by which the plaintiffs leased their farm to de-

fendants, from the 1st of March, 1855, to the 1st of March,
1856. The plaintiffs contracted to put suitable stable room for

three span of horses on the farm ; to furnish crib and bin room
for the grain raised on the farm ; to break the prairie sod which
was unbroken on the farm, in season to be planted in corn, pro-

vided the i)rairie was in suitable condition ; also, to dig a stock

well, and to have the farm fenced with a lawful fence. For the

rent of which the defendants were to pay $400, on the 1st day
of October, 1855. The plaintiff's aver that they had fully com-
plied with their part of the agreement, and defendants had not

paid the rent.

The second count was for use and occupation, in the usual

form.

The defendants pleaded the general issue, and it was agreed

that any evidence might be given under it which would be ad-

missible under well drawn pleas. A trial was had before the

court and a jury, and verdict for plaintiffs for $330. Defend-

ants entered a motion for a new trial, which was overruled, and
judgment rendered on the verdict.

The evidence shows, without any conflict, that plaintiffs did

not dig the stock well, and did not break all of the sod prairie,

as averred in the declaration, and as they were bound by their

contract read in evidence on the trial.

On the trial, the defendant Baird asked, and the court refused

to give, the following instruction to the jury :
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" The conditions in the agreement by which the plaintiffs were
to dig the stock well, break the prairie that was unbroken upon
the premises, to build the stable, crib and bin room, and to have

the farm fenced with a lawful fence, are conditions precedent, to

be performed within a reasonable time, taking into consideration

the nature of the contract, and before the time of payment of

the $400 mentioned in the agreement could be demanded ; and
the plaintiifs having alleged, in their count in the declaration

upon the agreement, a full performance of the conditions therein

contained, to be performed on the part of the plaintiffs, they

must prove such performance of the conditions of the agreement
in order to recover upon the agreement."

A The law is well settled, that before a party can recover on a

contract, he must have performed his part of the contract, or

have been ready and willing to perform, or have been prevented
or excused from its performance by the other partv. 1 Chit. PI.

351; Taylor Y. Beck, n 111. R. 387. The plaintiffs, in their

first count, had averred a full performance, and the evidence
showed a failure to perform their part of the contract. The
averment was material, and to entitle them to recover on the

special count, they were bound to prove the performance as

averred. The instruction only related to the right to recover
on the agreement declared on in the special count, and did not
question their right to recover on the count for use and occupa-
tion

; and it should have been given. Had it been to the whole
right of action under both counts, it would have been different.

No error is perceived in the admission or rejection of evidence,
or the giving or refusing the various other instructions in the
case. For the refusal to give the defendant Baird's first instruc-

tion, the judgment of the court below should be reversed and
cause remanded.

Judgment reversed.

Isaac Korsoski et al, Appellants, v. Nathan H. Foster,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM McHENRY.

A, being the holder of a note against B, to a larger amount than what A, owes B,
A, may give credit for the amount due to B, so as thereby to reduce the demand
of A, against B, to a sum within the jurisdiction of a justice of the peace,

although the money Avas not then demandable by B, from A.

This was an action of assumpsit commenced before a justice

of the peace in and for the county of McHenry, by summons to
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" Isaac Korsoski & Co." to answer the complaint of Nathan H.
Foster, etc.

Judgment rendered in favor of the plaintiff for $99.60, and
costs of suit, defendant insisting that the justice had no juris-

diction in the case.

Appeal taken by the defendants to the Circuit Court of

McHenry county.

The plaintiff below, to maintain the issues on his part, read

in evidence a note, of which the following is a copy :

SIOO. Marengo, June 1st, 1856.

Nine months after date we promise to pay to the order of Christian Miller one

hundred dollars, at his house in Marengo, with use, value received.

Signed, , J. KORSOSKI & CO.

Upon which note was and is the following assignment and
indorsement, to wit

:

.

Pay the within to N. H. Foster. CH. MILLER.
Received on the within, $5.13. March 9, 1857.

The defendant below then called as a witness, Frederick Otto,

who testified as follows :

Defendants were clothing dealers ; that plaintiff came into

the store a few days before the commencement of the suit

before the justice, and selected an India rubber coat, price be-

tween $5 and $6, and taking out the note given in evidence,

proposed to indorse the price of the coat upon it. Defendant

objected, and said that plaintiff might either pay cash for the

coat, or he (defendant) would give him a credit of three or six

. months, as he did others. Plaintiff went out a few minutes and
came back and said he would take the coat upon six months'

credit, to which defendant assented, and plaintiff took the coat.

I was a witness before the justice ; the defendant there objected

to the indorsement on the note, and insisted that the justice had
no jurisdiction, the note and interest being over one hundred

* dollars.

The plaintiff then called S. R. Faynier, who testified as

follows

:

Isaac Korsoski, one of the defendants, called at his office and
said that Foster the plaintiff had called at his store and got a

coat, and wanted to credit the price on the note ; that he, Isaac,

objected to it being so indorsed, but would let him (Foster)

have the coat on a credit of six months. Foster then took the

coat. Defendant then asked me if Foster could credit the price

of the coat on the note. I told him that he could if that was all

the deal they had. Witness said he made the indorsement on the

note by the direction of the plaintiff, whose attorney he was

;

the indorsement was the price of the coat spoken of.
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It was contended before the justice that the credit was not a

fair one, and that the justice had no jurisdiction in the case.

The defendants, by their counsel, moved to dismiss the suit

for want of jurisdiction in the justice of the peace, which mo-

tion was overruled by the court, and defendants excepted.

The court then gave final judgment in favor of the plaintiff

for one hundred and three dollars and thirty-three cents, to

which defendants then and there excepted.

Defendants then entered a motion for a new trial, which mo-

tion was overruled by the court, and defendants appealed, etc.

Glovee & Cook, for Appellants.

S. Church, for Appellee.

Caton, C. J. The only question in this case is, whether the

indorsement on the note, which reduced the amount due upon it

to a sum within the jurisdiction of a justice of the peace, was
a fictitious credit. Were it now an open question in this court,

we should hesitate long before adopting the rule which has been

laid down, that the holder of a note cannot release so much of

it to the maker, without any consideration, as will bring it

within the jurisdiction of a justice. If a creditor chooses vol-

untarily to release and forgive a part of the debt, v/hich it was
the duty of the debtor to pay, it seems difficult, on principle, to

see why he has any cause to complain. It was his duty to pay
the whole amount of the debt when it became due, and without

being sued, and he who complains of having a part of it for-

given, because he may be expedited a little in the payment of

the balance, should be condemned in a legal as well as in a

moral point of view, for his ungracious objection. But let the

past decisions stand. This case does not come within them, and
we certainly feel no disposition to extend them in the least. In

all the cases decided, the credits were purely fictitious, without

the least excuse on the part of the creditor to remit or indorse

the amount. Not so here. Foster did owe Korsoski, justly and
fairly, the full amount which he indorsed on the note, but it was
not yet due, or the time for which credit was given had not yet

expired. Surely Korsoski ought not to complain if Foster, more
prompt than he, chooses to pay his debt before it becomes due.

There seems a strange kind of consistency in the conduct of one
whose standard of integrity will permit him to refuse to pay his

own debts, when they do fall due, and yet complains of another

who pays him before his debt is due. He will come here in vain

for an indorsement at the hands of this court. We are of opinion

that the credit given by the indorsement on this note was fair and
honest, and the judgment of the court below must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.



APRIL TERM, 1858. 35

Parmelee v. Austin.

Frank Parmelee, Appellant, v. Kate Austin, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM COOK.

In an action to recover for lost baggage, it is no objection to the witness that some
of the articles lost may have been in his trunk, or that he may have had articles

of his own in the baggage lost.

Circuit Courts must be allowed the exercise of a lai"ge discretion on the subject of

leading questions.

This action was brought in a justice's court, and taken, by
appeal, to the Cook Circuit Court.

Austin, the plaintiff below, sued out of the clerk's office of

the Circuit Court a commission to take the evidence of one Jane
M. King, of the city of New York.
On the 2nd March, 1857, the said commission was returned,

with the deposition of said witness, duly filed and opened.

On the said 23rd day of May, 1857, the said cause was tried

before Manniere, Judge, and a jury. The plaintiff, Austin,

read, in evidence, on said trial the deposition of Jane M. King,

aforesaid, which is as follows :

1st. To the first interrogatory on the part of the plaintiff,

she, answering, says :
" My name is Mary King. My ago is

28 years. My residence is New York."
2nd. To the second interrogatory, she, answering, says : "I

know tlie plaintiff, Kate Austin ; do not know the defendant."

3rd. To the third interrogatory, she, answering, says :

" The plaintiff was in Chicago during the latter part of Novem-
ber and fore part of December last. I went there with her,

and saw her while there."

4th. To the fourth interrogatory, she, answering, says

:

" Upon the arrival of the plaintiff at Chicago, in November last,

we had between us three trunks, one belonging to plaintiff, one

wholly belonging to me, and I had a hat trunk, which contained

articles of clothing of both plaintiff and myself. I had the three

checks for all three trunks, and I gave the checks to an agent

of Parmelee's omnibus line, on the arrival of the cars at Chi-

cago. The hat trunk was never delivered by the omnibus line

to us, or either of us, nor the check for the same returned to us."

5th. To the 5tli interrogatory, the witness, answering, says:
" The agent did give me a memorandum of the checks when he

took the same. The last I saw of it was at the trial of this

case before Esq. De Wolf, in the possession of Mr. Lumbard."
6th. To the sixth interrogatory, she, answering, says :

" The
hat trunk, which was lost, contained these articles belonging to

the plaintiff : one winter hat, which was worth eighteen dollars

;

one summer hat, worth twenty-five dollars ; one bracelet, worth



36 OTTAWA,

Parmelee v. Austin.

twenty-five dollars ; one pair of undersleeves, worth ten dollars
;

two collars, worth five dollars each ; three handkerchiefs, one

worth five dollars, and the others, two dollars each, and some

other articles which I cannot describe."

7th. To the seventh interrogatory, she, answering, says

:

" We were detained in Chicago some two or three weeks, trying

to have the defendant either find or pay for the baggage. The
other two trunks were delivered."

There was a finding for the plaintiff below, and a judgment

for ninety-seven dollars.

I
'

•

,

ScATES & McAllister, for Appellant.

Farnsworth & Burgess, for Appellee.

Caton, C. J. This was an action, brought before a justice

of the peace, against Parmelee, as the owner of an omnibus line

in Chicago, for the loss of baggage, delivered to the agent of

his line.

We cannot say the court erred in overruling the objections to

the deposition of Jane M. King. In substance, the evidence

contained in the deposition was pertinent to the issue, and fully

sustained it on the part of the plaintiff. She had no interest in

the event of this cause. The action was not brought for the

loss of any article belonging to the witness. It was no objec-

tion to the witness because the lost articles may have been in

her trunk, or because she may have had articles of her own in

the same trunk. Some of the preliminary questions were rather

leading in form, but not so much so as to subject the testimony of

the witness to reasonable suspicion. The Circuit Courts must
be allowed to exercise a large discretion on the su])ject of lead-

ing questions.

The amended record shows that the words in the answer to

the sixth interrogatory were " these articles," instead of the

words " three articles," as is stated in the first record. This

obviates the objection taken to the suSiciency of the evidence to

sustain the verdict.

The defendant's counsel asked the court to instruct the jury

as follows :
" That if the jury believe, from the evidence, that

the plaintiff and the witness, J. M. King, were the joint owners

of the hat trunk in question, and as such, made a special agree-

ment with defendant's agent for the custody or conveyance of

the same and the contents, then the law is for the defendant."

Which instruction the court refused to give as asked for, but

gave the same amended, as follows :
" That if the jury believe,

from the evidence, that the plaintiff and witness, J. M. King,
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were joint owners of the hat trunk in question, and the goods
therein contained, and as such made a special agreement with

defendant's agent for the custody or conveyance of the same,

and the contents, then the law is for the defendant." To the

refusal to give the instruction as asked, and giving the same

with the addition aforesaid, the defendant's counsel excepted.

The instruction, as asked, was not the law, and the amend-

ment to it was strictly proper. The whole case shows that the

plaintiff was claiming to recover for the loss of the goods which

the trunk contained ; and if she Avas the exclusive owner of

these, she had a right to recover for them, if the case was in

other respects made out. Admitting that the defendant below

was a special bailee of the goods, and did not receive them as

a common carrier, still he was bound to account for their loss,

or answer in damages for their value. Here was no attempt to

account for them.

The judgment must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Edward L. Gilson, Plaintiff in Error, v. William Wood,
Defendant in Error.

EEROIi TO LA SALLE COUNTY COURT.

Possession of personal property is evidence of ownership, and the possessor may
recovcr in trespass against tlie person who takes it from him, unless such person
proves the property to be his own.

Each party engaged in the commission of a joint trespass is liable for the acts of

all.

In trespass, the measure of damages is what the property was worth when taken.

It is not error to allow the statements of an agent, made at the time of the sale of

personal property, to be given in evidence.

This was an action of trespass to personal property, com-

menced in a justice's court. On the trial before the justice, a

judgment was rendered against the defendant in error for costs,

and an appeal was taken therefrom to the La Salle County Court.

The cause came on to be tried in the County Court, at the De-

cember term thereof, A. D. 1857, before J. C. Champlin, Judge
of said court, and a jury, and a verdict had for the plaintiff for

$68 damages, and judgment entered thereon ; which said judg-

ment, it is claimed, is erroneous.

The plaintiff, to maintain the issue on his part, had sworn, as

a witness, Susan Davis, who testified, that last February she

was with her brother-in-law, the plaintiff, at his house ; that de-
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fendant came to the house and knocked at the door ; that plain-

tiff was not at home ; that Edward Gilson and Lasher took a

harness out of the stable occupied by James Dixon, and a plow,

and removed them with a wagon. Plaintiff claimed to own the

plow, wagon and harness. The wagon was driven away by

Lasher. Gilson appeared to be directing the taking away of the

property.

On her cross-examination, the witness testified that Lasher

occupied the premises together with one James Dixon and plain-

tiff. That they all lived in one house, occupying different parts

of it, and used the barn and barnyard together. That for the

portion of the premises, occupied by plaintiff and Dixon, they

were to pay, for the use, one-iJiird of the crops. That witness

went to her brother-in-law's house from the 6th to the 10th of

February, 1857, a few days before Gilson took away the property.

James Dixon, a witness called and sworn for the plaintiff, tes-

tified, that he was present when defendant came and took away
the property, viz.: one two-horse plow, one corn plow, one shovel

plow, one wagon, one double harness. That witness rented the

farm with plaintiff, who is his brother-in-law, from defendant

and George W. Gilson, together. Witness supposed Edward
Gilson was agent for George W. Gilson ; were to pay one-third

of crops for use of premises, to work on shares.

Cross-examined. When we went into possession,, Lasher was
living on the same farm, and occupying part, and had possession

thereof. When we went into possession, Lasher had the per-

sonal property in his possession, and claimed to hold the same
and the premises occupied by him, under defendant. (Objected

to by defendant. Objection overruled.) Lasher retained pos-

session of the same until about a month before this suit was
brought, v/hen Ransom came upon the premises and sold the

property above named to the plaintiff.

The direct examination of the witness was here resumed bv
the plaintiff" 's attorney asking the following question: did Ran-
som state for whom he was selling the property at the time he

sold the same to plaintiff ? Which question was objected to by
defendant, and objection overruled by the court, and to which
ruling the defendant excepted. The witness answered, that

Ransom, when he went to sell the property, stated that he did

so as the agent of Mrs. Gilson, who was the widow of George
W. Gilson, deceased. There was, also, evidence tending to

show that Lasher paid rent for the premises so occupied by him,

to Mrs. Gilson, after the decease of George W. Gilson.

Chumasero & Eldredge, for Plaintiff in Error.

C. Blanchard, for Defendant in Error.
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Caton, C. J. This was an action of trespass to "personal

property, which, at the time of his death, belonged to George
W. Gilson, deceased, and was at that time on a farm of the de-

ceased, occupied by the plaintiff below, as tenant. Some time

after the decease of Gilson, and, say a month, before the tres-

pass complained of was committed, one Ransom, claiming to bo

the agent of Mrs. Gilson, the widow, sold the property to the

plaintiff below. "While the property was thus situated, the de-

fendant below, with others, took and carried away the property.

The following instructions, given for the plaintiff below, were
excepted to

:

2. " The possession of personal property is prima facie evi-

dence of ownership, and unless the defendant has proved that

the goods and chattels so taken from the possession of the plain-

tiff and carried away by the defendant (if such were taken and
carried away), was the property of the defendant, or of some
person other than the plaintiff, they will find for the plaintiff."

3. " If the jury believe, from the evidence, tliat other parties

were assisting said Gilson, tlie defendant, in taking and carrying

away said goods and chattels (if such were taken and carried

away), then the law is, that each party engaged in the commis-

sion of a joint trespass is liable for the acts of all so trespassing."

7. " If the jury find for the plaintifl", the measure of damages
is, what the property is proven to have been worth at the time

it was taken and carried away by the defendant."

These instructions assert the most familiar principles of law,

and we do not deem it necessary to enter into any discussion to

vindicate their propriety.

The defendant asked the court to instruct the jury as follows

:

4th. " If the jury find that the plaintiff occupied the farm under

an agreement with George W. Gilson, by which he was to re-

ceive one-third of the crops for working the farm, that consti-

tutes the relation of master and servant between George W.
Gilson and the plaintiff", and the possession of the plaintiff under

such circumstances was the possession of George W. Gilson,

during his lifetime ; and after his death the possession of his heirs,

devisees or legal representatives. And the fact of the plain-

tiff's being in the occupancy of the premises under such circum-

stances, is, of itself, no evidence of title to the personal pro[>

erty on the premises during such time." Which instruction the

judge qualified by adding as follows :
" But, on the contrary, it

is no evidence that the personal property in question was not the

property of the plaintiff." To this qualification the defendant

excepted. We are entirely unable to see the least objection to

this qualification. How the circumstances alluded to could tend

to prove that the property did not, at the time of the trespass,
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belong to the plaintiff, or, at least, was not in his possession,

which is a sufficient ownership to maintain this action against a

stranger, we are unadvised. The qualification was very proper.

The court refused this instruction asked by the defendant

:

" If the jury believe, from the evidence, that Ransom sold

the property in dispute to plaintiff, as the agent of Mrs. Gilson,

who was the widow of George W. Gilson, they must find for the

defendant, unless it be shown also that the property was the

property of George W. Gilson, and that she had the right to

make such sale as the executrix or administratrix of George W.
Gilson, or that she was the owner of the property." This decis-

ion was also excepted to. This was, certainly, properly refused.

It was no matter whether the plaintiff got a good title from the

agent of Mrs. Gilson or not. His possession was sufficient as

against a wrong doer, as the defendant appears to have been, or

at least as he might have been but for any thing in this instruc-

tion. The evidence of Dixon tends to show that the defendant

had something to do with the renting of the farm to the plain-

tiff, in connection with, and as the agent of, George W. Gilson.

But that gave him no right to interfere subsequently, and espe-

cially after the death of George W. Gilson.

There was no error in allowing Ransom's statements, that he
was the agent of Mrs. Gilson, which were made at the time of

the sale, and as a part of that sale itself, to be given in evidence.

We find no error in this record, and the judgment must be
affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Francis B. Cooley et al, PLaintifTs in Error, v. John W,
G. Culton, Defendant in Error.

EllROR TO MARSHALL.

Wliere an appeal is taken to the Circuit Court, from the discharge, by the county
judge, of a person under our insolvent act, it is the duty of the insolvent to attend
the Circuit Court and submit to an examination ; and if he fails to attend, the
cause should be continued on application of the appellant.

This was an application for discharge from custody and im-

prisonment under chapter 52, Revised Statutes, entitled Insolvent

Debtors, made by Culton on the 6th day of September, A. D.
1855, at the August special term of the Marshall County Court.

Culton was brought before the court on a ca. sa. issued by B.
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F, Fuller, a justice of the peace in and for said county, on a

judgment rendered by said justice against said Culton, in favor

of one Lewis Skinklo.

Culton scheduled his property, made the necessary oath, was
examined, E. W. Hazard was appointed assignee, and the court

ordered Culton to be discharged, from Avhich judgment the plain-

tiffs, being judgment creditors, appealed to the Circuit Court of

said county. Before the trial of this cause in the Circuit Court,

the plaintiffs in error read the following affidavit

:

In the matter of tlie application of J. W. J. Culton for a

discharge from arrest,

JV. H. Purple^ being sworn, says that it is necessary that the

applicant for a discharge, J. W. J. Culton, should be present in

court to be personally examined upon the hearing of this appli-

cation, and that he is not present.

Upon this affidavit, plaintiffs in error moved the court for a

continuance, which motion was overruled by the court and ex-

cepted to by plaintiffs.

The cause was tried by Hollistee, Judge, and a jury, at Oc-

tober term, 1856, of the Marshall Circuit Court.

The verdict was for the defendant, Culton.

Glover & Cook, for Plaintiffs in Error.

E. W. Hazard, for Defendant in Error.')

Walker, J. This was an application by Culton to the Pro-

bate Court of Marshall county, for a discharge from imprison-

ment, on the 6th day of September, 1855, under the provisions

of the insolvent debtors' act. He had been arrested on a ca. sa.

issued by a justice of the peace of that county on a judgment in

favor of one Lewis Skinkle. On the hearing of the application

before the Probate Court, he filed a schedule properly sworn to,

and made the required assignment, was examined by the court,

and E. W. Hazard was appointed assignee, and applicant was
discharged from custody. From that judgment plaintiffs, who
were creditors and claimed to be aggrieved by his discharge,

appealed to the Circuit Court of Marshall county, and sued out

a summons against Culton, which was' duly served. At the Oc-
tober term, 1856, of the Circuit Court, the plaintiff filed an
affidavit that it was necessary that Culton should be present on
the trial to be examined, and that he was absent, and moved for

a continuance for that reason. The court overruled the motion.

A trial was had before the court and a jury, and the issues were
found for defendant. The plaintiff entered a motion for a new

4
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trial, which was overruled, and the defendant was discharged

by order of the court. To reverse this judgment, plaintiff pros-

ecutes this writ of error.

The only question presented by this record for our considera-

tion is, whether the court erred in overruling the motion for a

continuance on account of the absence of Culton.

The applicant for a discharge from custody under this act

is entitled to it only when he complies with the statute.

The seventh section provides for the examination of the appli-

cant when the fairness of his schedule is contested ; and this

privilege is mutual. On such trial in the probate court, he has

a right to be examined, if he desires, and the creditor contest-

ing his right to a discharge has the same right to examine him
in regard to the fairness of his proceedings. And the only

question to determine is, whether, by an appeal to the Circuit

Court, the rights of the parties are changed. This is a statu-

tory proceeding, and it is regulated by the statute ; and the

right is given by the statute to examine the applicant ; and no
reason is perceived why this right should be lost to either party

by appealing to the Circuit Court. This court has held that

where an appeal is given and no mode of trial is prescribed in

the appellate court, that the trial shall be de novo. ShiriliffY.

The People, 2 Scam. R. 9. And no reason is perceived for

adopting a different rule in this case. If, when the creditor

appeals, the applicant, on the trial of the appeal, has no right

to examine him, he would have no right to be examined on his

own application. And such a change in the practice in the in-

ferior and superior courts would materially affect the rights of

the parties, by appealing from the decision of the Probate
Court,

The applicant for a discharge when an appeal is taken, and
he is served with process, should attend on the trial, to be ex-

amined, if desired, by the opposite party or himself, and unless

he does so attend, he is not entitled to a discharge, unless the

opposite party waives his attendance. And it is the duty of

the Circuit Court to continue the cause when the applicant fails

to attend, when a continuance is asked by the creditor.

The judgment of the Circuit Court is reversed and the cause

remanded.

Judgment reversed.
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Richard Cody, Appellant, v. David L. Hough, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM LA SALLE.

Where notice is given the day previous to a trial to produce a paper which is eighty

miles distant, in the control of another person, the court will not take judicial

notice that the paper could not have been obtained, and so exclude secondary
evidence.

Where the court which tries a case has jurisdiction of the person and the subject

matter, it will be presumed that the proceedings in it were regular ; and another
court will not inquire into them collaterally.

This cause was tried before Hollister, Judge, and a jury, at

December term, 1856, of the La Salle Circuit Court. There
was a verdict for the plaintiff in the court below, and a judg-

ment upon that verdict. The defendant below brings the cause

to this court by appeal, and assigns errors.

The facts of the case are stated in the opinion of the court.

Glover & Cook, and W. H. L. Wallace, for Appellant,

Leland & Leland, for Appellee.

"Walker, J. David L. Hough sued Richard Cody in an
action of ejectment, in the La Salle Circuit Court, to the No-
vember term, 1856, for lot five, block one hundred and nineteen,

in La Salle. Plea, general issue. A trial was had before the

court and a jury. The record shows that plaintiff, on the day
before the trial, gave defendant's counsel notice to produce the

patent for the lot in controversy, or the plaintiff would insist

upon his right to give secondary evidence of its contents ; that

the patent was not produced on the trial. It was conceded that

the patent was in the hands of Isaac Cook, the patentee, who
resided in Chicago, eighty miles from the place of trial, and
that he was not present at the trial, and the cause was set for

trial on the day it was tried, three days previous. The court

permitted the plaintiff to read a copy of the patent from one of

the books of record of La Salle county, to Isaac Cook, for the

lot in controversy, to which the defendant objected, for want of

sufficient notice to produce the original. The plaintiff then

offered the record of a judgment of the Circuit Court of La
Salle county, at the May term, 1853, which showed, that in a

case of The People v. Isaac Cook, the parties entered their ap-

pearance and defendant waived service. And the court, in that

case, found that an execution had issued out of that court on

the 4th day of June, A. D. 1850, on a judgment obtained therein

by the people of the State of Illinois against Matthias App, for
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the sum of $16.2Gi, directed to said Cook as sheriff of the

county of Cook, which was received by him on the 6th day of

June, 1850; and also that another execution for $14.47-1 was
issued out of that court on the same day, against the same de-

fendant, on another judgment, and directed and delivered to

the said Cook as sheriff of Cook county, on the same day as the

other ; and that said Cook, by ]\[iller, his deputy, on the 29th

day of June, 1850, received of the defendant ten dollars on
these executions, or one of them, and the further sum of ten

dollars on the 19th day of August, 1850 ; and that said execu-

tions had been returned by the sheriff to the office of the clerk

of the La Salle Circuit Court, without any indorsement thereon

of the receipt of said sums of money, or either of them, or any
part tliereof, nor had any part thereof been paid over to the

people of the State of Illinois, and that the same was retained

by Cook in the hands of his deputy. And that the interest then

due on these sums of money, from the time the same were col-

lected until that date, at the rate of twenty per cent, per annum,
amounted to $13.41, which, with the principal, amounted to

$33.41, for whicli, with the costs, the court rendered judgment
against Cook and in favor of the people of the State of Illinois,

and awarded execution. Which record the court permitted the

plaintiff to read in evidence to the jury, and to which defendant

objected. The plaintiff read in evidence to the jury an execu-

'tion issued on the judgment, of the date of February 27, 1854,
for $33.41 damages, and $2.70 costs, with the return on said

execution showing a levy of the execution on the lot in contro-

versy, and the sale of the lot to plaintiff Hough, on the 18th

day of May, 1854 ; to all of which the defendant below excepted.

"The plaintiff then read in evidence a deed for the lot from Fran-

'cis Warner, as sheriff of La Salle county, to which the defend-

ant objected. Plaintiff called a witness, who testified that since

November, 1856, lots five and six, in block one hundred and
nineteen, in the city of La Salle, have been inclosed in one

fence ; defendant's house, in which he lives, is on lot six ; did

not know who put up the fence around the lots ; never saw de-

fendant exercise any acts of ownership over the lots in contro-

versy. This was the evidence in the case, and upon it the jury

found a verdict for the plaintiff, and the defendant moved the

court for a new trial, which was overruled, and judgment was
rendered on the verdict, and to reverse which defendant Cody
brings the cause to this court.

The first question presented for our consideration, is, whether
the notice to produce the patent was sufficient to authorize the

admission of secondary evidence of its contents. The record,

only shows that the patent was in Cook's possession, and that
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he resided at Chicago. It nowhere appears that defendant

could not have produced it, by using reasonable efforts, after the

service of notice. The court cannot take judicial notice that,

by the use of the means afforded for communication by telegraph

and railroad, that he could not, by using slight efforts, have

produced the original by the time it was required on the trial.

If, in answer to a rule, it had appeared that the defendant could

not control the paper, or that by reasonable efforts he could not

have produced it, then the introduction of the secondary evi-

dence would have been erroneous. But such does not appear

to have been the case ; and we are of the opinion that the ad-

mission of secondary evidence was proper.

It was urged that the court did not have jurisdiction to render

the judgment against Cook, under which the sale was made, and
from which plaintiff below claims to derive his title,] for the

want of a notice, that the plaintiff would apply for a rule to

pay the money, and for the want of a demand on Cook for the

payment of the same. The record fails to show that such

notice was given or demand made, but it shows that defendant.

Cook, entered his appearance in the Circuit Court and waived
notice. And the Circuit Court being a court of general juris-

diction, independent of the statute, had competent authority

and jurisdiction of the subject matter, and could have heard the

cause and rendered the judgment, and when the defendant

entered his appearance to the cause, the jurisdiction of the

court was competent over both the person and subject matter.

If the evidence did not show a demand of the money from

Cook, as required by the statute, it was error to render the

judgment which it did ; but it was only an error, from which
the defendant, Cook, should have appealed, or prosecuted a writ

of error, and thus have corrected the error in the appellate

court. Had he not entered his appearance, and thereby given

the court jurisdiction of his person, no presumption could be

indulged, that he waived any of the antecedent steps to autho-

rize the judgment, but having entered his appearance, tlie only

question before the court for determination, was whether he had
received the executions, how much he had received on them, and
whether he had failed to pay the same to the party entitled to

the money ; and if so, what amount he should be required, by
the rule of the court, to pay the plaintiff. The court having

jurisdiction, any mistake of the law or facts, could not defeat

the jurisdiction already acquired. The court below, then, had
no right in a collateral proceeding, as this was, to revise that

judgment, and determine whether it was erroneous. It only

had the right to see that the court rendering the judgment
offered in evidence, had jurisdiction of the person and subject
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matter, and if so, give it force and effect. We are, for these

reasons, of the opinion that tliere was no error in admitting the

judgment, the execution under it, and the sheriff's deed, in

evidence.

In this case, there was no plea denying the 'possession of

the defendant, and it was unnecessary for plaintiff to have intro-

duced any evidence of that fact, it not being in controversy

under the the pleadings, and it is unnecessary to determine

whether the evidence established that fact or not. Upon a

careful examination of the whole record in this case, we are

unable to perceive any error, and the judgment of the court

below should therefore be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Nicholas Schoonhoven, Appellant, v. James B. Gott,

Appellee.

APPEAL PROM KANE.

The variance in names between Schoonhoven and Schoonhover is material, and
when such variance exists between the writ and declaration, the court should,

on motion, dismiss ; unless the proof should be, that the party was as well

known liy one name as the other; upon a proper state of pleadinjj.

The entry of a motion to quash, is not such an appearance, as would amount to a
waiver of a variance between the writ and declaration.

This was an action of assumpsit, commenced in the Kane
County Circuit Court, at April term, 1856. On said day the

appellee filed in the clerk's office of said court, a precipe,

security for costs and declaration in the cause ; in each of which
papers the plaintiff is named, James B. Gott, and the defendant

Nicholas Schoonover.

A summons was issued, and therein the parties are named
James B. Gott, plaintiff, and Nicholas Schoonhoven, defendant,

which was served on appellant, and filed as the writ in the

cause.

At February term, 1857, the appellant filed a motion in writ-

ing, alleging that the writ was against Nicholas Schoonhoven,

and the declaration against Nicholas Schoonover, and therefore

there was a variance between the writ and declaration, and
praying the dismissal of the suit on account thereof; motion
was supported by affidavit; which motion the court overruled;

to which decision of the court the appellant excepted, and the

appellant appearing no further in the case, the court, J. G.
Wilson, Judge, presiding, rendered judgment against him.
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The appellant prayed an appeal and brings the cause here,

and assigns for error the decision of the court overruling said

motion and rendering judgment against appellant.

S. Wilcox, for Appellant.

J. M. Walker, for Appellee. '

•

Walker, J. This was an action of assumpsit brought in

the Kane Circuit Court. The summons was against Nicholas

Schoonhoven, and the return shows service by that name. The
precipe, the bond for costs and the declaration, were all entitled

against Nicholas Schoonover. At the February term, 1857, the

defendant entered his motion to dismiss the suit for a variance

between the summons and declaration, which was overruled,

and the court rendered judgment against defendant and assessed

the plaintiff's damages. And to reverse that judgment, the

defendant brings the case here by appeal, and assigns for error

the overruling the motion to dismiss, and the rendition of the

judgment by the court below.

The question presented by the record in this case for our

consideration, is, whether there was a variance between the

names in the summons and declaration. It is a general rule in

pleading, that the declaration should pursue the writ in regard

both to the Christian and surnames of the parties, and where
there is such a difference as not to be the same in sound, the

variance might be plead in abatement, but the misspelling is not,

however, material if the two names are the same in sound. 1

Chit. PL 2-15.

In the application of this rule, it was held in the case of The
Kins; v. Shakespeare, that the names Shakepear and Shake-

speare were not the same, and a plea in abatement for the

variance was held good on demurrer ; 10 East R. 83. In 4 Bac.

Abr., letter A, title Misnomer, 752, it is said that Rudulphus
and Rodalphus are not the same names, there being a material

variance in the sound. It was held by the Supreme Court of

Arkansas, 2 Spear 46, that Willison and Willitson are not the

same. And the rule that the names must be the same in sound

is recognized by all of the English and American courts. Then
when we test the present case by this rule, it is obvious that the

variance is clear and distinct, the only similarity being in the

first syllable, the latter portion of the names being different both

in the sound and in the orthography. The variance is cer-

tainly as marked as in either of the above cases.

If the proper name was used in the summons, then the plain-

tiff could have amended his declaration on leave of the court.
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SO as to obviate the variance ; and if the correct name was used

in the declaration, the defendant had a right to plead the

variance in abatement of the writ, or move to quash, and the

plaintiff could not avoid it unless by replication and proof that

defendant was as well known by the one name as the other.

The mere entry of a motion to quash the writ or dismiss the

suit, is not such an appearance as waives a variance between the

writ and declaration, and the variance in this case was not

cured by the motion of the defendant.

The court is of opinion that the variance in this case was
material, and that the judgment should be reversed and the

cause remanded.

Judgment reversed.

Heman Baldwin, Appellant, v. George 0. Banks et al,

;::. , . . Appellees.

. ,- APPEAL FROM LA SALLE COUNTY COURT.

In an action upon a note, wliere the word " not " is omitted in the averment of

non-payment, the omission will be cured by the statute of "Jeofails," and if not,

the obvious sense from the context will make the declaration good.

In a plea of failure of consideration, alleging that land sold the maker of the note
had on it but sixteen hundred cords of wood instead of twenty-four hundred
cords, it should be shown that the deficiency in the quantity of wood was equal

. in value to the note sued on, or the plea will be bad.

This was an action of assumpsit, brought at the June term of

the La Salle County Court, on a promissory note made by
Baldwin and payable to one Henry J. Miller, and by Miller

assigned to Banks and Hutchinson, plaintiffs below, before due.

The declaration had a count upon the note, and also a com-
mon count for goods sold and money paid for the use of defend-

ant, and had the following breach

:

Yet the defendant hath disregarded his last mentioned prom-
ises, and hath paid any of the said money, or any part

thereof, to the damage of the plaintiffs, of five hundred dollars.

Therefore, they bring this suit.

At the June term aforesaid, the defendant pleaded the general

issue, and three special pleas.

By his first plea the said defendant says, that all of the said

supposed sums of money, mentioned in said plaintiffs' declaration,

has reference to, and is, in fact, only one supposed sum of money,
and that is the same sum of money mentioned in said supposed

promissory note, declared on in the first count of said plaintiffs'
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declaration ; and the said defendant says, that if any such

promissory note, as declared on in said first count in said decla-

ration, was executed and delivered by him as is charged against

him, it was so executed and delivered to the said Henry J. Miller,

for the consideration, and the sole and only consideration, that

he, the said Henry J. Miller, would then and there convey, by
a good and indefeasible title in fee simple, to him, the said

defendant, the following described real estate—describing it,

with timber and wood upon it sufficient to make twenty-four
hundred cords of wood ; he, the said Henry J, Miller, then and
there representing to the said defendant that the timber and
wood were then and there to be found on said tracts of land.

And the said defendant never having been on or seen such land

or wood, which fact was then and there well known to the said

Henry J. Miller, and he, the said defendant, relying wholly upon
the good faith of the said Henry J. Miller, and the representa-

tions made by him as aforesaid as being true, did then and there

execute and deliver said note ; and avers, that he gave the said

note to the said Henry J. Miller, by reason of the representa-

tions aforesaid, made to him by the said Miller ; and which said

representations, the said defendant avers, were not true in this,

that there was not then, nor has there been at any time since,

timber and wood sufficient to make twenty-four hundred cords

of wood ; but, on the contrary, all the timber and wood on said

tracts of land at that time, or at any time since, was not suffi-

cient to make over sixteen hundred cords of wood. And the

defendant says, that the representations so made to him by the

said Henry J. Miller, as to the amount or quantity of timber

and wood on said tract of land, were false, and fraudulently

made to deceive this defendant ; and that this defendant has

been deceived and defrauded by them, and that there never was
any consideration for the giving of said promissory note declared

on, if any such note were so given.

The second special plea avers, that all of the several sums of

money claimed in the plaintiffs' declaration, as being due and
owing by this defendant to the plaintiffs, has reference to but

one sum of money, and is the sum mentioned in the said sup-

posed promissory note declared on in the first count of said

plaintiffs' declaration, and not other and different sums. And
as to the sum of money mentioned in the promissory note, de-

fendant says, it was so executed and delivered to the said Henry
J. Miller, in consideration that he, the said Henry J. Miller,

would then and there convey, by good title, unto this defendant,

real estate which should have timber enough thereon to make,
when cut and piled up, twenty-four hundred cords of wood.
And defendant says, that said Henry J. Miller did not then and
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there, nor has he at any time thereafter up to the time of this

suit being commenced, conveyed unto this defendant real estate

Avhich had timber enough thereon to make, when cut and piled

up, twenty-four hundred cords of wood ; but, on the contrary,

the said defendant says, that all the timber on all the land con-

Teyed by the said Henry J. Miller to this defendant, would not

exceed, when cut and piled up, sixteen hundred cords ; of all

which the said plaintiffs, at the time when said supposed note

was so assigned or indorsed to them, had notice.

The third plea says, that all of the several sums of money
claimed in the several counts of the said plaintiffs' declaration,

has reference to, and is, in fact, only one supposed indebtedness,

and is the same sum of money claimed to be due as is mentioned
in the supposed promissory note declared on in the first count

of said plaintiffs' declaration ; and as to said supposed promis-

sory note, the said defendant says, that if any such note was so

executed and delivered to the said Henry J. Miller, as is de-

clared on in said plaintiffs' declaration, it was so executed and
delivered by this defendant to the said Henry J. Miller, under
the following circumstances—averring the same facts in sub-

stance.

A demurrer was filed by plaintiffs' attorney to the second,

third and fourth special pleas ; to which there was a joinder.

A trial was had on the demurrer filed by plaintiffs to the sec-

ond, third and fourth pleas of defendant, wliich resulted in

sustaining the said demurrer to all of said pleas, and plaintiffs

had leave of the court to withdraw the common counts in their

declaration ; and the said defendant electing to abide by his

pleas as aforesaid, the court, by consent of parties, (a jury being
waived) proceeded to try the cause on the special count in the

declaration and the general issue filed thereto as aforesaid.

And the plaintiffs, at said trial, offered in evidence the said note
declared on in their said declaration, to the introduction of

which note the defendant objected. The court overruled said

objection, and admitted said note to be read in evidence ; and,

afterwards, did find, on the issue aforesaid, in favor of the

plaintiffs, in the sum of three hundred and twenty-five dollars

and costs. And afterwards, the defendant entered a motion for

a new trial, which motion was overruled by the court, and judg-

ment was rendered for the said sum of three hundred and
twenty-five dollars and costs.

And the said defendant prayed an appeal.

Jenkins & Blanchard, for Appellant.

Chas. Blanchard, for Appellees.



APRIL TERM, 1858. 51

Pendergast v. The City of Peru.

Caton, C. J. The objection to the declaration is not well

taken, even if we can carry the demurrer back over a good,
issuable plea, which, it must be admitted, the general issue is.

The averment of non-payment applied to the special count as

well as the common counts, and left the special count good,
after the common counts were dismissed. The clerical omission

of the word not is cured by the statute of jeofails, and even if

it were not, where the sense is so obvious from the words used,

we should not hesitate to hold the declaration good.

The substance of the defense relied upon is, that the note

was given in part consideration of two thousand dollars, the

purchase money of various tracts of land, which the payee of

the note sold to the maker, and represented that they had upon
them twenty-four hundred cords of wood, whereas they had
upon them but sixteen hundred cords, which the vendor well

knew ; and that the maker of the note purchased on the faith

of those representations, supposing that there was the full

twenty-four hundred cords of wood on the land, and that the

plaintiffs, when they took the note, well knew all these facts,

and conclude in bar of the whole action.

Now the manifest and insurmountable objection to these pleas

is, that they do not show that the eight hundred cords of wood
which wfere wanting, according to the representations, were
worth the amount of the note sued on, and unless they were,

they could not entirely defeat the plaintiffs' action, which each

of these pleas purports to do. It is not even averred that the

wood was of any value whatever, so that the pleas were insuffi-

cient to defeat any part of the cause of action, much less the

whole.

The demurrer was properly sustained, and the judgment must
be affirmed. :

'
Judgment affirmed.

Richard Pendergast, Appellant, v. The City of Peru,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM LA SALLE.

A copy of a city ordinance, certified in conformity with the charter, is proper
evidence of the existence of such ordinance, in a suit where the city is a party.

In a suit for violating a city ordinance, by selling liquor without a license, if the

defendant stated that the city charged too much for license, and that he could
not afford to pay the license, and pleads guilty tofthe charge of violating the

ordinance, it will be held that the fact is established that he had not a license,
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that he had sold liquor, and that his plea of guilty had reference to that offense,

although the ordinance contained other provisions of prohibition and other

penalties.

In a proceeding before a justice of the peace, technical accuracy in the form of the

judgment, whether it be in debt or for a penalty, will not be held indispensable.

This was an action originally brought before the police

magistrate of the city of Peru, by plaintiff below, against

defendant below, to recover a debt for the violation of an ordi-

nance of said city, and removed, on appeal, to the Circuit Court.

The cause was tried at the November term, A. D. 1857, of

said La Salle County Circuit Court, M. E. Hollister, Judge,

presiding, both parties having waived a jury.

Hough & Bascom, for Appellant.

"W. H. L. "Wallace, for Appellee.

Walker, J, The first question presented by this record for

our consideration, is, whether the court erred in admitting the

copy of the city by-laws. The copy was certified by the city

clerk, and verified by its corporate seal, which is literally a

compliance with the charter. Private laws, 1851, p. 120, sec.

44. The evidence even went further, and showed that they had
been published as required by the charter. And there is not

the slightest ground for this objection.

It was next urged that the evidence did not sustain the find-

ing of the court. This we think is untenable. When the offi-

cer served defendant with process, he stated that the city

charged too much for licenses, and he could not afford to pay
the price. It appeared that he had sold liquor before the com-
mencement of the suit, and on the trial before the police court, he
plead guilty to the charge of violating the city ordinance, for

which he was then prosecuted. This evidence, when taken togeth-

er, clearly establishes the fact, that he had no license, that he had
sold liquor and plead guilty to the violation of the ordinance,

one of the provisions of which prohibited its sale without a

license. The prohibition is contained in the second section of

the city ordinances, and provides, " That it shall not be law-

ful for any person or persons to sell, barter or exchange, any
wine, brandy, rum, gin, whisky, beer, ale, porter, or other

vinous, spiritous, malt or fermented liquors, or any mixture,

part of which is spirituous or fermented liquors, without being

duly licensed to keep a grocery, for selling of wines, etc., and
upon a violation of this section, the person or persons so offend-

ing, shall forfeit and pay for each offense a sum not less than
twenty-five dollars, nor more than one hundred dollars, and



APRIL TERM, 1858. 53

Curtis V. Root.

costs of suit." The ordinance, it is urged, contained other pro-

hibitions and penalties, and that his admission of a breach

might have related to those. This is not the inference from the

evidence, as it showed that he had sold liquor, and there is

nothing tending to show, in the slightest degree, that he had
violated some other provision of the city ordinance. And his

statement that the city charged too high for a license, when
unexplained, was inferentially an admission that he had no
license; and this rendered it unnecessary for the prosecution

to prove that fact, even if such proof would have otherwise been
required.

The only remaining question is, whether the court erred in

its finding and rendering judgment in damages, when the pro-

ceeding was in debt, for the recovery of a penalty. There is

no doubt but a finding and recovery in the latter form is more
conformable to the ancient practice, but it was strictly technical,

and not calculated, in the slightest degree, to promote justice.

In furtherance of justice, mere technical rules should not be

permitted to prevail, unless the rule is so firmly established that

the courts are not at liberty to disregard them, as settled law.

This court, in an action that originated before a justice of the

peace, on a record for the recovery of the amount of the judgment
found by the record, and in which the Circuit Court, on an
appeal, rendered a judgment in damages, held that the judgment
was regular. Horton v. Crilchfield, 18 111. R. 135. That case

is decisive of this question. On the whole record in this case,

we are unable to perceive any error that should reverse the

judgment of the court below, and the same should therefore be

affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

George Curtis, xVppellant, v. Anson Root, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM KENDALL.

A mortgage given for tlie purchase money of land, executed simultaneously with

the deed, takes precedence of a judgment against the mortgagor. And the

principle is the same if the mortgage is to another than the vendor, who actually

advances the means to pay the purchase money.
An equity of redemption in land, is a saleable interest, on execution.

This was an action of ejectment. The venue was changed

from Kane to Kendall Circuit Court.

Declaration, plea and issue in usual form.
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At September term, 1854, a jury was waived, and the cause

was tried by the court.

Issue found for Curtis. Judgment for costs against Root.

At September term, 1855, a new trial was granted to Root,

under the statute.

At April term, 1857, cause was tried by court and jury on

following facts agreed, and some other evidence, to wit : agreed,

in April term, 1845, that judgments were rendered in Kane
Circuit Court against Ambrose, one for ^833.72 and costs, in

favor of "Weed & Co. ; one for Rossetter for $361.49
; fi. fa.

issued immediately and levied on Ambrose's store of goods at

Elgin, sufficient to pay the same. Ambrose, with Root as his

surety, gave delivery bond for the goods, to the sheriflF. Am-
brose then gave Root a chattel mortgage on the goods, to indem-

nify him as surety, and the goods were left with Ambrose for

sale.

Ambrose and Root appealed the cases to the Supreme Court.

In the meantime Ambrose, by Root's consent, sold and exchanged
the goods to Morgan and Padleford, for the land in question,

and a house and lot in Elgin. The deed dated 22nd July, 1845,
acknowledged 28th, recorded 7th August, 1845. Ambrose gave

Root a mortgage on the land and house and lot aforesaid, bear-

ing date August 1st, 1845, recorded on 7th, as an indemnity for

becoming his security as aforesaid.

The appeals were dismissed in December, 1845.

On January 21st, 1846, fi. fa. issued to sheriff on Weed &
Co.'s judgment, returned by order of attorney.

July 14th, 1846, another f. fa. issued thereon,"which was
levied on said lands, which were duly advertised. The land
was sold on 15th August, 1846, to Harvey, for two hundred
dollars ; Harvey sold and assigned the certificate of purchase to

Spencer, and he sold and assigned to Havens. Not being re-

deemed, the sheriff, on 7th February, 1850, conveyed the land

to Havens, who sold and conveyed it to the appellant, and his

deed was of record before this suit was brought.

On 18th February, 1847, Root filed his bill to foreclose his

mortgage against Ambrose.

Decree in 1849 ; and the mortgage property sold to Root by
the master, and deed made loth November, 1850, which was
recorded.

All judgments, decrees, sales and deeds aforesaid are in due
form, and it appears that Curtis was in possession when this

suit was brouglit.

Root then offered in evidence Morgan's and Padleford's de-

positions, taken on his part. Curtis objected. His objections

overruled, and he excepted.
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Blorgan testified he conveyed the land to Ambrose 'in ex-

change for the goods ; Root released goods, or indemnified him.

He traded with Ambrose. Thinks Root took a mortgage from

Ambrose, about that time, on the land; thinks it was one trans-

action ; won't say for certain.

Padleford testified to same ; also, that Ambrose mortgaged

back to him the house and lot for a balance over the value of

the goods, which is dated 22nd July, 1845, acknowledged 28th,

and recorded 30th July, 1845.

Spalding testified he was sheriff, and sold the land on Weed
& Co.'s execution. Before the levy he asked Root to pay the

money ; Root said that Ambrose had lands, and he (sheriff)

must sell them to satisfy the execution, and he (Root) would
bid on them ; that Root was present at the sale of the laud to

Harvey.
Spencer testified that he attended the sale with Root, at

Root's request. He subsequently bought of Harvey the sheriff's

certificate of sale, at Root's request.

This was all the evidence.

At Root's request, the court told the jury, if they believe,

from the evidence, that the mortgage by Ambrose to Root was
given to secure the payment of the purchase money paid for the

farm in question, and that the giving of the deed to Ambrose
and the mortgage to Root was one transaction, then the mort-

gage was a lien, and had preference over the judgment against

. Ambrose, and the jury should find for the plaintiff, (Root,) pro-

vided the jury believe, from the testimony, that the defendant,

(Curtis,) had notice of such mortgage, and the purposes for

which it was given, prior to his purchase of said laud.

Curtis asked the court to instruct the jury :

First. That a judgment in the Circuit Court of this State is

a lien, from the last day of the term, upon all the lands and
real estate of the defendant, within the county, for seven years,

if execution be issued within a year on such judgment, and that

such lien affects as well the lands acquired by the defendant

after, as those owned by him at the time judgment was ren-

dered.

Second. That the lien of the judgment is not defeated by

an appeal to the Supreme Court, if such appeal be dismissed.

The appeal may suspend, but not destroy the lien.

Third. That the judgment in favor of Weed & Co., against

Ambrose, was a lien upon the land described in the declaration,

the moment the title to said land was acquired by said Ambrose,
and no subsequent mortgage or conveyance thereof, by Ambrose,
could destroy the lien.
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Fourth. If a party having claim to lands, stand by and allow

the same to be sold to another without objecting, or making
known his claim, he is estopped from afterwards setting up such

claim against the rights of the purchaser at such sale.

The court gave the first and second instructions as asked, and
gave the third by adding :

" This is the law, unless the jury be-

lieve, from the evidence, that the mortgage by Ambrose to Root
was given to secure the payment of the purchase money paid

for the land in question, and that the giving of the deed to Am-
brose, and the mortgage to Root, was one transaction, and that

the defendant, Curtis, had notice of such facts prior to his pur-

chase of said land."

The fourth he gave, with this qualification, to wit :
" This is

the law in relation to property, the title to which is not made a

matter of record, and by tlie law made constructive notice of

such right or title when recorded."

To the giving of these instructions, as qualified by the court,

Curtis excepted.

The jury returned the following verdict :
" TVe, the jury,

find for the plaintiff, Root, and that he is possessed of the title

of the land in fee simple."

Curtis then moved for a new trial, upon the following grounds

:

First. Because the verdict is contrary to law and evidence.

Second. Because the court erred in admitting the depositions

of Morgan and Padleford in evidence.

Third. Because the court erred in giving the plaintiff's in-

structions, and also in qualifying those asked by Curtis.

Which motion the court overruled, and Curtis excepted to

that opinion of the court. Judgment on the verdict aforesaid.

Curtis assigns for error

:

That the Circuit Court erred in the instructions given to the

jury, and in every member, branch and part thereof.

The said court erred in overruling the motion for a new trial.

The said court erred in allowing the depositions of Morgan
and Padleford to be read in evidence to the jury.

The verdict is against law and evidence.

That the judgment is erroneous in substance and form, and
not warranted by the verdict, or by law.

MoKRis & Blackwell, for Appellants.

B. C. Cook, for Appellee.

Caton, C. J. Without examining the evidence in detail,

it is sufficient to say, that we do not feel called upon to reverse
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this judgment, for the reason that the jury were not M^arranted

by the evidence to find the facts as they did by their verdict.

The principal questions arise upon the instructions. The
instruction given for the plaintiff, and to which exception was
taken, is this: " If the jury believe, from the evidence, that

the mortgage by Ambrose to Root was given to secure the pay-

ment of the purchase money paid for the farm in question, and
that the giving of the deed to Ambrose and the mortgage to

Root by Ambrose was one transaction, then the mortgage was a

lien, and had preference over the judgment against Ambrose,
and the jury should find for the plaintiff, provided the jury

believe, from the testimony, that the defendant, Curtis, had
notice of such mortgage, and the purpose for which it was
given prior to the time he purchased the land in question."

It is a principle of law too familiar to justify a reference to

the authorities, that a mortgage given for the purchase money of

land and executed at the same time the deed is executed to the

mortgagor, takes precedence of a judgment against the mort-

gagor. The execution of the deed and of the mortgage being

simultaneous acts, the title to the land does not for a single

moment rest in the purchaser, but merely passes through his

hands and vests in the mortgagee without stopping at all in the

purchaser, and during such instantaneous passage the judgment
lien cannot attach to the title. This is the reason assigned by

the books, why tlie mortgage takes precedence of the judgment
rather than any supposed equity which the vendor might be

supposed to have for the purchase money ; though that con-

sideration may have originated the rule at the first. Indeed,

nearly all the cases to be met with, are cases where the mort-

gage has been given to the vendor and for the purchase money.

Such was not the case before us. The facts were, that the

lands were purchased with goods, which might be considered as

equitably belonging to the mortgagee, and which the mortgagor

sold to the vendor for the land with the consent of the mort-

fragee, so that in substance the transaction was the same as if

the purchase money had been paid by the mortgagee, who took

the mortgage to secure himself for the purchase money thus

advanced, and the jury have found, and we think properly, that

the execution of the deed and mortgage were simultaneous

acts. This brings the case within the letter and the equity of

the rule as first stated. In point of right and principle, it can

make no difference whether the mortgage is given to the vendor

for the purchase money, or to another who actually advances

the means to pay the purchase money to the vendor. It is un-

necessary now to say whether a mortgage to a third person for

an independent consideration and having no connection with

5
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the purchase of the land, but executed at the same time with

the deed, would occupy the same position or not. The instruc-

tion was properly given.

The defendant asked the court to give this instruction to the

jury, "That the judgment in favor of Weed & Co., against

Ambrose, was a lien upon the land described in the declaration,

the moment the title to said land was acquired by said Ambrose,

and no subsequent mortgage or conveyance thereof, by Ambrose,

could destroy the lien ;" which the court gave with this quali-

fication :
" This is the law, unless the jury believe from the

evidence, that the mortgage by Ambrose to Root was given to

secure the payment of the purchase money paid for the land in

question, and that the giving of the deed to Ambrose, and the

mortgage to Root, was one transaction, and that the defendant,

Curtis, had notice of such facts prior to his purchase of said

land ;" to which the defendant excepted. If we are right in

the conclusion to which we have arrived upon the instruction

given for the plaintiff, then the court was right in adding this

qualification, for it asserts the same principle of law.

The fourth instruction asked by the defendant was this :
" If a

party having a claim to lands, stand by and allow the same to be

sold to another, without objecting or making known his claim, he

is estopped from afterwards setting up such claim against the

rights of the purchaser at such sale ;" which the court gave
with this explanation :

" This is the law in relation to property,

the title to which is not made a matter of record, and by the

law made constructive notice of such right or title when
recorded ;" to which the defendant excepted. This instruction

might well have been refused altogether, as having no founda-

tion in the evidence, and as being inapplicable to the case.

There was no pretense of any fraudulent concealment for the

purpose of inducing the purchaser at the execution sale to buy
a bad title. The defendant in the execution had an equity of

redemption in the land, which was a saleable interest on the

execution. The mortgagee had placed his mortgage on record,

which was notice to all the world of the mortgage ; and neither

the mortgagee, if present at the sale, nor any one else, had any
right to suppose that anything but the equity of redemption was
being sold, and certainly the mortgagee was not bound to go
there and proclaim that nothing but the equity of redemption

could be sold. We find no error in the record, and the judg-

ment must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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PoRTEUs B. Roberts, Appellant, v. William H. Haskell,
Appellee.

ERROR FROM PEORIA.

A third indorsee may maintain a suit against a second indorsee upon a note which
has passed through his hands without his indorsement, and is subsequently
assigned to him.

Where a party suing an indorsee has to show the insolvency of the maker of the

note, and attempts to prove the existence of a mortgage against him, he must
have made reasonable efforts to procure the original ; the introduction of a copy,
without showing this, is improper.

The possession of personal property is prima facie evidence of ownership, and his

assertion that such property belongs to another will not rebut the legal presump-
tion that it is his.

That property is incumbered, does not furnish a sufficient reason for not making
a levy upon it, unless the party omitting to do so is prepared to show, in a case

like this, that the claims were valid, and that a levy would have been wholly
unavailing.

If the maker of a note, where one indorsee is sued by another, had property exempt
from execution, at the time or soon after the note became due, sufficient to have
paid it, the presumption is, that the note could have been collected of such maker.

This is an action by the appellee as indorsee, against the

appellant as indorser, of a promissory note. The note and
indorsement upon the same are as follows

:

$200. Peokia, 111., May 10, 1855.

One year after date, I promise to pay Isaac Underbill, or order, two

hundred dollars, for value received, with interest at six per cent, per annum, payable

annually from the date hereof.

M. ZANONI.

Indorsed on the back :

Pay to Porteus B. Roberts, without recourse to me.

L UNDERBILL.
Pay to William Brady, or order.

P. B. ROBERTS.
Pav to William H. Haskell.

WILLIAM BRADY.

The declaration was filed in the County Court of Peoria

county, on the 22d day of December, A. D. 1857. It is in the

assumpsit, and contains three counts, as follows

:

The iirst count is upon the note and indorsement, and avers

.that suit was duly instituted and prosecuted to judgment against

the maker of the note ; that -an execution was duly issued upon

said judgment, and returned unsatisfied.

No evidence was offered under this count.

The second is also upon the note and indorsement, and con-

tains the following averments

:



60 OTTAWA,

Roberts v. Haskell.

That Zanoni made the note, and delivered the same to

Underhill, the payee.

That Underhill indorsed the same without recourse, and
delivered the same to the appellant.

That the appellant indorsed and delivered the same to one
William Brady.

That said Brady indorsed and delivered the same to the

appellee, who w&s plaintiff below.

That at the time said note became due and payable, Zanoni,

the maker thereof, was wholly insolvent, and that the institution

and prosecution of suit against him, upon said note, would have
proved wholly unavailing.

The third count contains the common count for *' money paid,'"

for " money liadand received," and for money due on an " account

stated."

The defendant pleaded to the whole declaration the general

issue, with an agreement between the parties that all matters

which could be properly given in evidence under special pleas,

properly pleaded, should be admissible under the plea of non
assumpsit.

On the trial, the plaintiff below produced in evidence the note

and indorsement, which was objected to by defendant below,

and objection overruled.

The plaintiff below then produced eleven witnesses, each of

whom testified that they had known M. Zanoni, the maker of the

note, since the spring of 1856 ; that on the 10th day of May,
1856, and from that time to the conmienccment of this suit, they

had deemed Zanoni insolvent and unable to pay his debts.

The plaintiff then produced in evidence the records of two
of the justices of the peace of Peoria county, and read from said

records the entry of eleven judgments against Zanoni, in favor

of various persons, and entered during the spring, summer and
fall of 1856, together with the executions issued thereon, and
returns made upon the same of " no property found."

This evidence was all objected to.

The defendant below proved that during the summer of 1856,
Zanoni built a house in Peoria, on lot one, block four, which
house was worth $2,000.'

The plaintiff below then offered in evidence a certified copy
from the records of Peoria county, of a mortgage made by Za-

noni to one Mary Rosa Zanoni ; and for the purpose of laying

the proper foundation for the admission of such copy, the plain-

tiff below testified as follows :
" The original mortgage, of which

this is a copy, is not in my possession or power to produce on
this trial, and was never in my possession. I never saw it

—
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never inquired for it—know nothing about it ; it is all Greek to

me."
The defendant below then objected to the introduction of said

copy in evidence, but the court overruled the objection.

The defendant below then produced Isaac Underhill, who tes-

tified that he was payee of the note offered in evidence ; that he

knew the parties to this suit. The defendant below then offered

to prove, by said witness, the following facts : That witness sold

the note to the plaintiff below, indorsing it in blank, and with-

out recourse on witness ; that plaintiff below sold said note to

defendant below, who in turn indorsed it to Brady, and Brady
afterwards, and after said note became due, sold and indorsed

said note to the plaintiff below ; that said last indorsement was
made on the 13th day of May, 1856.

This evidence was objected to by the plaintiff below, and the

objection sustained.

At the request of the plaintiff below, the court gave the fol-

lowing instructions to the jury, to the giving of which the

defendant below objected and excepted.
" If the jury believe, from the evidence, that at the time when

the note given by Zanoni to Underhill fell due, Michael Za-

noni was notoriously insolvent, and has so continued up to the

time of the commencement of this suit, so that the prosecution

of a suit against him would have been unavailing to obtain the

amount due on the note, or any part thereof, then they Avill find

for the plaintiff."

" Although the present plaintiff might have had the note given

in evidence in this suit in his possession, as assignee of Under-
hill, yet if he passed it, without indorsement, to the present

defendant, and he indorsed it to Brady, and Brady to plaintiff,

this would not prevent plaintiff from recovering in this suit."

" The possession of property by Zanoni, claiming to hold it as

the property of his mother,' or any other person, is not evidence

of ownership in Zanoni."
" The plaintiff was not bound to levy his execution upon the

property covered by liens, mortgages, or incumbrances, by which
he would have to pay off liens, or incumbrances, or involve him-

self in the expense of a trial of the right of property, by an
adverse claimant."

" The return by the constable of an execution unsatisfied, or

property not found, is proper evidence to be considered by the

jury that Zanoni had no personal property subject to such exe-

cution at the time of such return ; and execution returned unsat-

isfied, or no property found, by the sheriff of the county, is

proper evidence to be considered by the jury that said Zanoni
had no personal or real property at the time of such return.



62 OTTAWA,

Roberts v. Haskell.

But the fact that suit against Zanoni would have been unavail-

ing, may be proven by any other legal testimony as well as by
the return of executions against him unsatisfied. It is only

necessary for the jury to believe, from the testimony adduced
before them, that such suit would have been unavailing to entitle

.the plaintiif to recover."

The defendant below then asked the court to give the follow-

ing instructions, all of which the court refused to give, and the

defendant excepted

:

" Should the jury even believe, from the evidence, that at the

time the note fell due, Zanoni was insolvent, still, if the jury

should believe that had the plaintiff used due diligence in the

collection of the note, he could have collected the same, then

the jury will find for the defendant."
" If the jury believed, from the evidence, that the plaintiff

purchased the note offered in evidence, after the same became
due, the jury will find for the defendant."

" If the jury believe, from the evidence, that during the sum-

mer of 1856, Zanoni had personal property not exempt from

execution, sufficient to have paid the debt, such state of facts

raises a prima facie case that the note could have been collected

of him."
" If the jury believe, from the evidence, that Zanoni was in

the possession of, and had under his control, personal property,

during the summer of 1856, such possession is presumptive evi-

dence that Zanoni owned said property ; and unless the plaintiff

has proved that some one else owned the property, the presump-
tion would be, that it really belonged to Zanoni."

" Although the jury should believe, from the evidence, that

executions in other cases against Zanoni were returned ' no
property found,' such returns would not, so far as this case is

concerned, prove that Zanoni was at the time insolvent, or that

proceeding by due diligence in this case would have been
unavailing."

The jury found for the plaintiff below, and assessed his dam-
ages at $232.80.

The defendant below moved the court for a new trial, which
motion was overruled.

The defendant below then moved the court in arrest of judg-

ment, which motion was overruled.

Errors assigned are

:

The court erred in admitting the note and indorsement in

evidence, without proof of the execution of the same.

The court erred in admitting evidence of the reputation or

reputed insolvency of Zanoni.
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The court erred in admitting as evidence, the records of judg-

ments and executions against Zanoni in other cases, and the

returns of " no property found," upon such executions.

The court erred in admitting the certified copy of the mort-

gage from M. Zanoni to Mary Rosa Zanoni, no proper foundation

having been laid for the same.

The court erred in giving the instructions asked by the plain-,

tiff below.

The court erred in refusing the instructions asked by the

defendant belovr.

The court erred in overruling defendant's motion for a new
trial, and in arrest of judgment. "

Purple & Pratt, for Appellant.

Manning & Merriman, for Appellee. •
'. '

Caton, C. J. This was an action by a third indorsee against

the second indorsee. It was offered to be proved for the defense

that while the note was under the blank indorsement of the first

indorser, it had passed through the hands of the plaintiff, who
subsequently received it, and now holds and sues upon it as the

third indorsee. This evidence we think was properly ruled out

by the court. By receiving and passing the note while under a
blank indorsement, and without putting his name to it, he as-

sumed no responsibility in relation to it. The moment he parted

with it he became as much a stranger to it as if he had never

held it. Had the party to whom he passed it wished him to

assume any responsibility in relation to it, he should have
required his indorsement upon it. By taking it without such

indorsement he waived any such guarantee, and agreed to take

it upon the sole responsibility of the names already upon the

note. After that, Haskell was as much at liberty again to re-

ceive it in the course of business as a subsequent indorsee, as if

he had never held it.

But we think the court erred in admitting in evidence the

copy of the mortgage from the maker of the note to Mary R.
Zanoni. The plaintiff in his testimony, which was given as the

foundation for offering the copy in evidence, said, " The original

mortgage, of which this is a copy, is not in my possession or

power to produce on this trial, and was never in my possession.

I never saw it—never inquired for it—know nothing about it

—

it is all Greek to me." According to the decision of Booth v.

Cook, decided at this term, this evidence was insufficient. It is

true, that here the mortgage was presented as rebutting evidence,

while there the deed was primary and a necessary link in the
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plaintiff's title ; still, that could not dispense with all effort to

produce the original. The plaintiff must, or should have known
that if the maker of the note held the property described in the

mortgage, unincumbered, it would, or at least might, defeat his

action, and the necessity of producing this mortgage must have
been apparent to him, and he should have made reasonable ef-

forts to procure the original. The copy of the mortgage should

have been excluded.

The third and fourth instructions given for the plaintiff were
as follows

:

" The possession of property by Zanoni, claiming to hold it as

the property of his mother, or any other person, is not evidence

of ownership in Zanoni."
" The plaintiff was not bound to levy his execution upon the

property covered by liens, mortgages or incumbrances, by which
he would have to pay off liens, or incumbrances, or involve him-

self in the expense of a trial of the right of property by an
adverse claimant."

Both these instructions were wrong. The possession of

property by the maker of the note was prima facie evidence of

ownership in him, and the bare assertion by him, that the prop-

erty belonged to his mother, is not sufficient to rebut this pre-

sumption. Suppose Haskell had recovered a judgment, and
levied upon this property, the bare declarations of Zanoni that

the property belonged to his mother, would not have been suffi-

cient to sustain her claim to it, without corroborating circum-

stances, nor was it sufficient in this case, to excuse Haskell from
making further inquiry. '

: •.

The second instruction quoted was even more objectionable

than the first. If that instruction was the law, then the maker
of the note might have had property enough to pay an hundred
such notes, and if it were incumbered by no matter how small

an amount, the holder was excused from seeking to recover

satisfaction out of it. Such is not the law. He was bound to

use due diligence to collect it of the maker, or else take the

responsibility of showing that, by the use of due diligence, he

could not have collected it. If the maker had property worth
more than any incumbrance upon it, it was the duty of the

indorsee to levy upon, and, at least, offer it for sale ; and when-
ever others set up claims to property held by Zanoni, the holder

of the note was bound to contest those claims with the claimant,

or take the responsibility of showing that they were valid. He
was not at liberty to assume that every fictitious claim was valid.

The following instruction, asked for the defendant, was
refused :

" If the jury believe, from the evidence, that Zanoni

was in the possession of, and had under his control, personal
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property during the summer of 1856, such possession is pre-

sumptive evidence that Zanoni owned said property, and unless

the plaintiff has proved that some one else owned the property,

the presumption would be that it really belonged to Zanoni."

For the reasons already given, we are of opinion that this should

have been allowed.

The defendant also asked this instruction, which was refused :

" If the jury believe, from the evidence, that during the summer
of 1856, Zanoni had personal property, not exempt from execu-

tion, sufficient to have paid the debt, such state of facts raises

a prima facie case that the note could have been collected of

him." We have no doubt this should have been given. If the

facts were as supposed by the instruction, the presumption is,

that, by the exercise of due diligence, the property might have

been found and made available for the payment of the debt.

It was the right of the party to have the case submitted to

the jury, under proper instructions, and because this was not

done, as well as for the reason that improper evidence was
admitted, the judgment must be reversed and the cause remanded.

Judgment reversed.

Stephen Merritt, Appellant, v. Nathan Merritt,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM LA SALLE.

The indorser of a note, without recourse to himself, is a competent witness to

prove a promise of the maker of a note so as to take it out of the statute of
limitations.

A, and B, being brothers, inheriting from their father, B, sold his inheritance to

A. The father, by his will, declared that any indebtedness of his sons to him,
should be in reduction of his bequests ; the father, at his death, held a note
against B, assigned to him by C, another brother. Held that B, having sold

his interest in the estate to A, was bound to pay to A, the amount of the note
B, had given to C, and which C, had assigned to the father.

The common law of another State may be proved by parol.

It is objectionable that instructions should be drawn at great length, and have
" injected " into them an argument of the case. They should be concise, and
briefly present the point of law, on which the party relies.

This was an action of debt on a promissory note, originally

commenced by appellant against appellee in the Circuit Court
of La Salle county, by attachment, at the November term, A. D.
1854.

The declaration contains three counts. The first count sets

out that heretofore, to wit, on the 11th day of October, 1841,
at, etc., by his certain promissory note of that date, the defendant
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then and there, for value received, promised the plaintiff to

pay him on the 3rd day of November, 1842, nine hundred dol-

lars
;
yet, though often requested, etc.

The second count varies from the first only in stating the

consideration for said note to be the plaintiff's quit-claim deed to

his father's estate.

The third count sets out a copy of the note sued on in hcuc

verba :

$900.

For value received I promise to pay Stephen Merritt, on the third day of No-

vember, one thousand eight hundred and forty-two, nine hundred dollars, without

defalcation, being in consideration of Stephen Merritt's quit-claim to his father's

estate. NATHAN MERRITT.
Peru, October IH/^, 1841.

To which defendant pleads,

1st. Payment.
2nd. Statute of limitations (five years).

3rd. Defendant offered a set-off, a note under the hand and
seal of the plaintiff, dated August 1st, 1836, payable to Daniel

Merritt or bearer, for f 967, with interest at seven per centum
per annum, which note defendant avers, was then and there

indorsed by said Daniel Merritt to him. He therefore offers to

set-off so much of said note as will satisfy plaintiff's claim, and
claims judgment for the balance.

4th. The defendant's fourth plea is like his third, with the

additional averment of a promise by the plaintiff to said Daniel

to pay said note within sixteen years next before the commence-
ment of this suit ; and that said note was indorsed as aforesaid

after said subsequent promise.

5th. The general issue.

Plaintiff, for replication, traverses defendant's first plea, joins

issue on his fifth plea, and demurs to his second, third and
fourth, which demurrer was sustained.

Defendant then took leave to amend his third plea, and abides

by the demurrer as to the other pleas. The third plea, as

amended, is set out above.

By leave of the court, plaintiff filed several replications to

defendant's third plea, in substance as follows

:

1st. That said note claimed as a set-off is barred by the

statute of limitations.

2nd. That said note, while owned by said Daniel, and before

it was assigned, was, among other matters of difference and
indebtedness between the plaintiff and said Daniel, submitted

by two mutual bonds of arbitration, under the hands and seals

respectively of the said Daniel and the plaintiff, dated April
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16th, 1844, to the arbitration of Dixwell Lathrop, Burton

Ayres and Henry Headley. That in accordance with the terms

of said submission, said arbitrators did, on the 17th day of April,

1844, make an award between the said parties, by which said

note, as well as all other matters of obligation between said

parties, was canceled. And further, that said note was not

indorsed until long after it fell due.

3rd. Payment of said note to Daniel Merritt, July 1st, 1839,
and that it was not assigned until after it fell due.

4th. That said Daniel transferred said note, after it fell due,

to one Elisha Merritt, to whom the plaintiff fully paid said note

while he, said Elisha, was the owner thereof.

6th. That after said note fell due, said Daniel transferred

said note to Elisha Merritt, father of plaintiff and defendant

;

that said Elisha died possessed of said note, in August, 1841

;

that in September, 1841, defendant was duly appointed and
qualified as executor of the estate of said Elisha ; that in Octo-

ber, 1841, an account was had and stated between the plaintiff,

in his individual capacity, as also as said executor ; that at that

accounting there was found to be due from the defendant to the

plaintiff, over and above the note here pleaded as a set-off, the

sum of $900, for which balance the defendant then and there

executed and delivered to the plaintiff the note on which this

suit is brought.

6th. Payment of said note claimed as set-off by plaintiff to

defendant, October 11th, 1841.

To the plaintiff's first replication, defendant rejoins: That
the plaintiff agreed with said Daniel to pay said note within

sixteen years before the commencement of this suit.

Defendant traverses plaintiff's second, third, fourth, fifth and
sixth several replications, and plaintiff joins issue thereon.

Plaintiff traverses, by his surrejoinder, the defendant's

rejoinder to the plaintiff's first replication to the defendant's

third plea, and the defendant joins issue thereon.

On the above issues this cause was tried at the May term of

said court, 1856, and a verdict rendered in favor of the defend-

ant of $179.49. Plaintiff moved for a new trial, which motion
was overruled by the court, and judgment entered for the above

amount and costs.

An appeal was granted to the Supreme Court, on the filing of

a sufficient bond, which was done, and approved by the court.

The bill of exceptions shows that plaintiff read in evidence

the note, a copy of which is set out in his declaration, and there

rested his case.

Defendant then read in evidence a note signed and sealed by
the plaintiff, dated August 1st, 1836. payable on its face to
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Daniel Merritt or bearer, for ^967, with interest at seven per

cent, per annum, on the back of which there was a credit of

$233.83, dated September 1st, 1837, and also an assignment in

these words :
" Pay Nathan Merritt or order, without recourse.

Daniel Merritt." The reading of said note was objected

to by the plaintiff; objection overruled, and plaintiff excepted.

Defendant then called Daniel Merritt^ who, on a preliminary

examination, swore he was the payee mentioned in said note

pleaded as set-off; that the written assignment thereon was
made by him in October, 1863.

Defendant then offered to prove by said witness, a promise

by the plaintiff to pay said note, which would take it out of the

statute of limitations. Plaintiff objected that the interest of

said witness disqualified him for that purpose ; which objection

the court overruled, and plaintiff excepted to the ruling.

Said witness was then permitted to testify that in May, 1841,
being the holder of said note, and wishing to liquidate an
indebtedness to his father, Elisha Merritt, he applied to the

plaintiff to know when he could pay said note ; that plaintiff

then requested witness to get their father to accept said note as

part payment of witness' indebtedness to the father ; and that

plaintiff then said that he would pay said note whenever his

father should demand. To the admission of all of which testi-

mony the plaintiff objected ; the court overruled the objection,

and the plaintiff excepted.

On cross-examination said witness testified that in July, 1841,
he sold and delivered said note to Elisha Merritt, his father,

who then lived in Putnam county, New York ; that said Elisha

died in said county, in August, 1841 ; that the credit was made
and indorsed on said note before the delivery to his father ; that

witness next saw said note in the fall of 1841, in the hands of

defendant, then an executor of his father's estate ; that plain-

tiff, witness and defendant are sons of said Elisha Merritt,

deceased.

On re-examination by defendant, said witness stated that, at

the time of the arbitration between himself and the plaintiff, in

1844, he was not the holder of, had no interest in, nor had since

had any interest in, said note. To the admission of which tes-

timony, plaintiff then and there objected. The court overruled

his objection, and plaintiff then and there excepted to said

ruling.

Said witness further testified that Nathan Merritt was, in

1841, a man of wealth and property, and abundantly able to

pay the amount of plaintiff's note, and, though he lived iu New
York, he had been in this State some three or four times since
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1841. Could not say that Stephen Merritt knew of Nathan's

being in this State, but that he was in the same neighborhood.

Defendant then called Miles Kendall, an attorney at law,

who was permitted by the court to testify that, in 1853 or 1854,

at the instance of Nathan Merritt, he commenced a suit in the

Circuit Court of Marshall county, Illinois, on the note here

pleaded as a set-oJBf ; that Mr. Cook was also employed in the

case ; that he drew the declaration, and wrote to Mr. Cook to

attend the case.

The plaintiff objected to this testimony. The court overruled

the objection, and the plaintiff excepted.

Defendant then called Hen?'?/ G. Cotton, who testified that

he had been a practicing lawyer in the State of New York, and
was skilled and learned in the laws of that State in 1841 ; that,

at that time, in that State, a note payable to bearer, or to payee

or bearer, was transferrable by sale and delivery, without an
assignment in writing, and that such transferree had a right to

sue upon such note in his own name.

To all of which testimony plaintiff objected at the time it was
offered. The court overruled his objection, and plaintiff ex-

cepted to the ruling.

Defendant then read, in evidence, a certified copy of the last

will and testament of Elisha Merritt, deceased, in which said

testator, after making several special bequests, provides that the

residue of his estate shall be equally divided between his seven

sons—Hackeliah, Elijah, Nehemiah, Daniel, Joseph, John and
Stephen ; that if, at the time of his death, he should hold obli-

gations against any of said seven sons which would amount to

his dowry, he directs that his executors shall not collect such

obligations, but shall give them up and take such son's receipt

for his dowry ; that if such obligation or obligations should

exceed the amount of such son's dowry, then he directs that his

executors shall only collect so much of such excess as may be

necessary to pay the legatees.

He then appoints Nathan Merritt and Ashael Cole executors

of said will.

Attached to said copy of the will of Elisha Merritt was a

certificate, under the seal of the Surrogate Court of Putnam
county. New York, and signed Ambrose Ryder, Surrogate, stat-

ing that the above was a true copy of said will, as it appeared

of record in his office.

Attached to said will were letters testamentary, officially

declaring, under the seal of said surrogate, that the will had
been duly proved and approved, and that the administration of

said estate was granted to said Nathan Merritt and Ashael Cole.

Defendant then read, in evidence, a deed from plaintiff to
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himself, dated October 11th, 1841, by which said plaintiff

released and quit-claimed to defendant all his interest and
claim, of every kind or nature, present or prospective, in the

estate of his father, Elisha Merritt, deceased, and by which deed
he appointed the defendant attorney in fact, to do all things

which might be necessary to the full enjoyment of such interest.

Defendant also read, in evidence, similar deeds to himself

from each of the other residuary legatees, dated about the same
time as the one from the plaintiff. To the reading of each of

said deeds the plaintiff, at the time, objected as incompetent and
irrelevant. The court overruled the objections, and the plaintiff

excepted.

Defendant then offered to read, in evidence, a certified copy
of proceedings had before the surrogate of Putnam county, New
York, to the reading of which the plaintiff objected, insisting

that the same were not properly authenticated, and that the

substance of the same was incompetent and irrelevant, which
objection was overruled by the court, and the plaintiff then and
there excepted to the ruling. Said transcript was then read.

Daniel Merritt testified that he sold his share in his father's

estate to Nathan Merritt for less than $1,000.
Here defendant rested his case.

Plaintiff then proved that, in the fall of 1855, the widow of

Elisha Merritt was still alive, and was 85 years of age.

Plaintifl" then read, in evidence, the deposition of Joseph

Merritt, in which he testified that he was 52 years of age ; a

farmer of Bureau county, Illinois ; a brother of the parties to

this suit ; that his father's estate consisted chiefly of notes,

bonds, and some money ; that, on the evening before the settle-

ment with the executors, he was at Nathan's house, and saw the

interest computed on the notes and obligations, and the whole
amount added up, amounting to a little over $11,000 ; that

Nathan offered witness $200 not to appear against him before

the surrogate.

Plaintiff then offered to read, in evidence, from said deposi-

tion testimony tending to impeach the memory and reliability of

defendant's witness, Daniel Merritt, which the court would not

permit, and plaintiff excepted.

Plaintiff proved that Nathan Merritt did act as executor of

his father's estate.

Joseph Merritt, as a witness, testified that the plaintiff had
lived in Illinois since 1836 ; that he had always been a man of

such property that $1,000 could have been collected of him by
execution ; that witness sold Nathan his interest in the estate

for $850 ; that he never could find out the value of said estate

;

that he never did believe that the $11,000, or thereabouts,
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spoken of in his deposition, was really the whole of said estate

;

that Nathan never did nor would make an inventory.

Defendant then called Daniel Merritt, who testified that, at

the arbitration between himself and the plaintiff", in 1844,
plaintiff" admitted that he had turned the note here pleaded as

a set-off in the settlement of his father's estate, and that he was
still liable on it for about $150 ; that his father told him, in

July, 1841, that he thought the amount which would be coming
to each of the boys to be about |900. To all of which testi-

mony the plaintiff objected at the time it was off'ered. The
court overruled the objection, and plaintiff excepted.

Defendant then called Burton C. Cook, who testified that he

was employed by Nathan Merritt in the suit spoken of by Mr.
Kendall ;. that he had seen the note offered in evidence by the

defendant in this case in the hands of Nathan Merritt, before

the assignment now upon it was written ; that he did not attend

the Marshall Court at that term on account of sickness. To so

much of Cook's testimony as related to the suit in Marshall

county, and his not attending said court, the plaintiff" objected.

The court overruled the objection, and plaintiff excepted.

The plaintiff" asked the court, among other things, to instruct

the jury as follows :

" 10. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the plaintiff"

and defendant, and the witness, Daniel Merritt, are brothers of

each other, and were sons of Elisha Merritt, now deceased, and
that, in 1836, Stephen Merritt, the plaintiff", gave to Daniel

Merritt, the witness, the note or bond produced on this trial by

the defendant, Nathan ; and that afterwards, and in the lifetime

of said Elisha Merritt, the father, said Daniel Merritt, to whom
said note is payable on its face, sold and transferred said note

or bond to said Elisha Merritt, so that he (said Elisha) became
the legal holder and owner thereof; and that afterwards, in the

summer of 1841, the said Elisha Merritt (still being the owner
and holder of said note) died, leaving, as his last will and tes-

tament, the ivill read in evidence in this case; then, in such

case, by operation of law and the will aforesaid, the share of

Stephen Merritt in his father's estate consisted in the excess (if

any) of the one-seventh of the residuary part of said estate,

including the note off'ered by defendant, over all obligations and
claims which Elisha Merritt, at his death, held against said

Stephen.
" And if afterwards, on or about the 11th day of October,

1841, said Nathan Merritt, being then executor of said will,

and, as such, holding said note, bought of said Stephen Merritt

his said share in his father's estate, and took from him the quit-

claim thereof read in evidence by the defendant, and gave him
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therefor the promissory note sued on in this suit by the plaintiff;

and if there is no proof of any other terms or conditions of said

sale than those that appear on the face of those two papers ; in

such case such purchase was in law a settlement of said note so

held by said executor, and in such case is not a proper matter of

set-off in favor of defendant in this case."

The court, at the request of defendant, gave the following

qualifications to the foregoing tenth instruction :

"• If, however, the terms and conditions of said sale and the

other proof in the case show that at the time of the giving of

the note sued on, it was the understanding of the parties that

the note read in evidence by defendant was a subsisting claim,

and that both notes were to be in force to be set off, one against

the other, or otherwise paid ; in such case the note offered by
defendant is a proper set-off, if plaintiff has agreed to pay it

within sixteen years, and if it has not been paid or discharged.
"' If Elisha Merritt died the legal holder or owner of the

note which defendant has offered in evidence, that note, with

the other portions of his estate not bequeathed to others, passed

by the will, to the seven sons named in the will. Stephen's in-

terest was one-seventh part of this note, and one-seventh of

the other portions of the estate not bequeathed to others ; and
if he transferred all his interest in said estate while this note

was unpaid and belonged to said estate, (and said estate had
not been divided,) it carried as well his interest in this note as

in the other portions of the estate."

To the giving of wliich qualifications to said instruction

plaintiff objected, and excepted to the decision of the court in

giving the same, when it was done.

Plaintiff asked the court to instruct the jury as follows :

" 11th, If Elisha Merritt was the owner and holder of the

note offered by defendant, and held the same, as such owner, at

the time of his death, then upon his death the legal title and
right to sue became vested in his executors as such ; and the

same could only be sued on in the name of the executors of

Elisha Merritt, or in the name of some one to whom said exec-

utors transferred the same ; and in that state of case it could

not be set up as a defense to a suit brought against one of the

executors in his individual capacity.
" 12th. The defendant in this case having set up a title by

indorsement to the note pleaded as a set-off in this suit, cannot

sustain that plea by proving title by sale and delivery under the

laws of the State of New York.
" 13th. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the note

mentioned in defendant's third plea as signed by Stephen Mer-

ritt, was not assigned and indorsed by Daniel Merritt, the payee
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therein named, until 1853, and that the note was made in 1836,

then, in law Daniel Merritt held the legal title to said note at

the time of the arbitration mentioned in the pleadings, and if

so, Daniel Merritt was, in contemplation of law, the owner and
holder of said note at the time of said submission and award,
and said note was satisfied by said award."

Each of which instructions the court refused to give to the

jury, and plaintiif excepted.

The court, at the request of defendant, gave the following

instructions to the jury, viz.

:

" 2nd. If, before the arbitration between Stephen Merritt and
Daniel Merritt, the note ofi"ered in evidence by defendant had
been sold and delivered by Daniel Merritt to his father, for a
valuable consideration, and with the knowledge of Stephen, and
the father held the note at the time of the arbitration, then

Stephen's liability to pay said note was not affected by said arbi-

tration, even though Daniel's name had not been placed on the

back of said note at the time of arbitration.

" 4th. That by the pleadings in this cause the execution of

the note mentioned in defendant's third plea is admitted, and
also the assignment of it by Daniel Merritt to the defendant is

admitted, and that the note was given for a valid consideration

is admitted.
" 5th. That if Daniel Merritt, before the arbitration, sold

and delivered the note in defendant's third plea mentioned to

Elisha Merritt, and if Elislia Merritt died the owner of said

note, and if Nathan ]\Ierritt, being one of the executors of

the estate of Elisha Merritt, paid up all the debts due by the

deceased, and bought out all the interests of the widow and all

the heirs of the said Elisha Merritt, he thereby became the

owner of said note ; and being so the owner, if Daniel Merritt,

not being the owner and holder at the time of the arbitration

;

and if Stephen Merritt, within the last sixteen years, agreed to

pay the note ; and if it has not been paid or otherwise satisfied
;

the jury should, after deducting the amount of the note in the

declaration mentioned, and such payments as have been made on
the note in defendant's third plea mentioned, find a verdict for

the defendant for the balance. Interest should be computed on
the note in the third plea mentioned at the rate of seven per cent.,

and on the note in the declaration mentioned, at the rate of six

per cent, per annum.
" 6th. That if the jury believe, from the evidence, that the

note given by Stephen Merritt to Daniel Merritt was sold and
delivered by Daniel to his father before the arbitration between
Daniel and Stephen ; and if Daniel was not the owner and
holder of the note at the time of the arbitration ; and if they

6
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further believe, from the evidence, that while Daniel owned the

note, and within sixteen years last past, the said Stephen agreed

to pay it, and desired Daniel to turn it out to their father to pay
a debt which Daniel owed to his father, and that he would pay

it to the father, and the note has not been paid or satisfied in

any way, the jury should allow the amount of the note and in-

terest, or such amount as may be due after deducting payments,

if any ; and after deducting payments, if any, and the amount
of the note from Nathan to Stephen, they should find a verdict

for the defendant for the balance due, if any. Interest should

be computed on the note given by Stephen to Daniel at the rate

of seven per cent, per annum, and on the note given by Nathan
to Stephen at the rate of six per cent, per annum

;
provided,

that the jury believe that at the commencement of this suit de-

fendant was the owner of said note.

" 7th. If, at the time of the arbitration between Stephen and
Daniel, the note from Stephen to Daniel had been sold and de-

livered by Daniel to his father, and Daniel was not then the

holder, the note was not aflfected by the arbitration ; and if Ste-

phen has, within sixteen years last past, agreed with Daniel to

pay it, and it has not been paid or satisfied in any way, then

Nathan should be allowed the amount of the note in this suit,

although Daniel may not have put his name on the l3ack of the

note until after the arbitration
;
provided the jury believe, from

the evidence, that Nathan was, at the commencement of this

suit, the owner thereof.

" 8th. The assignment prima facie vests the title of the note

in Nathan Merritt, and unless it is proved that the note was not

the property of Nathan, he is to be considered the owner of it.

" 9th. If, at the time Daniel Merritt put his name on the back
of the note, Nathan Merritt had bought out all the persons to

whom Elisha Merritt had willed his property, and the estate had
been settled ; and if the note in the third plea mentioned be-

longed to Elisha when he died ; then Nathan was the owner of

the note wlicn this suit was brought, unless it had been paid to

Daniel or Elisha, or paid or canceled in a settlement between
Nathan and Stephen.

" 10th. The jury, in determining whether the note on which
this suit is brought is a valid and subsisting debt, should take

into consideration the length of time which it has run, and the

circumstances of the parties, and their usual mode of doing
business. The payment or settlement of that note may be in-

ferred from circumstances coupled with the lapse of time since

the note was given, if the circumstances proven, coupled with
such lapse of time, lead the minds of the jury to the conclusion

that said note has been paid or settled, either by the under-
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standing of the parties, being set off against the note held by
defendant, or in any other way.

" 11th. The question whether, at the time the note was given by
Nathan to Stephen on which this suit is brought, the note which
had been given by Stephen to Daniel, was settled, is a question

of fact for the jury to determine ; and in determining that ques-

tion, the jury will consider all the circumstances connected with

the transaction which are proved ; all that the evidence shows
in relation to the course of dealing between the parties ; the

amount of the interest which Stephen had in the estate of his

father, and the statements which Stephen has made concerning

the transaction ; and the burden of proof to show that the note

offered in evidence by defendant has been settled, is upon the

plaintiff, and the jury ought not to presume that said note has

been settled, unless it has been proven.
" 12th. The only questions which the jury are to determine

in relation to the note offered in evidence by the defendant, are,

" 1st. Has the plaintiff promised to pay said note within six-

teen years ?

" 2nd. Has the note ever been paid ?

" 3rd. "Was Daniel the holder and owner of that note at the

time of the arbitration between him and Stephen ?

" 4th. Was that note ever settled between Nathan and Ste-

phen Merritt ? or was there ever a settlement or accounting

between them, in which Nathan was found to be indebted to

Stephen over and above the amount of this note ?

" And if the jury believe that it is proved that Stephen has

promised to pay the note within sixteen years ; and if ii is not

proved in this cause that Daniel was the holder and owner of

this note at the time of the arbitration between him and Stephen

;

and if it is not proven that said note has not been paid ; and if

it is not proven that there has been a settlement or accounting

between Nathan and Stephen, in which that note was settled,

or in which it was proved that Nathan was indebted to Stephen

over and above the amount of this note ; and if it is proved
that the defendant was the owner of this note at the time of tlie

commencement of this suit ; then the jury should allow to the

defendant the amount unpaid upon said note, and interest at the

rate of seven per cent, per annum.
" 14th. The plaintiff is not permitted to deny, on this trial,

that the note offered in evidence by the defendant, has been duly

assigned to him, so as to vest the absolute property of the note

in him."

To the giving of each of said instructions, so asked by the

defendant and given by the court, the plaintiff objected when the
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same were offered, and excepted to tlie decisions of the court in

giving each of them respectively.

After verdict, defendant moved the court for a new trial,

which motion the court overruled, and plaintiff excepted to the

said decision of the court in overruling his motion for a new
trial. And thereupon plaintiff prayed that his bill of excep-

tions should be then and there signed, sealed, and made a part

of the record, which is done.

Cyrus Dickey, and Dickey & Wallace, for Appellant.

Glover & Cook, and Leland & Leland, for Appellee.

Breese, J. The only real questions in this case, are, was the

note produced by defendant by way of set-off due and payable

to him, and was there sufficient legal evidence to prove it,

, Much pleading was had, and many instructions were asked

on both sides, which we do not consider necessary to examine
specially. It is only necessary to present the two points in

controversy, and determine from them where the justice of the

case is, and where the real merits lie.

The defendant, Nathan Merritt, it appears, is the brother of

the plaintiff, and having purchased in October, 1841, from him
his interest in his father's, Elisha Merritt's, estate, gave this

note therefor.

Previous thereto, in 1836, the plaintiff had executed his note

to another brother, Daniel Merritt, for nine hundred and sixty

seven dollars, at seven per cent, per annum, which, as the proof

shows, had come into the possession of Elisha Merritt, and
which was the note sought to be set off.

The bar of the statute of limitations was attempted to be in-

terposed to this note, and also payment to Daniel Merritt, and
payment to Elisha Merritt, while it was in his hands.

The defendant, in his plea setting up this note, also averred a

promise by the plaintiff', to pay it to Daniel within sixteen years

next before the commencement of this suit.

The note appears to have come into the possession of the

defendant, originally, as executor of his father, Elisha Merritt,

who died in Putnam county. New York, in August, 1841, leav-

ing a will with this clause in it, after devising his property to

his seven sons, of whom the plaintiff was one, " that if, at the

time of his death, he should hold obligations against any of

said seven sons which would amount to his ' dowry,' his execu-

tors shall not collect such obligations, but shall give them up
and take such son's receipt for his ' dowry ;' that if such obli-

gation or obligations should exceed the amount of such son's
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dowry, then his executors shall only collect so much of such

excess as may be necessary to pay the legatees."

The defendant purchased out the interest of all the sons in

this estate for about nine hundred dollars a share, for one of

which the plaintift"'s note sued on was given, and in 1853,
Daniel assigned the note in due form to defendant, without

recourse.

This note of plaintiff's was passed by Daniel to their father,

Elisha Merritt, to pay a debt due from Daniel to his father, at

the request of the plaintiff, he promising to pay it whenever his

father should demand it. This conversation was in May, 1841.

The delivery of the note to the father was in July, 1841. The
credit indorsed on it of $233.83 was before the delivery to the

father.

There was an arbitration of matters of difference between
the plaintiff and Daniel Merritt, in 1844, at which time Daniel

did not hold the note, nor had he any interest in it, but which
plaintiff insists in his second replication to defendant's third

plea, was canceled by the award made April 17, 1844.

This is a very concise statement of the leading facts, proved
by Daniel Merritt, the payee of the note ; he was the only or prin-

cipal witness, and if he was improperly admitted to testify, the

judgment must be reversed ; otherwise, affirmed.

Was Daniel Merritt a competent witness ?

A witness may be competent for one purpose, while he would
not be for all purposes. An indorser is not excluded merely

because his name is on the paper, but because, being there, he

is responsible over, and has therefore an interest, unless pro-

tected by the indorsement. Here the witness indorsed without

recourse.

In Bradley v. Morris, 3 Scam. R. 182, this court say, " an in-

dorser of a negotiable instrument is invariably allowed to testify

against the recovery of the holder, by proving that it has been
discharged by payment or otherwise. In this case, however,

there was no objection to the testimony of Warren, the indorser,

even if it had gone to the foundation of the note, because he

had indorsed the note without recourse. His testimony, there-

fore, could not be objected to upon the ground of policy, because

his indorsement gave no additional currency or security to the

note, nor was it (he) liable to objection upon the score of in-

terest. His indorsement being without recourse, he could

neither gain nor lose by the event of the suit, nor indeed incur

any liability in any event."

On the authority of this case, and perceiving no possible ob-

jection on the ground of policy, we think Daniel Merritt was a

competent witness to prove the subsequent promise by Stephen,
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to take the note out of the operation of the statute of limita-

tions. He does not avoid any legal liability imposed on him by

so testifying, as to enable the defendant to recover the note of

the plaintiff, for if he assigned to defendant a note on the plain-

tiff which had been paid, and the defendant should recover it of

the plaintiff, the witness would be answerable in an action by
the plaintiff, Stephen, against him, for the consequences. The
liability of Daniel would be shifted merely, and therefore, as a

witness, he was indifferent.

He was also competent to prove that he had parted with the

note before the arbitration, the time when and how, and for

what purpose, his special indorsement protecting him from all

liability over, except such as may be traceable to his own fraud.

The facts then appear to have been as stated, and the position of

the parties in the fall of 1841, after the death of Elisha Merritt,

was this : The note pleaded as a set-off, was then the property of

Elisha Merritt's estate, having been paid over and delivered to

him, in his lifetime, at the request of the maker, in July, 1841.

The defendant is executor of Elisha, and as such, obtains the

note. He purchases out the interests of all the owners of it

—

the devisees of Elisha Merritt—the plaintiff included, settles

up the estate and pays all the debts and claims, and insists he has

become entitled to the whole of this note in his own right, and
by the assignment by Daniel Merritt, in 1853, has the legal title

and can set it off.

The plaintiff resists this, and replies that the note was left by
his father ; that by his will the executor was enjoined from col-

lecting it, or so much of it as may be equal to his interest in his

father's estate, and therefore he is not bound to pay.

The rejoinder by defendant is conclusive. You sold your
interest in the estate for the very note you are now suing upon.

I own that interest, or its representative, the note you gave to

Daniel, and he delivered it to the testator. If I have to pay
the note to you, you must pay your note to me, or the difference

between them.

Possessing himself, as the defendant did, of this note honestly,

and becoming its sole owner by his purchase of all the devisees,

he was,'^in equity at least, the true owner, and being so, it was
right and proper that Daniel should convey to him the legal

title by his writing of indorsement in 1853. Really the assign-

ment was not in issue, there being no denial of the fact, verified

by affidavit.

The plaintiff, as is very manifest, attempts to get double the

advantage from his father's estate that the other devisees de-

rived from it. First, by claiming his note under the will, then

by compelling the defendant to pay his note which was given for
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his interest under the will, thus making his share of the estate

about seventeen hundred dollars, against about $875 received

by the other devisees, as averaged.

It was properly left to the jury to say, from the facts, if this

could be so.

There is no pretense that the note was ever paid to Daniel,

or to his father—it would have been taken up had it been paid.

The case abundantly shows that the two notes were left un-

adjusted by the brothers, as valid, mutual claims. By the will

the plaintiff might have taken the note on his share of the es-

tate, before he sold to the defendant, but he did not do so, and
the jury was perfectly right in refusing to give him, not only

the full value of his interest in the estate, which was repre-

sented by the note he sued on, but absolve him also from paying

his note, which was a part of the estate which he had sold, and
which the defendant honestly purchased and owned. One was
properly set off against the other ; indeed, the plaintiff admit-

ted at the arbitration in Peru, in 1844, that there was about one
hundred and fifty dollars due on this note, and for that only,

with the accrued interest, was the judgment rendered for the

defendant.

We see no error in the court refusing to go into the inquiry

in regard to the difiiculties between Daniel, the witness, and the

plaintiff, growing out of lo.w suits. It was too remote, and
would open a field of collateral matter too wide for any purpose

of real justice.

The direct question as to the state of feeling of the witness,

friendly or hostile, is the only proper one. How that might be
caused, is wholly unimportant, and would lead to distressing

lengths.

The objection, that one of the witnesses was allowed to testify

that he commenced a suit on the note set off, in 1853, has no
force in it. The fact of the commencement of a suit is like any
other independent fact, and can be proved by parol—not the

mode and manner, but the naked fact. It was collateral only,

and needed no record or files of court to prove it. It had
nothing special to do with the case, further than this, that com-
mencing a suit on the note afforded ground for the inference

that the defendant claimed the note at that time as one which
the plaintiff ought to pay.

It was also objected, that Mr. Cotton could not prove by pa-

rol what the law of New York was in regard to the delivery

of a promissory note.

This very remotely affected the question at bar, as the defend-

ant claimed the note under a written assignment from the payee,

which was not denied by plea verified by affidavit.
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The rule may be, that the written or statute law of a State

cannot be proved by parol, but the common law, for the most
part made up of customs, may. be proved by parol. It will be

observed, Mr. Cotton did not say the law in New York, as he

stated it, was the statute law. As it is so unimportant in this

case, we will intend he spoke only of the common law there, or

custom which existed among that community in respect to such

paper.

The objection that plaintiff was not permitted to prove the

mental infirmity of Daniel—impaired memory by si'ckness—has

nothing' in it.

The witness asked on this point was not shown to be capable

of speaking to it, so that the jury could fully understand it.

What was the character of his disease, and how necessarily did

it affect his memory, and by what standard is the mental or

bodily vigor of any man to be tested. Not by the opinions of

those as imbecile, may be, as he. His own manner of testifying

is the best test of mental power, and is never overlooked or dis-

regarded by a jury. To go into these collateral inquiries would
prolong a trial so unreasonably, that unless a very powerful

reason exists for it, they should not be encouraged or indulged.

We do not deem it at all necessary to examine minutely the

several instructions. The record does not show all that were
given for plaintiff, so that we cannot know what bearing they may
have had on the case, or the necessity for the instructions which
were refused. Their substance and point may have been fully

contained in those not now on the record. The tenth was
properly modified by the court, and as modified, presents a

proper view of the case. The eleventh, twelfth and thirteenth

were properly refused.

As to the instructions on behalf of defendant, we may here,

with great propriety, take occasion to remark, that a practice

seems to be growing up to draw out instructions to a very great

length, and injecting into them an argument of the case. This

is a bad practice, and should not be encouraged by the courts.

Instructions should be concise, and briefly present the point of

law alone on which the party relies. These instructions of

defendant are liable to this objection, but they present the law
of the case fairly and fully, and from the evidence and the law,

the jury was bound to find as they did. They could not believe

it just, that one who had sold an estate should have the money
for it and the estate besides.

The judgment is affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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John L. Wilson, Plaintiff in Error, v. Albert G. Pearson,

Assignee of J. Grant Osbourne, Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO COOK.

A debtor in failing circumstances may make an assignment for the benefit of his

creditors, and if fairly done, it passes the title to his property to his assignee.

The question of fairness of the transaction, is one of fact, for the finding of the

jury, and the finding of the jury, when the question is properly submitted, will

not be disturbed.

Where an assignment by such a creditor covers only personal property, it need
not be recorded, if possession accompanies the assignment.

Whether certain facts would have the legal effect of an abandonment of an asign-

ment, may or may not be conclusive ; they should be accompanied with an
intention to abandon, and that intention should be left to the jury for decision.

This was an action of replevin, brought by Pearson, the

defendant in error, in the Circuit Court of Cook county, to

recover possession of a stock of boots and shoes, valued at

$1,400.
The writ was sued out on the 10th January, A. D. 1857, and

executed by the coroner of said comity on the 12th, by taking

the goods from the possession of Wilson, the plaintiff in error,

who, as sheriff of said county, held the goods, and had adver-

tised them for sale, by virtue of two writs of execution, issued

against the property of J. Grant Osbourne.

The defendant, Wilson, pleaded : 1. The general issue. 2.

Property in Osbourne. 3. Property in defendant. 4. That he

took the said goods by virtue of a writ of execution in favor of

Whipple, Alley & Billings against said Osbourne. 5. That
he took the said goods by virtue of a writ of execution in favor

of Pearson & Dana, against said Osbourne. -:
Issue was joined thereon, and the cause tried by a jury at

the November term of said court, A. D. 1857, before Manniere,
Judge.

/. Grant Osbourne^ on the part of the plaintiff, testified

:

That the paper purporting to be an assignment from witness to

Albert G. Pearson, for the benefit of his creditors, dated Janu-

ary 5, 1857, was signed by him and Pearson ; I was unable at

that date, January 5, 1857, to pay my debts ; the 5th was on
Monday ; the assignment was made on Monday, was signed and
sealed that forenoon. After it was made, Pearson came over

to the store, went into back room, and said to Nixon, my fore-

man, " I am boss here now, and will see you paid." Pearson's

clerk came in the afternoon ; the store that night was locked up
by Nixon, by direction of Pearson, and opened next morning.

I did not exercise any act of ownership that day ; after Pear-

son's clerk came in that afternoon, he got a book to enter sales
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in, and put up a sign on the wall near the door, and a large

placard in front window, " This stock and lease for sale, apply

to A. G. Pearson, assignee." It was pretty large, and contin-

ued there. In the rear of the store a placard was put up
at the desk, so that it could be seen distinctly. They were
all of the same tenor, and were put up on the day of the

assignment.

I was in the store on Tuesday morning, and then absented

myself. Pearson's clerk was there, also Nixon and the work-

men, and continued to work as before. The signs were there

;

that afternoon (Tuesday) I found the 'store had been closed by
the sheriff; was not there when the sheriff came ; went to sec

Pearson, and asked him the meaning of it ; and he said he

should replevy the goods. The inventory in the assignment

contains a true statement of all the stock then on hand, of all

my property, and all debts. It was made on the third of Janu-

ary and executed on the fifth.

The plaintiff also offered in evidence a paper purporting to

be an assignment of property of J. Grant Osbourne to Albert G.

Pearson, for the benefit of his creditors, not recorded, dated

January 5, 1857 ; to the introduction of which said paper in

evidence, the said defendant objected. Objection overruled,

and exception taken.

The defendant introduced in evidence a writ of execution

and fee bill issued out of the Cook County Court of Common
Pleas, tested January 2, 1857, in favor of Whipple, Alley &
Billings, and against the property of J. Grant Osbourne, which,

with the return of the sheriff of Cook county, were admitted

in evidence without exception. The return indorsed thereon

is

—

By virtue of the within writ, I did levy on a general stock of boots and shoes,

the property of the within named defendant, on the 6th of January, 1857, and on

the 12th day of January, 1857, they were replevied by the coroner of Cook county

;

therefore I return this writ no part satisfied, this 2nd day of April, 1857.

JOHN L. WILSON, Sheriff,

By George Anderson, Deputy.

The defendant also introduced in evidence a writ of execu-

tion and fee bill issued out of the Circuit Court of Cook county,

on judgment confessed, in favor of Albert G. Pearson and Wil-

liam V. Dana, and against the property of J. Grant Osbourne,

tested January 7, 1857, which, with return of sheriff indorsed

thereon, was also admitted in evidence without exception. The
sherifi''s return indorsed thereon is

—

By virtue of the within execution, I did, on the 7th day of January, 1857, levy

on a general stock of boots and shoes, the property of the within named defendant.
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J. G. Osbourne, and on the 12th day of January, 1857, were replevied from me

by the coroner of Cook county ; therefore I return this execution no part satisfied,

this 7th day of April, 1857.

JOHN L. WILSON, Sheriff,

By George Andekson, Deputy.

George Anderson, testified for defendant as follows : I am
deputy sheriff of John L. Wilson, the sheriff of Cook county,

and was on January last. This execution of Whipple, Alley &
Billings, and against J. Grant Osbourne, for the sum of $682.89,
and costs, was put into my hands, and levied by me upon a

stock of boots and shoes in a store on the west side, occupied

by J. Grant Osbourne, as shown by return. I don't recollect

from whom I received this execution in favor of Pearson &
Dana, and against Osbourne. I received it from some person

with instructions to levy it immediately, and I levied upon the

goods before it was taken into the sheriff's office. I levied it

on the 7th of January last, upon the same stock of boots and
shoes I levied the first (Whipple's) execution on. I had the

stock in my possession when I received the Pearson & Dana
writ. My impression is, that Pearson, or Stevens, his attorney,

gave me the writ. I advertised the goods for sale under both

executions, and notice of sale was posted up when the goods

were replevied out of my hands. I think it was Pearson who
directed me to make the levy.

I received the Whipple execution at 4 o'clock, January 6,

1857 ; that evening I made the levy on the stock. A young man
there told me there was an assignment to some shoe store down
on Lake street ; he did not know the name. After I returned,

I learned that Pearson &, Dana were the assignees. I then made
a levy, and put a man in possession. I levied the first time I

went there.

It is admitted that Albert G. Pearson, the plaintiff in this

suit, is the same person who is one of the plaintiffs in the Pear-

son & Dana execution, and that J. Grant Osbourne confessed a

judgment on which said Pearson & Dana's execution issued

January 7th, 1857, for $635, and costs.

The defendant also called H. B. Stevetis, who, being sworn,

testified as follows

:

I presume the note of Osbourne to Pearson & Dana was exe-

cuted on the 5th or 6th of January, 1857, and was ante-dated

to January 1st, I think it was after the assignment was exe-

cuted. The note was executed at Pearson's store, and judgment
afterwards entered up. The consideration of the note was $500
due Pearson & Dana, and $100 due to Ward, and $25 for my
fees. I had judgment entered, and left the execution with the

sheriff, with orders not to levy until he heard from me.
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I was attorney for Pearson and Osbourne in drawing the assign-

ment. It was executed January 5, 1858. After Anderson lev-

ied on the goods, it became important to ascertain when the

"Whipple execution came into the hands of the sheriff. I went
to the sheriff's office, and did not find it noticed on the sheriff's

books. I found judgment entered up in favor of Whipple and
others, against Osbourne, January 2, 1857, on confession, and
execution noted on the docket. On the morning of the 7th, not

being able to find out about the Whipple execution, I went to

Rich's office, Whipple's attorney, and he gave me to understand

that the Whipple execution was in the hands of the sheriff be-

fore the assignment was made. I then advised Osbourne to con-

fess judgment in favor of Pearson & Dana, in order to procure

a levy and come in second best.

The court gave the following instructions to the jury, on the

part of the plaintiffs, viz.

:

A debtor in failing circumstances may assign his property

for the benefit of creditors, either with or without preferences.

An assignment, when made in good faith, and accompanied and
followed by possession of the property assigned, is warranted by

law. Therefore, if the jury believe, from the evidence, that the

assignment in question was made in good faith, and that the

plaintifi' took open and actual possession of the property assigned,

previous to the time when the execution in favor of Whipple,
Alley & Billings was received by the defendant, or by his deputy

sheriff, George Anderson, then the law is for the plaintiff, and
he is entitled to a verdict in his favor for a return of the prop-

erty mentioned in the narr.

Actual fraud is not to be presumed, but should be proven by
the party alleging it. The law presumes good faith controls

business transactions ; therefore, if the jury believe, from all the

circumstances in evidence, that the nature and design of the

assignment in question were bona fide, to secure and pay, first,

an indebtedness due to Pearson &, Dana, and S, A, Ward (after

paying the just and reasonable expenses attending the executing

the trust) ; and second, to use and apply the rest and residue of

the net proceeds of the property assigned in and toward the pay-

ment of the other debts of Osloourne, and that said assignment

was not contrived, as a fraud on the part of Osbourne and the

plaintiff, to cheat or hinder the creditors of Osbourne, the law
is for the plaintiff ; if the jury shall also find that the assignee

took possession of the property, and that such possession was
continued to and at the time of the levy.

If the jury shall find, from the evidence, that the assignment

in question was in fact made by Osbourne to Pearson, and that

Pearson entered into and took open, actual and exclusive pos-
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session of the goods assigned, then the subsequent declarations

and actions of Pearson, introduced in evidence in this suit, and
the subsequent declarations and actions of Osbourne, can only

be taken into consideration by the jury, for the purpose of de-

termining the intent at the time of the inception of the assign-

ment, viz., whether such assignment was made with intent to

hinder or delay creditors of Osbourne, and enable him, under

cover thereof, to carry on business.

If an assignment is bona fide ^ and not shown to be fraudulent as

to creditors, then neither mismanagement nor fraudulent disposi-

tion of property under an assignment, by an assignee, can affect

the instrument, or his title under it ; they may be grounds for a

removal by a court of equity, but cannot be inquired into in an
action at common law, brought to try his title to the property

assigned.

The law does not require an assignment of personal property

for the benefit of creditors to be recorded ; the same not being

recorded is no evidence of fraud.

In all cases of alleged fraudulent sales of personal property,

a knowledge of, or participation in, the fraud, must be shown on

the part of the buyer as well as the seller, in order to defeat the

recovery of the plaintiif.
. .

-
. . ; v,.,:

Exception taken to plaintiff's instructions.

The court also gave the jury the following instructions, on
behalf of the defendant, viz.

:

If the jury shall believe, from the evidence, that the assign-

ment by Osbourne was made to Pearson with the intent to hinder

and delay any of his other creditors, in the collection of their

debts, to enable Osbourne, under the color thereof, to continue

his business, and in possession of his property for his own bene-

fit, then such assignment is fraudulent and void as to his credit-

ors, and the jury should find a verdict for the defendant.

If the jury shall find, from the evidence, that the assignment

in question was bona fide, then, unless it is also shown by the

evidence that the assignee, Pearson, did take actual and exclu-

sive possession of the goods before the levy under the Whipple
execution, the verdict should be for the defendant. [Given by
the court on its own motion.]

If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the assignment

from Osbourne to Pearson was made with intent to hinder, delay

or defraud the creditors of Osbourne, then the verdict should be

for the defendant ; and in deciding upon the intent, the jury may
take into consideration subsequent as well as prior circumstances,

and the transactions of the parties, to explain such intent.

If the jury believe,, from the evidence, that at or about the

time of the assignment from Osbourne to Pearson, there was an
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understanding or stipulation between them, though not expressed

in the assignment itself, to allow Osbourne a specified sum for

his services in the management of the property assigned, and
that Osbourne should retain possession of the same, for his own
benefit, as agent for Pearson, or otherwise, to enable him to con-

trol his business to the hindrance of his creditors, such stipula-

tion or understanding is evidence of fraud, and the defendant is

entitled to a verdict.

The defendant also requested the court to give the following

instruction to the jury, viz. :

V. " If the jury believe, from the evidence, that after the

alleged assignment from Osbourne to Pearson was executed, and
before the same was recorded, and before the other creditors of

said Osbourne had in any way assented thereto, Osbourne con-

fessed a judgment in favor of Pearson & Dana, for the amount,

or more than their claim, as set forth in the schedule attached

to said assignment, and that execution was thereupon issued on
such judgment, and levied on the property alleged to have been
assigned, then the verdict should be for the defendant, such

alleged assignment being thereby virtually abandoned, annulled

and released by the parties thereto, the only parties on whom it

had any binding force."

The court refused the instruction as asked for, but gave
another in lieu thereof, as follows, viz.

:

V. " If the jury find, from the evidence, that after the

alleged assignment to Pearson, and after the levy of the Whip-
ple execution by deputy sheriff Anderson, and possession taken

by him, the debtor, Osbourne, confessed a judgment in favor of

Pearson & Dana, for the amount of their claim, including also

the claim of Ward, the other preferred creditor, and that Pear-

son thereupon caused execution to be issued, and directed a levy

upon the assigned property to be made by Anderson', and that

the said judgment was so confessed, and execution was so levied

with the intent to abandon said assignment, then the levy under

the Whipple execution acquired a priority of lien over the goods

in question, and the jury should find for the defendant."

To the refusal of the court to give said 6th instruction as

asked, and to the giving of the one in lieu thereof, the defendant

excepted.

The jury returned a verdict for the plaintifi".

Defendant then moved the court for a new trial on the follow-

ing grounds

:

The verdict of the jury is against the law.

The verdict is against the evidence.

Because the court gave the instructions submitted by plaintiff's

counsel, said instructions tending to mislead the jury.
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Because the counsel for plaintiff contended before the jury,

and the court so instructed the jury, that unless they found

actual fraud, both in the plaintiff and Osbourne, in the inception

of the assignment, and before the levy of the Whipple execution,

the verdict must be for the plaintiff.

Because the court gave a new instruction for defendant in lieu

of one (the 5th) submitted by defendant's counsel, relative to

the Pearson & Dana judgment and execution.

Because the court modified other instructions submitted by
defendant's counsel.

Motion overruled, and defendant excepted, and tendered his

bill of exceptions.

Errors assigned : 1st. The Circuit Court erred in admitting

improper evidence.

2d. The Circuit Court erred in giving the 1st, 2d, 3d, 4th, 5th

and 6th instructions on behalf of the plaintiff'.

3d. The Circuit Court erred in refusing to give the 5th

instruction on behalf of defendant, as drawn and submitted by
defendant's counsel.

4th. The Circuit Court erred in refusing to grant a new trial.

Rich & Steele, for Plaintiff in Error. "

H. B. Stevens, for Defendant in Error.

Walkee, J. The plaintiff in error questions the decision

of the Circuit Court in overruling his motion for a new trial,

because, it is alleged, that the verdict was not warranted by the

evidence in the case. There can be no question but the law
does permit a debtor in failing circumstances to make an assign-

ment of his property for the benefit of his creditors ; and if

fairly and bona fide made, it passes the title in such property

to his assignee, for their benefit. The question of fairness and
bona fides of the transaction is a question of fact for the finding

of the jury. The plaintiff's instructions which were given,

properly left that question to the jury for their determination

from all the circumstances in evidence. They have found that

it was fair, and we have no disposition to disturb their finding.

It was urged that the deed of assignment was in operation as

against the creditors, because it was not recorded before the

levy was made. This deed only purported to transfer personal

property, and we have not been referred to, nor are we aware
of any decision which requires it, where the possession accom-
panies the deed of assignment.

On a sale of chattels, whether by bill of sale, by mortgage,
by deed of trust, or on a verbal sale, the title rests and becomes
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complete agaiust creditors and subsequent purchasers, by a

delivery to the purchaser, mortgagee or trustee. Possession of

chattels is notice and evidence of ownership.

The 20th chap. R. S., section 1, p. 91, provides that :
" No

mortgage on personal property shall be valid as against the

rights and interests of any third person or persons, unless pos-

session of such personal property shall be delivered to and
remain with the mortgagee, or the said mortgage be acknow-
ledged and recorded as hereinafter directed." This provision

clearly makes the delivery of possession as efiectual as the

acknowledgment and record of the mortgage. And the last

section of the chapter extends its provisions to bills of sale,

deeds of trust, and conveyances of chattels. There is no force

in this objection.

It was insisted that the court below erred in refusing to give

the defendant's fifth instruction. That instruction, as asked,

was :
" If the jury believe, from the evidence, that, after the

alleged assignment from Osbourne to Pearson was executed, and
before the same was recorded, and before the other creditors of

said Osbourne ha(J in any way assented thereto, Osbourne con-

fessed a judgment, in favor of Pearson & Dana, for the amount,

or more than their claim, as set forth in the schedule attached

to said assignment, and that execution was thereupon issued

upon such judgment, and levied on the property alleged to have
been assigned, then the verdict should be for defendant ; such

alleged assignment being thereby virtually abandoned, annulled

and released by the parties thereto, the only parties on whom it

had any binding force."

The court gave as a modification of the foregoing, the follow-

ing instruction :
" If the jury shall find, from the evidence,

that after the alleged assignment to Pearson, and after the levy

of the Whipple execution by deputy sheriff Anderson, and pos-

session taken by him, the debtor, Osbourne, confessed a judgment
in favor of Pearson & Dana for the amount of their claim, in-

cluding also the claim of Ward, the other preferred creditor,

and that Pearson thereupon caused execution to be issued, and
directed a levy upon the assigned property to be made by An-
derson, and that the said judgment was so confessed, and execu-

tion was so levied, with the intent to abandon said assignment,

then the levy under the Whipple execution acquired a priority

of lien over the goods in question, and the jury should find for

the defendant." This instruction was based on the evidence,

and the question presented is, whether the facts supposed by the

instruction, if they were found to exist by the jury, would have

the legal eifect of an abandonment of the assignment by the

parties ; or whether the acts done, to have such eifect, should
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have been accompanied with the intention to abandon. In all

transactions which are tainted with fraud, the intention of the

parties is a material ingredient. The intention is manifested by

their acts, to some of which the law attaches the effect of con-

clusions, which cannot be explained or rebutted, while others

may. But in this case the question was whether the parties had
abandoned the assignment, and had virtually canceled the deed.

No reason is perceived why the acts of these parties should be

held conclusive of such intent. They acted as men usually do
under such circumstances. Osbourne had preferred Pearson
and Ward, two of his creditors, by the assignment, and when
the property was levied on under an execution in favor of a

creditor who had not been preferred, and taken out of the pos-

session of the assignee, it was natural for Pearson and Ward to

desire to retain the preference which the assignment had given

them, and it was consistent with the debtor's previous acts to

assist them in retaining such preference. The mode suggested

to attain that end, in the event that the contest then commenced
over the assignment should result in its invalidity, was to pro-

cure a judgment and levy. They, it seems, were advised by
their attorney to this course, and it was proper to leave it to the

jury, under all the circumstances, to determine Avliat their inten-

tion was. They have found the fact that it was not to abandon,

and we think the evidence justified the finding. Upon the

whole record no error is discovered for which the judgment of

the Circuit Court should be reversed.

Judgment affirmed.

James Orendorff et al, Plaintiffs in Error, v. William
Stanberry et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO TAZEWELL.

Where a sheriff returns that he did, on the 8lh day of September, 1857, serve a

summons on A. B., who attempted to avoid service by concealing himself, and
running from liim, etc., it will be held a good service. Where the date is written

at the bottom of the indorsement of service, and above the name of the officer,

it is sufficient to fix the date of service.

Where there are several defendants living in different counties, the writs sent to

the several counties for service may contain the names of all the defendants.

Where the venue of a writ is, " State of Illinois, Tazewell County," and the writ

is directed to " The Sheriff of Logan County," commanding him to summon
the defendants " to appear before the Circuit Court of said county," the uncer-

tainty as to which of the counties the defendants are to appear in, renders the

summons void.
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There was judgment in this case by default against all the

defendants, at the October term, 1857, of the Tazewell Circuit

Court, Herriott, Judge, presiding.

The case will be found stated fully in the opinion of the court.

James Roberts, for Plaintiffs in Error.

A. L. Davison, for Defendants in Error.

Walker, J. This was an action of assumpsit, commenced
in the Tazewell Circuit Court, by William Stanberry and John
W. Casey, against James Orendorff, Colvey Morris, John L.

Orendorff, Quintus Orendorff and Daniel Crabb. The declara-

tion contained special counts on two promissory notes, and the

usual common counts. On the 7th day of August, 1857, writs

were issued to the sheriff of Tazewell and Logan counties,

against all of the defendants, returnable on the second Monday
of October, 1857. The sheriff of Tazewell returned the writ

directed to him, with the following indorsement :

Served on John L. Orendorff and Quintus Orendorff, by reading the within

writ to thenj, August 27th, 1857.

C. WILLIAMSON, S. T. C.

James Orendorff and Colvey Morris not found in my county. October 2, 1857.

Served on Daniel Crabb on the 8th day of September, 1857, who attempted to

avoid service by concealing himself, and running from me at the time I read this

process to him at the place I last saw him.

C. WILLIAMSON, S. T. C,

N. H. McKeane, Deputy.

The summons issued to the sheriff of Logan county, with the

return thereon, is as follows :

I

TATE OF ILLINOIS,
TAZEWELL COUNTY.

Tke People of the State of Illinois to the Sheriff of Logan county, Greeting :

We command you to summon James Orendorff, Colvey Morris, John L. Oren-

dorff, Quintus Orendorff and Daniel Crabb, if found in your county, personally to

appear before the Circuit Court of said county on the first day of the next term

thereof, to be holden at the Court House, in the city of Pekin, on the second Mon-
day of the month of October next, to answer unto William Stanberry and John W.
Casey, in a plea of assumpsit, to the damage of the said plaintiffs, as they say, in

the sum of six thousand dollars ; and have you then and there this writ, and

make return thereon in what manner you execute the same.

Witness, M. C. Young, clerk of the said Circuit Court, and the

[SEAL-l seal thereof, hereto^ affixed at Pekin, this 7th day of August, A. D.

1857. M. C. YOUNG, Clerk,

By Don W. Matjs, D. C.
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Upon which writ the sheriff made the following return, which
is in the words and figures as follows, to wit

:

Executed this writ August 20th, 1857, by reading to the within named James
OrendorfF and Colvey Morris, the within named John L. Orendorff, Quintus Oren-

doi-ff and Daniel Crabb, not found in the county.

G. MUSICK, Sheriff Logan County.

At the October term, 1857, of the Tazewell Circuit Court,

judgment by default Tv^as entered against the defendants for

the sum of |4,560.18, and the costs of the suit, and to reverse

which they prosecute this writ of error.

It is insisted that the sheriff's return of service on Crabb is

uncertain as to the time, manner and place of service. The
officer expressly states in his return that he served the process
by reading it to Crabb on the 8th day of September, 1857.
This is the language in terms, if what is said about the attempt
to evade service is rejected, and his having used that language
does not change the statement as to when he served it, or that

it was served by reading to defendant. It is a legal presump-
tion that the officer acted in obedience to the command of the

writ. It required him to summon the defendants, if found in

Tazewell county, to ap]Dear at the next term of the Circuit

Court of that county. We are not authorized to intend that he
violated the command of the writ, and went beyond his territo-

rial jurisdiction to obtain service. The return is in conformity
with the requirements of the practice act, and is legally suf--

ficient.

It was further urged that the return of service as to Jolm L.

Orendorff and Quintus Orendorff, is not sufficient to sustain the

judgment, because the officer does not state in his return on what
day he served the process. There is written at the bottom of
this indorsement, "August 27th, 1857," and below it the officer's

name. Immediately following this indorsem.ent, is the return

that he is unable to find James Orendorff and Colvey Morris,
which is dated on the 2nd day of October, 1857, and then fol-

lows the return that the same writ was served on Crabb on the

8th of September, 1857, which clearly shows that the writ was
not returned until after the date of this indorsement of service

on John L. Orendorff and Quintus Orendorff, and until as late

as the 2nd of October. This, then, clearly distinguishes this

case from the case of Ogle v. Cofey, 1 Scam. R. 239. The re-

turn in that case was, "executed Oct. 18th, 1832, as commanded
within." The court there say, " Whether the date specified is

intended for the date of the day of service, or is the day on
which the summons is returned, is wholly uncertain." In this

case, however, the date cannot be the date of the return, because
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the subsequent indorsement shows that the writ was still in his

hands more than a month afterwards. This makes it clear that

the day named was the day of its service on them.

It was also insisted that the writ to Logan should have been
against the defendants alone in that county, and that as it was
against them all, it is illegal and void. The second section of

the practice act provides, that where there is more than one

defendant, the plaintiff, commencing his action where either of

them resides, may have a writ or writs issued to any county or

counties where the other defendants, or either of them, may be

found. This language is general, and does not limit such writs

to the defendant or defendants residing in the county to which
the writ may be sent. It may be more conformable to ancient

usage, and we doubt not is the better practice. But under our

statute we are not prepared to hold that a writ against all of

the defendants, sent to a different county from that in which suit

may be commenced, is void. If such writs were to result in a

second service on the defendants, or either of them, the costs

would be unnecessarily made, and the plaintiff would be liable

for their payment.

It is again objected that the writ directed to Logan county

requires the sheriff to summons defendants to appear at the next

term of the Logan Circuit Court. The venue of that writ is,

" State of Illinois, Tazewell county," and the writ is directed to

the sheriff of Logan county, and commands him to summons the

defendants to appear before the Circuit Court of said county on
the first day of the next term thereof. The words, " said

county," necessarily refer to one of the counties before named.
Tazewell and Logan counties had both been named in a former

part of the writ, and Logan having been last named, is probably

the one tliat a literal construction would point out as referred

to. But at least, it is left in doubt, from the language, which
county is intended. A defendant has a right to certainly know
when and where he is required to appear when summoned. This

summons fails to give him that notice in regard to the court.

The writ was, for that reason, void, and the court did not legally

have the defendants found in Logan county, in court, when the

judgment was rendered, and it was, therefore, erroneous. The
judgment of the court below is reversed, and the cause remanded
for further proceedings.

Jiulg-ment reversed.
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William R. Bush, Appellant, v. Napoleon B. Kindred,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM PEORIA COUNTY COURT.

Where there is evidence to support a verdict, this court will not be inclined to dis-

turb it ; unless it is manifestly against its weight.

A party, when sued before a justice of the peace, is not bound to set off unlic[ui-

dated damages. Such a practice would invest justices of the peace with a
jurisdiction beyond the statutory limits.

,

This cause was tried in the County Court of Peoria county.

The case will be found fully stated in the opinion of the court.

H. Grove, for Appellant.

Manning & Merriman, for Appellee.

"Walker, J. This was an action of assumpsit, brought by
Kindred against Bush, in the Peoria County Court, to the Feb-

ruary term, 1858, The declaration contained special counts for

damages claimed as growing out of a breach of contract, and
the common counts in the usual form. The defendant filed five

pleas. First, the general issue, k^econd, payment. Third, that

the plaintiff was indebted to defendant in the sum of ^95.05,
on a judgment before a justice of the peace. Fourth, set-off;

and fifth, that defendant, before this suit was instituted, had sued

plaintiff before a justice of the peace and recovered a judgment
against the plaintiff, and that the cause of action in this case

then existed, and could have been set off in that trial, and fail-

ing to do so, that judgment was a bar to this action. On these

pleas there were issues. A trial was had before the court and
a jury, and a verdict for plaintiff for thirty dollars damages.
Defendant entered a motion for a new trial, which was overruled

by the court, and a judgment rendered for plaintiff on the ver-

dict. And defendant brings the case to this court by appeal.

It was urged that the verdict is against the weight of evi-

dence, and should, for that reason, have been set aside. The
evidence was confiicting and contradictory, and it was the

province of the jury, in the light of all the surrounding cir-

cumstances, to weigh it and give it the credit to which it was
entitled. This they have done, and we do not feel called upon to

disturb their finding. There was evidence to support the ver-

dict, and we would not be justified in disturbing it, unless the

finding was manifestly against its weight. Alle7i v. Smith el aL,

3 Scam. R. 97. . .
,
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It was urged that this cause of action was barred by the plain-

tiff 's having failed to set off the damages claimed in the suit

between the same parties before the justice of the peace. The
claim is for unliquidated damages growing out of a breach of

contract between the parties ; that suit was, upon claims, appa-

rently totally disconnected with this contract, and if the damages
claimed in this action were proper as a set-off before the justice,

there can be no case in which unliquidated damages, growing out

of a breach of covenant, contract, or tort, could not be set off. If

such damages might be so set off, it would be to invest justices

of the peace with jurisdiction over questions involving title to

real estate, and compel parties to litigate all their rights, of

every nature and kind, in one action, which would result in great

injustice and endless confusion. Haivks v. Sands, 3 Gil. R. 232.

It is manifest that the legislature never intended to confer such

jurisdiction upon justices of the peace, and thereby produce such

results.

The defendant asked the court to instruct the jury, that " if

•they believed, from the evidence, that the parties had settled

their whole matters at Pontiac, and that afterwards Bush paid

money or gave checks that were paid to Kindred, the jury should

find a verdict in favor of defendant, for the amount of such pay-

ments, and also the amount of the judgment rendered by Bailey."

The court refused to give this instruction, and gave, in the

place thereof, the following :
" If the jury believe, from the evi-

dence, that the parties settled their whole matters at Pontiac,

under and according to the contract between the parties, and
that afterwards Bush paid money or gave checks which were
paid to Kindred, the jury should find a verdict for the defendant,

for the amount of such payment, and also the amount of the

judgment rendered by Bailey, unless, from the evidence, it

appears the same was to be applied on the contract."

It was in evidence that a settlement of some kind was
made between the parties, before the expiration of the time

for the performance of the contract. In the absence of proof to

the contrary, the presumption would be, that the unperformed
portion of the contract was not embraced in the settlement. It

was, therefore, proper for the court to qualify the instruction so

as to apply the settlement to the contract and all matters under
it ; and as, on that settlement, there may have been a balance

due to plaintiff, it was proper to again modify it by adding the

concluding clause. If defendant was indebted to plaintiff on
that settlement, and made payments on it, in money or by checks,

it would be clearly erroneous to instruct the jury that defendant
would have a right to a verdict for such payments. And that

was what the instruction, as asked, told the jury. This modified

instruction was properly given. And we are unable to discover
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any error in the giving of plaintiff's instructions ; nor lias any-

been discovered on the whole record of the case ; and, there-

fore, the judgment of the court below should be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

James May, Paintiff in Error, ^'. Robert Symms et al,

Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO ROCK ISLAND.

Where it appears that in June, 1835, A, and B, had improvements upon public land
which entitled them to a preemption, which they sold and conveyed to C, selling

all tlie right they then had or might acquire, they binding themselves to pay the

government the price of the land; that in 1842, D, a brother of A, and B, ob-

tained a certificate by preemption in his own name, but represented to C, that

he, D, had been put to trouble and expense to procure his title, whereupon C,
paid to D, the full amount of such trouble and expense and took a receipt there-

for, and A, B, and D, occupied the land as tenants of C, and that D, conveyed
a part of said land to A : Held, that an injunction would lie, to prevent further

sales of the land, and that the player of the bill, asking a conveyance to C, and
for general relief^, should not be dismissed upon demurrer, and that the sale and
subsequent ratification of it were not in violation of any law at the time they

were made.

This cause was commenced in the Rock Island Circuit Court,

on the chancery side thereof, by the plaintiff in error, against

the defendants in error. The bill was filed on the 11th of

August, 1851. The defendants appeared and demurred to the

bill, and the court sustained the demurrer. The complainant

elected to abide by his bill, when the court, "Wilkinson, Judge,

dismissed it, and rendered a decree for costs against him, at

May term, 1854.

The plaintiff in error brings the cause to this court, and
assigns for error that the Circuit Court erred in sustaining the

demurrer and dismissing the bill.

The bill alleges that on the 24th day of June, 1835, the

complainant purchased of Robert Symms and Thomas Symms,
two of the defendants, two tracts of land, one being a fractional

piece, with improvements, situate and lying at and near the

head of Rock Island rapids, and the other lying back of and
adjoining said fraction, for three hundred dollars, and on the

same day took a deed of conveyance from them, duly acknowl-

edged, which was recorded on the 29th June, 1835, and wherein

the fractional piece was described as above stated, and conveys
" in fee simple, all their right, title, interest, claim and improve-

ments that they now have or hereafter may have."
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The bill then avers that by the deed it was the intention to

convey as the " fractional piece," the south-west fractional quar-

ter of section twenty-five, in township nineteen north, of range

one east of the 4th principal meridian, to which the description

in the deed applied, but was not described by the numbers
because they were unknown to the parties at the time of the

execution.

The bill then avers that at the time of the sale and convey-

ance, the tract of land was Government land, on which the said

defendants had made a settlement and improvements, whereby
they were entitled to a right of pre-emption and preference as

purchasers, and that the said defendants agreed to obtain the

legal title free of expense to complainant.

It is further stated that the defendant, Thomas Symms, in

pursuance of the agreement to obtain the title, proved his pre-

emption claim, and on the 28th day of June, 1842, or soon

after, paid the entrance money and obtained title in his own
name.
The bill avers payment in full of $300 ; and afie?' the entry

by Thomas Symms, on the 12th Sept., 1842, in addition to the

$300 already paid, at the request of the defendant, Thomas
Symms, the complainant, agreed to and did pay him the further

sum of $29.37, for which a written receipt was given, which is

set out hcBC verba, wherein it is said to be " in full for the en-

trance money" for the fractional piece of land, describing it by
its numbers. The sum thus paid was exactly the amount of the

entrance money, and fifty cents for the fee of the land officers

in taking proof. The tract contained twenty-three forty-nine

one hundredths acres.

The complainant avers that the defendants, Thomas and
Robert Symms, from the time of the purchase occupied the land

as tenants under him; and after the procurement of title by
Thomas, he held it in trust for him, and that the same enured

to his use and benefit by virtue of the deed to the complainant.

It is charged that the improvements made before the sale to the

complainant were permanent and substantial, and also, that all

persons had notice of their claim and right to the land by virtue

of the pre-emption laws, and that the complainant's right to the

land was acknowledged by the defendants and the whole com-

munity, being in accordance with the custom of the country.

The bill then charges that the defendant, Thomas Symms,
without any consideration, fraudulently conveyed to the other

defendant, James Symms, all the tract, except one acre, on the

2nd Sept., 1843, and that James had actual notice of the com-

plainant's rights. It is then stated that James Symms made a

power of attorney to Robert Symms, authorizing him to convey
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the land, and a part thereof had been deeded by him, the

avails of which had been appropriated by Robert to his own
use.

The prayer of the bill is for a writ of injunction to restrain

a further conveyance of the property under the power of attor-

ney or by the parties, for a conveyance of all right and claim

of the defendants in the premises to the complainant, and for

general relief.

The only question is as to the sufiiciency of the bill upon
general demurrer. / '

GouDY & JuDD, for Plaintiif in Error.

Manning & Merriman, for Defendants in error.

Walker, J. May filed his bill in this case, against Robert
Symms, James Symms and Thomas Symms, in the Rock Island

Circuit Court, and in it alleges, that on the 24th day of June,

1835, he purchased of James and Robert Symms two tracts of

land, one of them, which was a fractional piece, with improve-

ments, near the Rock Island rapids, and the other lying back of

and adjoining the fractional piece, for which he paid and was to

pay the sum of three hundred dollars, and that he, on the same
day, took from them a deed of conveyance duly acknowledged,
and which was recorded on the 29th day of the same month.

By the deed they " conveyed and sold in fee simple to May, all

their right, title, interest and improvement, that they now have

or hereafter may have in and to two pieces of land," which
were described as above, and it recites that f150 of the pur-

chase money Avas paid in hand, fifty dollars to be paid in one

year, and the remaining one hundred dollars when the patent

was delivered, which the Symms' were to procure, and were
to pay for the fractional quarter free of expense to complainant.

The bill alleges that it was the intention to convey the fractional

piece by this deed, that its description is the S. W. fractional

quarter of Section 25, 19 N. 1 E. of the 4th meridian, to which
the description in the deed was intended to apply, but the

numbers were not known to the parties at the time. That it

was government land upon which the Symms had an improve-
ment, which entitled them to a pre-emption at the time of the

sale. That prior to the 28th day of June, 1842, Thomas
Symms proved his pre-emption to the fractional quarter, in the

land office in which it was subject to entry, and on the last

named date, paid for it and became the purchaser in his own
name. That Thomas Symms represented to complainant that

he had been put to trouble and expense to procure the title, and
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that complainant should pay to him the price which he had paid

to procure the title ; and that he, complainant, paid to said

Thomas Symms $29.37, the full amount of the price which he

had paid to Government as the entrance money, and took from

him the following receipt

:

Received of James May, by the hands of Nathaniel Belcher, twenty-nine dollars

37-100, being in full for the entrance mone}-, for the south-west fractional quarter

of Section (25) twenty-five, in township No. (19) nineteen, north of the base line

of Range No. 1 east of the fourth principal meridian. Sept. 12th, 1842.

his

Wlttiess: R. F. Barrktt. THOMAS M SYMMS.
mark.

The bill also alleges the full payment of the balance of the

purchase money, and that after the purchase, the Symms occu-

pied the premises as complainant's tenants, and held under him
;

and after Thomas entered it, he held it in trust for complainant.

That Thomas Symms fraudulently, without consideration, con-

veyed to James Symms all of the tract except one acre, on the

2nd day of September, 1843, who had actual notice. That
James made a power of attorney to Robert Symms, authorizing

him to sell the same, a part of which he had sold. The bill

prays an injunction to restrain further sales, and for a convey-

ance of all the right of defendants to complainant, and for

general relief. To this bill defendants filed a demurrer, which
was sustained by the court and the bill was dismissed, and com-
plainant decreed to pay the costs. And to reverse the decree

of the court he prosecutes this writ of error.

The act of Congress, of the 29th May, 1830, provides that

every settler and occupant of public lands prior to its passage,

who was then in possession, and had cultivated any part thereof

in the year 1829, " shall be and is hereby authorized to enter,

with the register of the land office for the district in which such

lands may lie, by legal subdivisions, any number of acres not

more than one hundred and sixty, or a quarter section, to in-

clude his improvements, upon paying to the United States the

minimum price of said land." The 3rd section required proof

of settlement and improvement to be made to the satisfaction of

the register and receiver of the land district in which the lands

were situated, prior to the entry ; and that all assignments and
transfers of the right of pre-emption given by the act, prior to

the issuance of patents, should be null and void. A supple-

mental act of the 23rd day of January, 1832, authorized the

assignment and transfer of such certificates of purchase and
final receipts, and that patents should issue in the name of the

assignee, anything in the act of the 29th of May, 1830, to the

contrary notwithstanding.
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An act adopted the 19th of June, 1834, revived the act of

May 29th, 1830, and continued it in force for two years from its

passage. By the construction given to this act of 1834, by the

department, it revived the act of Jan. 1832, and the department
and its officers acted upon that construction ; 2 Land Laws, 196.

An act of July 14, 1832, had also extended the time for making
proof and payment under the act of May, 1830, until one year
after the plats of the surveyed lands were filed in the proper

office. On the 5th of April, 1832, an act was passed, providing

that " actual settlers, being housekeepers, upon the public lands,

shall have the right of pre-emption to enter within six months
after the passage of this act, not exceeding one-half quarter

section, under the provisions thereof, to include his or their im-

provements," etc. To this act a supplemental act was passed

on the 2nd of March, 1833, extending the time of making the

proof and payment of the same until one year after the plats of

the surveyed lands were returned and filed in the proper office.

These were the only acts in force on the subject at the time of

May's purchase, and there is no allegation in the bill from
which it appears under which act the pre-emption was claimed,

and whether it was under the act of May, 1830, or under the

act of April, 1832, and the several amendatory acts. The
sale, when made, violated none of their provisions. The act

of April, 1832, contained no provision which prohibited such an
assignment. The act of January, 1832, had repealed the pro-

hibitory clause of the act of May, 1830. By an act of our

legislature, approved Feb. 15, 1831, Sess. L. p. 82, such con-

tracts were declared to be valid in law or equity. This act was
in force at the time this contract was entered into by the parties,

and its provisions have been repeatedly recognized and enforced

in numerous decisions by this court. Turner v. Sanders, 4
Scam. R. 527 ; French v. Carr, 2 Gil. R. 664 ; Delaney v.

Burnett, 4 Gil. R. 492 ; Phelps v. Smith, 15 111. R. 572. It

seems to be clear that no law, either of the State or General
Government, was violated by this contract when it was entered

into by the parties, but it was sanctioned by the laws of both

•governments ; and had a suit then have been instituted, this

contract would have been enforced in our courts precisely as any
other contract which was legal and binding.

It was, however, urged that the entry, having been made on
the 28th day of June, 1842, the act of the 4th of September,

1841, must control the rights of the parties, which required per-

sons entering by pre-emption under its provisions, to file an
affidavit that they had not settled on and improved the same to

sell on speculation, but in good faith to appropriate to his own
exclusive use and benefit, and had not, directly or indirectly,
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made any agreement or contract in any way or manner, with

any ])erson or persons whatsoever, by which the title he or she

might acquire from the government of the United States, should

enure, in whole or in part, to the benefit of any person except

himself or herself; and if the person taking such oath should

swear falsely, they were subjected to all the pains and penalties

of perjury, and should forfeit the money paid for the lands, and
all right and title to the same ; and any grant or conveyance

which he or she had made, except in the hands of bona fide pur-

chasers, for a valuable consideration, should be null and void.

The bill alleges, and the demurrer admits, that May paid a val-

uable consideration for the property. No law or moral duty

was violated by the contract. He committed no fraud on any
law then in force, and was most clearly a bona fide purchaser for

a valuable consideration. And if he was such a purchaser, did

not the act of 1841 protect his rights ? Even if it did not,

after Thomas Symms made the entry, and had the undoubted
right to sell and dispose of the land, he and his brother, as the

bill alleges, received the balance of the purchase money under

the contract, and not only so, but at his request, and as he

alleged hardship in procuring title, complainant paid to him the

full amount of the entry money, for which he gave his receipt.

And the bill alleges that the two Symms held the land as ten-

ants of complainant. By these several acts the defendants most
clearly ratified and confirmed the sale, and that, too, after the

purchase was made from the government. This subsequent

ratification was made when no law was violated ; it was upon a

new as well as the former consideration. They had obtained

from complainant his money under a contract perfectly legal

when it was entered into, received a further sum beyond the

contract price, when they had the power to sell the land, and
every principle of justice and equity would require the defend-

ants to execute a contract thus entered into and thus ratified.

The defendants have shown no defense by answer or plea, and
upon the record, as it is now presented, the court erred in sus-

taining the demurrer to complainant's bill, and the decree of

the court below should be reversed, and remanded with leave to

answer.

Decree reversed.
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Chapman, use, etc. v. McGrew.

Franklin B. Chapman, for the use of John Wightman,

Plaintiif in Error, v. James A. McGrew, Defendant in

Error.

ERROR TO TAZEWELL COUNTY COURT.

A parol agreement to vary a contract under seal cannot be pleaded in a court of

law, to defeat a recovery on the original undertaking ; and such an agreement
will not discharge a security from liability.

The lessor cannot assign a lease by indorsement, so as to give the assignee such a
legal interest as can be enforced in his name, although the assignee may, in that

way, acquire an equitable title to the rents.

This was an action brought for rent, by Chapman, for the use

of Wightman, against N. C. Selby and James A. McGrew, be-

fore a justice of the peace, where a judgment was rendered for

the plaintiff, and by McGrew appealed to the County Court of

Tazewell county. At the July term, 1857, said cause was
submitted to the court without the intervention of a jury.

The plaintiff introduced a lease, bearing date Oct. 11th, 1856,
under seal from Chapman to Selby, signed by Selby and Mc-
Grew, reciting that Chapman had leased to Selby the hotel

known as the Chapman House, in the city of Pekin,for the term

of one year, with the privilege of keeping it two ; said Chapman
to furnish the hotel with all necessary furniture, beds, bedding,

cooking utensils, table ware, carpeting, and all necessary things

and articles for carrying on and conducting said hotel ; said fur-

nishing to be of good and sufficient quality, to be furnished by
Chapman by the first day of November, 1856, or as soon there-

after as Selby should need the articles, wdiich were all to be kept

in repair by Chapman ; for which Selby was to pay Chapman
$700 per year, payable monthly. That the names of the per-

sons attached after the names of the lessor and lessee, were to

be considered securities of Selby for the performance of the

contract.

The defendant then proved that said lease was assigned to

Wightman.
It was then admitted, on the part of the defendant, that the

sum of $54.27 was still unpaid upon said lease.

The plaintiff then rested his case.

The defendant then introduced an agreement between N, C.

Selby and John Wightman, assignee of Franklin B. Chapman,
of a certain lease, dated Nov. 1st, 1856, in which N. C. Selby

is lessee of the City Hotel, in the city of Pekin, in which it was
agreed that Selby should release Wightman from furnishing any
more furniture for keeping said hotel, and from keeping the same
in repair, and that Wightman, during the time that Wightman
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was assignee of Chapman, was to charge Selby only $500 per

year, and that the deduction was specially made in consideration

that Selby called on Wightmau for no more furniture or repairs

to the same.

To the introduction of said agreement in evidence the plaintiff

objected ; but the same was admitted by the court, to which the

plaintiff excepted.

The defendant then proved that it would be fifty per cent,

more profitable to the lessee to rent a hotel at $700 per year,

and have the same furnished and kept in repair at the expense

of the lessor, than to rent one at $500, and kept in repair at

his (the lessee's) expense; that any change made in that respect

would be a great injury to the lessee.

The foregoing was all the evidence in the cause.

The court rendered judgment for the defendant, to which the

plaintiff excepted.

James Roberts, for Plaintiff in Error.

A. L. Davison, for Defendant in Error.'5

Walker, J. This was a suit for rent, commenced before a

justice of the peace of Tazewell county, by Chapman, for the use

of Wightman, against Nathaniel C. Selby and James McGrew.
Service was had on McGrew, and Selby was not found ; and on

the trial, judgment was rendered against McGrew for $54.27,
and costs of suit. The case was taken to the County Court of

Tazewell county, where it was tried by the court, b}^ consent,

without the intervention of a jury, and a judgment rendered for

the defendant, to reverse which, this writ of error is brought.

The bill of exceptions shows that plaintiff, on the trial, intro-

duced an agreement between Chapman, of the first part, and
Selby, of the other part, dated the 1st day of November, 1856,
at the beginning, and on the 11th day of October, 1856, at the

conclusion, by v^^hich Chapman leased to Selby the hotel known
as the Chapman House, in the city of Pekin, for one year, with

the privilege of keeping it two years. Chapman bound himself

to furnish the hotel with all necessary furniture, beds, bedding,

cooking utensils, table ware, carpeting, and all necessary things

for carrying on and conducting said hotel, the furniture to be

of good and sufficient quality, and by the first day of November,
1856, or as soon thereafter as Selby might need said articles,

and to keep the premises and furniture in good repair. McGrew
agreed to pay Chapman, as rent, $700 a year, payable monthly.

This agreement was signed and sealed by Chapman, Selby, and
McGrew as security of Selby. The bill of exceptions further
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states, that the agreement " was proved, by defendant, to have

been duly assigned to John Wightman, for whose use this suit is

brought." Defendant admitted that there was due on the lease

the sum of $54, which was unpaid.

The- defendant introduced in evidence an agreement between

Selby and Wightman, dated January 28th, 1857, which recites

that Wightman is assignee of Chapman, of a certain lease, dated

November 1st, 1856, in which N. C. Selby is lessee of the City

Hotel, in the city of Pekin. By it the parties agree that Selby

shall release Wightman from furnishing any more furniture and
fixtures for keeping said hotel, and from repairing the same, and
Selby was to pay only $500 per year, monthly, as rent, from

date of lease ; and that the reduction of $200 a year was made
in consideration that Selby was to call for no more furniture, or

repairs of what was already furnished. This was objected to as

evidence, by plaintiff. The bill of exceptions states, that de-

fendant proved, by three witnesses, that it would be fifty per

cent, more profitable to the lessee to rent a hotel at $700 per

year, and have the same furnished and kept in repair at the ex-

pense of the lessor, than to rent one at $500, and the lessee to

furnish it and keep it in repair at his (lessee's) expense, and
that any change in that manner would be a great injury to the

lessee. This is all the evidence that is material in the decision

of this case. We deem it unnecessary to consider the ques-

tion whether there was such a change of contract between
Wightman and Selby as released McGrew, as security, from

liability.

It is undoubtedly true, that a surety for the performance of a

contract has the right to insist that it shall be strictly executed

as entered into by him, and any change in its provisions which
will prevent its enforcement in its original form, without his

assent, will release him from its performance. But to have that

effect in a court of law, the change must be such as will bind

the parties holding the legal interest. Such a change made by
a stranger to the contract, or by an agreement not binding, would
have no such effect.

The indorsement, by the lessor, of a lease to a stranger to the

contract undoubtedly passes an equitable title to the assignee,

but does not pass such a legal interest as can be recognized by,

and enforced in, his name, in a court of law. Such an instrument

is not assignable by the common law, and has not been made so

by our statute. Buckmasier v. Eddy, Breese R. 300 ; Busby v.

Jones, 1 Scam. R. 34. Any contract entered into between
Wightman and Selby, in regard to the terms of the lease, would
not change its legal effect, unless it was binding upon them ; and
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any thing short of such a change would not discharge McGrew,
as surety, from liability.

It is a principle of the common law, that a parole agreement
to vary a contract under seal cannot be plead in a court of law,

to defeat a recovery on the original undertaking. Chit. Con-

tracts, 90. And it is equally well settled by the English decis-

ions, and is supported by numerous American cases, that such a
variation will not discharge the security from liability. Ashbee
V. Fidcbick, 1 M. & W. R. 564 ; Davi/ v. Pendeg-rass, 5B.& Aid.

R. 187 ; liddison on Contracts, 444 ; Chitty on Cont. 423 ; Two-
penny v. Young. 3 B. & C. R. 210 ; Bell v. Banks, 3 Scott N.
R. 503 ; Bulteel v. Jerold, 8 Price R. 467, affirmed in the House
of Lords ; West v. Blakeway, 2 Man. & Gran. R. 729 ; Cordevant
V. Hunt, 8 Taunt. R. 596 ; Sock v. The United States, 3 Mason
R. 446 ; The United State.^ v. Hoivell, 4 Wash. C. C.R.; Sew-
ell V. Sparroiu, 16 Mass. R. 26 ; Crane v. Newell, 2 Pick. R.
614 ; Lewis v. Harbin, 5 B. Monroe R. 564 ; Tate v. Hymont,
7 Blackf. R. 240. It is true, that some of the courts in this

country, in their anxiety to relieve against hardship in particular

cases, have departed from this rule, and administered equitable

relief in courts of law. We think such a practice is not war-

ranted, and should not be adopted while the two courts exist as

separate jurisdictions ; and if tolerated must soon destroy all

distinction between them.

The agreement for a change of the terms of this lease was
not under seal, while the lease was ; and therefore, this agree-

ment did not have the effect to release defendant from his liabil-

ity on the lease. And the court below, consequently, erred in

rendering a judgment in his favor. The judgment of the County
Court is reversed, and the cause remanded.

Judgment reversed.

Alexander Allison, PlaintifT in Error, v. Eldrick Smith,

Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO PEORIA.

The indorser of a note, when sued, may show in defense, that if the maker had
been sued in some other court of competent jurisdiction, as before a justice of

the peace, instead of in the Circuit Court, that a judgment could sooner liave

been obtained against him and been satistiedj and thus relieve the indorser from
liability.

Smith sued Allison in assumpsit. The declaration contains

three counts.
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The 1st count alleges that on the 13th March, 1855, Pinegar

executed his note to Hoyt & Stephens for $200, payable at six

months. That Hoyt & Stephens assigned the note to Allison,

and Allison to Smith. That at the next term of the Circuit

Court of Peoria county, after the note became due. Smith sued
Pinegar. That suit was commenced Oct. 9, 1855, and was
prosecuted with due diligence to the final judgment. That
judgment was recovered November term, 1856, and execution

issued upon same, Dec. 20, 1856, and same day put into hands
of the sheriff", who levied same on certain lots in Frye's Addition

to Peoria, as the property of Pinegar, which were sold to plain

tiff in January for fifty cents. That Pinegar had no title to the

property nor interest in the same^ and that execution was re-

turned unsatisfied for balance, and that Pinegar had no property

subject to execution in said county, of which Allison had
notice.

The 2nd count avers that Pinegar executed note to Hoyt &
Stephens, March 13, 1855, at six months, for $200. That Hoyt
& Stephens assigned to Allison, and Allison to plaintiff. That
at time note fell due, and up to present time, Pinegar lived in

Fulton county, and had no property subject to execution or

attachment, and that a suit would have been wholly unavailing.

And that at the next term of the Circuit Court, on the 9th Oct.,

1855, Smith commenced suit, and that judgment was recovered

against Pinegar in due course of law, Nov, term, 1856. That
execution issued January 24, 1867, to sheriff of Fulton county,

and returned, no property found.

3, The common counts. Goods sold and allowed. Work
and labor. Money loaned. Money had and received. Money
had, etc.

A jury being impanneled. Smith offered in evidence a note

executed by Pinegar for $200, dated March 30, 1855, payable
to Hoyt & Stephens, l)y them indorsed to Allison, and by Allison

to plaintiff.

Plaintiff then offered summons and return in case of plaintiff

against Pinegar. Summons Oct. 9, 1855, directed to and served
by sheriff of Fulton county.

Smith then offered in evidence the declaration in the case of
Smith against Pinegar, which was filed Oct. 9, 1855, and also

the pleas filed in said cause, which were filed May 16, 1856,
and an amended plea filed May 27, 1856, and reiilication filed

at said term.

December 1, 1856, there was a judgment entered against
Pinegar.

The defendant then proposed and offered to prove that at the

time said note fell due, and for a year thereafter, the said Pinegar

8
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owned a drug store in Farmington, Fulton county. That said

Pinegar was in Peoria often, as frequently as once a week. That

he purchased goods for his store in Peoria, and that under the

act of A. D. 1855, the plaintiff might have sued Pinegar before

a justice and recovered judgment and collected the amount of

the note. But the court refused to permit the defendant to give

in evidence the fact proposed and offered by him, and excluded

the evidence from the jury.

H. Grove, for Plaintiff in Error.

E. G. Johnson and James Steain, for Defendant in Error.

Caton, C. J. This was an action against the indorser of a

promissory note, and to prove due diligence to collect the note

of the maker, the plaintiif proved the institution of an action

against the maker at the first term of the Peoria Circuit Court

after the note matured, and that such proceedings were thereupon

had, that over a year thereafter he obtained a judgment against

the maker, and then issued executions to the counties of Peoria

and Fulton, which were returned unsatisfied. The defendant

then offered to show that the maker had plenty of property

when the note matured, and that if the plaintiff had commenced
his action before a justice of the peace who had jurisdiction of

the amount and might have acquired jurisdiction of the person

of the maker by service in Peoria county, where he frequently

was on business, the amount could have been collected of the

maker before he became insolvent. This evidence the court

ruled out, and we think improperly. We have often held that

it is the duty of the holder to prosecute the maker with dili-

gence, in order to hold the indorser responsible under our

statute. If in truth the money could have been made by suing

in a justice's court and he neglected to sue there, but chose to

sue in the Circuit Court, where from a press of business or other

cause he could not obtain a judgment for a year or more, and
until the maker became insolvent, it cannot be said that he

prosecuted the maker with due diligence. Through his neglect

the money was not collected of the maker, and he must bear

the consequences of his own laches. The defendant should

have been permitted to show the jury that by prosecuting before

another court of competent jurisdiction, he might have obtained

an earlier judgment and secured its satisfaction. The evidence

should have been admitted.

The judgment is reversed and the cause remanded.

Judgment reversed.
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Isaac Cook, Appellant, v. Timothy J. Skelton, Appellee.

APPEAL FEOM COOK.

Where a statute has empowered a court of general jurisdiction to call special

terms, it will be presumed, if a record recites that the court convened in pursu-
ance of the order of the judge heretofore made of record, that a special term
was in conformity to law.

.The judge of a Circuit Court has power to adjourn its sessions for such short

periods as in his discretion may seem proper, and an adjournment over two days
is not error.

A default admits the material allegations of a declaration, and the only question
remaining for trial is the amount of damages. On this investigation the de-

fendant has not the right to give any evidence that will defeat the action, but
only such as tends to reduce the damages.

Placita of the June special term, 1857, begun and held on
the 22nd day of June, 1857, " in pursuance of the order of the

judge of said court, heretofore made and entered of record,"

but does not give the order, nor state when it was entered, nor
what, if any, notices were given.

Suit commenced by summons. Skelton, plaintiff, and Cook,
defendant. June 2, 1857. Returnable to the said special term.

Declaration in assumpsit.

First count states that on 5th December, 1855, James S.

Speed, George Steeley and H. G. McCulloch, and H. Y. Mc-
Culloch, made their note to the order of Cook for ^1,500, pay-

able, with interest, twelve months after the date thereof. Cook
indorsed the same to the plaintiff; that the note was presented

for payment 8th December, 1856, and payment refused ; that

the first term of court in said county was the January term of

Cook Common Pleas, held on first Wednesday of January, 1857;

that the plaintiff commenced suit on the 18th December, 1856,

on said note against the makers in said Common Pleas, and
issued summons to that term, which was served on Speed and
Steeley, and not served on McCulloch ; that sucli proceedings

were thereupon had that, on the 7th January, 1857, he recov-

ered judgment in that court on said note against Speed and
Steeley, impleaded with McCulloch, for ^1,597.50 and costs.

That on 9th January, 1857, he issued execution on that judg-

ment to the sheriff of Cook county, which being delivered to the

sheriff on 19th January, 1857, was by him, on the 7th April, •

1858, returned no property found. That at the time the note

became due, and ever since, McCulloch had left the State, by
reason whereof defendant was liable, and in consideration

thereof promised to pay, yet had not so paid.

Second count sets forth making of note by Speed, Steeley and

McCulloch, and its indorsement by Cook, as in first count ; that



108 OTTAWA,

Cook V. Skelton.

it had been presented and not paid ; that the January term of

the Cook Common Pleas was the first term of court in said

county after note fell due. That at that term the plaintiff re-

covered judgment against Speed and Steeley, impleaded with

McCulloch on said note, for ^1,597.50 and costs ; Speed and
Steeley then being residents of said county, and on 19th De-

cember, 1856, served with process in that suit. That McCul-
loch, when note fell due, and ever since, was a non-resident of

the State, and process could not be served on him. That said

judgment was wholly due and uucollectable, whereby defendant

became liable, and being liable, promised to pay said note.

Third count sets forth making note and its indorsement, as in

first count, and that the commencement of a suit against the

makers of the note, from the time same became due till com-

mencement of the present suit, would have been unavailing.

By means whereof plaintiff became liable, and being liable,

promised to pay said note.

Common counts for money loaned, money paid, had and re-

ceived, for goods sold, for labor done, and account stated.

June 24, 1857. Judgment by default; court assess damages
at ^1,639.39, and final judgment.

July 11, 1857. On motion of defendant, assessment of dam-
ages set aside.

. July 16, 1857. Damages assessed at $1,644.20, and final

judgment.
,

Bill of exceptions sets forth the first assessment and its vaca-

tion by the court ; and then, that on Monday, the 13th July,

court adjourned to Thursday the 16th July, and no court, in

fact, held on Tuesday and Wednesday. That on the 16th, again

come the parties. And thereupon the defendant asked leave of

the court to file a plea and affidavit of merits, which was denied

by the court, to which the defendant excepted.

And thereupon the defendant asked for a continuance of this

cause because there had been an assessment of damages this

term, which was refused by the court, and the defendant except-

ed, and thereupon the court, on motion of plaintiff, proceeds to

assess the damages of the plaintiff, to which the defendant

excepted, and the plaintiff introduced a note and its indorse-

ment, as follows :

$1,500. Chicago, December 0, 1855.

Three months after date we promise to pay to the order of Isaac Cook, fifteen

hitndred dollars, value received, with interest from date at rate of six per cent.

JAMES S. SPEED,
GEO. STEELEY,

Indorsed, H. G. McCULLOCH.
I. Cook.
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And also introduced F. H. Winston as a witness, who testi-

fied : I know Speed and Steeley, the other man I know by sight

;

on the 5th of December, 1856, I can't tell where Steeley lived,

except by hearsay. He never told me where he lived. I know
where his family was then by reputation. He is a wandering-

man, being a surveyor ; his family has always lived in Kentucky.

Steeley told me he traveled round ; he never told me w^here he

resided, but has told me he thought of bringing his family up
here. Have not seen Steeley here within the last eight months.

I know McCulloch by sight ; I don't recollect to have seen him
here within a year or two. Firm of Speed, Steeley & McCul-
loch was dissolved over a year ago. I consider and know Speed
insolvent. Steeley's condition I know by reputation. Don't

know anything of McCulloch.

I got judgment against Speed, and he made an assignment in

the Probate Court. I have an unsatisfied judgment against him.

The plaintiff' here introduced the record of a judgment in

the Common Pleas in favor of Timothy J. Skelton, against

James S. Speed, George Steeley, impleaded with Hezekiah G.

McCulloch, for $1,597.50 and costs.

And an execution from same court in favor of and against

same parties, to the sheriff" of Cook county, dated January 9,

1857 ; returned 7th April, 1857, no property found. Demand
made of Speed ; Steeley not found.

To which the defendant objected ; overruled, and exception

taken.

Other witnesses were called to show the insolvency of the

makers of the note.

The court thereupon assessed the plaintiff's damages at

$1,644.20.

The defendant moved the court to set aside the assessment of

damages on account of the insufficiency of the evidence, the

admission of improper evidence, and that the evidence did not

warrant the assessment of damages. Which motion is denied

by the court.

Errors assigned

:

1st. The term of the court at and during which final judg-

ment was rendered in said cause, does not appear by the record,

to have been held at the time and place, and convened in the

manner, and notice thereof given as required by law.

2nd. For that before the rendition of said judgment during

the said pretended special term, after the first day thereof, the

court adjourned over from the 13th July to the 16th July, with-

out any court being held on the 14th and 15th days of that

month.



110 OTTAWA,

Cook V. Skelton.

Srd. Because the court heard improper evidence in the

assessment of damages.

4th. Because the evidence before the court was insufficient

for the assessment of damages, and nothing but nominal damages
should have been thereunder assessed.

5th. Judgment should have been for the defendant.

W. T. BuEGESS, for Appellant.

Shujiway, Waite & TowNE, for Appellee.

Walker, J. This was an action of assumpsit brought by
Timothy J. Skelton against Isaac Cook, in the Cook Circuit

Court, on the assignment of a note by Cook to Skelton. The
declaration averred due diligence and a failure to collect the

money of the makers. The suit was brought to the June
special term, 1857 ; service was had, and appellant failing to

plead, judgment was rendered by default against him, at that

term, on the 24th day of the month, and the court assessed

damages at the sum of $1,639.39, and rendered judgment
against the appellant. On the 16th day of July, 1857, and dur-

ing said term, the court set aside the assessment and judgment,

and after hearing the evidence, the court assessed the appellee's

damages at the sum of $1,644.20, and rendered judgment on
the assessment against appellant. The record shows that the

court adjourned on the 13th day of July, 1857, till the 16th,

and no court was held on the 14th and 15th days of the month.

In this case the appellant insists that the record does not

show that the court was legally and regularly organized. The
record shows that the court convened on the 22nd day of June,
" in pursuance of the order of the judge of said court, hereto-

fore made and entered of record." From this order it does

appear that the term had been ordered by the judge of the

court, and as the statute has empowered him to call a special

term of court in vacation, and it being a court of general juris-

diction, the presumption would be, from this recital, that the law
had been complied with, or the judge would not have proceeded

to hold the term.

It was again urged that it was irregular for the court to ad-

journ over two days, and that all the proceedings had after it

again convened were void. The custom has always prevailed of

adjourning from day to day, and for such other short periods as

the convenience of the court and the dispatch of business might
require, and such power, so far as we are able to find, has never
been questioned. This power, of course, should be confined in

its exercise, to reasonable times, but must, to a great extent, be
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left to the sound discretion of the court, acting with a view to

the dispatch of business and the administration of justice. The
adjournment in this case was not error.

The default admitted every material allegation in the plain-

tiff's declaration, and left nothing but the assessment of damages
open to be determined. When the court came to assess the

damages, the only issue it could then try was, the amount of

damages in the case, and any other issue was not before the

court. The indebtedness was admitted, but the amount had to

be ascertained by the inquiry. The defendant, on the execution

of a writ of inquiry, has no right to give any evidence which
would defeat the action, but only such as tends to reduce the

damages. 1 Tidd's Prac. 523. All the evidence in this case

relating to the solvency of the makers of the note, their resi-

dence, and questions as to the use of diligence, was not properly

before the court below, and we of course decline its discussion

here. There appears to have been no mistake in the assess-

ment of the amount of damages in this case, and the assessment

appears to be regular in other respects. Upon a careful exami-
nation of the whole record, no error is perceived, and the judg-
ment of the Circuit Court should be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

John W. Waughop, Appellant, v. William H. Carter et al,

Appellees.

APPEAL FROM COOK.
^

On a submission to arbitrators of all the claims of A, and B, upon C, for work, etc.,

done on certain buildings, for C, some of which work C, said was defectively done,

it was competent for the arbitrators to admit A, and B, to prove that C, had not
furnished certain materials within the time agreed upon by him, and that there-

fore the defect occurred.

This cause came into the Cook County Circuit Court at the

October term, 1857, on a motion for a judgment on an award.

The agreement of submission was entered into by and between
the parties on the 24th September, 1857.

The claims of said Carter & Miller, upon said Waughop, for

payment of work and labor done, and materials furnished, in

and about the erection and completion of three dwelling houses

built in the years 1855 and '56, in the city of Chicago, and all

claims of said Waughop upon said Carter & Miller, for any

alleged defects in the said work upon said houses, were submit-
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ted to the arbitrament and award of Cornelius Price, Levi H.
"Waterliouse and Edward Burling ; that their award, when made,
should be entered of judgment in the said Circuit Court.

The submission was drawn in such a manner as to intend, by
agreement, to exclude all reference to the subject of the damage
claimed by the said Carter & Miller, for an alleged delay by said

Waughop to furnish the cut stone, which was to be left for future

adjustment.

The arbitrators found, as their award, that the said Waughop
should pay the said Carter & Miller the amount of their claims

in full, to wit, $742.79, in full satisfaction for contract and extra

work of houses, in full for all differences submitted.

The award was filed, together with a notice to said Waughop,
October 7th, 1857. At October term, 1857, a judgment was
rendered on said award, for the amount thereof, to wit, $742.79,
Manniere, Judge, presiding.

On the 31st of October, 1857, said Waughop, by leave, in his

own proper person, filed his motion to set aside the judgment,

for the following reasons assigned in said motion

:

1st. Because the award of the arbitrators, in this cause filed,

was made on matters and things not submitted to them, but ex-

pressly excluded from their consideration, by agreement, before

entering into the arbitration.

2d. Because matters and things that were excluded, by agree-

ment, from the arbitration, were, in bad faith, afterwards pre-

sented, and urged, and actually considered by the arbitrators in

making up the award upon which this judgment was rendered.

3d. Because evidence was received and considered by the

arbitrators, which had been excluded from the arbitration by
express agreement.

4th. Because the award is, in fact, a fraud upon the rights of

the defendant.

To support his motion, said Waughop produced affidavit of

two of said arbitrators. Price and Burling, which state, " That
in making the award in this case, they, as arbitrators, considered

that the delay in furnishing the cut stone, by said Waughop, was
the real cause of the damage to the work on the buildings of the

said Waughop ; that testimony to that effect was given by said

Carter & Miller, and objected to by said Waughop."
The affidavit of the said Waughop, in support of his motion,

states, that during the treaty of agreement, it was asserted that

the delay of the cut stone on the work, which was to be furnished

by said Waughop, would be set up as an excuse for the imper-

fections in the work, and that damage would be charged for the

delay, equal to damage for imperfections in the work.

Said Waughop claimed damage to more than equal a balance
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due on the contract, if work had been accepted by architects.

The work was not accepted, but certificate refused by architects

of said Waughop.
That said Waughop objected to going into the question of the

delay in the cut stone, and the submission was redrawn, for the

purpose of excluding all reference to the delay occasioned by
the non-delivery of the cut stone, and the damage consequent

thereupon, and expressly agreed that that subject should be

excluded.

That the work was proven, before the arbitrators, to hare
been imperfectly done, and the architects refused their certifi-

cate, which was required by the contract before payment could

be demanded.
That proof was given, before the arbitrators, that the damage

to one of the buildings was such as to impair its value some
^300, and that they were, all three, very much alike.

That witnesses on the subject of the delay in the cut stone

were introduced and sworn, and testified on the subject before

the said arbitrators.

That the said Carter & Miller still have their remedy for the

delay in the cut stone.

The contract for the cut stone was such that it would exclude

damage for delay in case of strike, or epidemic, and said Carter

& Miller were aware of the clause.

That said Waughop was not prepared with proof on the

subject of the cut stone, as that subject had been excluded.

That said Waughop set up no claim for delay in the completion

of the work under the contract, but for bad work.

That the defects in the work done for said Waughop were not

of a kind to be produced by any delay in the cut stone.

The effect of the proof before the arbitrators was such as to

make a case of damage for failure to deliver cut stone, in shape

of ofl-set.

Affidavit of said Wm. H. Carter states, that they had claim

for balance due for extra w^ork, and for damages for a failure to

deliver the cut stone used in the erection of said houses.

That said Waughop claimed damages for defective work in

said houses.

That all matters in controversy, in relation to said houses,

were submitted to decision of arbitrators, except the claim of

said Carter & Miller, for damages for said alleged failure to

deliver said cut stone.

That said Waughop claimed that said Carter & Miller had not

complied with the said contract, and were not entitled to recover

under it, and also claimed damages for defective work upon said

buildings.
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That said Carter & Miller offered evidence to show that the

said Waughop's failure to deliver the cut stone as he was required

by said contract to deliver the same, had prevented the said

Carter & Miller from complying with the said contract, and that

the said Waughop's delay in delivering said stone was the cause

of all the defects complained of by said Waughop, and for which
he sought to recover damage in said arbitration.

That upon the hearing, his attorney stated that said Carter &
Miller did not claim to recover, in said arbitration, any damages
for failure or delay of Waughop in delivering said stone ; but

that the evidence in relation to the delivery of said stone was
offered to show that the said Waughop prevented the said Carter

& Miller from complying with said contract, and that the delay

of said Waughop in furnishing said stone was the cause of the

defects for which said Waughop sought to recover damages.

That testimony was offered showing, or tending to show, that

by his delay in furnishing said cut stone, the said Waughop pre-

vented said Carter &, Miller from complying with said contract,

and made it impossible for said Carter & Miller to complete said

buildings before cold weather ; that it was impossible to avoid

the defects complained of by said Waughop, at that time, and
that but for the acts of the said Waughop, the said work would
have been done and completed before cold weather, and the

contract would have been kept in each and every particular.

That the amount awarded w^as less than the amount claimed

by them for Avork done under said contract, and for extra work
and interest, and that nothing was allowed for damages from
failure of said Waughop to deliver the said cut stone.

That he is informed, and believes, that the said arbitrators

considered the delay of said Waughop in furnishing said cut

stone only so far as it might legally furnish an excuse to said

Carter & Miller for non-compliance with the contract, and might

be good defense against the claims of said Waughop for damages,

by showing that the defects he complained of were the conse-

quences of his own acts.

On a hearing, the motion was overruled, and an exception

was taken, and appeal awarded.

John W. Waughop, pro se.

J. HowlAND Thompson, for Appellees.

Caton, C. J. The submission in this case is, of " all claims

of the said Carter & Miller upon said Waughop, for payment,

for work and labor done, and materials furnished in and about

the erection and completion of three dwelling houses built in the
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years 1855 and 1856, for said Waughop, and situated on Wash-
ington street, in said city of Chicago, and all claims of said

Waughop upon said Carter & Miller, for any alleged defects in

said work upon said houses." Under this submission, Waughop
proved that certain of the stone work was defectively done, for

which he claimed damages. To rebut this, the arbitrators ad-

mitted the other parties to prove that Waughop had neglected

to furnish the cut stone within the time he had agreed to do so,

and that by reason thereof, the work complained of could not

be done till it was so late that it was injured by the frost, which

was the defect complained of, and that so Waughop himself was
responsible for the defect. The objection to the award is, that

the arbitrators admitted evidence of the delay in furnishing the

cut stone. Admitting that by the submission the arbitrators had
no jurisdiction to consider the question whether Carter & Miller

were entitled to damages because Waughop had not furnished

the cut stone at the time agreed, it seems to us that it was clearly

competent to show that the defect in the work was attributable

to this neglect of Waughop. It was as competent to show that

Waughop was responsible for the defective work in this way, as

it would have been to show that he had ordered the work to be

done in a particular mode, and then complained that it was not

well done ; or as to have shown that the defect was in conse-

quence of the bad quality of the material furnished by him.

For the purpose of answering the claim for damages for defect-

ive work, it was perfectly competent for the arbitrators to hear

any competent proof to show that the fault complained of was
justly attributable to Waughop himself. If the evidence was
competent for one purpose and not for another, it was properly

admitted, and the presumption is, that it was only considered

for the legitimate purpose for which it was admissible. There
is nothing upon the face of the award, nor is there any thing in

the case, showing that the arbitrators allowed any thing for

damages in consequence of the delay in delivering the cut stone.

The judgment must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

George H. Hosley, Plaintiff in Error, v. Francis Brooks
et ux., Defendants in Error.

error to cook.

In an action for slander, the pecuniary circumstances of the slanderer may be given

to the jury.
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It is no mitigation of the offense to show that the person slandered was quar-

relsome.

In a suit for slander, the jury may consider the pecuniary circumstances of the

defendant; also that defendant obtruded himself into the house of the plaintiff

and offered undue familiarities to his wife, when the offensive words were uttered,

in fixing their damages, which may be by way of punishment, as well as for

compensation.
It is not a defense to such an action, to show that the wife of plaintiff used the

first harsh words, and that the slanderous words resulted from such previous

harsh words.

The time of the speaking of the words as laid in the declaration is not material.

Instructions, unless based upon evidence, should not be given.

The law will imply malice in the uttering of slanderous words, and heat of passion

does not rebut the malice thus implied.

This was an action on the case for slander. The declaration

is in tliree counts.

The first count states that in a colloquium on the 17th of

October, 1856, with the plaintiff, in the hearing of divers good
and worthy citizens, the plaintiff falsely and maliciously spoke

and published these several false, malicious, scandalous and
defamatory words, of and concerning the said Eunice Brooks,

that is to say, " you," meaning the said Eunice Brooks, " are a

damned whore, and I," meaning the said plaintiff, " can prove

it," meaning that he, the said plaintiff, could prove that she, the

said Eunice, was a whore.
The second count states the words to be— " you," meaning

the said Eunice Brooks, " are a God damned bitch of a whore."
The third count states the words to ])e— " you," meaning the

said Eunice Brooks, " are a whore." Damages, $2,500.
Plea, not guilty.

A trial was had before a jury, in the Circuit Court of Cook
county, at the April term, A. D, 1857, Manniere, Judge, pre-

siding, and a verdict of guilty rendered, with $750 damages and
costs.

At the trial the plaintiffs below produced Frederick Guernsey^

who testified that he knew tlie parties. He was at defendants'

house in October, when the plaintiff, Hosley, called there

;

Hosley knocked at the door, and Mrs. Brooks went and opened
it ; Hosley came in, put his arms around her neck and kissed

her ; she (Mrs. Brooks,) then called him a mean dirty puppy,

and went into the back part of the house, which was used as a

kitchen, to tell Mr. Brooks ; Hosley called her all manner of

names— a God damned bitch of a whore ; she told him to leave

the house ; he replied that the house was his own, and he should

not leave till he got ready ; he had a right to say and do what
he pleased in his own house ; he kicked her, and drew his cane

to strike her ; Brooks stepped in between them ; Hosley called

her a damned rip of a whore ; said he could prove it ; said,
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too, he would kill her; his precise words were—"You are a

damned bitch of a whore, and I can prove it ;" he repeated the

language, or language to that effect, several times.

This testimony was corroborated by several witnesses.

W. K. McAllister and Brown & Runyon, for Plaintiff in

Error.

Rich & Steele, for Defendants in Error.

Caton, C. J. This was an action on the case for slander,

and the evidence not only proves the words spoken as alleged,

but shows the slander to have been of a most unprovoked and
malicious character, and accompanied with threats of personal

violence, and even an assault, by an attempt to kick Mrs. Brooks.

We are of opinion that the defendant below was dealt with

most leniently by the jury. Nor do we find the least semblance

of an error in the record. It is first assigned for error that the

court permitted evidence to go to the jury of the pecuniary cir-

cumstances of the slanderer. It is sufficient to say that this

has been repeatedly decided by this court to be proper.

The defendant below also proposed to prove that Mrs. Brooks,

the person slandered, was a quarrelsome woman, for the pur-

pose of reducing the damages. This the court properly ruled

out. We are not of the opinion that if she was quarrelsome,

that that affected her general character for chastity, or would
excuse, or in the least palliate a groundless charge against her

of incontinence, or would make such a charge any the less in-

jurious to her.

The following instruction given for the plaintiffs below was
excepted to :

" If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the

defendant is guilty of uttering the slanderous words charged in

the declaration, they may take into consideration the pecuniary

circumstances of defendant, and his position and influence in

society, in estimating the amount of damages ; and if they shall

also find, from the evidence, that the defendant obtruded him-

self into plaintiff's house, and there offered undue familiarities

to Eunice, his wife, at the time and on the occasion of the ut-

tering of the words in question, these circumstances may also be

taken into consideration in fixing damages, and the jury in their

discretion may give damages by way of punishment to the de-

fendant, proportioned to the circumstances in evidence, as well

as for compensation."

It is suf&cient to say that every member of this instruction is

strictly proper.
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The following instructions were asked for the defendant below
and refused, and exceptions taken :

" If the jury should believe, from the evidence, that the de-

fendant, Hosley, went to the house of the plaintiff, Brooks, for

the purpose of collecting money, and a dispute arose between
the parties while there, and that Eunice Brooks was the aggres-

sor, and used the first harsh expressions, and that the words
spoken by Hosley were a retort to such expressions, they will

find for the defendant,
" If the jury should believe, from the evidence, that there

was no malice at the time the words were spoken by the defend-

ant, but that they were spoken in the excitement consequent

from the hard words that had previously passed between them,

they will find for the defendant.
" If the jury should find, from the evidence, that the words

spoken by the defendant were at another and different time

than those alleged in tlie declaration, they will find for the

defendant.
" If the jury should believe, from the evidence, that there is

a conspiracy between the plaintiffs in this suit, or between them
and others, to extort money from the defendant, they will take

that into consideration in rendering their verdict."

In this there was no error. The first quoted assumes that if

Mrs. Brooks used the first harsh expressions towards Hosley,

that justified him in falsely accusing her of the most degrading

and revolting offense of which a female can be guilty. Such is

not the law. And the second instruction quoted contains sub-

stantially the same proposition, and was refused with equal

propriety. The third supposes that the time of the speaking

the words laid in the declaration was material, which is not tlie

case. The fourth v.'as properly refused, because there was not

the least particle of evidence tending to show a conspiracy be-

tween the plaintiffs or anybody else, to extort money from the

defendant. As well might two payees of a promissory note be

accused of a conspiracy to extort money from a maker, when
they bring an action upon it to recover the amount due, as to

call this a conspiracy.

To the following instructions asked by the defendant below,

the words included in brackets were added and then given, and
exceptions taken

:

" If the jury should find, from the evidence, that the language

used by the defendant, Hosley, to the plaintiff, Eunice Brooks,

was spoken in jest, and not with malice, their verdict will be

for the defendant, [if they also find that the language was so

received and understood by the persons present at the time.]

" If the jury shall believe, from the evidence, that the words
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were spoken in heat and passion, [and without malice,] then

their verdict will be for the defendant, [if they also iind that

the words were also so understood and regarded at the time.]

" If the jury should find, from the evidence, that Eunice

Brooks, one of the plaintiffs in this suit, was a quarrelsome

person, [and so exhibited herself at the time,] and that the

language alleged and proved to have been used by the defendant

to her, was caused by a quarrel between them, they will take

that fact into consideration in considering the amount of dam-
ages which the plaintiffs are entitled to recover.

" The question of the defendant's malice is a question of fact

for the jury upon consideration of all the facts and conversa-

tions, and that if they believe the words spoken by the defend-

ant to the plaintiff, Eunice Brooks, were spoken in heat and
passion, [without malice,] and without intention to accuse her

of the actual crime which the words import, [and that it was so

understood by the parties present at the time,] they will find for

the defendant."

The first should have been refused altogether, for that was a

sort of jesting, which the law under no circumstances can

tolerate. There was no pretense of jesting about it, at the time

the words were spoken. Even if his gross familiarities with

Mrs. Brooks, which she indignantly repelled, were intended by
him as a jest, that jesting was entirely over before the slander

was uttered. At that time he was under the influence of a

more serious mood.
The second, also, should have been refused altogether. Our

law implies malice from the speaking of the words, and the

heat of the aggressor's passions had no tendency to rebut the

malice thus implied.

The qualification to the fourth instruction was proper. No
matter how quarrelsome Mrs. Brooks' general disposition might
have been, unless that disposition was exhibited on that occa-

sion, it could afford no sort of excuse for the slander. Because
she may have been a virago at other times, the defendant had
no right to falsely asperse her character for chastity.

What has been already said in reference to the pecuniary

instructions is sufficient to show why we hold the qualification

given to the last instruction proper.

The judgment of the Circuit Court must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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Emily Chapman, Appellant, v. Timothy Wright, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM COOK COUNTY" COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

In cases of forfeiture of a lease for non-payment of rent, there must be a demand
at the time fixed, or the forfeiture will not accrue.

A party proceeding for a penalty must show that he is entitled to recover, by a

strict compliance, on his part, with all the requirements of law.

It is error to try a cause in which a demurrer remains undisposed of.

In an action of debt the judgment should not be in damages.

This was an action of debt commenced by the appellee against

the appellant.

Debt demanded, $176.30. Ad damnum, $200.
The declaration contained six counts. The first was a special

count upon a lease therein named, for rent alleged to be due by
defendant below to plaintiff below, and also for the double

value of the premises in said lease named, from 1st day of Sep-

tember, A. D. 1855, to date of suit, and sets forth the execution

of the lease on the 6th day of July, A. D. 1854, by the parties

to this suit, whereby the plaintift" below leased to the defendant

below, lot " C," in Wright's subdivision of lots five and six, in

block ninety-three. School Section Addition to Chicago, the de-

fendant agreeing to pay a yearly rent of $50, and all taxes and
assessments against said premises during the existence of the

lease. This count further states that the defendant below was
seized and possessed of said premises until the 1st day of Sep-

tember, A. D. 1855, when $59 of the rent aforesaid became due
and payable, and was still unpaid ; that on the 1st day of Sep-

tember, 1855, the plaintiff below re-entered and took possession

of said premises, and brought his action of unlawful detainer on
the 10th day of September, 1855, against the defendant below,

before J. A. Hoisington, a justice of the peace, within and for

said county of Cook, and recovered, judgment before said jus-

tice, Oct. 6th, 1855 ; that the yearly value of said premises was
$75, and concluded with demanding $177.86.
The second count is for $155.34, rent on said premises from

July 6th, 1854, to the termination of the lease.

The third count is for $59.44, as rent from July 6th, 1854,
to August 1st, 1855.

The fourth count is a common count, as follows :
" And

whereas, also, the said defendant afterwards, to wit, on the first

day of May, A. D. 1856, at the county aforesaid, was indebted

to the said plaintiff in the sum of $200, for money then and
there paid by the said plaintiff, to and for the use of the said

defendant, at her request."
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The fifth and sixth counts are similarly framed with the fourth

count, and are for money had and received, and amount due on
account stated.

The declaration concludes as follows :
" Yet the defendant

hath not paid the same or any part thereof, to the plaintiff 's

damage of $200, etc."

To the declaration was annexed a bill of particulars.

The defendant below pleaded non assumpsit, and subsequently

a plea in abatement to the first, fourth, fifth and last counts of the

declaration, setting forth that the action of unlawful detainer

mentioned in the declaration, was still pending and undeter-

mined, on appeal from the judgment rendered by the justice, in

the Cook County Court of Common Pleas. The plaintiff below
filed his replication to the plea in abatement, to the effect that

said action of unlawful detainer ought not to be pending, and
ought to be dismissed, because the appeal had not been entered

in the Cook County Court of Common Pleas within the time

required by law.

To this replication the defendant below filed a demurrer.

The cause came on for trial on the 5th day of June, A. D.

1857, and was submitted to the court without the intervention

of a jury.

The plaintiff below introduced in evidence the lease referred

to in his declaration, which corresponded to the allegations

therein, and also offered in evidence an order of the Common
Council of Chicago for the construction of certain sidewalks,

and among others for a walk along the premises in question,

and called H. Kreisman, who testified that he was city clerk

of Chicago, and that that order was the original one on file in

his office.

The proper publication of the order was admitted.

D. >S. Haivley then testified, on behalf of the plaintiff, that

that he was deputy street commissioner for the town of South
Chicago in 1855 ; that the sidewalks in question were built

partly by the property owners, partly by the tenants, and partly

by the city ; that the cost of building said sidewalks was $1
per foot, and that the other expenses made the cost $1.10 per

foot.

L. S. Bo7id, a witness for plaintiff, testified that the plaintiff

divided the expenses for building the sidewalk in question

equally upon four lots, one of which was occupied by the de-

fendant ; that he had presented a bill, in words and figures

following, to wit

:
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Mrs. Emily Chapman,
To Timothy Weight, Dr.

1855, May 1, To rent on lease of lot " C," of 5 and 6, in block 99, as

per account rendered $121 00

Interest 44

$121 44

May 22, By cash paid on account rendered 75 00

$46 44

1855, Aug. 1, To interest 51

" To one quarter's rent 12 50

" 30, To building sidewalk (assessment,) 26 75

to one Atkins, who acknowledged the same to be correct ; that

Atkins was at that time agent of the defendant ; that Atkins

paid the plaintiff $75 on this bill, and that nothing had been
paid on the lease introduced in evidence ; that there was a

former lease of the premises in question from the plaintiff to

some other person than the defendant, but to whom the witness

did not know, and that part of the plaintiff's claim was for rent

due on that lease ; that the plaintiff had told him (the witness)

that he (the plaintiff) had destroyed that lease.

On cross-examination the witness testified, that he knew
nothing personally of the payment of the $75, and had never

had any dealings with Atkins except in relation to this matter.

The plaintiff then offered in evidence certain papers of a suit

of unlawful detainer between the parties to this suit, before a

justice of the peace for the county of Cook, to the introduction

of which the defendant objected, but the court overruled the

objection, and the defendant duly excepted.

The papers were then introduced in evidence and were a

transcript of the record of the justice in said suit, and the ap-

peal bond filed by the defendant therein, from which it appeared
that judgment was rendered against the defendant by said

justice, and that the defendant had appealed therefrom. It also

appeared that said suit was still pending, and undetermined, in

the Cook County Court of Common Pleas.

The plaintifl' below here rested his case, and the defendant

put in evidence a check signed by the defendant, and payable to

T. Wright or bearer, for $75, and indorsed by the defendant

and " Cowper & Co."

The defendant here rested her case.

The plaintiff then offered to introduce further testimony, to

which the defendant objected, but the court overruled the objec-

tion, and the defendant excepted.



APRIL TERM, 1858. 123

Chapman v. Wright.

The plaintiff then introduced a notice from the plaintiff to

the defendant, declaring the term for which the lease was granted
forfeited, and demanding possession of the same, and called A.
S. Seaton, who testified that he served a notice (of which the

notice introduced was a copy,) upon the defendant, on the first

day of September, A. D. 1855.

The defendant below, by her counsel, then moved that the

testimony of the witness, Seaton, be excluded ; the defendant

also moved to exclude the testimony of L, S. Bond, in so far as

related to the presentation of an account to Atkins ; the de-

fendant also moved to exclude all the testimony introduced on
behalf of the plaintiff below, under the common counts in

plaintiff" 's declaration, to sustain plaintiff's claim for double

value ; the defendant also moved to exclude all the testimony

admitted on behalf of the plaintiff under the common counts of

his declaration ; the defendant also moved the court to give

judgment for the plaintiff, if at all, only for such amount as was
due according to the tenor of the lease introduced in evidence

;

but the court overruled the several motions of the defendant,

to which several rulings of the court the defendant then and
there excepted.

This was all the evidence in the case, and the court found the

issue for the plaintiff below, and assessed damages at |129.25,
said judgment being in part for double value of said premises,

for nine months from September 1st, A. D. 1855.

The defendant below thereupon entered a motion for a new
trial, which was overruled, and thereupon took an appeal.

The errors assigned and relied on by the appellant are as

follows :

1st. That the court erred in giving judgment in any amount
for double value.

2nd. That the court erred in admitting proof of demand and
notice, and in admitting any evidence to establish the plaintiff''s

claim to double value under the common counts of the declara-

tion of the plaintiff below.

3rd. That the court erred in allowing the plaintiff below to

introduce evidence after he had rested his case.

4th. That the court erred in giving judgment for any rent

due on a prior lease, there being evidence that there was such a
lease, but such lease not having been produced, and no proof

being introduced of its loss, or if so, of its contents.

5th. That the court erred in admitting the papers of the suit

of unlawful detainer pending in this court on an appeal from

the justice, as evidence.

6th. That the court erred in giving judgment for the plain-
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tiff below, for any part of the sum claimed by Mm under the

common counts of his declaration.

7th. That the court erred in not confining the plaintiff be-

low to his bill of particulars, and in admitting any evidence as

to indebtedness on the part of the defendant below, prior to the

lease filed and declared upon in this cause by such plaintiff below,

and referred to by him in his bill of particulars.

8th. That the court erred in giving judgment in any part for

any indebtedness on the part of the defendant below prior to

the execution of the lease on file in this cause, on the evidence

that one Atkins had admitted such indebtedness to exist, there

being no proof that said Atkins was the agent of said defendant

below, or that such admission of Atkins was in any manner by
authority of, or binding upon, said defendant below.

9tli. That the court erred in giving judgment in any part for

double value of said premises for nine months from the first day
of September, A. D. 1855, to the first day of June, A. D. 1856
—the lease introduced in evidence by plaintiff below having

expired on the first day of May, A. D. 1856, and this suit having

been brought on the 21st day of May of the same year.

10th. That the court erred in giving judgment before the

disposition of the demurrer filed by said defendant below to the

replication of said plaintiff below to said defendant's special

plea.

11th. That the court erred in giving judgment in any part

for the assessment claimed by the plaintiff below to be due to

him upon the premises occupied by said defendant.

12th. That the court erred in giving judgment in any part

for double value, there being no proof what the value of the

premises was.

13th. That the court erred in gi-^ng judgment for damages
alone, the action being in debt.

14th. That the court erred in overruling the motion for a

new trial.

15th. That the court erred in entering judgment for the

plaintiff below.

And the appellee joins in the above errors.

Dow & Fuller, for Appellant.

Bond & Seaton, for Appellee.

Walker, J. This was an action of debt, commenced by
appellee against appellant, in the Cook County Court of Com-
mon Pleas. The declaration contains six counts. The first on
a lease, for rent due, and double value of the premises from the
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1st day of September, 1855, to the 20tli May, 1856, when suit

was brought ; and avers that appellee leased to appellant cer-

tain lots, for which appellant agreed to pay the yearly rent of

$50, and all taxes and assessments on the same during the con-

tinuance of the lease, and contained a clause of forfeiture of

the lease on non-payment on the day ; that appellant occupied

the premises until the 1st day of September, 1855, at which
time $59 of rent was due and unpaid ; that appellee on that

day entered and took possession, and brought his action of un-

lawful detainer on the 10th day of September, before a justice

of the peace, and recovered a judgment on the 6th day of Oc-

tober, 1855 ; that the yearly value is $75, and concluded with

demanding $177.86. The second count was for $155.34, rent

on the premises from July 6th, 1854, to the termination of the

lease. The third count is for $59.44, as rent from July 6th,

1854, to August 1st, 1855. The remaining counts are the com-
mon counts for money paid, for money had and received, and
for an account stated. The defendant pleaded non-assumpsit, and
subsequently a plea to the 1st, 4th, 5th, and last counts, that

the action of unlawful detainer was still pending and undeter-

mined, on appeal from the judgment rendered by the justice of

the*peace in the Cook County Court of Common Pleas. To this

plea, appellee replied that the action of unlawful detainer ought

to be dismissed, because the appeal was not entered into in

proper time. To this replication appellant filed a demurrer,
which remains undisposed of by the court. The parties went to

trial, and the cause was heard by the court without the interven-

tion of a jury, by consent. After hearing the evidence, the

court rendered a judgment in favor of the appellee, for ^129.25,
damages ; and the cause is brought to this court by appeal.

The first count proceeds for the recovery of double the yearly

value, for a holding over after the expiration of the term. The
lease contains a clause " that if the said rent, or any part there-

of, be not paid on the day of payment, or if default be made by
said lessee in any of the conditions of said lease, that then and
in that case the said lessor might, at his election, declare said

term ended, and re-enter and take possession of said premises."
The doctrine seems to be well settled, that in cases of forfeit-

ure of a lease for non-payment of the rent, there must be a
demand, and generally, where a penalty as well as a re-entry is

given for the non-performance of a condition, the forfeiture can-

not be taken advantage of, without a demand at the time fixed.

1 "Wood's Convey. 11 ; Sterne's Real Act. 27 ; Hob. 82.

This declaration fails to aver any such demand, and was, for

the want of such an averment, insufficient to entitle the ajjpellee

to recover for double the yearly value.
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The 2ncl section of the 60th chap. R. S. 1845, giving the

right to recover double the yearly value of the lands held after

the expiration of the term, requires that demand shall be made
and notice in writing given, for the possession by the landlord

or other person entitled to the possession, before such a recovery

can be had. This action is, in its nature, highly penal, and in

all such cases, the party proceeding for the penalty must, by his

pleadings, show that he is entitled to recover. Courts will not

extend acts imposing penalties beyond the cases provided for by
the legislature, and will require the party to bring himself

strictly within its provisions. The statute has imposed, as a

condition, that a demand must be made and written notice given

for the possession before the penalty can be recovered, and the

appellee has failed to show by averment that he has complied

with this provision, and the first count of the declaration is, in

this respect, fatally defective. And a recovery under it cannot

be sustained, as there is no right of recovery of this penalty

shown. And this judgment should be arrested for that cause.

It has been repeatedly held by this court, and is the settled

law, that it is error to try a cause while a demurrer remains in

the record undisposed of in some appropriate manner. Moore
V. Little, 11 111. R. 549.

This court has held, uniformly, that it is error, in an original

action of debt in the Circuit Court, to render judgment in dam-
ages. Hoivell V. Barrett, 3 Gil. R. 433 ; O' Connor v. Mullen,

11 III. R. 57. The judgment was, in that respect, erroneous.

For these various errors, the judgment of the court below
must be reversed and the cause remanded.

Judgment reversed. ,

Charles L. AriMsby, Appellant, v. The Supervisors of

Warren County, Appellees.

APPEAL FROM WARREN.

The sheriff is not compelled to keep an office open at the county seat. He is per-

mitted to occupy a room in the court house, if he chooses to do so. He is not
obliged to provide for the accommodation of the public, and the county is not
liable to pay for his lights, fuel, etc.

This was an action of assumpsit, commenced by the plaintifi",

to recover for wood, coal, candles, blanks and stationery, pro-

vided by the plaintiff, for the use of his office, while acting as

sheriif of Warren countv, from December, 1852, to December,
1854.
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The declaration contains, also, an indebitatus count, for

money paid, laid out and expended by the plaintiff, for the use

of the defendants, in providing said articles for the use of his

office, while acting as sheriff of said county as aforesaid.

The defendants pleaded the general issue, and the cause was
tried by Thompson, Judge, and a jury, at the September term,

1857, of the Warren Circuit Court.

The plaintiff, in support of the issues on his part, proved that

from December, 185'2, to December, 1854, he was sheriff of

Warren county, and acted as such.

That during that period, he kept an office in the court house

of said county, and was also collector of said county.

That he kept the tax books in his office, and by himself, or

deputy, was generally in the office.

That during the time he was sheriff and collector, he furnished

fuel, candles, coal, blanks and stationery, for the use of his

office.

That the room occupied by plaintiff was also occupied by
James G. Madden, as a law office.

That Madden furnished one-half of the fuel, each one buying

one load alternately.

That said Madden furnished his own lights.

It was also proven by the plaintifi", that at each term of the

board of supervisors, the plaintiff presented his bill for services

rendered, but not including candles, wood, coal, blanks and sta-

tionery ; and at one time stated to the board in session, that

other counties provided the sheriff with such articles, and he
thought they ought to allow them to plaintiff ; but the court was
of a different opinion, and no formal bill was presented.

The plaintiff kept no account of the articles furnished, neither

did Madden of the articles furnished for the office by him ; and
that plaintiff had no certain means of ascertaining the precise

amount furnished, but proved that it would take 200 to 300
bushels of coal, at from 121- to 16 cents per bushel, each winter;

from $10 to $15 per year for lights ; about $25 per year for

blanks ; from $3 to $4 per year for ink, paper and pens. He
furnished his own lights, at a cost of $15 or $16.

This was all the evidence in the case.

The plaintiff then asked the court to instruct the jury as

follows

:

1. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the plaintiff

acted in the capacity of sheriff of Warren county, from Decem-
ber, 1852, to December, 1854, and furnished the office, during

that time, with lights, fuel and stationery, and that the County
Court or board of supervisors refused to pay for the same, or
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refused the money so expended by the sheriff for lights, fuel and
stationery for the office of sheriff, then the plaintiff is entitled to

recover the amount so expended, in this suit.

2. It is the duty of the county to furnish lights and fuel for

the use of the office of the sheriff' of the county.

3. It is the duty of the county to furnish lights, fuel and
stationery for the use of the office of the sheriff of the county.

The court refused to give said instructions, to which the

plaintiff excepted.

The court then gave the following instructions, asked for by
the defendant, to which the plaintiff excepted

:

1. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the plaintiff

was sheriff of the county of Warren, and occupied a room in

the court house during his term of office, and that the fuel and
lights in the plaintiff's account were furnished by him for his

own office, then they will find for the defendants.

2. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the plaintiff,

while he was sheriff, furnished himself with printed blanks for

his own use as an officer, and that these are the blanks sued for,

then they cannot find for the plaintiff the value of such printed

blanks.

3. The county is not by law required to furnish the sheriff

of the county, fuel, lights and printed blanks, for the use of him-

self, in any office occupied by him as an officer, but these are to

be furnished by the sheriff at his own expense.

4. The jury must believe, from the evidence, that there was
an express promise by the defendants to pay the plaintiff for the

articles claimed by him, or that they were furnished by the plain-

tiff for the use of the county, under such circumstances that the

law will imply a promise to pay for the same.

5. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the fuel, liglits

and blanks were used by the plaintiff in his own office, as sheriff

of the county ; that there was no arrangement made at the time,

or since, with the county, for the payment of the price thereof;

that the plaintiff kept no account thereof against the county
;

that no claim was made for payment until long after his term of

office expired, and that the plaintiff used the articles for his own
convenience, and that he voluntarily, without request of the

county, donated these articles for the use to which they were
applied, then the law does not imply any promise to pay.

The jury found a verdict for the defendants, and plaintiff" moved
for a new trial.

Because the court gave improper instructions to the jury on

the part of defendant, and refused proper instructions asked by

the plaintiff.

Because the verdict is contrary to law and evidence.
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Which motion was overruled, and the court rendered judg-

ment against the plaintiff for costs, and plaintiff appealed, and
now assigns the following errors :

The court erred in refusing to give proper instructions asked

for by plaintiff.

The court erred in giving improper instructions asked for by
the defendant.

It was contrary to law and evidence.

The court erred in overruling the motion for a new trial, and
rendering judgment for defendant.

Wead & Williamson, for Appellant.

GouDY & JuDD, for Appellees. '

Caton, J. The statute does not compel the sheriff to keep
an office open at the county seat, as it does the clerk. It per-

mits him to occupy a room in the court house, but leaves it op-

tional with him whether he will do so. He is under no obligation

to provide for the public accommodation, as is the clerk, and we
do not find any warrant in the statute for compelling the county
to pay for his lights and fuel. Tlie judgment of the Circuit

Court must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Jonathan Booth, Appellant, v. John Cook, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM MARSHALL.

A party may not state in general terms that it is not in his power to produce a
deed ; but he must pive such detailed circumstances, in relation to the search for

it, and the probabilities of its loss, as will convince the judgment of the court
of its actual loss, or of the inability of tlie party to produce it.

An acknowledgment of a deed, by a notary public of another State, witliout a seal,

or certificate of his appointment, will be altogether invalid.

This was an action of ejectment, by the plaintiff, Booth,
against the defendant. Cook, brought to recover the east half of

the north-west quarter of section twenty-six, in township thirty

north, range two west of the third principal meridian, in Mar-
shall county.

For the purpose of sustaining his title, and as a necessary

link in the chain, the plaintiff offered, in evidence, a certified

copy of a deed from Joseph L. James and wife, John H. Haines
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and wife, and Hezekiah Lyon, to Cephas Mills, dated January
3rd, 1837.

This deed was objected to, for the reason that no sufficient

excuse had been shown for the non-production of the original.

The plaintiff, to obviate the objection, read the following

affidavit

:

" Jonathan Booth, the plaintiff above named, after being duly

sworn, on oath, saith, that the original deed of conveyance, made
by Joseph L. James and Amelia James, his wife, and John H.
Haines and Catherine Haines, his wife, and Hezekiah Lyon, to

Cephas Mills, dated on the third day of January, A. D. 1837,
for the following described land, to wit : the east half of the

north-west quarter of section twenty-six, in township thirty

north, of range two west of the third principal meridian, in the

county of Marshall and State of Illinois, is not in his power,
possession or control ; that he, affiant, has never, to his best

knowledge or belief, seen said deed, and has never had posses-

sion thereof; and that he, affiant, has no knowledge of the

whereabouts of the same."

The court overruled the objection to the deed, and admitted

the same in evidence, and the defendant's counsel excepted.

The plaintiff then offered, in evidence to sustain his title, a

deed from Cephas Mills and wife to Joseph P. Martin, dated

March 29th, 1841, which purported to have been acknowledged
before Cyrus Dana, " a notary public of Berrian county, Michi-

gan," winch was objected to, upon the ground that it did not

appear to have been executed, acknowledged and certified

under any official seal. The objection was overruled and the

deed admitted. The defendant excepted.

The admission of these two deeds in evidence is the only

error complained of in the record.

This cause was heard before Ballou, Judge, and a jury, at

October term, 1857, of the Marshall Circuit Court.

N. H. Purple, for Appellant.

Wead & Richmond, for Appellee.

Caton, C. J. This was an action of ejectment, by the

plaintiff. Booth, against the defendant. Cook, brought to recover

the east half of the north-west quarter of section twenty-six, in

township thirty north, range two west of the third principal

meridian.

For the purpose of sustaining his title, and as a necessary

link in the chain, the plaintiff offered, in evidence, a certified

copy of a deed from Joseph L. James and wife, John H. Haines



APEIL TERM, 1858. 131

Booth V. Cook.

and wife, and Hezekiah Lyon, to Cephas Mills, dated January

3rd, 1837.

This deed was objected to, for the reason that no sufl&cient

excuse had been shown for the non-production of the original.

The plaintiff, to obviate the objection, read the following

affidavit :

" Jonathan Booth, the plaintiff above named, after being duly

sworn, on oath, saith, that the original deed of conveyance, made
by Joseph L. James and Amelia James, his wife, and John H.
Haines and Catharine Haines, his wife, and Hezekiah Lyon, to

Cephas Mills, dated on the third day of January, A. D. 1837,

for the following described land, to wit: the east half of the

north-west quarter of section twenty-six, in township thirty

north, of range two west of the third principal meridian, in the

county of Marshall and State of Illinois, is not in his power,
possession or control ; that he, affiant, has never, to his best

knowledge or belief, seen said deed, and has never had posses-

sion thereof; and that he, affiant, has no knowledge of the

whereabouts of the same."

The court overruled the objection, and admitted the copy in

evidence, to which an exception was taken.

"We think the affidavit was insufficient, and that the objection

should have been sustained. The affidavit states, in general

terms, that the original deed was not in the affiant's power,
possession or control, without showing that he had ever made
any inquiry for it, or any effort to produce the original. It is

not sufficient to state in general terms that it is not in his power
to produce the deed, but he must state circumstances to the

court, from which the court can itself see it is out of his power
to produce the original. Ir is for the court, and not for the

party, to draw the conclusion whether or not it is in his power
to produce the deed ; and it is the duty of the party to state

the facts and circumstances, from which the court may be

enabled to draw a correct conclusion on the subject. He must
show the court that he has, in good faith, made every reasona-

ble effort to produce the original, and he must show, in detail,

what those efforts have been. If he has made diligent and
faithful inquiry to find the parties in whose possession it might
probably be, as the grantee, and those claiming under him, and
has been unable to find them, or, if found, and he proves by
them that the deed is lost, or cannot be found after diligent

search, then the court may properly conclude that it is out of

his power to produce the deed. The provision of the statute

under which the copy was offered, is this :
" And if it shall

appear to the satisfaction of the court that the original deed so

acknowledged or proved, and recorded, is lost, or not in the
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power of the party •wishing to use it, a transcript of the record

thereof, certified by the recorder in whose office the same may
be recorded, may be read in evidence in any court of this State

without proof thereof."

These facts must appear to the satisfaction of the court. The
court can only be satisfied of them by evidence sufficient to con-

vince its judgment that the deed is lost, or the party cannot

produce it. There is nothing unreasonable in requiring the

party to make faithful efforts to produce the original. The
security of parties against fraud and forgeries, requires that the

original should be produced whenever it is practicable to do so.

Copies should only be admitted from absolute necessity. So
long as there are bad men in the world who are capable of

committing as well perjury as forgery, it is the duty of the

courts, as far as possible, to protect honest men against them
;

and honest men should not complain at any reasonable incon-

venience to which they may be subjected, to close every possible

avenue to such practices. The very rule which will subject an

honest man to inconvenience to-day may be his security to-mor-

row. We think the affidavit altogether insufficient.

The
,
plaintiff then offered in evidence, to sustain his title, a

deed from Cephas Mills and wife to Joseph P. Martin, dated

March 29th, 1841, which purported to have been acknowledged
before Cyrus Dana, a " notary public of Berrian county, Michi-

gan," which was objected to, upon the ground that it did not

appear to have been executed, acknowledged and certified under
any official seal. The objection was overruled and the deed
admitted, and an exception taken.

There is not the least shadow of evidence that Cyrus Dana
was a notary public, neither a certificate of the secretary of the

State of Michigan, nor any notarial seal to verify his attestation.

A notary's acts should always be attested by a notarial seal,

which every notary is presumed in all countries to have. Even
in this case there is no certificate of conformity. Indeed, there

is nothing to show that this man Dana had any authority, either

by our law or by that of Michigan, to take acknowledgments of

deeds. Some objection might be taken to the substance of this

acknowledgment, but it is unnecessary to consider it.

The judgment must be reversed and the cause remanded.

Judgment reversed.
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Henry M. Day, Appellant, v. Benjamin Hackney et al,

AjDpellees.

appeal from cook county court of common pleas.

For any misfeasance of a sheriff other than a failure to return an execution or to

pay over money collected on an execution, or for any other misconduct than is

mentioned in the statute, the party must resort to his action ; summary proceed-

ings against a sheriff will be limited to such derelictions as the statute provides

for.

This was a summary proceeding by motion by appellees

against appellant.

The bill of exceptions shows that, at the hearing of the

motion, July 10, 1856, appellees read in evidence an execution,

under seal of said, court, dated March 14, 1855, in favor of

appellees, and against Alford & Chapman, for $593.09, directed

to sheriff of Kendall county, with said sheriff's return and in-

dorsements thereon, on which was a receipt signed by J. J. Cole.

The indorsements were as follows :
'

Rec. this writ, March 15, 1855, at one P. M., from J. .J. Cole, agent for

plaintiff. H. M. DAY, Sheriff of Kendall County.

March 15th, 1855.—By virtue of the within execution, levied on the following

real estate, (here follows description of divers tracts of land) ; also the following

personal property, (here follows list of horses, etc.)

H. M. day. Sheriff ofKendall County.

The above real estate was by me advertised, etc., before the 25th of June,

1855, at one o'clock P. M., when the said real estate was by me sold, and the same

was struck off to Jeremiah J. Cole, agent for plaintiffs, for $619.09, he, the said

Cole, being the highest bidder, but ?!o money mis paid to me, the land being bid off

as aforesaid by said Cole, and this execution is returned in this manner by his

direction. HENRY M. DAY, Slieriff Kendall County.

Ree'd of H. M. Day, Shf. of Kendall Co the amt of debt and costs on the within

Ex for Hackney Jenks & Co JEREMIAH J. COLE

Appellees then read in evidence the af&davit of Barr, of 7th

July, 1856, that on 14th March, 1855, appellees recovered

judgment in said Common Pleas Court against Alford & Chap-
man, for $593.09 and costs, that execution was issued, directed

to sheriff of Kendall.

That on 15th March, 1855, execution and fee bill was bp him
forwarded to Kendall county, to be delivered to sheriff.

That on 16th March, 1855, Barr saw sheriff Day, who said

he had received the execution and had levied on Alford's real

estate.
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That Barr consulted and directed in regard to same.

That on 25th June, 1855, Barr went to Oswego to attend the

sale of said lands by sheriff.

That he then learned that said sheriff had two other execu-

tions levied upon the same property, and that if the same was
sold it would be sold upon all the executions, (one of which
affiant believes was in favor of Jeremiah J. Cole.)

That he understood that Cole, perhaps with others, was trying

to buy the lands of Alford, and negotiations were pending when
this afl&ant had to leave.

That Cole informed Barr, that if lands were sold upon the

executions, he intended to bid off the same for enough to cover

all of said judgment.

That with that understanding Barr left before the sale was
made.

That said sheriff knew at that time that Barr was at Oswego
attending to the same as attorney of the plaintiff.

That Barr afterwards learned that said premises were sold

and bid off by said Cole, and went to Oswego to get the money
thereon.

That Cole being inquired of for the sheriff, said to Barr that

the sheriff' was out of town, but that he could pay a part of the

money going to the plaintiffs, and Barr received of Cole $400
to apply on the same.

That Barr understood " that the sheriff kept his official

papers at Oswego, in the office of Cole, and that when property

was bid off or redeemed by Cole, the money was not paid over

at the time, but credit given on the deal between the parties, as

a deposit or otherwise."

That from Barr's recollection of the contents of the record of

the certificate of sale, as recorded in the recording office of

Kendall county, the premises were sold upon all of said execu-

tions together, and but one certificate of sale, and that to said

J. J. Cole.

That Barr afterwards saw said execution, with a return

thereon, (which he believes was in handwriting of said sheriff,)

in substance as follows :

" I return this execution satisfied— money paid to plaintiffs."

That this was on said execution the 13th of June, 1856, and
before, but is now erased.

That the return now on the execution was not then on the

same.

That said return does not state to whom the certificate of sale

was made.

That Barr has twice made demand upon said sheriff, (H. M.
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Day,) in writing, to pay over the balance due to plaintiffs upon

said writs to plaintiflfs, or their attorney, and also to return said

writs.

That the sheriff has neglected to pay. '

That the present returns on said execution have been made
since such demand.

That Barr was attorney of plaintiffs.

That he believes he was the only attorney.

That on 13tli of June, a written notice, attached to the affi-

davit, was served on Day.

The written notice referred to, notifies Day that $243.33, or

thereabouts, issue to the plaintiffs, on an execution in your hands,

wherein Benjamin Hackney, and Levi Jenks, and Albert Jenks,

were plaintiffs, and John W. Chapman and Clark B. Alford

were defendants ; and also on a fee bill in the same case, which
execution and fee bill issued, etc.

And demand is hereby made upon you for the money due

thereon, (said fee bill and execution,) and you are notified, that

unless you return said execution and fee bill, and pay over said

money to said plaintiffs, or their attorney, within ten days from

date hereof, that at next term of said court, etc., plaintiffs will

apply to said court for a judgment against you for the amount
due them, with twenty per cent, damages, according to statute.

That after the sale. Cole called on affiant and said he was to

pay plaintiffs' demand.
That affiant believes he was the only one of the firm that ever

had any correspondence with said Cole about said matter in any
way.

This was all of plaintiffs' evidence.

Defendant then read in evidence an extract from a letter

dated March 9, 1855, and written by appellees to said Cole, as

follows :

" Can that demand against Alford & Chapman be collected, if

sent to you ?"

Also, another letter from plaintiffs to Cole, as follows

:

" Can you get at that old matter of John Chapman & Alford,

but due Hackney, Jenks & Co., and send it to me on receipt of

this ? If not, can you give us a statement of the balance due,

and how we must proceed to get it ?"

This was all the evidence.

The court, reciting on the record that the sheriff had returned

the execution, and " it appearing from his return thereon in-

dorsed, he sold the property of said defendant on said execution,

on the 25th day of June, 1855 ; and that the same was struck

off to Cole (who is stated in the return to have been agent of

plaintiffs) for $619.09
;"
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And it further appearing to the court that Cole was not the

agent of plaintiffs

;

And that said sheriff collected on said execution the money
due thereon, June 25, 1855

;

And that plaintiffs have received thereon $400 ;

That the amount due thereon now from said sheriff is $219.09,
besides the penalty imposed by statute

;

Ordered, that Day pay over to plaintiffs the $219.09, with

twenty per cent, thereon from 25th June, 1855, till paid ; and
further, that he pay the cost of this proceeding.

To this decision defendant excepted ; then moved for new
trial, which was overruled, and he excepted.

T. Lyle Dickey, for Appellant.

Grant Goodrich, for Appellees.

Caton, C. J. This was a summary proceeding by motion
under the 44th section of the practice act, against the sheriff

of Kendall county, for failing to pay over money by him col-

lected on an execution. The proof and even the complaint

which is the foundation of the proceeding, fails to show that

any money ever actually came to the hands of the sheriff upon
the execution. We think the proof satisfactorily establishes

that the execution was sent to Cole by the attorney of the plain-

tiff, and was by Cole handed to the sheriff, who levied upon
certain lands, which were bid off by Cole in his own name, and
probably assigned by him for his own benefit, but that he never

paid to the sheriff any money upon that bid, designing and in-

tending to pay the money directly to the plaintiff or his attor-

ney, and that he did actually pay to the plaintiff"'s attorney the

greater part of the money called for by the execution. In the

view we take of the statute under which this proceeding was
instituted, it is unnecessary to inquire whether the sheriff sup-

posed that Colo was the authorized agent or attorney of the

plaintiff or not, or whether he was in fact such agent or attor-

ney. Admitting that he knew otherwise and improperly gave

Cole a credit upon his bid, and trusted him to pay the amount
of the bid to the plaintiff in the execution, still he is not liable

for such official misconduct under the statute, but a remedy
must be sought upon his official bond or by an action on the

case against him. This proceeding against a sheriff is only

authorized for failing to return an execution, or failing to pay
over money collected upon an execution, and cannot be main-

tained for failing to collect money upon an execution or for any
other official misconduct than that mentioned in the law. The
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statute is penal in its character, punishing the sheriff with a

penalty of twenty per cent, upon the amount of money collected

and not paid over, and must be strictly construed. We cannot

extend it by construction so as to make it embrace cases not

within the expressions of the enactment. As the proof fails to

show that tlie sheriff ever did receive any money on this execu-

tion which he failed to pay over, the judgment against him must
be reversed.

Judgment reversed.

J. TiLDEN Moulton et tix., Plaintiffs in Error, v. Harvey
B. IIuRD, Defendant in Error.'y

EREOR TO COOK. -

A court has no power to reform the deed of a married woman, for any mistake in

its provisions.

This was a bill in chancery, filed by the defendant in error

against the plaintiff's in error, on the 29th day of March, A. D.

1855, setting forth, that on or about the 27th day of October,

A. D. 1853, Charlotte Harden Moulton, being then seized of the

premises thereinafter mentioned, and her husband, J. Tilden

Moulton, in order to secure to the orator the payment of

$4,009.86, being for a portion of the purchase money to be paid

for the premises thereinafter mentioned, at that time sold to the

said Charlotte Harden Moulton, secured to be paid by four

promissory notes of even date with the mortgage thereinafter

mentioned, each for the sum of $852.46, and due in one, two
three, and four years from the date hereof, with interest at six

per cent., payable annually, which notes were signed by J. Til-

den Moulton, made their mortgage, dated October 27th, 1853, to

the orator, thereby conveying to him part of the S. E. quarter

of section 33, in township 40 north, range 13 east, containing

one hundred acres, more or less, with a proviso in said mortgage
contained :

" That if the said party of the first part should well

and truly pay, or cause to be paid, to the orator the aforesaid

sum of money, with such interest thereon, at the time and in

the manner specified in the notes above mentioned, according to

the true intent and meaning thereof, then and in that case, said

mortgage should be null and void ;" and with a further proviso

therein contained, that in case '•'• of failure to paij^'' any one or

more of the payments of principal and interest at the time and

10
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times the same were therein specified to be paid, the ivhole sum
and interest therein mentioned should become due and payable,

but averring that the words '' of failure to pay ^'' were inadver-

tently left out of the covenant and agreement above referred to,

and that the orator and the defendants meant to insert said

words so as to make said agreement read as above set out in

substance.

And further, setting forth the acknowledgment and record of

said mortgage in due form, the non-payment of the first of said

notes, due October 27, 1854, and the interest on the whole sum
of $4,009.86 for one year.

And praying that the defendants might answer upon oath, and

be decreed to pay the whole sum of ^4,009.86, with interest,

and in default thereof that a sale might be made ; and for

general relief.

Attached to the bill of complaint is a copy of the mortgage

mentioned therein, the only material part of which is the condi-

tion, and that is as follows :

" Provided always, and these presents are upon this express

condition, that if the said party of the first part, their heirs,

executors, or administrators, shall well and truly pay, or cause to

be paid, to the said party of the second part, his heirs, executors,

administrators, or assigns, the aforesaid sum of money, with

such interest thereon, at the time and in the manner specified in

the above mentioned notes, according to the true intent and
meaning thereof, then and in that case, these presents and every-

thing herein expressed shall be absolutely null and void.

" It is further understood, that in case any one or more of the

above payments of principal or interest, at the time or times

the same are above specified to be paid, the whole sum and inter-

est above mentioned shall become due and payable, this mortgage
being given for purchase."

The defendants filed their answer on oath, setting forth that,

on the 27th day of October, A. D. 1853, as guardian of William
Brown, the said Harvey B. Hurd, in pursuance of an order to

that effect made by the Cook County Court of Common Pleas,

in and for the county of Cook and State of Illinois, exposed for

sale the interest of said William Brown in said premises, and
then and there sold the same to Charlotte Harden Moulton for

the sum of $4,362.62, upon the following terms, to wit : one-fifth

cash at the time said purchase was made, and the remainder in

four equal annual installments, with six per cent, interest, to be
secured upon said premises by mortgage.

That the said Charlotte Harden Moulton paid to said Hurd
the sum of $942.78, and executed the mortgage and notes men-
tioned in said bill, with her said husband, which said mortgage
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was left as an escrow until the said Hurd should deliver to said

Charlotte Harden Moulton a certain deed of one David Coul-

son, and that although said Hurd did procure said deed, yet that

he did not procure or deliver the same as aforesaid until the

30th day of October, 1854, some time after the first payment
under said mortgage became due and payable ; and setting forth,

also, that said Hurd had never made any report of said sale

under said order, nor procured any confirmation thereof, and that

by reason of such neglect, the equitable title to said premises

still remained in said William Brown.
The execution of said notes and mortgage is admitted ; but

the said defendants sav that it was not understood between said

Hurd and said defendants that in case of failure to pay any one

or more of said payments of principal or interest at the time

or times when the same are specified to be paid, that the whole
sum and interest should become due and payable ; and said de-

fendants further say, that it is not true that they intended to

insert the words " of failure to pay " so as to make the clause

in said mortgage read as an agreement to that efiect, but that

said clause was surreptitiously inserted in said mortgage after

the same was read by J. Tilden Moulton, one of said defendants.

Replication filed.

On the 22nd October, 1855, the complainant filed his supple-

mental bill, setting forth that on the 29th of March, 1855, said

complainant filed his bill in this court against said Charlotte

Harden Moulton and J. Tilden Moulton, and giving the sub-

stance thereof as hereinbefore set forth ; and in addition to the

matters in said original bill stated, said supplemental bill sets

forth, that before any proceedings were had in such cause, to

wit, on the 29th day of September, 1855, said Hurd made report

of the sale of said premises to said defendant, Charlotte Har-
den Moulton, which said report was duly confirmed by said

Cook County Court of Common Pleas, and prays the relief

substantially asked for in said original bill.

On the 28tli October, 1855, the defendants filed their demur-

rer to the supplemental bill, on the ground that no new matter

had arisen since the filing of the original bill which was proper

matter of supplement and which would entitle the complainant

to file such supplemental bill.

The demurrer was overruled, and the supplemental bill taken

as confessed, for want of an answer thereto.

On the 12th day of January, A. D. 1856, the following decree

was made, setting forth that the cause was set down for trial in

the Circuit Court of Cook county, to be tried on the 31st day of

December, 1855, " and the same having been tried on that day
by the court, upon the bill, answer, replication, and supplemental
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bill and testimony, which supplemental bill was taken pro con-

fesso; and it appearing to the court that the mortgage and notes

mentioned in said complainant's bill were made and executed

as set forth in said bill, and that it was understood and agreed

between tlie said parties, that in case of failure to pay any one

or more of the payments of principal and interest at the time

and times the same were therein specified to be paid, the whole
sum and interest therein mentioned should become due and pay-

able ; and it appearing to the court, from the testimony, that the

words " of failure to pay " were inadvertently left out of the

covenant in said mortgage intended to express that understand-

ing and agreement after the words " in case," and before the

words " any one or more," etc.

And it appearing that the said mortgage was given to secure

the certain promissory notes aforesaid, being four in number, for

the sum of $852.46 each, payable in one, two, three, and four

years, respectively, with annual interest at six per cent, per an-

num ; and it appearing that default Avas made in the payment of

the first and second of said notes when the same became due

;

and it further appearing that there is due upon said notes and
mortgage the sum of $8,409.86 principal, and $451.80 interest,

making in all the sum of $3,861.66
;

It is ordered and decreed, that the said mortgage be and the

same is reformed and amended, so that the clause above
referred to shall read as follows

:

" It is further understood, that in case of ' failure to pay' any
one or more of the above payments of principal or interest, at

the time or times the same are above specified to be paid, the

whole sum and interest above mentioned shall become due and
payable."

It is further ordered and decreed, that said defendant pay to

the said complainant the said sum of $3,861.66, on or before

the first day of February, A. D. 1856, or that said premises, or

so much thereof as may be necessary, be sold to satisfy said sum
and discharge the same, with costs, etc., and to make title

thereto to the purchaser thereof.

And that, if premises be not redeemed according to law, that

defendants shall deliver title papers appertaining thereto.

There is no statement in the record that any evidence was
offered at the hearing other than what appears in the recitals of

the decree.

This decree was entered by Manniere, Judge.
The defendants bring the case to this court by writ of error,

and assign for error

:

1st. That the court below erred in ordering foreclosure and
correction of mortgage, as the answer of the defendants denied
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all the equities of said bill, whereon such correctiou was asked,

and there was no evidence to overcome the answer.

2nd. That sale of premises by guardian to defendant, Char-

lotte Harden Moulton, had not been confirmed by Cook County

Court of Common Pleas when said foreclosure was ordered.

3rd. That the court erred in overruling the demurrer to tlie

supplemental bill of the complainant.

4th. The court erred in rendering a decree on the original

bill without evidence in support thereof.

5th. The court had no power to correct a defect in a deed,

as against a married woman.
6th. That the said decree is erroneous for divers other errors

apparent upon the face of the record and proceedings.

C. Beckwith, for Plaintiffs in Error.

H. B. HuKD, in person.

Walker, J. This was a bill in equity, filed in the Cook Cir-

cuit Court, by Hurd, to reform and foreclose a mortgage exe-

cuted by Moulton and wife on real estate of the wife, to secure

the payment of four promissory notes executed by Moulton to

Hurd, for $852.46 each, with six per cent, interest from date,

payable in one, two, three and four years, and dated on the 27th

day of October, 1853. The mortgage contained a condition,

that if Moulton and wife should well and truly pay, or cause to

be paid, to Hurd, said sums of money, with interest, in the man-
ner specified in the notes, then and in that case the mortgage to

be void. It also contained a further proviso that " it was
understood, that in case any one or more of the above payments
of principal or interest at the time or times the same are above
specified to be paid, the whole sum and interest above mentioned
shall become due and payable, this mortgage being for purchase."

The bill alleges that the words, " of failure to pay," should

have been, according to the understanding of the parties, inserted

in the last named covenant, after the words " in case," and
before the words " any one or more," but that, owing to inad-

vertence and mistake, they were omitted. The bill alleges that

the first note had fallen due, and that it, together with the

interest on the others, remained unpaid. And prayed that the

mortgage bo reformed and foreclosed for the amount of all the

notes and interest. The defendants, as required by the bill,

answered under oath, and denied that any mistake had occurred
in executing the mortgage, and that the words, " of failure to

pay," were not by mistake and inadvertence omitted to be in-

serted in the mortgage, as charged in the bill. To this answer
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a replication was filed. The complainant subsequently filed a

supplemental bill substantially the same as the original bill, but

alleging that the second note had fallen due and was unpaid,

and the prayer was the same as in the original bill. To the

supplemental bill defendants demurred, which the court over-

ruled. The supplemental bill was taken as confessed, and the

court decreed a foreclosure of the mortgage, for the amount
due on the four notes.

This record presents the question whether a court of equity

has the power to reform the deed of a married woman.
At the common law, a feme covert could not, by uniting with

her husband in any deed of conveyance, bar herself or her heirs

of any estate of which she was seized in her own right ; or of

her right of dower in the real estate of her husband. The only

mode in which a married woman could, at common law, convey
her real estate, or bar her right of dower, was by uniting with
her husband in levying a fine. This was a solemn proceeding of

record in open court, and the judges were supposed to watch
over and protect the wife's rights, and ascertain by a private

examination that her participation in the act was voluntary and
unconstrained. This is the principle upon which the efficacy of

a fine is placed by most of the authorities. 3 Cruise Dig. 153,
title 35, chap. 10.

Acting upon the principle that the participation of the wife

in the transfer of her real estate must be free and unconstrained,

the courts have held that an agreement made by Sifeme covert,

with the assent of her husband, to sell her real estate, is abso-

lutely void at common law, and that such a contract could not

be enforced in equity. And that the whole system of the com-
mon law is opposed to the enforcement of the contracts of mar-
ried women for the sale of their real estate. And that it is a
fundamental principle of the common law, that such contracts

are void, except when she conveys her estate by a fine duly

acknowledged, or by some matter of record. 5 Conn. R. 492.

Our conveyance acts have, however, changed the mode by which
a married woman may convey her real estate. It enables her to

do so, by joining with her husband in a deed for that purpose.

And which, to be efl'ectual, must be acknowledged before one of

the officers of the law authorized to take such acknowledgment.
To give it validity, he must examine her separate and apart

from her husband, after liaving explained to her the contents

and effect of such deed, whether she executes it fi'eely and vol-

untarily, without the coercion of her husband. R. S. 1845,

106, sec. 17.

This provision of our statute, it will be observed, is an en-

largement, and not a restriction, of the common law powers of
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af67716 covert. It authorizes a less formal mode of conveyance

than was known to the common law. It gives to her deed,

when duly acknowledged, the same force and effect of a fine
;

but if not acknowledged in accordance with the statute, no
estate passes. The statute must be complied with, and if it is

not, the deed is left, as at common law, absolutely void. Lane
V. Soulard, 15 111. R. 123.

In New York and Ohio, where they have statutes similar to

ours, their courts have repeatedly refused to enforce the con-

tracts of married women for the conveyance of their real estate,

and also to rectify and reform mistakes in deeds made by them
for a conveyance of their lands ; upon the ground that their

deeds, to be effectual, must be acknowledged freely and volun-

tarily, and in the mode prescribed by the statute. Knowles v.

McCambry et al., 10 Paige R. 312; 3Iartin v. Devet///, 6

Wend R. 10 ; Carr v. Williams et al., 10 Ohio R. 305 ; Purcell

V. Garhore et al., IT Ohio R. 105.

By reforming the mortgage it was essentially changed. As it

was executed and acknowledged, the complainant could only

foreclose for the amount of each note as they severally became
due, while, by that instrument as reformed, he could foreclose

for the whole amount of the notes, upon default in the payment
of either of them. This was to change the deed most materi-

ally, and to make it altogether a different instrument from the

one executed by the wife of Moulton ; and against her consent,

and against the intention and understanding of the parties at

the time the mortgage was made, if her sworn answer is to have

any weight—and it stands uncontradicted by any evidence.

This would be to make a deed for the wife against her consent.

This the court has no power to do ; even the legislature could

not give it effect, unless she acknowledged it freely and volun-

tarily in the mode prescribed by the statute. Lane v. Soulard,

15 lil. R. 123.

The court below erred in reforming this deed, and in fore-

closing the mortgage for more than the first and second notes,

the others not being then due. The decree of the court below
must be reversed, and the cause remanded for further proceed-

ings not inconsistent with this opinion.

Decree reversed.
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EiCHARD K. Swift and James S. Johnson, impleaded with

Lyman P. Swift, Appellants, v. James B. Whitney et al,

Appellees.

The Same, Appellants, v. George B. Marsh^ Appellee.

APPEAL FROM COOK COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

Where there are various objections to testimony, some of which may be removed,

the party objecting must indicate his grounds, so as to furnish the opposite party

an opportunity to obviate tlie objection, else he cannot avail himself of it in this

court.

Certificates of deposit are admissible as evidence under the common counts.

The court may assess damages on a certiticate of deposit, payable in currency.

The facts of these cases are stated in the opinion of the court.

The causes were tried ^^before J. M. Wilson, Judge of the Com-
mon Pleas, at January term, 1858.

ScATES, McAllister, Jewett & Peabody, for Appellants.

E. R. Hooper, and John M. S. Causin, for Appellees.

Walker, J. These cases present the same questions, and will

be considered together in our opinion. The plaintiffs sued out

summons in assumpsit from the Cook County Court of Common
Picas, wliich Avas served on Richard K. Swift and James S.

Johnson, Lyman P. Swift not being found. In each case, the

common counts only were in the record, when the judgment was
rendered by default against the defendants, who had been
served. The court assessed the damages severally on the

instruments, as follows

:

No. 169. Richard K. Swift, Brother & Johnston,

r ' . Chicago, Nov. I8th, 1857. '

Received from Whitney & Haven four hundred and seventy-seven 23-100 dollars,

payable, in currency, to the bearer liereof, for account of certified checks.

R. K SWIFT, BROTHER & JOHNSTON,
'

• Per R. C. Weight.

No. A. 262,
;

Savings Department of R. K. Swift,
\

State of Illinois.
"

Brother & Johnston, Bankers. (

Chicago, August 8, 1857.

G. B. Marsh has deposited with us three hundred dollars in funds, as stated

below, to the credit of himself, to be paid in like funds to his order hereon.

Currency, $300 R. K. SWIFT, BROTHER & JOHNSTON,
Gold, By B. B. Cuamkers.

$300
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The objection is urged that these instruments were not admis-

sible under the common counts, without their execution having

been proved.- This court has held that, " where various objec-

tions may be made to evidence, some of which may be removed
by other proof, the party making the objections ought to point

out specifically those he insists on, and thereby put the adverse

party on his guard, and afford him an opportunity to obviate

them. He ought not to be permitted, after interposing a general

objection, to insist on particular objections in this court, which,
if they had been suggested in the court below, might have been
instantly removed. A due regard to the character of the

courts and the rights of suitors, will not for a moment tolerate

such a practice." Sargent v. Kellogg, 5 Gil. R. 281. And
the same doctrine is laid down in the case of Russell v. White-
sides, 4 Scam. R. 11. These cases are decisive of this point.

The bill of exceptions does not show that the objection was
made in the court below, and it cannot be taken here for the

first time.

It was objected that these instruments were not admissible as

evidence under the common counts. This depends upon whether
they are promissory notes. It is the well established doctrine,

in England and this country, that bills of exchange between the

drawer and payee, and promissory notes, are evidence, under
the counts for money lent, and for money had and received, and
money paid for the use of defendant. Chitty on Bills, 578, and
authorities cited. While this is the law, it is not usual, in

practice, to rely alone on the common counts, and where they
arc relied on, the plaintiff should be required to file a copy of

the note or bill ten days before the term, or the court should
grant a continuance, if asked for, otherwise it might operate
as a surprise, and work great injustice to the defendant. It

has also been held that, when introduced under the common
counts, the defendant may rebut the presumption that the note
or bill was given for money lent, money had and received, or
money paid, and that it was for some other consideration.

These instruments are given to the persons of whom the con-

sideration was received ; one was payable to his order, and the
other to bearer, and were payable in currency. They seem to

possess all the requisites of a promissory note. They specify

the amount to be paid, the person to whom payable, are payable
on delivery, and without any contingency, and in currency.
They might, undoubtedly, have been negotiable under our stat-

ute, if not by the law merchant. We are, therefore, satisfied

that they were admissible under the common counts. The ques-

tion whether the court could assess the damages, depends upon
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whether currency has a fixed or fluctuating value. By the

term currency is understood bank bills, or other paper money
issued by authority, which pass as and for coin. And it is the

well recognized doctrine that a tender in such bills, in discharge

of a money debt, is good, if not refused because it is not in coin.

Snoiv V. Perry, 9 Pick. R. 539 ; Toivson v. The Havre de

Grace Bank, 6 Har. & J. E. 53 ; Lincoln et al. v. Cook, 2

Scam. R. 62 ; 2 Phillips Ev., 133, and authorities cited. In

Miller v. Pi.eid, 1 Burr. R. 457, Lord Mansfield observed

:

" These notes are not, like bills of exchange, mere securities or

,

documents for debts, nor are so esteemed, but are treated as

money, in the ordinary course and transaction of business, by
the general consent of mankind ; and on payment of them, the

receipts are always given as for money, not as for securities or

notes." In the case of Handy v. Dobbin, 12 J. R. 220, it was
decided that bank bills could be levied on by execution, and
that they are treated civiliter as money. In Mann v. Ex'rs
Mann, 1 Johns Ch. R. 236, it was held that a bequest of all

moneys embraced gold and silver, or the lawful circulating

medium of the country, and may extend to bank notes when
they are known and approved of, and used in the market as cash.

And 15 Ves. R. 207, sustained the doctrine of that case. In

the case of Judah v. Hains, 19 J. R. 144, the court decided

that a note, payable in bank notes current in the city of New
York, was a valid note. The court say they will take notice

that notes current in the city of New York are of cash value

throughout the State, and are distinguished by those words from
other bank notes, which are received at a discount, and hence
it is immaterial whether the notes of banks of other States

might be tendered in payment, provided they are current in the

city of New York ; in that case they are considered cash,

equally with the current bills of this State.

From these authorities it would seem that current bills, or

currency, are of the value of cash, and exclude the idea of

depreciated paper money. If, then, currency is taken as and
for coin, it follows that such is its value, and the court did right

in assessing the damages on these notes ; and as no error is dis-

covered in these records, the judgment of the Common Pleas,

in these cases, should be af&rmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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William S. Williams, Appellant, v. John Reil et al,

Appellees.

APPEAL FEOM BUREAU.

In an action of trespass, unless the act complained of is willful, vindictive damages
cannot be given.

This suit was originally brought by appellees against appel-

lant, before a justice of the peace. The summons was as

follows

:

> ss.
STATE OF ILLINOIS,

BUREAU COUNTY,

The People of the State of Illinois to any Constable, greeting

:

You are hereby commanded to summon William S. Williams to

appear before me at my ofhce in Milo, on the 17th day of Janu-

ary, 1857, at 7 o'clock P. M., to answer the complaint of John
and Thomas Reil, for trespasses on personal property, to their

damage $100— a certain demand not exceeding $100— and
hereof make duo return as the law directs.

Before the justice the plaintiffs filed a statement of their cause

of action, as follows :

Thomas and John Eeil )

vs. > Justice's Court, Milo, Bureau County.

William S. Williams. )

Trespass on personal property. Damages, $100.
The gist of tliis action is, in that the defendant's cattle and

hogs, between the first of May, 1856, and December of the same
year, destroyed the plaintiffs' crops to the damage of $100.
The appellees recovered a judgment before the justice ; Williams
appealed to the Circuit Court.

The transcript of the justice states the action to be an action

of trespass on personal property.

The jury found a verdict for the plaintiffs, in the Circuit Court.

The defendant moved for a new trial, which motion the court

overruled, and the defendant excepted.

This cause was heard before Ballou, Judge, at September
term, 1857.

Glover & Cook, for Appellant.

M. T. Peters, for Appellees.

Breese, J. The ninth instruction asked by the defendant, in

these words :
" If the jury should find the defendant guilty, they
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should not allow the plaintiffs damages beyond what they really

sustained by the defendant's cattle and hogs trespassing, unless

it is proved that the defendant was willing that his cattle and

hogs should trespass upon the plaintiffs' crops," should have

been given by the court.

It states the true rule, as we understand it, in such cases, that

unless the trespass was willful, vindictive damages cannot be

given. The court should so have instructed the jury.

The judgment is reversed, and the cause remanded for further

proceedings in conformity to this opinion.

Judginent reversed.

Ulyses M. Warner, impleaded, etc., Appellant, v. Eliza

Crane, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM WINNEBAGO COUNTY COURT.

The giving of fnrtlier clay of payment to a principal debtor, without the assent of

the surety, discharges the latter from liability.

Pleas stating the above fact amount only to the general issue, and will be bad on
special demun-er; and if there was a plea of non-assumpsit, and no bill of excep-

tions showing tiie contrary, it will be presumed that the party availed himself of

this defense on the trial, and a judgment against him will be sustained.

This was an action of assumpsit, tried at the June term, 1857,
of the County Court of Winnebago county. Both defendants

appeared andj pleaded, and judgment against defendants for

15183,48, and costs of suit, from which judgment defendant

Warner alone appealed to this court.

Plaintiff declared in an action of assumpsit against both de-

fendants. The declaration contained one special count and the

common counts. The special count was upon the note of said

defendants, U. M. Warner and Ben. Davis, for the sum of two
hundred dollars, dated August 13, 1856, payable to Edward M.
Kitchell, or order, sixty days after date thereof, signed Ben.
Davis, U. M. Warner, which note had been indorsed by Edward
N. Eitchell, to the plaintiff.

Defendants severed in their pleas.

Defendant Davis pleaded the general issue, and gave notice in

substance that the beneficial interest in said note was still in

Kitchell, the payee thereof ; that the note was for money loaned,

and that more than the legal rate of interest was included in said

note ; and that he had paid said Kitchell money at three differ-

ent times, for the extension of time of payment of said note,
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after maturity thereof, amounting to $28 ; and plaintiff added
similiter to plea of defendant Davis.

Defendant "Warner pleaded, in said cause, four pleas :

1st. The general issue.

2nd. That defendant Warner signed the note in question as

surety for the other defendant, which Kitchell, the payee of the

note, then well knew ; that the note was not indorsed until after

it became due, and that said Kitchell was then the real owner of

the note, and the person for whose benefit the suit was prose-

cuted. That at the maturity of said note, said Kitchell (then

being the owner thereof), without the knowledge or consent of

the defendant "Warner, for the sum of eight dollars to him paid

by said defendant Davis, contracted and agreed with defendant

Davis to extend the time of payment of said note for sixty days

after maturity thereof, to wit, from October 13, to December 13,

1856.

3rd. That the note in question, in fact, belonged to Edward
N. Kitchell, the payee thereof, and that the suit was prosecuted

for his benefit. That defendant "V\"arner signed xhe note as

surety for defendant Davis, which fact was known to Kitchell

at the making said note ; that said Kitchell was the owner and
holder of the note at its maturity, and that he, said Kitchell,

then, without the knowledge or consent of said Warner, in con-

sideration of eight dollars, then paid him by said Davis, agreed

with said Davis to extend the time of payment of the note for

sixty days after maturity thereof, to wit, until December 13th,

1856. And that on said 13th day of December, 1856, said

Kitchell, he still being the owner of the note, (without the

knowledge or consent of defendant "Warner,) in consideration

of the sum of ten dollars, to him paid by said Davis, agreed

with said Davis further to extend the time of payment of said

note for the period of sixty days, to wit, until February 13th,

1857. And that on said 13th of February, 1857, said Kitchell,

still being the owner of said note, in consideration of the further

sum of ten dollars, to him paid by said Davis, again agreed

with said Davis to extend the time of payment of said note sixty

days, to wit, until April 13, 1857 ; all of which was unknown to

defendant Warner.
4th. That the plaintiff has no interest in the supposed prom-

ises upon which action was brought ; that the same belong to

Edward N. Kitchell ; that Kitchell was the beneficial owner of

the note in question, and the payee therein, and the same was
not assigned until long after maturity. That defendant Warner,
at the making said note, signed the same as surety for Davis,

and in no other capacity, which was then known to said Kitchell,
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the payee ; that afterwards, and after the maturity of the note,

to wit, on the 13th day of December, 1856, the said Kitchell,

he still being the holder and owner of the note, in consideration

of the sum of ten dollars, then paid him by said defendant Da-

vis, then contracted and agreed with said Davis, without the

knowledge or consent of Warner, to extend the time of payment

of said note for the period of sixty days from that date, to wit,

until 13th February, 1857 ; concludes with a verification to the

plea so pleaded by the defendant Warner, wherein he put himself

upon the country. The said plaintiff added a similiter.

And the said plaintiff, by her counsel, then demurred to the

said second, third and fourth pleas so pleaded by defendant

Warner, and each of them.

And assigned, for cause of demurrer.

That said second, third and fourth pleas, each amounts to

the general issue.

xind thereupon the court, upon hearing said demurrer, sus-

tained the same to the said second, third and fourth pleas, so

pleaded by defendant Warner, and rendered judgment for the

plaintiff thereon, against defendant Warner.
To the opinion of the court, in so sustaining said demurrer to

said second, third and fourth pleas, and entering judgment
thereon against him, said defendant Warner, by his counsel,

excepted.

The said cause was then submitted to Selden M. Church,
Judge of said court, for trial, without the intervention of a jury,

and the court found the issues for plaintiff, and assessed her

damages at one hundred eighty-three forty-eight one-hundredths

dollars.

And thereupon, defendant Warner moved the court for a new
trial, which motion was overruled by the court.

And thereupon, the court rendered judgment in favor of said

plaintiff, and against said defendants, for the sum of one hundred
and eighty-three forty-eight one-hundredths dollars, beside costs

of suit.

And thereupon, defendant Warner prayed an appeal to the

Supreme Court of Illinois, which was granted.

Errors assigned : That the court erred in sustaining the de-

murrer of the plaintiff to the second, third and fourth pleas of

defendant Warner, and each of them, and entering judgment
thereon against defendant Warner.

J. L. Loop, and Lathrop & Brown, for Appellant.

J. W. Wight, for Appellee.
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Walker, J. The doctrine seems to be well settled, that the

extension of time and giving further day of payment by the

creditor, on a valid and binding agreement Avith the principal

debtor, without the assent of the surety, discharges the latter

from liability on the contract. Davis v. The People, 1 Gil. R.

409 ; McHatton v. The People, 2 Gil. R. 638. And the special

pleas in this case allege that the payee of the note thus gave
time to the principal debtor, without the assent of the surety.

They substantially presented a good defense to the action against

appellant. One of them avers that the assignment to plaintiff

was made after the maturity of the note, and after the time

given for payment after its maturity had expired ; and the others,

that the beneficial interest in the note was still in the payee. A
person taking negotiable paper over due and dishonored for want
of payment, takes it subject to all defenses by prior holders, and
if this note was taken by plaintiff after the expiration of the

extended time for payment, the rule of caveat emptor applies.

If the assignment was only colorable, and the beneficial interest

still remained in the payee, and he extended the time of payment
as alleged, he should still be held liable for his own acts ; and
as his receipt would have been good against the claim, upon
showing that he was the real party in interest, we are unable

to perceive any reason Avhy any other description of discharge

would not be equally good. But the demurrer was special, and
assigned as cause, that these pleas only amounted to the general

issue. There can be no question but the defense set up by these

pleas would have been admissible under the general issue. And
as a general rule, whatever may be given in evidence under the

general issue, is considered as amounting to that issue. Some
matters must be pleaded specially,' and some others may be ; but

this defense is not embraced in either of them. We are, there-

fore, of the opinion that there was no error in sustaining this

demurrer. If, however, this was not true, the judgment should

be sustained on different grounds. The defense being admissi-

ble under the plea of non-assumpsit, the presumption is, that the

court below permitted the appellant to avail himself of this de-

fense on the trial ; and in this case, the presumption is not rebut-

ted by a bill of exceptions, showing that he was denied that

privilege ; and failing in that respect, the judgment should be
affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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John F. Stafford, Plaintiff in Error, v. Alfred G. Low,
Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO COOK.

In an action against a surety upon a bail bond, he may plead in defense that the

affidavit upon which the capias ad respondendum issued, did not show by facts

therein stated, that defendant had refused to surrender his estate, or any pre-

sumption that lie had been guilty of fraud— and if the facts pleaded are true,

they will constitute a complete defense to the action.

The officer executing such a capias, it being regular on its face, would be protected.

On the 29tli day of May, 1854, the defendant in error prayed

out of the Circuit Court of Cook county a writ of capias ad
respondendum in his favor, against Henry W. Burlingame, Isaac

T. Van Duzer, James C. Pomeroy and Alaza L. Hurd, return-

able on the first day of the next term, to be held on the fourth

Monday of October, 1854, in action of trespass on the case

upon promises, and directed to the sheriff of said county. The
writ was marked and indorsed for bail in the sum of $588.32,
by virtue of an affidavit filed for that purpose, and on the same
day delivered to the sheriff, who, on the 7th day of June, 1854,

arrested Burlingame, and thereupon he, with Nelson C. Roe,

Ethan A. Bruce and John F. Stafford, as sureties, executed a

bail bond of that date to the sheriff, in the penal sum of $1,180,
in the usual form. At the return term of the writ, no objection

was made to the bail, and the defendant in error, on the 3rd.

day of December, 1855, recovered judgment against Burlingame
for $641.85 damages, and $13.35 costs. On the 29th day of

February, 185G, Sifi.fa. was issued, and on the 6th day of De-
cember, 1856, returned " not satisfied." On the 6th day of

December, 1856, an affidavit was filed and a ca. sa. issued,

which was on the same day delivered to the sheriff, who, on the

6th day of March, 1857, returned " that Burlingame was not

found in his county." Thereupon, the present action of debt

was commenced by the defendant in error against Burlingame,

Bruce, Roe and Stafford. Stafford, the plaintiff in error, was
served, but the others were not found.

The declaration sets forth the above facts. Stafford appeared
and pleaded " tliat the affidavit upon which the capias ad respon-

dendum was issued against Burlingame, upon which Burlingame
was held to bail, as alleged in the declaration, did not comply
with the statute, and was wholly insufficient in the law, in that

the affiant did not show by facts therein stated, or circumstances

detailed, either that the defendants had refused to surrender

their estate for the benefit of their creditors, or any presump-
tion that said defendants had been guilty of fraud."
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To this plea a general demurrer was filed. The court below

sustained the demurrer, and rendered judgment for the defend-

ant in error for $1,180, debt, and damages $703.09, and costs
;

and Stafford brings the case to this court by writ of error.]

C. Beckwith, for Plaintiff in Error.

Ballingall & Adams, for Defendant in Error,

Walker, J. This was an action of debt brought on a

bail bond by Alfred G. Low against Henry W. Burlingame,

Nelson C. Roe, Ethan A. Bruce and John P. Stafford, in the

Cook Circuit Court, to the April term, 1857. It is averred in

the declaration, that on the 29th day of May, 1854, Low sued

out of the Cook Circuit Court a writ of capias ad respondendum
in his favor and against Burlingame, Isaac T. Van Duzer, James
C. Pomeroy and Alaza L. Hurd, returnable to the next October

term of that court, in an action of case on promises, and di-

rected to the sheriff of Cook county to execute. It was in-

dorsed for bail in the sum of $588.82, which was on the same
day delivered to the sheriff, who on the 7th day of June, 1854,
arrested Burlingame, and he, together with Nelson C. Roe,
Ethan A. Bruce and John P. Stafford, as his sureties, executed

the bail bond sued upon in this case, in the penal sum of $1,180,
which was in the usual form. No objection was made to the

bail bond at the return term. Afterwards, on the third day of

December, 1855, Low recovered a judgment against Burlingame

for $641.85 damages, and $13.35 costs. :,. Upon this judgment
a Ji. fa. was issued, and returned, no property found. On the

6th day of December, 1856, Low filed an affidavit on' which a

ca. sa. issued against Burlingame, and was returned not found.

That the defendants or either of them had not paid the judg-

ment or surrendered Burlingame in execution, and that the

judgment remained unsatisfied. Service in this suit was only

had upon defendant Stafford, who filed a plea that the affidavit

upon which the capias ad respondendum had issued, and upon
which Burlingame had been arrested and held to bail as alleged

in the declaration, did not comply with the statute and was
wholly insufficient in law in this, that the affiant did not show
by facts therein stated or circumstances detailed, that the de-

fendants had refused to surrender their estate for the benefit of

their creditors, or any presumption that the said defendants had
been guilty of fraud. To this plea, the plaintiff filed a general

demurrer, which was sustained by the court below, and a judg-

ment was rendered for plaintiff for $1,180 debt, and $703.09

11
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damages, and for costs. To reverse this judgment defendant

prosecutes this writ of error.

It is urged that this plea avers facts, showing that the affi-

davit upon which the capias ad respondendwn issued, was insuf-

ficient to authorize that writ to issue, and that the arrest under

it was illegal and the bail bond void. The 15th sec. 13th art. of

our State Constitution provides, that " No person shall be im-

prisoned for debt unless upon refusal to deliver up his estate

for the benefit of his creditors in such manner as shall be pre-

scribed by law, or in .cases where there is strong presumption of

fraud." The second section of chap. 14, R. S. 1845, p. 80,

provides that " in all actions to be commenced in any court of

record in this State, and founded upon any specialty, bill or

note in writing, or on the judgment of any court, foreign or

domestic, and in all actions of covenant and account, and
actions on verbal contracts or assumpsits in law, in which the

plaintifi" or other credible person can ascertain the sum due or

damages sustained, and the same will be in danger of being

lost, or the benefit of whatever judgment may be obtained will

be in danger, unless the defendant or defendants shall be held

to bail, and shall make affidavit thereof before the clerk of the

court from which process issues, or a justice of the peace of

this State, the clerk shall issue a capias and indorse thereon an
order or direction to the sheriff or officer to whom such process

shall be directed, to hold the defendant or defendants to bail in

the sum specified in such affidavit, and it shall be the duty of

the sheriff or officer serving such process to take bail accord-

ingly." The third section requires the officer to take a bail bond
with sufficient security in a penalty of double the sum for which
bail is required, gives the form of the bail bond, and provides

for its return. This statute is in direct conflict with the consti-

tution, if it was intended to give a plaintiff the right to im-

prison his debtor merely by making an oath that the debt will

be in danger of being lost, or that the benefit of any judgment
he may obtain will be in danger, unless the defendant is held to

bail. The constitution has prohibited imprisonment for debt,

except when the debtor shall refuse to surrender his property

for the benefit of his creditors, or where there is strong pre-

sumption of fraud, and until one of these is made to appear,

the writ cannot issue, no difference what else may be established.

The legislature may undoubtedly impose additional require-

ments, but have no power to abridge or dispense with those

imposed by the constitution. Its requirements are indispensa-

ble to the validity of a writ to imprison a defendant for debt.

Without the affidavit shows a compliance with the requirements
of both the constitution and statute, the clerk has no authority
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to issue the writ, and if issued, the sheriff has no power to take

bail that will be legal or binding. To hold that he might take

a valid bail bond under such a writ, would be to hold that the

party, by a violation of the provisions of the constitution, ac-

quired the same rights as if he had acted in accordance with it"^

requirements. A party never can obtain any legal benefit by c,

violation of the law. Chit. Cont. 513. And a violation of the

fundamental law of the State must produce the same effect.

While the writ was good as a summons, it was void as a capias,

for the defendants ; but like any other void process which is

regular on its face, it would protect the officer executing it, as

he need look no farther than to the writ. This plea does sub-

stantially show that the affidavit upon w^hich the capias was
issued, did not comply with the constitution, and if the facts

set up in the plea are true, they constituted a defense to this

suit, and the court below erred in sustaining the demurrer and
rendering judgment for plaintiff. The judgment of that court

should be reversed and the cause remanded.

Judgment 7'eversed.
^

Charles L. Armsby, Appellant, v. The People of the

State of Illinols, ex relatione Eleazar A. Paine, Ap-
pellees.

APPEAL PROM warren.

There is no redemption from a sale under a proceeding to enforce a mechanics'
lien ; although the sheriiF is directed to execute the decree by a sale of the land.

A judgment creditor cannot, under any circumstances, redeem from a sheriffs' sale

until after the expiration of twelve months.

The relator filed his petition in October, 1854, showing the

following statement of facts :

In April, 1851, a decree was made in a proceeding under the

statute to enforce a mechanics' lien in the Circuit Court of War-
ren county, Illinois, wherein Jesse Spencer was petitioner and
Jeremiah Baily was defendant, ordering and adjudging that the

said Baily pay the said Spencer $135 and costs of suit, and
that, in default of payment by Baily within six months, that the

south-east quarter of section nine, in township eleven north, in

range two west, in said county, be sold by the sheriff of said

county, upon the delivery to him of a certified copy of said

decree. That default was made by said Baily in said payment

;

that a certified copy of said decree was thereupon delivered to
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the sheriff of said county, and that the said sheriff, by virtue of

said decree, levied on said land and sold the same on the 23rd

day of October, A. D. 1852, after notice given as required by

said decree, to said Spencer, for the sum of $160.43 ; and that

a certificate of purchase was then delivered to said Spencer,

which was subsequently assigned to George F. Harding.

That at the September term of " the Circuit Court," A. D.

1852, a judgment was rendered in favor of Luzerne Bartholo-

mew, against said Baily, for $640.63 and costs, on which execu-

tion was issued and returned within the year ; and that on said

judgment a second execution was issued on 7th October, A. D.

1853, and delivered to the defendant, then sheriff of Warren
county, and was by him levied on said land ; and that, on the

same day, said Bartholomew then paid said sheriff |183.64 for

said Jesse Spencer and assigns, with the view of redeeming said

land from said sale to Spencer as a judgment creditor ; and that

said sheriff on the same day filed in the clerk's office a certificate

of redemption " thereof as aforesaid," and having duly advertised,

sold said land, on 1st December, 1853, to the relator for $900,
and delivered him a certificate of purchase, certifying that he

would be entitled to a deed of said premises on 1st February,

1854, unless redeemed.

That no other attempt was ever made by any other person to

redeem said land from said sale to Spencer ; that two years

have elapsed from said sale ; that no attempt has been made to

redeem the land from the sale to the relator, and that nine

months have elapsed since said sale.

That on 15th June, 1854, relator presented to defendant his

said certificate of purchase, and tendered and paid his fees, and
demanded said deed in accordance with said certificate, but

defendant refused and refuses to make and deliver said deed.

The relator then prays that a writ of mandamus may issue

against the said defendant, requiring him to make said deed, etc.

The agreement of the parties to said petition, agrees that

the petition contains all the facts with relation to the matters

therein stated, and that defendant enters his appearance and
waives service of alternative writ, and that the facts therein

stated may be taken as his return thereto, and that proceedings

may be had as if return had been made and issues formed, etc.

The record then shows the judgment of the Warren Circuit

Court, at April term, 1855, that peremptory writ issue com-
manding the defendant to make the deed according to the

prayer of the petition, and against defendant for costs of suit.

The defendant prayed an appeal to this court.

The order in this behalf was issued by Wead, Judge.
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The appellant assigns for error the following causes :

1. The court erred in rendering judgment against defend-

ant.

2. The court erred in commanding defendant to make deed

to relator.

3. The court erred in not dismissing the petition and render-

ing judgment for the defendant.

George F. Harding, Attorney for Appellant.

GouDY & JuDD, for Appellees.

Breese, J. This is an application for a peremptory manda-
mus, against the appellant, sheriff of Warren county, to compel
him to make a deed to Paine, the relator, for a certain tract of

land described in his petition, which he alleges he purchased

under an execution, and which has not been redeemed as pre-

scribed by law.

The facts are not disputed, and are substantially these : At
the April term, 1851, of the Warren Circuit Court, a decree

was rendered in a proceeding under the statute, to enforce a

mechanics' lien in favor of Jesse Spencer and against Jeremiah
Baily, ordering and adjudging that Baily pay to Spencer one

hundred and thirty-five dollars and costs of suit, within six

months from the entry of the decree, and, in default thereof,

the south-east quarter of section nine, in township eleven north,

in range two west, in said county, be sold by the sherifl" of the

county, upon delivery to him of a certified copy of the decree.

Baily made default, and a certified copy of the decree was
thereupon delivered to the sheriff, who sold the land, under it,

on the 23rd day of October, 1852, after notice as required by
the decree, to Spencer, for the sum of one hundred and sixty

dollars and forty-three cents, and gave him a certificate of pur-

chase, which he assigned to George F. Harding.

At the September term, 1852, of the Circuit Court—of what
county is not stated in the petition—a judgment was rendered
in favor of one Bartholomew, against the same Jeremiah Baily,

for $640 tVo and costs, on which execution was issued and re-

turned within the year—what the return was, does not appear

—

a second execution was issued on the 7th October, 1853, and
delivered to appellant, the sheriff, which he levied on the same
land above described, and on the same day Bartholomew paid

the sheriff $183x%*(y for Jesse Spencer and assigns, for the pur-

pose of redeeming the land from the sale to him under the

decree, which he claimed the right to do, as a judgment creditor,

and the sheriff on the same day filed in the clerk's office a cer-
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tificate of redemption " thereof as aforesaid," and, having duly

advertised the land, sold it, on the 1st December, 1863, to E.

A. Paine, the relator, for nine hundred dollars, and delivered

him a certificate of purchase, to the effect that he would be

entitled to a deed for the land, unless redeemed on the 1st

February, 1854.

No attempt was made by any other person to redeem the land

from this sale to Spencer under the decree, and none to redeem
from the relator, and on the 15th June, 1854, he presented to

the appellant, still being sherift", his certificate of purchase,

tendered and paid the fees, and demanded a deed, which the

appellant refused to execute. Resort is had to this proceeding

to compel him to make the deed in accordance with the certifi-

cate of purchase ; and the question wliich arises is, what was
the character of the sale under the decree in the proceeding to

enforce the mechanics' lien,—the solution of which disposes of

all the other points made in the case.

A reference to the language of the decree will determine this,

and that is as follows, so far as this point is concerned :
" And

in default of payment within six months, the premises (describ-

ing the land,) be levied upon and sold, upon delivery, to the

sheriff of said county, of a certified copy of said order and
decree."

It is contended by the relator, that, inasmuch as the sale was
not, under the decree, to be made by the master in chancery of

the county, or by a commissioner, but by the sheriff, who was
required to levy and sell, and did levy and sell, and give a
certificate of sale to the purchaser, such sale is, in effect, a sale

under execution, or a final process having the effect of an
execution.

An execution, or, as it is called in legal parlance, a fieri

facias, is the ordinary final process on judgments at law, the

form and office of which is well known and understood. It will

be perceived that the decree awards no execution nor final

process of any kind. The decree is, that the land be sold, upon
delivery to the sheriff " of a certified copy of said order and
decree." A copy of the decree only being delivered to the

sheriff, it cannot, in any proper understanding of the terms, be

regarded as " an execution or other final process," so as to

bring it within the 46th section of the chancery act, chap. 21,

That section declares, " when there shall be no master in

chancery or commissioner to execute a decree, the same may be
carried into effect by execution or other final process, according

to the nature of the case, directed to the sheriff or other officer

of the proper county, which, when issued, shall be executed and
returned by the sheriil or other officer to whom it may be
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directed, and shall have the same operation and force as similar

writs issued upon a judgment at law.
" Other final process" must be understood such final process

as is the practice of a court of chancery to issue, which are

ordinarily, besides executions, writs of attachment, of sequestra-

tion, and writs of assistance, all which must run in the name of
" The People of the State of Illinois." Sec. 26, art. 5, State

Const.

All this the court may do, but at the same time, it is not

prohibited from the use of other appropriate means to execute

its decrees, and it was competent for the court to clothe the

sheriff, as a convenient instrument, with authority to sell, with-

out spreading its reasons for so doing upon the record. Farm-
ivortli V. Strassler, 12 111. R. 482.

He is directed by the decree to execute the decree by a sale

of the land, upon delivery to him of a certified copy of the

decree, thereby making him, pro hcec vice, a commissioner for

such purpose only. His levying upon the land, and giving a

certificate to the purchasers, are his own acts, not warranted by
the decree ; that instructed him to sell the land. Having done
this, he was bound to make a deed to the purchaser, no redemp-
tion being allowed in such cases where none is provided for in

the decree. West and others v. Fleming-, 18 111. R. 248,

It is unnecessary to consider other questions raised on the

argument, as they are all subordinate, and merge in the one
decided. It may be well to say, however, that on the relator's

own showing, his attempted redemption of the land from the

decretal sale is a nullity, even if such sale was by execution,

and the property subject to redemption. A judgment creditor

cannot redeem until after the expiration of twelve months—not

within that time. It is a statutory privilege, and must be exer-

cised in conformity to the statute. R. S. 1845, 302.

The judgment is reversed.

Judgment reversed.

The People, ^.t 7xIatione John W. Mitchell, v. Richard jN".

Warfield, County Clerk of Saline County.

APPLICATION FOR MANDAMUS.

Upon the question of relocating a county seat, if the law only authorizes the clerk

to canvass the votes cast on the question of relocation, and certify the result,

without regard to other votes cast at the same election, he cannot give a certifi-

cate which will afford legal evidence that the county seat has been changed, in

:_ conformity with the requirements of the constitution.
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A majority of the legal votes cast at a voting for a relocation of a county seat, is

sufficient to determine the question. If the law authorizing the vote does not

provide for determining the question, the courts may do so on proper application.

Where the parties have commenced proceedings in another tribunal, to obtain an
adjudication of the question, this court will not (except in extraordinary cases)

interfere by mandamus.

The People, on the relation of John W. Mitchell, present a

a petition for a mandamus against Richard N. Warfield, county

clerk of Saline county, to compel him to issue a marriage license

authorizing the marriage of the relator and Mollie J. Provine.

The petition states that the relator is a free white male citizen

of the county of Saline, over twenty-one years of age ; that

Richard N. Warfield is the county clerk of Saline county, and
that it is a part of his official duty to give marriage licenses to

persons entitled thereto under the statute of this State ; that on
12th March, 1858, the said Richard N. Warfield was holding,

keeping and exercising the duties of his said office at the town
of Harrisburg, in the county of Saline ; that at such time the

relator applied to the said county clerk, at Harrisburg, to give

a marriage license authorizing the joining in marriage of the

relator and Mollie J. Provine ; that the parties were competent

to enter upon such relation with each other ; that the consent of

all persons interested had been obtained, of which the said county

clerk had notice.

The petition further states, that the relator tendered the law-

ful fees to the county clerk, but the said county clerk refused to

issue the marriage license demanded, and still refuses so to do.

The petition prays for the issue of an alternative writ of man-
damus against the said Richard N. Warfield, county clerk of

Saline county, commanding him to give the marriage license, or

to show cause why he does not give the same.

The defendant, Warfield, waives the issuing and service of

the alternative writ, and makes his return, in which he admits

all the statements in the petition, but shows, as the cause why
he refused and still refuses to give the marriage license, as

follows

:

That, by virtue of an act of the General Assembly, entitled

" An Act to relocate the county seat of Saline county," approved
February 7, 1857, on Tuesday after 1st Monday in November,
1857, an election was held in Saline county for the relocation of

the county seat of the said county.

That 1440 votes were polled at the election. That Harris-

burg received 725 votes, Raleigh 689 votes," and 26 persons

voting at said election did not vote for either place.

That, in compliance with the aforesaid law, and the election

thereunder, on the 12th December, 1857, he removed his office

of county clerk from Raleigh to Harrisburg.
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That on the 19th December, 1857, one Lenson B. Carnes filed

his bill in chancery against defendant and other county officers.

That, at a special term. Circuit Court of Saline county, held

at Raleigh, 8th March, 1857, their answers and replications

thereto were filed.

That, on the 12th day of March, at said court, the court

awarded an injunction against said defendant and the other

county officers, as prayed for in the bill of complaint.

That, when the relator applied for said license, defendant was
at a loss to know how to proceed, the law and election thereun-

der requiring him to hold his office at Harrisburg, and the

injunction (awarded but not issued) requiring him to hold his

office at Raleigh.

That he refused to issue the marriage license as stated.

That he submits the question whether it is his duty to remove
to Raleigh with his office, or keep the same in Harrisburg, and
issue to said relator the marriage license as applied for.

Submits his return, and prays to be dismissed with costs, etc.

And the said relator comes and files his demurrer to said

return of the defendant, etc.

The following is an abstract of the bill in chancery, made a

part of the answer to the foregoing petition

:

The complainant, a tax-payer and citizen of Saline county,

shows that by an act of the General Assembly of the State of

Illinois, Raleigh was made the county seat of Saline county, and
still is said county seat ; that courts probate, county and circuit,

had been held there, and that the circuit and county clerks and
sheriff had resided and kept their offices at Raleigh.

And that public buildings had been erected at Raleigh, at the

expense of the county.

Shows the 5th sec, 7th art., constitution, in relation to the

removal of county seats.

Shows act of legislature, approved 7th February, 1857,
entitled " An Act to relocate the county seat of Saline county."

Avers that said act is unconstitutional, for two reasons

:

1st. That the removal of the county seat shall take place

upon a majority of those voting for or against such removal cast-

ing their votes for Harrisburg, and not a majority of the voters

of the county, as contemplated by the constitution.

2nd. That said law does not fix the point to which said

county seat was to be removed.
Shows that notice was given and an election held under said

law, for the relocation of the county seat, on Tuesday after 1st

Mondav in November, 1857.
That 1440 votes were cast at said election, 725 for Harris-

burg, 689 for Raleigh, and 26 who did not vote for either place
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for county seat, showing an apparent majority of five votes in

favor of Harrisburg.

He avers that forty or fifty persons entitled to vote at said

election did not vote.

He avers that 123 votes cast at said election for Harrisburg

were illegal votes ; that the number of legal votes cast at said

election was 1317—602 for Harrisburg. Schedule of illegal

votes annexed.

That the election of Harrisburg was the result of fraud.

And that Raleigh was elected the county seat at said election.

That said election is void by reason of frauds, etc.

That R. N. Warfield, county clerk, since said election, removed
his office from Raleigh to Harrisburg ; that Hiram Burnett talks

of removing his office to Harrisburg.

That Wm. Roark, sheriff of said county, has also removed his

office to Harrisburg.

That Moses P. McGehee, James Stricklin and Wm. Watkins,
members of the County Court, are threatening to hold the courts

at Harrisburg.

That R. N. Warfield, county clerk, removed his office in

compliance with an order of said court.

And are about contracting for the erection of public buildings

at Harrisburg, to the injury of the tax-payers of the county.

That the County Court threatens to sell the public buildings at

Raleigh,

That defendants in concert refuse to recognize Raleisfh as the

county seat, but claim that Harrisburg is the county seat.

Prays for an injunction against the defendants, restraining

and enjoining the clerks and sheriff from keeping or holding

their offices at Harrisburg, and requiring the county clerk and
sheriff to return to Raleigh ; restraining the county judge and
county justices from holding their courts at Harrisburg ; from
contracting for the erection of public buildings there ; from sell-

ing the public buildings at Raleigh; from making roads to or

from Harrisburg, or spending any county funds for the improve-

ment thereof, etc.

The bill is sworn to.

The separate answer of Moses P. McGehee admits that Ra-
leigh was the county seat ; denies that it now is the county

seat.

Admits the passage of the law of February 7th, 1857 ; denies

its unconstitutionality.

Admits the notice and the election under the law, and the

aggregate vote polled at said election, and the vote Harrisburg
and Raleigh, etc., and that 26 voters did not vote for either

place ; denies that a majority of the voters of the county did
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not vote for Harrisburg ; denies that illegal votes were cast for

Harrisburg
;
gives a list of persons charged in bill to be illegal

voters, who are legal voters, etc. ; states nothing as to the others.

Charges that Harrisburg received 725 legal votes at said

election.

Denies that the persons named upon schedule attached to bill

are illegal voters.

Charges that 78 votes, cast for Raleigh at said election, were
illegal and fraudulent.

Denies that Harrisburg was elected by fraud ; charges that it

was the free choice of the people of the county.

Admits that, after it was ascertained that Harrisburg was the

county seat, R. N. Warfield, county clerk, removed his office to

Harrisburg, about the 12th December, 1857, and entered upon
the discharge of the duties of his office there.

Admits that, as county judge (after the county clerk removed
his office there), he held his courts at Harrisburg, both county

and probate.

Admits that Wm. Roark, sheriff of said county, removed his

office to Harrisburg, also.

Denies that the County Court has ever made an attempt to

erect public buildings at Harrisburg, squandered any of the

public money, or contemplates selling the public buildings at

Raleigh.

Knows nothing of persons entitled to vote at said election

who did not vote thereat.

Charges that, when the law of 7th February, 1857, was passed,

Harrisburg was known as a town near the centre of the county,

six miles south of Raleigh ; contained a large number of inhab-

itants ; was regularly laid ofl", platted, and known by the voters

of said county.

Signed, sworn to, etc.
',

W. B, ScATES, and G. B. Raum, for Relator.

R. S. Nelson, and B. C. Cook, for Respondents.

Walker, J. The law for the election for the relocation of

the county seat of Saline county, under which this election was
held, was not as broad as the requirements of the constitution

authorizing a relocation of county seats. That provision re-

quires that a majority of the voters of the county shall vote for

the change. This law only requires the clerk to canvass the

votes cast on the question of relocation, and certify the result,

without regard to other votes cast at the same election. Be-

yond this, in that certificate, he is not authorized to go.



164 OTTAWA,

People, ex rel. Mitchell v. Warfield.

Therefore, under that law, he can give no certificate which will

afford legal evidence that a majority of the voters of the county

have voted for the one place or the other. His certificate,

therefore, cannot aftbrd legal evidence that the county seat has

been changed, under the provisions of the constitution. That
must be an open question to be tried in any legal mode, the

same as if the law had not authorized him to canvass the vote

at all. The statute itself cannot be sustained under the con-

stitution, if we adhere to its literal expressions, for it requires,

in order to relocate the county seat, but a majority of the votes

cast on the question of relocation, whereas the constitution

goes farther, and requires a majority of the voters of the county.

The law may be sustained by reading it in the light of the con-

stitution, and construe it as giving effect to the affirmative

vote, when such affirmative vote is by a majority of the legal

voters of the county. The legislature may have assumed, and
doubtless did, that all would vote upon the question, and such is

the practical effect if we count the votes in the negative, which
are silent on the subject. In this mode alone can the law be

sustained authorizing township organization, which has been in

operation in most of the northern counties of the State since

the adoption of the constitution. It is a question of no small

difficulty to determine in what mode it shall be ascertained who
are the voters of the county, so as to determine whether a

majority have voted in favor of a relocation.

The same difficulty arises under the law authorizing township
organization. This portion of the constitution must receive a
practical construction. We understand it to assume—and such,

we believe, was the understanding of its framers—that the

voters of the county referred to were the voters who should

vote at the election authorized by it. If we go beyond this,

and inquire whether there were other voters of the county who
were detained from the election by absence or sickness, or vol-

untarily absented themselves from the polls, we should introduce

an interminable inquiry, and invite contest in elections of the

most harrassing and baneful character, if we did not destroy

all of the practical benefits of laws passed under these provis-

ions of the constitution. We hold, therefore, that a majority

of the legal votes cast at this election is sufficient to determine
the question of a relocation of the county seat. See 1 Sneed
R. 692.

As the law itself provided no mode for the determination of

this question, it must be left to the courts of law for their adju-

dication, whenever a dispute arises, and is presented to them in

proper form. Of this subject, the courts of equity have un-



APRIL TERM, 1858. 165

Lucas et al. v. Harris.

doubted jurisdiction. See case of Horn R. Kneass, 2 Select

Equity Cases, by Parsons, 553.

The case before us shows that a bill in equity was filed in due

form, and by proper parties, in the Circuit Court of Saline

county, for the purpose of settling this very question, which is

now pending and undetermined, and in which a temporary

injunction has been issued, restraining the present defendant

from keeping his office at Harrisburg, to which it is insisted by

the relator, that the county seat of Saline county was removed
at the election referred to. Admitting that this court has

jurisdiction to try the question in this proceeding for a man-
damus, we are not bound to do so, nor is it proper that we
should do so, when another court has acquired jurisdiction

properly, and is proceeding to exercise it, especially when we
are asked to compel a party to do a thing from which he is

restrained by an injunction issued by a court of competent

jurisdiction. We leave the question, therefore, to be settled by
that court, which has every facility of purging the poll books,

and ascertaining all the facts upon which a correct decision

necessarily depends. In the meantime, as there has been, and
can be, no other legal mode of determining the result of this

question, the county seat must remain unchanged.

The application for a mandamus must be refused. •

Julia Lucas et al, PaintifFs in Error, v. John Harris,

Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO MARSHALL.

On a bill to foreclose a mortgage, the note or bond to secure which the mortgage
was given, should be produced, or its non-production properly accounted for.

This rule should be especially regarded in old transactions.

The holder of the obligation secured by a mortgage, can control the mortgage.
A release of a debt secured by a mortgage need not be under seal.

The defendant, John Harris, who was complainant below,
filed his bill in the Circuit Court of Marshall county, on the 8th

day of February, 1856, alleging that on the 12th day of May,
1837, Edwin Mills, of the State of New York, was indebted to

the complainant in the sum of $700, for the purchase money of

S. E. 27, 30 N., 1 W., 3rd P. M., and executed a mortgage to

complainant for said premises and two other lots, dated May
12th, 1837, a copy of which is set out in the bill.
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He avers that on the 8th day of November, 1855, the mort-

gage was recorded in the recorder's office of Marshall county,

being the county in which the land lay.

Avers that the debt of $700 mentioned in the mortgage has

never been paid, nor any part of it, nor interest, and that the

same became due on the 9th day of September, 1838, and that

a note was given for the said debt, falling due Sept. 9, 1838.

He further charges that after the execution of the mortgage

to complainant, to wit : on the 13th day of January, 1839, the

said Edwin Mills also executed a mortgage to his brother, Har-

low Mills, for a pretended debt of $2,000, on said quarter sec-

tion of Und and other lands.

Charges that said Edwin Mills was not, at the time of the

execution of the mortgage, indebted to Harlow Mills in $2,000
or any other sum, but that the same was made to hinder and
delay complainant in the collection of his debt.

That the said mortgage to said Harlow Mills was recorded

on the 2nd day of March, 1839, and prior to the recording of

complainant's mortgage.

Charges that said Harlow Mills had notice of the complain-

ant's mortgage at the time of the making of the mortgage to

him, and afterwards promised complainant to pay the same, and
that said Harlow Mills frequently admitted to others that he

knew of complainant's mortgage, and that the same was unpaid.

The complainant further charges that on the 17th day of

February, 1842, the said Edwin Mills and Eliza Ann his wife,

for the consideration of $2,100, as expressed in their deed,

executed a deed of that date to Harlow Mills, and purporting

to make the deed subject to the mortgage of Harlow Mills, and
stating therein that the mortgage formed a part of the con-

sideration of the deed.

He charges that at the time of the execution of the deed the

said Harlow Mills had notice of complainant's mortgage, and
agreed to pay the same.

That Harlow Mills died intestate, on or about the 20th day of

October, 1845, and that his widow, Julia Mills, since intermar-

ried with one John Wilson, was appointed administratrix of his

estate, and that the said John Wilson also died on or about the

year 1845, and that Harlow Mills left, as children and heirs at

law, Julia, a minor, now intermarried with James P. Lucas, and
William Henry and John Gale, also minors, and that said chil-

dren and widow are yet the legal owners of the said quarter

section of land.

Claims that the said quarter section should be subject to the

payment of his mortgage, and have preference of the one exe-

cution to Harlow Mills, and that no good or valuable considera-
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tion ever passed for the execution of the deed, except the

pretended debt of $2,000 specified in the mortgage.

The bill prays that said widow and heirs of Harlow Mills be
made parties, and that guardians be appointed, and that the

land be sold to pay off the mortgage and interest of complainant.

At the April term, 1856, the respondents answered the com-
plainant's bill, denying that Edwin Mills, on the 12th day of

May, or at any other time, was indebted to the complainant in

the sum of $700 or any other sum, for the purchase money of

said quarter. Deny that said Edwin Mills ever executed the

mortgage to complainant, as charged in the bill, and that if any
such mortgage was made to complainant, it was without con-

sideration. They admit that a certain paper, claimed to be a

mortgage, was recorded on the 8th day of November, 1855.

Deny that the sum of $700 or any other sum was due com-
plainant at the filing of the bill.

They admit that on the loth day of January, 1839, Edwin
Mills and wife executed to Harlow Mills a mortgage on the land
in controversy and other lands mentioned in the bill. They
deny that the mortgage to Harlow Mills was for a pretended
debt, and aver that the sum of $2,000 had been due and owing
from the said Edwin Mills to said Harlow Mills from the 28th
day of June, 1837.

They deny that the mortgage from Edwin to Harlow Mills

was made to delay, hinder or defraud the complainant or any
other person, and admit that the said mortgage to Harlow was
recorded on the 2nd day of March, 1839.

They deny that said Harlow Mills had knowledge in any
manner of any mortgage to complainant, and deny that said

Harlow ever promised to pay the same.

They deny that Harlow Mills ever acknowledged the existence

of a mortgage to complainant as charged. They admit the

execution of the deed on the 17th of February, 1842, from
Edwin Mills and wife to Harlow Mills, of the premises and
others for the sum of $2,100, and deny any knowledge of com-
plainant's mortgage by said Harlow at the time of the execution

of the deed.

They admit the death of Harlow Mills ; that his widow in-

termarried with John Wilson, and that he died in 1855 and not

in 1845, and that he left the children and heirs at law as men-
tioned in the bill, and that Julia is married to James P. Lucas.

They deny that there was no good and valuable consideration

for the execution of the mortgage and deed, but that the same
was bona fide and for valuable consideration.

They deny that said Edwin Mills ever owed any sum of
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money whatever, or made any mortojage whatever to said com-
plainant, and if any ever was made, deny that it was ever known
to said Harlow Mills or his heirs.

They insist that the statute of limitations is a bar to the

action, and also that the lapse of time bars any recovery on the

mortgage.

That at the time of the execution of the mortgage and deed,

the lands conveyed in said mortgage and deed did not exceed

$1,000.
The complainant put in general replication. A guardian ad

(item was appointed by the court for the minors, and who filed

his answer denying any knowledge of the facts charged in the

bill, and calling for proof, and that the rights of the minors be

protected by the court.

At the April term, on the 18th day of April, 1856, the ap-

pearance of Edwin Mills was withdrawn by leave of the court,

and on the 21st day of Oct., 1858, the complainant took his

deposition, which was read on the hearing.

There was no proof whatever in relation to the note to secure

which this mortgage was given, but the proof related to the

mortgage to Harlow Mills.

The case was submitted to Ballou, Judge, at the October
term of the Marshall Court, 1857, who rendered a decree in

favor of complainant for the sum of $1,501.50, and in default

of the payment thereof within twenty days, that the mortgaged
premises be sold to satisfy the same, after giving four weeks
notice by publication ; and in case the said mortgaged premises

should not sell for enough to satisfy the said amount of said

decree, that execution issue against Edwin Mills for the re-

mainder, as on judgments at law.

At the October term, 1857, the defendants entered a motion
to vacate the decree for the following reasons, and which motion
was overruled

:

The debt was barred by the statute of limitations.

Because the note was not produced in evidence, and under
such circumstances the court ought to presume the debt paid.

Because of the lapse of time the debt ought to be presumed
paid.

Because the court erred in admitting the deposition of Mills

in evidence when he was a party to the suit and interested in

having a decree rendered against the premises.

Because the evidence was insufficient to authorize a recovery.

Because the note described in the mortgage was not produced
in the case.

Because the decree was for too large a sura.
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Because the bill was insufficient, not setting out the note nor
showing when it became due, nor what rate of interest it bore,

if any, nor when interest commenced running.

No notice was proven to Harlow Mills before nor at the time

he took his mortgage on the premises.

The payment of taxes was a bar to complainant's recovery,

the land being vacant and unoccupied.

The bill does not allege, and it Avas not proven, that the

money could not be collected of Edwin Mills.

Wead & Williamson, for Plaintiffs in Error.

N. H. Purple, for Defendant in Error.

Breese, J. Without going into the merits of this case, it is

sufficient to say that one defect appears which must reverse this

decree.

The bill alleges that a note was executed at the date of the

mortgage, and for the same sum of money—both on the 9th

September, 1838—and the note payable on that day.

Now, it is well understood that the note is the principal thing,

the mortgage being only the incident. It is a security given for

the debt mentioned in the note, and nothing more, for the mort-

gagor remains the real owner of the land, if of land, until the

breach of the condition and entry by the mortgagee, or foreclo-

sure. Until this time it is personal estate, and passes as per-

sonal property upon the death of the mortgagee. The principal

right of the mortgagee is to the money, and his right to the

land is only as security for the money. A release of a debt

secured by mortgage need not be under seal. Ri/an v. Dunlap,
17 111. R. 40.

In Jackson ex dem. v. Willard, 4 Johns. R. 42, Chief Justice

Kent says :
" Lord Hardwicke held that, at law, a discharge of

a mortgage debt by parol was considered as a discharge of the

mortgage ; that even the law considers the debt as the prin-

cipal, and the land as an accident only." He further says

:

"It is but an incident attached to the debt, and in reason and
propriety, it cannot, and ought not to, be detached from its

principal. The mortgage interest, as distinct from the debt, is

not a fit subject of assignment. It has no determinate value.

If it should be assigned, the assignee must hold the interest at

the will and disposal of the creditor who holds the bond. The
control over the mortgaged premises must essentially reside in

him who holds the debt. It would be absurd in principle, and
oppressive in practice, for the debt and the mortgage to be
separated, and placed in different and independent hands."

12
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If this be so, and we do not question it, it is all-important,

on a bill filed to foreclose, or to sell, that the note should be

produced, or a good account given for its non-production. It

would be absurd to deal with an " accident," as Lord Hard-

wicke calls a mortgage, without accounting for the main fact or

principal thing.

And this rule should hold, especially in old transactions like

this, and not free from suspicions of its fairness.

The mortgage and note were both executed on the 9th Sep-

tember, 1838, the note payable on that day. The mortgagor

died in 1845, and the mortgage deed not placed on record until

ten years after the mortgagor's death. All these very sus-

picious circumstances may be explained, and before any decree

can pass in complainant's favor, they must be explained, and the

non-production of the note clearly and satisfactorily accounted

for. It may be that the note has been paid long since, and that

is a reasonable presumption ; or, it may be in the hands of

another party, who, holding it, would have a right to control

this security. Reavis et al. v. Fielden, 18 111. R. 77. .*
'

The decree of the Circuit Court is reversed and the cause

remanded. .

,

Decree reversed.

Chester Carpenter, Appellant, v. John Ambroson,
Appellee.

APPEAL FROM McHENRY COUNTY COURT.

It is not erroneous to refuse to permit a witness to answer a question which
assumes that an arrangement had been made where none had been shown.

A conversation between a witness and the plaintiff to a suit, long before the occur-

rence of the matters in dispute, is not proper evidence.

Conflicting testimony is left to the jury, and it is the province of that body to

weigh it, and unless some gross wrong is perpetrated by the jury, the vei'dict

Avill not be disturbed.

This was an action of assumpsit, commenced before a justice

of the peace, brought by appellee against appellant. Judgment
was rendered, in favor of plaintifi", for fifty-two dollars and two
cents, and costs of suit, and the suit taken to the County Court of

McHenry county by appeal, and the cause coming on to be
heard, the plaintiff called, as a witness, Ambrose Ambroson,
who testified that he was a son of plaintiff; that the spring after

Daniel Carpenter went to California, plaintiff sold defendant a

yoke of steers for $28. Plaintiff said he would sell the steers
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cheap if defendant would indorse the price upon the ^48 note

that Daniel Carpenter held against him, which note was left

with defendant for collection. Defendant agreed to this and
took the steers. Plaintiff broke prairie for defendant to the

amount of $10.63. Defendant had hay of the plaintiff to the

amount of $6.

After Daniel returned from California, the defendant wanted
father to let him turn the price of the steers, the breaking and
the hay, upon what the plaintiff owed Daniel for lumber, and
apply the balance upon the interest upon the $48 note. To
this plaintiff objected, and said it must be indorsed on the $48
note.

Plaintiff admitted that this note was held by defendant only

as agent for collection for Daniel Carpenter.

The plaintiff then offered in evidence the note above referred to.

The defendant then called Daniel Carpe7iter, who testified as

follows

:

I am a brother of defendant. I started from McHenry
county for California the last of December, 1851. Before I

went I owned two notes against the plaintifl', one for $48, and
another originally for $55. There were various indorsements

on this note, and about $29 due upon it.

Ques. What arrangement was made between the plaintiff

and yourself, at or before the time you started for California,

about the payment of the note you had against him ?

Objected to by plaintiff, and ol>jection sustained by the court,

and defendant excepted.

Witness further testified that, at the time he went to Califor-

nia, he informed the plaintiff that he could pay the notes to

Chester Carpenter, the defendant.

Ques. State all you said to the plaintiff at that time, and
what his replies were to such statements.

Objected to by plaintiff, and sustained by the court. Defend-
ant excepted.

The jury found for the plaintiff, and assessed his damages at

fifty-two dollars and two cents.

The defendant then entered a motion for a new trial, which
was overruled by the court, and the defendant excepted.

The court then rendered, judgment in favor of the plaintiff.

Glover & Cook, for Appellant.

L. S. Church, for Appellee.

Walker, J. The first assignment of error questions the

correctness of the decision of the court below, in refusing to
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permit the witness Daniel Carpenter to answer this question

:

" What arrangement was made between the plaintiff and your-

self, at or before the time you started for California, about the

note you held against him ?" This question is objectionable in

form, as it assumes that some arrangement had been made when
none had been shown. It does not appear that any arrange-

ment which might have been made by them had any relevancy

to the issue the jury were then trying. If it was to show the

agency of defendant for the collection of the note, plaintiff had
already admitted that fact, and this witness so testified, and
that he notified plaintiff before he left for California. We are

of the opinion that there was no error in refusing to permit the

witness to answer the question.

It was again urged that the court erred in not permitting the

witness to testify to all that was said at the time that he notified

plaintiff that defendant was witness' agent. We are at a loss

to imagine in what manner a conversation between witness and
plaintiff, long before the occurrence of the matters in dispute,

could tend in any way to shed light on those transactions.

There was no error in excluding the evidence.

It was urged that the verdict was not warranted by the evi-

dence. The evidence was conflicting, and it was for the jury

to determine which was entitled to the most weight. The evi-

dence showed that appellant got of appellee a yoke of cattle, at

twenty-eight dollars, hay amounting to six dollars, and appellee

broke prairie for appellant, amounting to ten dollars and sixty-

three cents, making, in all, forty-four dollars and sixty-three

cents. The evidence showed that the oxen were got in the

spring of 1852, and if the other articles were obtained about

the same time, there would be over three years from the time

when they were obtained before judgment was recovered. It

was agreed by all parties that the price of these articles was to

be applied on the notes which Daniel Carpenter held against

appellee, and if the amount was not indorsed or allowed in that

manner, the appellee would be entitled to recover interest from
the time it should have been so applied. The jury have, by
their verdict, found that such application was not made, and the

interest on the amount would make fully as much or more than

they find by their verdict. We think the verdict is sustained

by the evidence.

We are unable to perceive any objections to the instructions

given for the plaintiff below. They seem to contain the law as

applicable to the evidence before the jury. Upon the whole
record, we are unable to perceive any error for which this judg-

ment should be reversed, and it is, therefore, affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.



APRIL TERM, 1858. 173

Swift et al. v. Green et al.

Richard K. Swift et al, Appellants, v. George Green et

al, Appellees.

APPEAL FROM COOK. .
"

Where three are sued, and service of process is upon two, and no appearance for

all, judgment cannot go against all.

This case is stated in the opinion of the court.

ScATES, McAllister, Jewett & Peabody, for Appellants.

G. W. & J. A. Thompson, for Appellees.

Walker, J. This was an action of assumpsit, brought by-

Green, Ware and Rice, against Richard K. Swift, Lyman P.

Swift and James S. Johnston, in the Cook Circuit Court, to the

special January term, 1858. The summons was returned served

on Richard K. Swift and James S. Johnston, and, as to Lyman
P. Swift, not found. On the 16th day of January, 1858, a
judgment by default was rendered against all the defendants for

the sum of two hundred and ninety-one dollars and seventy-five

cents. There w^as no appearance entered by defendant Lyman
P. Swift. And to reverse this judgment the defendants below
prosecute this appeal, and assign for error that judgment was
rendered against Lyman P. Swift when he had not been served

with process and had not entered his appearance to the action.

It is clearly erroneous to render judgment against all of sev-

eral defendants when any one of them is not in court by service

or otherwise. The service on a portion of the defendants does

not give the court jurisdiction of those not served. O' Conner
et al. V. Mullen, 11 111. R. 116 ; Davidson et al. v. Bond et al.,

12 111. R. 84 ; Brockman et al. v. McDonald, 16 111. R. 112.

The judgment of the court below is reversed, and the cause

remanded.
Jiidgme7it reversed.
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Thornton Wolfe, Appellant, v. Edward Stone, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM PEORIA.

In a bill to enforce a mechanics' lien, where the finding is against the weight of

evidence, in a matter of damages arising out of the quality of the work, the de-

cree may be reformed in this court.

The decree in this case was entered by Powell, Judge, at

December term, 1857, of the Peoria Circuit Court.

The evidence is elaborate, and will not furnish instruction in

other cases, and is therefore not inserted.

Lindsay & Landee, for Appellant.

H. Grove, for Appellee.

Breese, J. It it unnecessary to review the testimony in this

cause very critically. It was a petition for a mechanics' lien.

The record shows that the instructions given by the court, were
by agreement of parties, and of course no errors can be assigned

on them.

The original contract price, for the work to be done, was one

thousand dollars ; the extra work amounted to three hundred
and sixty-nine dollars and twenty-one cents ; amounting, in all,

to thirteen hundred and sixty-nine dollars and twenty-one cents.

There was a controversy about the quality of the work and
the damages sustained on account of defects in it. Five wit-

nesses named different sums, the average being three hundred
dollars ; and five others testified that it was a good common job.

He also paid, on the work, six hundred and ninety dollars and
five cents. Allowing the damages, the two sums, the payments
and damages, amount to nine hundred and ninety-nine dollars

and five cents. Deducting this from the amount of work, leaves

a balance against the defendant of three hundred and seventy

dollars and sixteen cents. The verdict is for four hundred and
eleven dollars and twenty-seven cents, making a difl'erence of

forty-one dollars and eleven cents.

There was conflicting testimony about the quality of the work,
but the weight of evidence is unfavorable to its quality.

The decree is reduced forty-one dollars and eleven cents, and
entered here for three hundred and seventy dollars and sixteen

cents, and the costs of this court equally divided between the

parties.

Decree reformed.
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William W. Bishop, Appellant, v. Levi Newton et al,

Appellees.

APPEAL FROM KANE.

One party to a contract cannot complain until he has put his adversary in default

by a substantial performance of the contract on his part, nor until a failure or
refusal to perform by the other.

Where a party contracts to give a title free from incumbrances, the purchaser is

not bound to pay his money and receive a deed, while incumbrances exist against

the property.

Where A contracted to sell land to B, for which the latter paid down Si,000, and
was to pay $2,000 more by a day named, or within fifteen days thereafter, or

forfeit what he had paid, and satisfj^ a certain mortgage, except the interest for

a named year, which A was to pay ; B being in default by not having paid the

$2,000 by the day named, within fifteen days thereafter A sold the land to other

parties : Held, that as A was himself in default, and that B performed a part of

his contract and had within a reasonable time, off'ered to perform entirely on his

part, that on a bill filed for that purpose, A should be made to convey to B.
The contract between A and B was of record, and was notice to all other persons

;

and whoever dealt with A in relation to those lands, was bound to take notice

of it.

This was a proceeding in chancery ; the bill states that on
the 29th day of September, A. D. 1855, the complainant and
defendant Newton entered into the following agreement

:

i

Know all Men by thkse Presents, That Levi Newton, of the county of

Kane, and State of Illinois, is held and firmly bound unto William W. Bishop, of

the county of Worcester, and State of Massachusetts, party of the second part, in

the penal sum of eighteen thousand dollars, to be paid unto the said party of the

second part, his heirs, executors, and administrators and assigns, to which payment

well and truly to be made, I bind myself, my heirs, executors and administrators

and every of them, firmly by these presents : Sealed with my seal, this 29th day

of September, A. D. 1855.

The condition of the above obligation is such, that whereas, the above bounden

Levi Newton has this day sold to the said party of the second part, his heirs and

assigns, for the sum of twelve thousand dollars, payable as follows : One thousand

down, and two thousand on the first day of Januarj', A. D. 1856, and the other

nine thousand to be paid to one Leonidas Doty, according to a mortgage made on

the 14th day of October, 1854, which he is to assume and pay, except the interest on

said mortgage for the year 1855— Deed to be made on the second payment being

made, subject to said mortgage— all his right, title and interest to the following

described lot or parcel of land, to wit : The land conveyed to said Levi Newton,

by deed from Leonidas Doty and wife, on the 14th day of October, 1854, and

acknowledged the 4th day of December, 1854 ; the description of lands which is

fully set out in said deed, and which said description is made by agreement a part

of this bond. It is also agreed that said Newton is to get it surveyed within one

year, and is not to cut or sell any standing timber on said land, and have only the

right to take firewood for one fire from that which is down ; also then give posses-

sion of the premises fully. It is also agreed that if said Bishop fails to make pay-
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ment within fifteen days after the first day of January, 1856, he forfeits what he

has paid, and all rights under this bond. Upon the payment of said sum being

made at the time and in the manner aforesaid, the said Levi Newton, his heirs,

executors and assigns, covenant and agree to and with the said party of the second

part, his heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, to execute a good and suffi-

cient deed of conveyance, in fee simple, free from all incumbrance, with full and

proper covenants of warranty, for the above described premises, except said mort-

gage above mentioned. Now, upon payment being m.ade as aforesaid, if the said

Levi NcAvton shall well and truly keep, observe and perform the said covenants and

a^-reements herein contained on his part, then this obligation to be void, otherwise

to remain in full force and virtue.

Signed, LEVI NEWTON, [l. s.]

WM. W. BISHOP, [l. s.]

That tlio above boucl was recorded in the recorder's office, in

Kane county, on the 29th day of September, 1855.

That on the day the bond was executed, complainant paid

defendant Newton ^1,000, which was indorsed on the bond.

That betvreen the first and fifteenth of January, 1856, com-

plainant told defendant that he would not receive funds from

the East as he expected, in time to make payment by the 15th.

of January, 1856, but if defendant required payment by that

time, he would borrow the necessary amount and pay him ; de-

fendant replied, " a few days will make no difierence."

That on the 5th day of February, 1856, being twenty days

after the time mentioned in the bond when the payment should

be made, complainant called on defendant and told him he was
then ready to make payment and receive his deed, when defend-

ant informed complainant that he was too late, as he had sold

said premises— defendant refused to accept payment and make
a deed to complainant.

That defendant Newton, on the 5th day of February, 1856,
conveyed the land in question to defendants Goudy, for $12,750,
being $750 more than the same was sold to complainant for.

That defendant Newton refused to refund the sum of $1,000,
whicli he had received on said bond. That complainant was in

Batavia, where defendant Newton resided, from the 15th of

January till the 5th of February, 1856, which fact was known
to defendant Newton. That the sale to defendants Goudy was
purposely concealed from complainant for the purpose of de-

frauding him.

That by the terms of the bond, defendant Newton was to

pay the interest on the mortgage, mentioned therein, for the
year 1855, which he had not done at the time he sold to the

Goudys. That the interest aforesaid amounted to the sum of

$1,000, which was a lien on said premises by virtue of the

mortgage.
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That complainant repeatedly offered to make payment, and

upon refusal by Newton to accept the same, has repeatedly de-

manded a return of the said sum of $1,000.

And prayed that the court would vacate the deed from New-
ton to defendants Goudy, decree a specific performance against

Newton, and for such further relief as to the court might seem
equitable and just.

The answer admits the execution and recording of the bond,

and the payment of $1,000, as charged in the bill. That de-

fendant Newton knew complainant was in Batavia from the

loth day of January to the 6th of February, 1856—denies that

he agreed to extend the time of payment beyond the 15th day
of January, 1856. Admits that complainant told him, Newton,
on the 5th of February, 1856, that he was then ready to make
payment and receive a deed according to the agreement, that

he then told complainant he was too late, as he had sold the

premises. Admits he sold to defendants Goudy for $12,750.
Admits that the interest due on the mortgage to Doty for the

year 1855, amounted to $630, and that the same had not been
paid on the 5th of February, 1856, the date of the sale to the

Goudys, but avers as an excuse, that early in December, 1855,
he wrote to complainant, asking him to stop at Buffalo, N. Y.,

and pay said Doty $1,000, or deposit that sum in a bank to his

credit. That he received an answer to said letter, declining to

comply with his request. Admits he told complainant, after the

sale to the Goudys, that he should keep the $1,000 he had
received, and that complainant told him he would have it or

sink another thousand with it.

The defendants pleaded, that on the 18th day of March, 1856,
complainant commenced an action at law for the recovery of

the sum of $1,000 paid on the bond.

To which there is a general replication.

The decree dismissing the bill was rendered by I. G. Wilson,
Judge.

T. C. Moore, and Leland & Leland, for Appellant.

J. H. Mayborne, for Appellees.

Walker, J. This was a bill in chancery, filed by complainant
against defendants, for the specific performance of a contract

entered into between complainant and defendant Newton, on
the 29th day of September, 1855. By the agreement, Newton
sold to Bishop several tracts of land, for the sum of twelve

thousand dollars. Bishop, at the time of the sale and the en-

tering into the written agreement, paid to Newton one thousand
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dollars, and agreed to pay him two thousand more on the first

first day of January, 1856, and to assume and pay a mortgage

on the lands for nine thousand dollars, except the interest, for

the year 1855, which mortgage was given by Newton to one

Leonidas Doty, on the 14th day of October, 1854. Newton on

his part covenanted and agreed that upon the payment of the

two thousand dollars at the time and in the manner specified,

to make, execute and deliver to Bishop a good and sufficient

deed of conveyance in fee simple, free from all incumbrance,

with full and proper covenants of warranty for the premises,

except the mortgage to Doty. It was further agreed, that in

case Bishop should fail to make payment within fifteen days

after the first day of January, 1856, he should forfeit what he

had already paid, and all rights under the agreement. Bishop

failed to make payment by the fifteenth day of January, 1856.

Newton, without having paid the interest on the Doty mortgage
for the year 1855, or having tendered a deed to Bishop, on the

fifth day of February, 1856, sold and conveyed the same lands

to William A. Goudy and Franklin J. Goudy, for twelve thou-

sand seven hundred and fifty dollars, and on the same day,

Bishop called on Newton and offered to pay the two thousand

dollars due on the first of January, previous, when Newton in-

formed him that he was too late, as he had sold to the Goudys.

The contract for the sale by Newton to Bishop was duly recorded

in the proper office on the day of its execution. These facts

all appear from the bill and answer. The cause was tried in the

Circuit Court on the bill, answers and replication, without

evidence, when the bill was dismissed, and the cause is brought

to this court by appeal, to reverse the decree of the Circuit

Court.

The first question presented for our consideration in this case

is, whether Newton had the right to declare the forfeiture and
sell the premises to the Goudys.

Courts of equity always incline to relieve against penalties

and hard bargains of this character, and will hold the party

seeking such an advantage to a strict compliance with the con-

tract on his part, before he will be permitted to enforce such a

forfeiture. We are, then, to examine and see whether Newton
had performed his part of the contract at the time and in the

manner required by the agreement ; and, if he has, then he had
the right to insist upon enforcing the forfeiture when Bishop

failed to make payment ; but, if he was himself in default at

that time, he had no such right. This court laid down this

principle in the case of Brown v. Cannon^ where it is said

:

One party to a contract cannot complain of the other until he

has put his adversary in default by a substantial performance of
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the contract on his part ; and a faihire or refusal to perform by

the other. 5 Gil. R. 174. By the terms of their agreement,

Bishop was to pay the further sum of two thousand dollars on
the first of January, 1856, and to assume the payment of the

Doty mortgage, except the interest for the year 1855. This

they had expressly provided he was not to pay. It was then

left for Newton to discharge. Newton had covenanted that,

upon the payment of the two thousand dollars at the time and
in the manner specified, he would convey the lands to Bishop by

good and sufficient deed in fee simple, free from all incumbrances

except the Doty mortgage. The conveyance of the lands freed

from such incumbrances was, by the contract, a concurrent act

with the payment of the money. Newton was bound by the

agreement to be in a condition to so convey, by the first day of

January, 1856. This interest was undoubtedly a lien and in-

cumbrance on the land to the amount of $630, which was then

due, and for which Doty could subject the lands to its payment, by
foreclosing the mortgage. This interest was not paid on the

first of January, nor until after the sale to the Goudys. New-
ton was still in default, when Bishop ofi'ered to pay the money,
and demanded the conveyance. But, if this was not the true

c5nstruction of this contract, still the law would not compel
Bishop to pay his money and receive the deed, while incum-

brances existed against the property, when he had contracted

for a title free from such incumbrances. This court, in the

case of Broion v. Cannon, say, that a person who has bargained

for a good title will not be compelled to take one subject to

suspicion ; the title must be free from suspicion. And in Sug-

den's treatise on Vendors, the rule is stated to be that where an
incumbrance is discovered to exist previously to the execution

of the conveyance and payment of the purchase money, the

vendor must discharge it, whether he has or has not agreed to

covenant against incumbrances, before he can compel the pay-

ment of the purchase money. Sugden on Vendors, 553.

We think these principles are decisive, that Newton had no
right to insist upon the forfeiture while he was himself in

default.

Then has complainant a riglit to insist upon a specific perform-

ance of the agreement. This branch of equity jurisdiction is

regulated, to a considerable extent, by a sound legal discretion.

The rule governing courts was stated by Chief Justice Maeshall
to be, that when a bill is exhibited by a party who is himself in

fault, the court will consider all the circumstances of the case,

and decree according to those circumstances ; and that a con-

dition always entitled to great weight is, that the contract,

though not fully executed, has been in part performed ; 6
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Wheaton R. 528. And, in a subsequent case, the same court

lay down the rule that time may be of the essence of the con-

tract for the sale of property. It may be made so by the ex-

press stipulations of the parties, or it may arise by implication,

from the very nature of the property, or the avowed objects of

the seller or the purchaser. And even when time is not thus

either expressly or impliedly of the essence of the contract, if

the party seeking a specific performance has been guilty of gross

laches, or has been exceedingly negligent in performing the

contract on his part, or if there has been, in the intermediate

period, any material changes of circumstances, affecting the

rights, interests or obligations of the parties ; in all such cases,

a court of equity will refuse to decree a specific performance,

upon the plain ground that it would be inequitable and unjust.

But, except under circumstances of this nature, time is not

treated by courts of equity as of the essence of the contract,

and relief will be decreed to the party who seeks it, if he has

not been grossly negligent, and comes within a reasonable time,

although he has not strictly complied with the terms of the

contract. Taylor v. Longworth et al., 14 Peters R. 172.

The complainant has brought himself clearly within the prin-

ciples of these rules. He, in part performance of the contract,

paid, on the purchase, one thousand dollars. It is true he did

not pay or offer to pay the next installment on the day, but he did

offer to pay twenty days afterwards. While this is not a strict

compliance, it is not gross laches or unreasonable delay, when
it is remembered that Newton was himself in default, and not in

a position to require payment. And we are, therefore, of the

opinion that his conduct was such as entitles him to the relief

sought.

It was urged on the argument that complainant had, previ-

ously to filing his bill, brought a suit at law for the recovery of

the purchase money paid on the agreement ; and had thereby

rescinded the contract, and barred his right to relief in this

proceeding. In answer to this objection it is only necessary to

remark, that, if this be true in point of fact, the record contains

no such evidence. It only appears from Newton's plea and
unsworn answer. It is new affirmative matter, set up as a

defense, and should have been proved to entitle it to considera-

tion by the court.

The contract was duly recorded in the proper office on the

day it was executed, arid became notice to all the world. And
the Goudys were chargeable with notice and took the property

subject to all the equities with which it was charged. They
acquired no other or better title than Newton then held, and
cannot be heard to object to a specific performance of the agree-



APRIL TERM, 1858. 181

. Champlin v. Morgan.

ment. From the circumstances of the case, then, in every point

of view, we are satisfied that complainant is entitled to the

relief sought. And the decree of the Circuit Court is reversed,

and the cause remanded, with instructions to that court to enter

a decree, for a specific performance of the contract, that com-
plainant pay into court the two thousand dollars, with in-

terest from the first day of January, 1856. That defendant

Newton have leave to withdraw it upon delivering a deed of

conveyance with the covenants stipulated for in the agreement
conveying the premises to complainant, and upon filing a receipt

from Doty for the interest on his mortgage for the year 1855 ; and
if he shall fail or refuse to deliver such deed and to file such

receipt within a reasonable time to be given for that purpose,

that the master in chancery, or a commissioner, be appointed

for that purpose, to be empowered and required, on behalf

of the said defendants, to convey the premises to said complain-

ant, with covenants by defendant Newton according to [his

agreement, and with covenants by the said William A. Goudy
and Franklin J. Goudy against their acts, and to pay the

interest on the Doty mortgage for the year 1855 out of the

deposit, unless the same has been already paid ; and, that when
such deeds of conveyance shall have been delivered, that New-
ton be allowed to receive the balance of the deposit, after paying

the costs of the court below.

And it is ordered that complainant pay one-half of the costs

of this court and the defendants pay the other half.

Decree reversed.

John C. Champlin, Plaintiflf in Error, v. Rees Morgan,
Defendant in Error.

ERKOR TO LA SALLE.

If the public is to be charged with the abandonment of a road, the proof of the fact

must be accompanied by the further proof that another road has been adopted
in its stead.

A public road, established by public authority, continues as such until it shall be
vacated by a like authority.

The conflict before the jury in this case resulted from the

fact that two highways crossed the land of the plaintiff in error,

one a State and the other a county road. Both of these roads

were laid out upon or near the same line. Owing to some
inconveniences or obstructions in the laid out lines of road, the
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travel had been diverted, and had taken a dijBTerent route across

the close of the plaintiif than that indicated by the surveys. It

was insisted that public labor had been employed upon the sur-

veyed line of road at different points, to make it convenient for

public use, until the year 1854, but the greatest travel, and for

the last few years, the entire passing, had been over another

than the surveyed line, which had been inclosed by fence.

Some of the witnesses testified that there never was any general

travel on the surveyed line of road. There had been a contro-

versy between those who fenced the surveyed road and some of

the road officers, the latter insisting that the fence covered the

proper line of road. The public generally used the substituted

road.

This cause was tried before Hollister, Judge, and a jury, at

June term, 1857, of the La Salle Circuit Court. There was a

verdict of not guilty, and a judgment for costs against the

plaintiff.

0. C. Gray, for Plaintiff in Error.

Leland & Leland, for Defendant in Error.

Breese, J. This was an action of trespass quare clausum

fregit, brought by Champlin against Rees, to which the defend-

ant pleaded, among other things, that the locus in quo was a
common or public highway, across which the plaintiff had
erected a fence, and that he removed the rails, etc., as he had
a right to do. It was admitted by the parties that he did break
and enter, but that, in doing so, he did not go off the surveyed

line of the road mentioned in his plea, and that he did no
unnecessary damage.

The question before the jury was as to the locus in quo being

a public highway, and they found the issue for the defendant.

Certain instructions were asked for by the plaintiff, one num-
bered eight, which the court modified, and then gave to the

jury, to which the plaintiff excepted. The instruction as asked
was as follows :

" If the jury believe, from the evidence, that

the public, from 1832 until the commencement of this suit, had
ceased to use the said surveyed road, and that the public had
adopted another and different line of travel voluntarily, and by
so doing, had intended to abandon said surveyed road, as well

as all other roads upon the same line, then the jury should find

for the plaintiff, even although no other public highway was
legally laid out from Ottawa to Dayton by the public authorities."

The instruction was so modified as to include the idea that.
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upon abandonment, " the public had acquired the legal right to

use of such other line of travel," then they should find for the

plaintiff.

We think the modifi.cation was a very necessary and proper

one, for it does not follow because the public have adopted

another and different line of travel voluntarily, that they have,

therefore, acquired the right to use such newly adopted line.

It is true the public can be charged with abandonment of a

road, but the proof to establish it must be strong enough to

establish another line as the road,

A road is of public necessity, and is indispensable to public

convenience. It cannot, therefore, be alleged that they have

abandoned such an indispensable necessity, without showing

they have acquired another in lieu of it.

We think the true principle is, that a road, such as the one

in question is claimed to be, laid out and established by the

public authorities, must remain such until it is vacated by the

same authority, the mode for doing which is plainly pointed out

in the statute (R. L, 1845, chap. 93, title " Roads," sees. 10,

19), or be abandoned by non-user, on acquiring the legal right

to another road, or the necessity for another road having ceased

to exist. The instructions given on the part of the defendant

recognize this principle, and though liable to the objection we
have before made (^Merritt v. Merritt, ante, 65), that an argu-

ment is injected into them, they declare the law.

We think the objections to the legality and validity of this

road have all been considered and answered by this court in

former cases. Needy v. Brown, 1 Gil. R. 10 ; Ferris v. Ward
et al., 4 ibid. 499 ; Dumass v. Francis, 15 111. R. 543 ; Loiik v.

Woods, ibid. 256 ; County of Sangamon v. Broiun et al., 13
ibid. 207 ; Dimon v. The People, 17 ibid. ^6.
We think the evidence establishing the fact that the locus in

quo was a public highway, and the evidence of an abandonment
of it by the public, is of such a character as to justify the ver-

dict, and seeing no error in the instructions given by the court

to the jury, the judgment is, therefore, affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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Erasmus Woodworth et al, Appellants, v. Jacob Wood-
burn et al, Appellees.

APPEAL PROM KENDALL.

In an action upon a promissory note, -nhere the defendant pleads partial failure of

consideration, by alleging that the note was given for spokes and hubs, which
were warranted to be well seasoned, it is erroneous to refuse to let the defendant
ask questions of a witness to elicit evidence tending to show a breach of the

warranty.

Special damages in such a case cannot be shown, unless specially claimed bj' the

pleadings.

The i measure of damages in the breach of such a warranty, is the difference in

value between those delivered and those contracted for.

This declaration was in assumpsit, on three promissory notes

and common counts, in the Kane Circuit Court.

First plea, general issue; second plea, set-off; third plea,

special warranty ; fourth plea, part failure of consideration.

General replication to each of said pleas. There was a

change of venue to Kendall county. Jury sworn at October

term, 1857, of Kendall Circuit Court. Verdict for plaintiff,

$1,700. HoLLiSTER, Judge, presiding. Motion for new trial

overruled.

The facts connected with the points decided are fully stated

in the opinion of the court.

Leland & Leland, and Parks & Feidley, for Appellants.

W. H. L. Wallace, for Appellees.

Caton, C. J. This was an action upon promissory notes,

given for spokes anfl hubs, sold by the plaintiffs to the defend-

ants. The defense was a part failure of the consideration, on
account of a breach of a warranty of the quality of the spokes

and hubs. There was evidence tending strongly to show that

the articles were warranted to be well seasoned and fit for

immediate use. To prove that they were not well seasoned and
fit for immediate use, the defendants asked of a witness the

following questions :
" Did you ever put up any wheels from

these spokes and hubs ? If yea, how did they stand ? and if

they came down or fell to pieces, what was the reason of their

so falling ?" " Do you know of any wheels, put up of those

spokes and hubs, being returned to defendants on account of the

defects of the timber, or on account of want of being seasoned?

If yea, how many, and for what cause ? State fully." " From
your knowledge of the defendant's business, what damage was
it to them, if anything, aside from the difference in the value of
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the spokes being green or seasoned, and fit for ready use ? If

you know, state to the best of your judgment." " State what
you know about wagons made from those spokes and hubs being-

returned to defendants, and why they were so returned ; and, if

in consequence of a defect in the timber being seasoned, state."

To which objections were sustained and exceptions taken.

The evidence sought to be elicited by the first, second and
fourth of these questions was undoubtedly proper, as tending to

show a breach of the warranty, and the first and' fourth are

unobjectionable in form. Strictly speaking, the second is some-

what leading in form, and, perhaps, the court, in its discretion,

was justified in ruling it out for that reason. We will not say

that we would reverse the judgment because objection to it was
sustained.

The objection to the third interrogatory was properly sus-

tained. Its object, undoubtedly, was to show special damages,
by the interruption to the defendants' business for the want of

such spokes and hubs as it was claimed these were warranted

to be. Under the pleadings, such damages could not properly

have been allowed. To entitle the party to such damages, they

should be specially claimed in the declaration, with an averment
and proof, showing that the warranty was made with express

reference to such damages. In this case, the measure of dam-
ages was the difference in value between the articles as delivered

and such articles as they were warranted to be, which was the rule

correctly adopted by the court. But the judgment must be
reversed, because the objection was sustained to the first and
fourth questions quoted.

The judgment must be reversed and the cause remanded.
Judgment reversed.

James S. Beach et al, Plaintiffs in Error, v. Joseph

Schmultz, Defendant in ErrOr.

EREOR TO COOK.

A party may take a second deposition from a witness, without leave for that pur-
pose ; but it is discretionary with the court to say, which shall be read.

"Where a writ is in the hands of and executed by a coroner, it will be presumed
there was no sheriff, and that an elisor was properly appointed by the clerk, to

serve a writ of replevin upon the coroner.

A party who has wrongfully produced a confusion of goods, consisting of a cargo
" of plank, boards and scantling," by an unauthorized intermixture, forfeits his

right to the whole, and his creditors cannot levy an attachment upon such
cargo.

13
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This was an action of replevin for a cargo of lumber, (one

hundred thousand feet, more or less), brought by the defendant

in error against the plaintiffs in error, on the 3rd day of Octo-

ber, A. D. 1856, returnable to the October term, A. D. 1856, of

the Cook Circuit Court.

The affidavit on which the writ issued was made by the de-

fendant, and filed in the court below on the 3rd day of October,

1856, and sets out in substance, that said Schmultz was the

owner of a'cargo of pine lumber, which was shipped from Green
Bay to Chicago, on the schooner ^'Main,^' to said Schmultz, and
that he is justly entitled to possession of said lumber, and that

James S. Beach, as acting sheriff of Cook county, and in his

capacity as sheriff, and A. M. Crawford, on the 2nd day of

1856, wrongfully took possession of said lumber, and wrongfully

detain the same, etc.

Thereupon a writ of replevin issued out of said court, directed

to one J. 0. Wilson, as an elisor appointed by the clerk of said

court to execute said writ, who executed the same by replevy-

ing said lumber and summoning said plaintiffs.

The defendant filed his declaration in the cepit, complaining

that said plaintiffs on the 2nd day of October, 1856, took a

cargo of lumber which was shipped from Green Bay to the port

of Chicago, to said defendant, on the schooner Main, of the

value, etc., and wrongfully detain the same, etc.

Plaintiffs filed their motion to dismiss said suit, and for return

of property, because of defect of affidavit, etc.

Defendant filed cross-motion to amend bond.

Court overruled plaintiffs' motion to dismiss, and sustained

defendant's cross-motion to amend his bond.

The following pleas were filed

:

First, non-cepit ; second, property in Oscar Gray ; third,

property in plaintiff Crawford ; fourth, property in Gray,
Densmore & Phelps ; fifth, plaintiff Crawford pleads special

property in himself for demurrage ; sixth, plaintiff Beach
pleads specially that by virtue of writ of attachment against

the goods, etc., of Oscar Gray, he seized the property in ques-

tion as the property, and the same was the property of Oscar
Gray.

Defendant took issue to the country on the foregoing pleas

:

April 21st, 1857, plaintiffs moved to suppress the deposition of

Oscar Gray, filed April 4th, 1857 ; first, because said deposition

was retaken without leave of court ; second, because the inter-

rogatories and the testimony of said witness were illegal and
incompetent, etc., which motion was overruled by the court, and
the plaintiffs then and there excepted.
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October 17th, 1857, the cause was submitted to the court,

Manniere, Judge, for trial, without the intervention of a jury.

And at the January special term, A. D. 1858, of court, the court

found the issues for the defendant, and assessed his damages at

one cent. The plaintifis thereupon entered their motion for a

new trial, for the reason that the finding of the court is against

the law and evidence, which motion is overruled by the court,

and the plaintiffs excepted.

And judgment was thereupon entered upon the said finding

of the court.

The following is the substance of the bill of exceptions taken

on the trial of this cause in the court below, viz.

:

The defendant offered in evidence the two depositions of

Oscar Gray, taken by him and filed on 28th February, 1857, the

other filed 14th of April, 1857, to the introduction of which
and to each respectively the plaintifi's objected, but the objection

was overruled by the court, and the plaintifis then and there

excepted, and the depositions were read in evidence. In the

first deposition taken, the witness, Oscar Gray, states in answer
to the first interrogatory, that he acted as agent for Schmultz
during the summer and fall of 1856, in manufacturing and
shipping lumber to him. That he shipped from Green Bay
about 75 to 100 M, feet of lumber on the schooner Main, to

Milwaukee, on or about the 29th of September, 1856, and that

it arrived at Milwaukee, but the captain of the schooner, with-

out unloading, went, as witness was informed, to Chicago, but

where the lumber was finally unloaded, witness knows not.

That he owned part of said lumber, and Schmultz a part, but

he is unable to state the parts belonging to each severally ; he
and Schmultz were the sole owners of the cargo. That he had
instructions from Schmultz, as his agent, to ship his lumber to

him at Chicago. He shipped said lumber partly by his own
authority, and by the general powers he held under Schmultz as

his agent ; cannot say whether said lumber was mixed or not.

The said lumber belonged to Schmultz and myself severally.

The said lumber was made from logs owned by Schmultz, myself
and Pierce, Talbott & Co. That his means of knowledge as to

the ownership of said lumber, are derived from having myself
purchased the logs with money belonging to the said Schmultz
and myself^ and getting the lumber manufactured from said logs.

Believes the said lumber was taken to Milwaukee by his direc-

tion
; part of said lumber belonged to Schmultz, whose agent I

was.

He also states, that he directed the f-aid captain to take said

lumber to Milwaukee, and that he would meet him there.

Witness says he was short of lumber at that time to load said



188 OTTAWA

Beach et al. v. Schmultz.

schooner, and borrowed lumber to complete the cargo of Pierce,

Talbott & Co. Witness states that he carried on said saw
mills as his own, purchasing and selling lumber in his own name,
and never used the name of Schmultz in his business ; have

known Schmultz five or six years, and he is engaged in the

clothing business in Chicago,

In the second deposition, the said witness, Oscar Gray, states

in answer, after preliminary interrogatories, that he was agent

for Schmultz during summer and fall of 1846, and only for the

purpose of manufacturing and shipping of lumber at Green Bay.

That he was, as Schmultz's agent, to have sawed and shipped

about 600 M. feet of lumber. He cannot tell how many feet

of logs Schmultz had to saw when he commenced acting as his

agent, nor does he know what portion he had sawed, but thinks

he shipped to Schmultz about three or four hundred M. feet.

That he shipped a cargo of lumber, about seventy-five to one
hundred M. feet of lumber, consisting of plank, boards and
scantling and shingles, but cannot tell how much of each, on
the 29th of September, 1856, on the schooner Main. I was the

owner of the shingles, and Schmultz and myself were the own-
ers of the balance of the lumber. Schmultz and myself owned
said cargo separately, Schmultz owned probably one-half of said

cargo, and I the other half; it consisted of plank, boards, joists

and scantling. I can't tell the number of feet belonging to each

of us. That he understood, and such were his instructions, if he

he had any from Schmultz, to ship his lumber to him at Chicago.

No person could have identified Schmultz's lumber from his on
the vessel ; said lumber was taken to Milwaukee by his direc-

tion, without authority from Schmultz ; he understood from
Crawford that said lumber was taken to Chicago. That Gray,

Densmore & Phelps, and Michael Doyle, were the owners of

the schooner Main— witness has an impression that Crawford
knew Schmultz was the owner of the cargo, and thinks Craw-
ford notified Schmultz of the arrival of the cargo, but he is not

positive, and knows nothing about the time. He had, prior to

the 29th Sept., 1856, shipped lumber on the schooner Main,

Capt. Crawford, to Schmultz, at Chicago. Also, that he made
out no shipping bill at Green Bay, but made out in Chicago,

and delivered it with other papers to B. W. Thomas, consigning

the lumber to Schmultz, and requested him to deliver the bill to

Crawford on the arrival of the schooner. This occured about

the 4th or 5th of October, 1856. Witness also left with bill of

lading, an order, bill of sale, etc., referred to in exhibits ; the

order left was not for sawing that cargo, but on general account

for sawing. That the reason why he made out the bill of lading

consigning the lumber to Schmultz, was because I wished him
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to have the lumber, intending to make myself good from his

logs. I settled my account as agent with Schmultz, about the

close of navigation in tlie fall of 1856. There was nothing

specifically mentioned about this lumber nor any other, it was a

sort of jumping accounts, so that all and every account with

Schmultz was included. In this settlement there was a balance

found due Schmultz ; I gave him, Schmultz, a stipulated amount,

I think |450, in full settlement for his interest in any and all

logs, and lumber of which I had charge of as his agent, ship-

m.ents inclusive, more or less. That he don't know that he

specified in whose name he borrowed lumber to complete said

cargo. He does not recollect whether he borrowed said lumber
in his own name or as agent, and he does not recollect from
whose lumber it was repaid. He knows that said lumber was
made from his and Schmutlz's logs. He thinks he never used

Schmultz's name except in connection with his agency.

The following errors are assigned :

1st. The court below erred in overruling j^laintifi's' motion
to dismiss said suit.

2nd. The court below erred in overruling motion to suppress

Oscar Gray's deposition.

3rd. The court below erred in admitting in evidence the

depositions of Oscar Gray.

4th. The court below erred in admitting in evidence the

order and shipping bill of Oscar Gray, the receipt of Crawford,
and the demand upon, and refusal of Beach to deliver said

lumber.

5th. The court below erred in finding the issues for the de-

fendant, and entering judgment thereon.

6th. The court below erred in overruling motion for a new
trial.

7th. The finding of the court below was against the evidence

and law of the case.

r C. B. HosMER, for Plaintiffs in Error.

J. J. McGiLVEA, for Defendant in Error.

Breese, J. Several questions are presented by this case,

and the first is as to the afiidavit made by Schmultz, the plaintiff

below, on which to obtain a writ of replevin. It is in substance
as the statute requires—it sufficiently describes the property,
and has all the necessary averments.

The objections to the deposition of Oscar Gray are not tena-

ble either as to his first or second deposition.

It is not true that a' party has to apply for leave to the court
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to retake a deposition. The statute does not require it, nor is

such the practice. A dedimus potestatem issues by the clerk,

without any application to the court, and a party might, if he

chose to incur the expense, indulge a passion for taking the

deposition of the same person more than twice, but the court

would take care as to which, and how many, should be read.

It is purely discretionary with the court, and is like recalling a

witness, which the court may or not allow.

As to the appointment of an elisor by the clerk, to serve the

writ of replevin, there can be no objection to that, as it is to be

presumed there was no officer competent to serve it, the case

showing that the writ of attachment on the cargo of lumber

was in the hands of, and executed by, the coroner of the county,

which could not legally be if there was a sheriff" competent to

act. We will intend the casus had arisen rendering it neces-

sary, for the purposes of immediate justice, that an elisor should

be appointed by the clerk. /

The question of real moment in the case brings up the doc-

trine of confusion of goods, so far as the principal cargo is

concerned, which the proof shows consisted of different kinds

and qualities of lumber, of different grades—" of plank, boards

and scantling," and some shingles. As to the lumber. Gray
swears that he owned one-half, and Schmultz the other half of the

cargo, separately, and were so mixed together as that the sev-

eral parts were incapable of identification. Besides this, some
lumber was borrowed of others to make ud the cargo, and the

vessel ordered to Milwaukee, against the directions of Schmultz,

that she should deliver her cargo at Chicago. There are cir-

cumstances in the case tending to show an intention, on the part

of Gray, to dispose of the cargo at Milwaukee, and thus defraud

Schmultz ; and for this bad purpose, the several portions belong-

ing to Schmultz and Gray, and that borrowed, were mixed up,

without the knowledge or consent of Schmultz, so as to deprive

him of his share, as it would appear.

The doctrine on this subject is thus stated by Blackstone, at

page 405, vol. 2, of his Commentaries. After treating of title

to goods by accession, he says :
" But in the case of confusion

of goods, where those of two persons are so intermixed that the

several portions can be no longer distinguished, the English law
partly agrees with and partly differs from the civil. If the

intermixture be by consent, I apprehend that, in both laws, the

proprietors have an interest in common, in proportion to their

respective shares. But if one willfully intermixes his money,
corn or hay with that of another man, without his approbation

or knowledge, or casts gold, in like manner, into another's

melting pot or crucible, the civil law, though it gives the sole
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property of the whole to him who has interfered in the mixture,

yet allows a satisfaction to the other for what he has so improvi-

dently lost. But our law, to guard against fraud, gives the

entire property, without any account, to him whose original

dominion is invaded, and endeavored to be rendered uncertain,

without his own consent."

This doctrine, as thus laid down, is not disputed any where
in courts where the common law is the rule of decision.

Gray, then, having wrongfully produced this confusion, by an
unauthorized intermixture, necessarily forfeits his right to the

whole, and the plaintiffs in error, his creditors, can have no
right or claim to levy an attachment upon it. The court could
do no otherwise than to find for Schmultz, the defendant in

error, that it was his property.

The case shows that shingles were a part of the cargo, and
were Gray's separate property, and as they can be readily dis-

tinguished and separated, and as they belonged to Gray when
shipped, it is contended they are yet his, and subject to the
attachment. It is a sufficient answer to this to say, that the
facts show the whole cargo was consigned to Schmultz, and that
he paid the freight on it. He, as consignee, had, therefore,

a right to the possession of the shingles.

The merits of the case are wholly with the defendant in error,

and the judgment of the Circuit Court is affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

EoswELL E. Goodell, Appellant, v. Norman W. Woodruff,
Appellee.

APPEAL FROM LA SALLE.

If a principal ratifies a purchase made by his agent, he will be responsible for the
acts of the agent, and the question of ratification is for the jury to determine.

Unless a verdict is manifestly against the weight of evidence, it will not be
disturbed.

The facts of this case are stated in the opinion of the court.
The cause was tried by Hollister, Judge, and a jury, at

February term, 1858, of the La Salle Circuit Court.

Glover & Cook, for Appellant.

BusHNELL & Gray, for Appellee.
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Walker, J. This was an action of assumpsit, brought by-

Woodruff against Goodell, in the La Salle Circuit Court, to

recover the price of lumber, alleged to have been sold by
Woodruff to Goodell. The cause was tried by the court and
jury, when a verdict was found in favor of appellee. A new
trial was granted. The cause was again tried by the court and
a jury, which resulted in another verdict in favor of appellee.

Appellant entered a motion for a new trial, which was over-

ruled, and judgment was rendered by the court on the verdict,

from which he appeals to this court.

It appears, from the evidence preserved in the case, that one
Lighthall was the owner of a lumber yard, which he sold to

appellee, and before the time of the sale, he had received

money on contracts for the sale of lumber, to be delivered on
these contracts. When he sold his lumber yard to Woodruff,

it was agreed between them that Woodruff should fill these

contracts, and Lighthall should have the profits of the sale.

Woodruff was to have the right of filling other contracts, upon
which Lighthall had not received the pay, or not, as he chose.

These contracts were to be filled out of the lumber purchased

by Woodruff of him, a part of which was to come forward, but

which never arrived. Goodell had contracted with Lighthall

for a quantity of fencing lumber before this sale, but had paid

him nothing on this contract. Irvin, the brother-in-law of

Goodell, came to Woodruff's lumber yard, and got about twenty

thousand feet of fencing lumber, which was used on Goodell's

farm, upon which Irvin resided. Woodruff did not receive of

Lighthall as much of the kind of lumber as was required by
Goodell, and he furnished the balance from lumber which he
had purchased in Chicago. Goodell resisted payment to Wood-
ruff, upon the ground that his contract was with Lighthall, and
not with Woodruff. This was a question of fact for the jury to

pass upon, and they have found that the purchase was made of

the appellee. The evidence certainly tended to show that

Lighthall had not furnished lumber, as he had agreed, out of

which to fill this and other contracts, and we are not disposed

to Qnd fault with their finding. It was urged that the evidence

did not show whether Irvin's authority to make the purchase

was general or special. This, it is apprehended, can make no
difference, if appellant ratified the purchase made by Irvin.

Fisher v. Stevens, 16 111. B,. 397. This was a question for the

jury to determine from all the evidence and circumstances before

them. They, by their verdict, have found that appellant rati-

fied the contract, and the verdict should not be disturbed, unless

it is manifestly against the weight of evidence, and the jury

were the judges of the weight it was entitled to receive. There
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was evidence from which the jurj might infer that appellant

ratified the purchase. The property was procured by his agent,

and if he had no authority to purchase of appellee, he should

have returned the lumber and disclaimed the purchase, and not
have appropriated it to his own use. And we are not disposed

to grant a new trial where the probabilities are that another
trial would be attended with the same result as the two already

had.

There is not any error perceived in the instructions given.

They seem to lay down the law of the case correctly, as it was
raised on the facts in evidence. And upon the whole record,

we are not able to discover any error for which the judgment
should be reversed, and, therefore, the judgment of the Circuit

Court should be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Charles S. Hempstead et al, Appellants, v. William Dick-

son, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM JO DAVIESS. '

., •

Where a testator bequeaths land to his wife and two other persons, and to the sur-

vivor or survivors of them, to have and to hold until his youngest child should,

if a male, attain twenty-one, or if a female, eighteen years of age, in trust for all

his surviving children, their heirs and assigns, as tenants in common, all of the
children of the testator living at the time of his death, became his devisees.

And the devisees, at the- death of the testator, took a vested fee simple estate in the
land, subject to the trust estate created by the will, which they might alienate,

and which was descendible to their heirs ; and also subject to sale and execution,

subject to the trust term.j

Plaintiffs file declaration and notice in ejectment, for the

undivided fourth of lot No. one, block " A," on the west side of

Fever river, in the city of Galena, Jo Daviess county, Illinois.

Defendant files plea, " not guilty."

At October term, 1857, jury waived, and cause submitted to

the court, Sheldon, Judge, upon agreed statement of facts.

Issue found for defendant.

Bill of exceptions sets out submission of cause to court upon
the pleadings and agreed state of facts. Statement of facts

admits Lawrence Ryan died February 25, 1851, seized in fee of

lot in dispute, leaving four children his heirs at law ; the

youngest, a daughter, became eighteen years of age on the

July, 1852 ; that Lawrence Ryan left a will, which is set out in

full.
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The lot in dispute was given and bequeathed by will of said

Lawrence Ryan, to wife of Lawrence Ryan, M. Loras and
Michael Murphy, and to the survivor or survivors of them, and
to the executors and assigns of such survivors, to have and to

hold the same until the youngest child of said Lawrence Ryan,
if a male, should attain the age of twenty-one years, or if a

female, eighteen years, in trust for all said L. Ryan's surviving

children, their heirs and assigns, as tenants in common. If said

wife of L. Ryan should marry, to cease to be trustee under said

will. Upon the determination of the trust deed aforesaid, all

the property bequeathed in trust to be equally divided amongst
the surviving children of the testator, their heirs and assigns,

as tenants in common.
That on the 13th November, 1849, Francis Ryan, one of the

heirs at law of said Lawrence Ryan, executed to plaintiffs a deed
of all his estate in said lot.

That defendant is owner of three-fourths of said lot, being

all interest of Lawrence Ryan's heirs, except Francis Ryan,
whose interest was one undivided fourth of same ; that two
judgments were rendered against Francis Ryan before he was of

age ; and the interest of said Francis in said lot was sold under
said judgments to Thomas Drum, and a sheriffs' deed executed

to Drum.
That the proceedings were regular, except that Francis Ryan

was an infant when judgments were obtained.

That administrator of Drum conveyed interest of Drum to

Higgins & Strother, November 20, 1851 ; Strother conveyed to

Higgins, September 16, 1852 ; Higgins conveyed to Newhall,
March 16, 1853, and Newhall conveyed to defendant, January

19, 1854.

That Francis Ryan was twenty-one years of age, November
13, 1849, and defendant was in possession of lot when suit was
commenced, and ever since.

No other testimony was offered on trial. Court found for

defendant, to which plaintiffs excepted, and moved for a new
trial, which motion was overruled, and plaintiffs excepted, and
the court rendered judgment for defendant.

E. B. Washbuene, and Glover & Cook, for Appellants.

V. H. Higgins, for Appellee.

Walker, J. This record presents two questions for our

consideration. The first is, whether Francis Ryan, upon the

death of his father, took such an estate as was liable to execu-

tion until the youngest child attained the age specified ; and
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secondly, whether the estate ot a minor defendant is liable to

sale under a judgment recovered against him before he attains

his majority. It will be necessary to determine the eifect of

this devise, to arrive at a proper solution of this first question.

The phraseology of the testator, in devising the lot in contro-

versy, is peculiar and somewhat ambiguous. It does not spe-

cifically determine, whether all of his children who were surviv-

ing at the period of his death, were intended to take, or only

those who might be living at the time his youngest child should

attain the age specified. But survivorship is referred to the

period of the death of the testator, if there be no special intent

manifest to the contrary, so as not to cut off the heirs of the

remainder-man who should happen to die before the tenant for

life. They are vested and not contingent remainders. This is now
become the settled technical construction of the language, and
the established English rule of construction. Due ex dem.
Weinz v. Prio-g, 8 Barn. & Cress. R. 231 ; Kin<^ v. King-,

Watts & Serg.'^R. 205. In Moore v. Lijons,_ 25 Wend. R. 119,

it was held, in the Court of Errors, that in a devise of real

estate to one for life, and after his death to three other persons,

or to the survivors or survivor of them, their heirs and assigns

forever, the remainder-men took a vested interest at the death

of the testator. In this case there is no special interest mani-

fested to limit the estate to the heirs only who survived

the event of his youngest child coming of age. And the lan-

guage is certainly as definite to limit the estate to all his children

who were living at the time of his death, as the case of Mooi'e

V. Lyons. And| we are, therefore, upon these authorities, as

upon principles of natural justice, disposed to give this clause

of the will the construction, that all of the testator's children

who were living at the time of his death, became the devisees

of this property.

It then remains to determine what estate they took at the

death of the testator. Chancellor Kent defines a vested re-

mainder to be a fixed interest, to take effect in possession after

a particular estate is spent. 4 Kent Cora. 202. And reversions

and all such future uses and executory devises as do not depend
upon any uncertain event or period, are vested interests. Ibid.

He also lays down the doctrine, that if there be a devise to

trustees and their heirs, during the minority of the beneficial

devisee, and then to him, or upon trust to convey to him, it

conveys a vested remainder in fee, and takes efiect in possession

when the devisee attains twenty-one. The general rule is, that

a trust estate is not to continue beyond the period required by
the purposes of the trust ; and notwithstanding the devise is

to trustees and their heirs, they take only a chattel interest, for
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the trust, in such, a case, does not require an estate of a higher

quality. If the devisee dies before the age of twenty-one, the

estate descends to his heirs as a vested inheritance. The
Master of the Eolls said, the trustees in such a case had an
estate for so many years as the minority of the devisee might
last. 4 Kent Com. 204. And Doe v. Lea, 3 T. R. 41 ; Stanley

V. Stanley, 16 Ves. R. 491, and Doe v. Nicholls, 1 Barn. &
Cress. R. 336, are in support of this doctrine. He also lays it

down that " vested remainders are actual estates, and may be

conveyed b}'- any conveyances operating by force of the statute

of uses." Ibid. A vested executory devise passes the same
estate as a vested remainder, and may be disposed of in precise-

ly the same manner. It would then follow, from these author-

ities, that Francis Ryan, at his father's death, took a vested fee

simple estate in this lot, subject to the trust estate created by
the will, and that he had the power to alienate it by conveyance,

and it was descendible to his heirs upon his death. It was also

subject to sale on execution, subject to the trust term.

It is admitted that the sale under these judgments was regular,

unless the minority of the defendant at the time of their ren-

dition rendered it irregular. It is said by Chitty, in his work on
Pleading, that " Although an infant cannot, in general, be sued

in an action in form ex contractu, except for necessaries, he is

liable for all torts committed by him, as for slander, assaults and
batteries, etc. ; and also in detinue for goods delivered to him
for a purpose which he has failed to perform, and which goods
he fails to return." 1 Chitty PL 87. And in all actions except

assumpsit it has been held that infancy, when relied upon as a

defense, should be pleaded. In this case, it does not appear
what the actions were, whether for toiis, for necessaries, or on
other contracts. One judgment was rendered by default, and if

infancy had been a defense to that action, it should have been
interposed. If infancy was properly pleaded and wrongfully

disregarded by the court in the other case, it was an error which
cannot be inquired into collaterally, but should have been re-

versed in a direct proceeding. We must, therefore, hold that

these judgments, and the sale under them, were binding. And
that there is no error in this record, and that the judgment of

the court below should be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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The President and Trustees op the Town of Mendota,
Plaintiffs in Error, v. Charles E. Thompson, Defendant
in Error.

EREOR TO LA SALLE COUNTY COURT.

To prove the existence of a corporation, it is suificient to produce the charter, and
prove acts done under it, and in conformity with it. Written proof that all the
preliminary steps, etc., were taken, is not necessary.

A corporation, acting as such, cannot be questioned collaterally on the ground that
it has not complied with its charter.

A municipal corporation is not dissolved because, at its organization, persons not
eligible were elected trustees. If their authority is questioned, it should be by
quo ivarranlo.

This was an action of debt, for a penalty for selling liquors.

There was a trial before a justice of the peace, which was
appealed to the County Court of La Salle county, and tried

before the judge of said court, at the June term, 1857. There
was a finding for the defendant. Motion for new trial over-

ruled.

The issues were oral. One plea was nul tiel corporation.

At the trial, the plaintiffs below, and plaintiffs in error here,

introduced an ordinance, passed by persons purporting to be
the president and trustees of the town of Mendota, and acting

as such, which is as follows :

Be it ordained by the president and trustees of the town of

Mendota

:

Sec. 1. That the sale of all spirituous, intoxicating or mixed
liquors, wine, beer, ale, porter, cider, or any fermented or malt
liquors, is hereby declared to be a nuisance ; and any person
selling any spirituous, intoxicating or mixed liquors, wine, beer,

ale, porter, cider, or any fermented or malt liquors, in any
quantity, shall upon conviction, be fined five dollars for each
offense, and the term each offense, as herein mentioned, shall be
construed to mean the selling by the glass, quart, or in any
quantity, and for each separate glass or quantity, sold or disposed

of for gain or profit.

Sec. 4. Penalties incurred for a violation of any ordinance
of said town of Mendota may be sued for and recovered before

any justice of the peace, or before any other court having
jurisdiction.

A copy of the Mendota Press, a newspaper published in

Mendota, which contained said ordinance, published before the

time of the sale of liquor, as offered to be proved, as hereinafter

mentioned.

The plaintiffs then offered to prove that the defendant, in the
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year 1856, and after the publication of said ordinance, sold, on

two different occasions, to two different persons, a quantity of

spirituous liquors, and that the place of sale was within the

corporate limits of the said town of Mendota. To the intro-

duction of this evidence the defendant objected. The court

sustained the objection, and the plaintiffs excepted.

The plaintifls then introduced, in evidence, the following copy
of the proceedings, certified to be on file in the county clerk's

office of La Salle county : 1st. The proceedings of the inhabit-

ants of Mendota, at a meeting called to vote for or against

incorporating said town of Mendota, showing a vote, on the

31st of October, 1854, in favor of incorporation, which proceed-

ings were signed and certified by the chairman and clerk of the

meeting. 2nd. The poll book of an election for trustees of

said town, held on the 7th of November, 1854, at which five

trustees, to wit, George A. Richmond, F. M. Baldwin, Benja-

min West, Roswell Webster, and J. Hastings, were elected.

The poll book is certified by the chairman and clerk. 3rd. The
oath of office of said five trustees. 4th. A communication,

addressed to the clerk of the county court, signed George A.
Richmond, President of Trustees of town of Mendota, stating

that an accompanying seal was that of the town of Mendota,
and requesting the same to be entered as such.

A copy of proceedings, certified by the clerk of said county

as on file in his office, which are—1st. The proceedings of a

meeting of the white male residents of lawful age, and qualified

voters of the town of Mendota, on the 20th June, 1855, for the

purpose of deciding whether they would be incorporated or not,

certified by Benjamin West, president, and Samuel P. Ives,

clerk, at which the vote was for incorporation. 2nd. The oath

of office of five persons, as trustees of Mendota, taken on the

28th day of June, 1855.

The plaintiffs also proved that the town of Mendota, througli

persons acting as president and trustees, had exercised the

powers that they would have been entitled to exercise if they

had been duly incorporated. The book containing the proceed-

ings, purporting to be the various and usual acts of an incor-

porated town, was also introduced in evidence, and was proved

to be the book used as and for a record of the proceedings of

the president and trustees of the town of Mendota. The first

meeting appearing to have been held was on the 28th day of

June, A. D. 1855. The only evidence of the election of the

board of trustees for the year A. D. 1855 was the oral evidence

of a witness, who testified that he was present at an election of

trustees in June, 1855, and that such an election was held. He
also testified that there had been an annual election of trustees
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since then, and that there was a record made of such election.

The court decided that such evidence of the election of trustees,

and the other facts mentioned, were not sufficient to prove the

election of the first board, and that it was necessary to prove

an election of the first board of trustees by written evidence

thereof, in order to establish the fact of incorporation. On the

6th day of July, 1855, and during the term when, by said record

book, J. H. Adams, Lansen Lamb, W. P. Galliday, C. H. John-

son and D. G. Bly appeared to be acting as trustees. The lines

of section thirty-three, of township thirty-six north, of range

one east of the third principal meridian, wore declared to be

the bounds and corporate limits of the town of Mendota, as

appears by an entry on said book.

On the 9th of July, 1855, as appears by said book, Galliday

tendered his resignation, in consequence of living out of said

town ; and it appeared he did not live within said section when
elected. On the same day, as appears by said book. Lamb and
Johnson also resigned. It was proved that the reason they

resigned was, that they were not freeholders.

The record book shows that George Wells, C. H. Gilman and
John Hastings were appointed to fill the vacancies. The
vacancy occasioned by the resignation of Galliday was filled by
George Wells, before the resignation of Lamb and Johnson, and
the record recites that they severally took the oath of office

when appointed. The record contains ordinances on various

subjects—orders allowing bills, appointing and removing officers,

and contains a recital of the usual and ordinary acts performed
by the trustees of an incorporated town ; recites the presence

of the trustees and clerk (naming them); and there is a change

of the names, showing different persons acting as trustees during

the difl'erent years. The record contains no other evidence of

the election of trustees, except mentioning them as the trustees

elect having met.

And it was also proved, by oral evidence, that persons acting

as the president and trustees of Mendota had, since the election

in June, 1855 (and whose election was proved orally, as before

mentioned), acted in that capacity.

The court found the issue of nul tiel corporation for the

defendant.

Plaintiffs moved for a new trial. The court overruled the

motion, and plaintiffs excepted.

The following are the errors assigned

:

The court erred in excluding the evidence offered of the sale

of liquor by the defendant.

The finding of the court on the plea of nul tiel corporation

was against the evidence.
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The court erred in deciding that it was necessary to prove on
the part of the plaintiffs, by written evidence, that the first board
of trustees was elected, in order to establish the fact of incor-

poration.

The court erred in overruling the motion of plaintiffs for a

new trial, and rendering judgment for the defendant.

Leland & Leland, for Plaintiffs in Error.

0. C. Gray, for Defendant in Error.

Breese, J. The question on this record arises on the plea

by defendant, in the court below, of mil tiel corporation, and
found for Mm.
As a general principle, it is sufficient, in order to prove the

existence of a corporation, to produce the charter, and then

prove acts done under and in conformity with the charter.

Utica Ins. Co. v. Tihnan, 1 Wend. R. 555 ; Gaines v. Bank of
Miss., 7 English (Ark.) R. 769; Bank of Manchester y. Allen,

11 Verm. R. 302 ; 3 Wend. R. 296.

. Proof that all preliminary steps were taken, and that too by
written evidence, as was insisted on in this case, would produce
not only great public inconvenience, but, owing to those omissions

to record facts with which all public bodies are chargeable,

would be impossible.

It is also a general rule, that a corporation acting as such,

cannot be questioned collaterally, on the ground that it has not
complied with its charter. State v. Carr, 5 N. H. R. 367.

It seems there were two efforts made to incorporate the town
of Mendota—the first on the 31st Oct^l854, and again on the

20th of June, 1855. It is objected against the regularity and
legality of the last election, and which is the only objection,

that it does not appear that the persons named as having been
elected trustees, were in fact elected, and if they were, that it

also appears that three of the five were ineligible. Galliday,

by not being a resident within the limits of the corporation, and
Lamb and Johnson, by not being freeholders, both of which
were necessary qualifications.

The record also shows that Galliday resigned, and the rest,

being a majority, elected one Wells in his place, who was quali-

fied and took his seat as trustee ; after this. Lamb and Johnson
resigned, and their places were filled by the board by the elec-

tion of Gilman and Hastings in pursuance of the charter, and
these persons, with Adams and Bly, first duly elected, composed
the board, at the time of the passage of the ordinance under
which the defendant was prosecuted.
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It is insisted, that by the election of three disqualified persons,

the corporation was dissolved.

That certainly cannot be the rule, for as it did not appear

they were not qualified until after the election, such an occur-

rence can be no more fatal than the election at any subsequent

period of a disqualified person ; and no one will say that such

an election would ipso facto dissolve a corporation, non constat

but they were qualified when elected ; and if not, the fact can
only be inquired into by the people's writ of Quo warranto.

They cannot be attacked collaterally in this manner. The
People V. Watkins, 19 111. R. 117.

The judgment of the court below is reversed and the cause

remanded. '

Judgment reversed.

John V. A. Hoes, Appellant, v. Abram J. Van Alstyne
et al, Executors, etc.. Appellees.

APPEAL FROM LA SALLE.

When the representatives of a deceased party are substituted in his stead, the
declaration need not be amended by the insertion of their names.

The statutes of a foreign state cannot be proved by parol. But the construction

given to such statutes by the tribunals where they are in force, may be given in

evidence by witnesses learned in such laws.

This was an action of assumpsit commenced by Isaac Van
Alstyne during his lifetime, against the defendant. During the

pendency of the suit the plaintiff died, and his death was sug-

gested, and the executors of the will were substituted as plain-

tifi"s. No amendment of the declaration was made, nor was
there any new declaration filed. The declaration was filed in

the name of Isaac Van Alstyne during his lifetime.

The trial was before the court, Hollister, Judge, without a

jury, at June term, 1857, on the declaration and plea of the

general issue.

The only evidence was the note and the indorsement of pay-

ments, and the evidence of Joseph 0. Glover, who testified, that

he resided in the State of New York prior to the year 1835,
and that when he left there to move to this State, and which
was in 1835, the rate of interest according to the statute of

New York, where no rate of interest was mentioned in a note,

was seven per cent, per annum.

14
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And the evidence of Washington Bushnell, who testified, that

he was an attorney at law, and that he was acquainted with the

statute law of New York ; that by the said statute law of New
York, in 1835 and also in 1846, where no rate was mentioned

in a note, it was seven per cent, per annum.

To the competency of this evidence, in relation to the rate of

interest, the defendant objected. The court overruled the ob-

jection and admitted the evidence ; the court allowed interest

on the note at the rate of seven per cent per annum.

Leland & Leland, for Appellant.

W. H. L. Wallace, for Appellees.

Caton, C. J. This declaration was in assumpsit. During the

pendency of the action, the plaintiff died, and his representa-

tives were made parties, under our statute, but the declaration

was not amended by inserting their names as plaintiffs. The
cause was tried upon the general issue, which was found for the

plaintiffs, and it is now assigned for error, that their names were
not inserted in the declaration. It has not been the practice,

under our statute, where the repi^esentatives of a deceased party

are made parties, to amend the declaration by the insertion of

their names, nor do we think it required by the statute. Whether
the other course would not have been the better practice at the

beginning, it is unnecessary now to say ; but we think the statute

will fairly bear a construction conformable to the practice, and
after that has been so long and uniformly acted upon and acqui-

esced in by the courts and the bar, we ought not to hunt up
ingenious pretexts for overturning it. We cannot reverse this

judgQient for this cause.

The other error assigned, however, must be sustained. That
is, that the court allowed the statute of a foreign State to be

proved by parol. We have looked into the cases on this subject,

and find two decisions tending to sustain the decision of the

court below. One was recently decided in England, and by a
divided court ; and the other is in Vermont, where it is said, the

court may take notice of a foreign written law. In the first of

these, Lord Campbell certainly sustains his position by strong

reasons. Those reasons, however, tend to show that we may
learn by parol what is the true meaning or construction of a

foreign statute, as settled by the practice or courts of the

foreign country, rather than to show how the foreign law is

written. The first may undoubtedly be done, and courts have
uniformly taken notice of the construction given to foreign

statutes by the foreign tribunals ; and to enable them to do this,
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they have always been in the habit of looking to the reports of

such tribunals. Whatever the court may take notice of, or may
learn from reported decisions, it may also be informed of by the

testimony of witnesses learned in the foreign law. But we
everywhere meet with decisions, both in this country and in

England, that a foreign statute must be proved as any other fact,

and by the best evidence of which the nature of the case will

admit, unless this rule is changed or modified by a domestic

statute. We have such a statute here, which dispenses with an
authenticated or sworn copy of the foreign law, and allowing

the printed statutes of a foreign country to be used in our courts

as evidence of the foreign law. We do not think it necessary

to consume time by entering into a review of the cases in sup-

port of the view of the law as we understand it, but will content

ourselves by citing the cases referred to in the brief of the

appellant's counsel

:

Compant v. Jurnegan, 5 Blackf. R. 375 ; Kenny v. Clarkson

et al., 1 John. R. 385 ; Consequa v. Willings et al., 1 Peters'

C. C. R. 225 ; Lincoln v. Battelle, 6 Wend. R. 475 ; Hall v.

Heightman, 4 Esp. R. 75 ; Cleg-g v. Levi/, 3 Camp. R. 166

;

Bochtlink v. Sclmeider, 3 Esp. R. 58 ; Di/er v. Smith, 12 Conn.

R. 384.

The judgment of the County Court must be reversed, and the

cause remanded.
Judgment reversed.

George 0. Kingsley, Plaintiflf in Error, v. John Kingsley,

Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO TAZEWELL.

A release under seal executed to a party in settlement, the party receiving it prom-
ising to get certain notes signed by a security, which he attempted to do, but
failed in his efforts, will be good against the releasor; no fraud appearing in the

transaction. The party might be liable, if sued upon a breach of the contract.

A release under seal may be pleaded in satisfaction of a larger sum than was
actually paid.

The defendant, John Kingsley, commenced suit in the Circuit

Court of Tazewell county, by bill in chancery and injunction, on
the 14th day of April, 1857, against George 0. Kingsley and
David D. Irons.

The case was tried before Harriott, Judge, at the October
term, 1857, and a decree rendered against the defendant, in the

court below, from which an appeal was prosecuted.
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The complainant's bill alleges, that in the year 1852, George
0. Kingsley commenced suit in the Circuit Court of Peoria

county, against complainant, in the name of George 0. Kingsley

and Francis P. Kingsley, for the use of George 0. Kingsley,

upon a promissory note executed by complainant, to George and
Francis P. Kingsley. That Francis P. Kingsley did not have

any interest in said note, and utterly disclaimed any ownership

of said note, and admitted that the note was not genuine, that

it was not due, and that there was no consideration for the said

note, and that Francis P. Kingsley executed to complainant a

discharge of said note. It alleges that a change of venue was
taken in said cause, and tried at the April term of the Tazewell

Circuit Court, when a judgment was rendered in favor of the

plaintiff, for the sum of three hundred dollars debt, and three

hundred and twelve dollars and eighty-six cents damages, and
forty-four dollars and twenty cents costs.

Complainant alleges that the note upon which the judgment
was obtained was not genuine, that there was no consideration

for the same, that it was fraudulent, and that George 0. Kingsley

admitted that he ought not to collect it. That he also admitted

that if he had beaten Francis P. Kingsley in a certain suit

previously tried between George 0. and Francis P. Kingsley,

he would not have prosecuted suit on said note against the

complainant.

That afterwards, the said George 0. Kingsley proposed to

complainant to make a deduction on the said judgment, if the

complainant would pay the balance ; one hundred dollars to be

paid on the 1st of March, 1858, and the remainder in sums of

one hundred dollars annually, until the sum of five hundred
dollars was paid, in satisfaction of said judgment.

That said complainant, in pursuance of said agreement, exe-

cuted his notes for the sum of five hundred dollars, in notes of

one hundred dollars each, falling due as aforesaid, and that

thereupon, George 0. Kingsley executed a release of said judg-

ment, in pursuance of said agreement, in full of said judgment
and costs, etc.

That after the settlement as aforesaid, George 0. requested

complainant to have Francis P. Kingsley sign said notes as

security, and John Kingsley could not be induced to do so.

That on the same day that the settlement was made, complainant

told Francis P. Kingsley that George 0. had requested com-
plainant to procure the signature of said Francis P. Kingsley,

and was about to ask him to sign the same as security, when
said Francis P. Kingsley expressly refused to sign the notes,

and distinctly said he would never sign them, and never did.
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Complainant avers it was no part of the agreement that said

notes should be signed by said Francis P., as security.

That about the 25th day of June, 1856, George 0. Kingsley

had execution issued on the said judgment against complainant,

which was put in the hands of David D. Irons, sheriff of Peoria

county. That on the 9th day of August, 1856, the said execu-

tion was levied on the W. -J N. E. 27, 9 N. 7 E., as the property

of complainant, and that said premises were sold without his

knowledge.
That the sheriff advertised for sale, and sold the said land, on

the 30th day of August, 1856, to George 0. Kingsley, the plain-

tiff in the execution, for the sum of |691.62, who was the

highest and best bidder for the same. And avers he had no
notice of the sale until afterwards.

Avers that George 0. Kingsley intends to hold the said prem-

ises, unless complainant redeems from said sale.

That at the time of the sale, a certificate of purchase was
given by the sheriff to George 0. Kingsley, and another filed in

the recorder's office.

The bill prays for George 0. Kingsley, David D. Irons, and
Francis W. Smith, the sheriff, to be made parties ; and that

David D. Irons and Francis W. Smith be enjoined from execut-

ing a deed to George 0. Kingsley, under said note. That
Kingsley be enjoined from transferring his certificate of pur-

chase ; and that George 0. Kingsley be decreed to convey to

complainant.

An injunction was issued on said bill, as prayed for.

George 0. Kingsley, by his answer to said bill, admits the

recovery of the judgment in 1852, against complainant, as

charged, and that the suit was taken, by change of venue, to

Tazewell county, where it was tried, and a judgment rendered
against complainant, as charged in the bill ; but denies that the

note upon which the judgment was obtained was fraudulent, or

that there was no consideration, or that it was not genuine ; and
alleges that it was given for full and valuable consideration,

that it was genuine, that there was no fraud either in the obtain-

ing the note or prosecuting the same to final judgment, that

everything in relation thereto was honest and fair ; but alleges

that the judgment is conclusive between the parties, and cannot
be reviewed in this cause.

Respondent does not know whether Francis P. Kingsley
claimed any interest or ownership in said note or not, or

whether he admitted the same was not due, or was not genuine
or not, but alleges, if ever any such admissions were made, it

was to defraud respondent and prejudice the collection of the

same, and avers if any such admissions were made as charged
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in the bill they are untrue. Respondent sets out the considera-

tion of said note, which was the sale by respondent to complain-

ant of the land sold under the execution, as charged in the bill,

and that the note was the property of respondent at the time

the suit was brought in, and that it was justly and honestly due

him, and that the said judgment was justly and honestly ob-

tained after a fair trial and mature consideration by the court.

Respondent denies that he ever admitted to complainant or

any other person that he ought not to collect the note or enforce

the judgment ; denies all fraud or unfair dealing ; denies that

he ever said if he had recovered in a suit against Francis P.

Kingsley that he would not have collected said note.

Respondent denied that he agreed to take or did take com-
plainant's notes for $500, due yearly, in satisfaction of the

judgment ; but avers that he did agree to take five notes for the

sum of $100 each, payable annually, the first to become due on
the first of March, 1858, executed by complainant with Francis

P. Kingsley as security, and that such was the positive and
express understanding of the parties. That Francis P. Kings-

ley utterly refused to sign said notes as security. That respond-

ent executed said release upon that consideration and none
other. That the said five promissory notes of $100 each were
the only consideration for the release of said judgment, and that

they were to be signed by Francis P. Kingsley as security,

which was never done ; and that it was understood and ex-

pressly agreed that the release should be of no validity until the

notes were signed by Francis P. Kingsley as security.

That the next day after the execution of said release, upon
the refusal of said Francis P. Kingsley to execute said notes as

security, he tendered complainant the said notes and demanded
said release to be given up to respondent, but both of which
complainant refused to do ; offers to bring said notes into court

to be returned to said complainant, and asks the release to be

decreed to be given up and cancelled, and charges that the same
was obtained of him fraudulently, and denies that the same is

any satisfaction or release of the said judgment whatever, either

in law or equity.

He admits that he had execution issued, and that the same
was levied upon the land described in the bill, and that it was
purchased by him for $691.62. The proper notices were given

of the sale of said property, but docs not know whether com-
plainant had actual notice or not.

Admits that David D. Irons was sheriff, and sold the land,

and that Francis W. Smith is present sheriff of Peoria county.

It was then admitted by the parties that George 0. and
Francis P. Kingsley, for the use of George 0. Kingsley, ob-
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tained a judgment against complainant for the sum of $300
debt, and $312.80 damages, and $44.20 costs, in the Circuit

Court of Tazewell county, at the Aprill term, 1856. That
execution was issued and levied upon W. i N. E. 27, 9 N. 7 E.,

which was sold to satisfy the execution by the sheriff of Peoria
county.

That George 0. Kingsley purchased the same on the oOth day
of August, 1856, for the sum of $691.62.

The complainant then offered in evidence the following release,

which was admitted, to wit

:

In consideration of five hundred dollars, to me in hand paid by John Kingslev,

of Peoria county and State of Illinois, I do hereby release and discharge a judf-

ment in my favor against the said John Kingsley, recovered in the Circuit Court

at Pekin, Tazewell county, Illinois, at the last April term of said court, in my
favor, and a suit wherein George 0. Kingsley and Francis P. Kingsley were plain-

tiffs, and I hereby acknowledge to have received the sum of five hundred dollars,

in full of all damages and costs recovered in said action, and I hereby release and
discharge said judgment.

Peoria, May 20, 1856. GEORGE 0. KINGSLEY. [seal.]

Complainant then called Francis P. Kingsley, who was
sworn ; testified that he was acquainted with the parties ; that
on the day the parties settled, witness met John Kingsley about
five miles from Peoria, and John told witness that he had
settled with George 0. Kingsley, and that George would be
along with notes for witness to sign ; that witness refused to

sign them. That complainant was and is the owner of one
hundred acres of good land, and is worth $5,000 over his debts.

The settlement spoken of was the one in which the notes and
release were given.

;

It was then admitted that, on the next day after the settle-

ment, George 0. Kingsley tendered back the notes to complain-
ant and demanded the release to be given up to him, and
further that the notes were in the possession of defendant,
George 0. Kingsley, ready to abide the decree of the court.

This was all the evidence in the case.

The court then decreed that the judgment recovered by
George 0. Kingsley and Francis P. Kingsley, for the use of
George 0. Kingsley, against John Kingsley, be decreed satisfied

and discharged, and that the execution, levy and sale be vacated,
annulled and set aside, and that said George 0. Kingsley, within
ten days from the date of the decree, execute a deed to com-
plainant to said premises, or, in default, that E. G. Johnson be
appointed commissioner to execute the same, and also decree a
perpetual injunction against Irons and Smith from executing
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George 0. Kingsley any deed or certificate of purchase for the

same, and that George 0. Kingsley pay all costs.

To which decision of the court respondent excepted and filed

his bill of exceptions.

Wead & Williamson, for PlaintiflT in Error.

Manning & Merriman, for Defendant in Error.

Breese, J. The controversy in this case grows out of the

execution of the release set up by complainant in his bill, and
charged to have been executed by the defendant to him.

It is no doubt true, and was the agreement, that the notes, on
the execution and delivery of which, by the complainant to the

defendant, the release was executed, should be signed by Francis

P. Kingsley as security—both parties expected it. But it was
not done ; he refused to sign them when presented to him by the

defendant for that purpose. The release was executed on the

delivery of the notes, and there is no fraud shown, either in its

execution or delivery. The most that can be said is, that

complainant did not perform his contract ; but that does not

render the release ineffectual. The release being once fairly

and regularly executed and delivered, could never afterwards

be avoided at law by a failure of one of the parties to perform
an act in consideration of which the release was given. It could

go no further than to charge the complainant with a breach of

contract, for which he would be liable. Filzsimmons et al. v.

Og-rlen et al., 7 Cranch R. 19. '

It is well settled, though the payment of a smaller sum can-

not be pleaded in satisfaction of a larger sum, yet a release

under seal may be so pleaded. Com. Big., " Release," E, 2, 3.

The whole question here depending upon the validity of this

release, and there being nothing alleged against it, or if alleged

and proved, not going to impeach it, we must regard it as

binding.

The decree of the Circuit Court is therefore affirmed.

. ' Decree affirmed.
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Timothy Wood et al, Appellants, v. Orlando Child et al,

Appellees.

APPEAL FROM ROCK ISLAND.

The law of 1857, which authorizes the issuing of injunctions to stay proceedings
upon judgments by confession under warrants of attorney, upon demands not
due at the time the judgments may be entered, was within the power of the
legislature, and may apply to antecedent judgments or contracts.

The law of the remedy is no part of the contract.

If debts already due, as well as those not due, are included in the same judgment,
they will alike fall under the effects of the injunction.

This is an action commenced on the chancery side of

the Rock Island Circuit Court, by Timothy Wood and J. G.
Salisbury, against Orlando Child and Ezra M. Beardsley,

to obtain an injunction against the above named respondents.

The complainants presented their bill to the judge of the court

below in July, 1857, at chambers, and a preliminary hearing

was granted, when the said judge ordered that a writ of injunc-

tion issue, according to the prayer in the bill. Said writ was
duly issued, returnable to the September term thereof.

The complainants in the court below, in their bill of com-
plaint, set forth substantially that, in October, A. D. 1856, they,

the said complainants, executed and delivered to one of the

respondents (Child) five promissory notes ; that said notes

were given for sums of money varying in amount from $180 to

$700, and that said notes were made payable as follows, to wit:

One on the 19th day of February, 1857 ; one on the 19th
day of February, 1858 ; one on the 19th day of February, 1859

;

one on the 19th day of February, 1860 ; one on the 19th day
of February, 1861.

The bill further sets forth that they, the said complainants,

at the same time and place, executed and delivered to the said

respondent (Child), with the said notes, five several warrants

of attorney. The part of said warrants applicable to this case

is as follows, to wit

:

Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises, and of the

sum of one dollar to me in hand paid, the receipt whereof is

hereby acknowledged, I do hereby make, constitute and appoint

Orlando Child, or any attorney of any court of record, to be

my true and lawful attorney, irrevocably, for me, and in my
name and stead, to enter my appearance before any justice of

the peace, or in any court of record, in any of the States or

Territories of the United States, or elsewhere, either in term
time or in vacation, at any time from and after the date hereof,

at the option of the said Orlando Child, to waive service of
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process and confess a judgment in favor of the said Orlando
Child, or his assignees or legal representatives, upon the said

notes, for the above sums, or for as much as appears to be due
according to the tenor and effect of said notes, with interest

thereon at the rate aforesaid, and fifteen dollars, attornej^s' fees.

The bill further sets forth that, on the 4th day of April,

1857, judgment was caused to be entered on the five several

notes in the sum of two thousand nine hundred and seventy-five

dollars and four cents, which said sum included the several

sums named in the several notes, and fifteen dollars on each of

them for attorneys' fees.

The bill further sets forth that, on the 29th day of June,

1857, execution was issued from the office of the clerk of said

court upon the said judgment, and that the said execution was
duly delivered to the sheriff of said county, Ezra M. Beardsley,

one of the respondents in this case, and that said sheriff was
about to make a levy upon the property of one of these com-
plainants to satisfy the same.

At September term, a motion was made by the respondents to

dissolve the injunction and dismiss the bill. A demurrer was
also filed, setting up that tlie facts set forth in the bill were
insufficient to entitle the complainants to an injunction.

At the next ensuing term, on the 26th of December, the court,

Drury, Judge, presiding, ordered a decree to be made in favor

of said respondents, and against said complainants, to dissolve

said injunction and dismiss the bill, which decree was accord-

ingly made ; and from which final decree the said complainants
appealed to the Supreme Court.

Graham & Webster, for Appellants.

Wilkinson & Pleasants, for Appellees.

Caton, C. J. The complainants, in their bill, set forth sub-

stantially that, in October, 1856, they executed and delivered

to one of the respondents (Child) five promissory notes ; that

said notes were given for sums of money varying in amount
from $480 to $700, and that said notes were made payable as

follows, to wit

:

One on the 19th day of February, 1857 ; one on the 19th day
of February, 1858 ; one on the 19th day of February, 1859

;

one the 19th day of February, 1860 ; one on the 19th day of

February, 1861.

The bill further sets forth that the complainants, at the same
time and place, executed and delivered to the respondent. Child,

five several warrants of attorney, varying only to correspond
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with the several sums of money named in the notes, and the

times when they were severally made payable. The parts of

said warrants applicable to this case are as follows, to wit

:

Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises, and of the

sum of one dollar to me in hand paid, the receipt whereof is

hereby acknowledged, I do hereby make, constitute and appoint

Orlando Child, or any attorney of any court of record, to be

my true and lawful attorney, irrevocably, for me, and in my
name and stead, to enter my appearance before any justice of

the peace, or in any court of record in any of the JStates or

Territories of the United States or elsewhere, either in term
time or in vacation, at any time from and after the date hereof,

at the option of the said Orlando Child, to waive service of

process and confess a judgment in favor of the said Orlando
Child, or his assignees or legal representatives, upon the said

notes, for the above sums, or for as much as appears to be due
according to the tenor and eflect of said notes, with interest

thereon at the rate aforesaid, and fifteen dollars, attorneys' fees.

The bill further sets forth that, on the 4th day of April, 1857,
judgment was caused to be entered on the five several notes, in

the sum of two thousand nine hundred and seventy-five dollars

and four cents, which sum included the several sums named in

the several notes, and fifteen dollars on each of them for attor-

neys' fees. Upon this judgment an execution was issued on
the 29th June, 1857. This bill was filed to restrain the levy

of this execution till the time when the money becomes due by
the tenor of the notes.

A preliminary injunction was granted at chambers, and at the

next term of the Circuit Court, a demurrer was filed to the bill,

upon the hearing of which, the court dissolved the injunction

and dismissed the bill. This decree is assigned for error.

This case is precisely within the terms of the fourth section

of the law of the 18th of February, 1857, which is as follows

:

" Whenever any execution shall issue upon any judgment ob-

tained by confession or warrant of attorney, upon any demand
which shall not be due at the time of the entering of such

judgments, any|defendant or defendants may stay proceedings by
injunction issued out of the Circuit Court of the county to which
such execution shall have been directed, until said demand shall

have become due : Provided, that the party seeking such in-

junction shall give bond as now required by law in cases of

injunction." The only objection to the applicability of this

statute to this case, is the want of power in the legislature, to

make such a provision applicable to antecedent judgments, or

contracts previously entered into. Of the existence of such a

power we cannot for a moment doubt. It in no wise affects the
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validity or obligatory force of the contract, but applies solely to

the remedy. The law of the remedy is no part of the contract.

The argument urged against the existence of the power here

exercised, would deprive the legislature of the right to change

the terms of the court, so as to delay the party in obtaining a

judgment. The legislature must possess the power of prescrib-

ing the mode by which the rights of parties shall be enforced

in the courts of the State. They would even have the power to

declare that no judgments should be entered by confession, ex-

cept by the defendant in person, in open court, or they may say

that judgments may be entered by confession in all courts in the

State in vacation. In this case, however, least of all, is there

any stretch of legislative power. They have merely said that

the party shall not be compelled to pay the money till the time

expires by which it becomes due, by the terms of the contract

between the parties ; and we are very far from admitting, that

the Court of Chancery would not have the power to do the same
thing without this law, but it is unnecessary to examine that

question, for the provisions of this statute have removed any
doubt, if any could have existed before. It is true that in this

case the notes upon which the judgment was entered fall due at

different times, and one was actually due at the time the judg-

ment was confessed ; but as the court cannot issue executions by
piece meal, the whole must be stayed till the last note falls due.

It was the folly of the plaintiff to unite in one judgment, claims

already due or those maturing at shorter periods, with those of

longer date, and we see no way to help him to collect any until

the last is due. In the meantime he must console himself with
the fact that his money will be secured by the lien of his judg-

ment and an additional bond, and that his judgment will be
drawing interest.

The decree must be reversed and the suit remanded, with in-

structions to the Circuit Court to enter an injunction and take a

bond in conformity to this opinion.

Decree reversed.

John H. Dart ct al, Appellants, v. John Horn, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM COOK COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

Where part of the property claimed by a writ of replevin cannot be found, and
there is personal service, the plaintiff may add a count in trover.

In an action of replevin against several, it is erroneous to assume in instructions

to the jury that all are derelict ; it should be left to the jury to say, whether all

the defendants were engaged in taking the property claimed or not.
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Replevin for five stacks of liay. The sheriff returned the

writ with the indorsement that he had taken two and one-eighth

stacks, the rest not found.

The declaration contained two counts : The first, in the deti-

nuU, for two and one-eighth stacks ; the second, in the detinet,

for two and seven-eighths stacks.

The defendants, Dart, Sutherland & Gould, pleaded three

pleas : First, property in Charles Horn ; second, property in

Martin Horn ; third, property in Charles and Martin Horn.

The defendant. Lord, pleaded : First, non-detinuit and non-

detinet ; second, property in Charles Horn.
Issue was joined on all the above pleas. Leave was given to

the plaintiff to add a new count in trover, to his declaration.

The count was filed for two and seven-eighths stacks. The de-

fendants pleaded " not guilty," on which issue was joined.

On the 1st of October, the case was tried by J. M. Wilson,
Judge, and a jury, when the following verdict was given

:

" We, the jury, find for the plaintiff on the first count, and the

property replevied to be in the plaintiff; and further find said

defendants guilty under second count, and assess plaintiff's

damages herein at two hundred and eighty dollars."

The defendants then moved for a new trial and in arrest of

judgment, which motion was overruled and the defendants

appealed.

George Payson, for Appellants.

J. J. McGiLVRA, for Appellee. '. .,

Caton, C. J. We are inclined to the opinion, that by a liberal

construction of our statute, where part of the property claimed

in the writ of replevin cannot be found, and there is personal

service, the plaintiff may add a count in trover. The remedial

policy of the statute would seem to require this ; and we do not

apprehend that any serious difficulty will be found in practice,

by adopting the rules of damages appropriate to each count.

But we think the second instruction, given for the plaintiff,

improperly assumed facts to be true, which should have been
left to the jury, and which it was by no means certain were
established by the proof. The instruction is this :

" If the

jury believe, from the evidence, that the plaintiff was the owner
of the hay in question, at the time it was taken, as proved by
the witnesses, the jury will find a verdict for the plaintiff on the

count in trover, for the hay so taken, at the value of the hay as

proved by the evidence." This assumes that the hay was taken

by the defendants, and all of them. It should have been left
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to the jury to say, whether all of the defendants were engaged
in taking the hay, which, from the evidence preserved in this

bill of exceptions, was a doubtful question ; and especially was
it doubtful, whether all of the defendants were jointly engaged

in taking all the hay, for which the verdict was rendered. The
verdict against all, could be for no more than all were jointly

engaged in removing.

The judgment must be reversed, and the cause remanded.
Judgment reversed.

Edward Neary, Appellant, v. James Cahill, Guardian,

etc., et al, Appellees.

APPEAL FROM LA SALLE COUNTY COURT.

An execution against one of several tenants in common cannot be levied upon
personal property held in common with others ; the proper way is to make a
levy upon the interest only of the judgment debtor.

This was an action orginally brought before a justice of the

peace, in the name of the plaintiflf below, against defendant

below, to try the right of property in a certain mare, levied

upon by a constable, by virtue of an execution issued by said

justice.

Trial by jury, who found for the claimant, and judgment ac-

cordingly.

The cause was tried before Champlin, County Judge.

D. L. Hough, for Appellant.

Strain & Bull, for Appellees.

Caton, C. J. This was a trial of the right of property, under
our statute. The property belonged to the defendant in the

execution and four others, as tenants in common, and the entire

property in the mare was levied upon as belonging to the de-

fendant in execution exclusively ; and we think the court prop-

erly held that the claimants, who were the other tenants in

common, had a right to recover on this trial. Had the levy

been upon the interest alone of John Duffy, which was one-fifth,

the other tenants in common would have had no cause to com-
plain, and it may be, even, that the constable might have taken

exclusive possession of the property for the purpose of selling
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that interest ; but he had no right to levy upon and sell the

entire right or title to the property ; and his attempt to do so

made his act wrongful, and the claimants were properly allowed

to recover.

The judgment must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

John Nash, Appellant, v. Marks Monheimer, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM BUREAU.

A contract will not be enforced, which grows immediately out of, or is connected

with, an illegal or immoral act. And this, if the contract be in part only con-

nected with the illegal transaction ; though it be a new contract, it is equally

tainted.

A trial of the speed of a horse, upon a wager, within the corporation limits of a
city, where there is an ordinance against fast driving, is such an act against good
morals as will preclude a court of justice from enforcing a payment of the wager.

This was originally a cause brought before a justice of the

peace, of Bureau county, by the appellee against the appellant,

and taken by appeal to the said Circuit Court, in which there

was judgment for the appellee ; and the appellant, who was the

defendant in the court below, brings the case to this court by
appeal. The facts of the case are fully set out in the bill of

exceptions, as follows

:

This cause came on for trial before the Circuit Court of Bureau
county, at the October term, 1855, of said court. A jury was
waived, and the cause submitted to the court upon the following

agreed state of facts :
" This cause was originally instituted

before a justice of the peace, of said county, and appealed to

the said Circuit Court. The plaintiff brought suit against the

defendant on the following demand, to wit: 'John Nash to

Marks Monheimer, Dr. 1855. To cash won on wager, by said

Nash and Monheimer, that he, Nash, could make a certain horse

rack one-half mile in one and a half minutes—said horse, on
trial, failing to make the same, $25.00.' It was admitted, that

in pursuance of a contract between the said parties, which is sub-

stantially set out in said statement, the horse of the plaintiff was
racked on said wager, within the corporation of the town of

Princeton, in said county, by the defendant, previous to the

institution of said suit, and said horse failed to rack one-half

mile in one and a half minutes ; that no place where said [horse

should be racked on said wager was specified in the contract or

wager between the parties, but that when said horse was so
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racked upon said wager, the plaintiff was present and made no
objection to said racking of the horse being within the corpora-

tion of said town. It was further admitted, upon said trial, by
the parties to this suit, that said town of Princeton was a legally

incorporated town, under the laws of this State, at and before

the time of said test or trial of the speed of plaintiff's horse,

and that an ordinance of said town had been duly and legally

enacted and published, and was still in full and legal force and
effect, at and before said test or trial, which prohibited furious

riding or driving of horses within the incorporated limits of

said town ; and that the speed with which said horse was rode,

on said trial or test, was such, that he racked one-half mile in

one minute and thirty-four seconds, along one of the streets of

said incorporated town." Which was all the evidence in the

case.

The court found the issue for the plaintiff, and rendered a

judgment for plaintiff for twenty-five dollars, to which the de-

fendant then and there excepted, etc. The defendant also moved
for a new trial, which the court overruled, to which the defend-

ant excepted.

This cause was tried by Hollister, Judge.

Upon this record the appellant makes the following assign-

ment of errors, to wit

:

1st. The court erred in finding for the appellee.

2nd. The court erred in overruling appellant's motion for a
new trial.

3rd. The court erred in not finding for the appellant, and
rendering a judgment in his favor and against the appellee for

costs.

Peters & Farwell, for Appellant.

0. C. Gray, for Appellee.

Walker, J. This suit was originally commenced before a

justice of the peace of Bureau county, who on the trial rendered

a judgment against the defendant, which was by him taken by
appeal, to the Circuit Court. On a trial in the Circuit Court,

the plaintiff again recovered a judgment against defendant,

from which he appealed to this court. The action was to re-

cover a wager of $25, that Nash could make a certain horse

rack one-half mile in one and a half minutes. It was agreed
by the parties on the trial below, that in pursuance of the wager,

the horse of Nash was racked within the corporate limits of

the town of Princeton, previous to the commencement of the

suit, and that the horse failed to rack a half mile in one and a
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half minutes. When the wager was made, no place for the trial

of the horse's speed was agreed upon, but when the horse was
racked, both of the parties were present, and Monheimer made
no objection that the horse was racked in the corporate limits.

It was agreed that the town of Princeton was legally incorpo-

rated under the laws of this State, at the time the horse was
racked. That an ordinance of the town was then in full force

which prohibited, under a penalty, furious riding or driving of

horses in the corporate limits of the town, and the speed of the

horse on this occasion was such that he reached a half mile in

one minute and thirty-four seconds, along one of the streets of

the town.

The only question which we propose to consider in this case, is,

whether the plaintifl" was entitled to recover on this wager. It

is a rule of the common law that all contracts in violation of its

principles, or opposed to legislative enactments, or that are

opposed to public policy, are void. The object of all laws is

to repress vice and to promote the general welfare of the State

or society ; and an individual shall not be assisted by the law,

in enforcing a demand originating in a breach or violation, on
his part, of its principles or enactments. Chit. Cont. 513.

And the rule was laid down by the Supreme Court of the United
States, that where the contract grows immediately out of, and.

is connected with, an illegal or immoral act, a court of justice

will not lend its aid for its enforcement. And if the contract

be in part only connected with the illegal transaction, and grow-
ing immediately out of it, though it be in fact a new contract,

it is thereby equally tainted. Armstrong v. Taylor, 11 Wheat.
R. 258, From the admitted facts in this case, while no
time or place for the trial of the horse's speed is expressly

named, yet they do show that the horse was racked when both
parties were present and no objection was interposed, and that

the ordinance of the town was violated. The parties were both

engaged in this transaction, both violating an enactment in exe-

cuting their wager, and we are therefore irresistibly forced to

the conclusion that the parties, when they made the wager, in-

tended to make the trial of the horse's speed just as it was
tested. If this was not their intention, there would have been
objection to the time, place and manner of trying the speed of

the horse ; but none was interposed, and the execution of the

contract was intended to and did violate the town ordinance.

The contract was clearly connected with the violation of a legal

enactment. It then follows that the plaintiff below had no
right to recover in this case, and the Circuit Court erred in ren-

dering a judgment in his favor. The judgment of that court is

reversed. ,- , ^ j
Judsrment reversed.

15
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The Chicago and Milwaukee Railroad Company, Plaintiff

in Error, v. Ichabod Bull, Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO LAKE.

Expenses attending an assessment of damages in acquiring right of way, include

costs, but these are on the same footing as the damages ; they are to be paid

before the land condemned can be taken. Execution does not issue for such

costs.

This was a proceeding commeuced by said company under its

special charter, (see Private Laws for session of 1851, page

266,) to ascertain the compensation to be paid by said company
to defendant in error, by reason of the location and construc-

tion of its railroad over and across a certain tract of land in

Lake county, owned by defendant.

The report of the commissioners, fixing said compensation

and damages, was made and filed with the clerk of the Circuit

Court of said county, and a motion made in behalf of said com-

pany for the acceptance and approval of said report by the

judge of said court. The defendant objected to the acceptance

and confirmation of said report, and claiming that he was dis-

satisfied with the amount awarded, moved that said judge should

modify said report as should to him seem just.

At the October term of said court, for the year 1855, Man-
NiERE, Judge, presiding, said motion of defendant was tried by
the court, and the amount of compensation and damages were
increased from $74 to $131.

At the January term, 1856, of said court, the final order ac-

cepting and modifying said report was made, in which the court

orders as follows :
" It is further ordered, that upon payment

by said company to said owners and parties in interest of the

said compensation and damages, and the expenses of said as-

sessment, said company and its successors shall become seized

of said portion of said tract of land, and entitled to the use

thereof for right of way for its railroad."

On a subsequent day of said term, on motion of defendant's

attorney, said court ordered :
" That the fees of the ofiicers of

said court for issuing and subpoenaing witnesses, and the fees

of witnesses, attending on the part of said Bull, upon the hear-

ing of the motion of said Ball for the modification of said

report, be taxed by the] clerk of this court against said railroad

company." To which plaintiff excepted.

At the October term of said court, for the year 1856, (two
terms having intervened after the entry of the last preceding

order,) it was, on motion of defendant's attorney, ordered by
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the court, that execution issue for the amount of said fees. To
which order an exception was taken by the plaintiff in error.

Blodgett & Upton, for Plaintiff in Error.

Frazer & Clarke, for Defendant in Error.

Breese, J. The order entered at October term, 1856, award-
ing execution, was irregular and unauthorized, and must be set

aside.

It is true that the expenses attending the assessment of dam-
ages for right of way include costs, but they stand on the same
footing as the damages awarded for which execution cannot
issue. The law does not so provide. They are to be paid by
the company before they can take possession of the laud con-

demned or acquire any right to it whatever.

The judgment awarding execution is reversed and the cause

remanded.

Judgment reversed.

Hugh McGavock, PaintifF in Error v. Porter E. Cham-
berlain, Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO WINNEBAGO.

Where an action is commenced in replevin, but is changed to trover under the au-

thority of the statute, the rule of damages which governs in actions of trover

will control.

The action in the court below was replevin for a span of

horses and a set of harness. The writ of replevin was issued

to the sheriff on the 27th day of June, 1857, and the following

return made thereon by him :
" June 27, 1857. The within

named Porter E. Chamljerlain refused to deliver up the within

described property, and thereupon I served the within by read-

ing the same to the aforesaid Chamberlain, as I am therein

commanded."
On the 14th day of September, 1857, the plaintiff filed his

declaration in said action in trover and claimed damages to the

amount of four hundred dollars.

The defendant pleaded not guilty, and issue was joined

thereon.
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At the February term, 1858, the cause was submitted to the

court for trial, without a jury. The said plaintiff, to maintain

the issue on his part, read in evidence a stipulation signed by
the attorneys of the respective parties, as follows

:

" It is hereby stipulated that the property in question in this

action, to wit: Two horses and one set of harness, was, on the

23rd day of June, 1857, at said county, wrongfully taken by
the said defendant from the possession of the plaintiff, the same
being the property of the said plaintiff, and wrongfully con-

verted to his, the defendant's, own use, and that the said property

was, on that day, of the actual value of two hundred dollars,

and that the use of said property was worth fifty cents per day
from the time of said conversion to this day, above expenses

and depreciation."

And thereupon, without other or further evidence, rested his

case. And the defendant, without introducing any evidence,

rested liis case. And the court, Sheldon, Judge, presiding,

found the said defendant guilty, and assessed the plaintiff's

damages at two hundred and ten dollars. And the said plain-

tiff, by his counsel, moved the court for a new trial.

1st. The damages of the plaintiff were assessed at too small

a sum by the court.

2nd. The assessment of damages by the court was not in

accordance with the law and the evidence.

The court overruled the said motion. And judgment was
thereupon rendered in favor of the plaintiff for two hundred
and ten dollars and costs.

J. Wight and P. Sheldon, for Plaintiff in Error.

J. Marsh, for Defendant in Error.

Caton, C. J. This action was commenced by issuing a writ

in replevin," upon which the sheriff was unable to seize the

articles mentioned in the writ and deliver them to the plaintiff.

The plaintiff then filed a declaration in trover, upon which an

issue was regularly formed, and the cause tried. Upon the trial

the plaintiff claimed to recover for the use of the articles, as in

an action of replevin, but the court held that the rule of dam-
ages which governs in actions of trover should be applied, and

so instructed the jury, and this presents the only question in the

case.

The second section of the act of 1851, under which this trial

was conducted, is as follows :

" In such action of replevin, in case the property named in

the writ shall not be found or replevied, or shall not have been
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delivered as aforesaid, and the defendant shall have been sum-
moned as aforesaid, the plaintifl" may file his declaration in

trover, and the cause shall be heard and determined as other

actions of trover ; and the plaintiff, if he shall recover, shall

be entitled to judgment and execution for the value of such

property, or of his interest therein, and such damage as he shall

have sustained by reason of the wrongful taking or detention

thereof, together with the costs of suit."

The question is, whether the legislature intended, by this sec-

tion, that the action should substantially be converted into trover

and be governed by the rules of law applicable to such actions,

or whether it is still to be considered an action of replevin and
controlled by rules peculiar to that form of action.

In our opinion, it must be tried and treated as an action of

trover. Indeed, the statute so declares, in express terms. " It

shall be heard and determined as other actions of trover." In
actions of trover it would be an unheard-of thing to allow the

plaintiff to recover fifty cents per day for the use of a horse, for

the time between the taking and conversion and the filing the

declaration. That rule of damages is peculiar to replevin. By
changing his form of action into trover, the plaintiff elects to

treat the wrongful act of the defendant as a conversion, and
thereby declares that by the conversion the title vested in the

defendant. In replevin, the title is considered as not having
passed to the defendant ; while it is otherwise in trover. If the

plaintiff elects to treat the title to the property as having passed,

he cannot claim for the use of it, as if it were still his. It is

only while it is his property, that he can claim compensation for

its use. We think the court decided properly, and its judgment
must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

The Joliet and Northern Indiana Eailroad Company,

Appellant, v. Robert Jones, Appellee,

APPEAL FROM WILL.

If the bill of exceptions includes the pleadings of the parties, the costs of so much
of the record as contains these pleadings in the bill should be taxed against the

party who caused their insertion.

If a deed has been given to one corporation, and assigned by it to another, or if

the name of the corporation has been changed, proof of such averments must
be made where the plea of the general issue has been interposed.
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In a suit against a railroad company for injuries to sheep, arising from neglect to

build a fence, as it had contracted to do, the question is not whether the fence

would have made a perfect inclosure as against the road, but whether the neglect

contributed to the injury.

Where the negligence charged is not in the running of the train, but in not building

a fence, if it does not appear that the sheep got upon the track because this

fence was not built, other parts of the field not being inclosed, the plaintiff will

not be relieved from the exercise of proper care, and he cannot recover if his

negligence was the direct and proximate cause of the injury.

This was a suit in case brought by appellee against appellant,

in Will Circuit Court, and tried at the May term, A. I). 1857.

Verdict for plaintiff, $231.50.

The declaration contains but one count. It first recites that

defendant, " under and by the corporate name of the Oswego
and Indiana Plank Road Company," on the 13th October, 1853,

being about to construct a railroad from Joliet to State Line,

applied to plaintiff for right of way across his land, being E.

half N. E. qr. section 14, township 35 N., range 10 E., in Will

county ; that plaintiff, in consideration, among other things,

that defendant, before their railroad went into operation, would
make a fence along south side of the road, conveyed to them,
" then a corporation, under the name of Oswego and Indiana

Plank Road Company," by deed, a certain tract, describing it,

situated in the north-east corner of the said tract, and that

defendant accepted the deed upon that condition, and with

express promise to build such fence. It then avers that, on
24th day of June, 1855, after the road was built across the land

and in operation, and while plaintiff still owned and possessed

the land adjacent on the south, defendant neglected to build the

fence ; and that certain sheep, then feeding in plaintiff's close,

escaped, got on to the railroad, and " were run over by the

locomotives and cars, then and there passing and repassing on
said railroad," alleging the killing of some, the injury of others,

and costs of necessary care and attendance to the injured.

Damages laid at $500.
Plea, general issue and similiter.

Plaintiff offered, in evidence, the record of a deed from himself

to the Oswego and Indiana Plank Road Company, dated

13th October, 1853, being the same referred to in the declara-

tion, and conveying the premises. Contained the following

words in the habendum clause :
" Subject to the following cove-

nants of the said party of the second part, to wit : they are to

erect and forever maintain a good and sufficient fence along the

south side of their said railroad, and are to build, and maintain

in suitable repair, a sewer, of suitable materials, under their

said railroad, so that the water from the spring, and the surface



APRIL TERM, 1858. 223

Joliet and Northern Indiana Railroad Company v. Jones.

water from the adjacent premises of the first party, may pass

freely ofi^ at all times after said railroad shall be built."

John W. Stevens^ called on the part of the plaintiff, said, in

substance : Knew localities in question ; land in possession of

plaintiff, who resided there at the time of the accident. No
fence on the south side of the railroad at the time. Plaintiff's

flock of sheep in the habit of laying around the barn on the hill,

opposite the track ; they were not inclosed at the time, but

running at large. The south line of eight acre tract conveyed

about half way between barn and railroad. In the morning,

found nine sheep dead on the track, and forty-four injured
;

sixteen more were killed ; six or seven of the wounded sheep

died afterwards—rest recovered. In addition to twenty-five

which were killed, seven or eight more died within six weeks.

He further testified that the most natural place for the sheep

to get on the track from the barn was straight across. There
were no fences at the time on the east and west lines of plain-

tiff's land, extending to the south line of the railroad ; there

was a highway crossing east of the east line of plaintiff's land,

and there was no inclosure along the highway from the barn to

the railroad. Accident occured early in the morning. Did
not know what company were operating the road ; did not

know whether the train in question belonged to Michigan Cen-

tral or Chicago and Mississippi.

Henry Johnson^ called by the plaintiff : Lived near land in

question. From the barn there was no difficulty in getting on

to the track anywhere. Quite a wide bottom between bluff

where barn stood and railroad, extending for some rods along

the highway, which crosses the railroad ou the east.

Richard Neivkirk, next called for plaintiff : The track was
from five to six feet high

;
grass on each side, in. the bottom.

At night, it was natural for the sheep to seek the track to lie

down upon. There was a highway crossing not more than three

or four rods from east line of land in question. It was from
ten to twelve rods from where nearest sheep was killed.

Joel A. Matteson. The possession of the road was trans-

ferred to Michigan Central Company in the early part of June,

1855. Defendant never operated road with freight or passen-

ger trains. The trains were of Michigan Central or Chicago
and Mississippi, which then ran trains on road. Witness was
the agent of the Oswego and Indiana Plank Road Company.

N. D. Elwood, then called for defendant. Transfer to the

Michigan Central Company consummated 4th June, 1855.

Defendant then moved to exclude from jury the evidence

relating to deed in question, upon the ground that the identity

of the Oswego and Indiana Plank Road Company v»^ith the
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defendant had not been proved, and was not presumable from

identity of name, which was overruled, and defendant excepted.

The defendant's counsel then asked the following, among
other, instructions

:

2nd. If no evidence has been produced by the plaintiff,

satisfying the jury that the defendant, the Joliet and Northern
Indiana Railroad Company, are the same identical corporation

with the Oswego and Indiana Plank Road Company, which
made the contract for which the plaintiff sues, then the plaintiff

has failed to sustain his declaration, and the law is for the

defendant.

Which the court refused to give.

3rd. Although the jury should believe, from the evidence,

that the defendant was bound, by the conditions in the deed of

the right of way from Robert Jones, to build a fence along the

railroad on the south side thereof, and had failed to do so, yet

this breach of duty on their part did not absolve the plaintiff

from the exercise of such care and prudence in the management
of his stock as the actual condition of his farm and the circum-

stances of the case seemed to call for at the time.

Which was given.

4th. If, from the evidence, the jury believe that the imme-
diate agency which killed or injured the plaintiff's sheep was a

locomotive engine on the railroad track, running against them,

then, although from all the circumstances the jury might imagine

it probable that the sheep would not have been on the track if

a fence had been built, according to contract, yet, if such want
of fence is not the immediate and proximate cause of the injury,

that fact would not of itself make the company liable.

Which was given.

5th. That although the defendants may themselves have
been guilty of negligence in the management of the train in

question, either by not giving the proper signals in time, or by
not keeping a proper look-out, or by not slackening the speed

of the train, yet if the plaintiff was also guilty of want of

proper and reasonable care and prudence on the occasion, by
leaving his sheep in an uninclosed field on the side of and open
to the railroad, then, unless the proof shows that the conduct of

the engineer wae wanton and malicious, and not merely careless

and imprudent, the law is for the defendants, and plaintiff

cannot recover for the damage done.

Refused, and the defendant excepted.

7th. First clause : " In order to make the defendant liable

in respect to the condition inserted in the deed to fence the

road on the south side, it is incumbent on the plaintiff to prove,

by evidence either positive or circumstantial, that the sheep got
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on to the railroad track at some point in the line which the

defendant was so bound to fence, and not elsewhere."

"Which was given.

Second clause :
" And it is also incumbent on him to prove

that such fence, if built, would have formed a perfect inclosure

for said sheep from and against the railroad."

Which was refused, and defendant excepted.

10th. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the entire

agreement in regard to the fencing of the plaintiff's land in

question was finally contained and embodied in the condition or

provision in the deed on which the suit is brought, then the said

agreement forms the only measure of the rights of the parties,

and no evidence of previous agreements or negotiations between
the parties in regard to said fencing is admissible.

Which was given.

This cause was tried by Norton, Judge, and a jury.

Parks &, Elwood, for Appellant.

W. K. McAllister, for Appellee.

Breese, J. The right to maintain this action by Jones against

this Railroad Company, is established by the case of Conger v.

The Chicago and Rock Island Railroad Company^ 15 111. R. 366,
a case, in its legal aspect, identical with this. The errors

assigned in this record are, in refusing the second instruction

asked for by the defendants below, the appellants here, to the

effect that " it was incumbent on the plaintiff below to prove
the identity of the Joliet and Northern Indiana Railroad Com-
pany with the Oswego and Indiana Plankroad Company, with
which the contract sued on was made ;" in refusing to give the

second clause of the seventh instruction asked for by the appel-

lants ; in refusing the fifth instruction ; in not excluding from
the consideration of the jury the deed from Jones to the Oswego
and Indiana Plankroad Company, upon the motion of the de-

fendants below ; in admitting testimony after the deed had been
produced, designed to prove verbal agreements made previously,

touching the same subject matter ; in refusing the motion for a
new trial for the reason assigned, that the verdict was against

law and evidence ; and in refusing to arrest the judgment for

the reason assigned, that the declaration did not state a legal

cause of action.

As preliminary, we may notice here, that the bill of exceptions
contains the declaration and pleadings in the cause, thus incum-
bering the record and occasioning costs for no good purpose.

It is the office of a bill of exceptions to bring before the appel-
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late court matters de hors the record only, not the pleadings of

the parties, for they are intrinsic, and are necessarily on the

record, without being preserved by a bill of exceptions. The
costs of so much of this record as contains these pleadings in

the bill of exceptions, should be taxed against the party who
caused them to be put in it.

As to the first error assigned, the rule is, in all cases, that the

best evidence of which the nature of the case is susceptible,

must be produced ; and another is, that the material averments
of a declaration must be proved. The averment in this

declaration is, that the defendant, " then a corporation under
the name of Oswego and Indiana Plankroad Company, received

the deed for the laud, and that defendant accepted the deed
upon the condition therein contained, and expressly promised to

build the fence." The deed was made to the Plankroad Com-
pany, and the inquiry arises, where is the evidence that this

company and the defendant are identical? The averment is,

the defendant accepted the deed, by the name of the Oswego
and Indiana Plankroad Company, and the testimony of Matteson
and Elwood shows, that the defendant was the owner of the

railroad up to June 4, 1855, at which time it was transferred

from the defendant to the Michigan Central Railroad. It is

very true, where a deed is made to a corporation or individual,

by a name different from the true name, the plaintiff may sue in

their true name, and aver in the declaration that the defendant

made the deed to them by the name mentioned in the deed.

But that is not this case. The deed was made to the party by
its true and proper corporate name, but there is no proof tend-

ing to show that the corporation now defending is the same
corporation as that which received the deed. If it be the fact,

it is susceptible of proof. The mere averment of identity is

not sufficient, and the plea of the general issue puts that fact, as

well as every other one not protected by our practice act and
rules of pleading, directly in issue. We think there is an entire

absence of proof establishing this identity.

As to the second clause of the seventh instruction, we think

there was no error in refusing it, as it is immaterial, so far as

the duty of the defendants is involved, whether the fence they

engaged to make would have formed " a perfect inclosure for

the sheep from and against the railroad," or not. The duty,

under the contract, was to build the fence ; its effect or utility,

when built, is another and different question. The liability of

the company, in this action, for the neglect of this duty would
depend entirely on the question of fact to be found by the jury,

whether this neglect of duty contributed to the injury of which
complaint is made.
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The fifth instruction raises the question, as to which party the

negligence is most properly chargeable.

It will be observed, that the declaration does not go upon the

negligence of the defendants in running their train. It proceeds

solely upon the ground of neglect to build the fence, by means
of wliich the injury resulted by the destruction of the sheep.

This being so, the question is still behind, though the defendants

neglected their duty, does this excuse the plaintiff from the

exercise of that ordinary care every prudent man bestows upon
his own ? We think not. All the testimony in the cause shows,

if the few rods of fence the defendants were required to make,
would not, when made, have constituted an inclosure ; for the other

sides were open and uninclosed, and there is no evidence to

show that the animals got upon the railroad by the line the

defendants were to fence ; and the inference is as fair that they

did not so get upon it, as that they did.

It cannot be denied, that the plaintiff kept his sheep, whose
habits he should know, very negligently, far more so than an
ordinarily prudent man takes of such property. They were
subject to destruction every hour in the day, by trains running

at their usual speed ; and although the defendants might be

bound to make the fence, it did not exempt the plaintifl" from
the obligation to take ordinary care for the protection of the

animals. His negligence was the direct and proximate cause of

the injury, and the defendants should have the benefit of that

principle.

For the reasons given, the judgment is reversed, and the

cause remanded.

Judgment reversed.

Jacob Darst, Appellant, v. Israel M. Marshall,
Appellee.

APPEAL prom KNOX.

Where there is a contract for the sale of land unexecuted, it makes no difference
so far as claim and color of title is concerned, whether the taxes are paid by the
vendor or vendee, or by the assignee of either.

Where a party had a contract for a deed of land, to be delivered when he should
make certain payments, the contract providing also, that he should repay the
taxes assessed after a certain date, which contract was assigned by the vendor
as the payment of money, and the assignee of the contract paid taxes for three
years, and until the deed was delivered ; when the party purchasing paid those
taxes and all others for a period of seven years, during all which time he was in

actual possession, this established such claim and color of title as would defeat
an action of ejectment brought by any other claimant.
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Plaintiff filed liis declaration for the recovery of the north-

west quarter of section thirty-two, township ten north, range

one east of the fourth principal meridian, at the September
term of the Knos Circuit Court, to wit : the 24th day of Sep-

tember, 1855. Plea, not guilty.

The cause was tried by the court, without a jury, at the April

term of said court, 1857, and taken under advisement by the

court until the October term, 1857, when judgment was ren-

dered for the defendant, at which last named term plaintiff filed

his bill of exceptions, which shows that the plaintiff proved
title from the United States by a regular chain of conveyances

to himself, which were read in evidence, without objection.

The possession of the said premises by defendant at the time

of commencing suit was admitted.

Here the plaintiff rested.

Defendant, to prove title on his part, offered in evidence a deed
for said premises from the Auditor of State, under a tax sale

made 16th January, 1828, dated 5th July, 1830, to John Tilson,

Jr., which was offered for the purpose of defense, under the

limitation laws, and admitted for that purpose by the court ; also

a deed from John Tilson, Jr., and wife, to Moses Allen, con-

veying said premises, dated 27th April, 1830, for the purpose

of making defense under the limitation laws. To the admission

in evidence of said two last named deeds, the plaintiff ob-

jected, which objections were overruled by the court.

Defendant next offered in evidence a deed from Moses Allen

and wife, to Chas. F. Moulton and others, dated 14th November,
1835, and a deed from said Moulton and others, to Thomas Dunlap
and Lemuel Lamb, dated 30th April, 1838, to the land in ques-

tion, both of which last named deeds were objected to by plain-

tiff, and excluded by the court.

Defendant next offered a deed from said Lamb and Dunlap,

to himself, for said premises, dated 1st November, 1841, which
last named deed was never recorded. Also, a copy of agree-

ment for a deed from the Illinois Land Company to Israel M.
Marshall, the defendant, dated 15th June, 1841, whereby said

land company bound themselves to convey to said Marshall the

land in question, in consideration of the payment by Marshall

of $50 cash in hand, $150 on 1st June, 1842,' $150 on 1st

Monday of June, 1843, and $142 on 1st Monday of June, 1844,
with interest. Said agreement contained the following clause

by which defendant agreed, " at the time of the delivery of the

deed for said premises by the said parties of the first part, to

repay to the said parties of the first part all taxes assessed on
said premises from the fifteenth day of June, one thousand eight

hundred and forty one, and the interest thereon, at the rate of
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six per centum per annum, until paid," upon which agreement
were receipts for the purchase money paid by Marshall.

One of which receipts was dated 27th June, 1842, for $19.25,
signed "John Tilson, Jr., Agent for C. Morton."

Another for $51.77, dated 28th June, 1841, signed " John
Tilson, Jr., Agent for Chas. Morton."

Another for $110, dated 13th July, 1843, signed " Lucius
Kingman, for the owner, J. R. Randolph."

Another for $205, dated 3rd July, 1843, signed " Lucius

Kingman, for the owner, J. R, Randolph." Which said agree-

ment never was recorded.

Defendant next offered the deposition of Lucius Kingman,
dated 14th January, 1857, to which was attached and exhibited

said agreement from the land company, and said deed from
Lamb and Dunlap, to the defendant, and also three several tax

receipts for the payment of the taxes on said land, as follows

:

STATE OF ILLINOIS, I

^^
Collkctor's Office,

KNOX COUNTY. J
" Knoxville, May 25th, 1842.

Eeceived of John Tilson, Jr., twelve dollars and seventy-two cents, tax due

State and County, for year 1841 on the following lands :

S. E. 31, 10 k, IE.,- - - - - $3 90
N. W. 31, 9 N., 3 E., - - - - 2 94
N. W. 32, 10 N., 1 E., - - - - - 2 94
N. E. 18, 9 N., 1 E., - - - - 2 94 .

$12 72

Signed, G. PLYMALE, Collector.

STATE OF ILLINOIS, )

^^
Collector's Office,

KNOX COUNTY. )
' KiioxvUle, May 22nd, 1843.

Received of Lucius Kingman, the sum of three dollars and sixty-eight cents,

being in full for State, County and Eoad Tax, on the following described land, for

the year 1842:

N. W. 36, 10 N., 3 E., $1 84
N. W. 32, 10 N., 1 E., - 1 84

$3 68

GEO. LOWMAN, Collector.

STATE OF ILLINOIS, )^ • Collector's Office,
KNOX COUNTY. )

' KnoxvUk, Feb. 22, 1844.

Received of John E. Randolph, the sum of three dollars and five cents, being

in full for State and County Tax on the following described land, for the year

1843:

N. W. 32, 10 N., IE.,) .... *3 o5
N. W. 34, ION., 3E., J

''"^ ^^

Paid by N. Selby. ^^ °^

GEO. LOWMAN, Collector.
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Said Kingman states, the Illinois Land Company owned the

land ; Lamb and Dunlap were the trustees, and held the title
;

the company owed John Tilson, Jr., money.
That the contract to Marshall was executed by the Illinois

Land Company, by John Tilson, agent for said company, by
Chas. Morton.

That in April or May, 1842, said contract and its value was
given to John Tilson, Jr., by the Illinois Land Company, in-

stead of money due said Tilson, and the taxes for 1841 were
paid in name of said Tilson for himself. John Tilson, Jr., then

gave the contract to Robert Tilson, as cash, and Robert gave it

to one John R. Randolph, as so much cash ; and the taxes of

1842 were paid in the name of Kingman, for said Randolph

;

and tax of 1848 was paid by witness, in the name of said Ran-
dolph for him, and so charged to him on the books.

That said contract, the deed to Marshall, and tax receipts,

were all left with witness, in Quincy, by John Tilson, Jr.,

Robert Tilson, and John R. Randolph : the tax receipts con-

tained other lands than the one in question.

The land in question was sold to defendant as a tax title.

Tilsons and Randolph only claimed the land as above stated,

under the title sold by said land company, to Marshall ; and
they paid the taxes as such owners under said sale and contract,

in the place of the land company.
Defendant next offered in evidence tax receipts for the pay-

ment of taxes on the land in question, for the years 1844, 1845,
1846, 1847 and 1848 ; to all of which evidence the plaintiff

objected, (but not because signatures were not proved, nor
because copies were used,) but because the same were irrelevant

and improper evidence ; but the court overruled the objections

and allowed the evidence to be read for the purpose of showing
color of title or connected title to protect the defendant under
the limitation laws.

John C. Latimer sworn, stated that the land in question was
vacant when he first knew it in 1831 ; in 1833 a man by the

name of West cut a set of cabin logs on the land. In 1834,
brother of witness bought the logs and West's claim, for

defendant.

In 1835, defendant moved from Kentucky on to the land, in

his wagon, put up a temporary camp, then put up a cabin with
the logs, made arrangements to winter his stock : in winter of

1835 and spring of 1836 he made rails and fenced a small

field ; has had possession by actual residence thereon ever since,

but had only a small part of the quarter inclosed. Broke up
four or five acres in 1836, and planted an orchard ; has used it

as his farm.
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He continued Ms improvements in 1837, the house has been

occupied by tenants ever since ; these improvements were con-

tinued until there is now a pasture fenced of from sixty to

eighty acres, besides the orchard. The defendant's barn is on

this ground. The whole of the pasture and orchard were
inclosed by 1842 or 1843.

Defendant first squatted on the land, and said he intended to

buy it as soon as he could find the title ; has claimed it as his

own since 1840 ; built a large barn on it in 1841.

That West never lived on the land, nor had any title to it.

That defendant came out from Kentcky in 1834, to look at the

country, saw this land, said if he could get West's claim, he

would settle on it, and buy the title when he could find it. He
bought the tax title in 1840 ; claimed nothing but a squatter's

claim when he first went on to the land, and never claimed any

title until 1840. Sixty or seventy acres of prairie on the quar-

ter ; the balance is brush and timber. Defendant has openly

claimed the land as his own since he bought the tax title.

Defendant then offered a deed from Peter Franc, sherifl", to

Abraham D. Swartz, under tax sale of 1840, for tax of 1839,
dated November 15th, 1842, conveying the land in question.

Also, a deed from Abraham D. Swartz and wife, to Charles

Morton, dated 27th May, 1842, conveying said land. Also, a

deed from Charles Morton and wife, to defendant, dated 15th

January, 1845.

To the introduction, in evidence, of said three last deeds,

plaintiff objected ; the defendant stated that he offered the

deeds to show connected title, or color of title, to protect him
under the limitation laws of 1835 or 1839, or either of them,

for which purpose only the court admitted the same.

It was agreed that no exceptions should be taken to any
papers, on account of signatures not being proved, nor because

copies were used instead of originals.

John G. Sanborn sworn, stated that the receipts for money on
the contract were in the handwriting of Charles Morton.
Recollects that the papers were left with him (witness), and
presumed the deed was delivered by him to Marshall, when the

last payment was made, in 1844 or 1845. Can't say that the

contract shown is the one left with him, but thinks it is. Had
received at various times papers from Land Company, for Mar-
shall. Don't recollect delivering the deed to Marshall. Can't
identify the deed as being the one left with him ; it resembles
the one.

Last payment on contract was made in 1844 or 1845 ; of this

he has no recollection, except from the papers ; thinks he
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received a small sum of money from Marshall, for Morton, and
delivered liim the contract and deed ;—this he states from his

general recollection of the transaction.

Thinks he delivered a deed to Marshall ; can't say the one

shown was the one, but thinks it looks like the same'.

The above was all the evidence in the case.

Appellant assigns for error :

That said Circuit Court erred in permitting the said deed
from the auditor of said State, to John Tilson, Jr., and from
John Tilson, Jr., to Moses Allen, to be read in evidence.

In permitting said deed from Lamb and Dunlap to said defend-

ant, to be read in evidence.

In permitting said contract from the Illinois Land Company
to said defendant, to be read in evidence.

In permitting the deposition of Lucius Kingman to be read in

evidence.

In permitting so much of said deposition of Kingman to be

read as shows, or tends to show, title, or color of title to said

premises, in the Illinois Land Company, or in John Tilson, Jr.,

or John R. Randolph.

In permitting each and every of the said tax receipts at-

tached to the deposition of said Kingman, to be read in evi-

dence.

In permitting parol evidence that the tax of A. D. 1842,

paid in the name of Lucius Kingman, was paid for John R. Ran-
dolph.

In admitting evidence of the payment of the taxes for the

years 1841, 1842 and 1843, and each of them, under any
title, or color or claim of title, in the Illinois Land Company.

In admitting the evidence of the payment of taxes as stated

in the deposition of said Kingman, under any claim and color

of title attempted to be shown in said cause, to entitle the

defendant to a defense under the act of A. D. 1839, as a limita-

tion law, or for any other purpose under said act.

In permitting the said tax deed from Peter Franc, sheriff, to

Abraham D. Swartz, to be read in evidence.

In permitting said deeds from Swartz to Charles Morton, and
from said Morton to the defendant, to be read in evidence.

In rendering judgment in favor of said defendant in said

cause.

In determining that said defendant was entitled to the beneiit

of the limitation act of A. D, 1835, or the act of A. D. 1839,

upon the facts shown in said cause.

In not rendering judgment for the plaintiff upon the facts

shown in said cause.
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H. M. Wead, J. Manning, and Lander & Lindsay, for

Appellant.

G. F. Harding, for Appellee.

Walker, J. This was an action of ejectment, commenced
in the Knox Circuit Court, by Darst against Marshall, at the

September term, 1855. On a trial by the court, by consent,

without the intervention of a jury, the plaintiff introduced in

evidence a regular chain of title from the United States to him-

self. Defendant admitted possession. The defendant introduced

in evidence a deed from the Auditor of State, under sale of

January, 1828, dated July 5th, 1830, to John Tilson, Jr. ; a

deed from Tilson to Moses Allen ; a deed from Allen to Charles

F. Moulton and others ; a deed from Moulton and others to

Lemuel Lamb and Thomas Duulap, for the premises in dispute.

Also, a deed from Lamb and Dunlap to himself, dated the 1st

of November, 1841. And a copy of an agreement for a deed
from the Illinois Land Company to defendant, dated July 15th,

1841, by which the Land Company bound themselves to convey

the land to defendant upon the payment of the purchase money
as therein specified ; the last payment of which fell due on the

1st day of June, 1844. The defendant agreed by this contract

that, upon the delivery of the deed, he would repay all taxes

assessed on the land after the 15th of June, 1841, and interest

thereon until paid. On the back of this agreement were
receipts of purchase money : one for ^51.77, June 28, 1841,
signed J. Tilson, Jr., for Chas. Morton ; one for $19.25, June

27, 1842, signed J. Tilson, Jun., agent for C. Morton ; one for

$205, July 3, 1843, signed Lucius Kingman, for the owner, J.

R, Randolph; and another for $110, the 13th July, 1843,
signed, Lucius Kingman, for the owner, J. R. Randolph. The
defendant read a tax receipt for this land for the taxes of

1841, paid by J. Tilson, Jr., dated the 25th May, 1842 ; one

for taxes of 1842, paid by Lucius Kingman ; one for 1843, paid

by John R. Randolph. Kingman testified that Lamb and Dun-
lap were the trustees for the Illinois Land Company. The
Company owed Tilson, and Tilson, as their agent, sold the land

to defendant. That in April or May, 1842, the contract was
given to Tilson as money, and the taxes of 1841 were paid in

his name for himself. He afterwards gave the contract to

Robert Tilson as cash, and he in like manner gave it to John
R. Randolph as so much cash, and that the taxes of 1842 were
paid by Kingman for the use of Randolph ; the taxes of 1843
were paid by witness in the name of Randolph, for him, and so

charged on the books. The contract, the deed to Marshall, and

16
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tax receipts, were all left with witness by Jolin Tilson, Jr.,

Robert Tilson, and John R. Randolph. The Tilsons and Ran-

dolph only claimed the land, as above stated, under the title of

the Land Company sold to Marshall, and they paid the taxes as

such owners under that sale and contract, in place of the Land
Company. Defendant then read in evidence tax receipts to

himself for the years 1844, 1845, 1846, 1847, and 1848. The
evidence shows that in 1885 defendant went into the actual pos-

session of the land, and had resided on it since that time. That

in 1835 he built a cabin, made rails and fenced a small field.

In 1836 he broke up four or five acres and planted an orchard,

and used the place as his own. He continued the improvements

until sixty or eighty acres were inclosed, besides the orchard

;

has his barn on the land, and the whole inclosure was made as

early as in 1842 or 1843. The barn is a large one, and was
built in 1841. Defendant then introduced in evidence a deed

from Peter Franc, sheriff of Knox county, to Abraham D.

Stewarts under tax sale of 1840, for tax of 1839, dated Nov-
ember 15th, 1842, for the land in question. Also, a deed from

Stewarts to Charles Morton, dated May 27th, 1842 ; and a deed

from Morton to defendant, dated 15th January, 1845. On this

evidence the court found for the defendant, and rendered judg-

ment in his favor. From which plaintiff appeals.

In giving a construction to the 8th sec. of the 24th chap.,

R. S. 1845, in the case of Cqfield v. Furrp, 19 111. R. 183, this

court say :
" The true question in such cases is, under what

title were the taxes paid ? If they were paid under no claim

and color, or under a title adverse to that to which they are

sought to be applied, the payment is unavailing. But if paid

by the tenant, his payment, like his possession, is, in legal efl'ect,

the act of the landlord. If payment is made by the cestui que

trust, the effect is the same as if made by the trustee, for the

two interests united make the estate, or the legal and equi-

table title to the land, standing together, and not in hostility to

each other."

In the case under consideration, the defendant held the actual

possession of the premises, under a contract which he entered

into with the agent of Lamb and Dunlap, made the 15th of

June, 1841. And, whatever the authority of the agent might
have been, they executed a deed of this land, in pursuance of

this agreement, on the If t day of November following, which
was not delivered until tlie purchase money was paid. They
undoubtedly, by the execution of that deed, fully ratified the

act of their agent in this sale. The defendant was, then, in

possession under this title, and so continued for some years

after his purchase, as also after the ratification of it by Lamb
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and Dunlap, This was clearly claim and color of title. The
defendant paid the taxes for live years, about whicli there is no
dispute. But it is insisted that the payment by Tilson and by

Randolph, and by Kingman for Randolph, for each of the three

years which completed the seven years, was not available. The
evidence shows that Lamb and Duillap assigned the contract

with defendant to Tilson as a payment of money. He thereby

succeeded to all their rights under the contract, and Randolph,

by assignment, succeeded to Tilson's rights, in the same manner.

And these taxes were paid by them while they held this interest.

They paid them under it, and to protect it from sale. They did

not pay the taxes claiming under no title, nor did they pay them
under a title adverse to this, but as connected with it by their

assignment of the contract. It can make no difierence whether
the taxes are paid by the vendor or by the vendee, while the

contract of sale remains unexecuted ; nor can it make any dif-

ference whether by the assignee of the vendor or of the vendee
;

for, whether paid by one or another of them, it would be equally

under the same claim and color of title. Any other construc-

tion would defeat the obvious intention of the legislature, and
fail to prevent the mischief intended to be remedied.

The contract of defendant for the purchase of this land, pro-

vided that he would refund to the persons of whom he pur-

chased, all taxes that should accrue after the purchase and
which they should pay. This was, then, an authority to the

vendor, or his assigns, to pay the taxes for him. And when
they made those payments, they did so as his agents ; and what
a person does by another, he does by himself. Upon this prin-

ciple, the payments thus made are equally availing as the pay-

ments made by himself, and formed a part of the seven years'

payment of taxes, concurring with his seven years' possession.

Judgment affirmed.

The Peoria Bridge Association, Appellant, v. Lyman J
Loomis, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM MARSHALL.

Juries may give exemplary damages in cases of willful negligence or malice, if the

proof exhibits such a state of case.

To constitute willful negligence, the act done, or omitted, must be the result of

intention. Mere neglect cannot ordinarily be ranked as willfulness.
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The proprietors of a bridge, if it should be applied to the uses of a railroad, should
provide increased guards against consequential new dangers.

In actions for negligence, that the plaintiff, if not wholly free from fault, must be
as compared to the negligence of the defendants, so much less culpable as to

incline the balance in his favor, both being in some fault.

Where there is an absence of proof of willful negligence, and no foundation for

the damages awarded, and the finding of the jury manifests feeling and prejudice,

the verdict will be set aside.

The rule of damages for personal injuries resulting from the negligence of others,

is measured by the loss of time and expense incurred in respect of it ; the pain
and suffering undergone ;

permanent injuries sustained ; impairing future useful-

ness, and consequent pecuniary loss.

This is an action of trespass on the case, commenced in Taze-

Trell, and, by change of venue, sent to Marshall county, where it

was tried at January term, 1858.

The declaration contains two counts, which are as follows

:

Lyman J. Loomis, the plaintiff in this suit, complains of the

Peoria Bridge Association, a corporation created by and under
the laws of the State of Illinois, passed on and since the 26th

day of January, A. D. 1847, entitled " An Act to authorize the

construction of a bridge across the Illinois river," and also, an
Act amendatory thereto, entitled " An Act in addition to an Act
entitled ' An Act to authorize the construction of a bridge across

the Illinois river,' approved January 26th, 1847," defendants in

this suit, of a plea of trespass on the case ; for that whereas
before and at the time of the committing of the grievances

hereinafter next mentioned, the said defendants were the owners
and possessors of a certain bridge across the Illinois river,

extending from the city and county of Peoria across the Illinois

river, in the county of Tazewell, and State aforesaid, and were
also the owners and possessors of certain lands adjacent thereto,

and lying and adjoining their (the defendants') said bridge, and
whereas all and every person was entitled, and of right, to cross

and pass over, along and upon said bridge of said defendants

aforesaid, on paying tolls therefor to said defendants ; and said

defendants were bound by law to keep their said bridge in good
repair, so as to furnish a safe and convenient passage to all and
every person and persons, and their teams, horses, wagons and
property, on payment of the tolls aforesaid to said defendants

;

and said defendants were also bound by law, and of right should

and ought to have kept their said lands and premises adjacent

to and adjoining said bridge free and clear of and from any and
all cars, locomotives, railroad tracks, fixtures, steam engines,"

and free and clear of and from the running, noise, confusion,

whistling and alarm, on, over and upon their said lands and
premises so adjoining, adjacent and next contiguous to their said

bridge, wherelDy the horses, teams and property of any and all
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persons crossing over, along and upon said bridge of said defend-

ants could become frightened and alarmed, and run or back off,

through or over said bridge. Yet the said defendants, not
regarding their duty in this behalf, willfully, negligently and
carelessly suffered and permitted divers persons, corporations

and railroad companies to lay down their certain railroad track

on the land and premises of and belonging to said defendants,

adjacent to, next adjoining and contiguous to their said bridge

aforesaid ; and said defendants also authorized, contracted, and
agreed to and with, and knowingly suffered said divers persons,

corporations and railroad companies to lay down their said road
track as aforesaid, and build and construct their j&xtures thereon,

and run their cars, to wit : one hundred cars and engines, to wit :

ten engines and locomotives, to wit : ten locomotives, over and
upon said railroad track so laid down and constructed on and
over the said premises of defendants as aforesaid, and which
said cars, engines, machinery and locomotives were moved
driven and propelled by steam power, with great force, noise

confusion and whistling, to the great fright, consternation, alarm
dread, hazard and danger of all and every person and persons
their horses, teams and property passing and crossing over, upon
and along said bridge of said defendants as aforesaid, to wit

on the 15th day of December, A. D. 1856, at the county of
Tazewell aforesaid ; and by reason whereof, and by reason of the
running, driving and propelling of said cars, engines, locomotives

and machinery of said divers persons, corporations and railroad

companies over and upon the said land and premises of said

defendants as aforesaid, with great force, noise, confusion, dis-

turbance and whistling of said locomotives and engines, the

team and horses of said plaintiff, so crossing along, upon and
over said bridge as aforesaid, as he lawfully might do, and of
right was entitled to, took fright, became greatly alarmed, and
run and pushed over and through said bridge, and fell, and were
precipitated and hurled with great violence to the ground, a
great distance, to wit : the distance of fifteen feet, together with
the plaintiff, his wagon, team and property, wherewith he the
said plaintiff was then and there passing over, upon and along-

said bridge of said defendants aforesaid ; and whereby and by
reason of said fall off', through and over said bridge of said

defendants ai?aresaid, the said jjlaintiff was bruised, injured,

wounded and maimed for life, and his bones broken ; and where-
by, also, his said horses and team were bruised, damaged, injured,

wounded and rendered entirely valueless to said plaintiff; and
his said wagon and property which said plaintiff was crossing

over, along and upon said defendants' bridge, as aforesaid, be-

came broken, injured and worthless, and entirely useless and
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valueless to said plaintiff, to wit : at the county aforesaid ; and
the said plaintiff, in consequence of such falling and being hurled

and precipitated to the ground, together with his said horses,

team, wagon and property as aforesaid, and in consequence of

such bruises, maims, wounds, injuries and broken bones to him-

self and horses as aforesaid, and the damage and breaking of

his wagon, team and property so crossing along, over and upon
said bridge of said defendants as aforesaid, and in and about

the curing, healing, care, skill and attention of and to himself

and horses, and the repairing of his wagon, team and property,

was forced and obliged to pay, lay out and expend divers large

sums of money, amounting in all to a great sum of money, to

wit : the sum of one thousand dollars, to wit : at the county of

Tazewell aforesaid.

And also for that whereas, before and at the time of commit-

ting of the grievances by said defendants, as hereinafter next

mentioned, the said defendants were the owners and possessors

of a certain other bridge, extending from the city and county of

Peoria, across the Illinois river, into the county of Tazewell
and State of Illinois, and over, across and along which said

bridge any and all persons were entitled to cross, pass, and of

right might cross, pass and travel, and use for the purpose of

crossing the said Illinois river, together with their and each of

their horses, wagons, teams and property, on payment of toll to

said defendants ; and said defendants being so possessed of and
the owners of said other bridge as aforesaid, and entitled to

have, demand and receive tolls from any and all persons so

crossing and passing over said other bridge, either with or

without their and each of their horses, wagons, teams and prop-

erty as aforesaid, and by reason whereof the said defendants

ought of right, and were bound by law, to repair said bridge

and keep the same in good repair, so as to admit of convenient

and safe passage for all persons, and their property, teams,

wagons and horses, on payment of the tolls to said defendant.

Yet the said defendants, not regarding their duty in this behalf,

willfully, negligently and carelessly, and by and through their

negligence, carelessness and default, and for want of due care

and attention in this behalf, sTiflcred and permitted their said

other bridge aforesaid to be, remain and continue out of repair,

unsafe, and in a rotten, dangerous and hazardous condition,

insomuch that the said other bridge did not admit of convenient

and safe passage to any and all persons, and their property, on
payment of the tolls to said defendants as aforesaid, to wit, at

the county aforesaid ; and by reason whereof, and by reason of

the said other bridge of said defendants being, remaining and
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continuing out of repair, and in a dangerous, hazardous and
unsafe condition, as aforesaid, to wit, on the day and year afore-

said, at the county aforesaid, the plaintiff, together with his

horses, team, wagon, and property wherewith said plaintiff was
crossing, passing over and along said other bridge, with due
care and skill, as he lawfully might do, were violently hurled,

thrown and precipitated down, through and over said bridge to

the earth, a great distance, to wit, the distance of fifteen feet,

whereby said plaintiff was then and there cut, bruised, maimed
for and during his whole life, injured, crushed and wounded,
and his bones broken, and remained so for a great length of

time, and was thereby hindered and prevented from attending

to his necessary and lawful affairs and business during all that

time, and is forever maimed and deprived of ability to attend

to business, to wit, hitherto ; and the said horses, team, wagon
and property which he, the plaintiff, was then and there crossing

along, over and across said bridge, as aforesaid, also fell and
were hurled, thrown and precipitated through,off of and over said

bridge a great distance, to wit, the distance of fifteen feet to

the ground beneath said bridge, and whereby the said horses

were and became bruised, injured, wounded and maimed, and
entirely worthless and valueless to said plaintiff; and whereby
said wagon, team and property were broken, damaged, injured

and destroyed, to wit, on the day and year aforesaid, at the

county of Tazewell, aforesaid ; and the said plaintitT, in conse-

quence of such falling, bruises, wounds, maims, injuries and
broken bones to himself and horses, and the damage and break-

ing of his said wagon, team and property, so crossing along and
over said bridge, and in and about the healing and curing of

himself and horses, and repairing of his said wagon, team and
property, was forced and obliged to pay, lay out and expend,
and actually did lay out and expend, divers large sums of money,
amounting in all to a great sum of money, to wit, the sum of

one thousand dollars, to wit, at the county of Tazewell, afore-

said. To the damage of the plaintiff ten thousand dollars, and
therefore he brings suit, etc.

The defendants filed pleas to the same, as follows :

And the said defendants, for i3lea to the first count of said

plaintiff's declaration, say that they are not guilty in manner
and form, as stated in said count of said declaration, and of

this they put themselves upon the country, etc.

And for further plea in this behalf to the first count of the

plaintiff's declaration, the said defendants say that they did not

suffer or permit the said companies, corporations or individuals

in said first count of said declaration mentioned, to erect or
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construct their said road at tlie time and place where, etc., in

said declaration mentioned, as stated in said declaration, and

of this they put themselves upon the country, etc.

Issue to the country.

Upon the trial of this cause, the plaintiff, to maintain the

issue on his part, called, as a witness, David Sloatie, who tes-

tified as follows : I know the bridge across the Illinois river at

Peoria. I was along at the time his (plaintiff's) horses backed

off the bridge and injured them and himself. It was in Novem-
ber, 1856. The bridge was built in 1847. The horses took

frio-ht at a locomotive which was on the railroad track of the

Peoria and Oquawka Railroad, which was located along the

side and near to the bridge, and backed up against the railing,

which was thereby broken down, and the horses and wagon of

the plaintiff were precipitated to the ground, together with the

plaintiff himself, some fifteen feet in distance, by means of which

one of the plaiutiff's horses was rendered nearly or quite use-

less, the other one stiffened and lamed, and the plaintiff seri-

ously and dangerously wounded. There was a railing on the

bridge at the place, constructed of posts about five inches

square, which were attached to the sleepers of the bridge, about

onc4ialf of the lower end of the posts being cut away, and then

nailed to the sleepers with large nails or spikes. These posts

were nine feet apart, and every other one v/as braced on the

outside by a brace, from the top of the post, extending to a

cross timber of the bridge, which extended beyond the railing

and planks of the bridge. There was a string-piece in the

centre of the posts, running from one post to another, two
inches by six in size, and another on the top of the posts, about

three inches by five, both nailed on. I do not know whether
the nails of the posts were pulled out or the posts broken off".

I cannot tell how close the horses were to the locomotive ; they

backed off very quick. The rails on the top were spliced

between the posts by being nailed together, and were not strong.

Only one of the posts broke when the wagon went over, and
one part of the railing, eighteen feet long, went over with the

posts. The end posts did not give way. I did not see Loomis,

except at a distance, the day of the accident ; he was then

walking, with the assistance of a man on each side ; his head
was bloody. I did not see him again for two or three weeks.

I do not think he has got over the injuries yet ; he sometimes

spits corrupted matter. The accident occurred four or five rods

from the depot house toward Peoria. My horses were fright-

ened at the same time. I knew the locomotive was there when
I first came on the bridge ; it was in plain sight. I could see

it for a quarter of a mile before I came on to the bridge, but
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the locomotive was standing still. We waited to see it move,

but it did not move ; we went on. Tlie bridge was safe to pass

over if horses were not frightened or scared. Loomis whipped
his horses several times after they were scared, and before they

went over the bridge. They were ordinarily gentle horses.

The locomotive was about forty feet from plaintiff's horses'

heads when they backed off. The horses would not have backed
off if the railing had been strong enough to have prevented

them. I did not consider the bridge safe, principally on account

of the weakness of the railing. I did not see Loomis jerk his

horses ; I did see him strike them. I was paying particular

attention to my own horses, which were also frightened, and
was not paying particular attention to the plaintiff. I had long

considered the bridge unsafe. There are holes in it ; the rail-

ing was insufficient, and many of the posts which held it were
loose and rotten. If the railing had been sufficient, the accident

would not have happened. Defendants have since built a new
bridge, and put on strong railing. The railing that was then

on was not as good as ordinary railing on bridges.

Eri Gray being sworn, stated : I live in Tazewell county.

Know and have often crossed the bridge. I was there on the

bridge at the time the accident occurred. Loomis' team passed

Sloane's at or near the depot ; that there was a pile of lumber
lying on the right hand side of the bridge, and a teanu)f horses

unhitched from the wagon. The lumber, team and wagon occu-

pied about one-half the space of the bridge. The engine was
about to start as Loomis passed the lumber. His horses' heads

were turned towards the engine. They took fright at the

engine and backed off the bridge. They had to back not more
than eight or ten feet. There was a railing on the bridge, con-

structed of posts cut into the string pieces, five inches square,

with a cross piece two by six inches in the centre, and three by
five inches at the top, with a brace at each bent, but none at the

centre posts ; cross pieces and braces were all nailed with nails.

I don't know whether the posts broke off" or the nails pulled out.

The posts were nailed—some with three nails, and some with

one or two. It is my impression that the nails of the post that

gave way were drawn out. The last I saw of Loomis he was
standing up in the fore part of his wagon, and he struck his horses

once. One horse was badly injured. The other horse was not

much injured. Loomis was taken up to Mr. Parker's, injured

and in great distress. He has not got over it yet. Loomis'
team was about sixty feet from the locomotive track. The
track runs near the bridge—forty to forty-five feet off. There is

no screen between the two— the railroad and the bridge.

There was a timber string-piece on the side of the bridge, on
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the top of the plank where the horses backed off the bridge,

extending along the edge of the bridge, ten or twelve inches

square, and the plaintiff's wagon backed over the said timber

string-piece. It was not over three or four seconds from the

time the horses were frightened till they went olf the bridge.

I think said Loomis was so wrapped up in Buffalo skins that he

could not have got out of his wagon. The accident was occa-

sioned by the steam of the engine frightening the horses. If

the post which held the railing had been sufficient, it would
have stopped the horses from going over the bridge. I was
close by the plaintiff at the time of the accident. I saw him
standing up, whipping his horses, but can't say whether it was
with a stick, a whip, or the lines.

Joseph C. Frye being sworn, testified as follows : I am a

physician and surgeon, and reside at Peoria, Illinois. In

November, 1856, I was called on to visit tlie plaintiff. I found

him at Joseph Parker's, in Peoria. He was cold, had great

difficulty in breathing, and but little pulse. He had received a

severe shock ; was very much bruised about the face. His
upper jaw was broken on the right side, and he was badly

bruised on the hip, breast, forehead and head. He had a

severe contusion on the top of his head. His difficulty of

breathing and want of pulse continued about forty-eight

hours. He was in great pain, and I thought he would die. I

consulted with other physicians, and they thought so too. I

attended him twenty days, during which time he was unable to

go home. He paid me thirty dollars for my fees, etc. His jaw
is not yet sound ; he discharges corrupted matter from it. I do
not think he is, either mentally or physically, the same as he was
before he received the injury. His jaw, I think, will not get

well, unless a surgical operation is performed on tlie same.

Washington Cockle, also called by plaintiff, testified : I am
Secretary of the Peoria Bridge Association. The said Associ-

ation owned the bridge at the time the Peoria and Oquawka
Railroad was built, and it is a toll bridge, and at the time of

the accident to the plaintiff, in November, 1856. The witness

then, at the request of the plaintiff's counsel, produced the

minute book of the Peoria Bridge Association, and the plaintiff'

offered to read from the same an order under date of October 8,

1853, which is as follows :
" On motion of Mr. Curtenius, Ordered

that the President and Secretary execute a release of the right of

way over the lands of this Association in Tazewell county, to the

Peoria and Oquawka Railroad Company, for the purpose of the

road of said Company, reserving for the use of this Association

the timber upon said land." To this evidence the defendants

objected as irrelevant and incompetent. The court admitted
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the evidence. Witness further stated that the Peoria and
Oquawka Railroad was located before the passage of said reso-

lution, at the place where it is now built, and where the plain-

tiff's horses took fright, before the above recited order was
made, and the Peoria Bridge Association was not consulted at

all in relation to this location ; they never received any compen-
sation for the right of way, and made no objection to the rail-

road being located where it is ; they claimed the land, and had
their bridge on it when the railroad was located.

The plaintiff then offered in evidence an Act of the General

Assembly of the State of Illinois, entitled "An Act to authorize

the construction of a bridge across the Illinois River," approved
January 26th, 1847. Also, " An Act in addition to an Act
entitled ' An Act to authorize the construction of a bridge

across the Illinois River,' " approved January 26th, 1847 ; ap-

l^roved June 19th, 1852.

The bridge was built under the authority of said acts, by the

defendant.

The plaintiff next called Joseph Parker, who stated : I live

in Peoria, Loomis came to my house, in November, 1856, badly

hurt and wounded. He remained about three weeks. He paid

me $20 for taking care of him. I saw the bridge on Monday
after the accident, the railing had been broken ; there was a

board nailed over the railing where it had been broken, I saw
the plaintiff's horses and wagon. One of the horses was badly

wounded in the shoulder, and is not well yet. The wagon, ex-

cept the wheels, was pretty much broken up ; harness also.

The other horse appeared to be lame and stiff. I examined the

railing and posts of the bridge ; about one-third of them were
loose at the bottom ; some were rotten, and some I could push
off with my hands. I did not consider the bridge safe. The
team of the plaintiff was a gentle, ordinarily quiet team, and
the plaintiff was a prudent and careful driver, so far as I know.
I think the timber on the side of the bridge, on the top of the

plank, was about six inches ,thick and ten inches wide, and was
lying on the flat side.

Hcnrij Price, called by the plaintiff, stated : I am a veteri-

nary surgeon. I doctored Loomis' horses in November, 1856

;

one was badly cut in the shoulder, the other lame in the back

;

one never got well, he was worth $100 before he was injured.

Loomis paid me forty dollars for doctoring his horses ; it was
worth that sum.

Plaintiff next called Nathaniel Brown, who stated : I live

in Tazewell county, three-fourths of a mile from Loomis'.

Loomis drives horses as well as common men. He is a careful

and prudent driver, and his horses were as gentle as horses
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ordinarily are. Since his accident, he is not able to perform

near as much labor as he could before.

Plaintiff then called Ira Pratt, who stated : I live in Taze-

well county, three-fourths of a mile from plaintiff. I knew his

horses, they went well enough,—were gentle. I mended
Loomis' wagon after the accident occurred, for which he paid me
$20.
Here the plaintiff rested.

The defendant then called O. Chaunte, who testified : I live

in Peoria, and am a civil engineer by occupation. The rail-

road, as appears by the books and records of the Peoria and
Oquawka Railroad Company, was located in 1851 and 1852.

In July, 1854, when I came to Peoria, the tressel work of the

road where plaintiff's accident happened, was up. The location

of the road at that place is an eligible one, and there is no
other proper or eligible location than the one then and now
occupied by said road. In order to raise the bluff and to get

on to the highlands east, it was necessary for the railroad to

keep up Farm Creek ; and the road could not cross the river at

Peoria at any other place, without great additional expense,

and considerable more distance. There was a necessity of

crossing the bridge at some place, and the line where the said

road is located, crosses at a point where it is less likely to

interfere with the travel over it, than at any other place. I

was present at the time of the plaintiff's accident, about five

hundred feet off. My attention was first attracted by the noise

of horses' feet upon the bridge. Same time I saw the engine

moving slowly, it moved about four feet ; steam was escaping

from the cylinder. The horses of plaintifl" jumped and backed
some. Loomis, the plaintiff, stood up in his wagon and whipped
his horses once or twice, then sawed their heads with the lines.

They then cramped the wagon round, and backed against the

railing of the bridge. The railing snapped, and the hind

wheels of the wagon went over, the reach hung poising upon the

edge of the bridge about five seconds ; the seat slipped back

;

plaintiff fell down first, then the wagon, then one horse, then

the other. There was time for the plaintiff, after the hind

wheels were over the bridge, to have got out of the wagon upon
the bridge. It was about a minute and a half after the horses

took fright, that they went off the bridge. The team being

frightened by the locomotive was the cause of the accident.

The team was about seventy feet from the engine when the acci-

dent occurred. It was fifty-five feet from the outside of the

bridge to the railroad track. The posts of the railing of the

bridge which I saw, were halved into the sleepers with a dove-

tail, and the top pieces and the top railing were morticed on
;
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and the bridge was safe and strong for all ordinary use. The
railing was made of upright posts, five inches square, attached

to the sleepers, braced on the outside at every other post, with

a railing two by six inches in the centre, and three by five inches

at the top, and three and a half feet high. I think Loomis, the

plaintiff, managed his horses with all the judgment and prudence

that a man in his situation would be likely to do. But he

sawed their heads while they were backing, and while the wagon
was poised upon the bridge, and after the hind wheels had gone

over. The top railing at this place was not sound ; it was
dozy ; but outwardly it being weather-beaten, there was nothing

to indicate unsoundness. After it was broken, it showed that

it was partially decayed. But one of the posts were broken

off at the time of the accident. There was no brace to this

post ; but there were braces to the two on each side, nine feet

distant from this one ; neither of which were broken or thrown
off. The braces were at each bent, when the timbers projected

beyond the planks of the bridge. The string-piece, or timber on
the edge of the plank where the horses backed the wagon ofl',

was twelve inches square, and the wagon was backed over the

timber.

George Rodgers^ called by defendant, testified : I am a

carpenter and bridge-builder, and have been so for more than

seven years. I saw the plaintiff's wagon going over the bridge

at the time of the accident. I was about twenty feet from the

bridge, on the lower side. The wagon, team and plaintiff came
off that side. I considered the bridge a safe bridge for the

passage of teams. The railing is as good as is generally put on
bridges. When I first saw the wagon of plaintiff, it was
nearly against the railing. Plaintiff was standing up. From
the time I first saw it in this position, five or six seconds of

time elapsed before it went off the bridge. Plaintiff was pulling

on the lines. The wagon was poised on the bridge, after the

hind wheels were over, four or five seconds. I think the plain-

tiff might have jumped out on the bridge. I think he was
pulling the horses ; don't remember of his striking thep.

None of the posts were broken. The railing appeared sound on
the outside, but upon examination, on the inside it had com-
menced decaying. I built two bridges within the past year,

and put upon them the same kind of railing as was on this

bridge.

Defendants then called Henry Maxwell^ who testified : I

saw the accident. I was standing at the engine. The hind
wheels of the wagon, when I first noticed it, were against the

railing of the bridge, and Loomis, the plaintiff, was pulling back
on the lines, and when the hind wheels hit the railing, it snapped,
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and over they went. The wagon, after the hind wheels were
over, stopped five or six seconds on the bridge, before it finally

went over. I was about two hundred feet oft" at the time. The
engine was hauling up iron and tin. The plaintiff's horses took

fright at the engine. There were timbers lying along the top

of the bridge, on the planks, on both sides. The bridge was
safe for all ordinary travel. Large loads and teams were daily

in the habit of crossing it.

Hiram Biinn^ called by defendant, testified : I was standing

on the bridge, thirty or forty feet from the plaintiff's team, at

the time the accident occurred. The team Avas frightened at

the engine, and backed oft" the bridge. Plaintiff was jerking

his horses and slapping them with the lines. It was a minute

or over, after the horses were frightened, before they backed

off. The bridge was safe if teams were not frightened. Other

teams passed over safely. Loomis had time to get out of his

wagon, after the horses were frightened, before the wagon was
backed off the bridge. I have often seen men with teams,

when an engine was passing, get out and hold their horses by
the heads ; I have seen a great many do so. I think Loomis
had time to jump from his wagon on to the bridge, after tlie

hind wheels were over the edge of the bridge ; I said at the

time, he was foolish for not doing so. I saw him pulling on the

lines before the wagon struck the railing.

The defendant then read in evidence an Act of the General

Assembly, entitled, " An Act to incorporate the Peoria and
Oquawka Railroad Company," approved February 12, 1849

;

and also, an Act entitled, " An Act to amend an Act entitled

' An Act to incorporate the Peoria and Oquawka Railrad Com-
pany, approved February 12, 1849,' " approved February 10,

1851. And also an Act entitled, " An Act to amend an Act
entitled ' An Act to amend an Act entitled an Act to incorpo-

rate the Peoria and Oquawka Railroad Company, approved
February 10, 1851,' " approved June 22, 1852.

The plaintiff objected to the admission of this evidence, but

the court overruled the objection and admitted the same. This

was all the evidence.

The court, at the request of the plaintiff's counsel, instructed

the jury as follows :

1. The defendants were bound in law to keep their bridge in

good repair, so as to admit of the convenient and safe passage

of all persons with their property, and if the jury believe from

the evidence that the bridge was not in such repair as to render

the passage thereof safe at the time the injury happened to the

plaintiff, the defendants are liable for such injury if it was
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occasioned by the bridge so being unsafe, if the plaintiff used

reasonable care.

2. The defendants were bound to keep their bridge in such

repair as to render it reasonably safe from the consequences of

such accidents as might be justly expected to occasionally occur

thereon ; and if the jury believe from the evidence that the want
of such repair co-operated to produce the injury in this case,

the defendants are liable, if plaintiff used reasonable care.

8. The defendants were bound to keep their bridge in such

repair as to render it safe against such accidents as might rea-

sonably be supposed to occur, and if the jury find in this case

that the bridge was not safe so as to protect the plaintiff from

such injury, the defendants are liable if plaintiff used reasonable

care.

4. It is not sufficient that the bridge was safe for g-enfle

horses ; it must be so built and kept in repair as to reasonably

protect persons from injury whose horses are not gentle and
well trained, and so as to guard against such accidents as may
be reasonably expected to occur.

5. If the jury believe from the evidence that the injury would
not have happened if the bridge had been in suitable repair, and
sufficiently strong to reasonably prevent the wagon from going

over, then the defendants are liable if plaintiff used reasonable

care.

6. The charter of the Peoria and Oquawka Railroad, did not

repeal that part of the bridge charter which requires them to

keep their bridge in repair so as to render its passage safe ; and
they were bound in law to keep it in such condition as to admit

of its safe passage at the time of the accident complained of in

this cause.

7. The defendants had no right to place any obstruction on
or near their bridge which would render its passage perilous or

unsafe ; nor had they a right to authorize or permit any one

else to do so ; and if they have done so, they are liable if such

obstruction caused the injury complained of, if the plaintiff used

reasonable care.

8. If the defendants authorized the Peoria and Oquawka
Railroad Company to build their road and run their engines

thereon contiguous to the defendants' bridge, and on the defend-

ants' land, and the running of such engines frightened the

horses of the plaintiff, and caused the injury complained of, the

defendants are liable, if the plaintiff used reasonable care.

9. Persons in positions of great peril are not required to

exercise all the presence of mind and care of a prudent, careful

man ; the law makes allowance for them, and leaves the cir-

cumstances of their conduct to the jury.
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10. The jury may give such damages in this case, if they find

for the plaintiff, as will fully compensate him for all the injuries

he may have sustained by reason of the accident, including any
moneys expended by him in curing himself and horses and
repairing his wagon, the diminished value of his horse, and the

injury occasioned to his person and intellect, and for his suffer-

ings, pain, danger to his life and loss of time in consequence

thereof.

11. If the jury believe that the defendants were guilty of

criminal and gross negligence in not keeping their bridge in

repair, then the jury may give exemplary damages, if they find

for the plaintiff.

To the giving of which said instructions the defendants, by
their counsel, then and there objected, and excepted to the

opinion of the court in giving the same.

The counsel for the defendants then requested the court to

instruct the jury as follows :

1. That the law and the charter of the Peoria and Oquawka
Eailroad Company authorized said company to construct their

railroad upon the most eligible route from Peoria to the Indiana

State line, and that the question of eligibility in relation to the

route was a question to be decided and determined alone by said

company ; and that if they had located and established their

road at the place where the grievances complained of in the

declaration occurred, as stated in the declaration, the plaintiff,

as against the defendants, had no right to complain of said

location.

2. That as far as the plaintiff is concerned, it is wholly imma-
terial whether the defendants donated the land to the Peoria
and Oquawka Railroad Company, or whether they gave said

company the right of way for an agreed price, or their damages
were assessed as provided by law.

3. That if the Peoria and Oquawka Railroad Company had,

pursuant to law, located and constructed their road over the

land of the defendants, at the place where the alleged griev-

ances in the plaintiff's declaration are supposed to have occurred,

prior to the time of the happening of the same, and the injury

to the plaintiff was occasioned by his horses being frightened by
the noise of the cars, or the noise or whistling of a locomotive

npon said railroad, the defendants are not liable in this action.

4. [That the owners of a toll bridge are not liable as com-
mon carriers ; that they are not insurers of property passing

over the same,] and are only bound to use reasonable care and
diligence to keep their bridge in good repair, so that ordinarily

gentle teams may pass in safety over the same, and that they

are not responsible for any injury arising from horses taking
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fright at a railroad, or engine running upon the same, when said

road has been constructed under the authority of law, or under

a charter from the General Assembly of this State.

5. That the owners of a toll bridge are only bound to keep

their bridge within its own limits in good repair, so as to afford

a safe passage to ordinarily quiet teams, and to prudent and
careful drivers ; and that they are not responsible for any acci-

dent or injury which may occur by reason of any railroad,

structure or other thing existing, set up or operated outside of

the limits of such bridge, and which had been placed, or set up
or operated there under the authority of any law of this State.

6. If the jury believe that the plaintiff himself was grossly

careless and negligent, and had sufficient opportunity to prevent

the injury by leaving his wagon and holding his horses by the

head while the engine was passing, and that he neglected to do
so, and thereby the injury was occasioned, the plaintiff cannot

recover.

7. That the owners of a bridge are not bound in law to con-

struct any railing along the sides of the said bridge, to prevent

frightened horses from running or backing off the same.

8. That if the jury believe, from the evidence, that the plain-

tiff knew or might have known that his horses were accustomed

to become frightened at a locomotive, and if they further believe

that the locomotive which frightened his horses was in plain

sight for at least half a mile before he approached the same, and
that as he approached, he or any other person of ordinary under-

standing and prudence could plainly perceive that said locomo-

motive had her steam up and was ready to start, then the plaintiff

would be guilty of gross carelessness and negligence if he drove

his team up to within a few feet of said locomotive, and if they

believe that the horses became frightened at such locomotive,

and the accident occurred in consequence thereof, under such

circumstances the plaintiff cannot recover.

9. That if the jury shall believe, from the evidence, that the

railing of the bridge was not sound and sufficient, still it would
not excuse the plaintiff from using reasonable care and diligence

to avoid the accident ; and if the jury shall believe, from the

evidence, that the plaintiff did not use such reasonable care and
diligence, they will find a verdict of not guilty.

10. That if the jury believe, from the evidence, that the injury

done to the plaintiff and his property was the result of the fault

or negligence of the plaintiff, or the fault or negligence of both
the plaintiff and defendant, without any intentional wrong on
the part of the defendant, then the plaintiff cannot recover, and
the jury must find for the defendant.

17
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11. That the burden of proof lies upon the plaintiff, not only

to prove that he himself used reasonable care to avoid the injury,

but that the bridge was not sufficient to allow the plaintiff to

pass over safely.

12. That notwithstanding the jury may believe, from the

evidence, that the defendant may have been in the wrong in

giving the right of way to the Peoria and Oquawka Railroad

Company, still, if the jury shall believe, from tlie evidence,

that the plaintiff might, by using reasonable care and diligence,

have avoided the accident, he was bound to use reasonable care

and diligence ; and if the jury believe, from the evidence, he did

not do so, they will find a verdict for the defendant.

13. That if the jury believe, from the evidence in this case,

that the plaintiff is entitled to recover at all, he can only recover

such damages as he has proved that he actually sustained ; and
that no vindictive or exemplary damages can be allowed, unless

it is shown that the injury (if any) to himself and property was
occasioned by some malicious act or acts of the defendants.

The court gave the instructions numbered 9, 10, 11, 12 and
13, and refused to give all the others, numbered 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6,

7, and 8, except so much of number 4 which reads as follows

:

" That the owners of a toll-bridge are not liable as common
carriers. That they are not insurers of property passing over

the same."

To the decision of the court, in refusing to give all said

instructions asked, the defendants excepted.

The jury returned a verdict for the plaintiff, for the sum of

$5,750.
The defendants' counsel entered a motion for a new trial, for

the following reasons

:

1. The verdict is against law and evidence.

2. The damages are excessive.

3. The court gave improper instructions to the jury at the

request of the plaintiff.

4. The court refused proper instructions asked by the de-

fendants.

5. The court admitted improper evidence offered by the

plaintiff.

The court overruled said motion.

The cause was heard before Ballou, Judge, and a jury.

N. H. Purple, for Appellant.

Mead & Williamson, for Appellee.
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Breese, J. There can be no doubt, as urged by the counsel

for the appellee, that juries may give exemplary or punitive

damages, in cases of willful negligence or malice. But it is

requisite such a case must be made.

We look in vain into the evidence of this cause for the proof

of any willful negligence on the part of the Bridge Association.

Some of the witnesses say, the bridge was unsafe before and
at the time of the accident, whilst others, equally credible, give

a contrary opinion. That the appellants were negligent in not

providing additional precautions against the increased dangers

occasioned by the construction of the railroad, and its operation

by noisy machinery, may be true, but it is not of that degree

denominated willful. To constitute willful negligence, the act

done, or omitted to be done, must be intended. Mere neglect

to keep a bridge in repair, cannot, ordinarily, be alleged to be
willful ; and we see no facts in this case to encourage such an
idea.

It is of but little importance, whether the bridge company
permitted the railroad company the use of their bridge, or that

it had been condemned for such use ; the obligation pressed

alike upon the bridge company to provide increased guards
against new dangers. This they did not do, but it is very

doubtful if the injury to the defendant was wholly caused from
this neglect.

The proof shows, that the want of care of the plaintiff con-

tributed very essentially to produce the accident. He saw and
heard the locomotive ; he had time and opportunity to get down
and take his horses by the head, as prudent men do every day
even when plowing in their fields, on the approach of a loco-

motive. It is required of them, that they shall put themselves

to some little trouble to avoid these accidents. Even when the

wagon was pushed on the railing, some of the witnesses say, he
had time to get out and save himself. He did not attempt to

do anything, but sat in his wagon, wrapped in his buffalo-skin,

whipping his horses, sawing their mouths with the reins and bits,

and so carelessly and unskillfully managing them as to have
contributed very materially to produce the disaster.

We have said, repeatedly, in such actions for negligence, that

the plaintiff, if not wholly free from fault, must be, as compared
to the negligence of the defendant, so much less culpable as to

incline the balance in his favor, both being in some fault.

It is true, the jury, by their finding, have ignored any negli-

gence on the part of the plaintiff, and found willful negligence

against the defendants. We do not think the testimony sustains

them in such finding ; that it is vastly the other way, and, taken
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in connection with the damages assessed, $5,750, manifests

feeling and prejudice.

Our statute, L. 1853, p. 97, which is a copy of 9 and 10 Vic-

toria, ch. 93, in case death ensues from such negligent acts,

allows no more than five thousand dollars damages, however
willful or malicious the act may be.

With what propriety the jury, in this case, for an injury,

great, to be sure, but not endangering life, could find this verdict,

if not influenced by prejudice, we do not well understand.

We think there is an absence of proof of willful negligence,

and no foundation established for the damages awarded.

The tenth instruction was too broad, and must have had great

weight with the jury in finding these damages. A man's life

may be in danger, and he receive no injury. The rule of dam-
ages, for personal injury inflicted by negligence, is loss of time

during the cure, and expense incurred in respect of it, the pain

and sufl'ering undergone by plaintifl", and any permanent injury,

especially when it causes a disability from future exertion,

and consequent pecuniary loss. The judgment is reversed, and
the cause remanded.

Judgment reversed.

Chief Justice Caton did not hear the argument, and gave no
opinion.

John S. "Wright et al, Plaintiffs in Error, v. The City of

Chicago, Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO COOK COUNTS COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

The City of Chicago has no authority to levy special assessments for deepening the

river.

This was an application for judgment against certain property,

for non-payment of a special assessment, levied by the common
council of the city of Chicago, upon said property, for dredging

or otherwise deepening the Chicago river and its branches,

between the west line of Franklin street, north line of Lake
street, north line of Kinzie street, and the established dock
lines, and which assessment was ordered by said common coun-

cil, upon the report and recommendation of the city superin-

tendent of said city of Chicago. There was an order of sale



APRIL TERM, 1858. 253

Wright et al. v. City of Chicago.

under the assessment, of certain lots benefited, the owners of

which lots sue out this writ of error.

W. B. ScATES and S. W. Fuller, for Plaintiff in Error.

E. Anthony, for Defendant in Error,

Caton, C. J. We have arrived at our conclusion in this case

with reluctance. That there is as much propriety in requiring

the owners of property benefited by the deepening of the har-

bor, to pay the expense of the improvement, as there is in re-

quiring those benefited by widening it, or improving a street,

would seem to be self-evident. To say that the owner of a dock

which is useless because of the want of water to bring vessels

to it, shall not pay the expense of deepening the harbor in

front so as to make it valuable, while the owner of a lot shall

be compelled to pay for paving the street in its neighborhood,

we cannot doubt is unjust, and had we the making of the laws,

we could not hesitate to affirm this judgment. Our duty is con-

fined to finding out what the laws are, and expounding them.

It is admitted in the argument, for it could not be denied, that

there is no provision in the city charter and no law upon the

statute book authorizing special assessments to deepen the river,

and it cannot be pretended that they are authorized by the

common law. The city government has express authority to

raise funds by general taxation for general purposes. Its has

general authority by the second clause of the fourth section of

the fourth chapter of its charter, " to remove and prevent all

obstructions in the waters which are public highways in said

city, and to widen, straighten and deepen the same," and by the

fifty-third clause of the same section, very ample jurisdiction

over the harbor is conferred upon the city government, and the

extent of the harbor is defined. By the fifty-fourth clause of

the same section, exclusive control is given to the city govern-

ment over the streets, alleys, side-walks and bridges of the city,

and to open, widen and straighten the same, and to put drains

and sewers therein. By conferring these powers, it was not

supposed by the legislature that authority was given to levy

special assessments upon the property benefited thereby to pay
for such improvements. If this were not sufficiently manifest

from the fact that these provisions are silent about any such

authority, it becomes so when we see that by other provisions of

the charter express authority is given to levy such special as-

sessments to defray the expenses of a part of such improvements.

The sixth and seventh chapters of the charter are devoted to
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the subject of the improvements of streets, etc., and defines for

what improvements special assessments may be laid upon the

property benefited, and the mode of levying and collecting

them, the particular provisions of which it is unnecessary to

state. It is enough that the legislature deemed it necessary to

make special provisions, granting particular authority to levy

special assessments for certain specified improvements. It shows
that there was no intention to grant authority to make such

special assessments by simply conferring authority to make the

improvements. This view is more especially confirmed, if pos-

sible, by the fact that the legislature has, by a separate clause,

conferred special authority upon the common council to levy

special assessments upon property benefited thereby, for widen-

ing: the river. This is found in the fifth section of the act of

27th February, 1845, concerning wharfing privileges in Chicago,

and which is substantially an amendment to the city charter.

That section authorizes the common council to widen the

Chicago river and its branches within the city, by cutting away
lots and streets on its borders, and " such proceedings shall be

had for the condemnation and appropriation of such lot or lots

or part of a lot, and the assessment of damages and benefits, as

are authorized and directed by the act to incorporate the city of

Chicago and the acts amending the same, for the opening of

streets and alleys ; and the provisions of said act shall apply to

the widening of said river and its branches so far as they are

applicable." This evidently refers to and adopts the sixth

chapter of the city charter, the tenth section of which expressly

authorizes special assessments upon property benefited by the

improvement. While we thus find a special provision authoriz-

ing, by a fair and reasonable construction, special assessments

to widen the river, there is no authority any where to be found

even by implication, for such assessments to deepen the river,

and this special provision in the one case and not in the other,

by every known rule for construing statutes, is a clear indica-

tion of the legislative will, that no such power was intended to

be granted in the case omitted. We must hold then that this

special assessment was void for the simple reason that the legis-

lature has not seen proper to confer any authority to levy it.

Without law it could not be done.

The judgment must be reversed.

Judgment reversed.
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John S. Moore, Plaintiff in Error, v. William Morris,
Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO PEORIA.

The words, " good current money," in a contract, will be understood to mean the
coin of the constitution, or foreign coins made current by act of Congress, un-
less it appears those terms have a different local signification.

If the person who is to pay under such a contract is led to suppose, by the declar-

ations of the other party, that other money than coin will be received, he should,
upon a refusal to take paper money, be allowed a reasonable time within which
to procure coin.

This was an action of assumpsit, commenced February 12,

1856, in Rock Island Circuit Court, and change of venue to

Peoria county, and trial, March term, 1858, before Powell,
Judge, and a jury.

The declaration contained the common counts, and for goods
and chattels, oxen, steers, cows and heifers, sold and delivered

to defendant.

The pleas set forth an agreement in writing, dated June 27th,

1854, between the parties, by which Moore agreed to sell to

Morris from eighty to one hundred caitle, to be kept by Moore
until 1st of May, 1855, and then to deliver the same to Morris

at Samuel Carnahan's scales in township 14 N. 4 W. in Mercer
county, Illinois, Morris to pay for the same, three dollars and
fifty cents per 100 pounds, in good current money of this State.

The agreement acknowledged receipt of $500 on the contract.

The pleas also set up another agreement of the parties, of

date. May 3, 1855, which agreement, after reciting the first

agreement of June 27, 1854, and that a difficulty had arisen in

reference to the true construction thereof, and also in reference

to the performance of the terms and conditions thereof, and
that Moore had that day delivered 96 cattle under said agree-

ment, averaging about 1,329 pounds gross weight, and Morris
had paid for the same the price agreed on under the first con-

tract ; they agreed that the delivery Avas made upon the above,

and in part consideration of the terms and conditions of this

contract, the delivery and payment not to affect the questions

that may arise between the parties in reference to the perform-

ance or non-performance of the conditions and terms of the first

contract, and further agreed to submit the whole matter to the

decision of Ira 0. Wilkinson, which decision to be made within

three months from the date of the agreement, each party binding

himself to abide by such decision ; that the time for such de-
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cision was by agreement postponed till 20th November, 1855,

which last agreement was indorsed on the said agreement of

submission.

Manning & Merriman, for Plaintiff in Error.

N. H. Purple, for Defendant in Error.

Breese, J. This was an action of assumpsit, brought by
plaintiff in error against the defendant in error, for goods and
chattels, oxen, etc., sold and delivered to the defendant.

The defendant set up, by proper pleas, an agreement with the

plaintiff to receive payment for the cattle at three dollars and
fifty cents per hundred pounds, " in good current money of this

State," and the controversy turns principally on the defend-

ant's performance of this agreement by so paying.

There was also another agreement to arbitrate the matter set

up in the pleadings, Judge Wilkinson being chosen as arbitrator.

On the trial, the two agreements were read, together with

the agreement of extension of time to Wilkinson, to 20th Nov-
ember, 1855, to make his award, and the evidence then showed
that on the first day of May, 1855, Moore drove ninety-six

cattle to and had them weighed at Carnahan's scales, which
cattle were admitted to be the cattle specified in the contract

;

that some one of defendant's men proposed to take charge of

the cattle after they were weighed, to which plaintiff objected

until he received pay, to which the defendant said yes, the

cattle were not his until he paid for them, and asked plaintiff

to go to the house and count the money, to which plaintiff

answered that they could count it there. Morris said the wind
blew too hard. Plaintiff said the money he wanted would not

blow away. They went to the house, and Morris tendered the

amount of money in bank notes of the State Bank of Indiana,

of banks of the States of Ohio, Kentucky and Pennsylvania,

which money plaintiff refused, saying that was not the money
the contract called for. Morris said it was the kind of money
the contract called for, and he should not give him any other.

Moore said to Morris he would give him a reasonable time to

get other money ; that he did not wish to take advantage of

him. Morris replied that he had offered him the kind of money
the contract called for, and that he would make it the dearest

lot of cattle the plaintiff" ever had ; defendant then mounted his

horse, and rode away, forbidding the plaintiff from moving the

cattle. Plaintiff drove the cattle away about two miles. De-

fendant returned the next morning; and left with Mr. Carnahan



APRIL TERM, 1868. 257

Moore v. Morris.

a sack of gold, and on the third of May took the gold away in

company with plaintiff.

It was proved by defendant's witness, L. Howe, that at the

time the first contract was made, June 27th, 1854, the defend-

ant paid plaintiff four hundred and eighty-five dollars, being the

first payment of five hundred dollars, less $15, which was to

be paid in a few days, which payment was made in bank notes

of the State Bank of Indiana, and that plaintiff said that was
good enough—that he wanted money that he could pay his debts

with, and if all the money was as good, he would be satisfied.

This evidence was objected to by plaintiff, but the objection was
overruled by the court.

Plaintiff proved by Kinzie Cecil that on the 12th of Febru-

ary, 1856, plaintiff went to defendant's house and showed
defendant a letter from Wilkinson, and said he had come to get

the time extended for the award ; that Judge Wilkinson would
not otherwise make the award ; and Morris replied that he had
concluded not to do anything more about it, and that if plaintiff

came at him, he would give him the best fight he could. Plain-

tiff then said if he (defendant) would go to Rock Island, he
would take him up and bring hini back ; but defendant said he
would not go ; that if he were at Rock Island ho would not do
anything until he had seen his counsel, and whatever he said he

would do. Plaintiff and witness then returned to Rock Island.

On the next day Morris came to Rock Island, when Moore told

Morris that he had put the matter in the Circuit Court. Morris

replied that he could not have suited him better. It was proved

that on the first of May, 1855, cattle were worth in market

$4.50 per one hundred pounds by agreement of the parties at

the time the second agreement was drawn up.

Lewis Hoivell, a banker in Peoria, testifies that on 1st of

May, 1855, there was no material difference between the value

of the currency of Ohio, Kentucky, Indiana, and Illinois ; if

anything, the currency of those States was worth more than

that of Illinois, for the reason that it was worth more in New
York. Specie was worth from one and a quarter to one and a

half per cent, more than currency.

We leave out of view all the testimony in relation to the

reference to arbitration, as our opinion is not affected by it.

The plaintiff asked the court to give the following instruc-

tions, which were refused by the court

:

1. The provision in the contract read in evidence, providing

for the payment in good current money of this State, cannot be

satisfied by tender of bank bills of other States than of this

State, and the plaintiff was not bound, under the provisions of
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said contract, to receive in payment the bank bills of banks
located in Indiana, Ohio, Kentucky or Pennsylvania.

2. Under the contract read in evidence, providing for the

payment in good current money of this State, unless the jury

believe that the defendant tendered the amount of money
required by the contract in bank bills of solvent banks in this

State, or in specie, on the day required by the contract, they

will consider and determine that no tender was made under said

contract, and that a tender of bank bills of other States than of

this State is not a performance of said contract.

But the court instructed the jury as follows in defendant's

instructions No. 2 : That the contract aforesaid does not bind

the defendant to pay for said cattle in gold or silver ; and if

the jury believe, from the evidence, that the plaintiff's offer to

deliver the cattle was accompanied with a demand for gold and
silver, or either, in payment for the same, and that the offer to

deliver was made only upon condition that the defendant would
pay for the same in gold or silver, this would be no offer to

perform on his part, as required by the contract, and a refusal

to pay such money by Morris would be no breach of the contract

on his part, and that if, in this respect, Moore did not perform,

or offer to perform, his part of the contract, he cannot recover.

3. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that when defend-

ant tendered the plaintiff the paper money for the cattle, that

Moore (plaintiff) said he wanted other money, or such money
as the contract called for, he thereby meant and intended to be
understood as demanding gold or silver money, and that the

defendant did so understand him, that such demand, even if

accompanied with an offer to deliver the cattle, was a breach of

the contract on the part of plaintiff, and no breach of contract

on part of defendant to refuse to pay such money for said cattle.

4. That the phrase, " good current money of this State,"

means that kind of good paper money of specie paying banks
which, at the time it was to be paid, was passing current in and
constituted a portion of the currency of this State.

To the refusing of which instructions, asked by plaintiff, and
to the instructions as given, the plaintiff excepted.

The jury brought in a verdict for the defendant.

These instructions, asked on the part of the plaintiff, and
refused, should have been given, and those on the other side

refused.

There is nothing, in legal contemplation, " good current

money" but the coin of the constitution, or foreign coins, made
current by act of Congress, unless there is evidence giving to

those terms a local signification.
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The plaintiff, however, having accepted the first payment in

current bank notes, and his declaration at the time, " that he

wanted money that he could pay his debts with, and if all the

money was as good, he would be satisfied," authorized the pur-

chaser to come with such notes, with which to make the final

payment, and, at least, entitled him to time, in case they were
refused, to convert them into coin, and the case should have
been put to the jury in this aspect.

The judgment is reversed and the cause remanded.
Judgment reversed.

Jacob Curran, who sues by his next friend, Plaintiff in

Error, v. William W. Beach, Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO COOK COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

Where the ground presented for a change of venue relates to the Judge of the

Cook Circuit Court, the venue may be changed to the Common Pleas Court of

that county.

All the material facts of this case are stated in the opinion

of Mr. Justice Walker.

J. J. McGilvra, for Plaintiff in Error.

J. A. Jameson, and C. B. Waite, for Defendant in Error.

Walker, J. This was an action on the case, commenced in

the Cook Circuit Court, at the October term, 1856, by Jacob W.
Curran, who sues by his next friend, George J. Harris, against

William W. Beach. A summons was returned not found, and
an alias issued and returned served, January 17th, 1857. The
case was continued from term to term, until the November term,

1857, when defendant entered a motion for a change of venue.

The motion was allowed, and the venue was changed to the

Cook County Court of Common Pleas. At the February term
of the last named court, defendant entered a motion to dismiss

the suit, which the court overruled, but struck the cause from
the docket ; to which decision of the court, in striking the case

from the docket, plaintiff excepted ; and, to reverse this judg-

ment, prosecutes this writ of error.

The only question presented by this record is, whether the

venue was properly changed from the Cook Circuit Court to the
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Cook County Court of Common Pleas. The second section of

the practice act, R. S. p. 413, provides, that it shall not be
lawful for any plaintiff to sue a defendant, out of the county

where the latter resides or may be found, except in specified

cases. The chapter entitled Venue, R. S. 527, provides, that

when either party in a civil suit may fear that he will be unable

to have a fair trial in the court in which the action is pending,

on account that the judge is interested or prejudiced, or shall

have been of counsel for either party, or that the adverse party

has an undue influence over the minds of the inhabitants of the

county, or that the inhabitants of such county are prejudiced

against the applicant, so that he cannot expect a fair trial, such

party may apply to the Circuit Court in term time, or to the

judge in vacation, by petition, verified by affidavit, setting forth

the cause for a change of venue, and, if sufficient, that the court

or judge shall award a change of venue to some county where
the causes do not exist. This cause was argued by the counsel

in the case, upon the assumption, that the cause for the change

of the venue related to the Judge of the Circuit Court, and not

to the inhabitants of the county, and we shall so consider the

question. From the provisions of the practice act referred to,

it is obvious, that it was the intention of the legislature to

require all suits to be brought and tried in the county of the

defendant, where the trial could be fair and impartial. But the

act regulating changes of venue, for the purpose of securing to

the parties an impartial trial, provides that where causes existed

which would prevent such a trial where the suit is brought, then

the case should be sent to some county where the causes com-

plained of do not exist. In this case, the objections to a fair

trial related to the Judge of the Circuit Court, and not to the

inhabitants of the county ; and no reason is perceived why the

parties should be sent for trial to a distant county, when a fair

and impartial one could be had where the suit rightfully origin-

ated. The Common Pleas is a court of concurrent jurisdiction

with the Circuit Court within the limits of Cook county, and the

suit might, if desired, have been instituted in that court. Then,
to change the venue from the Circuit Court to the Common Pleas,

when the causes did not exist in the latter court, would, clearly,

better effectuate the legislative intent, as expressed in the second

section of the practice act, than to change the venue to another

county. And this does not violate the object of the law regu-

lating changes of venue, but is equally promotive of the object

of that act. This court, in the case of Searles v. Munson, held

that the venue was well changed from the Lake County Court to

the Lake Circuit Court, under the chapter entitled Venue. In

the act establishing the Lake County Court, there was no pro-



APRIL TERM, 1858. 261

Patty V. Winchester, impl. etc.

vision in regard to change of venue. The court placed it upon

the grounds, that it falls within the reason and spirit of the

general law on the subject. 17 111. R. 561. That case is deci-

sive of this, as every reason which applied in that, applies with

equal force to this case.

The venue was well changed from the Cook Circuit Court to

the Cook County Court of Common Pleas, which had jurisdic-

tion to try the cause, and erred in striking it from the docket

;

and the judgment of the court below must therefore be reversed,

and the cause remanded.
Judgment reversed.

JosiAH S. Patty, Plaintiff in Error, v. Stephen Winches-

ter, impleaded with Levi Gladfelter, Defendant in

Error.

ERROR TO PEORIA COUNTY COURT.

On an appeal from a trial before a justice of the peace, as to the right of property,

the appellant may amend his appeal bond in the appellate court, if he lias in

good faith attempted to execute a valid bond.

This was a proceeding commenced before a justice of the

peace for the trial of the right of property, in which the plain-

tiff in error was claimant, and Winchester and Gladfelter

were plaintiffs in the executions under which the property had
been levied.

On the trial before the justice, the jury found the property

did not belong to the plaintiff in error, and the justice rendered
judgment against him for costs. The plaintiff in error, on the

rendition of the verdict, gave notice that he should appeal to

the County Court of Peoria county, and on the same day executed
an appeal bond, with Smith as surety. The appeal bond was
filed with the justice, and approved by him the same day. The
papers were filed by the justice in the County Court, and sum-
mons issued to appellees, and returned served as to Winchester.
At the February term, A. D. 1858, of the Peoria County

Court, Winchester entered a motion to dismiss the suit, for want
of a sufficient appeal bond.

The plaintiff entered a motion for leave to amend the appeal
bond forthwith. The court overruled the motion, and refused

to allow the plaintiff in error to amend the bond.
The court then dismissed the suit.
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The plaintiff now assigns the following errors on the record :

The court below erred in refusing to allow the plaintiff in

error to amend the appeal bond.

The court below erred in dismissing the cause.

H. Grove, for plaintiff in error.

C. C. BoNNEY, for defendant in error.

Breese, J. This was a trial of the right of property before

a justice of the peace in Peoria county, and a jury, the plaintiff

in error being the claimant, and the defendants in error plaintiffs

in execution.

The jury found against the claimant, and the justice rendered

a judgment against him for the costs.

The claimant gave notice, on the coming in of the verdict,

that he would appeal to the County Court, and on the same day
executed an appeal bond, with security, which was filed with

the justice and approved by him.

The papers were filed in the County Court, and the usual sum-

mons issued, which was served on Winchester only.

At the February term, 1858, of the County Court, the appellee

entered his motion to dismiss the suit for want of a sufficient

appeal bond, and appellant, at the same time, entered a cross-

motion to amend the bond, which motion was denied, and the

motion to dismiss allowed, and judgment for costs against the

appellant, to all which he excepted.

The error assigned is, in refusing to allow the bond to be

amended, and dismissing the suit.

The bond shown is a writing signed by the appellant and a

surety, and is formal in all respects, save that it has no seal.

Technically, this is no bond, yet it was approved by the magis-

trate as a bond, and returned by him to the Circuit Court with

the other papers in the cause, and there filed.

This point has been already decided by this court in the case

of Hunter v. Ladd, 1 Scam. R. 551, and the decision involves

the principle in this case.

There, the parties to the bond had neglected, as in this case,

to put seals to their signatures, and on being discovered, a mo-
tion being made to dismiss the cause for want of seals to the

signatures, a cross motion was interposed by Hunter, the prin-

cipal, to amend the bond by attaching a seal or scrawl to it.

This was refused, and very properly, by the court, for the rea-

son, that the court could not confer on Hunter the power to

make or attach a seal to the signature of the surety to the

bond. Such a seal would not be the seal of the co-obligor,
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although so far as it regards Hunter, it might have been granted.

Yet the court say, " if amended, it would not render the bond
valid, because of the want of a seal to the signature of the co-

obligor. As the application did not extend to the perfecting

the bond in relation to the signature and seal of the co-obligor,

the Municipal Court could not do otherwise than dismiss the

suit."

Had the application extended to both the obligors, that they

should have leave to amend, by placing their seals to the paper,

it would have been allowed, and that is this case. The party

here does not make the specific motion to add the seals, but to

amend the bond, and this includes the power to both the obligors

to put their respective seals to the paper filed as a bond, or to

execute an entirely new bond.

But the point has been, if possible, more distinctly decided

in the case of Lea v. Vail, 2 Scam. R. 473.

This was an attachment case, and the bond had no scrawls

or seals, and on that account, although a motion was made to

amend the bond, the suit was dismissed.

The court say, after reciting the act authorizing the amend-
ment of the affidavit or bond in attachment cases, and which is

the same, substantially, in relation to appeal bonds—" Under
this statute, the amendment of the plaintiff's bond ought to have
been allowed. The court erred in not permitting it."

So we say in this case. The party had executed a paper,

which the magistrate accepted and filed as a bond ; he made
the attempt, in good faith, to execute a valid bond. As it was
technically defective, his motion to amend should have been
allowed.

In the case of Waldo v. Averett, 1 Scam. R. 487, the court say

:

" If it is admitted that the hondivas ever so defective, the court,

nevertheless, erred in dismissing the appeal ; it ought to have
allowed the motion of the appellants to file a good bond."

See also the case of Bragg v.Fessenden, 11 111. R. 544 ; Boor-
man v. Freeman, 12 111. R. 165 ; The Trustees of Schools, etc., v.

Starbird, 13 111. R. 49.

These cases all show that in an honest attempt to give a bond,
and a paper is signed which the officer accepts as a bond, the
party shall not be prejudiced by a defective execution.

There can be no objection that the bond was taken by the

justice, and not approved by the clerk of the Circuit Court within
five days after its execution. The tenth section of chap. 91, R.
S., 476, provides, " and in case of an appeal, the justice of the

peace shall take the bond and transmit the same, with the other

papers, to the clerk as aforesaid."
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The twelfth section provides, " that all appeals from the judg-

ments on the trial of the right of property, shall be demanded
on the day of such trial, and bond entered into before the clerk

of the Circuit Court within five days from such trial."

There is no necessary conflict in these laws. As in ordinary

cases, so in these, the bond may be filed and approved by the

justice of the peace, or by the clerk of the Circuit Court, or of

the County Court to which the proceeding was removed by
appeal under the 4th section of the act extending the jurisdic-

tion of the County Court of Peoria county, (Laws of 1855, p.

194,) the provisions of our practice act extending to the County
Court by this act.

But if there be a discrepancy, it is all reconciled by the act

to amend chap. 91, approved Feb. 18, 1847, (Laws of 1847, p.

84,) which is as follows :

" Upon the trial before the Circuit Court of any appeal from

the trial of the right of property, if the bond required to be
given shall be adjudged informal, or otherwise insufficient, on
account of its having been taken or approved by an unauthor-

ized person, or otherwise, the party who shall have executed

such bond shall be in no wise prejudiced by reason of such infor-

mality or insufficiency : Provided, he will, in a reasonable time,

to be fixed by the court, execute and file a good and sufficient

bond."

The appellant's motion to amend the bond entitled him to the

full benefit of this act also.

The judgment of the Circuit Court is reversed and the cause

remanded.

Judgment reversed.

David Burns, Appellant, v. Adam Henderson, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM PEORIA.

The constitution confers upon the Circuit Courts jurisdiction in all cases of appeals

from all inferior courts ; and the legislature cannot take away this jurisdiction,

although it may give other courts concurrent jurisdiction in that regard.

The word "shall," in the fourth section of the act extending the jurisdiction of the

Peoria County Court, is construed to mean " may," so as to make that act har-

monize with the constitution.

Hendeeson sued Burns before a justice, and recovered judg-

ment. Burns appealed to the Circuit Court, and filed bond with

the justice.
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At the May term, 1857, the court called the cause for trial,

to which the defendant objected, for the following reasons : The
court has no jurisdiction to try the cause ; the plaintiff has no
right to prosecute said cause in this court ; this court has no
jurisdiction of the parties.

The court overruled the objections and called a jury.

The plaintiff below offered a note in evidence, and the defend-

ant below excepted. Verdict and judgment for plaintiff below,

and Burns appealed to this court.

The plaintiff here assigns the following errors upon this record :

1. The court below erred in overruling the objections of the

defendant below.

2. The court below had no jurisdiction to try the cause.

3. The plaintiff had no right to prosecute his suit in the

court below.

4. The court below should have dismissed the appeal.

5. The Circuit Court had no jurisdiction to try appeals.

The only point relied on by the plaintiff in error is, that the

that the court below had no jurisdiction to try the appeal.

By the 4th section of the act approved February 9th, 1855,
entitled, " An Act to extend the jurisdiction of the County
Court of Peoria county," it is provided that " all appeals from
the decisions of police magistrates and justices of the peace,

made or rendered in said county, shall be taken to the County
Court."

The 8th section of article five, constitution of 1848, provides

that " said courts (Circuit) shall have jurisdiction in all cases

at law and equity, and in all cases of appeals from all inferior

courts."

The 18th section of the constitution declares " that the juris-

diction of the County Court shall extend to all probate and
such other jurisdiction as the General Assembly may confer in

civil cases."

H. Geove, for Appellant.

E. G. Johnson, for Appellee.

Caton, C. J. The word shall, in the fourth section of the

act of the 9th February, 1855, extending the jurisdiction of
the County Court of Peoria county, must be construed to mean
may. That section reads :

" All appeals from the decisions of
police magistrates and justices of the peace, made or rendered
in said county, shall be taken to said County Court." To hold
this to be imperative, would bring it in conflict with the eighth

section of the fifth article of the constitution. That is as fol-

18
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lows :
" There shall be two or more terms of the Circuit Court

held in each county of this State, at such times as shall be pro-

vided by law, and said courts shall have jurisdiction in all

cases at law and in equity, and in all cases of appeals from all

inferior courts." This confers jurisdiction, in all appeals from

all inferior courts, upon the Circuit Courts, independently of

any legislative enactment on the subject, and we cannot presume
that the legislature intended to take away that jurisdiction, but

only to give the County Court concurrent jurisdiction, although,

but for this constitutional provision, we should construe the

word as imperative, and as conferring upon the County Court

exclusive jurisdiction of the appeals mentioned. Wherever it

is possible, we must so construe the statutes as to make them
harmonize with the constitution, and in order to do this, we
must construe the word shall, in the statute quoted, as permis-

sive, and not mandatory.

The judgment is affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Worcester A. Dickerman et al, Appellants, v. William
T. Burgess et al, Defendants.

APPEAL from WINNEBAGO.

In equity, a party to a suit, as also his attorney, if he purchases property sold

under an execution, is chargeable with notice of all irregularities attending the
sale.

A party cannot claim a benefit, or the aid of a court of equity, who has been guilty

of laches in protecting his rights, unless such laches may be imputable to the party
claiming against him.

If a sheriff makes a sale of real estate by merely indoi'sing it on the execution,
and making out a certificate of sale, without going to the court-house door,
without any outcry or bidders, or any circumstance to arrest public attention, or
to indicate that a sale was going on, and returned the execution, satisfied by a
sale, to the plaintiff's attorney, who was the assignee of the judgment, but sent a
certificate of sale to a person indicated by said attorney, the attorney will be
held to be the purchaser, although the sheriff should subsequently have amended
his return, so as not to have it appear that the attorney became the purchaser.

In such a case, where the holder of the certificate of sale, who disclaimed all

knowledge of or interest in the transaction, assigned it to a brother of the
attorney, and he to a cousin, under such suspicious circumstances as showed a
design to conceal a wrong, they will all be held as acting in trust for the benefit

of the attorney, and all the proceedings will be set aside for the irregularities

and fraud connected with them.
Gross inadequacy of price, under such circumstances, should be considered in the

conclusion to be arrived at.

There should be entire uniformity in the return to the execution, the certificate of
sale, and the deed where real estate is sold, or they will be invalid.

A certificate of sale by a sheriff to another person than the purchaser, shown by
his return to the execution, is a void act.

A bid by letter may be recognized by the sheriflf, if it is announced by him ; and
if there is no advance upon that bid, he may sell upon it.
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The decree in the Circuit Court of Winnebago was pro-

nounced by Sheldon, Judge, at February term, 1858. The
proceedings and proofs are fully stated in the opinion of the

court.

J. Maesh, and G. Goodrich, for Appellants.

W. T. Burgess, for Appellees.

Breese, J. The bill in this case, originally filed by Alden
Thomas in his lifetime, and revived by the complainants, who
are his legal representatives, alleges dealings between him and
one of the defendants, H. 0. Stone, for several years, a suit by
Stone against him, and a judgment in March, 1850, in favor of

Stone, for forty-five dollars. That William T. Burgess, another

defendant, was the attorney of Stone, to whom Thomas paid

the amount due, except fifteen dollars which Burgess claimed as

his fees for collection, and which, by an arrangement between
him and Burgess, was to be the only question of controversy on
the trial of the suit ; that Burgess was the principal witness on
the trial, and on his testimony Stone obtained a judgment for

thirty dollars more than he had claimed ; that Burgess admitted

he had been mistaken in his testimony, and agreed to have the

matter fairly arranged ; that execution was issued on the judg-

ment in June, 1850, on which Thomas paid thirty-one dollars

and the costs, which Burgess, Nov. 13, 1850, received. Com-
plainant remonstrated to Burgess against having to pay more,

and complainant and the sheriff, who had the execution, both

understood that Burgess accepted that amount in full satisfac-

tion of the judgment. That complainant then had property,

and agreed with the sheriff to pay the balance at any time, if

required. The execution was returned by order of Burgess,

and complainant heard nothing more of the matter until Janu-
ary, 1851, when an execution was issued for the balance ; that

he then told the sheriff the facts of the case, and arranged with
him to wait until complainant could write to Burgess, and if he
found Burgess insisted on the payment, then he would pay it at

once. He alleges he did write, but receiving no answer and
hearing nothing more of it, either from Burgess or the sheriff,

he supposed Burgess had given up pressing the matter and for-

got all about it until informed that his property had been sold,

and a deed executed by the sheriff. The property sold by the

sheriff, was a lot and building in Rockford, worth about five

thousand dollars, and at the same time complainant had other

real estate and personal property unincumbered in Rockford,
out of which the execution might have been satisfied. That
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complainant had no knowledge of any step having been taken

by the sheriff until he learned, in September, 1855, that the lot

had been sold on the execution and the sheriff's deed executed

and recorded ; that sheriff pretended to sell the lot on the 10th

June, 1854, but had not advertised it for sale, as required by
law. He did not offer it at public auction, nor cry it for sale

;

no person was present or knew of the sale ; no bid whatever

A?as made ; and alleging that the sheriff did no act of making
the sale except to make this indorsement on the execution

:

" Made the amount of the within execution by sale of property

described in levy hereon to William T. Burgess, plaintiff's at-

torney, as per his receipt attached hereto ; received my fees,

and paid clerk his fees. K. H. Milliken, sheriff." Complainant

charges that this indorsement, though bearing date June 10th,

1854, was not made until some time afterwards, when another

indorsement was made as follows :
" Received thirty - eight

dollars tVo from sale of land within described. H. 0. Stone,

by W. T. Burgess, assignee." Charges that the " said " indorse-

ment was made by the sheriff by the express directions of

Burgess, without any reference to any sale having been made of

the premises at any time or place, and that no money was paid,

etc. ; that Burgess was acting both as the attorney and assignee,

but insists that the whole proceeding had been carried on without

the knowledge of Stone for the sole profit of Burgess. Charges
that about the 17th June, 1854, Burgess induced the sheriff' to

execute a certificate of sale to one J. F. Farnsworth, his law
partner ; that Farnsworth resided at Chicago and had no knowl-
edge of the matter and no interest in it, nor consented to have
his name so used, and that Burgess' sole object in using Farns-

worth's name was the more effectually to conceal his own fraud
;

that Farnsworth assigned the certificate July 10, 1854, to John
S. Burgess, without any consideration ; that on Sept. 12th,

1855, the then sheriff Taylor executed a deed to J. S. Burgess,

a brother of defendant ; that J. S. Burgess paid no consideration

for Farnsworth's assignment, and that it is in defendant's hand-
writing, nor had he any agency in procuring the deed to himself

or knowledge of it ; that he had no pecuniary means ; that as

soon as complainant found out the condition of things, he went
to Chicago and offered to pay defendant, W. T. Burgess, fifty

dollars if he would arrange it, but that Burgess refused to give

him any satisfaction, and alleging that the title was in his

brother, J. S. Burgess, and was beyond his control, and that his

brother was absent in California, which complainant alleges was
not true, but was at the time in Chicago. That on the 13th
Sept., 1855, J. S. executed a quit claim deed to his cousin,

Samuel P. Burgess, defendant, for the consideration of $3,000,
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hut that in fact he paid nothing for the conveyance ; that he is

a young man without means, a relation of W. T. Burgess, and
that it was a scheme of W. T. further to conceal the true con-

dition of his own interest and connection with the property,

and that no person claims any interest in it except W. T. Bur-
gess, and that these persons are used as means to carry out his

fraudulent designs ; that W. T. Burgess has caused notice to bo
served on the tenants of the property to quit, for the purpose of
commencing an action of ejectment ; that complainant has, ever
since the judgment and sale, had the open and notorious posses-

sion of the premises ; that, not admitting any obligation to pay
anything, he has offered W. T. Burgess one hundred dollars to

compromise the matter and relinquish his claim, but he demands
two thousand dollars therefor. Charges combination and con-
federacy to defraud complainant; calls upon defendants to

answer not under oath, and prays that the sheriff's sale be set

aside as fraudulent, and the several conveyances from the sheriff

to John S. Burgess, from him to Samuel P. Burgess, be set aside
and cancelled, and decreed to convey to complainant, and that

W. T. Burgess be decreed to restore complainant in all thino-s

in respect to the title of said premises to as good condition as
at the time of said sherift^'s sale, and that defendants' and
agents' attorneys, etc., be restrained from selling or incumber-
ing the property, or disturbing complainant in the possession of
it, and from proceeding in the ejectment suit, and from com-
mencing or instituting any suit at law to recover the possession
of the premises, and for general relief.

This bill is sworn to before the clerk of the Circuit Court of
Winnebago county, and an. injunction awarded by the Circuit
judge, December 18, 1855.

William T. Burgess, in his answer, admits there was con-
siderable misunderstanding as to the amount due from complain-
ant to Stone, growing out of their dealings existing prior to
the commencement of the suit of Stone against Thomas, and to
procure a settlement and adjustment, the suit was commenced
and prosecuted by defendant, with one Fuller for Stone ; denies
all knowledge of the true merits of the controversy between
them; denies any promise or obligation to make any discount
on the judgment ; admits purchase of judgment from Stone,
issuing execution, levy and sale, and claims they were all regu-
lar

; charges willful laches on complainant, and claims the
benefit of lapse of time ; denies all fraud and unlawful com-
bination.

The answer of H. 0. Stone sets up lapse of time as a bar to

any relief^says before the alias fi.fa. was issued, he had sold
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the judgment to W. T. Burgess, after deducting the payment of

thirty-one dollars thereon, and disclaims all interest, and denies

all fraud, etc.

S. P. Burgess sets up in his answer lapse of time and laches

of complainant ; claims to be a bona fide purchaser for a valu-

ble consideration, without notice of any irregularities in sale by
sheriff, and denies that any exist, and as to the rest and residue

of the bill, says that he denies all the facts set up in it to be

true, except such as appear of record in the judicial proceed-

ings, and the sale under them, and the different mesne convey-

ances from Farnsworth to him ; relies on the certificate of

purchase as the best evidence of what there occurred, " made so

by statute," and denies all fraud, etc. The name of W. T.

Burgess is signed as of counsel.

At the February term, 1856, a general replication was put in

to these answers. At October term, 1856, the death of com-
plainant was suggested, and the present complainants, his heirs

at law, admitted to prosecute the suit.

At the October term, 1857, the cause was heard on the bill,

answers, and the following evidence :

John S. Burgess, sworn, testified that he was a brother of

William T. Burgess, and resided in Chicago, September 30,

1855 ; was the person who executed the deed shown (a deed
executed by witness to S. P. Burgess). Acquired the title

through him. Don't know from whom he got the title. Never
had a deed of the premises in his possession. Paid a consid-

eration, by a note, for $250 ;
gave the note to William T.

Burgess. Don't know what has become of it. It was paid by
selling the premises to William T. Burgess. Was given up by
him in September, 1855. He held it a year, and gave it up
when the premises were conveyed to him, in September, 1855.

Owed him some borrowed money besides—some $40 or $50.
Never had any dealings with any one but William T. Burgess

about the land, and conveyed it at his request. Samuel P. Bur-

gess is cousin of William T. Burgess, and was residing in

Morris, Grundy county, in September, 1856. Does not know,
and never took any interest to know, the value of the property.

Does not know whether S. P. Burgess was worth any property

or not in September, 1855.

On cross-examination, the witness stated that he went into

business in 1854, and William T. Burgess let him have $250,
and took his note, which is the note testified about. This note

was given up at the time the deed was executed. At the same

time, S. P. Burgess gave one note for $2,000, and one for

$1,000, which were indorsed and left with Wm. T. Burgess.
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Being shown the deed, the witness stated that his impression,

when first examined, was that he gave the deed to William T.

Burgess ; was told by William T. Burgess that he had sold the

premises to S. P. Burgess, and he wanted witness to convey.

It was the understanding that the account between himself and
William T. Burgess would be squared by his conveying to S.

P. Burgess.

On re-examination by complainant, witness stated that he saw
S. P. Burgess in Chicago about the time, but did not remember
seeing him the day the deed was made.

Complainants gave, in evidence, the execution and alias

executions, and indorsements in the case of H. 0. Stone v.

Alden Thomas.
King- H. Milliken testified that he was sheriJBf of this county

at date of execution ; has seen this execution ; remembers the

transaction referred to by the execution and its indorsements.

The property described in the levy on the execution is on the

east side of the river, south side of State street.

The complainants propose to the witness this question : What
was the value of the property in September, 1855 ?

To which the defendants object, but the court allows the same
to be put and answered.

Thinks the buildings were on at that time ; was then worth
three thousand dollars, with the buildings on. Front width,

twenty-two feet ; and in June, 1854, the property was worth
fifty dollars per foot, front.

The property was advertised under this execution ; it was
adjourned several times—don't know how often—for want of

bidders. Wrote to W. T. Burgess, and received a line from
him. Wrote, in the first place, the day to which I had adjourned
sale, and received a line from him—if he was not there, to

strike it off in the name of John F. Farnsworth. On the day
of sale, the property was sold as he directed. He wished wit-

ness, in his line to him, to send him a certificate of sale to

Farnsworth, and did so. Recollection not distinct about it,

nor whether there was any person present or not. A gentleman
by the name of Leavitt, an attorney, had an office in witness'
office ; if he was not there, does not know of any one that was.
No one was present to make any bids. It is his impression that
it was not cried off ; impression not very distinct. The place
of sale was at the court-house door. Office was in the east
wing of the court-house. Has not now any recollection of going
any nearer than his office.

On his cross-examination, he says his recollection is not dis-

tinct as to offering the land for sale ; cannot state from recollec- .

tion that it was not offered for sale ; recollects making out and
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sending a certificate of sale to W. T. Burgess, but has no recol-

lection whether he went to the court-house door and cried the

premises for sale or not ; will not swear positively that he did

not go to the door of the court-house and cry the land for sale
;

his attention was first called to the sale at the time the sherifls'

deed of the same was executed ; his attention had not been

called to it from the time of the sale up to the making of the

sheriffs' deed of the same. Called on Alden Thomas, the

defendant in the execution, for property on the execution, and
asked him to turn out property on the execution ; asked him
several times. He did not turn out any property on the execu-

tion ; examined the record to find property to levy on, and
found a farm and this lot. Knew his duty as sheriff' required

liim to cry the property for sale at the place advertised therefor,

and when he made out the certificate of sale to Farnsworth,

supposed he had complied with the law in that respect.

The defendants here introduced and read the certificates of

sale, which, with their indorsements, are as follows

:

STATE OF ILLINOIS, )

^^
WINNEBAGO COUNTY. )

I, King H. Milliken, sheriff of the county and State aforesaid, do hereby certify

that by virtue of an execution and fee bill to me directcid, dated the 28th day of

December, A. D. 1853, and delivered in favor of Horatio O. Stone and against

Alden Thomas, I did, in pursuance of the statute in such case made and provided,

on the 10th day of June, 1854, between the hours of ten o'clock, A. M., and five

o'clock, P. M., offer at public sale the following described property, to wit : (here

follows description of lands,) and John F. Farnsworth, having bid the sum of 38

33-100 dollars, he being the highest and best bidder at sale, became the purchaser.

Now, if the aforesaid property shall not be redeemed within fifteen months from

this date, according to law, then the said John F. Farnsworth will be entitled to a

deed therefor.

Witness my hand and seal at Rockford, this 10th day of June, A. D. 1854.

K. H. MILLIKEN, [seal.]

Sheriff of Winnebago Counti/.

September 12, 1855. Deed executed on the within to John
S. Burgess, September 12, 1855.

An assignment from Farnsworth to John S. Burgess.

Another certificate of the same tenor, and indorsed, recorded

June 17, 1854.

The witness further said these certificates of sale were exe-

cuted by him as sheriff of Winnebago county.

The defendants here moved the court to exclude the testimony

of said Milliken given in the trial of this cause, tending in any

wise to conflict with said certificates, or the facts therein stated.

The court refused to exclude the same, and the defendants

excepted.
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The defendants then showed the witness a paper writing,

purporting to be a copy of a letter written by the witness, and
witness says he thinks the copy of the letter now shown him is

a copy of a letter he wrote and sent to W. T. Burgess ; don't

recollect comparing it with the original with Orren Miller.

For the purpose of introducing said copy, the defendants here

produced Orren Miller, who was sworn, and says he got the

original, of which the one produced (the one above alluded to)

is a copy, from W. T. Burgess ; he had the original in the court

room during one of the terms since this suit was pending.

Milliken, witness, and Burgess, looked over original, and Bur-

gess and witness compared it with this, and this is a true copy

of the original. Tlie original was in the handwriting of said

Milliken ; witness wanted to use the original in another suit

;

took the original away with him ; has searched for it during

this term of the court ; had it in his office, but is unable to find

it ; it is lost.

The cross examination of K. H. Milliken was then continued

bv the defendants.

Wrote a letter of the purport of this to W. T. Burgess at the

time he sent him the certificate of sale to John F. Farnsworth.

Witness reads the copy through, and then says it contains in

substance a statement of what he wrote Wm. T. Burgess in

regard to the sale of said land.

The said copy is here read to the court by the defendants, as

follows

:

EocKFOED, June 10, 1854.

Mk. Burgess : Sir : I this day struck off to John F. Farnsworth, Esq., a part

of a city lot belonging to A. Thomas, on the execution in favor of H. 0. Stone,

for the amount of damages and costs, $38 33, as per order from you. The costs

(clerk and sheriff,) are $15 95; you can remit the same, and I will forward you

the certificate of sale, also a receipt to attach to the writ.

Yours, respectfully, K. H. MILLIKEN,
Sheriff" Winnebago County, 111.

Re-examined by complainant. Witness' attention called to

the return on the execution, says : That is the return made at

the time, according to the best of his recollection, the transac-

tion being some time ago, and has not given the matter much
thought. All the sale was the indorsement on the execution, and
the certificates of sale, but is not positive. Thinks the indorse-

ment of payment of fees was made a few days after ; the other

indorsement was made at the time of sale. Recollects W. T.

Burgess calling his attention to the return, and saying he wanted
him to alter it, that the sale was made to Farnsworth. But as

the matter was in court he preferred not to do it.
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Cross-examined by defendants. W. T. Burgess said to him
that the sale was made to Farnsworth, and he ought to alter it.

Agreed with him that it was made to Farnsworth, but said he
would not correct it. Then told W. T. Burgess that the sale was
regular so far as he knew. Thinks he has so told Mr. Burgess
several times.

Ee-examined by complainants. The sale was made to Farns-

worth by the direction of W. T. Burgess, by his letter. Con-
sidered the sale made to Farnsworth ; his reasons for it were
the directions that he had from W. T. Burgess. Thinks no bid-

ders were there at the sale.

V. A. Marsh testified that he resided in Chicago in 1855, and
had an opportunity of knowing the pecuniary circumstances of

Samuel P. Burgess ; he had no means except his salary ; about

that time he stated that he had no means, and wanted a situation

as clerk.

Jason Marsh testified he was acquainted with Alden Thomas,
and had been since he can remember ; has known W. T. Bur-

gess since 1841 ; was the attorney for A. Thomas in the suit of

H. 0. Stone against him, in which the execution in this cause

was issued. Previous to the trial of this cause, W. T. Burgess
and witness, or Mr. Fuller, or both, or which is not positive,

talked about the question that was to be tried.

The defendants here object to any evidence being given either

as to what occurred at the trial of said cause, or going behind

or dehors the record of the judgment therein ; but the court

overruled the objections severally, and allowed the evidence to

be proceeded with touching the said trial as hereinafter given.

The understanding was that the only thing in controversy

was the amount of fees to Burgess, as attorney, which he claimed

Thomas had to pay him. That was understood to be the ques-

tion in controversy. At the trial, Mr. Burgess was the only

witness sworn. Mr. B. Shaw was also sworn as to the state of

the account, both by the defendant, Thomas. At the trial a
certain charge came up that Thomas claimed had been settled

;

but on the testimony of W. T. Burgess, can't say how it came
up, but that item was made a part of the judgment. His
recollection is not now very distinct as to what did occur on the

trial.

Sometime after judgment, execution being out, talked with

W. T. Burgess in relation to it ; talked considerable. W. T.

Burgess admitted that he was mistaken in his testimony, and
held out the idea that he or Mr. Stone, or that he would get

Mr. Stone, to relinquish that portion of the judgment. Thinks

the amount was from eighteen to thirty dollars ; don't recollect

anything about the amount, but thinks it would range somewhere
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along there. Communicated the fact to Thomas that Burgess

would communicate with Stone to procure him to reduce the

amount of the judgment.

On cross-examination. The money that was paid and in-

dorsed on the execution, was paid after the conversation referred

to by witness with Burgess about the reduction of the payment.

Thinks Burgess said that he would try to get Stone to make a

deduction on the judgment. After the trial was over, Thomas
explained to witness how the mistake had occurred, and witness

explained it to W. T. Burgess, and he said he would consult

Stone, and try to have Stone deduct the same from the judg-

ment. Is a brother-in-law of A. Thomas, deceased.

Burgess also admitted that Farnsworth had no interest in the

matter, and that no consideration passed between them— was a

mere matter of accommodation to Burgess. Thomas had pos-

session of the premises until his death ; since then his heirs

have had possession.

William Broivn testified that the premises were worth in

September, 1855, $4,000. The lot was worth in 1854, $60 per

foot.

Complainants read in evidence the sheriff's deed.

Complainants here closed, and defendants offered as evidence,

deed of the premises from John S. Burgess and wife to Samuel
P. Burgess, dated September, 13, 1855, acknowledged Septem-
ber 29, 1855 ; Record of the suit of H. O. Stone v. Alden
Thomas; execution in said suit, with the sheriff's return ; alias

execution and sheriff's return ; sheriff's certificate of sale to J.

F. Farnsworth ; assignment of certificate by Farnsworth to J.

S. Burgess ; and deed from J. S. Burgess to Samuel P. Burgess.

At February term, 1858, a final decree was rendered, dismiss-

ing the bill. The complainants have brought this case here by
appeal, and have assigned this as error.

This case appeals strongly to the best feelings of the court,

as some of the complainants are infants, contending with an
astute and practiced lawyer, who having, as he contends, a legal

advantage, is determined to avail himself of it, without regard
to any equities supposed by the complainants to exist in their

favor. Though it be such a case, and one of great hardship

perhaps, this court is not permitted to violate any rule of law or

equity in the effort to afford relief, neither in this or in any
other case. We can only apply those rules to the facts and the

circumstances of each case that may be presented.

As is said by Fonblanque in his excellent treatise on Equity,

book 1, chap. 1, sec. 3 : "In chancery, every particular case

stands upon its own particular circumstances ; but if the law
has determined a matter, with all its circumstances, equity can-
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not intermeddle ; and for the chancery to relieve against the

express provisions of an act of parliament, would be the same
as to repeal it. Equity, therefore, will not interpose in such

cases, notwithstanding accident or unavoidable necessity ; so

that infants had been bound by the statute of limitations, if

there had been no exception in the act. And although in mat-

ters of apparent equity, as fraud or breach of trust, precedents

are not necessary, it is dangerous to extend the authority of the

court further than the practice of former times."

The discretion given to courts of equity is not by any
means an arbitrary discretion in any case, but it is to be gov-

erned by rules both of law and equity, which are not to oppose,

but each in its turn to be subservient to the others ; this dis-

cretion, in some cases, follows the law implicitly ; in others,

assists it and advances the remedy ; in others again, it relieves

against the abuse or allays the rigor of it ; but in no case does

it contradict or overturn the grounds or privileges thereof, as

has been sometimes ignorantly imputed to this court. Cowper
V. Coivper, 2 Peere Williams, 753, by Sir Joseph Jekyl, master

of the rolls.

In Bond v. Hopkins, 1 Schoole and Sepoy, 428, Lord Redes-
dale said, " There are certain principles on which courts of

equity act, which are very well settled. The cases which occur

are various, but they are decided on fixed principles. Courts of

equity in this respect have no more discretionary power than

courts of law."

And Blackstone, in 3 Com. 432, says, " The system of our

courts of equity is a labored connected system, governed by
established rules, and bound down by precedents from which
they do not depart, although the reason of some of them may
be liable to objection."

The rules of evidence, also, are the same in equity as at law.

No case, therefore, can be determined in equity, on any other

than fixed rules and principles applied to the particular case.

And the chancellor, like a jury, can draw his inferences from
the testimony, and, like them, weigh it, and as it preponderates,

so decree.

It is a rule in equity, that a party to a suit, purchasing prop-

erty sold under an execution, is chargeable with notice of all

irregularities attending the sale ; and so is his attorney, who
conducts the proceedings.

It is also a rule, that a party shall not claim a benefit, or the

aid of such a court, who has been guilty of laches in protecting

his rights, unless that laches may be imputable to the party

claiming against him.
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The bill in this cause avers, in positive terms, that complain-

ant had no knowledge of the sale of the property in question,

until he was told that it had been sold by the sheriff, and the

deed actually executed and recorded. The sheriff testiiies, that

when he had the execution against him, he called on him to set-

tle, and complainant told him he must take property. The com-

plainant endeavors to account for his apparent negligence, and
states these facts : That in the suit by H. 0. Stone against him,

the only matter of real difference between them was, a small

sum of fifteen dollars, being the fee of one of the defendants, as

attorney for Stone ; that he had paid on the demand thirty-one

dollars ; and that on the trial. Burgess was sworn as a witness,

and by his testimony, the amount of the recovery against him
was much greater—some forty-five dollars. Burgess admitted,

—so Jason Marsh testifies,—there was a mistake in his testimo-

ny, and said he would see Stone about it, and have it rectified.

This is not denied by Burgess. The complainant states, when
execution was issued on the judgment, in June, 1850, he paid on

it* $31 and the costs, which Burgess received, and remonstrated

against paying more ; that the execution was returned by order

of Burgess, and that he heard nothing more of it until January,

1854, when ii.fi. fa. was issued for the balance ; that on telling

the sheriff the facts of the case, he consented to wait until com-

plainant could write to Burgess ; that he did write to Burgess
about it, and receiving no reply to his letter, he supposed the mat-

ter was all adjusted, and gave himself no further concern about

it, and was only awakened from his delusion by being told of the

actual sale of his property and a deed made and recorded for it.

Supposing he was dealing with an honorable man, in the person

of Mr. Burgess, of high standing at the bar, whose professional

robe indicated the higher virtues, he might well consider he was
secure in relying on his promise,—for such it was,—to have the

mistake, which he had produced by his own testimony, corrected.

Instead of that, however, without communicating with the com-
plainant in any way, he becomes the purchaser of the judg-

ment, and enforced the collection of the whole of it, by the sale

of valuable property, worth at that time some twelve or thirteen

hundred dollars, for the trifling sum of thirty-eight dollars and
thirty-three cents, and at the time of the hearing of this cause,

worth some four or five thousand dollars. We do not hold this

promise of Burgess to see Stone, and have the mistake rectified,

was of binding legal obligation,—not at all ; but, when coming
from a member of an honorable profession, in whom no improper
designs can be presumed to lurk, the complainant was well justi-

fied in supposing that he had done as he said he would do, that
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the whole matter was adjusted, and it should trouble him no
more. It was a reasonable inference from Burgess' silence.

But be this as it ma}', assuming it to be true that the complain-

ant knew of the levy and sale, was the sale conducted in the

manner prescribed by law, and is the defendant chargeable with

knowledge of any irregularities, or serious departure from the

requirements of the law in sales by sheriffs ?

It must be confessed, the witness on the first point as to the

regularity of the sale, the sheriff himself, is not so positive in

his statements as he might be ; but this fact distinctly appears

from what he does say—that, in truth and in fact, there was no
public sale of the property whatever. Our statute, R. L. 1845,
chap. 57, sec. 11, provides that " no lands or tenements shall be

sold by virtue of any execution aforesaid, unless such sale be at

public vendue, and between the hours of nine in the morning
and the setting of the sun of the same day." Provision is then

made for public notices of the sale, and a penalty against the

sheriff of fifty dollars if he sells otherwise, with this proviso

:

" Provided, however, that no such offense, nor shall any irregu-

larity on the part of the sheriff, or other officers having the exe-

cution, be deemed to affect the validity of any sale made under
it, unless it shall be made to appear that the purchaser had notice

of such irregularity."

The sheriff states that all the sale he made of this property

was, by sitting in his office, in the east wing of the court-house,

and there indorsing it on the execution, and making out a cer-

tificate of sale ; that he did not go to the door of the court-house

;

that there was no public vendue, no bidders, no outcry, nothing

transpiring there to arrest the attention of the public, or any indi-

cation that a sale of valuable property by the sheriff was going

on. The fact may be, that at the very moment, whilst the sheriff,

privately in his office, was making this indorsement, the owner
of the property, the complainant, may have been at the door of

the court-house.

One reason why such sales are directed to be at public ven-

due is, that by the very publicity of it, not only bidders may be
attracted, but that the defendant himself may be present to see

and know that every thing is fair ; it is a great protection to

unfortunate debtors. Had the sale in this case been public, if

the debtor did not know of it himself, some friend might have
known it, and so communicated the fact. But the sheriff obeyed
not the law, but the direction of the plaintiff's attorney, who, it

is very evident, had matured his plans to possess himself of this

property, for the little trifle due on the execution, and which he
had induced the complainant to believe no longer existed as a

balance against him.
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A stranger to these proceedings would not, and justly, too,

be affected by them ; for effect must, from motives of public

policy, if for no other cause, be given to sales of this character,

and he has a right to repose upon the presumption that the

officer has done his whole duty in the premises.

It is not so with the plaintiff in this suit, and in this aspect

W. T. Burgess is viewed by the court, because he says, before

the issuing of the alias execution, he had become the purchaser

of the judgment from Stone, and had been and was the attorney

of the plaintiff. Stone.

In such case the rule is, that where the plaintiff in the judg-

ment becomes the purchaser, he is responsible for and is sup-

posed to be cognizant of all the irregularities and errors, both

in the judgment and in the proceedings under the execution.

McLagen v. Brown et al., 11 111. R. 523, 524.

That W. T. Burgess was the purchaser, distinctly appears by
the sheriff's return on the execution, and his return must be
conclusive ; it cannot be explained away by parol, or by the pro-

duction of Burgess' letter to him to strike it off to Farnsworth
;

nor would he be any less the purchaser, under the facts as they

are proved here, if the sheriff's return actually showed that

Farnsworth was the purchaser, for he disclaimed all knowledge
of it, or having any interest in it. He would be the trustee, only,

of Burgess, holding the title for him. So with John S., his

brother, and with his co-defendant, Samuel P. Burgess, his

cousin. They were but trustees for the benefit of William T.

Burgess.

Look at John S. Burgess' testimony. It is enough to sat-

isfy any mind that he was used—under the influence of an older

brother as cunning as one well taught in the chicanery of his

profession could well be, it was no difficult matter to make him
an instrument for his purposes. His testimony is quite sufficient

to show he was a mere instrument. " He does not even know
from whom he got the title." Had given his brother a note for

$250, and paid it by selling the premises, worth $4,000, to his

brother—conveyed the land to Samuel at William's request

;

never had any contract with Samuel to convey him the land

;

never took any interest in the property. He says, moreover,
that William T. Burgess told him that he had sold the premises

to S. P. Burgess, and he wanted him to convey it to him. This
shows he was a mere trustee.

So with S. P. Burgess. The proof shows that he never was
in a condition to buy such property, and the inference is irresist-

ible, as J. S. Burgess conveyed the land to him without his

knowledge, and at the request of W. T., he also is but a trustee

for W. T. Burgess. They are all " art and part " in a fraud-
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ulent transaction. It would be a just reproach upon a court of

equity, if W. T. Burgess could be permitted to interpose either

of these persons between him and the censure of this court.

It was one of the many artifices Burgess resorted to to cover

up his fraud and escape detection, and have it in his power to

allege that neither the plaintiff in the execution nor his attorney

was the purchaser. But such shallow devices and fraudulent

practices cannot avail him. He, in the eye of justice and of

the law, concocted this scheme—he was the moving spring of

the sheriff's illegal action; he pressed into his service Farns-

worth, his brother John, and his cousin Samuel, a co-defendant

with him, drew up his answer, and taught him upon what to

insist. They were all animated by liis soul, and in that, there

brooded a wicked design.

The direction to the sheriff, " if there are no bidders, strike

it off to Farnsworth," was a sufficient intimation to a very

obliging sheriff that it would be perfectly agreeable to him, that

there should be no bidders, so that he might, at a future day,

by the train he had laid, become the owner without being

chargeable with any irregularities in the sale. Irregularities is

a term too mild by which to characterize these proceedings—
they were gross abuses in the face of justice, and would be con-

demned every where. It is an old maxim that it is the very
essence of fraud to attempt to cover up fraud.

If he had not some design of this character, if he was con-

scious every thing was fair, just and honest, why did he not

appear in all the papers—in the certificate and sheriffs' deed, as

he did appear in the sheriff's return the real purchaser, as he
was, of the property. When the sheriff made his return, that he
was the purchaser, he saw at once, and knew he would be
affected by the abuses committed, and he endeavored to induce

the sherifl' to amend the return. But in such a case as this is,

we will hold the sheriff to it, and consider the fact as true, that

Burgess was the purchaser, as shown by his return.

Being so, issuing the certificate to Farnsworth was a void act,

for it could only issue to Burgess himself, who appears on the

return as the purchaser. Chap. 57, sec. 12, R. S. 1845.

We hold that there must be entire conformity in all these

proceedings in the return, the certificate and the deed, and if

they do not possess it, they will be invalid. Davis v. Mc-
Vickers, 11 111. R. 329.

But there is another ground on which the complainants might
well seek the interposition of this court, and that is, the gross

inadequacy of price.

We do not mean to be understood as intimating, that at a

judicial sale at public vendue or sale by auction, conducted
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fairly, and in conformity with the statute, that inadequacy of

price could be urged as ground for setting aside a sale. Ayres

V. Baumg-arten, 15 111. R. 444. There would be no necessity,

under our system of laws, to contend very strenuously for such

a principle, because, having a right to redeem, no permanent

injury need be worked by it, or valuable estates sacrificed. But
where, as in this case, the requirements of the statute were
spurned—where there was no public vendue, no bidders, and

no outcry—gross inadequacy of price, such as is here exhibited,

ought to have a most decided influence, and be in fact, a con-

trolling element.

Nor do we mean to be understood as olyecting to receiving a

bid by letter—but the officer must cry the bid, and if there be

no advance on it, he would be justified in selling at the bid.

The debtor has a right to insist upon all the forms.

AVe did design to bring out in stronger relief the acts of the

principal defendant in this cause, who has exercised a power
his position gives him, for such a bad purpose. We did intend

to administer to him a well merited rebuke, as pointed as it is

true, but have thought we would leave him to reflect how much
sweeter and more consoling would be to him the whispers of his

conscience, if he had endeavored, by the exercise of his talents

and sagacity, to save this estate to those entitled to it, rather

than by his cunning and craft to deprive them of it.

The decree is reversed, and a decree entered in this court,

that on payment to William T. Burgess, by the said complain-

ants, of the amount for which the lot and land in question was
sold, and all the costs, with interest thereon from the day of

sale, the said William T. Burgess and Samuel P. Burgess, do
make a quit-claim deed, in due form of law and properly ac-

knowledged, to the said complainants, for the lot and land in

controversy, releasing to the heirs at law of said Alden Thomas,
•all their right, title and claim of, in and to said lot of ground
and premises and appurtenances, and that the complainants

recover their costs herein. And on failure to execute said

deed by said defendants, within thirty days from and after the

payment of the money aforesaid, then the Master in Chancery
of Winnebago county, do make, execute, acknowledge and
deliver such deed.

» Decree reversed.

19
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James H. Rees, Administrator, etc., et al, Plaintiffs in

Error, v. James H. Eames et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO COOK COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

Where a sheriff, entrusted with an execution, called on the defendants for pay-

ment, which was promised, but afterwards refused ; which execution was lost,

so that it could not be returned by the sheriff, and he paid the amount lie was
commanded to make ; the law will imply a promise on the part of the defend-

ants in execution to refund to the sheriff the amount which he has paid.

Tlie remedy by a sheriff against parties for whom he has paid money by virtue of

his office, will depend upon the good or bad faith of his conduct.

The declaration in this case was as follows :

For that, whereas, the said James Andrew, in his lifetime, in

the year 1855, was sheriff in and for the county of Cook, in the

State of Illinois, and so being such sheriff, and while such sheriff,

there came into his hands as such sheriff, to be executed, a

certain fieri facias or execution, wherein one Thomas J. Hunt
was plaintiff and the said James H. Eames and John A. Pat-

nior, impleaded with William Carroll, were defendants, and
which said writ was duly issued out of the clerk's office of the

Circuit Court of the county of Kane, and State of Illinois,

nnder the seal of the said court, and in and by wliich said writ,

the said James xindrew, sheriff of Cook county, as aforesaid,

was commanded of the goods and chattels, lands and tenements

of the said James H. Eames and John A. Patmor, defendants,

to make the sum of five hundred and twenty-six dollars and
twenty-five cents damages, and twelve dollars and seventy-five

cents costs of suit, and wliich said writ so delivered as aforesaid,

to the said James Andrew, sheriff as aforesaid, and while in the

hands of the said sheriff, James Andrew, and before the same
or any part thereof had been paid and collected, and before the

said goods and chattels, lands and tenements of the said defend-

ants, or either of them, had been levied upon and seized upon,

under and by virtue of the said writ, and long before the expi-

ration of the said writ, the said writ was lost while so being in

the possession of the said James Andrew, sheriff as aforesaid,

and the said James Andrew so being sheriff as aforesaid, was
unable to find the said writ, and was unable to proceed thereon

and collect the same in the lifetime of the said writ, and then

and there the time for the collection of the said money, under
and by virtue of said writ of and from the said defendants expired,

and the said James Andrew, so being such sheriff as aforesaid,

then and there became and was, by reason thereof, liable to pay
the said Thomas J. Hunt, the plaintiff in said execution, the

amount of the said execution against the said defendants, and so
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being liable, to relieve himself from liability and save himself

from damages, afterwards, and after the expiration of said writ,

to wit, on the 27th day of September, A. I). 1855, at Chicago,

in the county of Cook aforesaid, while such sheriff" as aforesaid,

paid, laid out and expended the sura of five hundred and twenty-

,six dollars and twenty-seven cents to the said Thomas J. Hunt,
plaintiff" as aforesaid, in said execution, in full, for the amount,

principal, interest and costs then due and owing said Thomas J.

Hunt for and upon account of said execution and for the said

defendants.

And the said plaintiffs further aver that the said James An-
drew in his lifetime, and while the said execution was in his

hands to execute, as such sheriff", and before the loss thereof, as

hereinbefore averred, the said James Andrew, so being such sher-

iff as aforesaid, demanded of the said defendants the amount of

said execution, and which said amount the said defendants

promised to pay, and the said plaintiff's also aver that the said

James Andrew, so being such sheriff as aforesaid, and in his life-

time, after the loss of said execution and before the payment of

said sum of money as hereinbefore stated, to the said plaintiff in

said execution, again demanded of said defendants the payment
of the amount of said execution.

Whereby the said defendants became liable to pay the said

sum of money so paid as aforesaid, by the said James Andrew,
sheriff as aforesaid, to the said James Andrew in his lifetime.

Yet the said defendants, not regarding their said duty,

promise and undertaking, have not as yet paid the said sum of

money, or any part thereof, to the said James Andrew in his

lifetime or to the said plaintiffs, administrators as aforesaid,

since the death of the said James Andrew (although often

requested so to do), but they so to do have hitherto wholly
refused, and still refuse, to pay the same, or any part tliereof,

to the said plaintiffs, administrators as aforesaid, to the damage
of the said plaintiffs, as such administrators as aforesaid, of

one thousand dollars, and therefore they bring their suit, etc.

And the said plaintiffs bring into court here the letters of

administration of all and singular the goods, chattels and credits

whereof the said James Andrew, at the time of his death,

granted to the said plaintiffs by the County Court of Cook
county, which give suiiicicnt evidence to the said court here of

the grant of administration to the said plaintiffs as aforesaid.

To which said declaration the said defendants demurred, and
which demurrer was sustained by the court, J. M. Wilson,
Judge, presiding. The plaintiffs below then appealed.

Arnold, Larned & Lay, for Plaintiffs in Error.

W. T. Burgess, for Defendants in Error.
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Caton, C. J. The declaration in this case shows that, by
accident, the execution was lost while in the sheriff's hands,

and before the return day ; that, before the return day, he

called on the defendants in execution and demanded payment,

which they promised but refused to make ; that, in consequence

of the loss of the execution, he was unable to return it, accord-

ing to the exigency of the writ, and hence became liable to pay,

and did pay, the amount of the judgment ; that, after the return

day of the execution, and before he paid the amount, he again

demanded payment of the defendants, who again promised to

pay it, but ncTcr did. On this state of facts, the law will imply

a promise on the part of the defendants to refund to the sheriff

the amount which he has thus paid to satisfy this debt. The
sheriff was not bound to wait till he was sued for not returning

the execution. It is sufficient that he was liable for the amount,

and then he had a right to pay it, and save costs. It is like a

surety who voluntarily pays the debt after his liability is fixed.

There the law will imply a request on the part of the principal.

The cases where the sheriff has, and where he has not, a

a'cmcdy against the party whose debt he pays in consequence of

•omission of some official duty, are very distinguishable, and
-there can be rarely any difficulty in applying the rule. Wher-
ever he acts male fide he is without remedy. If he acts in

good faith—if he intends to do his duty, and supposes he is

cloLEg it—and through inadvertence or accident, he becomes
liable, he has his remedy over. If a sheriff suffer a voluntary

escape, he has no remedy against the debtor, for he knew he

was neglecting his duty when he suffered the debtor to go at

large ; but, in case of an involuntary escape, although he might
have guarded the prisoner closer, and w^as even guilty of negli-

gence or want of proper prudence in not doing so, he has his

remedy against the execution debtor, if he thought he was safe.

Here the declaration shows that the sheriff was guilty of no
willful misconduct, but that the execution was lost by accident,

whereby he was unable to return it. The defense here insisted

upon is an ungracious one, and ought not to be listened to,

except where the policy of the law requires that the sheriff

should be punished for his misconduct. Then it is admitted,

net for any intrinsic merit in the defense itself, or the party

making it, but as an example, and as a punishment, for the mis-

conduct of the officer. The demurrer to the declaration should

have been overruled.

The judgment must be reversed and the cause remanded
Judgment reversed.
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David Nichols, Appellant, v. A. Guibor, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM BUREAU.

An agent is, on general principles, a competent witness for all purposes.

The purchaser of an article, not warranted as to qualit}-, must take the hazard of

his bargain. If he was not to keep the article purchased, unless it pleased him,

he should return it, if it displeased him, at the earliest practicable moment.

This was an action brought against the defendant by the

plaintiff, before a justice of the peace, to recover pay for a

plow, which plaintiff alleges he sold to defendant. Judgment
for plaintiff below. Case appealed to Bureau Circuit Court at

April term, 1857. Judgment in that court for plaintiff. The
defendant shows the following points in which the court

erred

:

In permitting Linton, who was the agent of plaintiff, to

testify in chief, by his signing his release, as set forth in bill,

which only releases Guibor from recovering damages from Lin-

ton, but did not release Linton from the damages which Guibor
could recover for his negligence in permitting this plow to

become worthless while in his hands as agent.

In refusing to grant a new trial on motion of defendant.

The cause was tried before Ballou, Judge, and a jury, at

April term, 1857, of the Bureau Circuit Court.

John M. Grimes, for Plaintiff in Error.

Glover & Cook, for Defendant in Error.

Breese, J. All the points raised in this cause must be
decided against the appellant.

The agent, Linton, was a competent witness on general prin-

ciples for all purposes. His interest in this particular case, if

he had any, was released on trial, and all objection removed.
To make the party liable under this proof, the seller was

under no necessity of demanding a return of the article. It

was the business of the purchaser to return it so soon as he
discovered it did not suit his purposes. There was no warranty
of quality, and, therefore, it was not competent for the pur-

chaser to prove the article was worthless ;
" his eyes were his

chap ;" he was his own judge of the article, without any war-
ranty, express or implied. The express agreement to return it

if it did not suit, excludes any implied warranty.
The case does not show the property was damaged while in

the possession of the agent, Linton, so as to make him responsi-
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ble in an action. No release, therefore, was necessary on this

account ; but the case did not depend on Linton's testimony.

William Phillips testifies that Nichols told him he was not

obliged to keep the plow, if he did not like it, but was to return

the plow if it did not suit him.

He should have returned it at the earliest practicable moment.
Not having done so, he is justly chargeable with the price.

Judgment affirmed.

The City of Chicago, Appellant, v. The Rock Island Rail-

road Company, Appellee.

APPEAL EROM COOK COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

Special authority delegated by legislative enactment to particular persons, or sum-
mary proceedings without personal service, to take away a man's property and
estate against his consent, must be strictly pursued, and this must be shown on
the face of the proceedings.

Since the act of February, 1857, amendatory of the charter of the city of Chicago,

there is but one collector and his assistants, and that collector must apply to some
court of general jurisdiction for an order of sale of lands, etc., to satisfy assess-

ments. Special collectors cannot make this application.

Where a command issued to a special collector to levy of the goods and chattels,

had he made a levy, he could have completed the execution, even after the pas-

sage of the amendatory act. Had the warrant been issued against lands, the

special collector could not have sold, as he had only been commanded by the

common council, and not by some court of the city, having competent juris-

diction.

The Common Council of the City of Chicago made a sjiecial

assessment for extending La Salle street from its present termi-

nus (Madison street) to Jackson street, which was confirmed

June 9, 1856. A warrant in due form was issued to George W.
Colby, special collector of the south division of Chicago, dated

June 17, 1856, by which he was directed to collect said assess-

ment out of the goods and chattels of the respective owners of

the real estate assessed, and to make return in what manner he

should execute his writ, within thirty days from the date thereof.

Colby, the special collector, never made any return of his war-

rant ; but, on the 31st day of December, 1857, he published, in

the corporation newspaper, a notice, stating that he had in his

hands for collection " Warrant 207, S, opening La Salle street

from Madison street to Jackson street," with other warrants,

and requested all persons who had not paid their assessments to

pay the same.

On the 15th day of January, 1858, Colby, the special collec-

tor, published, in the corporation newspaper, a notice, stating
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that he should, on the 27th day of January, 1858, apply to th'e

Cook County Court of Common Pleas, at a special term thereof

to be held on that day at the court-house in Chicago, for judg-

ment against all blocks, lots, sub-lots, pieces and parcels of land,

together with the improvements, if any, situated thereon, for all

taxes, assessments, interests and costs due thereon, and remain-

ing unpaid, as appears from the following described warrants

then in his hands for collection, to wit: " No. 207, S, 17th June,

1856, special warrant, opening La Salle street from its present

terminus, at Madison street, south to Jackson street."

On the 27th day of January, 1858, Colby presented to said

court his report of the delinquent lands, lots, etc., and asked

for judgment against the same ; to which objections were made,
and the court refused to render the judgment asked, and dis-

missed said application at the costs of the city. Colby, the spe-

cial collector, in the name of the city, brings the case to this

court for a revision of the judgment of the court below.

Prior to the amendment of the city charter, approved Feb.

14, 1858, the people elected one collector, wlio collected the

general revenue of the city, and the common council appointed,

special collectors for the several divisions of the city, who col-

lected the warrants for special assessments in the respective

divisions for which they were appointed. These special collect-

ors were elected in the month of March, in each year, and held,

their offices for one year. They were required to conform, in

the execution of their duty, to the provisions of the charter and
the ordinances of the common council, regulating and prescrib-

ing the duties of collectors. At the time the several warrants

mentioned in the record in this case were delivered to George
W. Colby, he was the special collector of south division of the

city, and his term of office was to expire in March, 1857. The
amendment to the city charter, approved February 14, 1857, and.

in force from its passage, provided that from and after the pas-

sage of that act, there should be no special collectors of the city

revenue or assessments appointed by the common council, and.

since that time no special collectors have been appointed. The
ordinance prescribing the duties of collectors, required them,
whenever an assessment was paid, to mark the word " paid

"

on the face of the warrant, opposite the real estate charged
therewith. All warrants were required, by ordinance, to have
a return day therein named, which the common council might,

from time to time, extend by resolution. On the return day of

the warrant, the collector was required to make return thereof

to the common council, according to a form prescribed by the

ordinance. The return designated the assessments collected as

those marked paid upon the face of the warrant, and all others
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as uncollected. Upon the return of any warrant unsatisfied, in

whole or in part, an order was to be made by the common coun-

cil for the sale of the real estate on which the assessments so

remained unpaid. The power of the common council to pass an
order of sale was materially modified by the act of March 1st,

1854 ; the duties of the collector, however, remained the same
after the passage of that act as before, and the proceedings which
the common council were authorized to take could only be taken

after the warrant was returned, in the manner above mentioned,

unsatisfied in whole or in part. It is under these circumstances

that Colby refuses to return his warrants, and claims that, al-

though out of office, he has full power and authority to proceed

in some way to collect the assessments mentioned in the warrants

in his hands.

The process of the collector in the present case was a several

one against each land owner whose lands were assessed ; and as

to the persons whose assessments now remain unpaid, it appears

that the collector never attempted to execute it in any manner
whatever, until long after his term of office expired.

ScATES, McAllister, Jewett & Peabody, for Appellant.

Beckwith & Meerick, and N. B. Judd, for Appellee.

"Walker, J. This was an application by a special collector

of the city of Chicago, to the Cook County Court of Common
Pleas, at the January term, 1858, for an order of sale of certain

lots, upon which assessments had been levied, for the extension

of La Salle street. The record shows that the common council

confirmed this assessment on the 9tli of June, 1856, and issued

a warrant to G-eorge W. Colby, special collector for the south

division of Chicago, for its collection, dated the 17th day of

June, 1856, returnable in thirty days from its date. The war-
rant commanded him to collect the several amounts of the goods
and chattels of the respective owners of the real estate on which
the assessments had been made. Colby never returned this war-

rant. On the 31st day of December, 1857, he gave notice, in

the corporation newspaper, that the warrant was in his hands
for collection, and requiring the owners to make immediate pay-

ment. He, as special collector, gave a further notice, in the

same paper, that he should, on the 27th day of January, 1858,
apply to the Cook County Court of Common Pleas, on that date,

for an order of sale of the lots, sub-lots, blocks, pieces and par-

cels of land, together with the improvements, if any, situated

thereon, to satisfy all taxes, assessments and costs due thereon

and unpaid, as appeared by this warrant, which was described.



APRIL TERM, 1858. 289

City of Chicago v. Rock Island Railroad Company.

That on the 27th day of January, 1858, he returned to the court

a list of the delinquent lands, lots, etc., in the assessment, and
applied for an order for their sale, to satisfy the amounts remain-

ing unpaid. This application was resisted by the defendants,

and the proceeding was dismissed by the court, on their motion.

And the plaintiff brings the cause to this court to reverse the

judgment of the court below.

The act to amend the charter of the city of Chicago (Private

Laws 1851, p. 134,) provides, that at the annual election of

officers, there shall be elected a collector. The same act pro-

vides, that there sliall be one or more collectors. The city, by
ordinance of the 17th July, 1856, provided that, in addition to

the collector elected by the people, there should be, thereafter,

three other city collectors, who should be appointed by the com-
mon council, on the second Tuesday of March in each year.

They were required by the ordinance to collect all warrants for

special assessments^ for opening any street, alley, etc. The 8th

section of chap. 8, p. 159, Private Laws 1851, provides that, in

case of the non-payment of taxes or assessments, the premises

may be sold at any time within two years ; but before any sale

shall be made, an order shall be entered by the common council

on the records, directing the collector to sell, particularly de-

scribing the delinquent premises and assessment for which the

sale is to be made. The amended charter of the city of Chica-

go, approved the 14th February, 1857, (Private Laws, 892, sec.

27,) provides, that from and after its passage, there should be no
special collectors of the city revenue or assessments appointed
by the common council, other than assistants to the city collector,

who shall in all cases be the principal in the collector's bureau
of the treasury department. Private Laws 1857, p. 899. By
the 40th section of this act, p. 902, it is provided, that " if, from
any cause, the taxes and assessments charged in said assessment
warrants are not collected or paid, on lands or lots described in

such warrants, on or before the first Tuesday in January ensuing
the date of said warrants, it shall be the duty of the collector

to prepare and make report thereof to some court of general
jurisdiction, to be held in Chicago, at any special, vacation, or

general term thereof, for judgment against the lands, lots and
parcels of land, for the amount of taxes, assessments, interest

and costs respectively due thereon ; and he shall give ten days'

notice of his intended application, before the first clay of the said

term of the said court, briefly specifying the nature of the respect-

ive warrants upon which such application is to be made, and re-

questing all persons interested therein to attend at such term

;

and the advertisement so published shall be deemed and taken

to be sufficient and legal notice, both of the aforesaid intended
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application by the collector to said court for judgment, and a

refusal and demand to pay the said taxes and assessments."

The act then provides for the rendition of judgment, the process

under which the sale shall be made, and the notice of sale. The
87th section, p. 911, repeals all parts of the act of which it is

amendatory, and the several acts amending the same, as are

inconsistent with or repugnant to the provisions of this act, but

leaves all acts and parts of acts not inconsistent therewith in

full force.

These seem to be the only legislative enactments necessary to

be considered in the determination of tlie questions presented

by this record. Since the determination of the case of Rex
V. Croke, 1 Cowper, 30, the rule has been recognized and uni-

formly adhered to, that a special authority delegated by legis-

lative enactment to particular persons, or summary proceedings

without personal service, to take away a man's property and
estate against his consent, must be strictly pursued, and it must
so appear on the face of the proceedings. This court has

adopted and acted upon this rule, and it is believed every

State in the Union has done the same in sale of lands for taxes,

and in appropriating private property for public uses. This

rule is so uniform and familiar, that it would be useless to quote

authorities in its support. To give the court jurisdiction the

authority must be strictly pursued, and a failure to do so renders

the whole proceeding void. The statute alone confers the au-

thority, and the mode it prescribes can alone be adopted. Then,
did the statute authorize this proceeding ? The amendatory act

of the city charter of 1857 was in force when the assessment

was made and confirmed, and when the warrant was issued, and
for several months after its return day. Colby, under that act,

had the undoubted right to return this warrant and procure an
order of sale from the common council at any time before the

passage of the act of February, 1857. That act provided that

there should, after its passage, be but one collector and his as-

sistants, and that he should apply to any court of general juris-

diction in the city for an order of sale of lands, etc., for the

payment of taxes and assessments that remained due and un-

paid on the first Tuesday in January. By this act, no power
was conferred on special collectors to make the application.

This act had also repealed all former acts which were incon-

sistent with its provisions. The application by any other per-

son than the collector, or an order made by any authority other

than a court of general jurisdiction, was inconsistent with its

provisions. This was an assessment which was due on the first

Tuesday in January and was clearly embraced in its provisions,

and the collector alone had the right to apply to the Cook
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County Court of Common Pleas for an order of sale. No such

power had been conferred on this special collector, nor is there

in the act any clause which saves this assessment from its pro-

visions, and the proceedings for their collection out of the real

estate upon which they are assessed must be the same as in

other cases.

It was urged that the passage of the act of February, 1857,
did not aflect the collection of this assessment, because the

officer had commenced execution. As a general proposition, it

is true that when an officer commences to execute a fi. fa. by a

levy, he may complete it, notwithstanding the writ may have
died or his office have expired before its completion. But in

this case the writ only commanded him to levy goods and chat-

tels. Had he, under it, while it was alive, levied upon goods
and chattels, he could have completed the execution by their

sale, even after the death of his writ or the expiration of his

office. But this writ did not authorize him to levy or sell these

lands, and if it had, the command would have been void for

want of such power in the common council. There was no
judgment against the lands—no order of sale, and he could do
no act affecting them without an order from the common council,

made after the return of the first warrant issued. The levy

and confirmation of the assessment became a lien on these

lands, but nothing more. It might as well be insisted that the

sheriff, who receives a Ji. fa. and fails to levy before the return

day, and while he is in office, has commenced execution, and
has a right to complete it after the return day, and after his

office has expired. His power to act ceased with the repeal of

the law under which he obtained his warrant. The other ques-

tions involved in this case have been discussed in the case of

the Cit?/ of Ottaiva v. Macij el al.., at the present term of this

court, and it is deemed unnecessary to again discuss them here.

Upon this record we are unable to discover any error, and the

judgment of the court below should be affirmed.

Judgryient aff/nned.

Truman B. Gorton, Plaintiff in Error, z^. William Frizzell,

Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO ROCK ISLAND.

An affidavit to hold to bail must show that the defendant has refused to surrender
his estate, or has been guilty of fraud.

An affidavit before a justice of the peace, which states that a defendant " withholds
his money or secretes his property from the officer so that the debt cannot be
levied," is insufficient to authorize the arrest of the debtor.
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When a capias recites such an affidavit as its foundation, an officer who executes

it will be a trespasser; he cannot justify under a void writ.

In an action against a sheriff for the escape of a party arrested under such a pro-

cess, the court should instruct the jury that it is void, or should exclude it from
the jurjr altogether.

This is an action of debt for an escape, commenced by the

defendant in error against the plaintiff in error, in the Rock
Island Circuit Court.

The summons and declaration claim $102 debt, and $200
damages.

The declaration avers that the plaintiff, on the 10th of July,

1855, before E. R. Bean, J. P. of Rock Island county, recovered

a judgment against James Bowie, for $102 and the plaintiff's

costs ; that on the 20th of July, 1855, the plaintiff sued out a

capias ad satisfaciendum upon the judgment, which was delivered

to a constable, by virtue of which writ he arrested James Bowie
and conveyed him to the common jail, where he delivered

Bowie to the defendant, Gorton, who was sheriff of the county

;

that the defendant received and detained Bowie by virtue of the

writ ; and afterwards, without the leave and license and against

the will of the plaintiff", the said Bowie escaped and was per-

mitted to go at large by the defendant, the said judgment,
interest and costs being wholly unpaid.

The second count is the same, except that it avers that the

ca. sa. was delivered by the justice of the peace, to the defend-

ant, Gorton, for execution, and that he arrested Bowie.
The defendant filed his pleas. First, nil debet; second, that

the ca. sa. was null and void, and not sufficient to justify the

defendant in detaining Bowie.
On these pleas issue was joined.

At the June term of the Rock Island Circuit Court, A. D.
1856, Deuey, Judge, presiding, the cause was tried before a jury.

The plaintiff offered a paper in evidence, which reads as

follows, to wit

:

STATE OF ILLINOIS, )

EOCK ISLAND CO. )
'

I do solemnly swear that I do verily believe James Bowie to be able to pay

$10L66, the amount of a judgment, costs and interest recovered by me on the 10th

day of July, 1855, before E. R. Bean, J. P., and that he withholds his money or

secretes his property from the officer, so that the debt cannot be levied.

WM. FRIZZELL.
Subscribed and sworn to before me, this 20th )

day of July, 1855. E. R. Bean, /. P.

STATE OF ILLINOIS,
' S9KOCK ISLAND CO.

The People of the State of Illinois to any Constable of said Count//, Greeting :

Wha-eas, Wm. Frizzell recovered a judgment against James Bowie, before E.
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R. Bean, a justice of the peace, on the 10th day of July, 1855, which judgment,

cost and interest, amounts to $101.66, and whereas has this day made oath before

me, E. R. Bean, a justice of the peace for said Rock Island county, as follows, to

wit: That he does verily believe James Bowie to be able to pay SlOl.66, the

amount of a judgment, costs and interest recovered by Wm. Frizzell on the lOth

day of July, 1855, before E. R. Bean, a justice of the peace, and that he withholds

his money or secretes his property from the officer, so that the debt cannot be

levied. You are therefore hereby commanded to arrest the said James Bowie, and

him convey to the common jail of said county, and the sheriff or jailor is com-

manded to receive and safely keep him in said jail till he pay the debt or be dis-

charged by due course of law.

Given under my hand and seal this day of July, A. T). 1855.

"e. R. BEAN, J. P. [seal.]

To the introduction of this paper the defendant objected,

because the same was invalid and void as a writ of ca. sa.

The court gave, on behalf of the plaintiff, the following

instructions, to which the defendant excepted :

1. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the judgment
was obtained by the plaintiff against James Bowie, and a capias

ad satisfaciendum was issued thereon as alleged in the declara-

tion in this cause, that he was arrested on such capias^ and
committed to the custody of the jailor of Rock Island county,

who was then and there the jailor and deputy of the defendant,

and that afterwards said jailor and deputy voluntarily permitted

said Bowie to go at large, then the plaintiff is entitled to

recover against the defendant in this cause, and the measure of

damages is, etc,

2. The permitting a person who is committed to jail to go
out of jail, and at large, is an escape within the meaning of the

law in such a case as the one under consideration.

The defendant asked the court to give the following instruc-

tions, which were refused, and the defendant excepted,

3. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the said James
Bowie was committed to Ezra M, Beardsly, the jailor of Rock
Island county, and was permitted by the said Beardsly to escape

and go at large, without the knowledge or consent of the

defendant, and that the act of Beardsly was not confirmed

afterwards by the defendant, and that the defendant had no
other or further connection with said escape, then they will find

for the defendant.

4. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the csb. sa. by
which Bowie was arrested and committed to jail was void, then

they will find for the defendant, and they are further instructed

that the ca. sa. offered in evidence in this case, is void.

The jury returned a verdict for the plaintiff of the sum of
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one hundred and two dollars and ninety-one cents, debt, and
five dollars and sixty-six cents, damages.

The defendant moved for a new trial, which motion was
overruled.

The defendant also moved in arrest of judgment, because

there is no sufficient cause of action shown by the declaration,

but it discloses the fact that the pretended judgment on which

the ca. sa. issued was void for want of jurisdiction in the

justice of the peace, and because the verdict finds more for the

plaintiff than he can have jadgment for. Which motion was
overruled.

The court entered judgment for the plaintiff below.

The case was brought by the defendant below to this court

by writ of error.

Wilkinson & Pleasants, and Goudy & Judd, for Plaintiff"

in Error.

N. H. Purple, for Defendant in Error.

Breese, J. This was an action of debt, brought by the de-

fendant in error against the plaintiff" in error, sheriff^ of Rock
Island county, for an escape.

The declaration contains two counts ; the first avers that the

plaintiff, on the tenth of July, 1855, before a justice of the

peace of Rock Island county, recovered a judgment against one

James Bowie, for one hundred and two dollars and costs ; and
that on the 20th July, he sued out a capias ad satisfaciendinn

upon the judgment, which was delivered to a constable of that

county, on which he arrested Bowie and conveyed him to the

common jail, and delivered him to Gorton, who was sheriff" of

the county ; that the defendant received and detained Bowie by
virtue of the writ, and afterwards, without the leave or license

and against the will of the plaintiff", Bowie escaped and was
permitted to go at large by the defendant, the judgment, in-

terest and costs being wholly unpaid.

The second count is substantially the same, averring that the

ca. sa. was delivered by the justice of the peace to Gorton for

execution, and that he arrested Bowie.

The defendant pleaded nil debet, and that the ca. sa. was
null and void and not sufficient to justify the defendant in de-

taining Bowie, and issues were joined. Xfi. fa. had been issued

and returned nulla bona.

The controversy grows out of this second plea, though other

pleas were filed, not necessary to be noticed.
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It was upon this affidavit the ca. sa. issued :
" State of Illi-

nois, Rock Island county, ss : I do solemly swear that I do
verily believe James Bowie to be able to pay $101.66, the

amount of a judgment, costs and interest, recovered by me on
the tenth day of July, 1855, before E. R. Bean, Esq., J. P.,

and that he withholds his money or secretes his property from
the officers, so that the debt cannot be levied. Wm. Frizzell."

And this was the capias which issued on this affidavit

:

" .^tate of Illinois, Rock Island Co. The people of the State

of Illinois to any constable of said county, greeting

:

" Whereas William Frizzell recovered a judgment against

James Bowie before E. R. Bean, a justice of the peace, on the

10th day of July, 1855, which judgment, cost and interest,

amounts to $101.66 ; and whereas has this day made oath

before me, E. R. Bean, a justice of the peace for said Rock
Island county, as follows, to wit : That he does verily believe

James Bowie to be able to pay $101.66, the amount of a judg-

ment, costs and interest, recovered by Wm. Frizzell, on the tenth

day of July, 1855, before E. R. Bean, a justice of the peace,

and that he withholds his money or secretes his property from
the officer, so that the debt cannot be levied.

" You are therefore commanded to arrest the said James
Bowie, and him convey to the common jail of said county, and
the sheriff or jailor is commanded to receive and safely keep
him in said jail till he pay the debt or be discharged by due

course of law. Given under my hand," etc.

The defendant objected to the introduction of this writ, but

the court overruled the objection, and the defendant excepted. •

The fourth instruction asked by the defendant, based upon
the writ, was this :

"If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the ca. sa.. by
which Bowie was arrested and committed to jail, was void, then

they will find for the defendant, and they are further instructed

that the ca. sa. offered in evidence in this case, is void."

In conformity with the decision by this court, c.x parte Jesse

N. Smith, 18 111. R. 347, this instruction should have been
given, or rather the last branch of it, the jury having no right

to pass upon the legality of the process. The court, in the

first place, when objection was made to its going to the jury,

should have excluded it, and when i-equested, should have told

the jury that it was a void process.

Being void, the defendant could not have justified under it in

an action against him for false imprisonment. The sheriff had
notice by the recital of the affidavit set out in the writ, that the

justice of the peace had no jurisdiction or power to issue it, and
that he could not execute it without being a trespasser. An
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officer cannot iustify under a void writ. Brother and January
V. Cannon, 1 Scam. R. 200 ; McDonald v. Wilkie, 13 111. R.
22 ; Barnes v. Barber, 1 Gilm. R. 401.

The case ea; parte Smith determines that an affidavit to hold

to bail must show, by facts stated and circumstances detailed,

what the constitution requires, that is, either that the defendant

has refused to surrender his estate for the benefit of his creditors

as required by law, or he must, by the facts stated, raise a

strong presumption that the defendant has been guilty of a
fraud. Neither of which is shown by the affidavit and ca. sa.

in this case.

There is no averment in the affidavit that the defendant had
money which could be appropriated to this debt. It may have
been held to be appropriated to another debt. Nor is there

any averment that the defendant had any property, or that such

as he may have had, was not exempt from execution. And
besides, the affidavit is in the alternative, and does not set forth

the circumstances on which the presumption of fraud can be
raised.

The judgment is reversed and the cause remanded.
Judgment reversed.

The Town of South Ottawa, Plaintiff in Error, v. Amasa
Foster, use, etc.. Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO LA SALLE COUNTY COURT.

A court on overruling a demurrer, if the party pleading it does not ask to plead
over, may give judgment against the defendant and call a jury to assess the dam-
ages.

On an inquest of damages, a defendant is not permitted to introduce a substantive

defense. He may cross-examine a witness of tlie plaintiff to overthrow a direct

examination, hut nothing further. He may also introduce witnesses to reduce

the amount of the recovery. If the inquest is taken in open court, he may ask
for instructions.

This was an action on the case, brought in the County Court

of La Salle county, by Foster, for the use of Whipple, against

the town of South Ottawa, to recover damages for a team and
wagon havino- fallen off of an embankment at the end of the

Coval Creek bridge, in said town. The declaration is in the

usual form in an action on the case, alleging that it was the

duty of the town to keep the embankment in repair, and that,

by reason of a neglect of that duty, the team and wagon were
precipitated down the embankment and injured, and $300 dam-
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ages were claimed. The declaration was filed to the September

term of the court, 1857.

The town filed a demurrer to the declaration, which, after

argument, was overruled by the court, and the town abided by

the demurrer.

On the inquest of damages, the defendant (the town) offered

proof tending to affect the credibility of a witness introduced

by Foster, and also tending to defeat the plaintiff's cause of

action, and in that connection, the court instructed the jury,

" that they could not consider the evidence thus offered as tend-

ing to defeat the plaintiff's cause of action, but that they might
consider it in any point of view in which they might think it

tended to induce the jury to place more or less reliance on the

witness' credibility." The defendant objected to tlie giving

of said instruction, and the court overruled the objection.

The plaiutifi" offered evidence tending to prove that the plain-

tiff was the owner of a pair of horses and wagon, worth from

^200 to $300, which were being driven down the hill on to the

bridge embankment, after dark, with a heavy load, the hill was
icy, and one of the horses fell, and thereupon the team and
wagon were precipitated over the embankment, and one horse

killed, and the other so badly injured that he was worthless, .

and the wagon and harness were also injured, and that the

damage was from $200 to $300.
The defendant introduced a witness and asked him, "whether

or not, in his opinion, it was prudent for any person, at that

time after dark, to go down that hill with a loaded wagon with-

out having both hind wheels locked." The plaintiff objected

to the question, and the court sustained the objection.

The defendant then called another witness and asked him,
" whether or not Foster (the plaintiff") had stated to him (the

witness) that the cause of the accident was the breaking of the

lock-chain." The plaintiff objected, and the court sustained

the objection.

At the instance of the plaintiff, the court instructed the jury,

that, " It is conceded for the purposes of this case that the

plaintiff is entitled to recover, and the only question before the

jury is, how much damage the plaintiff has sustained by the

injury to his team, wagon and harness, by reason of the same
being precipitated down the hill, and the true measure of dam-
ages is the actual amount said team, wagon and harness were
reduced in value thereby, not exceeding $300." Defendant
excepted to the giving of this instruction.

Defendant asked the court to instruct the jury, " that if they

believed, from the evidence, that the negligence of the plaintiff,

or his servant, contributed to the loss sustained, then the jury

20
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should find only nominal damages for the plaintiff." The court

refused so to instruct.

The jury rendered a verdict for $230. The defendant moved
the court to set aside the inquest ; the court overruled the

motion, and defendant excepted.

The following errors are assigned :

1st. The court erred in overruling defendant's demurrer to

the declaration.

2nd. The court erred in excluding proper testimony offered

by defendant.

3rd. The court erred in giving the instructions that were
given.

4th. The court erred in refusing instructions asked by the

defendant.

5th. The court erred in refusing to set aside the inquest of

damages.

Geay & Wallace, for Plaintiff in Error.

Glover & Cook, and Leland & Leland, for Defendant in

Error.

Breese, J. The demurrer filed in this cause was properly

overruled, for the declaration stated a good cause of action, and
in plain and perspicuous language.

The court, on giving judgment against the demurrer, if the

party pleading it did not ask to withdraw it, and plead to issue,

could, as it did, give judgment against the defendant for the

damages, and cause a jury to be empanneled to assess those

damages.

What consequences flow from this ? By not pleading further,

the demurrer being to the merits and in bar, admitted the cause

of action as stated in the declaration—it admitted all the facts

therein set out, and they could not be controverted on the

inquest.

The right of a defendant on an inquest of damages does not

extend so far as to allow him to introduce a substantive defense.

He may overthrow, by a cross-examination, what has been tes-

tified to by the witness on his direct examination, but he cannot,

by the witnesses called by the plaintiff, establish a substantive

defense. He may also introduce witnesses to reduce the amount
of the recovery, and when taken in open court, ask for instruc-

tions to the jury, and this is the extent and meaning of the

rule laid down in the Chicago and Rock Island Railroad Co. v.

Ward, 16 111. R. 522.
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Under this view, the testimony of the witness Avho was asked

if, in his opinion, it was prudent for any person, at that time,

after dark, to go down that hiil with 'a loaded wagon without

having both hind wheels locked, was properly rejected, as it

introduced a substantive defense ; and so of the testimony of

the other witness—that pointed to the same object. If there

was any defense, it should have been raised by plea.

The instructions given on behalf of plaintiff were correct.

That asked by the defendant was properly refused, because

the plaintiff's negligence was not a matter of inquiry on the

inquest.

The points presented by the demurrrer are disposed of by
reference to the 22nd, 23rd and 24th sections of the law pro-

viding for township organization. There the duty is imposed,

and means provided to discharge the duty.

There being no such errors as are assigned, the judgment of

the court below is affirmed.

Judgment a^rmed.

Henry Frazer, Appellant, v. Richard Gregg et al,

Appellees.

APPEAL FROM PEORIA.
«

In an action of assumpsit for work and labor as a distiller, the plaintiff is entitled

to recover the price fixed by contract, if there was one ; if not, then what his

services were reasonably worth. If the plaintiff was to employ an assistant for

the service of his employers, without a contract on his part to pay such assistant,

then whatever sum is paid said assistant is not to be deducted from the plaintiff.

Whatever understanding may have existed between the plaintiff and his assistant,

as between themselves, would not affect the employers.

The facts of this case are sufficiently presented in the opinion

of the court. There was a verdict and judgment for the plain-

tiff in the Circuit Court.

Grove & McCoy, for Appellant.

N. H. Purple, for Appellees.

Caton, C. J. This action was brought to recover compensa-

tion for services rendered as a distiller. As it does not appear,

from the bill of exceptions, that it contains all the evidence

given upon the trial, we have only to pass upon the correctness

of the instructions given and refused.
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For the plaintiff the court instructed the jury

:

" 1. That if the jury believe, from the evidence, that the

plaintiff wrought for the defendants as a distiller, and performed
his labor in the same manner as ordinarily practical distillers

do, that he is entitled to recover whatever the defendants

agreed to pay him ; or if tliere was no specific contract, what
his services were reasonably worth.

" 2. That if there was no specific contract that plaintiff was
to pay his assistant, and the jury believe, from the evidence,

that there was an established custom that the assistant should

fee paid by the owners of distilleries, then no deduction is to be
made on account of payments to the assistant.

" 3. That unless the defendants have proved that the plain-

tiff agreed to pay the assistant distiller, he is not liable for his

wages, and payments to him should not be deducted from the

plaintiff' 's claim."

These instructions assert principles of law so familiar, that

we hardly know how to discuss them. The plaintiff was cer-

taiulj^ entitled to recover compensation for his services accord-

ing to the terms stipulated in the express contract, if one was
made ; or, if there was none, then what his services were reason-

ably worth. As to the two last instructions quoted, if there

was no contract, either expressed or implied, that the plaintiff

should pay the assistant, it would be strange indeed if the

plaintiff should be charged with money paid to the assistant by
the defendants for services rendered to them. The instructions

were right.

Tke defendants asked the court to instruct the jury :
" If the

jury believe, from the evidence, that the defendants made pay-

ments to Freeman, by consent or at the direction of the plaintiff,

the jury should allow the defendants the amount of such pay-

ments," which the court gave, adding the words, " made on
account of the plaintiff^ The defendants excepted to this

addition. If the payments were not made on account of the

plaintiff, it is difficult to conceive why he should be charged
with such payments. The assistant worked for the defendants,

under the plaintiff as principal or head distiller, and it may
have been very properly his place to direct payments to be
made to him, as his subordinate in the service of the defendants.

The whole question depended on the inquiry, whether by the

contract, expressed or implied, between the parties, the plaintiff

was to employ the assistant and pay him for his services, and
then charge the defendants with the services of the assistant, or

whether the defendants were to pay the assistant themselves.

The principle involved in this question is so manifest to the
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most common comprehension that we cannot doubt that the jury

fully understood it. The only real question was one of fact.

Tlie court also refused to give, for the defendants, the fol-

lowing :

" If the jury believe, from the evidence, that Freeman and
plaintiff were to share their profits while they were working for

the defendants, this would constitute the plaintiff and Freeman
partners, and, in that case, the plaintiff cannot recover any
amount against the defendants in this action.

" There is no legal evidence before the jury of plaintiff sell-

ing or delivering malt to the defendants."

To understand the first of these instructions, we must remem-
ber the evidence to which it was intended it should apply.

This evidence tended to prove that the plaintiff had agreed to

run the defendants' distillery at so much per bushel, and was to

pay his own assistant, and that he employed Freeman as such

assistant, and, as a compensation for liis services, was to give

him one half he made by running the distillery. This is the

most that any of the evidence tended to prove towards a part-

nership between the plaintiff and Freeman, "Whatever this

might be, as between themselves, it was nothing as to the de-

fendants. They could not be prejudiced by any such arrange-

ment, nor could they take advantage of it. As to the defendants,

at least, there was no partnership ; and the instruction was
properly refused. We do not know what the whole of the evi-

dence before the jury was, so that it is unnecessary for us now
to inquire whether the bill of exceptions contains any evidence

of the sale of malt, or not. In no event are we authorized to

say that the last instruction was improperly refused.

The judgment must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

John Shirk, Appellant, v. Oliver Trainer, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM JO DAVIESS.

Where a suit is pending before a justice of the peace, arbitrators may be chosen,
and a judgment rendered upon their award ; but unless a suit is pending, a
justice cannot acquire jurisdiction. Because a justice of the peace prepares a
submission to arbitrators, tlie Circuit Court does not thereby get jurisdiction
of the controversy by an appeal.
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This was an appeal from the Jo Daviess Circuit Court. The
cause was tried before Sheldon, Judge, and a jury, at December
terra, 1857, of the said court.

Leland &, Leland, for Appellant.

W. H. L. Wallace, for Appellee.

Walker, J. It appears from the record in this case, that

the parties went before a justice of the peace of Jo Daviess

county, and selected three arbitrators, and the justice drew for

them the agreement of submission, swore the arbitrators and
witnesses, at, their request. The arbitrators heard the evidence,

and awarded that there was due from Shirk to Trainer the sum
of fifty-five dollars, and that Shirk pay the same. That Shirk

prayed an appeal to the Circuit Court, which was granted. It

also appears that when the arbitrators were selected, no suit

was pending between the parties before the justice. The cause

was tried on the award in the Jo Daviess Circuit Court, by the

court and a jury, at the March term, 1857, which resulted in a

verdict in favor of Trainer for fifty-five dollars. Shirk entered

a motion for a new trial, and also in arrest of judgment, which
were overruled, and a judgment rendered on the verdict, from
which defendant appealed to this court.

The only question which we deem necessary to determine is,

whether the Circuit Court had jurisdiction to try this cause and
render the judgment.

The 43rd sec, 59th chap. R. S. 1845, p. 321, provides:
" That, in all cases, the parties to a suit before a justice of the

peace shall have ihe privilege of referring the difference between
them to arbitrators, mutually chosen by them, who shall exam-
ine the matter in controversy, and make out their award thereon

in writing, and deliver the same to the justice, who shall enter

the said award on his docket, and give judgment according

thereto." It will be perceived from this provision of the stat-

ute, that to authorize the selection of arbitrators, and the ren-

dition of a judgment on their award, there should be a suit

pending before the justice. The justice of the peace could
acquire jurisdiction to render a judgment on an award in no
other way. In this case, there was no such suit pending, nor
was there any judgment rendered on the award by the justice

of the peace. The statute allowing appeals from justices of the

peace to the Circuit Court only authorizes them to be prosecuted

from judgments. There is no authority given to appeal from
the award of arbitrators ; and the Circuit Court can only derive

jurisdiction to review a decision of an inferior court by appeal



APRIL TERM, 1858. 303

Brokaw et al. v. Kelsey.

or certiorari, and has no power to review the decision of arbi-

trators by either of these modes. The Circuit Court acquired

no jurisdiction of the subject matter by the service of its pro-

cess, as in case of an appeal. The only mode by which it could

do so was by an original proceeding, by an appropriate action

on the award or submission, or by the parties voluntarily enter-

ing their appearance, and consenting that the court should try

the cause. The Circuit Court did not acquire jurisdiction in

either of these modes. It was the duty of the court, on discov-

ering that the justice of the peace had no jurisdiction of the

subject matter at any stage of the proceeding, to have dismissed

the case. Allen v. Belchef, 3 Gilm. R. 596.

If the party has any remedy in this case, it is by action on

the submission or the award of the arbitrators, and he must be

left to seek it in that mode.
The Circuit Court erred in rendering the judgment in this

case, and it must be reversed.

Judgment reversed.

Isaac Brokaw ct al, Appellants, v. Charles L. Kelsey,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM BUREAU.

A plea which avers payment of a note by means of a deed of trust given to secure

its payment, is bad.

A plea which avers that the defendant is only the security in the note, and that he

received no consideration for his suretyship, is bad.

The opinion of the court gives a statement of this case.

J. S. Eckels, for Appellants.

M. T. Peters, for Appellee.

Breese, J. This is an action of assumpsit, on a promissory
note made by the defendants to one A. A. Webber, and by him
assigned to the plaintiff. The declaration is in the usual form,

and contains two special counts on the note, and the common
money counts. A demurrer by defendants was overruled,

whereupon they filed five special pleas, to which several demur-
rers were sustained, and judgment on the demurrer for the

plaintiff for his damages, and an appeal taken to this court.
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The questions arise on the sufficiency of these pleas, each and
all of them.

The first and second pleas, it will be seen, besides being inar-

tificially drawn, and containing much argumentative matter,

seek to establish payment of the note by the execution of a deed
of trust to Webber by Isaac Brokaw, to secure its payment.

It is very plain this is not a payment in fact or in law. It is

the usual security on a loan of money ; it is not satisfaction of

a debt due, but security merely.

The third plea is liable to the same objections, and to the

additional one, that it sets up a contract void by the statute of

Frauds, and is argumentative, unintelligible, and not good in

form or substance.

The fourth plea sets up that A. S. Brokaw is only the secu-

rity in the note, and that he received no consideration for his

suretyship. This is immaterial. None need be shown.

The last plea does not show in what the fraud and misrepre-

sentation consisted, and is as defective as the others, and they

are all liable to the objections pointed out.

The judgment is affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Matthias Stone et al, Appellants, v. David R. Gardner,

ei al, Appellees.

APPEAL FROM BOONE COUNTY COURT.

The clerk of tlie Circuit Court is not the proper person with whom to deposit

money for the redemption of land sold under execution.

A judgment creditor intending to redeem land sold under execution against his

debtor, should at the same time deliver the sheriff an execution on his judgment.

A court of equity has not power to dispense with the plain requirements of a

statute.

Money to redeem land sold under execution may be paid to a deputy sheriff, or to

the administrator of a sheriff who is dead, or it may be paid to the purchaser of

the land.

David R. Gardner, on the 5th of May, 1857, filed his bill of

complaint against the appellants and Orville S. Stevens, charg-

ing, that on the 26th of July, 1855, the Stones recovered judg-

ment against him before a justice of the peace, on a note due

May 1st, 1855, for $95.50 and costs, from which he appealed

to the Boone County Court, on which, at December term, 1855,

a judgment was rendered for $107.18 and costs. December

19, 1855, execution issued to Boone county, and levied by the
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sheriff, H. R. Wilson, on W. hf. S. E. qr. Sec. 26, T. 44, R. 3

E., on 2nd of February, 1856, returned satisfied by sale of land

to M. and M. Stone. That a sheriffs' certificate filed, showing

a sale of said land to said Stones on the 26th of January, 1856,

for $122.19. That on 26th of January, 1857, at 10 A. M.,

Gardner deposited with Whitney $134.40, for the redemption

of said land from said sale, for the said M. and M. Stone. That
they were then non-residents of the State ; that Daniel T. Oiney

then was or claimed to be their agent, and was notified by said

Whitney that the money had so been deposited, but that he,

Olney, acting as such agent, refused to receive it ; that upon
this he applied to R. D. Stanton, an attorney, to pursue some
method by which he could pay up amount due and obtain release

of land, and by his advice confessed a judgment in that court

in favor of Martin Y. Gilbert, on the 21st of February, 1857
;

that Stanton was taken ill, and he, in ignorance of the proper

mode, as the agent of Gilbert, on the 26th of April, 1857, de-

posited with Tisdell, the sheriff of Boone county, $140 for

redemption, of which Olney was notified ; that Olney refused to

receive it, saying no execution was in the hands of the sheriff

prior to the expiration of fifteen months from sale ; that he

afterwards called on Olney and offered to pay him considerably

more than the redemption money ($50 more), but he refused to

accept it ; that he had conveyed the premises by warranty deed
to Orville S. Stevens, June 9, 1856 ; lands worth $1,600 ; offers

to pay the amount due when and where the court may order
;

that said certificate is in the hands of M. and M. Stone, but he
is fearful they will assign it and procure a deed from sheriff.

Answer under oath waived. Prays a preliminary injunction

to restrain the assignment of certificate, and the sheriff from
making a deed ; that upon payment of amount due M. and M.
Stone, either on the 26th of January, 1857, or 24th of April,

1857, they or their assigns might be ordered to satisfy said cer-

tificate of sale for the benefit of complainant, or of Stevens, or

of Gilbert, and if they should refuse, that the judgment and all

subsequent proceedings might be set aside. Bill sworn to and
injunction allowed by the judge.

May 5, 1856. Summons issued against M. and M. Stone,

Olney, Tisdell, Gilbert and Stevens. No return to the sum-
mons.

Injunction, containing a summons, issued against M. and M.
Stone and Olney. Served on Olney alone.

June 1, 1857. Olney's answer filed. Sets up that the sale of

said land was in the mode and manner authorized by law ; that

the same has not been redeemed ; that the title by virtue thereof

has become divested out of said Gardner and his grantee, and
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vested in the purchasers at the sale, or their assignees, and they

are entitled to a deed. Denies all fraud, etc.

June 1, 1857. M. and M. Stone answer. Admit the recov-

ery of judgment as charged in bill, being for note, interest, and
ten per cent, damages for delay ; that the defendant was called

upon in person by the sheriff for payment of the execution, and
though able to pay, he took advantage of the law's delay, and
turned out to the sheriff the said land for him to levy upon and
sell ; that he knew the time and place of sale and allowed his

land to be sold, and that if he has failed to redeem according

to law, it is his own laches ; that they resided in Milwaukee,
"within eight hours' ride by railroad from Belvidere, the county

seat of Boone county, and such, their residence, well known to

the complainant, and no reason exists why he did not come to

them and pay the money ; that Olney resided in Belvidere, and
deny conferring any authority upon him to waive their rights

;

deny that the lands were ever redeemed according to law
;

deny that they did any act depriving him of his rights, and if

Gardner has lost his title, it is by his own gross laches and dis-

position to take advantage of the law's delay ; deny that there

was any consideration for Gilbert's judgment, and it was in-

tended to defraud them ; deny that Gilbert ever paid any
money to redeem the land, other than the money of Gardner

;

insist that Gilbert's rights are adverse to the complainant, and
he should institute proceedings to enforce them and not com-
plainant, and demur to all that part of the bill ; insist that the

money, if ever paid into the hands of Whitney, was afterwards

voluntarily withdrawn by Gardner, and he elected to treat that

as a nullity, and to redeem the same under cover of a judgment
creditor, and having so elected, he is now stopped from setting

up or insisting upon any rights thereunder, and insist upon this

as a bar to relief.

It was admitted by the parties that Wilson, the sheriff who
made the sale, died the 20th of July, 1856 ; and letters of

administration were granted on his estate the 8th of August,

1856, to Olive A. Wilson and R. A. Blanchard.

After the cause, the case was argued and submitted to the

court, and taken under advisement.

The complainant's counsel having verbally notified the defend-

ants' counsel, since the cause was submitted, that he intended

to file amendments to the bill, now produced an amendment,
and offered to file the same under leave of the court, to which
defendants objected ; court, after argument, allowed amendment
to be filed, which is as follows

:

" And your orators further show unto your honor that said
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sale of said land, made by the said H. R. Wilson, sheriff, under
said execution, was invalid in these particulars, because the said

land so sold by him, was, at the time of sale, of the value of

sixteen hundred dollars, largely exceeding the amount of the

said execution, and was susceptible of division to advantage,

but, in fact, was not offered by said sheriff, at said sale, in

smaller parcels, nor was any bid asked for or permitted for a

less amount than the entire eighty acres, but the whole undivided

eighty acres was offered at said sale at first, and bid in by the

plaintiffs in execution."

Answer to amendments, filed same day, denies that the sale

was invalid for reason alleged, that the land is described in

complainant's deed as one entire lot of eighty acres— is used
as a farm— was not susceptible of division to advantage, and
neither admits nor denies that the lands are worth sixteen hun-

dred dollars, or whether the whole eighty acres were, in the

first instance, set up and offered for sale.

General replication to answers to bill and amended bill.

The decree of the court concludes as follows

:

" And it further appearing by said bill of complaint, that said

complainants are ready and willing, and therein and thereby

tender to the said Matthias and Marvin Stone, such sum of

money as may be due upon said sale, and the certificate thereof,

on file in the recorder's office of said county, when and where
this court may order and direct. It is therefore considered,

adjudged and decreed, that the said complainants do, on or

before the 14th day of October next ensuing, tender to the said

Matthias and Marvin Stone, or their agent, Daniel T. Olney, or

solicitor, Lewis W. Pray, the full sum of one hundred and
twenty-two dollars nineteen cents, with interest thereon at ten

per cent, per annum, from the 26th day of January, 1856, until

the day of the date of such tender. And in case the said

Matthias and Marvin Stone shall accept said sum so tendered,

then that they, said Matthias and Marvin Stone, shall release,

and discharge, and acknowledge payment, of the sum expressed
in said sheriff" 's certificate, now on file and recorded in book
number two of sheriff's certificates, page 174, in the recorder's

ofiice of Boone county, and the said sheriff" 's certificates, and all

rights thereunder, shall be deemed null and void. And in case

the said Matthias and Marvin Stone shall refuse to accept said

sum of money, so tendered within said time, that then and in

that case, the sale so as aforesaid made by said Hanson R. Wil-

son, on said 26th day of January, A. D. 1856, and all claims

and rights thereunder, be set aside and held for naught. And
that Fayette B. Hamblin, master of this court, be. and is hereby,
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directed to indorse upon said record of the certificate of said

sale in said book number two, page 174 :
' Tliis sale and cer-

tificate set aside and canceled by decree of the County Court of

Boone county.' And that the same order as to said sale be

entered by the clerk of this court upon his judgment docket.

And that said complainants, before such entry by said master

and clerk, be made, and before the first day of March next, pay
in to the clerk of this court, for the use of said Matthias and
Marvin Stone, or their assigns, the said sum of money so ten-

dered as aforesaid, to be paid out to them when the same shall

be demanded. And it is further ordered that the complainants

pay the costs of this suit."

The decree in this case was ordered by Fullek, Judge of the

County Court of Boone county.

L. W. Pray, and W. T. Burgess, for Plaintiffs in Error.

S. A. HuRLBUT, for Defendants in Error.

Breese, J. This case presents a series of blunders, of which
the defendant here, Gardner, must be the victim.

The sacrifice of a large estate for a small sum of money, is

always to be regretted ; but justice requires that a party shall

suffer for his own laches when without excuse.

Had the defendant here, Gardner, applied at the proper time,

at the earliest practicable moment, to the court whence the exe-

cution issued, to set aside the sale on the ground that the whole

tract was sold when it was susceptible of a just division,—if the

fact was so,—and made proper proof of the fact, the court might

have set it aside, and directed a new execution to issue. But
he did not do so ; he made no effort at relief in this direction,

and turned out the whole tract himself to the sheriff, to sell.

Again, he knew of the sale by the sheriff, and of the amount
necessary to redeem, and the day on wliich his right to redeem
expired. Yet he does nothing but fold his arms in unconcern,

and suffers the day to elapse, and not until January 26th, 1857,

some three weeks or more after the time had expired, does he

consider it necessary to move in the matter.

On that day, he deposits with the clerk of the Circuit Court

an amount large enough to redeem the land ; but the day of

grace had passed, and the clerk had, at no time, any right to

receive the money ; so he can take nothing by that motion.

This money being refused by the purchasers, or their agent,

Olney, on the 24th of February following, Gardner received it

back, he having, on the 21st of February, confessed a judgment
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in favor of one Gilbert, for $404.66, to make Lira a judgment
creditor, so that he might redeem. On the 24th April, Gilbert

paid to the then sherifl", Tisdell, (the sheriff Wilson, who made
the sale, having died,) the amount of the judgment, interest and
costs for which the land was sold, and on the 5th of May follow-

ing, received it back again. On paying this amount to the sher-

iff, to redeem, he did not, as the statute requires, deliver at the

same time to the sheriff an execution on his judgment (R. L.

1845, chap. 57, sec. 14), and of course gained nothing by that

proceeding. On that day, Gardner filed his bill of complaint and
obtained a decree in his favor, to the effect that, on paying the

purchase money, with ten per cent, and costs, the purchasers

should re-convey to him.

We are at a loss to find a single hook on which to hang this

case. We do not know of any power existing in a court of

equity to dispense with the plain requirements of a statute ; it

has been always disclaimed, and the real or supposed hardship

of no case can justify a court in so doing. When a statute has

prescribed a plain rule, free from doubt and ambiguity, it is as

well usurpation in a court of equity as in a court of law, to

adjudge against it ; and for a court of equity to relieve against

its provisions, is the same as to repeal it. Fonblanque Eq.,book

1, chap. 1, sec. 3.

If the sheriff who sold the land was dead, what did it matter

to the judgment debtor ? He knew, or should have known, he
could pay the money to his administrator,''or, as has been held in

the case of McCluskij v. McNeeli/, 3 Gilm. R. 579, to his deputy,

and certainly to the purchaser, R. L. 1845, chap. 57, sec. 13.

He did not choose to do either, but was content to deposit the

amount, in currency, with the clerk, whose right to receive it

was no better than that of the town constable. This right to

redeem is a statutory privilege, and its behests must be obeyed.

From beginning to end, the complainant seems to have been
doomed to blunders, until, from their repetition, he has lost a

valuable property.

Whilst our law allowing redemptions remains as it is, it may
be expected that frequent cases of this kind may occur, the party,

by reason of the smallness of the amount of the judgment, not

being impelled to any great activity. In a country where money
is worth vastly more than the rate allowed a purchaser on re-

demption, it is not at all probable that any person other than

the judgment creditor will be a bidder at such sales, and he only

as the last chance to get security for his debt. Were there no
redemption, and these sales open to fair and free competition,

not below a certain valuation, it is quite probable such cases of
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great hardship would rarely occur, and men's property would
be sold for its real value, or nearly so.

On full consideration of all the allegations and proofs in this

cause, we are of opinion that the bill contains no equity upon
which to base the relief decreed, and that the decree is unwar-
ranted by the facts, and unsupported on correct equitable prin-

ciples. The decree is therefore reversed and the bill dismissed.

Decree reversed.

Henry Scott, Plaintiff in Error, v. William Whitlow,
Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO PEORIA.

A sold a lot of railroad ties to B, who again sold them to C, who confused them
with other ties laid upon a road bed. A notified C that the ties belonged to

him, and C thereupon refused to pay B for them. B then sued C, and obtained

a judgment against him for the value of the ties. A tlien filed his bill, alleging

fraud, etc., in B, and obtained a perpetual injunction against C, restraining him
from paying the judgment in favor of B, and commanding the sheriff to collect it

for the benefit of A : Held, That C should have made this defense at law in the

action brought by B, and that it was not a proper exercise of chancery powers
to interfere with the collection of a judgment, fairly obtained as between the

parties to it.

A court of equity is not always bound to act, even where it has authority.

The defendant below, on the 6th day of April, 1857, filed

his bill for injunction in the clerk's office of the Circuit Court

of Peoria county, alleging that, about the month of August,

1856, he was the owner of about five thousand railroad ties,

which were lying on the bank of the Illinois river, in Schuyler

county ; that he had previously purchased the same of the right-

ful owners, and same had been delivered to him at the place

aforesaid.

That three writs of attachment were sued out from before a

justice of the peace, of Schuyler county, against one William
Pound, and levied upon said ties, upon which attachments some
of the ties were subsequently sold, to satisfy the judgments
obtained in the attachment suits ; that the ties were purchased

by William Gregory, one of the plaintiffs in one of tlie attach-

ment suits ; that said Gregory soon after sold the ties to plain-

tiff, who took the ties to Peoria, and sold them to William H.
Cruger, Charles A. Secor and James Hurry ; that Cruger, Secor

& Hurry put them with other ties, and they could not then be

identified ; that defendant notified Cruger, Secor & Hurry not
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to pay plaintiif for the ties ; that plaintiff brought suit against

Cruger, Secor & Hurry, and recovered judgment for $385.50
and costs, in the County Court of Peoria county, and that exe-

cution was issued upon this judgment against Cruger, Secor &
Hurry, to make the amount of the judgment.

The bill alleges that the judgments before the justice of the

peace were void for want of sufficient affidavit bond and writ

;

that Gregory knew, at the time of the sale, that the ties were
defendant's, and that Scott knew, at the time he purchased the

same of Gregory, that the ties were defendant's ; that Scott has

left the State of Illinois, and that complainant does not know of

any property belonging to plaintiff to make the amount of the

value of the ties. The bill also charges that the plaintiff was
guilty of fraud in purchasing and selling the ties, and that the

constable who made the sale is irresponsible.

The bill prays for injunction against plaintiff, to prevent his

collecting his judgment, and also against Cruger, Secor &
Hurry, to prevent their paying the judgment, and against the

.- sheriff of Peoria county, enjoining him from collecting the

, judgment.

An injunction was granted, as prayed for in the bill, and the

cause was heard before Powell, Judge.

The plaintiff demurred to the l)ill, and the cause was heard
in vacation, and a decree rendered, perpetually enjoining the

plaintiff from collecting the judgment, and decreeing that the

sheriff proceed to collect the same from Cruger, Secor & Hurry,
and pay over the same to the defendant Whitlow, and that

thereupon the said Cruger, Secor & Hurry be. discharged from
said judgment.

Wead & Williamson, for Plaintiff in Error.

H. B. Hopkins, for Defendant in Error.

Caton, C. J. The railroad ties in controversy were seized

by virtue of certain writs of attachment against Pound, and as

his property, were sold to Gregory, one of the plaintiffs in

attachment, who sold them to Scott, and he transported them
to Peoria, and sold them to Cruger, Secor & Co., who mixed
them with other ties, and laid them on their road. Whitlow
notified Cruger, Secor & Co. that the ties belonged to him, and
they thereupon refused to pay Scott for them. Scott then sued
them for the price of the ties, and obtained a judgment against

them. Then Whitlow filed his bill, alleging these facts, and
that the ties were all this time his, and that Scott well knew
this when he bought them of Gregory ; that the whole proceed-
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ing was fraudulent from beginning to end, and that Scott is

irresponsible, and prays an injunction, etc. On the final hear-

ing, the court perpetually enjoined Scott from collecting his

judgment, but directed the sheriif to collect it, and pay the

money over to the complainant.

We think this was carrying the principles of equitable relief

quite too far. Whitlow has really nothing to do with that

judgment of Scott against Cruger, Secor & Co. " He discharged

his duty when he notified them that tlie ties were his, and not

Scott's, and put them in a position to defend themselves against

Scott's action for the price of the ties. That they either

neglected to do, or got beaten in the controversy, if they

attempted it. As between the parties to that action, the ques-

tion is forever settled that the sale was bona fide and conferred

a good title. That is now res adjndicata. The amount of that

judgment certainly belongs to Scott, both in law and equity, if

the defendants then knew of the defense, and failed to make it,

or attempted to make it, and were beaten. Whatever defense

there was to that action, was strictly of a legal character, and
tlien was the time to insist upon it. It does not concern Whit-
low whether or not Cruger, Secor & Co. pay this judgment to

Scott. The payment of the judgment to Scott would, in no
degree, impair their liability to Whitlow, if any has existed.

This is manifestly a bill got up for the benefit of Cruger, Secor

& Co., to give them the benefit of another trial upon the ques-

tions which were and should have been tried in that action.

The bill abounds in allegations of fraud, but, after all, there is

no allegation that the judgment was obtained by fraud. While
fraud is one of the broadest grounds of equity jurisdiction, it

by no means follows that it will take cognizance of and inquire

into every allegation of fraud. We have before remarked, in

another case, that a court of equity is not always bound to act

where it has authority to act ; that although its decrees might
not be void for want of jurisdiction, yet it is not always bound
to exercise its jurisdiction when its aid is invoked. In this

case, although the court had power to make the decree it did,

we do not think it a proper exercise of its chancery powers to

interfere with the collection of a judgment, fairly obtained as

between the parties to it.

The decree must be reversed and the bill dismissed.

Decree reversed.
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Thomas D. Robertson et al, Appellants, r. William P.

Dennis, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM WINNEBAGO.

A party may redeem from sheriffs' sale any one of a number of lots, sold at one
time and separately, to the same purchaser.

The party redeeming, can, at his option, pay either to the officer who sold the

land, or, if he is out of office, to his successor.

The appellants recovered a judgment against the appellee,

at September terra, 1854, of the Winnebago Circuit Court. In

October following, an execution was issued on this judgment,
which was returned satisfied, on the fourteenth day of February,

1855, by the sale of two pieces of land.

At February term, 1857, of the court, a motion was made for

a rule upon the sheriff, requiring him to convey to T. D, Rob-
ertson, one of the plaintiffs, by sheriffs' deed, the two tracts of

land sold under the execution. This motion was denied as to

one tract, and allowed as to the other. The bill of exceptions

shows that defendant appeared by counsel to oppose it as to one
tract of land, and did not oppose it as to the other. That the

plaintiffs read, in support of the motion, an affidavit of Thomas
D. Robertson, one of the plaintiffs, an affidavit of James M.
Wight, plaintiffs' attorney, the entry of the judgment in this

cause, the execution issued on said judgment, the certificate of

levy, and return thereon indorsed, and a certificate of the

sheriff, K. H. Milliiten, who made the sale to Robertson.

Robertson's affidavit shows that he was one of the plaintiffs,

the recovery of the above judgment, the time and amount of

such recovery, and the issue of the above described execution.

That February 14th, 1855, $400 remained due on said execu-

tion, and to make that sura the sherift' of said county levied on
the north-west quarter section 27, township 26, in range 10 east

of fourth principal meridian ; and that part of the north-west

fractional quarter of section 26, in township 44, range 1 east of

third principal meridian, which lies west of Rock river and
north of Kent's creek, all in Winnebago county.

That the tracts were sold by said sheriff' separately, on said

14th day of February, 1855, and both bought in by deponent
for the joint benefit of all the plaintiffs, the first tract for $150,
and the other tract for $250, he being the highest bidder for

said lands.

The duplicate certificates of said sale were immediately made
out by the sheriff, delivered and filed, pursuant to law.

21
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That the whole amount of the purchase price bid for the two
parcels of land, and interest thereon at. the rate of ten percent,

per annum, had not been paid to the deponent, the plaintiffs or

sheriff of said county within one year from the day of sale.

And that said lands had not been redeemed by any owner or

judgment creditor, in pursuance of law ; and insists that the

lands had not been redeemed by any person authorized to redeem
them ; and that deponent was entitled to a sheriffs' deed of

}>oth parcels.

That the defendant, pretending to be entitled to redeem one

tract of the land sold without redeeming the other, on the 14th

or 15th day of February, 1856, deposited with John F. Taylor,

then sheriff of Winnebago county, the sum of $250, and inter-

est thereon at the rate of ten per cent, per annum, which money
was received by sheriff, and was deposited for the purpose of

redeeming the tract of land last above described, defendant

claiming the right to redeem that parcel without redeeming the

other sold at the same time on the same judgment and execution.

That in consequence of such pretended redemption, deponent

was unable to obtain a deed from the sheriff of both parcels of

land, as he was entitled to, and insists that defendant had no
right to redeem one tract without redeeming the other, and that

such pretended redemption was of no force or validity, and that

deponent was entitled to a sheriffs' deed of both parcels.

That the title of the land first above mentioned (being the

land not redeemed,) was doubtful and uncertain, and that the

attempt of the defendant to redeem one tract without redeem-

ing the other would subject the plaintiffs to great wrong and
injustice, and asks for a rule on the sheriff to convey both

parcels.

Wight's affidavit shows that prior to the rendition of judg-

ment in tliis cause, that the first tract of land above described

had been sold and conveyed by defendant to one Hicks, which
land is described as the north-west quarter of section 27, town-

ship 26, range 10 east fourth principal meridian.

That at the time of said sheriffs' sale, said conveyance to said

Hicks had not been recorded, and that defendant at the said

time had in fact no title to the said parcel of land.

J. M. Wight, for Appellants.

J. Marsh, for Appellee.

Breese, J. The thirteenth section of the act relative to

judgments and executions, R. L. 1845, chap. 67, is remedial in
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its character, and must be liberally construed so as to advance
the remedy.

It would be a prodigious hard case, that a debtor who could
raise money enough to redeem a lot with a humble cabin on it,

should not have the privilege of doing so, because, v\-ith the

cabin lot, there was sold at the same time, to the same pur-

chaser, and included in the same certificate, a lot with a fine

mansion upon it.

The true construction of the act will permit a party to redeem
any one of a number of lots, sold at one time and separately,

to the same purchaser ; if not, the lavv^ would fail of its mani-
fest object.

The other objection, that the redemption money was paid to

the sheriff in being, who was not the sheriff who sold the land,

is not tenable. The true meaning of the statute is correctly

given by this court in the case of Elkin v. The People, 3 Scam.
R. 209. The party redeeming can pay the money to the sheriff,

or to the officer who sold the land, even if out of office. He
has his choice to pay to either.

This view is fortified by a consideration of the 14t]i section.

When a judgment creditor offers to redeem, he must '• sue out

an execution upon his judgment, and place it in the hands of the

proper officer, to execute it." This officer is the acting sheriff',

or if he be dead, his deputy, or the coroner. There can be no
other.

It may be that the purchaser under an execution may be left

with a tract on hand, to which the debtor had no good title.

This would be his misfortune, but it was in his power to look into

the title before he purchased. In such cases, the maxim, caveat

emptor, well applies.

We see no ground for the objections taken, and accordingly,

affirm the judgment.

Judgment affirmed.

Mary Moody, Plaintiff in Error, v. The People, Defend-
ants in Error.

ERROR TO RECORDER'S COURT, CHICA(50.

In an indictment for kidnapping, an affidavit for a continuance should show the
particular fact or facts which can be proven by the absent witness, and in what
way those facts are material.
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In such a case, it is not necessary that physical force be used ; it will be sufficient

to show that the mind was operated upon, by falsely excitins the fears, by the

use of threats, or other undue influence, amounting substantially to a coercion

of the will, as a substitute for violence.

In coining to a conclusion in such a case, the jury should take into consideration

the condition of the person kidnapped, her age, education and condition of

mind, and all the circumstances connected with the transaction, as detailed by
the proof.

The judgment for costs is an incident of the judgment. Several defendants,

when convicted, are severally liable for all the costs made by the people in the

trial of their several causes, but not for such costs as are made to procure the

conviction of a co-criminal in the same indictment.

This cause was heard before R. S. Wilson, Recorder, and a

Jury, at November term, 1857, of the Recorder's Court.

The facts of the case are fully stated in the opinion.

Edmunds & Skinner, for Plaintiff in Error.

>G. Haven, District Attorney, for The People.

Walker, J. This was an indictment for kidnapping, in the

vEecorder's Court of Chicago, at the November term, 1857.

The indictment contained two counts. The first count charges

.that Mary Moody, William Bush, Michael Joy and William H.
'Heed, on the 13th day of October, 1857, at the city of Chicago,

• etc., "unlawfully, fraudulently and wickedly, without having

established a claim, according to the laws of the United States,

.forcibly did steal, take and arrest one Christiana Davis," etc.,

" a minor child of one Davis, of said county, city and State,"
"" and her, the said Christiana Davis, did carry, transport and
.convey out of the State of Illinois into another State, to wit,

into the State of Indiana, without the consent of the said

Christiana Davis, and against her will, and without the consent

of the said Davis, the father of the said Christiana Davis."

The second count alleges that Mary Moody, with the other

defendants, on the same day and year, at the same place, " un-

law^fuUy, without having established a claim, according to the

laws of the United States, forcibly did take and arrest one
Christiana Davis, a free white minor child, and her, the said

Christiana Davis, forcibly did carry out of the State of Illinois

into another country, to wit, the province of Canada, without

her consent, and against her will."

The defendant. Moody, filed her affidavit for a continuance,

which is as follows :

" Mary Moody, one of the defendants in the above indictment,

being duly sworn, doth depose and say that she has a good and
substantial defense on the merits of this cause ; that Soper

and Soper, his wife, of London, in the District of Canada
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West, are material witnesses for this deponent on the trial of

this cause, without whose testimony she cannot safely proceed

to trial thereof ; that she expects to prove by said Sopor and
wife (said witnesses) that this deponent is not guilty either of

kidnapping, or aiding or assisting in the kidnajiping, the said

Christiana Davis, and by said indictment said to be kidnapped

;

that said Christiana Davis was aged about fourteen years in

December, 1856 ; and the said Christiana Davis left the city of

Chicago, county of Cook, and also the State of Illinois, and
went through the State of Indiana and Michigan, to London
aforesaid, of her own free will and accord, and that she was
not taken or carried out of this State against her will, or with-

out her consent, and that the said voluntary trip of said Chris-

tiana Davis is the same charged in said indictment, and supposed

to constitute the crime of kidnapping ; that she knows of no
person by whom she can prove the same facts who are not

indicted witli her in this case, or the said Christiana Davis,

who, on the examination before the committing court, denied

the facts ; that this indictment was found at this term of this

court, since which time slie has been unable to obtain the testi-

mony of said witnesses, or their attendance in court ; that the

given names of said witnesses are unknown to deponent ; that

she expects to be able to obtain the testimony of said witnesses

in this cause at the next term of this court. And this applica-

tion is not made for delay, but that justice may be done."

The court overruled the motion, and the defendants were
tried seven days after the indictment was found, by the court

and a jury, which trial resulted in a verdict of guilty. This

defendant entered a motion for a new trial, which was overruled

by the court, and judgment was rendered on the verdict, to

reverse whicli this defendant prosecutes this writ of error.

The first question which we propose to consider, is, whether
the affidavit was sufficient to entitle the defendant to a continu-

ance. When we divest it of its form, and look alone to its

substance, we see that the affiant nowhere states a single fact

which would tend in the slightest degree to establish her inno-

cence. It only states that, by the absent witnesses, she can
prove that she is not guilty, and that the prosecuting witness

left the State voluntarily. Whether the witnesses, of their own
knowledge, can so state, or, from information, can state material

circumstances, is not stated. It is believed that, in our practice,

the affidavit has always specifically stated the particular fact or

facts which can be proven, and in what way they are material,

and that, failing to do so, an affidavit was never held to be

sufficient. Anything short of that degree of certainty would
leave it to the affiant to determine what constitutes a defense,
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and not to the court, as it certainly should. This affidavit was
therefore insufficient.

It was likewise urged that the evidence against defendant

Moody was insufficient to authorize the finding of the jury.

After a careful examination of the evidence in the record, we
are satisfied that it does show, beyond a reasonable doubt, that

she aided and abetted the other defendants in the abduction,

and, by so aiding, she became equally guilty of crime with the

others, who were the active parties in its perpetration, and we
see no reason for disturbing the verdict on that account.

The correctness of the second and third instructions given for

the People is questioned by the assignment of errors ; the

second of which is, that " to constitute the forcible abduction

or stealing of a person within the meaning of the statute, it is

not necessary that virtual physical force or violence be used

upon the person kidnapped. But it will be sufficient, if, to ac-

complish the removal, the mind of the person was operated

upon by the defendants, by falsely exciting the fears, by threats,

fraud or other unlawful or undue influence, amounting substan-

tially to a coercion of the will, so that, if such means had not

been resorted to or employed, it would have required force to

effect the removal." The statute defines kidnapping to be the

forcible abduction or stealing away of a man, woman or child

from his or her own country, and sending or taking him or her

into another. While the letter of the statute requires the em-

ployment of force to complete this crime, it will undoubtedly be

admitted by all that physical force and violence is not necessary

to its completion. Such a literal construction would render

this statutory provision entirely useless. The crime is more
frequently committed by threats and menaces than by the em-

ployment of actual physical force and violence. If the crime

may be committed without actual violence, by menaces, it would
seem that any threats, fraud, or appeal to the fears of the

individual, which subjects the will of the person abducted, and

places such person as fully under the control of the other, as if

actual force were employed, would make the offense as complete

as by the use of force and violence. And this is what this

instruction asserts, and nothing more. We are fortified in this

construction by the construction which has been given to the

British statute defining the crime of rape. That statute re-

quires, to make the crime complete, that the act shall be

forcible, and against the will of the woman violated ; and yet

it has been held that when the woman was stupefied to insensibil-

ity by the use of drugs, and the act then committed, that it was a

rape. Rex v. Camplin, 1 Car. & K. 746, Or when the offense

was committed where the woman yielded her consent by fear of
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death or duress. 1 Hawk. P. C, cap. 41. Or where a phy-

sician, by falsely pretending that the act done was necessary in

a case of medical treatment. 1 Bishop's Crim. Law, 344

;

Wheat. Crim. Law, 442. We are not able to perceive any

reason for distinguishing in the construction of these two stat-

utes.

The third instruction on the part of the People was, that " in

determining the guilt or innocence of the defendants in this

indictment, the jury should take into consideration the condition

of the girl, Christiana Davis—her age, education, and state of

mind at the time, the representations and conduct of the sev-

eral defendants towards her, the effect of those representations

and that conduct upon her, the object of the defendants in effect-

ing her removal from the State, and all the circumstances sur-

rounding the case, as detailed in evidence." This instruction

called the attention of the jury, very properly, we think, to the

age and condition of the prosecuting witness, her intelligence,

the representations of defendants to her, and their conduct and
object in her removal, and left them, from these and all the

other circumstances in the case, to determine the guilt or inno-

cence of the defendants. We are unable to perceive any error

in this instruction.

The only remaining question which we propose to consider,

is, whether the court erred in rendering the judgment which

it did, for the costs of the suit, against this defendant. In

an indictment against two or more, it is generally true that

the charge is several as well as joint ; so that if one is found

guilty, judgment may be rendered against him, although one

or more may be acquitted. And where several persons are

jointly indicted and convicted, they should be sentenced

severally, and the imposition of a joint fine, is erroneous.

The State v. Gai/, 10 Miss. R. 440. It would therefore seem to

follow, that as the judgment for costs is an incident following

the judgment in the cause, it would be erroneous to render a

joint judgment against all the defendants indicted, unless the

trial resulted in a conviction that was joint. The defendants,

when convicted, are severally liable for all the costs made by
the People in procuring their several convictions ; but not for

the costs of each other, or for separate costs made by the

People against their co-defendants. The judgment for costs, in

this case, was against the defendant for all the costs of this pro-

ceeding. A proper construction of this judgment only author-

izes the clerk, we think, to tax the People's costs made in her

conviction, and not any separate costs made by the People in

procuring the conviction of her co-defendants. The case is

entitled, The People v. Mary Moody, impleaded, etc., which
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seems to indicate that the judgment was intended to be several

and against her for only the costs for which she was legally

liable, and we are of the opinion that such is the proper con-

struction of the order. After having carefully examined this

record, we do not feel disposed to disturb the judgment of the

court below, and are of opinion that it should be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Breese, J. I do not concur in this opinion. The continu-

ance should have been allowed on the affidavit, for it states,

substantially, that the defendant could prove by the non-resident

witnesses, that the girl went voluntarily to Canada. If such was
the fact, and we are to take the affidavit as true, the jury could

not have convicted. The trial took place immediately on finding

the indictment, and the defendant should have had a reasonable

time within which to prepare her defense. Speedy justice is

desirable, but not such speed as deprives a party of all chance

to make a defense.

Nor does there appear to me sufficient evidence to connect
her with the real culprits by any overt act, or by advising the

crime.

Stephen F. Gale, Appellant, v. Philip Dean, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM COOK COUNTY. COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

Where a party agreed, without any time being specified, to procure a deed to a

piece of land from another person, and failed to perform, the measure of damages
will be the value of the land at the time the person for whom the title was to be

obtained, was notified that it could not be procured.

Where interviews were had by a third person, witii the contracting parties, in rela-

tion to procuring said deed, the statements made to such third party and by him
communicated to those in interest, may be considered as having been made
directly to them.

On the 7th day of August, 1857, the appellee commenced an

action of assumpsit against the appellant, in the Cook County
Court of Common Pleas. The declaration contained two counts.

The first count set forth in heec verba, the following contract, to

wit:

Chicago, May 17, 1851.

Received of Philip Dean, the sum of seven hundred and fifty dollars, as follows ;

James H. Rees' judgment note, payable in thirty days from May 12, 1851, to the

order of said Dean, and indorsed by him for six hundred dollars, and in cash one

hundred and fifty dollars, being in full for sale of tax certificate on sub-lot 9, of

lots 2, 3 and 4, of block 84, in school section addition to Chicago, the undersigned
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agreeing to obtain a deed by quit-claim or otherwise, for one-half of said sub-lot 9,

of H. L. Tulier, or such other party as may have the title to the half part of said

lot, formerly conveyed to the said H. L. Tulier. STEPHEN F. GALE.

And alleged a demand on the 10th day of April, 1857, upon the

appellant for the deed mentioned in the contract, a readiness on

the part of the appellee to receive the same, and a neglect on
the part of the appellant to make or obtain such deed.

The second count sets out the above contract according to its

legal effect, averring that the appellant was thereby bound to

procure such deed within a reasonable time, which he had neg-

lected to do. To this declaration the plea of the general issue

was interposed and a trial was had by jury, before J. M. Wilson,
Judge.

On the trial it appeared in evidence that the contract set

forth in the declaration, and another agreement between the

parties of the same date, were executed at the same time, both

of which were offered in evidence. The latter agreement was
as follows

:

Memorandum of Agreement, entered into this seventeenth day of May, A.

D. 1851, between Stephen F. Gale, party of the first part, and Philip Dean, party

of the second part, both of the city of Chicago, and State of Illinois. Whereas,

the party of the first part, did, on the 1st day of May, A. D. 1840, purchase at the

city tax sale, sub-lot nine, of lots 2, 3 and 4, in block 84, in the school addition to

Chicago, and whereas, from an examination of the records, and from other infor-

mation obtained, the fee title appears to be held by H. L. Taller and Amos C.

Hamilton. And whereas, the party of the first part, has this day sold to the party

of the second part, his tax certificate on said lot 9, upon the following conditions,

viz. : that the said Amos C. Hamilton or his heirs may have the privilege of re-

deeming, or receiving an assignment from the said Dean, or by quit-claim deed,

one-half part of said sub-lot 9, upon condition that the said Amos C. Hamilton,

or his heirs, pay unto the said Dean, one hundred dollars within six months from

this date. STEPHEN GALE.
PHILIP DEAN.

The appellee moved to strike out the evidence, on the ground
of a variance between the declaration and the proof offered in

support of it, which motion was overruled.

It not only appeared in evidence, but was admitted, that the

appellant, in making the contract, acted in good faith, and did

not act in bad faith in his failure to perform the same, but that

the failure to perform ihe contract on his part arose from his

inability to procure the title.

It appeared in evidence that the appellee demanded a per-

formance of the contract in the winter or spring of 1857, and
that the appellant had never performed the same.

The appellant introduced in evidence a letter from Tulier to
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him, dated May 15, 1851, in which Taller says he is in hopes

soon to have the title papers of the half lot, and that as soon as

he got them he would bring or send them to Chicago, and would
then settle the matter to the appellant's satisfaction.

It also appeared in evidence that the value of one-half of said

sub-lot 9, was, in May, 1851, $650 ; in the fall of 1851, $800
to $900 ; in January or February, 1852, $1,000 ; and in the fall

of 1856, and winter and spring of 1857, $7,500. That the

property was improved in May, 1851, at which time the appellee

entered into possession, and that he had remained in possession

ever since. That said sub-lot was conveyed by tax deed to ap-

pellee in 1851, that the tax title at the time of the sale was
considered worth about $200.

It further appeared in evidence that James H. Rees was
present when the contract was made, and having a desire to see

it carried out, frequently saw the appellant after that time about

procuring a deed from Tuller. That the appellee knew that

Rees frequently talked with appellant about getting such deed,

and that Rees was accustomed to tell the appellee what the ap-

pellant said at these interviews, although Rees had no particular

authority to act for the appellee, and could not say that he acted

at his instance. At one of these interviews, sliortly after the

contract was made, and within six months from that time, the

appellant told Rees that he could not procure the deed from
Tuller ; that Tuller refused to give a deed ; which conversation

Rees shortly after communicated to the appellee.

The appellant asked the court to instruct the jury that the

measure of damages should, under the circumstances, be the

consideration money and interest.

Or, if the court was of opinion that such was not the true

rule of damages, then that the contract was to be performed
within a reasonable time from making it, and the measure of

damages should be the value of the premises after the lapse of

such reasonable time, and interest thereon.

Or if the court was of opinion that neither of these rules

were correct, then that the measure of damages should be the

value of the premises when the appellee had notice that the ap-

pellant could not perform his contract, with interest thereon.

But the court refused to instruct the jury as requested, and in-

structed them that the measure of damages should be the value

of the property when the demand was made in 1857. The jury

found a verdict for the appellee for $7,500.

HoYNE, Miller & Lewis, and Beckwith & Merrick, for Ap-
pellant.

ScATES, McAllister & Jewett, for Appellee.
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Caton, C. J. The court properly decided that there was no
variance between the contract declared on and the one offered

in evidence.

The measure of damages, in this case, was not the value of

the land when the contract was made, but its value at the time

of the breach of that contract. Here no time was specified

when the title from Tuller should be obtained. That portion of

the contract on which the breach is assigned, is in these words

:

'' the undersigned agreeing to obtain a deed by quit-claim, or

otherwise, for one-half of said sub-lot 9, of H. L. Tuller, or such

other party as may have the title to the half part of said lot for-

merly conveyed to said H. L. Tuller." The party did not claim

to have the title himself, nor vras he to make the conveyance.

He agreed to procure the title from another, and without any
specification of time within which it should be done. This gave
to Gale a reasonable time within which to procure the conveyance.

On the one side it was insisted, that the contract was broken
after the expiration of a reasonable time, though both parties

remained passive ; while on the part of Dean it was insisted,

that there could be no breach until he had requested Gale to

perform and he had thereupon failed or refused to do so. We
think neither of these positions is correct. We do not think

that Gale, when he found he could not perform, was absolutely

at the mercy of Dean, for the determination of the time when
his liability should be fixed, and the measure of that liability

determined. We think, after the expiration of a reasonable

time, and after making all reasonable efforts to procure the con-

veyance from Tuller, without avail, that it was the right of Gale
to notify Dean that he could not perform the contract, and thus,

by his own affirmative act, create a breach and determine the time

when the value of the land should be estimated, to establish the

measure of damages which he was bound to pay, for the breach
of the agreement. Until such notice was given, Dean had a

right to believe that the contract would be performed, and to

make improvements and enjoy the premises, in view of that sup-

position ; but when he was notified that Gale could not perform
the contract, by procuring the title, he was no longer at liberty

to act as if it was to be performed, and if he made further im-

provements, or did other acts, on the assumption that it would
be performed, he did them in his own wrong, and could not use

them to enhance his damages. This is in accordance with those

principles of reason and justice which characterize the common
law. We should never so construe a contract as to give one
party an unfair or an unreasonable advantage over another, un-

less such was the manifest intention of the parties at the time it

was made. We cannot presume here that it was the intention
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of either party, at the time the contract was made, in case Gale

should be unable to procure the conveyance from TuUer, that it

should be left entirely to Dean's discretion to postpone the time

at which the value of the property should be taken for the pur-

pose of fixing the measure of his damages, and that Gale should

be obliged to stand by, dumb and powerless to act, and see the

property rising in value, till it had arisen, as in this case, more
than one thousand per cent., and then be obliged to respond in

damages to the full enhanced value of the property. When the

contract was made, both parties knew that it was uncertain

whether it would be possible for Gale to perform or not, and it

is not reasonable to suppose that Gale thought he was receiving,

or that Dean believed he was paying, a consideration adequate

to such a contingent liability, in case it should be impossible for

Gale to perform. It is one of the cherished objects of the law to

maintain a reciprocity between the parties to contracts, wherever
that can be done without doing violence to the language used. It

is just as unreasonable, and there is just as great a want of reci-

procity, in allowing Dean to hold on indefinitely, before fixing

the time for declaring the breach, in case he saw the property

appreciating in value, as there would be in allowing Gale to do the

same thing in case he saw the value of the property depreciating.

A just sense of reciprocity must require that either of the par-

ties, after the lapse of a reasonable time, might declare a breach

of the contract, if not performed ; the one party by demanding
performance and declaring it broken if it is not performed, and
the other party by giving notice that he could not perform.

There was evidence tending to show such a determination and
breach of the agreement by Gale, after the lapse of a reasonable

time to perform, if that had been possible ; and it was admitted

on the trial that Gale had acted in good faith throughout, and it

should have been left to the jury to say whether there had been

such determination and breach by Gale. With a view to this,

his counsel asked the court to instruct the jury as follows :
" If

the jury shall believe, from the evidence, that the witness, James
H. Rees, had interviews with the defendant, at the instance of

the plaintiff, in relation to the procuring of the quit-claim deed
referred to in the contract given in evidence, then the statements

made by the defendant to said Rees, at these interviews, and by
him communicated to the plaintiff, are to be considered by the

jury as having been made by the defendant to the plaintiff; and
if the jury shall believe that the defendant did not act in bad
faith, either in making the contract or in failing to perform the

same, and that the plaintiff, in the manner above stated, was
informed of defendant's inability to procure said quit-claim deed,

then the measure of damages in this case will not exceed the
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value of the premises to be conveyed by said deed, at the time

when such communication was made to the defendant, with inter-

est thereon at six per cent, per annum, to the present time."

This instruction the court refused to give, but, on the contrary,

instructed that the measure of damages was the value of the

land at the time Dean demanded the performance and Gale's

non-compliance with such demand ; to which rulings exceptions

were taken. In this we think the court erred. The judgment
must be reversed and the cause remanded.

Judsrment reversed.

James W. Sheahan ct al, Appellants, v. John Collins,

Appellee.

APPEAL PROM COOK.

In an action for libel, the defendants beincj publishers of a newspaper, cannot show
tliat a similar publication to that complained of had shortly previous appeared
in another newspaper.

The general character of the plaintiff may be shown, but witnesses should not be

permitted to give in detail all the reports in circuh\tion to his prejudice.

The plea of the general issue, admits that the plaintiff was innocent of the charges

against him, of wliich he complains.

A defendant in such a case may show, in mitigation of damages, the general bad
character of the plaintiff, and may show any fact which tends to disprove

malice.

The truth of the libel can only be shown under a plea of justification.

This was an action of libel, commenced by defendant against

the plaintiffs in error, in the Cook County Circuit, was tried at

the November terra thereof, 1857, before Manierre, Judge of

said court, presiding, and a jury.

The libel complained of, was an article published in the

Chicago Daily Times newspaper, of Dec. 24th, 1856, and is as

follows, to wit

:

A EoBBER AT Large.—The hack driver, John Collins, who, as we stated the

other day, was arrested for robbing a countryman named Blanchard, instead of

being held for trial was set at liberty, and is again ready to entrap and rob the first

stranger who is green enough for his pixrposes.

This scoundrel is one of the most adroit thieves and robbers in Chicago. He
has been frequently arrested for crimes, of the commission of which there is no

more doubt that he was guilty, than there is that they were committed
;
yet in

every instance he has managed to escape justice, generally through the agency of

false swearing. Not long ago, when Collins was brought up for stealing a large

number of trunks, although no one entertained a doubt of his guilt, he was set at



326 OTTAWA,

Sheahan et al. v. Collins.

liberty, in consequence of the testimony of a number of witnesses (hackmen) who
swore positively in his favor. Afterwards the same witnesses had the boldness to

admit publicly that they received $50 each for swearing Collins clear. Why they

were not indicted for perjury is more than we can account for.

We do not doubt that the same instrumentality was made use of by Collins in

the present case. He was discharged upon the testimony of hackmen, (whose

names we have not at hand,) who perjured themselves for his benefit. However

astonishing it may appear, this is no uncommon practice among hackmen. With

rare exceptions they are leagued together for purposes of rascality, and scruple not

to resort to any means to screen each other from detection and punishment. The
best advice we can give to strangers, is, have nothing to do with them.

We are not apprised whether Collins still retains his hackman's license.

The defendants below plead the general issue.

Upon the trial of the case below, it was admitted that the

plaintiffs in error, Sheahan and Cameron, were the publishers

and proprietors of the paper in question, and that all of the

defendants were connected with the publication of the alleged

libel.

Upon the trial, one Martin While being called as a witness

for plaintiif below, testified :
" I saw the article in the Times in

regard to Collins ; called his attention to it on a Sunday, in the

Rock Island House. He asked me to go with him to the Times
office to see the editors about it. I went there with Collins ; saw
Mr. Cameron ; no other person was there. Collins asked Cameron
if that was his paper, to which the reply was, yes. He then

showed the. article and asked him to retract it, as it was wrong
and injurious to him, his business and his family. Mr. Cameron
said that Mr. Matteson wrote the article, and if it was wrong,
he would have Mr. Matteson correct it," etc.

Upon the examination of William M. Doug-lass a witness for

the defense, the following questions were put to said witness :

Ques. Were there any reports current prior to December
24th, 1856, in regard to his being generally suspected of theft

and robbery ?

Ans. There were.

Ques. What were those reports ?

Objected to by counsel for plaintiff, and the court sustained

the objection. To which decision of the court, counsel for the

defense excepted.

The same question, with the same objection and ruling of the

court, occur in relation to the testimony of Joseph Kellogg, and
other witnesses.

Upon the examination of C. P. Bradley, a witness for the

defense, the question was asked of him : Do you know of any
reports current in the neighborhood of defendants' residence in
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regard to plaintiff having got himself discharged from the ac-

cusation to which you have referred, by the subornation of

witnesses ?

Objection raised by plaintiff's counsel. Court sustained the

objection, to which decision of the court the defendants objected.

Defendants below, after the introduction of a large number
of witnesses, showing the bad character of the plaintiff in miti-

gation of damages, further offered in evidence an article pub-

lished in another newspaper printed in Chicago, on the day before

the publication of the libel in this suit, that is to say, an article

published in the Chicago Journal, on the 23rd December, 1856,

containing substantially the same facts and charges as published

in said libel of the Times, and further offered to show in con-

nection with said article, that the said charges had become
matter of general suspicion and public rumor against the plain-

tiff', this testimony being offered in mitigation of damages, and

not to establish the truth of the charges contained in the libel.

Plaintiff's counsel objecting, the court ruled out the testimony,

to which ruling of the court the defendants excepted.

The court gave to the jury the following instructions for the

plaintiff below, to the giving of which the defendants excepted :

1. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the defend-

ants published the libel as charged in the declaration, then the

plaintiff is entitled to recover.

2. The evidence offered by tlie defendants in regard to

plaintiff"'s general character, is evidence not in justification of

the alleged libel, but excuse or extenuation, and for the purpose

of diminishing the amount that the plaintiff is entitled to re-

cover. If the plaintiff has proved the publication of the libel

as alleged, then he is entitled to a verdict, and the amount of

that verdict is to be determined by all the evidence in the case.

3. In this case, the defendants, by their plea of not guilty,

admit that the plaintiff' is not guiltij of the charg-e alleged in

the libel, as charged in the declaration ; all the evidence ad-

mitted to the plaintiff's general character, and the existence of

general reports and rumors, was received, not for the purpose

of showing the plaintift''s guilt, Ids innocence being admitted^

hut this evidence was received in excuse and in diminution of

the amount of damages, and for no other purpose.

4. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the libel was
published, as charged, then the plaintiff" is entitled to recover.

The amount of the recovery is to be determined by all the evi-

dence and circumstances proved in the case ; and in determining

such amount, the jury will consider the character of the charge,

the general reputation of the plaintiff at the time of the publi-
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cation complained of, whether the defendants had an opportunity

to retract the charge, whether maliciously made and persisted in,

and whether made as public journalists, and for laudable pur-

poses, and witliout malice, and also the plaintiff's general char-

acter, and all the facts proved in the case having a reference to

this subject.

The jury returned a verdict for plaintiff of $358.
The errors assigned upon the record are—
The refusal of the court to grant a new trial.

The refusal of the court to permit the testimony of Bradley
and other witnesses, as to the character of the reports in gen-

eral circulation affecting the plaintiff' 's character, in mitigation

of damages.

The refusal of the court to permit the defense to show other

newspaper publications to the same purport as the libel, in mit-

igation of damages.

The instructions of the court that by the plea of the general

issue we admitted the innocence of the plaintiff, and that he loas

not guilty of the charge contained in the article, when the only

issue raised upon the pleadings was our own innocence or guilt

in the publication charged against us.

The court erred in assuming the fact by the 4th instruction of

said plaintiff, that an opportunity to retract the charge contained

in the libel had been offered defense by a demand to do so, when
the fact as shown, was, that the demand to retract had been made
of another and different article than the one proven as the libel

before the jury.

Thos. Hoyne. and J. Lyle King, for Appellants.

C. S. Cameron, for Appellee.

Walker, J. It was insisted that the court below erred in

refusing to permit defendants below, to show in evidence, that

a similar publication to the one made by them had appeared in

another newspaper in the city shortly before that published by
them. It seems to be the doctrine that a defendant in an action

for slander or libel may mitigate damages in two ways. First,

by showing the general bad character of the plaintiff, and sec-

ond, by proving any facts which tend to disprove malice, but

which do not tend to prove the truth of the charge. Reginer
V. Cabot, 2 Gilra. R. 140. Its truth can only be shown under a

plea of justification, and hence any evidence tending to show its

truth, would be in violation of the rule. Anything which tends

to show that the plaintiff sustains a general bad character, is
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proper evidence in mitigation, because there can be less injury

inflicted on the man who has a general bad character, than on

one whose general character is good. But it is a general rule,

that the character of either a witness or party cannot be

impeached by special acts, for no man is supposed at all times

to be prepared with the proof to meet every individual act, but

is presumed at all times to be prepared to support his general

character. Witnesses under the rule can only testify to the

general reputation amongst the party's associates, and not of par-

ticular acts, and what particular individuals may have charged.

The republication of a libellous article from another paper is

substantially the same thing as repeating what an individual

may have said of the defendant. It seems, therefore, to follow,

that it could not be admitted to show his general bad character.

Evidence that the plaintiff was suspected by his neighbors of the

act charged, is not admissible in mitigation of damages, under

the general issue. Yourig" v. Burnett, 4 Scam. R. 43. And if

it were offered as tending to establish the truth of the charge, it

was under the rule, equally inadmissible. If admitted, its effect

would tend to produce that impression on the minds of the jury,

and would be to permit the defendant to do that indirectly

which he has no right to do directly.

It was urged that the court erred in not permitting the wit-

ness to testify in detail, what people generally said in regard to

plaintiff being guilty of theft. The witness liad already testi-

fied, that prior to the publication of this article, there were

reports in circulation that plaintiff" below was generally sus-

pected of theft and robbery. And we are at a loss to perceive

upon what grounds the defendants had a right to have these

reports detailed to the jury. It would lead to endless investi-

gation and collateral issues as to what these reports were, who
circulated them, and would tend to consume time, increase

expense and produce confusion, by burthening the case with

immaterial circumstances, where no beneficial result would be

attained. Where it was proven to the jury that the plaintiff"

was generally suspected of being a thief, the evidence was as

complete as it could be by giving the particulars of what each
person said who circulated the rumor. What they said would
not tend to give it additional weight. And both in reason and
from practice it was not properly admissible.

It was urged that the court erred by instructing the jury that

when defendants plead the general issue they admitted the

plaintiff was innocent of the charge. While this is not the lan-

guage of the plea, it is undoubtedly the effect of such a plea.

Rcginer v. Cabot, 2 Gilm. R. 39. That plea denies the act

charged in the declaration only, and the truth or falsehood of

22
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the charge cannot be inquired into under that issue. Its false-

hood stands admitted by the parties ; and the instruction as

given could not have misled the jury, and was not erroneous.

Upon the whole record no error is perceived for which the

judgment should be reversed, and it must therefore be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

William H. W. Cushman, Plaintiff in Error, v. John
Savage, Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO la SALLE.

After a demurrer to a plea in abatement is overruled, it is not regular to grant

leave to reply ; the proper judgment on such a plea is, that the writ be quashed.

All that is necessary to an understanding of this case will be
found stated in the opinion of the court.

A. W. Cavarly, for Plaintiff in Error.

T. L. Dickey, for Defendant in Error.

Breese, J. In this case there was a plea in abatement of the

jurisdiction of the court, the plaintiff residing in La Salle, and
the defendant in the county of Cass. To the plea the plaintiff

demurred, and it was overruled, and the court granted plaintiff

leave to reply.

This was erroneous. After a demurrer to a plea in abatement
has been overruled, it is not regular for the court to grant leave

to reply ; for a judgment for the defendant, on such a plea,

whether it be on an issue of fact or of law, is, that the writ be
quashed. Tidd's Practice, 642 ; 1 Ch. PI. 501 ; Motherell v.

Beavers, 2 Gilm. R. 69 ; McKinney v. Pennoyer et al., 1 Scam.
R. 319 ; Eddy et al. v. Brady, 16 111. R. 396.

The case will be remanded to the Circuit Court of La Salle,

with instructions to abate the writ.

Judgment reversed.
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J. M. Hildreth, Plaintiff in Error, v. Eosell M. Hough
et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO COOK.

A summons issued in October, returnable on the first day of the next term, which
is on the fourth Monday of October next, is a nullity ; the word " next " refers

to the month, and not to Monday; and there being more than one term inter-

vening between the issuing of the writ and the return day, makes it void.

This case is stated at length in the opinion of Mr. Justice

Beeese.

ScAMMON & Fuller, for Plaintiff in Error.

C. B. HosMER, for Defendants in Error.

• Breese, J. This action was commenced by issuing a summons
against the defendant, October 11th, 1855, returnable to the

fourth Monday of October thereafter, which summons is as

follows

:

> ss.
STATE OF ILLINOIS,

COOK COUNTY,

The People of the State of Illinois to Sheriff of said County, Greeting

:

We command you that you summon J. M. Hildreth, if he shall be found in your

county, personally to be and appear before the Circuit Court of Cook county, on

the first day of the next term thereof, to be holden at the court-house, in the city

of Chicago, in said county, on the fourth Monday of October next, to answer unto

Rosell M. Hough, Oramel S. Hough and Charles H. Seaverns, in a plea of tres-

pass on the case, upon promises, to the damage of the plaintiff, as is said, in the

sum of five hundred dollars. And have you then and there this writ, with an

indorsement thereon, in what manner you shall have executed the same.

Witness, Louis D. Hoard, clerk of our said court, and the seal thereof,

[seal.] at the city of Chicago aforesaid, this eleventh day of October, A. D.

1855. L. D. HOARD, Clerk.

And afterwards, on the 3d day of November, A. D. 1855, the

plaintiffs filed their declaration in assumpsit for cattle sold and
delivered, and common counts. Damages, $500.
And upon the 21st day of November, A. D. 1855, no plea

having been filed, the default of the said defendant was then

and there entered, and an order for a writ of inquiry. And
upon the 31st day of March, 1856, damages were assessed by
the court at five hundred dollars.

The plaintiff in error assigns for error, the rendering of the

judgment in said case, in that the summons issued in said case,

and upon which the action is founded, was dated October 11th,
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1855, and therein made returnable to the fourth Monday of

October next, in which case the summons was, by its own pro-

vision, made returnable to the fourth Monday of October, 1856,

and thereby, more than one year would intervene between the

teste and return of the writ.

The error is well assigned. " Next," in its connection, refers

to month, and not to Monday ; and there is, therefore, more than

one term intervening the issuing the writ and the sitting of the

court. The writ is, consequently, a nullity, and the default

taken irregular. Calhoun v. Webster Sf Hickor, 2 Scam. R. 221.

The judgment is reversed.

Judgment reversed.

John F. Doggett et al, Plaintiffs in Error, v. Hiram Nor-
ton et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO WILL.

Where, in an action of covenant upon a lease, tlie parties lessors being some of

them femmes covert, the lease is set out in hcec verba, the peculiar interest of the

femmes covei-t is exhibited by the lease, without any special averment ; and the

lessees having admitted a special interest in these parties by taking the lease, are

estopped from denying it.

This was an action of covenant on a lease. The declaration

contains but one count, and is as follows in substance : It first

avers the identity of the plaintiffs with the parties who executed

ithe lease, some of whom signed by their initials, and one of

whom afterwards intermarried with RoUin G. Parks, who is

made a party to the suit. It then sets forth the lease in hcec

verba, with the usual profert. The demised premises was a cer-

tain flouring mill in the village of Lockport, Will county. Term,
for one year, ending 1st August, 1853. Rent, $900, payable

quarterly. The lease contains the usual covenants as to surren-

dering up the demised premises in good condition on the expira-

tion of the term. It also contains an agreement on the part of

lessors to make certain repairs and improvements, as soon as it

can be done conveniently. All other ordinary repairs to be done

by lessees. The declaration then sets forth the legal effect of

said lease, and avers generally the performance by lessors of all

covenants by them to be performed ; and alleges non-payment of

rent ; and that lessees removed portions of the fixtures, and left

demised premises in bad condition. Damages laid at $1,000.
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To this declaration there was a general demurrer, which was
sustained. The plaintiffs stood by their declaration, and there

was judgment for defendants.

S. W. Randall, and Parks & Elwood, for Plaintiffs in Error.

U. Osgood, for Defendants in error.

Caton, C. J. This was an action of covenant upon a lease.

Among the lessors are several /emwe.'? covert, who are parties to

the lease and plaintiff's in the action with their husbands and the

other lessors. The lease contains a covenant on the part of the

lessors, to make certain specified repairs upon the premises.

The declaration sets out the lease in h(cc verba, and assigns for

breaches the non-payment of the rent, and also refusal to deliver

up the premises in good order at the expiration of the time. A
demurrer was sustained to this declaration, which decision is

now assigned for error. The objection taken to the declaration

is, that the femmes covert are joined as plaintiffs, while the

declaration contains no statement showing that they had any
peculiar interest in the premises demised, or that in them was
the meritorious cause of action. The objection to the declara-

tion is not well taken. The lease is set out in the declaration,

and shows upon its face the peculiar interest which the femmes
covert have in the cause of action. The covenants, ft^r breaches

of which the action is brought, are to them, with their husbands

and others, and that of itself shows a special interest in them,

to justify their joining in the action ; and the lessees, by taking

a lease from them and others, admitted that they had a special

interest in the property, and are now estopped to deny that fact.

It- is unnecessary to inquire whether the husband alone can demise

the wife's separate estate, or whether a lease executed by the

wife alone would be void ; the law is too well settled to admit
of controversy, that a lease made by husband and wife is good.

In Chitty's Pleadings, 11th American from the 6th London edi-

tion, 30, it is said, " In the case of a bond or note payable to

her, or her husband and herself, it would sufficiently appear from
the instrument itself, as set out in the declaration, without fur-

ther averment, that she had a peculiar interest, justifying the

use of her name as plaintiff." It is insisted, in the argument
for the defendants in error, that this statement is not sustained

by the authorities. It is sustained by sound reason and good
sense, and comports with the philosophy of legal pleading, and
we have been referred to no case holding a contrary doctrine.

The declaration shows on its face that the lessees admitted, by

taking a lease of them, that the femmes covert had a special
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interest in the demised premises ; and that being thus sho\VTi, no
other averment of it was necessary. They covenanted to pay
the money to them, and thereby admitted that they had a pecu-

liar interest in the cause of action. It is unnecessary now to

inquire whether they could be sued with their husbands for a

breach of the covenants to repair, contained in this lease. Cer-

tain it is, that the lessees may recoup, in this action, any dam-
ages which they have sustained, for the breach of the covenants

to repair, the same as if the femmes covert had not joined in the

lease and were not parties to the action. We think the demur-
rer should have been overruled. The judgment is reversed and
the cause remanded.

Judgment reversed.

John L. McCormick, Appellant, v. Henry Tate, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM LA SALLE COUNTY COURT.

Where a demurrer to a plea to one of the counts of a declaration is overruled, and
the plaintiff stands by his demurrer, the order of the court amounts to a judg-

ment in bar of the cause of action in that count, and it is no longer before the

court for trial.

Where a party alleges in his pleadings in an action of trespass quare clausum /regit,

that the damage to plaintiff arose by reason of the removal of a partition fence,

of which removal the plaintiff had been notified, the pleading should show that

the notice was given in due time, and to a proper person.

An averment in such pleading that plaintiff had reasonable notice, is insufficient.

A partition fence, whether existing by agreement, by acquiescence, or under the

statute, cannot be i-emoved until the parties interested in its remaining are

properly notified of the intended removal.

The case of Buckmaster v. Coole, in 12th 111. R. 76, considered and approved.

This case was tried in the La Salle County Court. The
opinion of the court states the pleadings.

W. H. L. Wallace, for Appellant.

Chumasero & Eldredge, for Appellee.

• Walker, J. This was an action of trespass, commenced by
Tate against McCormick, in the La Salle County Court, for inju-

ries to plaintiff's close. The suit was brought to the March term,

1856, and the declaration contained two counts. The first alleges

that defendant, with force and arms, broke plaintiff's close, and
broke down and removed the fences on the east side of E. half,

S. W. 18, 33 N., 1 E., and W. half S. E. 18, 33 N., 1 E., and
trampled and despoiled the grass and corn of plaintiff, and with
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cattle, depastured the grass and corn, and damaged the soil,

and broke down and destroyed one hundred rods of plaintiff's

fence, to his damage one thousand dollars. The second count

alleges that the defendant broke other closes of the plaintiff,

describing them as the ^Y. half of S. E. qr., and the E. half

S. W. qr. 18, 33 N., 1 E., abutting towards the east, on defend-

ant's close, and broke down one hundred rods of fence between
the plaintiff's and defendant's closes, and with cattle and horses,

etc., destroyed the grass and corn of plaintiff, to his damage
one thousand dollars.

The defendant filed four pleas. 1st, The general issue to the

whole declaration ; 2nd, Liberum tenementmn to the whole

declaration ; 3rd, That the close of the plaintiff was not sur-

rounded by a good and sufficient fence ; 4th, (to the second

count). That defendant had built, and then maintained, one-half

of said partition fence, which was a good and sufficient fence,

and that it was plaintiff's duty to build and maintain the balance

of said partition fence, but that he neglected to do so, by means
whereof defendant's cattle, running in his own close, escaped

through that portion of the fence, which was the same trespass

complained of, etc.

Plaintiff filed to the general issue a similiter. To the plea

of liberum tenemeyitum, a replication, denying that the closes

were the soil and freehold of defendant, and upon it issue was
joined to the country. To defendant's third plea, a special

replication, that the closes were surrounded by a fence until

just before the trespass complained of, and defendant was in

possession of the land adjoining on the east of plaintiff's close,

and defendant tore down the partition fence between plaintiff's

and defendant's closes, and turned his cattle into his (defend-

ant's) close, and the cattle entered from defendant's close

through the broken fence, and committed the trespasses, etc. To
defendant's fourth plea, a special replication, that shortly before

the trespasses, etc., there was a partition fence between plain-

tiff's and defendant's closes, which was, shortly before the tres-

passes, torn down by defendant, and afterwards defendant

turned his cattle into his own close, and they entered through

the broken fence, and committed the trespasses, etc. The
defendant filed a general demurrer to plaintiff's replication to

defendant's third and fourth pleas. The plaintiff confessed the

demurrer to his replication to defendant's fourth plea, and leave

was given to amend. The demurrer was sustained to plaintiff''s

replication to defendant's third plea, and also to defendant's

third plea. Plaintiff filed an amended replication to defend-

ant's fourth plea—that the plaintiff's closes mentioned in the

declaration were inclosed by fences, and adjoined on the east to
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closes of the defendant, and the partition between the closes

was undivided, and plaintiff and defendant were equally bound
to maintain the fence ; that the fence was not good and suffi-

cient, and defendant tore down a portion of the fence, and put

his cattle into his own premises to depasture, whence they

escaped through the space in the fence, and committed the

trespasses ; and concludes to the country. By leave of the court,

defendant filed an amended third plea to the first count of the

declaration—that he was not guilty of throwing down any fence

belonging to plaintiff and situated on plahitiff's close, nor

treading down the corn, etc., of the plaintiff in said close, and
that the close was not surrounded by a good and sufficient fence,

and by reason thereof, the cattle, lawfully running on defend-

ant's adjoining close, without defendant's fault, strayed on
plaintiff's close. To this plea plaintiff demurred, which, the

court overruled, and plaintiff abided by his demurrer. The
defendant filed a rejoinder to plaintiff's replication to his fourth

plea—that the supposed partition fence was wholly on his own
land, and not between the closes of plaintiff and defendant, and
the rails of that part of the partition fence removed by plaintiff'

were not the plaintiff's rails, but were the property of the

defendant, and moved by him, as he lawfully might, and the

cattle were not turned into defendant's close until after reasona-

ble notice, etc. This rejoinder was filed on the eleventh day of

June, 1856, and before a jury was erapanneled, and it was on
the same day stricken from the files. The defendant had been
ruled on the ninth to rejoin by the eleventh.

The cause was tried by the court and a jury, and a verdict

was rendered in favor of plaintiff for three hundred dollars

damages. Defendant entered a motion for a new trial, which
the court overruled, and rendered judgment upon the verdict,

from which defendant appeals to this court.

The bill of exceptions in this case having been suppressed at

a former term of this court, no questions can arise on the evi-

dence or instructions in the case, and we shall confine ourselves in

its consideration to the other questions presented by the record.

The first question presented by the record is, whether the

defendant's third plea remained unanswered at the time of the

trial. To this plea plaintiff demurred, which was overruled by
the court, and plaintiff abided by his demurrer. The court, by
overruling the demurrer, held the plea sufficient as a defense to

the first count, which it purported to answer, and it was a judg-

ment in bar of the cause of action set forth in that count.

That judgment disposed of the first count, with all the issues

under it, and it was not before the court for trial.

We shall proceed to determine whether the rejoinder presents



APRIL TERM, 1858. 337

McCormick v. Tate. »

a defense to the second count. By the defendant's fourth plea,

by the plaintiff's replication and this rejoinder, it appears that

the fence which defendant removed was a partition fence be-

tween plaintiff's and defendant's farms. Whether it became so

by agreement, by acquiescence, or under the statute, does not

appear. But the defendant, in his fourth plea, alleges that it

was a partition fence, that he had built and maintained one-half

of it, and that it was the duty of the plaintiff to maintain the

other half, which he had failed to do. From this, it would
seem that it had become a partition fence either by agreement

or under the statute ; and whether it was under the one or the

other, it was the duty of the defendant to give to plaintiff a

reasonable notice of the time when he intended to remove it.

When a notice is necessary, it ought to appear that the notice

was given in due time and to the proper person. 1 Chit. PI.

329. The allegation of notice in this rejoinder is general, that

the plaintiff had reasonable notice, but when it was given or

what it contained, is wholly omitted, and the court cannot see

that it was sufficient. The rejoinder does not give the circum-

stances that would authorize the defendant to remove this fence
;

it alleges that the rails belonged to defendant and were in the

fence which stood on his own land. This might be true, and yet

if it was a partition fence by agreement, by acquiescence, or

under the statute, he had no right to remove it until the plaintiff

had received sufficient notice. As it was a partition fence, and
plaintiff was bound to maintain one-half and the defendant the

other half, the inference that plaintiff had a right to rely on it

to protect his crops, must be rebutted, and this rejoinder does

not rebut that presumption.

This court, in a case where several persons had raised a crop

of corn in a field surrounded by a common fence, and one of

them erected an inside fence to protect his crop ; the plaintiff,

in the month of September, purchased eighteen acres of corn in

this field, and defendant's servants, in the month of November,
removed a part of the inside fence, by means of which stock

entered the field and destroyed plaintiff's corn, held that the

plaintiff had a right to recover. And the court also held that

it was not error to refuse to permit the defendant to show that

it was the duty of plaintiff to repair the outside fence, and the

court say, that from aught that appears, the plaintiff' had an
undoubted right to rely on this fence to protect his property.

Buckmaster \. Cbo/e, 12 111. R. 76. This decision seems to be

opposed to the case of Seeley v. Peters, 5 Gilm. R. 130. In that

case the court held that there was no general law in this State

prohibiting cattle from running at large in the highway and
commons, and in order to maintain an action of trespass of cattle

1
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on one's close, the owner must have it surrounded by a good and
sufficient fence, and that the common law requiring the owner
of cattle to keep them on his own land has never been in force

in Illinois. That was a case where cattle broke into plaintiff's

inclosure from the highway, and in the case of Buckmaster v.

Coole, they entered through the space where an inside fence had
been removed which had protected the crops. The latter de-

cision limits and qualifies the first to stock running at large in

the highways and commons, and leaves the common law in force

as to inside fences, unless regulated by the statute regarding

partition fences. We do not feel inclined to disturb the decision

of Buckmaster v. Coole. By the common law, every man was
bound to keep his cattle on his own land, or respond in dam-
ages for their trespasses. And it was one of its rules, that no
man is bound to fence his close against an adjoining field, but

every man is bound to keep his cattle in his own field at his

peril. Rust v. Low, 6 Mass. R. 91 ; Bro. Trespass, 345, 369
;

Fitz, N. B. 128. But this legal obligation might be changed by
prescription, and by covenant. And in this State it can be done
under the statute regulating partition fences. If parties desire

to avoid the common law duty in cases of adjoining fields, they

may do so under our stutute by compelling contribution for the

erection and maintenance of such a fence. This statute does

abridge individual rights, but permits any one to fence his land

in his own way, or when a fence has become a division fence,

compels both parties to contribute equally to its support, which
is eminently just. Upon this record we are unable to perceive

any error that should reverse the judgment of the court below,

and the same should be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Henry C. Lawrence, Appellant, v. John J. Fast,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM WARREN.

A judgment for taxes is fatally defective, if it does not show the amount of tax
for which it was rendered. The use of numerals, without some mark indicating
for what they stand, is insufficient.

The separate record book of judgments for taxes, should be so kept, as without
reference to the general record, it could furnish a full exemplification]of a judg-
ment.

This was an action of ejectment, brought by the appellant

against the appellee, to recover the N. E. 36, 8 N., 1 W., in

the Circuit Court of Warren county.
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The cause was tried by a jury before Thompson, Judge, at

September term, 1857 ; a verdict was rendered for the defendant

;

a motion was made by the plaintiff for a new trial, which was
overruled by the court, and judgment rendered against the

plaintiff for costs. The plaintiff appealed to this court.

On the trial, the plaintiff read in evidence an exemplification

of a record of a judgment against delinquent lands for taxes of

1851, rendered at the June term, 1852, by the County Court of

"Warren county, among which was the tract of land described

in the plaintiff's declaration. This exemplification shows the

usual convening order, on the 7th day of June, 1852, and a

judgment in the form required by the statute of 1849, rendered

on the 8th day of the same month.

The plaintiff then read a precept to the jury, and proved
that the sheriff and ex officio collector received the same from
the clerk, and sold the lands on the 15th day of June, 1852, by
virtue thereof.

The plaintiff then read in evidence an affidavit of Seth C.

Sherman, with the notice required by the constitution, from
purchasers at tax sales, and proved that the affidavit and notice

was filed in the office of the county clerk of Warren county,

and by him recorded in a book kept by him for that purpose, on
the 18th day of April, 1855.

The plaintiff then read in evidence a deed from the sheriff to

Seth C. Sherman, the purchaser at the tax sale.

The plaintiff then read in evidence deeds connecting himself

with Seth C. Sherman, and proved that the defendant was in

the possession of the premises at the time of the commencement
of the suit.

The witness further stated that he sold the land to defendant,

and defendant claimed to own the same, in good faith, by virtue

of the sale from the witness.

The defendant produced Ephraim S. Sevinnei/, as a witness,

who testified that he was county clerk, and he produced a book
containing a record of the sales for taxes in Warren county,

and proved that the premises had not been sold since the year

1852.

The witness also produced another book which he testified

was the general record of the proceedings of the County Court

of Warren county, for county business. And also, another book,

which he testified was the record of judgments against delinquent

lands in the County Court.

The witness further testified, that he prepared and certified

the exemplification read in evidence by the plaintiff, and that

in making the same, he copied the convening order from the
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book containing the general records, and the rest of the exem-
plification from the book containing the judgments against

delinquent lands.

To the evidence of this witness the plaintiff objected, but the

court overruled the objection.

The defendant then offered in evidence the two books last

named, to the introduction of which the plaintiff excepted, but

the court overruled the objection.

These books proved that the exemplification was a true copy
from the two books, exeept that the general record showed that

the court adjourned on the evening of the Stli day of June
until the next morning, when the court met, all the judges being

present, and finally adjourned on the 11th day of June.

The defendant then moved to exclude all the plaintiff's evi-

dence from the jury, because there was no valid judgment for

the sale of the land in controversy. To', the allowance of the

motion the plaintiff objected, but the court sustained the motion
and excluded tlie evidence.

There being no further evidence, the jury rendered a verdict

for the defendant.

The appellant now assigns for error

—

That the court erred in overruling the motion for a new
trial.

The court erred in rendering judgment for the defendant;

and,

The proceedings are otherwise informal and erroneous.

GouDY & JuDD, for Appellant.

J. S. Bailey, for Appellee.

Caton, C. J. The first question to be considered in this case,

is, whether the judgment for the taxes was sufficient. Waving
the question of the suflSciency of the description of the property,

we think the judgment fatally defective, in not showing the

amount of the tax for which judgment was rendered. The six

columns at the right hand of the table in the judgment, are

headed respectively, commencing at the left hand, " Valuation,"
" State Tax," " State Special," " County Tax," " County Sp.

Tax," " Total." Opposite the tract in question are the follow-

ing figures : In the first column mentioned, 240 ; in the second,

84; in the third, 61 ; in the fourth, 72 ; in the fifth, 24*; in the

sixth, 248. This tract is not at the head of the table. Other

figures are at the heads of the columns, opposite the first lot,

and there is no mark, sign, or abbreviation, in any way connected

with these figures, showing for what they stand. In no part of
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tbe judgment does the word dollar, cent or mill, occur, nor any
abbreviation, character or sign, representing either of these

words, or any other denomination of money. The tax was 248,

and the judgment was for 248, and that is all that can be made
of it. You may guess it was for 248 dollars, or cents, or mills,

but at last it is but a guess. In some parts of the State the

value of one hundred and sixty acres of land, and the rate of

taxation might be such, that the tax would be 248 dollars, while

in others it might be but 248 mills. And shall we look upon
the map and see whether it is in a rural district, or near a great

city, to enable us the better to guess what these figures probably

meant ? I do not think we have sunk to so low a degree of

uncertainty, nor have we attained such a perfection of intuitive

knowledge, as to justify us in saying we guess what these fig-

ures meant, or to enable us to say we know what they meant.

Nowhere in any court, we will venture to assume, have mere
numbers, without denominations, been held sufficient in a judg-

ment. Would anybody doubt that a judgment in any other sort

of proceeding, for " 248," would be utterly void and nonsensi-

cal ? and we know of no reason why such a judgment should

not be sustained, if we sustain this. Courts have generally

been more strict and technical where land is sold for taxes than

in any other cases, but here we are asked to sanction a degree

of laxity, which it was never before dreamed could be sustained

in the proceedings of the most informal tribunals. It has been
said in argument that the statute has given a form for this part

of the judgment, and as in that form, the column under the head
" Amount of Tax," neither the word " dollar," " cent," or
" mill " is given, nor any character representing them, we are

therefore to infer that the legislature did not intend that such

words or characters should be used to designate the denomina-
tions intended to be represented by the figures to be set down
in the column. As well might it be argued that because in the

form given by the act, the column is left a total blank, it was
the intention of the legislature that it should be so left in the

judgment. If the form is to be so literally followed in regard

to denominations, it may with the same propriety be so followed

by omitting the figures also. The figures without denominations
are as senseless as would be denominations without figures.

Had the figures also been omitted, then had the legislative form
been followed in the strictest and most literal sense. We are

now asked to sanction as literal an observance of statutory

forms as that adopted by the justice of the peace, who adminis-

tered a statutory oath to the witness, thus :
" You do solemnly

swear, or affirm, as the case may be," etc. Nay, we are

asked to go much further, for there was a mere surplusage,
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while here is an omission of an essential part of the judgment,

which the legislature as much intended should be filled into the

blank as was that which was filled in. The legislature intended

that the blanks left in its form should be filled up with whatever
was necessary to show with certainty what was the amount of

the tax for which the judgment was rendered. While we are

disposed to carry out the manifest design of the legislature, by
reasonable intendments in favor of tax proceedings, we cannot

go so far beyond what was ever before asked of any court, in

favor of any proceedings of any judicial tribunal. Such an
omission as this, in any judgment of any court, would be every-

where treated as rendering it a perfect nullity, and so we hold

this to be.

Before this judgment could be reversed, there are other diffi-

culties of the gravest character to be surmounted, and which we
do not now choose to discuss at length. The statute requires

the judgment for taxes to be entered in a separate record, in

which no other orders or judgments of the court are to be
entered. It is by itself a separate and independent record.

This record does not show what is sometimes called the con-

vening order of the court. It does not show by whom the

court was held, nor even in what court the judgment was pro-

nounced. It merely shows the entry of the judgment order.

There it begins and there it stops. We imagine it would be
very difficult to show that such a mere naked order, entered in

a separate book, by itself, not showing any of those things which
are always required to appear on the face of every record, to

give it validity, could be helped out by going to the general rec-

ord of the court, and copying therefrom the convening and other

orders necessary to be shown to make it a judicial record, and
attaching them to the judgment for taxes taken from another

book, and thus make up, in apparent form, an exemplification of

a judgment. But we do not propose to go into a discussion of

this question now, for, admitting that the record in which the

judgment for taxes was entered had shown upon this subject

everything requisite in a court record, still we find that this

judgment is utterly void for uncertainty in the amount, or rather

because the judgment is for no amount whatever. It has been

so often decided by this court that a defendent in ejectment may
take this objection to the plaintiff's proof without showing title

in himself, that we do not deem it necessary to refer to the

cases even, or to say one word in support of the proposition.

The judgment must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Breese, J. I cannot concur in this opinion. The form pur-

sued by the collector is precisely the form given by the statute,
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and so is the entry of the judgment. It is certain to every

ordinary intent, that the figures in the proper columns indicated

cents, or dollars and cents. The most common man would so

understand them, and could not be misled by them. The figures

" 2 48 " must of necessity mean two dollars and forty-eight

cents, or two hundred and forty-eight cents, which is the same.

Mills are never expressed in that way. Courts of justice must
draw the same conclusions from the same facts, which the mass
of community would draw from them. Taking the columns

with their headings, and the figures in them as they stand, can

any reasonable man doubt that dollars and cents, or cents only,

were intended ? I think not. It is not certainty to every intent

in particular that is required in such proceedings, but common
certainty.

Patrick K Morgan, Appellant, v. Joseph T. Ryerson,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM COOK.

A verdict will not be set aside where the evidence is conflicting, even though it may
be against the weight of evidence.

Where a horse, sold as sound, proves to be otherwise, is returned to the vendor by
the purchaser, in an action by the purchaser the measure of damages is the price

paid for the horse. If he is not returned, it is the diflerence between his real

value and the price given.

This was an action of assumpsit, brought by the appellee

against the appellant.

The first count of the declaration alleges that on the 11th

day of April, 1856, plaintiff, at the request of defendant, pur-

chased of defendant a certain horse for the sum of $225 ; and
that said horse was sound and kind for a family horse

;
plaintiff

avers that said horse was not sound ; but on the contrary, said

horse was unsound at the time when, etc., whereby said horse

became and was of no use or value to plaintiff; and that he,

the said plaintiff, had been put to great expense in and about

taking care of said horse, whereby plaintiff was deceived, etc.

Second count same in substance as first, alleging the purchase

of a horse by plaintiff from defendant, with a warranty of sound-

ness, etc. ; and that said horse was unsound at the time when,
etc. ; and by means whereof there was a breach of the warranty
by defendant, whereby j)laintiff was damaged, etc.

Common counts in the usual form, etc.

Pleas—1st, general issue ; 2nd, set off.

Issue was joined on the pleas.
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On the trial, plaintiff gave in evidence the bill of sale from

defendant to plaintiff, with warranty of soundness of said horse,

in the words and figures following, to wit

:

Mr. Ryekson,
Bought of P. R. Morgan,

One bay horse, five years old, warranted sound and kind for a family

horse, -.-..... $225 00

Received payment,

Signed, P. R. MORGAN.
Chicago, April llth, 1856.

The testimony on the part of the plaintiff' below, went to

show that the horse, soon after he purchased him, became lame
in one of his fore legs, and that this lameness had manifested

itself before the purchase by plaintiff, and rendered the horse

unfit for use. On the part of the defendant below, the testi-

mony was strong in support of the soundness of the horse,

before and at the time of the sale. The horse was returned by
Ryerson to Morgan in two or three weelcs after the purchase.

The plaintiff requested the court to instruct the jury as

follows :

1st. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the horse

sold by the defendant to the plaintiff had any sprain, strain or

other injury, amounting to unsoundness in one of his legs at the

time of the sale to the plaintiff, and the plaintiff, after discover-

ing such unsoundness, and without unreasonable delay returned

the horse to the defendant as unsound, then the plaintiff is

entitled to recover the amount paid for the horse.

2nd. If the jury shall believe, from the evidence, that the

horse was returned by the plaintiff to the defendant as unsound,

and accepted by the defendant, then the plaintiff is entitled to

recover back the amount paid the defendant for the horse.

3rd. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the horse

was returned to defendant in June, 1856, as unsound, and was
accepted back by the defendant, then the plaintiff is entitled to

recover the price paid for the horse, whether he was sound or

not at the time of sale.

To the giving of which said instructions the defendant

excepted.

The defendant requested the court to instruct the jury as

follows :

If the jury shall believe, from the evidence, that at the time

of the sale of the horse in question by the defendant to plaintiff,

that the said horse had no permanent or incurable injury about

him ; and that if any unsoundness existed, it was only a tem-

porary and curable injury, and did not injure the horse for
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services, then it was no breach of the warranty, and the defendant

is entitled to a verdict."

Which said instruction the court then and there gave to the

jury, with the following qualification after the word services

:

" and present use while sutfering under it." Also, with the fol-

lowing addition after the word verdict : " unless the contract of

sale was afterwards, by agreement, rescinded by the parties,

and the horse returned to defendant."

The defendant then and there further requested the court to

give to the jury the following instruction

:

"If the jury shall believe, from the evidence, that the horse in

question, at the time of the sale to the plaintiff by the defend-

ant, was a sound horse, then the law is for tli£ defendant, and
the only question for the jury to try in relation to the soundness

or unsoundness of the horse, is the question as to whether the

horse was unsound at the time of the sale."

Which said instruction the court gave, with the following

qualification after the word horse : " and that the contract of

sale was not rescinded at the time of his return to defendant,

or at any other time."
,

Also the following:

"If the jury shall believe, from the evidence, that the defend

ant kept the horse in question for the plaintiff, after he was
hurt and brought back to the stable of the defendant, then the

defendant is entitled to recover the value of his keeping and
attendance, if the same commenced before this suit was brought,

by way of set-off, and the defendant is entitled to such judg-

ment as the keeping and attendance was reasonably worth."

Which said instruction the court gave to the jury, with the

following qualification after the word that : " the horse was re-

turned to defendant and contract of sale rescinded between the

parties, 'and that".

And also the following

:

" If the jury shall believe, from the evidence, that the horse

was sound at the time of the sale to the plaintiff, then they

should find for the defendant."

Which said instruction the court gave to the jury, with the

addition, however, after the word defendant, of the following

:

" unless they shall also find that the horse was returned to the

defendant, and the contract of sale rescinded between the

parties by mutual agreement."
To the giving of said additions to said instructions the defend-

ant excepted.

The jury found a verdict for the plaintiff, and assessed the

damages at $225.

23
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The defendant moved the court for a new trial, which was
denied.

S. AsHTON, for Appellant.

E. 0. Laened, for Appellee.

Breesb, J. This was an action of assumpsit, brought upon a

warranty given upon the sale of a horse, with a count for money
had and received.

Much and conflicting testimony was heard on the trial, which
it is the peculiar province of a jury, in such cases, to reconcile

;

and an instance can scarcely be found in the books where a ver-

dict has been set aside under such circumstances, even if it may
appear to the court that the verdict may be against the weight
of evidence. Loivrij v. Orr, 1 Gilm, R. 70.

There is proof in the cause that Ryerson returned the horse

to Morgan so soon as he discovered the blemish, and the jury

had a right to infer, from all the circumstances, that Morgan had
accepted him.

The measure of damages in such case is, the price paid for the

horse. If he is not returned, the measure of damages is the

, diflerence between his real value and the price given. Caswell
V. Coare, 1 Taunton R. 566.

We see no objections to any of the instructions given by the

court. The qualifications to the defendant's instructions were
all proper.

The judgment is affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Charles McDonnell, Plaintiff in Error, v. John Murphy
et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO COOK COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

An affidavit of merits to a plea which states that the defendant has a good defense

to a "part" of the amount of damages claimed, is insufficient. Such an affida-

vit, if it specified the nature of the defense, and what part of the action it

extended to, might be good.

This was an action of assumpsit, brought by John Murphy,
Michael Kelly and John B. Piet, defendants in error, against

Charles McDonnell, plaintiff in error, in the Cook County Court

of Common Pleas.



APRIL TERM, 1858. 347

McDonnell v. Murphy et al.

There was a motion by plaintiffs that defendant's plea be

stricken from the files, for want of a sufficient afi&davit of merits.

Motion allowed ])y the court, J. M. Wilson, Judge, presiding, at

January term, 1858.

"W. R. M. Wallace, for Plaintiff in Error.

Johnson & Willetts, for Defendants in Error.

Caton, C. J. The only question in this case is, upon the suffi-

ciency of the affidavit of merits. That states that defendant " be-

lieves he has a good defense to a part of the amount of damages
claimed and sued for by the said plaintiffs in said action upon
the merits." This is not in compliance with the letter or the

spirit of the statute. The statute requires the defendant to file

" an affidavit setting forth that he believes that he has a good
defense to said suit upon the merits." That it may often occur

that a defendant has a good defense to a part only of the real

cause for which the action is brought, and which, under this law,

he should be allowed to litigate, may not be denied, and the

court would go very far in the construction of the statute to

secure to him this right, without offending his conscience so far

as to require him to swear that he has a good defense to the en-

tire cause of action ; but in doing this, we must see that it is not

resorted to as a subterfuge to procure delay when there is really

no defense to the cause of action relied upon by the plaintiff.

It is most common, when the only cause of action relied upon
is a promissory note, or bill of exchange, in addition to the spe-

cial count, to insert also the common counts, as a mere matter of

safety in case of an accidental variance in the special count.

Whenever such is the case, the defendant may safely swear that

he has a defense to a part of the plaintiff's cause of action, as-

suming that such count is in fact upon separate and independent

cause of action, knowing perfectly well, all the time, that the

only real cause of action relied on is the bill or note specially

counted upon. We are inclined to sustain affidavits of merits

to a partial defense ; but in order to accomplish the manifest

objects of the law, we must require such affidavits to specify the

nature of the defense, and to what particular portion of the cause

of action declared upon, so that the plaintiff may dismiss that

portion of his action to which the defense applies, and proceed as

to the remainder as if no affidavit of merits had been filed. The
judgment must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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William C. Kimball, Appellant, v. The People, etc.,

Appellees.

APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF THE CITY
OF ELGIN.

It is not necessary, in order to find a defendant guilty of selling spirituous liquors

in contravention of a city ordinance, that the liquor was handed to persons who
asked for it, and that it was paid for, or charged to some one.

At the June term, A. D. 1857, of the Court of Common
Pleas of the city of Elgin, in Kane county, Illinois, an indict-

ment was found therein against the appellant for selling liquor

without license within said city. The indictment is in the usual

form, and charges a violation of the general law of the State,

inflicting a penalty of $10 for selling rum, wine, gin, brandy,

whisky, vinous, spirituous and mixed liquors, by a less quantity

than one gallon, at and within the limits of said city of Elgin.

At the September special term, A. D. 1857, of said court, the

appellant, by his attorney, moved to quash the said indictment,

on the ground that the general laws of the State, authorizing the

granting of license, and inflicting penalties for selling without

license, were not in force within said city limits, but were (by

the act entitled, " An Act to amend, alter and revise the man-

ner, name or style and corporate powers of the town of Elgin,

approved February 28th, 1854," and the act entitled, " An Act
to amend an Act, entitled an Act to amend, alter and revise the

name or style and corporate powers of the town of Elgin, ap-

proved February 28th, 1854, and to legalize said Act incorpo-

rating said town as a city, and all official acts of the Mayor
and council by virtue hereof, approved February 15th, 1855,"

in connection with the ordinances and laws passed by the coun-

cil of said city, and in force in said city,) repealed as to said

city, and that the only law in force upon the subject of selling

liquor and inflicting penalties therefor, was the ordinances of the

city council of said city, and that the court had no jurisdiction

of the case.

It was then agreed between the appellant and appellee, that

the questions involved in the reasons assigned for quashing
" the indictment, should be considered as legally and properly

presented and pending for the court to decide.

That a city government was duly organized under the acts of

the legislature, in relation thereto ; that before and at the time

the alleged sales within the city limits of liquor without license

are charged to have been made, and to recover penalties under

the general laws of the State, this indictment was found, an
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ordinance or law of the city was made, and in force within the

city limits, upon the subject of liquor.

(By agreement of counsel, a printed copy of the ordinances

of the city were attached to the bill of exceptions and to the

record, and made a part of the record. These ordinances

prohibit entirely the sale of liquor, or having it in charge for

sale in the city, refuse to license, and inflict a penalty of $25
for violating the ordinance,) and that all technical objections

to manner of presenting the questions should be waived.

This application the court overruled.

The appellant pleaded not guilty to the indictment. A jury

was empanneled, and a verdict was found for the people.

S. Wilcox, for Appellant.

W. BusHNELL, State's Attorney, for the People.

Walker, J. The plaintiff was indicted, tried and convicted

for selling spirituous liquors in a less quantity than one gallon,

in the Ct>urt of Common Pleas of the city of Elgin. The de-

fendant entered a motion in arrest of judgment and for a new
trial, which were overruled by the court, and the plaintiff was
lined thirty dollars and costs, from which judgment he appeals

to this court. It was agreed, on the trial, that the city of Elgin

was incorporated by act of the legislature, which conferred on

the corporate authorities of the city, power to license the sale

of liquors, and to tax, restrain and prohibit tippling houses and
dram shops, and to impose iines and penalties for a breach of

any ordinance of the city, and to provide fpr the recovery and
appropriation of such fines ; and that the city had, in pur-

suance of the authority contained in its charter, by ordinance,

regulated 'the sale of spirituous liquors in the city of Elgin.

The evidence showed that plaintiff sold the liquor for which he
was indicted, in the corporate limits of the city, and he intro-

duced no evidence to show that it was sold pursuant to city

ordinance. Upon this state of facts, it is urged that the court

had no jurisdiction to try plaintifl" under the laws of the State

for this offense. This question was determined at the present

term of this court, in the case of Gardner v. The People^ post,

and it is deemed unnecessary to again discuss it in this case.

It was insisted that the court erred in refusing to give the fol-

lowing instruction to the jury :
" That before you can find the

defendant guilty, you must believe, from the evidence, that not

only liquor was handed to a person who asked for it, but that

the liquor was paid for or charged to some one." This instruc-

tion is not the law. It assumes that the only mode by which a
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sale of liquor can be effected, is by its being handed to a person

who asked for it. It undoubtedly may be sold in many
other modes than by being handed to a person, nor is it neces^

sary that it should be asked for, to make its sale complete. A
sale might be consummated, the property pass, and be paid for,

in other modes than being asked for. This instruction, if given,

would have precluded the jury from convicting, if a sale had
been effected in any other mode. The instruction was properly

refused, and the judgment of the court below should be af&rmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Ezra L. Sherman, Appellant, v. Sheldon Smith et al,

Appellees.

APPEAL mOM COOK COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

In an action against the indorser of a note, the declai-ation should aver the manner
in which due diligence was used against the maker, and every fact necessary to

show a right to recover and to rebut negligence.

In an action against a stockholder in a company organized under the act of 10th

February, 1849, for manufacturing purposes, etc., to hold him under the tenth

section of the act, there should be an averment of the amount of stock held by
him. If to be held liable under the eighteenth section, there should be an aver-

ment that the debt was due to the laborers, etc., of the company. If to be held

liable under the twenty-second and twenty-tliird sections, there should be an
averment that the indebtedness of the company exceeded its capital stock, etc.

Verbal testimony showing when suit M'as brought, when declaration was filed, and
' when judgment was rendered against the maker of a note, is incompetent.
The general issue, in a case like this, against a member of a corporation, renders

proof necessary that the defendant was a stockholder.

Assumpsit, brought August 29, 1856, by the appellees against

the appellant.

Declaration has two counts only, both special. These were
demurred to. Leave to amend.

First amended count states, a " corporation" made its note,

May 14th, 1855, for $528, payable to A. Pierce's order in six

months after date, with exchange on New York, indorsed by
Pierce to appellant, and he to plaintiffs below, who sued it, on
25th of December, to the January term, 1856, of the Common
Pleas Court, and duly prosecuted to judgment. Execution
issued June 13, 1856, and put into coroner's hands, and returned

nulla bona.

That due diligence has been used in the institution and prose-

cution of the makers to insolvency as aforesaid, of which he
had notice. By means whereof, etc.
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Second count states the making of the note, its indorsements

and non-payment, as in first count.

Then they say, " whereupon a suit was duly instituted against

said" corporation, in said court, within one year after note

became due, and duly prosecuted to judgment. • Execution

issued and returned, no part satisfied, and no property to be

found, etc. That the appellant was a stockholder when the

note was made, and thereby seeks to charge him with liability to

pay, under the act of 1849.

Concludes with a breach, that he was not paid said sum
specified in said note. To damage, etc.

To the first count, the appellant demurred generally, with

special causes assigned.

To the second count, he demurred generally, and assigned

special causes.

The court overruled these demurrers, and ordered appellant

to plead to the declaration.

He filed plea of general issue.

2nd plea. That he is not a stockholder.

3rd plea. That said note was made and given in violation of

the law, and is void.

The appellees demurred to these two pleas, which demurrer
was sustained by the court, and court ordered defendant to file

his pleas by Monday.
On this leave and order, the defendant filed three pleas—one

stating, that prior to the making said note, he actually paid into

said corporation fifteen hundred dollars in money, the full

amount of his subscription to the stock of said company.
3rd plea. That the whole amount of the stock of said cor-

poration was paid in before the note was made.
On plaintiff's motion, these pleas were stricken from file, to

which defendant excepted.

Defendant asked leave to file additional pleas, court refused,

and he excepted. Cause tried by jury on the general issue, J.

M. Wilson, Judge, presiding.

W. Kimball testified for plaintiffs on the trial, that he was
clerk of the court. He produced a note, saying, this is the

note in question, with indorsements. He stated that the judg-

ment was by default for $538.37, reciting service on Tucker,
secretary, and judgment default. Execution issued June 13,

1856 ; returned August 9, by Buckley, deputy sheriff" of Cook
county. That Beach was coroner and acting sheriff, and Buck-
ley was deputy sheriff, of Cook county, and the return is in his

hand-writing.

To every part of this evidence defendant objected, which
objections the court overruled, and he excepted.
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Defendant then moved to exclude the record evidence from
the jury. 1st. Because the judgment and its date, and the

execution and its date, are not described in the declaration.

2nd. Because the execution is directed to the coroner and acting

sheriff; was not competent for the deputy sheriff to execute or

return it.

Which motion the court overruled, and defendant excepted.

Verdict, $582.03.

Defendant moved for a new trial, on the ground that the

court erred in refusing to exclude the judgment and execution

from the jury.

Which motion the court overruled, and defendant excepted.

Judgment entered on the verdict. The defendant prayed an
appeal, which was granted.

B. S. Morris, and Shumway, Waite & Towne, for Appellant.

W. T. Burgess, for Appellees.

Walker, J. The first question which we propose to consider

is, whether the court erred in sustaining a demurrer to defend-

ant's second and third pleas, instead of to the plaintiff's declar-

ation. The first count of the declaration is clearly insufficient

to entitle the plaintiff to recover on it, in not averring the man-
ner in which due diligence was used. It does not anywhere
allege when a declaration and copy of the note sued on were
filed, nor does it aver any excuse for not obtaining judgment at

the first term. For aught appearing in the declaration, the plain-

tiff may have been prevented from getting judgment at the return

term by his negligence in not filing a declaration and copy of the

note sued on in time for trial at that term ; and if so, he thereby

lost all recourse on the assignor, under the provision of the stat-

ute requiring diligence. Bestor v. Walker, 4 Gilm. R. 15. The
declaration should have averred every fact necessary to show a

right of recovery, and negative negligence on his part. This is

the uniform practice, and it accords with the precedents.

The second count seems to be equally defective. It avers that

a suit was brought against the makers within one year after the

note became due, which was duly prosecuted to judgment against

the makers ; and that execution was issued, and returned, no
property of the makers in their county out of which to collect

the same. That the makers were an organized and incorporated

company, under an act to authorize the formation of corporations

for manufactories, agricultural, mining and mechanical purposes,

approved February 10th, 1849 ; and that no certificate stating

the amount of capital stock fixed and limited by said company
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and paid in, as required by the eleventh section of that act, had
been made by the president and a majority of the trustees of the

incorporation, and recorded in the ofl&ce of the county clerk of

the county of Cook, where the business of the company was car-

ried on ; and that defendant was a stockholder in the company
at the time the note was executed.

Such a certificate was required, by the eleventh section, to be

made and recorded in the county clerk's office. And the tenth

section provides for the consequence of a failure to comply with

its requirements, and is as follows: "All stockholders of every

company incorporated under this act shall be severally individu-

ally liable to the creditors of the company in which they are

stockholders, to an amount equal to the amount of the stock held

by them respectively, for all debts and contracts made by such

company, until the whole amount of capital stock fixed and lim-

ited by such company shall have been paid in, and a certificate

thereof shall have been made and recorded, as is prescribed in

the following section, etc." Sess. Laws 1849, p. 89. As this

section limits the liability of stockholders to the creditors of the

company to an amount equal to the stock held by them, to hold

defendant liable under it, there should have been an averment of

the amount held by defendant. If it was intended to hold the

defendant liable under the eighteenth section, there should have

been an averment that the debt was due from the company to

their laborers, servants, or apprentices, as that section only

makes stockholders liable for such indebtedness. Or, if it was
to hold defendant liable under the twenty-second and twenty-

third sections of the act, there should have been an averment
that the indebtedness of the company exceeded the amount of

its capital stock, and the trustees had assented thereto, as these

sections only give a right to recover against a stockholder under

such circumstances. This count fails to show a liability under
either of these provisions. This count was insufficient to sustain

any judgment which could be rendered under it ; and for that

reason the judgment was erroneous.

The evidence in this case most clearly fails to sustain the find-

ing of the court below. If the finding was under the first count,

the evidence failed to show when suit was brought, when judg-

ment was recovered, and when declaration was filed. It was
also verbal evidence to establish matter of record, for which
purpose it was entirely incompetent. Suit was brought to the

January term
;
judgment was rendered by default, and the evi-

dence does not show why execution was not issued until in June.

The first count of the declaration was insufficient, and still more
so the evidence.
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If the finding was under the second count, it is equally unsup-

ported by the evidence. The general issue puts the plaintiff

upon the proof of every material allegation in his declaration,

and there was not any proof that defendant was a stockholder

in this company. This averment was, beyond all doubt, mate-

rial, and should have been proved. Both counts, imperfect as

they were, have not been proven, and the judgment of the court

below must be reversed.

Judgment reversed.

Harvey B. Hurd, Appellant, v. Caleb Shaw, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM COOK COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

The indorsement of the name of a person on the back of an indictment as a
witness, is no suflicient evidence that such person was the prosecutor. Nor to

establish this character need his name appear on the indictment in any way.
The agency of a party as prosecutor may be established otherwise.

In a case for malicious prosecution, it must be shown that a prosecution has been
tried on its merits ; that the defendant was the prosecutor ; that he was actuated

by malice, and that there was a want of probable cause, or of that reasonable

ground of suspicion a cautious man would entertain on the facts of a given case.

This was an action of trespass on the case for malicious

prosecution.

The first and third counts in the declaration are for causing

and procuring Shaw to be indicted for stealing a lot of screws,

nuts, chains, crowbars, &c., of John II. Bates, and for prose-

cuting and causing the same to be prosecuted.

The second count of the declaration is upon the second count

in the indictment, charging the property stolen to be the prop-

erty of Richard Lappin.

The fourth and fifth counts are for causing the said Shaw to

be indicted for obtaining goods, the property of said Hurd, by
means of false pretenses.

The cause was tried at the September term, 1856, before

J. M. Wilson, Judge, and a jury. Verdict, $400.

H. B. Hurd, pro se.

E. S. Williams, for Appellee.

Breese, J. The record in this case shows that Shaw was
indicted in the Cook County Court of Common Pleas, for two
offenses growing out of the same transaction, one for larceny, in



APRIL TERM, 1858. 355

Hurd V. Shaw.

stealing the screws, chains, crowbars, etc., used in the attempt

to move the house in which Shaw lived and which Hurd had pur-

chased under au execution. These articles were the property

of one Bates, who had loaned them for that purpose.

On this indictment the name of Hurd, as a witness, is not

marked, though it appears he was sworn and testified on behalf

of the prosecution, which resulted in the acquittal of Shaw,
against strong circumstantial evidence of his guilt, especially

that of his daughter, Octavia Shaw.
The other indictment was for obtaining goods under false pre-

tenses, in which Hurd seems to have been the principal wit-

ness, and in which case no verdict was rendered, the State's

attorney entering a nolle prosequi.

It no where appears from the evidence that Hurd was the

prosecutor of this charge, or that he originated the indictment.

It is not shown that he employed counsel to aid or conduct the

prosecution, or that he was active in carrying it on by giving

instructions, paying expenses or procuring the attendance of wit-

nesses, or in any of those various ways in which a party may
be known as a prosecutor of a criminal charge. The indorse-

ment of his name on the indictment as a witness, is no sufficient

evidence that he was the prosecutor. Nor, on the other hand,

to establish this character, is it necessary his name should appear

on the indictment at all, for his agency can be shown and his

character established by any of the numerous acts above specified.

But if Hurd was the prosecutor, we think he had probable

cause, and the weight of evidence favors the idea that Hurd did

not sell the goods to Shaw on Hamilton's indorsement, but on

that and the representations made to him by Shaw, that he was
the owner of a tract of land near Chicago, w^hich he had gone
with Shaw- to examine. It would seem from the testimony of

Lavinia in the case, that he had made a deed to Shaw of this

tract of land, for which Shaw was to pay him fifty dollars per

acre, if he sold it for goods or money, but was not to put it on

record. It was not put on record, but returned to Lavinia.

It would seem from this transaction, that Lavinia had placed

in Shaw's hands this deed, to enable him to commit a fraud, and
which it seems he did do, by getting the goods of Hurd on the

strength of his representations that he was the owner of the

land conveyed by it, and which he might with truth assert, for

until the re-delivery of the deed to Lavinia, he was such owner.

Having accomplished his purpose by it, he re-delivered the deed
to his confederate, Lavinia.

The testimony of Hamilton does not make the case any better

for Shaw. It seems like a combination between him, Shaw and
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Lavinia, to trick some one, and Hurd seems to have been their

victim.

It will be observed that no verdict was rendered on this

indictment. No trial has, in fact, been had on the merits, but

the prosecution was abandoned, for the reason that it turned out

in evidence, that the goods, which were alleged in the indict-

ment to belong to Hurd, were proved on the trial to belong to

Conkling & Co. There has been, then, no trial on the merits.

We are inclined to the opinion, that an action for a malicious

prosecution, unless actual malice be proved, should not prevail

in any case where the merits have not been tried, and a verdict

pronounced. Few persons will be found willing to perform the

high public duty of prosecuting an offender, if they are to be
subjected to the whims and caprices of the State's attorney, by
whose act alone the prosecution can be abandoned at any stage,

or exposed to the mistakes he may commit in preparing the

indictment. The principles of policy and justice unite in sup-

port of such a rule.

But even if a verdict of acquittal on the merits be pronounced,

it is not sufficient evidence of a want of probable cause, which
is defined to be, a reasonable ground of suspicion, supported by
circumstances sufficiently strong in themselves to warrant a cau-

tious man in the belief that the person accused is guilty of the

offense with which he is charged. Rickey v. McBean, 17 111.

R. 65 ; Jacks v. Slimpson, 13 ib. 701.

We think that, on both indictments, sufficient probable cause

was shown for prosecuting them, and that being established, the

defendant in this case, the appellant here, was entitled, at least,

to so much of the fourth instruction as comes within the views

here presented.

Whilst the courts should not discourage actions of this kind

by establishing harsh rules of evidence, or by the recognition of

rigid principles of law, by force of which a party may be

deprived of an important remedy for a real injury, at the same
time, all proper guard and protection should be thrown around
those who, in obedience to the mandates of duty, may be com-

pelled to originate and carry on a criminal prosecution, which
may, from any cause, terminate in favor of the accused.

To subject him to an action, who, from praiseworthy motives

and justifiable ends, sets on foot a criminal prosecution, it must
be shown that the prosecution has been tried on its merits—
that the defendant was the prosecutor— that he was actuated

by malice, and that there was a want of probable cause, or of

that reasonable ground of suspicion a cautious man would enter-

tain on the facts of a given case.



APRIL TERM, 1858. 357

Beverly et al. v. Sabin et al.

We think the merits of this case on the proof, entirely with

the appellant, and accordingly reverse the judgment and remand
the cause, so that other proceedings may be had conformably to

this opinion.

Judgment reversed.

Philetus Beverly et al, Plaintiffs in Error, v. Hollis

Sabin et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO COOK.

Under the school law of 1857, a tax for the erection of school-houses must be
voted by the people. If a debt has been incurred for this purpose, and a judg-
ment is outstanding, it would seem that a mandamus, commanding the assess-

ment and levy of the tax, would be the proper proceeding.

Sabin, Clawson, and Stott, of Barrington, Cook county, and
Goss and Stephens, of Cuba, Lake county, on the 2nd February,

1858, filed their bill in chancery, in the Cook Circuit Court, set-

ting forth that for two years last past and upwards, they had
been " residents and tax-payers " in the school district known
as " part school district No. one, in township 42, and part school

district No. one, in township 43 N,, R. 9 E., in Cook and Lake
counties ; said district being composed of lands lying in two
townships, viz. : in Barrington, Cook county, and Cuba, Lake
county.

" And that the two townships aforesaid are, and for more
than four years last past have been, laid off into districts, and
that said district now is, and for more than four years last past

has been, laid off a school district, and has been during all the

period aforesaid, a legallyformed and organized ic}i\oo\ district."

That the house called the school-house of the district is situ-

ated in Barrington, and that part of the district lying in Cook
county was the quarter of the two parts.

That in the spring of 1856, a number of persons, but a small

number of the voters, and much less than a majority of the said

voters and tax payers therein, met, and pretended to hold a

school meeting; that at the meeting no record was kept, and
from that time no record has been kept.

That there was no legal notice given of the said meeting

;

that it was informally and illegally held. Some kind of a vote

was taken, and that three persons, viz. : Beverly, Squires, and
Ralph, had since that time claimed to act as directors of said

school district.
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" And that said meeting was unauthorized by and could not

be held legally at that time in the year, under and by the stat-

utes and laws of this State. And that previous to and before

said meeting, said defendants, Nathan Squires and John Ealph,
never held or pretended to hold, any office of any kind in said

district."

That, soon afterwards, the said persons, claiming to act as

directors, gave up the land on which the school-house of the

district then stood, to a pretended owner of the land, which
site the complainants believed had been either bought by the

district, or donated to the district.

That, during the year 1856, the said directors erected on
that site " a school-house for school purposes for said district."

That the complainants, as inhabitants and tax payers, had
been unable to find out from said pretended directors how the

business of the district had been transacted and then stood.

That during two years last past no records had been kept ; that

the directors refuse to inform them relative to the business, and
how the accounts of the district stood. That during two years
last past, no regular meeting had been called in said district at

which any business of any kind had been done. That Squires,

before the last regular annual meeting should have been held,

had caused notices to be put up, calling such meeting one week
too late. And when the meeting convened, at the suggestion of

Squires or his friends, they did not do any business for that

reason.

That the house built by said pretended directors will cost

from $1,500 to $2,500 ; and that a suitable house might have
been built for $700 to $900 ; and if they had not intended it

for a church, it would have been built so as not to cost over

$900.
That since the house has been completed, it has been used on

the Sabbath days for religious services, and Beverly has preached
a part of the time therein.

That the upper room had been used for some months past by
a society called the Good Templars, under the direction of said

pretended directors, and had not, during that time, been used
for school purposes at all.

" That said district is, and has been for some time, largely in

debt on account of the aforesaid improvement made as aforesaid ;"

and that on 20th June last, 1857, said directors made two di-

rectors' certificates, and served the same, one of which was sent

by them to the county clerk of Cook county, and the other to

the clerk of Lake county, A copy of which sent to Cook
county is attached to the bill, and is as follows :
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We, the undersigned, directors of part district No. 1, township No. 42 and 43,

range No. 9, in the counties of Cook and Lake, and State of Illinois, do hereby

certify that said board have estimated and required to be levied, for the j^ear 1857,

two (2) dollars, for paying the indebtedness of said dis., and the rate of ten (10)

cents for dis. library, on each one hundred (100) dollars valuation of taxable pro-

perty in said district.

Given under our hands this twentieth day of June, 1857.

PHILETUS BEVERLY,
NATHAN SQUIRES,

Directors.

That tlie clerks respectively have issued, to the collectors of

the said townships, collectors' iDooks in accordance with said cer-

tificates. That George T. Waterman is collector of Barrington,

and John Jackson of Cuba, and that the collectors are now
urging the payment of said tax, and threatening to sell com-
plainants' property to pay the same, which they will do if not

restrained by this court.

That said indebtedness is larger than it should be, because

the house has been built larger than necessary for school pur-

poses, and more with reference to church purposes ; and the

manner^ of paying for the same in goods, and buying wood at

$3.50, and charging $5, has increased indebtedness. That
directors claim a great portion of the indebtedness is going to

them. That the expending of $1,000 more than was necessary

on said building, and making profit thereon as charged, is a

great fraud on the district.

" And your orators further show that the certificate made out

by said pretended directors as aforesaid is illegal, and not au-

thorized by law. That no vote of the tax payers, (legal voters

by fifth amendment,^ of said district, or any of them, had been

taken, authorizing said directors to levy a tax for the payment
of any indebtedness on said district, and that without such vote

said pretended directors had no right to levy any such tax to

be levied, and that the said county clerks of the respective

counties aforesaid, had no right under such certificate to issue

tax books to the aforesaid collectors ; and that therefore said

assessment and tax which said collectors are now attempting to

collect of your orators, and out of the property of said district,

is void, and that your orators and said district should not be
compelled to pay the same."

That the bill was filed on behalf of the complainants and a

majority of the tax payers of the district, to obviate the necess-

ity of having more than one suit.

That the directors of schools had no right to run any district

in debt for any purpose, for more than three per cent, on the

assessors' valuation of the property in such district, and not
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run a district in debt at all for any purpose without the sanction

of a vote of said district, both of which the aforesaid directors

had done, and were then seeking to collect a part of said in-

debtedness, made as aforesaid, by the enforcement of said tax.

That the defendants might be restrained from proceeding in

the collection of the tax, assessed and levied as aforesaid.

That the directors might render an account of moneys received

and paid out by them as such, and also their claims against the

district, and of the debts and liabilities of the district.

And that injunction and summons might issue.

Bill sworn to, and injunction allowed by master.

February 12, 1858. Defendants, Beverly, Squires and Ralph,

file their answer under oath.

That they had been duly elected school directors of the dis-

trict, and were then acting, and for some time past had acted

as such. That during all the time they had acted as such,

records of their proceedings had been kept, though not very

formal, yet sufficient to advise all persons of their acts as such.

That such records had always been open to public inspection
;

and they deny that they ever refused to allow the complainants

to inspect them, and to inform them what they, as directors,

had done.
" That the defendants, as they are advised and believe, had

by law, at that time, the discretion exclusively vested in them,

of causing suitable lots of ground to be procured, and suitable

buildings to be erected thereon for school-houses ; and that

being so vested with that authority, they did, in good faith, pro-

ceed to buy said lot of ground for said district, and to erect

thereon said building ; and they say, and insist, that the com-
plainants have no right in this form of proceeding to inquire

into their acts touching the purchase of said lot, and the erec-

tion of said house, and they pray the same benefit herefrom, as

though they had answered to said bill specially ; for that rea-

son, upon this point, they pray the judgment of the court."

The defendant. Squires, gives a statement of his account

against the district, in an exhibit, C, which, he says, is fair,

just and reasonable.

The defendant, Beverly, gives a statement of his account

against the district, in an exhibit, D, which, he says, is fair,

just and reasonable.

They also give an account of J. S. Davis for lumber fur-

nished.

That the certificates made and delivered by them to the clerks

of Cook and Lake are legal, and in due form of law. And
that no vote of " tax payers" is by law required. That on the

1st Monday of July, 1857, the district was justly indebted to
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various persons, including the amounts of said accounts herein

above alluded to, in the sum of $1,300, or thereabouts ; the

greater portion of which was for purchasing materials for and

erecting said district school-house. That to pay off said indebt-

edness, and for no other purpose, did they cause said certificates

to be issued and delivered.

That the total cost of the house is from $1,300 to $1,400.

General demurrer to the bill and denial of fraud, etc.

The cause was brought on by the complainants for final hear-

ing upon the bill taken as confessed against said defendants.

It was ordered by the court, that the injunction granted and
allowed in this cause be made perpetual, so far as to restrain

the defendants, Jackson and Waterman, from further proceed-

ings to enforce the collection of the school tax levied and

assessed upon said complainants, and mentioned in the bill of

complaint in this cause as amended. And that the defendants

pay the costs of this suit, to be taxed.

The decree was pronounced by Manierre, Judge.

W. T. Burgess, for Plaintiffs in Error.

Nichols & McKindley, for Defendants in Error.

Caton, C. J. We cannot hold ourselves responsible for the

consistency of all the laws which we are called upon to construe.

Nor can we undertake that they shall accomplish their ends in

the most direct, economical or convenient mode which could be

devised. We must take them as we find them, and interpret

them by the long established and well known rules of construc-

tion, although we may suppose that the legislature did not

precisely appreciate the result to which their language irre-

sistibly leads.

Previous to the revision of the school law of the last session,

no material difficulty in a case like the one which gave rise to

this suit, would occur. It may be admitted that the school

directors were authorized to incur the debt to pay which this

tax was assessed, and under the law of 1855 they also had
authority to assess the tax. This authority was conferred by
the 59th section of that law, from which the 44th section of the

law of 1857 is substantially copied, into which, however, these

words are inserted :
" Provided, that the people vote the same

as hereinafter expressed." And yet, in no subsequent part of

that law is any provision made for taking a vote of the people

upon the tax to be assessed. In this respect the law is no doubt

incomplete. When this proviso was inserted, it must have been

the intention to make a further provision, more in detail, for

24



362 OTTAWA,

Beverly et al. v. Sabin et al.

such a vote ; but for some reason or other, this was omitted to

be done ; and the question is, whether we may disregard the

provision because no subsequent one was made. Upon this

subject we cannot hesitate. By every known rule for construing

statutes, we are bound to obey the legislative will, when we find

it clearly expressed in a statute which they have a right to pass.

Here every circumstance shows that this proviso was deliber-

ately inserted. It is a new provision incorporated into the

body of an old law, and clearly expresses that a vote of the

people shall be taken upon the tax to be assessed. This inten-

tion is as clearly manifested as if the words " as hereinafter ex-

pressed," had not been inserted. Some criticism has been made
because the word people instead of the word voters is used. We
cannot doubt that this word, as here used, means voters, or the

people who are entitled to vote in the district. We feel bound to

observe and enforce the provision of this law.

The question then arises, what is to be done if the people

refuse to vote the necessary taxes to pay the debts against the

district which have been legally contracted. Such a contin-

gency seems to be abundantly provided for by the 49th section

of the school law of 1857. That section provides that when a

judgment shall be obtained against a school district, it shall be

ordered to be paid out of any money belonging to the district

not otherwise appropriated ; and if there be no such funds, then

the court shall order and compel the board, by mandamus, to levy

a tax for the payment of such judgment. This order of the

court is made irrespective of any vote of the people on the

subject of the tax, and it may be presumed was designed to

supersede any such vote. The law, when taken together, clearly

indicates the legislative intention that no tax should be levied,

except in obedience to a vote of the people or an order of the

court to satisfy a judgment which had been rendered against

the school district. It has been said, and perhaps with truth,

that it seems like a useless ceremony, and an unprofitable

expense, when an acknowledged legal obligation exists against

the district, that the directors cannot provide for its payment
till the expense of a judgment has been incurred, the costs of

which shall be added to the original debt. The wisdom of this

it is not for us to vindicate. It is enough to know that such seem
to be the provisions of the law which the legislature, in the

exercise of a legitimate power, have passed.

The decree of the Circuit Court must be affirmed.

Decree affirmed.
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Henry Mahler, Plaintiff in Error, v. Phineas Holden,
Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO WILL.

Where estray animals are taken up and appraised, etc., in conformity to law, if the

owner claims them, he is liable for the costs incurred, as well as for the expense
of keeping the animals.

This suit was brought before A. Herbert, a justice of the peace

of Will county, March 16, 1855, to recover for the taking up,

advertising and keeping certain stray colts of defendant. De-
mand, $95. Plaintiff obtained judgment for |33.25, and costs,

from which defendant appealed to Will County Circuit Court.

The cause was tried at December term, 1855, before Randall,
Judge, and a jury. The plaintiff proved the following facts :

That some time in the latter part of October, 1854, two colts

of the defendant got into the inclosure of the plaintiff (who re-

sides and is a freeholder in the town of Rich, Cook county, Illi-

nois) ; that plaintiff turned them out and drove them away ; that

they returned, and got in again the next day, and that then,

after makmg inquiries among the neighbors, and ascertaining

that they did not belong in his neighborhood, took up said colts

as estrays, and fed, and watched, and took proper care of them
until about the 12th of January, 1855. That written notices

were seen posted up in three of the most public places in said

town of Rich, describing said colts, and stating that they were
on the premises of plaintiff, and said notices were signed by
plaintiff ; that said notices were observed by witnesses at a num-
ber of different times during the first half of the month of No-
vember, 1854. That on or about the 18th day of November,
1854, said plaintiff obtained three freeholders of said town of
Rich to come and look at said colts, who then went before

Charles Sauter, -^^'ho was then the nearest acting justice of the

peace in said Cook county, and were by him duly sworn as ap-
praisers, and they appraised said colts, one at $40 and the other
at $50. That said plaintiff paid said appraisers fifty cents each
for their service, and deposited with the said Sauter some $3.50
or $4 in money, out of which to pay his fees, and the balance
for him to send to the county clerk of said Cook county, with
the transcript of the proceedings before said Sauter. The worth
of the keeping of said colts was proven to be three shillings

each per day. And that said defendant sued out of the Cook
County Court of Common Pleas a writ of replevin for said colts,

against said plaintiff", and that the sheriff of Cook county, on or

about the 12th day of January, 1855, by virtue of said writ, took
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said colts from the possession of the said plaintiff and delivered

.them to the said defendant.

Defendant below then proved the making of a demand for the

' colts when in possession of the plaintiff, and his refusal to de-

liver up until he had been paid for keeping, etc.

Jury returned a verdict for the defendant below. A motion

;for a new trial w^as overruled by the court.

GooDSPEED & Bartleson, for Plaintiff in Error.

J. McRoBERTS, for Defendant in Error.

Caton, C. J. This action was brought to recover the costs of

taking up and advertising, and the value of the keeping of two
estray colts. The evidence shows, that after the colts had been

regularly taken up, appraised, and notice given, by the plaintiff,

the defendant, who claimed to own the colts, replevied them,

and refused to pay the costs and value of keeping; and the court

instructed that he was not liable. In this the court erred. The
statute authorized the plaintiff to proceed as he did, and ex-

pressly confers upon him the right to be reimbursed before the

• owner shall be entitled to take the property. Tlie legislature

'has the undoubted right to provide for the protection and care of
' estray property, and impose the obligation upon the owner to

pay the expense thereof. But the question here is not whether
the owner would be liable, in case he chose to abandon the prop-

erty rather than pay the charges. The owner replevied the

[property from the possession of the plaintiff, and he was under
both a moral and a legal obligation to pay the expense of taking

up, advertising, and for keeping.

The judgment must be reversed and the cause remanded.
Judgment reversed.

William Lincoln et al, Plaintiffs in Error, v. The People,

Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO TAZEWELL.

Where the witnesses maybe mistaken in identifying the accused, by reason of a
slight acquaintance with him, and an alibi is clearly proven by other witnesses,

who give their residence and occupation, so that the truth or falsity of their tes-

timony may be inquired into on another trial, the court will give the accused the

benefit of a second trial.
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This was an indictment, found against David and William

Lincoln, for the larceny of a large iron gray horse. The
defendants pleaded not guilty.

The testimony in the case was as follows :

John Smith testified that a large iron gray horse was stolen

out of his pasture, in Tazewell county, near Groveland, on the

night of the 29th of September last.

A. J. Davis. Had a horse stolen the same night—a straw-

berry roan.

B. G. Roe. Was slightly acquainted with the defendants.

I saw them in Groveland, Tazewell county, on the 29th of Sep-

tember, 1857—that I supposed to be the defendants. I was not

then acquainted with them. They were there the evening

before the horses were stolen. Hinman and I were in the

street. The men I have spoken of came up to Hinman and
made some inquiries—I do not know what. I cannot say how
they were dressed ; think they had on dark clothes ; one had a

drab hat, the other a cap. They went south, on foot. I saw
William Lincoln at the examination, and recognized him as one

of the men I had seen at Groveland. I also recognized Joseph
Lincoln as dna of the same.

Georg'e Hinman. I think I saw these defendants in Grove-

land the night before the horses were stolen. One of them
asked me if I knew of any person that wanted to hire hands,

and showed me a paper with name of Brown upon it. I told

them I could show them where Brown lived, but they said it

was too late to go there that night. They were dressed in

black, I think. One had whiskers, the other had not. I had
no acquaintance with the defendants. I do not know that I

ever saw either of them before I saw them in Groveland. I

saw William Lincoln at the examination, and saw Joseph Lin-

coln on the side-walk. I recognized them both as the same men
I saw in Groveland the night before the horses were stolen.

John Griffith, I saw the defendants at my house, in Grove-

land, the evening before the horses were stolen. They stopped

but a few minutes. I saw William at Greely's, at the examina-
tion, and recognized him as ont) I had seen at Groveland. I

never saw the other man until I saw him at court, Thev were
dressed in dark clothes. I never knew either of the defendants

before I saw them at Groveland.

Robert Samuels, sworn. Said he resided in Bath, Mason
county. Did not know the defendants. Saw a couple of horses,

of the description mentioned, pass through Bath some time

about the last of September, 1857. There are two persons here

answering the description of the persons having the horses. I

believe the defendants to be the same persons. I think I saw
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Joseph, a year ago, in Havana ; he looks like the same man.
One horse was a strawberry roan, one a large iron gray. They
rode past my house in a walk. I had never seen them before.

Both had on dark clothes. I only saw them as they passed. I

think they are the same men, but am not certain.

Henry Welch. I live seven miles below Bath. I saw two
horses, ridden by two men, about the 1st of October, 1857.

One was an iron gray horse, the other a strawberry roan. The
horses bore the description given by the witnesses. I do not

know the men ; they were dressed in black. The defendants

look like the same men, but I am not certain ; was not nearer

then forty yards to them.

Moses Doolet/, called for defendants. I live in Mason county,

about five miles north-east of Havana. I know Joseph Lincoln.

I saw him first the 26th of September, 1857. On the 29th and
30th of September, I hired him to help me cut corn that I had
agreed to cut for Jacob S. Brown. He staid at Jacob S.

Brown's from the 26th of September till the 5th of October.

He was at my brother's sale, with me, on the 1st day of Octo-

ber. I know it was the 26th he came there, because my broth-

er's sale was on the 1st of October. I slept with him every

night he was there. I have lived in Mason county thirteen

years. I have never talked with the defendants or their counsel.

Jacob S. Brown, sworn on the part of the defendants. I

have known the defendants since they were children. Joseph
Lincoln came to my house on the 26th of September last, and
staid there about ten days. He was there every day and night.

The defendants came to this State about three years ago.

Witness' wife was a relation of defendants.

W. R. Phelps, for the people. I was living at Moscow, in

Mason county, in September last. About a mile below that

place, about the 1st or 2nd of October last, I saw two men
come into the road ahead of me, one riding a roan horse, the

other an iron gray ; the largest was riding the gray. Defend-

ants look like the same men.
Amos Smith, sworn. I do not know the defendants. I saw

William Lincoln in Jersey county in November. He had
whiskers on then. I arrested him. He was very anxious to

get shaved.

The jury found the defendants guilty. The defendants moved
for a new trial, which was overruled, to which the defendants

excepted.

James Robeets, and A. L. Davison, for Plaintiffs in Error.

W. BusHNELL, District Attorney, for the People.
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Caton, C. J. We think this case should be submitted to

another jury. The witnesses who express the opinion that the

persons whom they saw at Groveland on the occasion before the

horses were stolen, and express the opinion that the prisoners

are the same persons, had no previous acquaintance with them,

and had never seen them before, and might have been mistaken

in their identity ; and those who saw the persons riding the

stolen horses, had less opportunity of observing them, and were
still more likely to be mistaken. On the other hand, the wit-

nesses, Dooley and Brown, who prove the alibi, could not

possibly be mistaken in what they swore to. Unless their testi-

mony is all unmitigated perjury, the prisoners are not guilty.

These witnesses give their residence and occupation, and state

circumstances, which, upon another trial, will enable it to be

shown whether they have told the truth or a falsehood. We
think that safety and justice require that the cause should be

again tried.

The judgment must be reversed and the cause remanded.
Judgment reversed.

William Harwood, Plaintiff in Error, v. John W. Johnson

and George H. Kiersted, Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO MORRIS COUNTY COURT.

Where a party has disposed of property, being misled by the false pretenses of the

purchaser, and has taken a note for the payment, and is about to reclaim it from
the vendee, if a third party, upon being informed of the facts, puts his name to

the note as security, two days after it was given, by reason whereof the prop-

erty is not reclaimed, such third party will be liable in an action on the note.

Summons issued Oct. 20th, 1856 ; summons returned by sheriff,

served by reading the same to George H. Kiersted, Oct. 20th,

1856, and that John Johnson was not found.

The declaration was on a note, dated February 16th, 1856,
executed by defendants, and payable to plaintiff, for one hundred
and twenty-five dollars, with use.

There was a count for goods sold and delivered ; for money
lent and advanced to, and paid, laid out, and expended for

defendant ; for money had and received to and for the use of

the plaintiff.

Plea, non-assumpsit, by George H. Kiersted, and similiter by
plaintiff.
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Jury find a verdict, no cause of action ; motion by plaintiff to

set aside verdict, and for a new trial,

1st. Because tlie verdict is against the evidence.

2nd. Because the verdict is against the instructions of the

court, on the part of plaintiff.

3rd. Because of the instructions given by the court to the

jury, on part of defense, and objected to by plaintiff.

This motion was overruled by the court, and the following

bill of exceptions was thereupon filed :

And now, to wit, March 3rd, A. D. 1857, this cause came on

to be tried before the court and a jury, and the plaintiff gave in

evidence a note, in the words and figures following

:

Morris February 16, 1856

on or Befour the tenth Day of March next Eye Promis to Pay to William

Harwood or order one hundred and twenty five Dollers for Value Rec with use.

JOHN W JOHNSON
Security Geo H Kieksted.

Here the plaintiff rested his case.

The defendant then called William T. Hopkins, who testified

that he never saw the note ; that Teter asked him if he (Hop-
kins) had sold a farm to Johnson ; told him no ; told him John-

son did not own the farm he lived on ; that it was a farm he

rented of him (Hopkins); Teter then said Harwood had sold

Johnson a horse ; that Johnson had said he owned a farm ; told

Teter that Johnson was not good for the horse ; that he was
preparing to go away. This conversation was on Monday, Feb-

ruary 18th, 1856 ; the horse was sold on Saturday previous.

Harwood was present, and said he had sold a horse to Johnson
for $125, on his representing that he was worth a farm and
horses ; said he had delivered the horse, and think he said he

had taken the note ; the note corresponds with the price ; told

Harwood Johnson had obtained his horse through fraud, to go
and give up his note and take his horse ; that whilst they were
talking, Johnson came into town with a team ; told Teter and
Harwood to go and take the horse ; they started after Johnson,

and soon returned and said thev had fixed it ; that Kiersted had
gone security on the note ; that his impression is it was on Mon-
day ; bought the horse of Johnson the same day ; think Teter

consulted him on Saturday or Sunday previous, but his recollec-

tion is indistinct.

Cross-examined. Knew Johnson two years before the note

was given ; he had no interest in the " Le Bar" farm ; it was
owned by Butler ; one hundred acres of the farm were im-

proved ; Johnson had no contract for the purchase of the farm,

and he never paid anything on it ; was the agent of Butler

;

superintended the renting of the place ; Johnson rented it ; John-
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son owned no land to his knowledge ; knew his circumstances
;

if he had owned any, should have known it ; leased him the Le
Bar farm ; Johnson had some horses, think three ; they were
mortgaged to Reading and Hopkins, to secure them on a bond
signed by them to Stone Petersen ; the mortgage was as much,

or nearly as much, as the horses were worth ; Johnson had no

other property that he knew of; advised Harwood to go and
take the horse where he might be found, and if they could not

get him, would have a writ of replevin issued for him ; Johnson's

lease of the Le Bar farm had expired at the time of the sale of

the horse.

Examination in chief resumed. Told Harwood Johnson was
about to run away ; that he was giving his notes and getting

property ; Johnson left the county about the 10th of March,
1856 ; has not returned since.

George Brady ^ called and sworn on part of the defense, said,

he remembered a conversation between Harwood and Kiersted

about a year since ; that Kiersted called to him to note a re-

mark made by Harwood ; Harwood admitted that he knew
Johnson was going away for some time previous ; Kiersted said

he was not tredted fair, he ought not to pay the note ; if he had
known Johnson was going away, he could have detained him

;

nothing was said about the signature ; did not know whether
Harwood said he had told Kiersted Johnson was going away

;

did not recollect that Harwood claimed to have told Kiersted

that Johnson was going away ; Kiersted claimed in the conver-

sation that Harwood knew Johnson was going away, and did

not inform him of that fact.

Cross-examined. Paid no attention to the conversation until

my attention was called ; they were in his store ; was attending

to the business of his store ; heard nothing until his attention

was called ; they were disputing—talking loudly and excited
;

that Harwood might have asserted some things and he not have
heard them ; it was a busy day ; they were put out with each
other and excited ; only heard what Kiersted called him to

note ; heard nothing afterwards
;
paid no further attention.

The plain tifl' then called John W. Teter, who testified, that

he was present when the note was given ; that it was in his

hand-writing ; the parties came to his house, Saturday, after

dark ; Johnson asked him if he would write him a note for

Harwood ; Johnson said he had bought his (Harwood's) mare

;

that Harwood was no scholar ; Harwood then said that he was
about to sell Johnson his mare, but did not know whether he
would let him have her or not ; that he did not know him ; that

he (Teter) felt interested for Harwood, who was a poor, and
honest, and industrious man, without education, and called on
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him generally to do his business for him ; asked Johnson about

his responsibility ; he said he had bought the Le Bar farm

;

that he had paid $2,500 for it ; said he owned three other

horses, and wanted this to make up a team, as there was one
hundred acres broke on the farm, and it would need two teams

;

said he had four or five head of cattle ; that he had 600 or

1,000 bushels of corn on hand, but did not want to sell it until

he could get a better price ; that he expected to get the money
to pay for the mare from his father-in-law, and therefore wanted
ten days longer on the note ; that he (Teter) then wrote the note

and handed it to Johnson, and he handed it to Harwood ; Johnson
said he always paid his notes when due, and this we could learn

from Hopkins and Bishop, in Morris ; that Harwood recently

came to him (Teter) to attend to his business ; wrote most of

his letters ; saw Harwood give the horse to Johnson ; came to

town with Harwood on Monday morning ; called on Hopkins
for the purpose of ascertaining about Johnson's responsibility

;

went to Hopkins alone ; asked him whether Johnson had bought

the " Le Bar " farm ; he replied, no, that the farm was sold to

some man in New York ; that Johnson had no horses ; that

Johnson had two or three horses, but they were mortgaged to

Reading & Hopkins ; that Johnson owned no cattle ; that he

had the use of a cow owned by him (Hopkins) ; that Johnson
owned no corn, but had been stealing his (Hopkins') corn, and
selling it in Morris ; told Hopkins of the bargain between Har-
wood and Johnson ; Hopkins said, go and take the mare, John-

son is going to run away ; went on the street ; met Harwood
;

told him what Hopkins had said ; Johnson came along with a

team ; had the mare in it ; went to him, and Harwood said to

him that he wanted his horse ; that he had got him under false

pretenses ; Harwood was very angry ; that he (Teter) then

said to Johnson, Harwood wants his mare, as you have obtained

her by false pretenses ; Johnson asked him who, said so ; told

him Hopkins ; Johnson then said if Harwood was not satisfied,

he would give him security ; told him that Hopkins said that he

(Johnson) did not own the Le Bar farm ; he said he had bought

it, and paid $500 on it ; that he wanted Harwood satisfied

;

went with Johnson down street, to hunt Kiersted ; found him
in Ross' grocery ; Johnson asked Kiersted to go on his note

;

Kiersted said he would ; Johnson then told him what Hopkins
had sarid about his (Johnson's) responsibility, and being the

owner of property, and of his being about to run away, as it

had been told to me by Hopkins, as before stated ; Kiersted

replied that Hopkins was a damn'd liar, and was trying to in-

jure Johnson ; Johnson then left ; that he (Teter) then told

Kiersted what Johnson had said about buying the " Le Bar"
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farm ; that Kiersted told him to ask Jolmson about it when he

came back ; told Kiersted that Hopkins said Johnson did not

own the farm ; when Johnson returned, asked him whether he

had bought the " Le Bar" farm and paid $500 on it; this was
in the presence of Kiersted ; Johnson said he had bought it,

and had paid $50,0 on it, and had a better right to it than Hop-
kins, or any other man ; Kiersted then said that he had signed

a note for Johnson for $140, and that Johnson had paid it, and
that he (Kiersted) would sign this ; told Kiersted that Har-
wood was not going to let Johnson have the horse in this way

;

Kiersted replied that Johnson was good, and Hopkins was
trying to injure him, and he would sign the note, and Harwood
had better let Johnson keep the horse ; Kiersted said Hopkins
was saying these things to injure Johnson, and that Johnson
was as good as Hopkins; this conversation was at the time

Kiersted signed the note ; Harwood let Johnson retain the

horse ; saw Hopkins have the horse afterwards.

Cross-examined. Drew this note for the parties on Saturday;

it was then delivered by Johnson to Harwood ; the horse was
delivered by Harwood to Johnson the same day ; the talk with

Hopkins, Johns'on and Kiersted was on Monday ; Johnson said

to Kiersted, " don't you think the rascal Hopkins says I am
going to run away ;" Harwood told Johnson that he would
have his horse or the pay for it ; that he (Teter) had stated

all the agreement there was about it. Here the testimony

closed on both sides, and which was all the testimony in the

case.

Instructions on the part of the plaintiff, and given by the

court

:

1st. That the note sued upon, and given in evidence in this

case, is a joint and several note, and although it shows upon its

face that Kiersted is only the surety, that that does not alter the

form of the instrument, and that, by the form of the promissory

note given in evidence, each of the signers, John Johnson and
George H. Kiersted, is liable as an original promissor, and the

action is well brought against them as joint makers.

2nd. That although the jury may believe, from the evidence,

that the plaintiff Harwood was, in good faith, and believing

that he had a right so to do, about to replevy the horse, for

which the note was given, or personally to take possession of

him and rescind the contract ; and that, in consideration that

Harwood would permit Johnson to retain possession of the

horse, Kiersted signed the note ; and that, in consideration of

Kiersted's signing the note, Harwood did permit Johnson to

keep the horse, the consideration was sufficient to bind Kiersted

for the amount specified in the note.
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3rd. That although the jury may believe, from the evidence,

that Kiersted signed the note a couple of days after it had been
signed by Johnson, yet the parties to the note had a right to

put it into such a shape, in reference to the date, as they saw
proper, and might agree that Kiersted' s liability should relate

back to the date of the note, and that agreement may be as well

implied from all the circumstances in proof, in reference to

Kiersted's signing the note, as though it had been by express

agreement, provided that the jury are satisfied that such was the

intent of the parties.

4th. That if the jury believe, from the evidence, that Har-
wood gave to Kiersted, at the time, or immediately before

Kiersted signed the note, all the information in reference to the

ability of Johnson to pay, as well as all the information he had
in reference to Johnson's honesty and integrity, and the inten-

tions of the said Johnson, the law is for the plaintiff, and Kier-

sted cannot avoid the payment of the note by alleging fraud

practiced upon him by Harwood, in withholding information.

5th. That the evidence given by the defendant, in reference

to the time that Kiersted signed the note, was let in to the jury

for the purpose of showing the consideration of Kiersted's

signing the note, and not to change the form of the instrument,

for the form of the instrument cannot be changed by parol testi-

mony, and if Kiersted is liable upon the note, the action is well

brought against him and Johnson jointly.

6th. That if the jury believe, from the evidence, that Johnson
stated to Harwood, at the time that the contract was made for

the horse, for which the note was given, that he (Johnson) had
bought a farm, called the " Le Bar " farm, on which he had paid

$500, and which he still held, and that in addition to that, he
was the owner of several head of horses, and that the statement

so made by Johnson was false ; and if they further believe, from
the evidence, that Harwood, at the time the horse was sold,

relied upon the statements of Johnson as to his ability to pay,

the false representations thus made to Johnson were a fraud

upon Harwood, and gave him the right to rescind the contract.

Instructions on the part of the defense, but objected to on the

part of the plaintiff: objection overruled, and plaintiff excepted.

1st. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the note

offered in evidence by the plaintiff was not signed as security by
the defendant Kiersted, contemporaneous with the time it was
executed and delivered to plaintiff by Johnson, and not until

some days after the original transaction and delivery of the

note, Kiersted would not be liable, unless some new and valid

consideration be proved.
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2nd. That the original consideration of the note would not

support the promise of Kiersted, unless the jury believe, from

the evidence, that Kiersted signed the note at the time of the

original transaction and execution of the note.

3rd. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the consid-

eration for which Kiersted signed the note was that the plaintiff

would not commit a trespass upon the property or person of

Johnson, such consideration is not legally binding.

4th. That an agreement to forbear a suit must be mutually

understood, agreed upon in terms, and binding, to support a

consideration of guaranty, and, therefore, if the jury believe,

from the evidence, that no suit of any kind was mentioned or

agreed to be forborne by Harwood against Johnson at the time

Kiersted signed the note, and that such signing was done after

the original transaction and delivery of the note between John-

son and Harwood, then it is not competent for the plaintiff to

set up the forbearance of Harwood to sue Johnson in support of

the new consideration.

The County Court gave judgment for costs against the plaintiff

in the court below.

This cause wa^ argued at the previous term, when the follow-

ing opinion was prepared by Mr. Justice Scates, but was with-

held from record. The opinion has been adopted by the justices

at the present term, as their opinion and judgment.

Seeley & Baugher, for Plaintiff in Error.

S. W. Harris, for Defendants in Error.

Scates, J. Promises and agreements, as between the par-

ties, to be binding, umst be made upon a legal consideration.

And this consideration is equally necessary to support the

promise of mere sureties and guarantors. Where the original

agreement is that sureties shall sign it, and a guaranty be given,

the original consideration between the parties will support the

promise of the surety or guarantor. Camden et al. v. McKay
et a/., 3 Scam. R. 441; Klein v. Currier, 14 111. R. 237;
Neelson v. Sanboi-ne, 2 N. Hamp. R. 413 ; Bailey v. Freeman,
11 John. R. 221 ; Wheelwright v. Moore, 2 Hall R. 148 ; Flagg
V. Upham, 10 Pick. R. 147.

Guaranties, being collateral undertakings for the debt of

another, should not only be in writing to be binding under the

statute of frauds, but, according to the English rule laid down
on this subject, the consideration as well as the promise must
be expressed in the writing. Main v. Warlters, 5 East R. 10

;
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Saunders v. Wakefield, 4 Barn, and Aid. R. 595; Jenkins y.

Reynolds, 3 Brod. and Bing. 14.

But this has not been followed in many of the States— parol

evidence being admitted to show the consideration. Packard^.
Richardson, 17 Mass. R. 122 ; Leonard v. Vredenburgh, 8 John.

R. 29 ; De Wolf v. Raband et al., 1 Pet. R. 501.

Still, whether the consideration be in the writing signed by
the surety or guarantor, or be shown by parol evidence, the

original consideration between the parties, with some exceptions

introduced by statute, as when further security is given by an
ofi&cer, an administrator or guardian, as in Amnions v. The
People, 11 111. R. 7, will not support the promise of one
who subsequently signs the obligation as surety or as a guar-

antor. A new consideration must be shown. Clark v. Small

Sf Brown, 6 Yerg. R. 418 ; 8 John R. 29 ; Tenny v. Prince, 4
Pick. R. 385 ; Same v. Same, 7 Pick. R. 242.

That consideration may be a subsisting legal obligation to do
the same thing promised, or a moral obligation to discharge an
old legal one not enforcible, Cook v. Bradley, 7 Conn. R. 57 ; or

some matter of advantage to the promissor, or the debtor, or of

detriment to the promissee—as forbearing suit, or other legal

remedy or redress—Chit, on Cont. 35 to 38—whether commenced
or not—id. 36 a; the waiver of a legal right at the request of

another, id. 33, note 2 ; or the waiver of a tort, and with agree-

ment to prove under a bankruptcy. Brealey v. Andreiv, 2 Nev.
& Perry R. 114 ; S. C. 7 Adol. & Ellis R. 108. And a guar-

anty may have a retrospective operation, so as to embrace debts

already contracted, where it clearly appears that such was the

intention of the parties. Abrams v. Pomeroy et al., 13 111.

R. 133.

Tested by these principles, and there appears ample evidence

to sustain the promise of defendant on signing this note as surety,

though signed a day or so after its execution by Johnson.

There can be no question that he obtained credit for the mare,
and induced plaintiff to take the note, by false and fraudulent

representations, proved be to such by the very person to whom
he referred plaintifl" to sustain his credit and coroborate his

statements.

Upon making discovery of this fraud, and being informed of

Johnson's intention of leaving the country, plaintiff determined
to rescind the contract for the fraud, and reclaim his mare.
This he immediately proceeded to do, charging Johnson with
the fraud and design of leaving as he was informed. Johnson
proposed to give security—when defendant, on being informed

of all these circumstances, agreed to and did become his surety,

declaring that it was not true, and was intended to injure John-
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son. We cannot doubt plaintiflF's intention and right to redress

his wrong, and that he would have done so but for the interpo-

sition of defendant, and that defendant interposed with a view

to arrest that course, with a full knowledge of all the facts.

Plaintiff 's forbearance to pursue his redress while in his power,

would cause him the loss of his mare, if not permitted to enforce

the promise upon faith of which he relied.

This state of things was manifest from all the circumstances

of what was said and done, and needed no agreement in terms

to be mentioned, as declared in the last instruction for defend-

ant. We think the instruction erroneous, and calculated to mis-

lead the jury, by impressing upon them the idea that the facts

showing an intention to bring suit, and a forbearance to do so,

must appear by express agreement. It may appear by implica-

tion from the circumstances, the declarations and acts of the

parties, as well as by agreements.

We can lay no stress upon the want of a formal offer to return

the note at the time plaintiff reclaimed the mare.

We think the jury have clearly mistaken the rights of the

plaintiff, and the liability of the defendant, under this evidence,

and that a new t/ial ought to be granted.

Judgment reversed and cause remanded for a new trial.

Judgment reversed.

We concur in the judgment reversing the judgment below, and
in the opinion,

. 0. C. Skinner,

J. D. Caton.

The Michigan Southern and Northern Indiana Railroad

Company, Appellant, v. Justin Day, Junior, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM COOK.

"Where a box, shipped at Adrian for Chicago (the usual railroad time of transport-

ation being three days) on the twenty-ninth October, arrived at Chicago on the

third of November, and was not delivered by the freight agent until the fifteenth

of the latter month, this will be considered so unreasonable a delay as to entitle

the owner to damages.
Where the agent of a railroad company for the delivery of freight, authorized to

make all necessary arrangements as to the time and place of its delivery, agrees

to forward freight by another company, or by a line of boats, if this agreement
is neglected, the railroad company will be liable.

Where it is the custom of a railroad company to receive the directions of shippers

and owners of goods to be sent beyond the terminus of their road, if directions

are given to forward by a particular line, which are not obeyed, the railroad com-
pany will be liable.
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Shippers and owners of goods have the right to control their destination ; and if

their directions are obeyed, no responsibility for loss is incurred.

The employment of an agent, by a railroad company, to deliver all freights, neces-

sarily includes the authority to make terms for its delivery at or beyond the

terminus of the road.

This was an action of assumpsit, alleging a contract to carry

a box from Adrian to Chicago, the box containing certain goods
of the value of $3,000. There was a second count, same as the

first, except that it alleges that the appellant undertook to deliver

the goods in Chicago in three days from the date of the receipt

for the box. There was a third count, averring a promise to

deliver the box in a reasonable time. To this declaration the

general issue was pleaded. There was a trial before Manierre,
Judge, and a jury, and a verdict and judgment for the appellee,

for eight hundred and twenty dollars.

N, B. JuDD, and F. Winston, for Appellant.

H. B. HuRD, for Appellee.

Breese, J. This is an action of assumpsit, by Day against

the M. S. and N. I. Railroad Company, as a common carrier,

on a contract, as alleged in the first count of the declaration, to

carry a box, containing certain goods and merchandize, from
Adrian to Chicago. The second count alleges that the defen-

dant undertook to deliver the goods in three days from the date

of their receipt, and in the third count, to deliver in a reasonable

time, with breaches assigned.

Trial, and verdict and judgment for the plaintiff, and motion
for new trial, which being refused, the evidence was preserved

by bill of exceptions, and the case Ijrought here by appeal.

The errors assigned are : first, admiting improper evidence on
the part of the plaintiif ; second, overruling appellant's objec-

tions to the testimony offered by the plaintiff; third, giving the

instructions asked by the plaintiff; fourth, refusing and modi-

fying the instructions asked by the defendant ; and fifth, over-

ruling the motion for a new trial, and " in every other step

taken and opinion rendered from the beginning to the end of the

trial."

We may remark here, that the portion of the fifth error

assigned, marked by inverted commas, is wanting in that respect

to the court, trying the cause, which every member of the bar

should show toward it, when complaining of its judgments. It

amounts to a wholesale denunciation of the court, and cannot be

permitted without the censure and rebuke of this court. It

ought to be known, that errors, which are relied on to reverse a
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judgment, should be specially assigned, and no general state-

ment, involving censure of the court, can be tolerated.

The second error assigned, is embraced in the first, so that

we have to consider only the first, third, fourth, and the unexcep-

tionable portion of the fifth assignment.

It vidll not, however, under the view we take of the case, be
necessary to consider particularly the errors as they are assigned,

inasmuch as on the argument of the cause, one important ques-

tion only was presented, and urged upon our attention, and that

is, " did the railroad company make a proper delivery of the

goods ?"

It is urged on the part of the appellant that there was no
delay in their delivery, they having been shipped at Adrian on
the 29th of October, arriving at Chicago on the 3rd of Novem-
ber, and delivered by the freight agent on the 15th of that

month.

We think, considering the distance between the two points,

and the time they were received, a delay of twelve days before

their delivery, was unreasonable, and would subject the com-
pany to damages on that score, if no other. Where, in case for

the non-delivery of a parcel in a reasonable time, it appeared
that the parcel in, question, had been delivered to the defendant,

in London, on the 8th of August, addressed to the plaintifi", at

Birmingham, where it should have arrived on the 10th, but did

not arrive until the 3rd or 4th of September, it was held

upon this evidence, that the plaintiff was entitled to recover.

Raphal v. Pickford, 6 Scott New R. 478. But it is said, if the

delay was unreasonable, the railroad company is not liable

as carrier, but only as warehouseman or factor, and should be
declared against as such ; that its contract to carry terminated

when the goods reached Chicago, and that the direction by
their owner to deliver them to a particular packet line, and the

agreement to do so by the agent of the company, is a new con-

tract, which the agent had no authority to make to bind the

company ; that so soon as the owner of the goods interposed his

directions, the common law liability of the company ceased on
the arrival of the goods at Chicago.

On this proposition this controversy depends, and raises the

question, " was there a proper delivery of the goods ?"

H. L. Kingsbury states in his testimony, that he, as agent of

Day, the owner, delivered a written order to Smith, the freight

delivery agent of the company, to deliver the goods at the
" Red Bird " packet of&ce, whence they were to be shipped to

La Salle ; that Smith made a memorandum of the order in his

book, and engaged so to deliver them, and this before it was
known that the goods had arrived at Chicago.

25
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Gilbert Roseter states, and so does James Turner, that it was
the custom of the appellant to forward goods that were marked
to go forward ; that in such cases they were delivered by the

agents of the company to forwarders, to be sent to their destina-

tion, and goods that were directed to merchants in the city, who
were known to the company, were delivered to them at their

stores. They concur in stating, that Smith was in the habit of

taking orders from persons to whom goods were marked, at

Chicago, to deliver them at the desired places, to be forwarded.

This was the course of business adopted by this company, and
from xhe testimony we should infer it was their uniform practice.

The appellant seems to be under the impression, that the con-

tract with Smith was to forward the goods, and there being no

count in the declaration on such an undertaking, the court

should have instructed accordingly.

It will be borne in mind, that the declaration counts upon
a contract to carry and deliver the goods, and by the contract

the company was bound to deliver them at Chicago, as the owner
might direct, if such direction was within the usual course and
custom of the business of the company, or within the general

custom of roads terminating at Chicago. On this point, we
have adverted to the proof, which is. quite satisfactory, that

Smith was the agent of the company, for the delivery of all

freight arriving at Chicago, from their road, and was authorized

to inake all the necessary arrangements in regard to their deliv-

ery, both as to place, and to the manner of their delivery.

It is laid down as an universal principle, that whether the

agency be of a special or general nature, that it includes, unless

the inference is expressly excluded by other circumstances, all

the usual modes and means of accomplishing the ends and objects

of the agency. Story on Agency, sec. 85. And if the agency

arises by implication from numerous acts done by the agent, with

the tacit consent or acquiescence of the principal, it is deemed
to be limited to acts of the like nature. lb., sec. 87. Paleyon
Agency, 209, 210.

The employment of Smith, therefore, to deliver all freights,

necessarily includes the authority to make terms in regard to

the delivery—to undertake to deliver them to a particular per-

son, or at a particular place, within the place to which they are

directed. Smith acting within his powei's, as agent of the com-
pany, as he had been in the habit of acting, and as the nature of

the business in which he was engaged required he should act,

and as the law made it his duty to act, the only remaining ques-

tion of importance is, are common carriers bound to obey the

instructions of the shipper, or owner of the goods, in regard to

their delivery ?
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The undertaking of a common carrier to transport goods to a

particular destination, it is said, necessarily includes the duty of

delivering them in safety, and his obligation to deliver safely

can only be avoided by the act of God or the public enemy.

It is not sufficient that the goods be carried safely, but they

must, and without any demand upon the carrier, be delivered,

and when his responsibility has begun, it continues until there

has been a due delivery. Angel on Carriers, sec. 282.

So it' is held, sec. 281, if a carrier is instructed by his em-

ployer to deliver goods on board of another vessel for a contin-

uance of the transportation, and the goods are lost on board

such other vessel, he is not responsible if he has safely placed

them on board such other vessel, as, by so doing, his character

as common carrier has ceased.

The doctrine pervades the books, that tlie instructions of the

owner or freighter must be obeyed as to the delivery, and if

they do obey them in good faith, they are released from lia-

bility.

In 8 Cowen R. 223, Ackleij and Gray v. Kellogg et al.^ com-
mon carriers, who received goods to transport from New York
to Troy, and at t)ie latter place transferred them, pursuant to

instructions from the bailor, on board a canal boat bound for the

north, and the goods were lost by the upsetting of the boat,

were held not to be liable, that their character as common carriers

ceased at Troy, and that having taken proper care that the

goods were safely put on board the canal boat, they were not

responsible for the loss. So where the master of a vessel is

directed to tranship, or deliver on board another vessel, a de-

livery on board such other vessel is the termination of the duty

of a common carrier. Van Santwood v. St. John, 6 Hill's R.
158.

The case shows, that the direction of the freighter or owner
must be obeyed to the letter, and if obeyed, no responsibility

for loss is incurred.

A case running on all fours with this is reported in 18 Eng.
L. and Eq. Reports, arising in the Court of Excliequer, 554

—

557, Scotthorn v. The South Staffordshire Pudlway Company.
It appeared on the trial of the cause, that the plaintiffs, who
had been engineers carrying on business near " Great Bridge "

in Staflbrdshire, having resolved to emigrate to Australia, liad

purchased a variety of articles necessary for the undertaking,

and one of them had come up to London to take his passage

by the ship Melbourne. Before doing so, however, he delivered

the goods in question, packed, and labeled " Scotthorn & Co.,

to the East India docks, passenger ship Melbourne, Australia,"

to his brother-in-law, to be forwarded to London. The goods were
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accordingly sent to the Great Bridge station of the South Staf-

fordshire Railway, and one pound paid for their conveyance to

London. By the practice of the S. S. Railway, all goods

received at that station are forwarded as far as Birmingham
by their own line, and for the rest of the journey by the London
and North-Western Railway.

Before the goods arrived in London, Scotthorn having found

that no berths could be obtained in the Melbourne, called at the

Easton station and left with a clerk in the office, a receipt which
had been given for the goods, having previously written across

it, " Send the boxes, &c., to Scotthorn & Co., engineers, Bell

Wharf, Ratcliffe Highway, London. George Scotthorn." The
clerk promised that the fresh direction should be obeyed, and
on being asked, said that no additional charge would be made.

The goods were, however, taken to the Melbourne, carried to

Australia, and lost to the plaintiff.

On these facts it was contended by the company that there

was no evidence to support the contract in the declaration, and
the judge left it with the jury to say whether the clerk at the

Easton station had authority from the company to receive the

countermand given, and directed them, if they thought he had,

to find for the plaintiff; at the same time reserving the right to

the defendants to move to enter a non-suit. The jury found for

the plaintiff, and defendants having moved for a rule to show
cause why a non-suit should not be entered, after argument for

and against, the court discharged the rule.

Baron Alderson said, " the whole question is, what was the

contract between the parties ? And that actually amounts to a

question of fact. Now there is abundant evidence to show that

the contract was as stated in the declaration, to carry according

to the directions of the plaintiffs. It is very true that origi-

nally, when the defendants were put in possession of the goods,

the orders were to take them to the East India docks ; but

before their arrival in London, the plaintiffs having changed
their intentions, communicated that change to the agent of the

defendants in London, who had authority to deliver the goods.

The altered directions were, ' Do not send the things to the place

marked on the outside of the packages, but transmit them else-

where.' The question is not, whether the clerk had power to

make a new contract on behalf of the defendants ; it is enough
that he was told not to send them according to the w^ritten

'directions. By some neglect, the instructions were not obeyed;

the articles are sent to Australia and lost. Then, have the

defendants performed their contract ? I think there was ample

evidence to go to the jury to show that they have not, and that
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the verdict is therefore right." In this view the other Barons,

Piatt and Martin, concurred.

It being in proof that it was the custom of this company to

receive the directions of shippers and owners of goods to be

sent beyond Chicago, and to follow those directions, and deliver

as directed, if they had delivered the goods to the " Red Bird "

packet office, as they had agreed to do, and they had been lost or

damaged, the company would not have been liable, except for the

delay in delivering. Without any authority whatever, and con-

trary to the express understanding of the agent, Smith, the

goods were delivered to another and different line. There is,

therefore, no delivery according to the contract, as the jury have
found, and we think correctly.

No objection is perceived to any of the instructions given by
the court, coming up, as they do, to the views here expressed.

When the great changes in the course of business, which rail-

roads have introduced, are considered, the importance of well

defined rules as to their duties and obligations to the public is

so very obvious, that nothing need be said on that head. These
modes of conveyance have now nearly all the passenger business,

and a large proportion of the freights, and are now so connected

with the business ahd affairs of life as to be indispensable ; and
whilst the courts will not feel it their duty or right to hold them
liable beyond the clear and well defined boundary of a just

responsibility, up to that they will be held, and a reasonably

strict performance of all their contracts required of them.

Holding as we do, on principle and authority, that a contract

to carry is not performed without a delivery, and that the

responsibility of carriers does not cease until there is a delivery,

and that they are bound to obey the directions of shippers and
owners of freight as to its delivery, within the limits we have

prescribed, we can see no ground for disturbing the judgment
in this case, and accordingly affirm the same.

Judgment affirmed.

John Conner et al, Plaintiffs in Error, v. The People,

Defendants in Error. The Same v. The Same, and

The Same v. The Same.

ERROR TO McLean.

A scire facias upon a recognizance should aver that the recognizance had been

returned to, and made matter of record, in the Circuit Court; also, that there

had been a judgment of forfeiture against the defendants.
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The scirefacias takes the place, in this State, of a summons and declaration, and
should show every allegation necessary to a recovery.

The facts in these cases are precisely similar. The judg-

ments were rendered by Davis, Juda,'e, at the September term,

1856. . •

At the April term, 1855, the grand jury presented an indict-

ment against John Conner, to the McLean Circuit Court, then

in session, and on same day a capias issued, which was returned
" not found."

And on the 21th of April, 1855, an alias capias issued, which
was returned " Executed by arrest of Conner, and his discharge

by executing bond in penal sum of ^200, with Patrick Ryan
and Daniel Kinney as securities."

At the September term, 1855, a forfeiture of said bond or

recognizance was declared, and a scire facias ordered to be

issued, and in February, 1856, a scire facias issued out of the

clerk's office of said court to the sheriff of McLean county to

execute, and returnable on the first Monday in April following.

Said writ of scire facias was returned executed on John Con-

ner and Patrick Ryan. Daniel Kinney was " not found."

At the September term, 1856, final judgment was rendered

on said bond or recognizance against John Conner and Patrick

Ryan, for the sum of $200 and costs ; and upon the record of

said proceedings, plaintiffs assign the following errors :

The said scire facias does not show that the bond taken by
the sheriff was returned to the court, filed, or in any way made
part of the record.

The scire facias fails to show that the recognizance was
declared forfeited.

SwETT & Orme, for Plaintiffs in Error.

W. Bushnell, District Attorney, for the People.

Walker, J. The record in these cases present for our con-

sideration the same questions, and will be determined together

in this opinion. There was in each case a writ of scire facias

sued out of the McLean Circuit Court against defendants, to

recover the amount of a recognizance entered into for the ap-

pearance of Conner to answer to indictments previously found

in that court against him. The court rendered in each case a

judgment by default against the defendants for the amount of

the recognizance, and to reverse these judgments they bring

these cases to this court. These writs were each substantially

defective, in not averring that the recognizance had been re-

turned to, and had become a matter of record in the Circuit"
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Court, before the writs of scire facias were sued out. This

was essential, and until the recognizance becomes a record,

there can be no proceeding had to fix the bail or recover a judg-

ment, and there must be an averment or recital of that fact.

This is the established doctrine of this court. Noble v. The
People, 4 Gilm. R. 434 ; Bacon v. The People, 14 111. R. 313.

These writs were also defective in failing to aver that there had
been a judgment of forfeiture against the defendants. Thomas
V. The 'People, 13 111. R. 696 ; ^Kennedy v. The People, 15 111.

R. 418. The averment that the principal cognizor had failed to

appear, as had been suggested by the People's attorney, was
not an averment that there had been a judgment of forfeiture.

There was no averment that the defendants had been called and
defaulted, or any steps taken to fix the bail. Under our prac-

tice the writ of scire facias supplies the place of both the sum-

mons and declaration, and should contain every material allega-

tion, to show a right of recovery, and without such averments

it is insufficient to support a judgment. The writs in this case

were not aided by copying into the transcript the orders in the

original proceeding, as they were not copied into the writs of

scire facias, and form no part of the record in this case. The
judgment of the Circuit Court in each of these cases should be

reversed, and the causes remanded, with leave for the People

to amend their writs of scire facias, and for further proceedings.

Judgments reversed.

George Reeves, Appellant, v. Trueman Eldridg, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM WARREN.

Where a case is referred by order of court to arbitrators, who by the order were
directed to seal their award and file it in court, etc., and the clerk swore the

arbitrators, and notified them to take upon themselves a general submission,

which they did, of all matters ; Held, that the arbitrators were only a special

tribunal for the matters litigated by that suit, that they should have notified both
parties of the time and place of hearing, and that the award was bad.

The facts of this case are fully stated in the opinion of the

Chief Justice. The cause was heard before Thompson, Judge,

at March term, 1857, of the Warren Circuit Court.

GouDY & JuDD, for Appellant.

Paine & Wead, for Appellee.
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Caton, C. J. The appellee sued the appellant, in the Warren
Circuit Court, in assumpsit, counting on a special contract in

writing, by which Reeves agreed to build a house for Eldridg,

and an account for building materials, money, labor, ' etc.

Declaration was filed 31st March, 1856 ; no pleas filed.

At the September term, 1856, by the consent of the parties,

the cause was referred to Thompson Brooks, A. S. Smith, and
William Ward, as arbitrators, for their adjudication, with the

order, that they should seal up their award and file it in that

court by the first day of the next term, and the cause was
continued.

At the March term, 1857, the plaintiff entered a motion for

judgment on the award. In support of the motion an order was
offered in evidence, dated 16th September, 1856, under the seal

of the court, directed to the arbitrators, notifying them of their

appointment, and directing them to " hear and determine, at

such time as you may deem proper, upon all matters and deal-

ings between said parties, but particularly the cause of action

between the said parties pending in said court."

The plaintiff further offered the following oath and award,

to wit

:

STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) ^ .

WARREN COUNTY, ( ' Personally appeared before me, Thompson

Brooks, A. S. Smith, and William Ward, Esqs., each of whom took an oath to

faithfully and impartially arbitrate upon all matters and differences between Tru-

man Eldridg and George Reeves, and more particularly concerning a contract to

build a house by said Reeves for said Eldridg, and an award make therein to the

best of their understanding and ability.

THOMPSON BROOKS,
WM. W. WARD,
A. S. SMITH.

Subscribed and sworn to, this 17th day of Sep- \

tember, A. D. 1856. Abkam Crissey, J. P. )

STATE OF ILLINOIS, )

WARREN COUNTY, ( ' The Undersigned, arbitrators in the cause of

Truman Eldridg v. George Reeves, having been duly sworn, and having, as

required by their oaths, determined the cause submitted, do hereby award and

decide herein as follows : We find for the plaintiff, Truman Eldridg, five hundred

and twenty-six dollars and seventy cents ; and we, having delivered to each party

a copy hereof, ask to be discharged herein, with our cost.

Given under our hands and seals, this 17th day of September, A. D. 1856.

A. S. SMITH, [l. s.]

THOMPSON BROOKS,
WM. W. WARD.

Both the papers were delivered to the clerk, open and not

sealed up, and by him filed, September 27. 1856, and were read

in evidence, without objection, on the hearing of this motion.
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which was for judgment on the award. There was also proof

of notice of the motion, and this was all the evidence. The
court sustained the motion and rendered judgment on the award.

There are several fatal objections to this judgment. In the

first place, nothing was submitted to the arbitrators by the

agreement to submit and the order of reference, but the action

pending in court, while the clerk notified them that all matters

in difference between the parties were submitted to them. The
oath which they took obliged them to assume the burden of a

general submission. These referees were constituted a special

tribunal, for the trial of a particular cause. They assumed a

more extended jurisdiction, and, for aught we know, and such is

the presumption, they took all matters in difference between the

parties into their consideration, in making up their award. Again,

no notice was given to the parties of the time and place of the

hearing before the arbitrators, so far as this record shows. For
aught that appears, one party may have been there, and not the

other. Either the award should show, or at least it should

appear in proof, that the parties appeared before the arbitrators

at the hearing, or that they had notice and might have appeared.

Indeed, almost the whole proceeding, after the order of refer-

ence, seems to have been irregular. .
,

\

The judgment must be reversed.

Judgment reversed.

•

The Chicago, St. Paul and Fond du Lac Railroad Com-
pany, Plaintiff in Error, v. Owen McCarthy, Defendant
in Error.

ERROR TO McHENRY.

Contractors for constructing a railroad are the servants of the company authorized

to construct it, and the tortious acts of the contractors, while about the business

of the company, are properly chargeable to it.

This was an action of case, commenced by defendant in error

against plaintiff in error, in McHenry Circuit Court.

The following declaration was filed :

For that whereas the said defendants, on the first day of

August, 1856, under and by virtue of their act of incorporation,

claimed to have the right to enter upon the close and farm of

said plaintiff, situate in the town of Hartland, in the county of

McHenry aforesaid, and construct and build their railroad track

over and across the said close and farm of the said plaintiff as



386 OTTAWA,

Chicago, St. Paul and Fond du Lac Railroad Co. v. McCarthy.

aforesaid ; and the plaintiff avers that the said defendants, on
the day and year last aforesaid, at the county aforesaid, did

enter upon the close and farm of him, the said plaintiff, and
commence the construction of their said railroad track, over

and across the same, and continued so to construct the same
from the day last aforesaid until the day of the commencement
of this suit ; and the plaintiff avers that it was the duty of the

said defendants, and by law the said defendants, during all the

time they were so constructing the said railroad track over and
across the close and land of the said plaintiff, to keep up the

fences, and to put up the fences taken down by them, while so

engaged in the construction of said track, and to put in and
maintain cattle guards, and use and take all necessary trouble

and precaution to prevent cattle, horses and other animals from
escaping upon and entering upon said close and lands of said

plaintiff; nevertheless the said plaintiff' avers that the said

defendants, not regarding their duty and obligations in this

behalf, did not keep up the fences and put up the fences by them
taken down during the construction of their said track as afore-

said, nor did they put in and maintain cattle guards, and use

and take all necessary trouble and precaution to prevent cattle,

horses and other animals from escaping upon, and entering upon
the close and lands as aforesaid of said plaintiff; and the plain-

tiff" further, in fact, saith, that the said defendants, during all

the time they were so constructing their said railroad track as

aforesaid, took down and removed the fences belonging to said

close and lands of the plaintiff, and negligently suffered the

same to remain down, by reason of which premises, and the

negligence of the said defendants in this behalf, the cattle,

horses and other animals running at large in the highway and
common lands of said town of Hartland were allowed to and did

escape therefrom into and upon the close and lands of the said

plaintiff, situate in the said town of Hartland, in the county of

McHenry, and then and there destroy, eat up, trampled upon
and subverted the grass, grain, corn, wheat and herbage then

and there growing and standing upon said close and land of

said plaintiff, to wit, at the county of McHenry aforesaid,

whereby, etc.

The cause was tried before the court and jury, at the March
term of said court, 1857, I. G, Wilson, Judge, presiding.

The bill of exceptions shows that it was proven, on the part

of the plaintiff, that the contractors engaged in the construction

of defendant's railroad entered upon the inclosed parts of plain-

tiff's farm, where the line of said road was located, for the

purpose of constructing said road during the month of August,

1856; that they took the fences down at the points where the
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line entered said inclosure, and left them down during most of the

time they were doing said work, or, if they put them up, it was
done in a very negligent and careless manner ; that the fences

around said inclosure were also thrown and taken down at other

points by men engaged in said work, and that, in consequence of

the said taking down of said fences, the crops growing within said

inclosure were damaged by cattle entering said inclosure from

the highways and common lands adjoining plaintiff's farm.

The value of the crops thus injured was variously estimated

by plaintiff's witnesses at from three to four hundred dollars.

It was also proved, on the part of plaintiff, that during the

latter part of the time, the company was running a construction

train over its road, and that hogs went into the field over the

cattle guards.

On the part of the defendant, it was proved that the work of

constructing the entire length of said road, from Chicago to

Janesville, was let to Page & Co., contractors, and that said

damage was occasioned by the carelessness and negligence of

the men in the employ of Page & Co., who were engaged in

constructing the road for the company.
It was also proved, on the part of plaintiff, that no cattle

guards were constructed at the points where said line entered

said inclosure, and that said cattle also entered for want of said

cattle guards.

This was all the evidence in the case. The court, at request

of plaintiff, instructed the jury as follows

:

1st. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that during the

time alleged in the plaintiff's declaration, the defendants were
engaged in constructing the Chicago, St. Paul and Fond du Lac
Railroad over and across the close and farm of said plaintiff,

and that during that time they took down and left down the

fences around said close and farm, and negligently and care-

lessly suffered them to remain down, and that through their

negligence and carelessness- in so doing, they suffered hogs,

cattle and other animals to escape from the common lands and
highways into and upon the lands and close mentioned in the

plaintift"'s declaration, and destroy the crops, to wit, corn,

wheat, oats and potatoes, then growing, belonging to the plain-

tiff, then the law is for the plaintiff', and he is entitled to recover

whatever damages he has proved he sustained in consequence of

such acts of the defendant, not exceeding the amount claimed.

2nd. That if the jury believe, from the evidence, that during

the time alleged in the plaintift''s declaration, the defendants

were constructing and running their railroad over and across

the lands of the plaintiff mentioned in the declaration, and that

during that time, they negligently and carelessly omitted to put
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in and maintain sufficient and necessary cattle guards, whereby
cattle and hogs were suffered to escape over and through such

cattle guards into and upon the close and lands of plaintiff, and
destroy the crops then growing, then the law is for the plaintiff,

and he is entitled to recover whatever the jury believe the dam-
age is proved to be in consequence of such negligence of the

defendants, not exceeding the amount claimed.

On the part of the defendant, the following instruction was
asked, and refused by the court

:

If the jury believe that Page and others were the contractors

for the construction of the railroad over the lands of the plain-

tiff, and that the damages complained of in this case resulted

from the negligence of said Page & Co., and that the railroad

company had no knowledge of such acts of negligence, then the

law is for the defendant.

The jury found a verdict for plaintiff, and assessed his

damages at $365.
Defendant moved for a new trial, and in arrest of judgment.
The said motions were overruled by the court, and judgment

given for the plaintiff on the verdict.

Breese, J. The evidence discloses a case of great negligence

on the part of the contractors of this company, on whom the

responsibility is attempted to be shifted.

To railroad companies are granted extraordinary privileges,

and they must be held so to exercise them as to do the least

possible amount of injury to others. The maxim, " sic utere

tuo ut alienum non Icedas^'' well.applies.

The contractors are the servants of the company, and au-

thorized by law, being such servants, to enter upon the defend-

ant's land and take down his fences, if necessary ; but the

company must be responsible, for the consequences of the act.

The contractors have no right there, except through the grant

to the company, and of course are the servants and agents of

the company in doing that particular work. Their tortious

acts are properly chargeable to the company. The instructions

given on behalf of plaintiff below were proper.

We see no difference in principle between this case and Hinde
et al. V. Wabash Nav. Co., 15 111. 72, and accordingly affirm

the judgment.

Judgment affirmed.
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James H. Eames, impleaded with Henry W. Burlingarae

and Joel Gray, Plaintiff in Error, v. David Preston

et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROK TO COOK COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

A promissory note executed by one of a firm, in the firm name, with a scrawl, is

a sealed instrument, as to the party who signed it, and assumpsit will not lie

upon it.

If one executes an instrument with a seal, and others sign after him without a
seal, they are presumed to adopt the seal already afl[ixed ; it is otherwise if a

[T party signs an instrument, not afBxing a seal, and others sign and seal after

him, without his consent—it is, as to the first signer, a simple instrument.

The summons in this case was served on Eames ; the other

defendants not found.

The first count of the declaration avers that on the 9th No-
vember, 1854, at Chicago, the defendants, by name of " Eames,
Gray & Co.," made their note, in vs^ritiug, promising to pay,

eighty-five days after the date thereof, to the order of Nelson

C. Roe, by description of " N. C. Roe, Cash'r," $511.93, for

value received, with interest at ten per cent., and delivered it

to said Nelson C. Roe, who afterwards indorsed it to the plain-

tiffs by name of " Preston & Co.," by means, etc. ; and promise

to pay plaintiffs' note.

The common counts were added to the above.

Breach, that defendants have not paid said sums of money.
Plea, general issue.

The cause tried by J. M. Wilson, Judge, and a jury, and
verdict for plaintifi"s for $626.84.

On the trial of the cause, the plaintiff having introduced testi-

mony tending to prove that the note hereafter mentioned was
executed by defendants, as charged in the declaration, then

offered to read the following note in evidence :

$511.93. Chicago, Nov. 9, 1854.

Eighty-five days after date we promise to pay to N. C. Roe, Cas'r, or order.

Five Hundred and Eleven 93-100 Dollars, for value received, with interest, at ten

per cent.

EAMES, GRAY & CO. [ ]

To the introduction of which the defendant Eames objected.

The court overruled the objection, and allowed said note to be

introduced as evidence, to which ruling the defendant Eames
excepted. No other evidence given in the cause. The court

found for the plaintiff, $626.84, and gave judgment thereon, to

which defendant Eames excepted.

W. T. Burgess, for Plaintiff in Error.

G. Goodrich, for Defendants in Error.
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Caton, C. J. This was an action of assumpsit brought
against Eames,Burlingame and Gray, upon a note thus executed,
" Eames, Gray & Co. [ ]," and the only question is, whether
assumpsit can be maintained on this note. If this be a sealed

instrument, then assumpsit cannot be maintained upon it, (1
Chit. PI., title Assumpsit, p. 99,) and this would seem to settle

the question, for this is certainly an instrument under seal. If

the member of the firm who executed the note had authority

under seal to add the seals of all, then the seal attached is the

seal of all ; if he had not, then it is his seal only. In any
event it is, as to him, a sealed instrument. If, as to the others,

it is a simple instrument, that would not remove his seal. If

one party executes an instrument and attaches his seal, and
others afterwards sign it silently without attaching seals, they

are presumed to adopt the seal of the first, and, as to all, it is

a sealed instrument. If, however, the first sign without a seal,

and the others add seals to their names, without the direction

or consent of the first, then he cannot be presumed to adopt

their seals as his, and it continues, as to him, a simple instru-

ment, as it was when he first executed it. Nor w^ould this

prevent it from being a sealed instrument as to those who de-

liberately attached their seals. As to one of the makers of

this note, it was a sealed instrument, and assumpsit could not

be maintained upon it.

The judgment must be reversed.

Judgment reversed.

The Chicago, Burlington and Quincy Railroad Company,

Appellant, v. Adolphus Carter, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM LA SALLE COUNTY COURT.

Where there is an exception in an enacting clause of a statute, the plaintiff suing
under it must show that the defendant is not within it ; if the exception is in a
subsequent section, it must be pleaded in defense to avoid the penalty.

In an action under the statute against a railroad company, for injuries to animals,
the road not being fenced, the plaintiff should aver that the animals were not
within the limits of a village, etc.

In an action on the case for kilHng animals, "gross" negligence need not be aver?-ed
;

negligence in such a case is matter of proof. An averment that the railroad

company had not fenced, may be treated as surplusage.

This was an action of trespass on the case, brought in the

La Salle County Court, at the September term, 1857, by plaintiff
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below, to recover damages from defendant below, for killing

three colts of plaintiff on railroad of defendant.

To the declaration of plaintiff there was a demurrer by de-

fendant ; and for special cause of demurrer, tlie defendant

assigned the following, to wit

:

1st. In neither of said counts is there any averment that the

colts mentioned were not killed within the limits of any town,

city, or village, and did not come upon the railroad of said

defendant within the limits of such town, city, or village.

2nd. In neither of said counts is there any averment that

said colts were killed through the wanton or willful and gross

negligence of the agents or servants of said defendant.

3rd. In neither of said counts is there any averment that

said colts were killed through the gross and culpable negligence .

or wanton recklessness of the agents or servants of said

defendant.

4th. And also, that said declaration is, in other respects,

uncertain, informal and insufficient.

The demurrer was overruled ; to which ruling defendant

excepted, and prays an appeal.

D. L. Hough, for Appellant.

Glover & Cook, for Appellee.

Walker, J. The assignment of error in this case questions

the decision of the court below in overruling the demurrer to

plaintiff's declaration. The first count is constructed under the

act of the legislature, approved on the 14th day of February,

1855, which provides, that " Every railroad corporation whose
line of road, or any part thereof, is open for use, shall, within

six months after the passage of this act, and every railroad com-
pany formed or to be formed, but whose lines are not now open
for use, shall, within six months after the lines of such railroad,

or any part thereof, are opened, erect and thereafter maintain

fences on the sides of their road, or the part thereof so open for

use, suitable and sufficient for to prevent cattle, horses, sheep
and hogs from getting on to such railroad, except at the cross-

ings of public roads, highways, and within the limits of towns,

cities and villages, with openings, or gates, or bars, at the farm
crossings," etc. The doctrine is laid down in Chitty's Plead-

ings, p. 223, " that where there is an exception in the enacting

clause of a statute, the plaintiff suing under it must show that

the defendant is not within the exception ; but if there be an
exception in a subsequent clause, that is matter of defense, and
the other party must show it, to exempt himself from the pen-
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alty." See also Gould's Plead. 179. This count fails to nega-

tive the fact that the colts might have been killed at a crossing

of a public road, or in the limits of a town, city, or village.

And if they were so killed, the defendant is not liable under the

statute ; and to have shown its liability, it should have specifi-

cally averred that they were not killed in the excepted places,

as this exception is within the enacting clause of this statute.

There is no averment of negligence on the part of the company,
or of its officers, agents, or servants, and was therefore clearly

bad, and the demurrer being to each count, should have been
sustained to this one.

The second count refers to this statute, but is more general,

and alleges that the colts were killed by the mere negligence and
carelessness of the agents and servants of the defendants in op-

erating their engines and cars, on their railroad. In an action

on the case, it is not necessary to aver gross negligence, but only

to aver that the act was negligently and carelessly performed

;

see 1 Chit. PI. 80. And when the right of recovery depends upon
the degree, as for willful or gross negligence, it is a matter of

proof and not of pleading. The allegations in this count, that

the defendants had failed to fence tlieir road, may be treated as

surplusage, and the plaintiff has still shown a cause of recovery.

But the court below erred in overruling the demurrer to the first

count, and for that reason the judgment of that court should be

reversed and the cause remanded.

Judsrment reversed.

Charles Lee, Appellant, v. Peter Quirk, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM BUREAU.

An affidiivit for a continuance, which does not state the residence of a witness, is

insufficient.

In order to authorize the testimony of a plaintiflf under the statute, in a suit origi-

nating before a justice of the peace, where a defendant refuses to be sworn, he
must make affidavit that he has a chiim or demand against tlie defendant, and
that he has no witness by whom, or otlier legal testimony by which, to establish it.

In an action to recover for work and labor, an instruction which excludes from the

jury all consideration of the proof of a special contract, is en-oneous.

The apportionment of costs by the Circuit Court, on an appeal from the decision

of a justice of the peace, is the exercise of a discretion with which the Supreme
Court cannot interfere.

A jury may be called into court for further instructions, either by agreement of
counsel or at their own request.
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This was an action originally commenced before a justice of

the peace by Quirk against Lee, for work and labor. A judg-

ment was rendered by the justice against Lee, for $42.10, and

he appealed to the Circuit Court.

At the January term, 1857, of the Bureau Circuit Court, Lee
moved the court to continue the cause, and in support of the

motion read an atfidavit, in which he swore that one Andrew
Brown was a material witness for him ; that he (Brown) had
gone to Iowa for a temporary purpose, some four or five weeks
before, and was expected to return in a short time ; that Lee
did not know that the witness was out of the county until the >

term of the court ; that he caused a subpoena to be issued for

the witness, which was returned not found ; that the suit is

brought to recover for work claimed to have been done by
plaintiff, and that Lee could prove by the witness, Brown, that

what work was done by plaintiff, was done under a special con-

tract to work a year for $220, to be paid at the end of the

year ; and that plaintiff worked about two months, and then

quit without any just reason ; and that plaintiff, during the last

two or three weeks he worked for defendant, improperly be-

haved and conducted himself, for the purpose of inducing Lee
to discharge him ; that he (Lee) expected to be able to procure

the testimony of Brown by the next term, etc.

The court overruled the motion for a continuance.

The case then came on for trial before a jury.

On the trial, the plaintiff proved by one Spaulding, that Quirk
worked for Lee for some two or three weeks after the 15th or

20th of June, 1856 ; that Lee paid him some money two or

three days before Quirk quit work ; how much, witness did not

know.
Quirk then offered to make oath that he knew of no witness

by whom he could prove the length of time he had worked for

Lee, except by his own oath or Lee's. Quirk was sworn on his

voir dire, and stated that he could not prove the length of time

he had worked for Lee, except by his own oath or that of Lee
;

that one Fisher was living on Lee's farm ; that Quirk worked
there a part of the time with Fisher ; that Fisher was there all

the time that Quirk worked there, except two or three times

;

that one Brown worked for Lee, commencing about a week after

Quirk did, and worked there all the time till Quirk left, and
that the work that Quirk did was done under a contract to work
a year, provided lie and Lee agreed.

On this evidence Lee refused to testify, and objected to Quirk
being sworn in chief. The objection was overruled.

Quirk swore that he worked for Lee from April 14, 1856, to

June 21, 1856.

26
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Quirk proved by another witness that wages were about $18
per mouth.

The court instructed the jury, on behalf oT Quirk,

That if they believed, from the evidence, that the plaintiff

worked for the defendant from the 14th of April to the 21st of

June, 1856, then they will find for the plaintiff the value of the

work, as shown by the testimony, deducting such payments as

the defendant has made to plaintiff.

The court also instructed the jury, for the defendant.

That if the plaintiff agreed to work for defendant for a year,

at a certain sum per month, or for the whole time, and if he

left the service of the defendant, without sufficient cause, before

the year expired, and without defendant's consent, then plaintiff

cannot recover in this action, and the jury must find for the

defendant.

If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the services sued

for were rendered under a special contract to labor for a year,

then the year's labor is a condition precedent, to be performed

by plaintiff before he can recover ; and if plaintiff is entitled to

recover at all, he cannot recover until the year has elapsed
;

and if the jury believe the year had not expired at the com-
mencement of this suit, then they will find for defendant.

After the jury had retired, the defendant asked the court to

instruct the jury,

" That if the plaintiff called on the defendant for |36, or

any other sum, and the defendant paid him money, and the

plaintiff received the money without objection as to the amount,
that is evidence to the jury that the amount called for was paid

by defendant."

Which instruction the court neither gave nor marked refused,

nor was the same given to the jury.

The jury found a verdict for the plaintiff below for $39.50.

The court overruled a motion for a new trial, and rendered

judgment in favor of Quirk for $39.50, and all his costs.

The appellant assigned the following errors :

Overruling defendant's motion for a continuance.

Permitting appellee to testify.

Admitting proof of the value of the services.

Giving the instruction asked by appellee.

Refusing appellant's instruction.

Overruling appellant's motion for a new trial.

Rendering judgment in favor of appellee for all his costs.

W. H, L. Wallace, for Appellant.

Glover & Cook, for Appellee.
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Breese, J. The affidavit for a continuance of this cause was
insufficient. It does not state the residence of the witness,

neither positively nor by any fair inference. This is indispen-

sable, as connected with his identification, and diligence in

obtaining his attendance.

The plaintiif, on the facts shown, should not have been per-

mitted to testify, for the reason, that he did not take the pre-

liminary oath required by the statute. 1. He did not make
affidavit that he had a claim or demand against the defendant.

2. He does not show, in the affidavit, that he had no witness or

other legal testimony to establish whatever demand it may be

inferred he did have.. On the contrary, he shows he had two
witnesses, Fisher and Brown, by which he could establish it,

and he was required to use diligence to obtain their testimony.

Because he has not been diligent, he cannot resort to this

privilege conferred by the statute.

The first instruction given on behalf of the plaintiff was
wrong.
The defense set up was the special contract to work one year

for a stated sum.

The instruction is, " If the jury believe, from the evidence,

that the plaintifi' worked for the defendant, from the 14th of

April to the 21st of June, 1856, then they will find for the

plaintiff the value of the work, as shown by the testimony,

deducting such payments as the defendant has made to plaintiff."

This instruction excludes from the jury, entirely, all consid-

eration of the proof of a special contract. Merely working for

the defendant, which is the point of this instruction, does not

give the plaintiff a right to recover, if a special contract existed

under which the work was done, and that contract violated by

the plaintiff himself.

For these errors the judgment is reversed, and the cause

remanded. As to the apportionment of the costs, it has always

been held discretionary with the court, and with its exercise we
cannot interfere.

It is not customary to ask the court to instruct the jury, after

they have retired. Instructions are asked for, and disposed of,

before the jury retire. They may be called into court for

further instructions, at their own request, or by consent of parties

or their counsel.

Judgment reversed.
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William Fisher et al, Appellants, v. Henry Bowles,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM PEORIA.

If a person suffers his name to be used in a business, or holds himself out as a

copartner, he will be so regarded, whatever may be the agreement between
himself and the other copartners.

This was an action of assumpsit.

The summons was served on William Fisher only.

Tiie declaration alleges, that defendants were joint owners

and partners in building and running the steamboat " Lacon,"

and that defendants were indebted to plaintiff in the sum of

^1,000 for services as engineer on said boat.

There was also a count for goods, etc., sold and delivered,

for work and labor done at request of defendants. For money
lent. For money paid by plaintiff, for the use of defendants,

at their request. For money had and received by defendants

for plaintiff's use, and for money found due upon an account

stated. Damage claimed, $1,000.

Defendant filed the following pleas :

The general issue, and that prior to the time the said steam-

boat Lacon commenced running, he was not a partner with the

defendant, Simpson : which plea was verified by the affidavit of

said William Fisher.

The cause was tried by jury, at March term, 1858 ; a verdict

was rendered for the plaintiff for $535, upon which judgment
was rendered by the court, Powell, Judge, presiding.

N. 11. Purple, for Appellants.

H. Grove, for Appellee.

Breese, J. From a careful examination of the evidence, as

presented in the record, we see no reason to find fault with the

verdict of the jury, as it fully sustains their finding. The ques-

tion of liability, and to what extent, was fairly before them

;

and although the instructions given on behalf of the plaintiff

may be regarded as somewhat loose, yet they are sufficiently

accurate and pointed to convey to the jury a correct notion of

the law, as applicable to the facts before them.

Partnership cannot always be proved by written articles. In
fact, in very many cases, writings do not exist, and especially

in a steamboat concern. In such cases, and in all cases, the

rule is, if a person suffer his name to be used in a business, or
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otherwise hold himself out as a^partner, he is to be so considered,

whatever may be the agreement between him and the other

partners. 3 Kent's Com. 52 ; Collyer on Part. 75, sec. 80

;

Stearns v. Haven, 14 Vermont R. 540.

The court, in this case, say, whether persons are partners

inter se, may depend on their contract between themselves.

Whether they are partners as to others, depends on their

conduct.

A party permitting his name to be used, or holding himself

out as a partner, will be equally responsible with other partners,

although he may receive no profits, for the contract of one is the

contract of all. Guidon v, Robson, 2 Campbell R. 802.

This rule of law arises, not upon the ground of the real

transaction between the partners, but upon principles of general

policy, to prevent the frauds to which persons would be exposed,

if they were to suppose they lent their money, performed the

work, or furnished the materials, upon the apparent credit of

three or four persons, when, in fact, they did all those to two
only, to whom, without the others, they would have lent nothing,

performed no work, or furnished materials. Wavg'/i v. Co7iver,

Carver Sj'' Giesler, 2 Henry Blackstone, 235, a leading case,

with copious and instructive notes.

The judgment is affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Alva Dunlap, Appellant, v. James Daugherty et al,

Appellees.

appeal from PEORIA.

Where the clerk of a court of record of another State, certifies that the acknowl-
edgment to a copy of a recorded deed, was, when it was taken to the original, in

conformity with the laws of such State, and that the person who took it was then

a justice of the peace, it will be sufficient ; although the certificate of conformity

bears date the seventh of August, 1855, and the acknowledgment the fourteenth

of July, 1821.

A party who interposes the benefit of limitation, derived under the ninth section of

the twenty-fourth chapter of the Revised Statutes, to an action of ejectment,

must show that the payment of taxes, and the color of title, were by and in the

same person. Payment of taxes by different persons, for seven years, one of

whom had only a contract for a conveyance, is insufficient.

That the justice who took the acknowledgment, was such, and acted in Windham
county, Connecticut, will be presumed, where the grantor is described in the

deed, as residing in the same county, and the county is named in the caption of

the certificate.
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This was an action of ejectment, brought by appellees against

appellant, for S. W. Sec. 2, T. 10 N., 7 E., in Peoria county.

Plaintiff below produced patent for the land to Henry Howe,
dated May 27, 1818 ; next a certified copy of a deed from
Henry Howe to John Morgan, to which was attached the follow-

ing certificates :
" Windham County, ss. Canterbury, July 14,

1821. Then personally appeared Henry Howe, signer and
sealer of the foregoing instrument, personally appeared and
acknowledged the same to be his free act and deed, before me,
Andrew T. Judson, justice of the peace." Then followed the

certificate of the recorder of Pike county, that the above is a

true copy. Also the following certificate :

" State of Connecticut, County of Windham, ss : I, Uriel

Fuller, clerk of the Superior Court, in and for said county of

Windham, (which said court is a court of record,) do hereby

certify that Andrew T. Judson, Esq., whose name appears to be

attached to the certificate of acknowledgment of the annexed
certified copy of a deed from Henry Howe to John Morgan,
was, on the 14th day of July, A. D. 1821, a justice of the

peace in and for said county of Windham, and State aforesaid,

duly commissioned and qualified ; and I do further certify, that

said certified copy of said deed is executed and acknowledged
in conformity with the laws of the State of Connecticut, as they

were in force on the said 14th day of July, 1821.
" In testimony whereof,'' etc.

Which deed was objected to, on account of insufficiency of

proof, (no objection being taken to want of locality in certifi-

cate of justice), which objection the court overruled, and per-

mitted the deed to go to the jury.

The plaintiff then offered a quit-claim deed from John Mor-
gan to the plaintiffs, dated June 2, 1855, properly executed,

containing the following description : that certain piece or par-

cel of land, situate, lying and being in the county of Peoria
and State of Illinois, being the south-west quarter of section

two, in township ten north, in range seven west of the 4th

principal meridian. Patented to Henry Howe, and by him
conveyed to me by deed, dated at Canterbury, Windham county,

Conn., July 14, 1821. To the reading of which deed, the defen-

dant objected, for reason of insufficiency of description of the

land, which objection was overruled.

Possession of premises was admitted by defendant, at time suit

was brought. The defendant then read in evidence, as claim and
color of title, a deed of the land in controversy, from the auditor

of the State of Illinois, to Robert H. Peebles, dated February
10th, 1832, on sale of taxes, January 12th, 1831, for taxes of

1830, which deed was objected to, and objection overruled.
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Defendant then read in evidence, a deed of the land from

Robert H. Peebles to John Tillson, Jr., dated February 10th,

1832 ; next a deed from John Tillson, Jr., to Russell H. Nevins,

dated April 26th, 1832 ; then a deed from Russell H. Nevins to

Elihu Townsend and others, and from Elihu Townsend and
others to David H. Nevins, February 25th, 1835 ; to the reading

of which, objection was made, on account of insufficiency of

certificate of acknowledgment, and objection overruled.

Defendant then read deed from David H. Nevins to Townsend
and others, February 26th, 1835, and from Townsend and others

to Charles F. Moulton and others, Dec. 17th, 1835 ; also deed
from last named grantors, to Lamb and Dunlap, April 30th,

1838, which was objected to on account of insufficiency of

acknowledgment, and overruled.

Defendant then ofli'ered and read in evidence, for purpose of

establishing claim and color of title, in good faith only, a deed
from C. Orr, sheriff" of Peoria county, to Lamb and Dunlap, dated

June 3rd, 1842, upon sale for taxes of the year 1839, in 1840.

Next a deed from Lamb and Dunlap to Nevins and Alstyne,

November 15th, 1844 ; to which deed objection was made, on
account of insufficiency of acknowledgment, and overruled.

Also a deed from Nevins and Alstyne to Mordecai D. Lewis
and others, September 1st, 1845 ; and from last named grantees,

to Charles S. Folwell, October 19th, 1846 ; and from said Fol-

well to defendant, January 22, 1850 ; all of which conveyances

properly described the land in controversy.

Defendant also introduced in evidence, an agreement between
defendant and Folwell, for the purchase of said land, dated

December 6th, 1849 ; and proved by George C. Bestor, that he
acted as agent of said Folwell, in effecting said sale to defen-

dant, and received the deed for delivery, in October, 1852,
and delivered the same to defendant some time after.

Charles S. Fohuell testified, that the said Mordecai D. Lewis
and others, grantees of said land from Nevins and Alstyne,

held the land as trustees of the United States Bank, and the

conveyance was made by them to witness, to hold as such trus-

tee. That witness paid the taxes on said land, for the years

1844, 1845 and 1846, as agent for said trustees, and as such
trustee. Defendant proved the payment of all taxes assessed

on said land, bv Charles S. Folwell, in the years 1845, 1846,
1847, 1848, 1849, and of all taxes assessed for years 1850,

1851, 1852, 1853 and 1854, by defendant, and that the said

land was vacant and unoccupied from 1842 till 1853.
The court, Powell, Judge, instructed the jury as follows

:

1. That the second section of the act of March 2nd, 1839, is

unconstitutional.
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2. That the defendant has not proved any legal evidence in

this case ; and if the jury believe, from the evidence, that the

plaintiffs have shown a title in themselves, derived from the

United States, they are entitled to recover.

The defendant asked the court to give the following instruc-

tion, which was refused.

If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the defendant had,

at the time of the commencement of this suit, color of title,

made in good faith, to the land in controversy, and that he, and
the persons under whom he claims and holds such color of title,

have paid all taxes legally assessed thereon, for seven succes-

sive years, which such land was vacant and unoccupied, and that

such taxes were all properly paid, under the title which the

defendant has shown in evidence, by or for persons under whom
he claims, and who, at the time of the payment of such taxes,

also held the same color of title, also, in good faith, then they

will find for the defendant.

To the giving which instructions for plaintiffs, and refusing

the instruction asked by defendant, defendant excepted.

The jury found for plaintiffs ; defendant moved for a new
trial, which was overruled, and an appeal taken by defendant,

and the appellant makes upon the record the following assign-

ment of errors

:

1. The court erred in permitting the deed from Henry
Howe to John Morgan, to be read to the jury.

2. The court erred in permitting the deed from John Morgan
to plaintiffs, to be read in evidence to the jury.

3. The court erred in giving the instructions for the plaintiffs.

4. The court erred in refusing the instruction asked by the

defendant.

5. The court erred in overruling defendant's motion for a

new trial.

6. The court erred in rendering judgment against defendant.

Manning & Merriman, for Appellant.

N. H. Purple, and Wead & "Williamson, for Appellees.

Walker, J. This was an action of ejectment brought by
appellees against appellant in the Peoria Circuit Court, for the

recovery of S. W. Sec. 2, T. 10 N., 7 east. The plaintiffs

below read in evidence a patent from the United States, for the

land, to Henry Howe, dated May 27th, 1818 ; next, a certified

copy of a deed from Henry Howe to John Morgan, to which
was attached the following certificates :

" Windham County, ss.

Canterbury, July 14th, 1821. Then personally appeared Henry
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Howe, signer and sealer of the foregoing instrument, personally

appeared and acknowledged the same to be his free act and
deed, before me, Andrew T . Judson, justice of the peace."

Then followed the certificate of the recorder of Pike county, in

due form, that the above is a true copy. Then follows this cer-

tificate :
" State of Connecticut, County of Windham, ss. : I,

Uriel Fuller, clerk of the Superior Court in and for said county

of Windham, (whicli said court is a court of record) do hereby

certify that Andrew T. Judson, Esq., whose name appears to

be attached to the certificate of the acknowledgment of the

annexed certified copy of a deed from Henry Howe to John
Morgan, was, on the 14th day of July, A. D. 1821, a justice of

the peace in and for said county of Windham, and State afore-

said, duly commissioned and qualified; and I do further certify,

that the said certified copy of said deed is executed and acknowl-

edged in conformity with the laws of the State of Connecticut,

as they existed and were in force on the said 14th day of July,

1821. In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and
affixed the seal of said Windham county, at Windham county

aforesaid, this seventh day of August, A. D. 1855. Uriel Ful-

ler, clerk." To this certificate the seal of court was annexed.
The plaintiffs then read in evidence a quit-claim deed from John
Morgan to the plaintiffs, dated June 2nd, 1855, properly exe-

cuted, but containing a description of the land as lying in Peo-

ria county and State of Illinois, and describing it as lying " in

range seven ivest of the fourth principal meridian. Patented to

Henry Howe, and by him conveyed to me by deed dated at Can-
terbury, Windham county. Conn., July 14th, 1821."

The defendant then read in evidence color of title derived

from tax sales of 1830 and 1840, with a connected chain. Fol-

well, of whom defendant purchased, received a deed for the

premises in October, 1846. Defendant agreed with Folwell for

the purchase of this land the 6th of December, 1849, and
received a deed after October, 1852, through Folwell's agent,

which bore date the 22nd of January, 1850. Defendant also

proved that Folwell paid the taxes on this land for the years

1844, 1845, 1846, 1847, 1848, and 1849, and by himself for the

years 1850, 1851, 1852, 1853, and 1854. The defendant

admitted possession of the land at the commencement of the

suit, and that it was vacant from 1842 till 1853. The jury found

a verdict for the plaintiffs, upon which the court rendered a judg-

ment, and from which the defendant appeals to this court.

The first question which we propose to consider, is, the suf-

ficiency of the clerk's certificate of conformity to the copy of

the deed from Howe to Morgan, to entitle it to be read in evi-

dence. The act of 1851, p. 123, allowing copies of deeds to be
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read in evidence when the certificate of acknowledgment is not
in conformity with the laws of this State, provides that the

party offering it shall exhibit with it a certificate of conformity,

as provided for in the sixteenth section of chapter twenty-four

of the Revised Statutes. The provision referred to is, " Any
clerk of a court of record within such State, territory or district,

shall, under his hand and the seal of such court, certify that

such deed is acknowledged or proved in conformity with the

laws of such State, territory, or district." Taking these two
provisions together, it appears this copy was certified by the

proper officer, and if his certificate were attached to a deed
instead of to a copy, its sufficiency could hardly be questioned.

The clerk certifies that the person whose name appears to the

certificate of acknowledgment, was, at the time it bears date, an
acting justice of the peace in the county of Windham, State of

Connecticut, duly commissioned and qualified, and that the cer-

tified copy of the deed is executed and acknowledged, in

conformity with the laws of the State of Connecticut, as they

existed and were in force at the date of the certificate of

acknowledgment. The fact that Judson was a justice of the

peace in Windham county, Connecticut, and that Howe, the

grantor, is described in the deed as residing in the same county

and State, afibrds strong evidence, when taken with the fact

that Windham county is at the caption of the certificate, that

the justice acted within the county of Windham and State of

Connecticut when he took the acknowledgment.

The clerk certifies that this certified copy is acknowledged in

conformity with the laws of Connecticut in force at the date of

the original deed. When the certified copy is examined, it is

found that there is no other acknowledgment to it, but what
purports to be a copy of the certificate to the original deed, and
the clerk's certificate could have referred to no other, and if the

copy of the certificate of the justice to the copy of the deed was
in conformity with the laws of Connecticut when it was made, it

follows that the original certificate must have been in conform-

ity. We perceive no error in admitting the copy in evidence.

The next question is, whether the defendant has brought him-

self within the provisions of the ninth section of the twenty-

fourth chapter of the Revised Statutes. That section provides,

that " Whenever a person having color of title, made in good
faith, to vacant and unoccupied lands, shall pay all taxes legally

assessed thereon for seven successive years, he or she shall be

deemed and adjudged to be the legal owner of said vacant and
unoccupied land, to the extent and according to the purport of

his or her paper title." In giving a construction to this provi-

sion, it may be necessary to contrast it with the first clause of
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the eighth section of the same chapter, which provides, that
" Every person in the actual possession of lands or tenements

under claim and color of title made in good faith, and who shall

for seven successive years continue in such possession, and shall

also, during said time, pay all taxes legally assessed on such

lands or tenements, shall be held and adjudged to be the legal

owner of such lands or tenements, to the extent and according

to the purport of his or her paper title." When language so

nearly similar is employed at the same time, and in the same
act, in two different sections, and both relating to the same class

of things, we find it difficult to ascertain the legislative inten-

tion. The legislature must have had a difterent object in pass-

ing the two sections. They must have intended to protect

diiferent kinds of titles, or persons occupying a different relation

to the same character of title, or both. If they had intended

the two provisions only to operate upon one kind of title, and
all persons in the same relation to that character of title, why
adopt both provisions, when the latter would have covered all

that is embraced in the two. But that such was their intention

is repelled by the significant fact that the language employed is

different, and certainly makes a clear distinction in the persons

who may be connected with the title intended to be protected.

By the eighth section, the person must be in possession under
claim and color, and must pay taxes under such claim and color

of title, for the required period of time ; while by the ninth

section he is not required to have possession, nor permitted to

hold or pay taxes under a person having color, but must him-

self have the color of title and pay the taxes. This section

does not permit a person claiming under color to rely upon the

statute. But the eighth section, by its phraseology, does permit

the person claiming under the color of title to hold the posses-

sion and to pay the taxes, for his claim and possession, and the

color of title when united, make the claim and color of title

and the possession required by the statute. This is the con-

struction already given to the eighth section by this court.

Cojield V. Furr7j, 19 111. R. 183 ; Darst v. Marshall, 20 111. R.
227. Justice would require that more protection should bo

given to the actual occupant, who expends his money and labor

in improving the soil, and pays the taxes for the required period,

than to the person who only pays the taxes, without occupation,

for the same length of time ; and we doubt not that such was
the intention of the legislature in adopting the eighth section,

and hence they inserted the provision for the protection of per-

sons holding possession, and paying taxes under claim from the

person having the color of title. While by the ninth section,

in favor of the tax payer having color of title, it is required
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that both things must unite in the same person : that the person

paying the taxes must at the time have the color of title.

This court says, in the case of Newland y. Marsh, 19 111. R.

376, in construing this section, that the statute "does not com-

mence running only from possession taken of the land, but from

the time of the concurrence of the two things : the color of title

and payment of taxes, and has performed its office when the

color of title and payment of taxes have gone together for the

period of limitation."

In this case, the two things required have not concurred ; the

color of title and payment of taxes have not gone together for

the period of limitation. There was not a period of seven suc-

cessive years in which the person paying the taxes had the color

of title at the time of payment. Folwell paid for two years

before he became the owner. The defendant paid for two or

three years, under his contract for a conveyance, and before he

received his deed, and without including these payments by him,

payment of the taxes for seven successive years was not shown.
And the defendant not having shown color of title and payment
of taxes running together for the period limited, has failed to

bring himself within the provision of the ninth section, he can-

not rely on it as a bar to plaintiff's action, and the judgment of

the court below should be affirmed.

Judgment afflnned.

JoNATPiAN Richards et al, Appellants, v. The Michigan
Southern and Northern Indiana Railroad CoxMpany,

Appellee.

APPEAL EROM COOK.

To terminate its liability as a common carrier, a railroad company is not bound
to give notice of the arrival of goods.

When goods reach their destination, and are properly stored, the responsibility of
the carrier ceases, and that of warehouseman attaches.

If notice of the arrival of goods, requiring their removal in twenty-four hours, is

given, it does not follow that the liability as carrier continues for that time ; such
a notice only implies that the goods may remain twenty-four hours free of charge.

This is an action of assumpsit. The declaration contains

three counts and the common counts. The first count states the

defendant to be a common carrier, by railway, of goods, from
Toledo in Ohio to Chicago in Illinois ; that plaintiffs, on the 8th

August, 1856, delivered to defendant a box of goods, of the



APRIL TERM, 1858. 405

Richards et al. v. Michigan Southern and Northern Indiana Railroad Co.

value of two hundred dollars, to be carried to Chicago and to

be there delivered to plaintiffs ; that for the charges to be paid

thereon, defendant received the goods and promised to carry

and safely deliver them at Chicago to plaintiffs ; but not regard-

ing, etc., did not take care of the goods, but lost the same and

did not deliver them.

2nd count. In consideration that plaintiffs, at Toledo, deliv-

ered to defendant a parcel of goods directed to plaintiffs, to be

carried to Chicago, and there be delivered to plaintiff's, the de-

fendant promised to carry and deliver the goods at Chicago, to

plaintifis, but did not deliver them.

3rd count. In consideration that the defendant, 9.s common
carrier on, etc., at Chicago, at its own request had the care and
custody of plaintiffs' goods, the defendant undertook to take due

care of them while in its custody, and deliver same to plaintiffs,

but took so little care of them that they were lost.

Common counts, for money paid, had and received, on account

stated.

The defendant pleaded the general issue.

The cause was submitted to the court upon an agreed state-

ment of facts.

At October term, 1857, the court, Manierre, Judge, rendered

judgment for the defendant.

The facts agreed upon are : That the defendant is carrier of

goods, by railway, from Toledo in Ohio to Chicago in Illinois.

That the plaintifis bought, at Baltimore, a box of goods, worth,

at Chicago, one hundred and eighty-five dollars, which came into

possession of defendant at Toledo, and was carried by it to Chi-

cago. The defendant had paid back charges of three dollars

and sixty-three cents, and its charge for carriage to Chicago was
three dollars fifty-seven cents. The cars containing the box
reached Chicago at 9 P. M. of the 12th August, 1856, and the

box was unloaded into defendant's warehouse at noon of the

13th August.

A notice of receipt of the goods was put into the post office,

at Chicago, between the hours of five and six on that afternoon,

the 13th August. The following is the notice

:

Michigan Southern & Northe:jx Indiana R. R. ")

Fkeight Agent's Office, >

Chicago, August 13th, 1856. )

Richards, Cramburgh & Shaw :

The following articles, consigned to your address, are now ready for delivery

at this depot, viz. :

1 box D Goods.
Weight, 420.

You are requested to remove the same within twenty-four hours, otherwise it

will be put in store at the expense and risk of the owner. In no case will freight
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be delivered except to the owner or consignee, or to his written order, unless it is

called for by yourself. Please send this notice, after having signed the order be-

low, and insert the name of the person to whom you wish it to be delivered.

Yours respectfully, CHARLES M. GRAY, Agent.

Plaintiffs received this notice from the post office at 10 o'clock,

forenoon, August 14th.

On the evening of the 13th August, between seven and eight

o'clock, a fire broke out in a stable near defendant's warehouse,

which extended to and destroyed the warehouse containing plain-

tiffs' goods. The fire did not originate in any negligence of de-

fendant, nor w^as defendant negligent in efforts to save the goods

from burning. The goods of plaintiffs were burned in said fire.

Marsh & King, for Appellants.

A. Campbell, Judd & Winston, and Glover & Cook, for

Appellee.

Walker, J. This was an action of assumpsit, brought by
plaintiffs, in the Cook Circuit Court, for the recovery of the

value of a box of merchandise, shipped over defendant's road

from Toledo to Chicago, which, as the agreed facts of the par-

ties show, was taken by defendant to the latter place, at 9

o'clock P. M., on the twelfth day of August, 1856, and was un-

loaded from the cars and placed in defendant's warehouse, at

noon of the 13th August, 1856, and a notice was put into the

post office, between five and six o'clock P. M., that the box had
arrived, consigned to plaintiffs, and was ready for delivery, and
they w^ere requested to remove the same within twenty-four

hours, or it would be put in store at the expense and risk of the

owner ; that plaintiffs received this notice from the post office at

ten o'clock in the forenoon, on the fourteenth of August. Be-
tween seven and eight o'clock, on the evening of the thirteenth,

a fire broke out in a stable near defendant's warehouse, which
extended to and destroyed the warehouse containing these goods

;

that the fire did not originate in any negligence of the defend-

ant, nor the loss by negligence of defendant in the use of efforts

to preserve the goods ; that the goods were destroyed by the

fire in the warehouse, and that these goods were worth, in Chi-

cago, one hundred and eighty-five dollars. The cause was tried

by the court, without the intervention of a jury, by consent,

when the court found for and rendered a judgment in favor of

defendant, from which plaintiffs appeal to this court.

This court has held, at the present term, in the case of Porter

V. The Chicago and Rock Island Railroad, that to terminate
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its liability as a common carrier, it is not necessary that a rail-

road should give notice of the arrival of goods to the owner and
consignee. And that so soon as the goods arrive at their des-

tination, or at the terminus of their road, and they are unloaded

and placed safely and securely in the defendant's warehouse,

that the responsibility of common carriers ceases, and that of

warehousemen attaches. In this case there was an attempt to

give notice, which did not reach plaintiffs until after the goods

were destroyed. But it is insisted that, as this notice only re-

quired the plaintiffs to remove the goods within twenty-four

hours, otherwise they would be put in store at the expense and
risk of the plaintiffs, that the defendant thereby undertook to

keep them until that time expired, under the liability of a com-

mon carrier. The true construction of this notice, it seems to

us, is, that the goods could remain in defendant's warehouse,

free of charge during that time, and if not removed, the defend-

ant would afterwards charge storage as warehouseman, or if

they chose, have them stored with some other warehouseman, at

plaintiffs' expense and risk. This notice is certainly as suscep-

tible of this construction as the one contended for by plaintiffs,

and if the defendant is to be held liable for such greatly increased

responsibility by contract, the intention should be clear and not

by such doubtful construction. There is no pretense that there

was any fault chargeable to defendants in the loss of these goods,

and therefore they cannot be charged for their loss, as ware-

housemen or common carriers. We are therefore of the opinion

that the court below committed no error in rendering the judg-

ment which it did, and that it should be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Samuel S. Porter, Appellant, v. The Chicago and Rock
Island Railroad Company, Appellee.

APPEAL PROM PEORIA.

Carriers by railway are neither bound to deliver to the consignee personally, or to

give notice of the arrival of the goods, to discharge tlieir liability as such. But
they must take proper care of the goods, by safely storing them or by some other

act.

When the articles to be transported, have arrived at their destination, and have
been removed and stored in a warehouse which is owned by the carrier, or by
some other party, the duty of the carrier is terminated. If the goods are stored

in a building owned by the carrier, the liability changes to that of warehouseman.
Because goods were destroyed in a railroad car, by an accidental fire, the carrier is

not thereby released. It is the duty of the carrier to show what becomes of

goods entrusted to him ; the burthen of proof is with him.
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This was a suit commenced in the Peoria Circuit Court, by
appellant against appellee, upon certain bills of lading or rail-

road receipts for wheat and corn, shipped by plaintiff from

Peoria over the defendant's road, to Munn, Gill & Co., of

Chicago.

The case was tried, March terra, 1858, before E. N. Powell,
Judge, without a jury.

The evidence showed that the plaintiff, by Updike & Co., sent

over the defendant's railroad, on the eleventh and ninth days of

August, 1856, five car loads of wheat and four car loads of corn,

each car containing one hundred and sixty sacks, each sack

holding two and one-fourth bushels, consigned to Munn, Gill &
Co., of Chicago, who were commission mercTaants and agents of

plaintiff for the sale of the grain, and that the said Updike &
Co. received from the company receipts similar to the following

:

Peoria, III., August 11th, 1856.

Received in good order, from Updilce & Co., to be forwarded by the Peoria &
Bureau Valley Railroad, the following articles, to be delivered in like good order

to Munn, Gill & Co., at Chicago Station, he or they paying freight at the rate of

seventeen cents a hundred pounds.

MARKS. ARTICLES.

Acct. S. S. Porter. 3 Cars "Wheat, No. 468, 616, 394.

D. S. THOMPSON.

That Munn, Gill & Co. received from defendant and sold a

part of this grain. That the balance of said grain was de-

stroyed by fire on the night of the 13th August, 1856, in the
,

depot of said company in Chicago.

R. T. Gill., one of the firm of Munn, Gill & Co., testified

that they received notices of the arrival of cars on August 9,

1856, August 11, 1856, and August 13, 1856, similar notice of

car 272. That about the 1st July, 1856, witness directed de-

fendants, by Mr. Jones, the local freight agent, to have all grain

received for them to be delivered at Flint & Wheeler's ware-

house ; and subsequently gave directions to have certain car

loads delivered on the track, but only such cars as were par-

ticularly specified. Witness stated that there was no written

notice given to Jones, and no other notice was given by Thomas
or by any member of said firm to his knowledge, and that they

did sometimes receive grain from the warehouse in bags without

objection, subsequent to the time of the notice.

Charles H. Ball testified that he went into the employ of

Munn, Gill & Co. in July, 1856. That the defendants at that

time were in the habit of delivering grain for Munn, Gill & Co.
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at Flint & Wheeler's warehouse, and so continued, except in

some cases when orders were given to the contrary.

The following facts were agreed upon : That by the charter

of the defendant, it was not permitted to charge storage on
goods in their warehouse, after such goods were delivered at

place of destination. That it is not the custom of defendant

to charge storage on goods transported by it, but that after such

goods have been kept a reasonable time, the same have been

carried to other warehouses. That Duty S. Thompson was
defendant's agent at time of signing the bills of lading.

Thomas D. Winter^s deposition was read by defendant,

who testified that some of the printed notices sent to Munn,
Gill & Co., as testified by Gill, were made by himself from
authority from Joseph Jones, local freight agent ; that he had
no personal knowledge when the cars specified in the notices

actually arrived in Chicago.

John Comisky testified that the cars, with exception of car

282, were unloaded at the depot in Chicago, on the 12th and
13th August, 1856, and that it was the custom of the company
to have the cars unloaded as quickly as possible after arrival

;

that Munn, Gill & Co. had given him orders to have all grain

that came in bags unloaded at the depot, until further orders.

This witness stated that he kept no memoranda of dates of

arrival of the cars, but knows that they were in the depot on
the night of the fire.

J. Jones ^ Jr., testified that he was local freight agent, at

Chicago, of defendant ; that the depot at Chicago was burned
on night of 13th August, 1856, caused by the heat from build-

ings opposite. The grain in the cars named arrived a few days

before the fire ; don't know when notices were sent, but the

clerk, whose business it was to send notices, had orders to

notify parties immediately upon arrival of way bills, and it was
the custom so to notify them without reference to whether the

freight had arrived or not.

Thomas D. Jamieson testified that about 8th or 9th August,

1856, he received a written order from Munn, Gill & Co. to put

in five cars of grain in bags in depot ; two days afterwards

Charles H. Ball gave me verbal notice to put all grain in bags

for Munn, Gill & Co. in depot, as they had a warehouse of their

own and could haul it cheaper than to store at Flint &
Wheeler's.

Manning & Merriman, for Appellant.

JuDD & Winston, N. H. Purple, Glover & Cook, and G. C.

Campbell, for Appellee.

27
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Walker, J. The questions presented by the record in this

case involve the determination of the extent of the liability of

carriers by railway. And upon an examination of the reported

cases, it will be found that there is some conflict as to what
acts, after the arrival of the goods at their destination, will dis-

charge them from their liability as carriers. It has been said,

and we think with reason, " that the cases have settled the

question that carriers by railway are neither bound to deliver

to the consignee personally, or to give notice of the arrival of

the goods, to discharge the liability of common carrier."

Eedfield on Railways, 251. This mode of transportation is so

essentially different from that by wagons and other vehicles,

that a delivery to the consignee, at his place of business or

residence, would be unadapted to their nature and the course

of business by which they exist. And yet, to say that all duty

ceases upon an arrival at the terminus of the road, or at their

destination upon the route of the road, would be to leave the

owner to a great extent unprotected, and to require less at the

hands of the carrier than the law would seem to sanction. To
hold that they were thus relieved from the liability of carriers,

would be to leave the owner to contend with the same difficul-

ties in showing theft, embezzlement or loss by negligence by the

carriers, their agents and servants, that he would have had at

any time after they wel-e first placed upon the road. The goods

are still as completely under the control of the carrier as before,

and the owner or consignee would be as effectually precluded

from exercising any control over them. He could do no act for

their security and protection while locked up in the car, and
none but the carrier and his agents and servants could even

know that they had arrived. We are strongly inclined to the

belief that no decision can be found that such act releases

them from their liability of carriers, and that it should not,

without something further on their part.

While there is some conflict in the evidence as to whether

this grain should have been delivered at Flint & Wheeler's

warehouse, it seems thai the preponderance shows that all grain,

in bags, consigned to Munn, Gill & Co. which arrived after the

lltli of August, was to be stored in the depot. And the evi-

dence shows this grain was all in bags, and the evidence tends

to show it arrived after that time ; and no delivery was made
in the car or otherwise after its arrival.

The evidence shows that all of the grain, with the exception

of that contained in one car, had been unloaded and placed in

the defendant's freight depot before the fire occurred by which

it was destroyed. The question then presents itself, whether,

as to that portion destroyed by fire in the warehouse, the defend-
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ant's relation of carrier had ceased, and on this point there

seems to be some diversity in the decided cases. "While some

hold that such character does not cease until the consignee has

had notice and reasonable time to remove the goods, others

have held that the carrier's duty ceases as soon as the goods

are taken from the cars, and safely stored in a warehouse of the

company, or that of some other person. In the case of Thomas
v. The Boston and Providence Raihvap, it was held, that
" where suitable warehouses are provided, and the goods which

are not called for on their arrival at the places of destination

are unloaded, and stored safely in such warehouses, the duty of

the proprietors as common carriers is, in our judgment, ter-

minated." 10 Met. R. 472. This decision is supported by the

cases of Moses v. The Boston and Maine Raihvay, 32 N. H.
R. 523, and The Norway Plaines Company v. The Boston and
Maine Railway^ 1 Gray R. 263. In the latter of these cases,

the court says, that " this view of the law, applicable to rail-

road companies as common carriers of merchandise, affords a

plain, precise and practical rule of duty, easy of application,

well adapted to the security of all persons interested. It deter-

mines that they are responsible, as common carriers, until the

goods are removed from the cars and placed upon the platform

;

and if, on account of their arrival in the night, or at any other

time, when, by the usage or course of business, the doors of the

merchandise depot or warehouse are closed, or, for any other

cause, they cannot then be delivered, or if, from any reason,

the consignee is not there to receive them, it is the duty of the

company to store them safely, under the charge of competent

and careful servants, ready to be delivered, and actually deliver

them, when duly called for by parties entitled to receive them
;

and for the performance of these duties, after the goods are

delivered from the cars, the company is liable, as warehousemen
or keepers of goods for hire." The court also held that notice

to the consignee was not necessary to exonerate the railroad of

its liability as a common carrier.

This doctrine, it seems to us, is well adapted to this mode of

transportation and the general course of business of the country,

as at present conducted. The goods have then reached their

destination, and the owner or consignee, by the use of diligence,

may be there to receive them, and take them into his own con-

trol, and failing to do so, the presumption should be that he

has elected to permit them to be stored by the company, to be

held as warehousemen or keepers for hire. The goods are then

placed in precisely the same situation as goods in any other

warehouse. And the owner has the same opportunity to estab-
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lisli the liability of the company in their new capacity of ware-

housemen, as he would have in any other case of a warehouseman.
The fact that the goods in the car were destroyed by an

accidental fire, would not excuse the defendants from liability as

common carriers. Story on Bailment, 128. Their undertaking

as common carriers holds them liable for all losses, except those

occasioned by the act of God or the public enemy. Ibid. sec.

529. " And when a loss occurs, the onus probandi is on the

carrier, to exempt himself from liability, for prima facie the

law imposes the obligation upon him. It will, therefore, be
sufficient prima facie evidence of loss by negligence that the

goods have never been delivered to the bailor or his agent, or

to the consignee." Ibid. sec. 529.

In this case, it appears, from the evidence, that the contents

of one of the cars had not been unloaded and placed in the

depot, and for the failure to deliver the grain destroyed in it,

the defendants would be liable, and the court below having

failed to render judgment for the value of its contents, commit-

ted an error, for which the judgment of that court should be

ixeversed and the cause remanded.
Judgment reversed.

SiMUEL C. Davis et al, Appellants, v. The Michigan

Southern and Northern Indiana Railroad Company,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM COOK.

The liability of a common carrier by railway terminates, if the goods after reaching

their destination are properly stored in any warehouse ; and notice need not be

given of their arrival, and if it is given, no other liability grows out of it than

that the goods will be retained, free of charge, for the time specified.

The facts of this case are the same as in that preceding.

The judgment was rendered by Manierre, Judge, without the

intervention of a jury, upon an agreed state of facts, at April

term, 1858. The judgment was for the defendant below,

appellee in this court.

GooKiNS, Thomas &, Roberts, for Appellants.

JuDD & Winston, and Glover & Cook, for Appellee.
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Walker, J. The material facts in this case, are similar to

those in the case of Richards et al. against this defendant, de-

cided at the present term ; and the legal principles involved,

and their application to the facts, are discussed in that case, and
also in the preceding case of Porter v. The Chicago and Rock
Island Railroad Company. And we deem it unnecessary to

again discuss them in this case.

The judgment of the court below should be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

The City of Ottawa, Plaintiff in Error, v. George B.

Macy et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO LA SALLE COUNTY COURT.

Where a statute directs that assessments for city improvements shall be made upon
real estate in any natural division of the city benefited thereby, it is a limitation

on the powers of the commissioners not to go out of a natural or obvious divi-

sion, to make assessments ; but having selected the area, then'to assess such

property in it, for taxation, as will most likely be benefited.

A notice to parties interested in the property assessed, which conforms to the law
under which the city is incorporated, and to the city ordinance in that regard,

will be sufficient, although it is general, to " all persons interested," to attend

and make their objections to the confirmation of the assessment.

Where the city charter does not, but the ordinance passed under it docs direct,

that the collector shall make return of his warrant in thirty days, an omission to

make the return within that time, will not make the proceedings void ; such an
ordinance is merely directory and for the benefit of the city council.

If the collector shall make a return that he could not find goods and chattels

whereon to levy and collect the amount assessed, that will be conclusive of the

fact stated. If the return is false, the officer is responsible.

This was an application by the collector of the city of Otta-

wa, to the County Court of La Salle county, for judgment
against certain lots in that city, for assessments made on said

lots for improving certain streets.

The delinquent list of the collector sets forth the lots within

the limits of the city of Ottawa benefited by the improvement
of La Salle street, the valuation of such lots and the sums of

money assessed thereon, which remained due and unpaid.

The return of the collector is in the words and figures fol-

lowing:

I, Albert F Dow, city collector of the city of Ottawa, county and State

aforesaid, certify that the above and foregoing list, upon which an assessment has

been made for the purpose set forth in the caption hereof, and which remains un-ind which remains un- \,^
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paid, is true, according to the best of my knowledge and belief, and that I have

been unable to find goods and chattels of the owners thereof, upon which to levy

and make good such assessment.

ALBERT F. DOW, Cihj Collector.

The affidavit of the city clerk shows that no payments were
made on said list from the date of said return up to February
23rd, 1858, the time of making application for judgment.

There is proof of publication of the notice of the application

for judgment.

Such notice gives a description of the improvement, and of

lots, and states in whose names they were assessed, the valua-

tion, and the amount of assessment on each lot.

The objections interposed are as follows

:

1st. Sec. 2, art. 8, of the city charter, under which the

assessment was made, was unconstitutional.

2nd. The assessment was not uniform on all the real estate

in the natural division of the city benefited.

3rd. The commissioners did not give sufficient notice of the

time and place of making the assessment.

4th. The commissioners did not view the premises assessed.

6th. The city clerk did not give sufficient notice of the time

and place of confirming the assessment.

6th. The collector's return does not show a demand made
for the assessment of the owners of lots.

7th. The collector's return was made after the warrant had
expired.

8th. Some of the lots assessed were owned by minors, and
that no guardian was appointed, and no notice was served on
the guardians of such minors.

9th. Some of the lots were church property and not subject

to assessment.

10th. The proceedings in making the assessment were in-

formal and insufficient in many respects.

On the hearing of the objections, the following notices were
introduced, viz.

;

commissioners' notice.

Public notice is hereby given to all persons interested, that the undersigned,

commissioners appointed by the city council of the city of Ottawa, to assess the

sum of seven thousand six hundred and sixty-six dollars and fourteen cents on the

real estate benefited by the graveling of La Salle street, from the south side of

Main street to the canal bridge, and paving and curbing the gutters of the same,

will meet at J. Avery's office, in said city, on the 25th day of July, 1857, at 9

o'clock, A. M., for the pui-pose of making such assessment.

HENRY J. REED,
)

GEO. WHIPPLE, \ Commissioners.

Ottawa, July 18th, 1857. SAML. B. GRIDLEY, )
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The certificate of the corporation printer shows that said

notice was published in the number of the Ottawa Free Trader
dated July 18th, 1857.

The commissioners' return shows that they met at the time

and place in said notice specified, and made the assessment.

ASSESSMENT NOTICE.

Public notice is hereby given to all persons interested, that the commissioners

appointed by the city council of the city of Ottawa, to assess the sum of seven

thousand six hundred and sixty-six dollars and fourteen cents on the real estate in

the part of the city benefited by graveling of La Salle street, from the south side

of Main street to the canal bridge, and paving and curbing the gutters of the

same, have completed their assessment and made return of the same to my office.

Any person wishing to appeal from said assessment must file their objections, in

writing, in my office on or before Tuesday, the 18th day of August, 1857, at 7

o'clock, P. M., as the city council will at that time, at the council room, hear all

objections to the assessment, and revise and confirm or amend the same.

August 8th. J. AVERY, City Clerk.

The certificate of the corporation printer shows that the said

notice was published two weeks in the Ottawa Free Trader,

commencing with the number of said paper dated August 8th,

1857.

The record of the proceedings of the city council shows that

the assessment was confirmed at the time and place in the notice

mentioned, after hearing all objections.

The warrant of the city collector was dated September 28th,

1857, and directed him to make return thereof in thirty days,

and was returned and filed January 26th, 1858.

The following ordinances were introduced :

An Ordinance concerning Assessments for Public Improvements.

Sec. 1. JBe it ordained by the City Council of the city of Ottawa,

That, whenever the city council shall deem it necessary to cause any

street or public way to be paved, MacAdamized, planked, or otherwise

improved, or any main drains, aequeducts or sewers to be laid, the subject

shall be referred to an appropriate committee, whose duty it shall be to

prepare and report to the city council the plan of such improvement, with

an accurate estimate of the expenses therefor, including, in every case,

the costs of making the assessment. It shall be the duty of the city

surveyor to aid and assist the committee in the preparation of said report,

and to make all estimates in writing; all of which shall be submitted to

the city council, in connection with such report.

Sec. 2. Whenever any improvement shall be ordered, the order there-

for may be in the following form :

Ordered, That street, from street to street, be paved (or other-

wise improved, as the case may he) with, (describe the manner and materials, etc.) If

the order be for a main drain or sewer, it may read as follows : Ordered, That a

main drain or sewer (as the case may he,) be laid through and under —— street,
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from street to street, as follows. In either case the order may conclude
as follows : And that the sum of be assessed upon the real estate in the di-

vision of the city benefited thereby, to defray the expenses of such improvement.

Sec. 3. In all cases where a special, assessment shall be required for

the purpose of improving any public square, or to defray a part of the

costs of any market grounds, public parks, or the erection of any market,

or other public improvement in any part of the city, for which a special

assessment may be made, the form and proceedings herein prescribed, with

modifications, (if required,) may in any case be followed.

Sec. 4. When the assessment shall be ordered, and after the commit-

tee shall have made their report and estimate of the same, the city council

shall by ballot choose three reputable freeholders, residing in the city, to

make the same. Their names shall be recorded by the clerk as follows :

The city council proceeded to make choice, by ballot, of three commissioners to

make such assessments. On the first ballot (or as the case may he,) A. B., C. D.,
and E. F., received ballots each, (as the case may he,) which being a majority
of all the aldermen authorized by law to be elected, they were declared duly elected

as commissioners to assess the sum of dollars on the real estate in the division

of the city benefited by the (state the nature of the improvement,) in pursuance of

the order of the council passed , 185-.

Sec. 5. The clerk shall make out notices of their appointment to the

commissioners, requiring them to appear and be qualified, as such, within

five days after the service of notice. Notices shall be served by the city

marshal. Commissioners shall take the following oath, to be administered

by the clerk, and entered upon or attached to the assessment roll

:

The undersigned, commissioners appointed hj the city council of the city of

Ottawa, to assess the sum of dollars upon real estate by us deemed benetited

by the paving of [or otherwise improving) street, (orfor such other purpose as

the assessment may be made,) in proportion to the benefit resulting thereto, as nearly

as may be, we solemnly swear that we will faithfully and impartially execute our .

duty according to the best of our ability. A. B., )

CD., /• Commissioners.

E. F., )

Sworn to and subscribed before me, this day of ———, 185-.

, Clerk.

Sec. 6. Before entering upon their duties, the commissioners shall give

at least six days' notice in the corporation paper, of the time and place of

making their assessment, and they may, if necessary, adjourn from day to

day. Said notice may be in the following form :

commissioners' notice.

Public notice is hereby given, to all persons interested, that the undersigned,

commissioners appointed by the city council of the city of Ottawa, to assess the

sum of dollars on the real estate in the part of the city by us deemed bene-

fited by the (here state the substance of the order,) will meet at , in said
,

on the day of , at the house of , clerk, for the purpose of mak-
ing said assessment. A. B., )

CD., / Commissioneis.

Ottawa, , 185-. E. F., )

The commissioners shall attach to their assessment roll a certificate of such

publication, signed by the proprietor or general agent of the corporation

paper.
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See. 7. The commissioners shall be present at the time and place men-

tioned in such notice, for the purpose of making said assessment. When
the same shall be completed, it shall be entered in a well bound book, to

be provided by the city ; the roll shall contain the names of the owners

of real estate, when known, a description of the lots and parts of lots

which may be assessed, the valuation of each, separately, and the sura of

money assessed thereon. It may be in the following form :

ASSESSMENT ROLL.

A description of the real estate in the part of the city of Ottawa deemed bene-

fited by the paving (or otherwise, as the case may be,) street, (or by laying of

a main drain, or otherwise, as the case viay be,) with the valuation thereof, and the

sums of money severally assessed thereon by the commissioners, to wit

:

Original Town of Ottawa, (or as the case may be.)

Name of Owner. Description. Lot. Block. I Valuation. Assessment.

Sec. 8. When the said roll shall be completed, the commissioners shall

attach thereto a return, which may be in the following form

:

We, the undersigned, freeholders and residents of the city of Ottawa, duly
elected by the city council to assess the sum of dollars on the real estate in

the part of said city by us deemed benefited by the paving street, (or by lay-

ing of a main drain or sewer, or as the case may he, folloxving in each case the desaip-

tion of the improvement in the order therefor,) do hereby report and return to the city

council :

That, in pursuance of said appointment, they were duly qualified before entering

upon their duties, as appears by the oath recorded herein.

That they published a notice of the time and place of their meeting for the pur-

pose of making said assessment, in the , corporation newspaper, for the

period of six days previous to such meeting, a certificate of which publication is

hereunto annexed ; that they were present at the time and place, and for the pur-

pose designated in said notice, and did then and there and do hereby, in pursuance
of said appointment, assess the said sum of money upon the real estate hereinbe-

fore set forth and described as benefited, in the respective proportions of said sum
set opposite to each lot and part of lot, respectively, in the foregoing assessment
roll, having first fixed a valuation on the real estate, which is likewise set forth in

said roll.

All of which is respectfully submitted. A. B., ')

C. D., > Commissioners.

Ottawa, 185-. E. F-, )

Sec. 9. The commissioners shall complete their assessment and file the

same in the office of the city clerk, within forty days after their appoint-

ment, unless further time shall be given them for the purpose. The clerk

shall thereupon cause a notice of the return of such assessment to be

published for six days in the corporation paper, and a certificate of such

publication, under the hand of the corporation printer, or his general agent,

shall be written upon or attached to the roll. The notice may be in the

following form

:

ASSESSMENT NOTICE.

City Clerk's Office,
Ottawa, , 185-

Public notice is hereby given, to all persons interested, that the commissioners

appointed by the city council of the city of Ottawa, to assess the sum of dol-

:;e, J

3-.
J
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lars on the real estate in the part of the city benefited by the (hm-e state the sub-

stance of the order), ha.ve completed their assessment and made return thereof to

my oflfice. Any persons wishing to appeal from said assessment must file their

objections, in writing, in my office, on or before Tuesday, the — day of , 185-,

at 7 o'clock P. M., as the city council will at that time, in the council room, hear

all objections to the assessment, and revise and confirm, or amend the same.

J. A., Clerk.

Sec. 10. When all objections to the assessments stall have been heard,

and the roll revised and corrected by the city council, an order of confirm-

ation shall thereupon be entered by the clerk, (if such order shall be

made,) which order may be in the following form, to wit

:

Whereas, due notice has been given by the city clerk of the return of the assess-

ment made by the commissioners appointed by the city council, on the day of

, 185-, to assess the sum of dollars on the real estate in that part of the

city benefited by the (here state the nature of the assessment,) and all objections to

such assessment having been duly heard and disposed of by the city council, (or,

no objections thereto having been made, as the case may be,) it is therefore

—

Ordered, That the said assessment, as revised and corrected by the city council,

be, and the same is hereby confirmed. It is further ordered, that a warrant be
issued and directed to the city collector, for the collection thereof, returnable in

thirty days after date.

Sec. 11. The city collector shall have the same power in the collection

of warrants as he possesses in the collection of general taxes. If any
part of the assessment shall not be collected by the return day of the

warrant, he shall make return thereof in the manner required for the re-

turn of general warrants. The order of sale shall be entered by the city

clerk, and the sale and returns thereof shall be made by the collector in the

manner prescribed for taxes. All warrants for special assessments shall be

charged by the city clerk to the collectors receiving the same, and such

collector shall be liable therefor in the same manner and to the same ex-

tent as he is for general taxes.

Sec. 12. No assessment shall be deemed to be invalid in any case

where the same shall be made in conformity with the proceedings and
forms herein prescribed.

By order, J. Avery, City Clerk.

Passed February 24, 1857.

An Ordinance to carry into effect an Act of the General Assemhly of
the State of Illinois, entitled "An Act to amend the charter of the

several toivns and cities in this State—Approved March 1, 1854."

Sec. 1. Be it ordained hy the City Council of the city of Ottawa,

That in all cases where taxes assessed on any lot or real estate in this city,

by the corporate authorities thereof, are not paid within the time limited,

it shall be the duty of the city collector, after having given notice of such

intended application, by advertisement at least thirty days previous to

such application, in some newspaper published in this city, to apply to

the county court of La Salle county, at the December term thereof, and

cause judgment to be entered in said court against such delinquent lot or

real estate, for the amount of taxes due and unpaid, and costs ; and the

said court shall proceed to hear and determine such application, and render

judgment against such delinquent lot or real estate, in the same manner,
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and the said judgment shall have the like effect, as though said delinquent

list had been returned to said court by the sheriff or collector of the

county, in the collection of State and county taxes ; and the said court,

after the entry and rendition of said judgment, shall issue a precept or

order to the city collector, directing him to sell such delinquent lots or real

estate at public auction, to pay said delinquent taxes and costs ; and the

said sale shall be made on the second Monday after said court shall have

adjourned, by the city collector, at the door of the court-house in said

county, the said city collector having previously given notice of said sale

by advertisement, by one insertion in some newspaper published in this

city.

Sec. 2. Be if further' enacted. That in all cases where assessments

have heretofore been made, or shall hereafter be made by the corporate

authorities of this city, on any lot or real estate in this city, for the pur-

pose of improving any street, sidewalk, avenue or alley, in front of or

adjacent to such lot or real estate, or for any purpose whatsoever, either

by ordinance, resolution or other proceeding, and such assessment shall

not be paid within the time limited by the ordinance, resolution or order

making such assessment, it shall be the duty of the city collector to apply

to the county court of La Salle county, at any regular term thereof, and

cause judgment to be entered in said court against said lot or real estate,

for the amount of such assessment and costs ; and said court, upon such

application being made, shall render judgment against such lot or real

estate, for the amount of said assessment due and unpaid, and costs, and

shall issue a precept or order to the sheriff of said county, commanding

him to sell said lot or real estate, or so much thereof as may be necessary

to pay said judgment and costs, in the same manner and with like effect

as if sold upon execution at law.

Error assigned, is, refusing to render judgment against the

lots to which the objections were made.

Leland & Leland, and J. Aveey, for Plaintiff in Error.

0. C. Gray, for Defendants in Error.

Breese, J. Of the ten objections made in the County Court

to which this writ of error was directed, the first and ninth are

considered as abandoned by the defendants in error. In truth,

the ninth objection that some of the lots assessed were church
property, and therefore not subject to assessment, could not be
made by these defendants, as they show no interest in that prop-

erty. Nor can the eighth objection avail them, that some of the

lots assessed were owned by minors, for whom no guardians

were appointed, and for the same reason. The minors them-
selves, or their guardians for them, when appointed, can make
the objection, if advisable. The tenth objection is of a nature

so general as to preclude any particular inquiry into it, and we
will confine ourselves to those considered meritorious.
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It is alleged by the defendants that the assessment was not

uniform on all the real estate in the natural division of the city

benefited by the improvement.
Section two of article 8 of the charter of the city of Ottawa

provides that the expenses of any improvement in the foregoing

section, except side walks and private drains, shall be assessed

upon real estate in any natural division benefited thereby, with

the costs of the proceedings therein, in proportion, as nearly as

may be, to the benefits resulting thereto. Act of Feb. 10, 1853,
to charter the city of Ottawa.

It is contended that this means that all the property in the

natural division must be assessed, and not alone the particular

property in such division benefited by the proposed improvement.
We do not regard this as a positive command to the commission-

ers to assess all the property in the natural division benefited.

The language of the charter is not that the assessment shall be

made on all the real estate of any natural division, but upon
" real estate in any natural division benefited thereby." It is a

limitation on the power of the commissioners, not to go out of

a natural or obvious division to make assessments, but having

selected the area, then to assess such property in it for taxation

as will, most likely, be benefited.

The fifth objection to which the defendants' counsel has called

the attention of the court, not arguing the third and fourth, is,

that the city clerk did not give sufiicient notice of the time and
place of hearing objections to the confirmation of the assess-

ment by the city council.

The sixth section of article 8 provides, " When the commis-
sioners shall have completed their assessment, and made a

correct copy of it, they shall deliver the same to the city clerk

within forty days after appointment, signed by all the commis-
sioners. The clerk shall thereon cause a notice to be published

in one or more newspapers published in said city, for six days,

to all persons interested therein, of the completion of the

assessment and the filing of the roll. Time and place shall be
designated for hearing objections."

It is insisted that this form of notice " to all persons inter-

ested," as under it a person may be deprived of his property, is

not sufficiently special, and that the notice should contain either

a description of the lands assessed, or the names of the owners
of the property assessed ; that the notice is too general to effect

the object intended by notice. It is a sufiicient answer to this

objection to say, that it conforms to the requirements of the

statute ; it is general, because the statute allows a general

notice. The commissioners notified all persons interested that

they had assessed a certain sum on the real estate in the part of
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the city benefited by graveling La Salle street, from the south

side of Main street to the canal bridge, etc., and a day, hour

and place named in the notice when objections to the assessment

would be heard.

This notice is also in strict conformity with the form adopted

by the city council, entitled, " An Ordinance concerning assess-

ments for public improvements."

Section four of article 8 requires the commissioners to give

six days' notice in one or more newspapers published in the city,

of the time and place of meeting, prior to making assessments,
" to all persons interested."

Now this notice could not well be specific, for it could not be

known to the commissioners whose property, or what particular

property, would be assessed ; and, therefore, a general notice

was all the notice that could be given. If a more particular

notice might have been given after the assessment, the legisla-

ture should so have required. In their wisdom, it was not

deemed necessary ; but the same phraseology is used in the

sixth section. The notice given contains a description of the

property assessed, sufficiently particular to arrest the attention

of the owners of lots or land in that described locality.

By the second section of the act entitled " An Act to amend
the charters of the several towns and cities in this State," ap-

proved March 1, 1854, (Laws of 1854, page 22), power is given

to the corporate authorities to provide, by resolution or ordi-

nance, for " the kind and time of notice of assessments." This

notice is in conformity with the city ordinance on that subject.

The seventh objection goes to the fact, that the collector did

not make return of his warrant in thirty days, as required by
the ordinance of the city to which reference has been made.
The ordinance does make this requirement, but the charter

does not, and are the proceedings all void if he does not so

return it ? It is a mere direction of the city council to their

officer to make the return within that time and for their benefit.

We cannot see how it can injuriously affect the owners, if the

warrant be not returned in that time, if the direction of the

council be not obeyed.

As to the fourth objection, not waived by the defendants, and
yet not insisted on by them, it is sufficient to say, that the law
under which the commissioners acted, does not require them to

go upon and view the premises to be assessed.

The sixth objection is, that the collector's return does not

show any demand for the sums assessed, nor that the owners had
no goods and chattels.

Section eight, of article nine, provides, that the collector

shall return the list, etc., with a certificate, signed by him, that
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the taxes remain unpaid, and that he could find no goods and
chattels whereon to levy and collect the amount of the tax.

The return conforms to this provision.

We have held such a return conclusive of the fact stated, the

officer being responsible for a false return, if it be one. Taylor

V. The People, 2 Gilm. E. 351 ; Job et al. v. Tebhets, 5 ib. 382.

We can see no force in the objections made to rendering

judgment against the lots assessed.

The judgment of the County Court is reversed, and the cause

remanded, with directions to enter judgment against the lots,

notwithstanding the objections.

Judgment reversed.

The City of Ottawa, Plaintiff in Error, v. Abner A.

Fisher et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO LA SALLE COUNTY COURT.

The common council of the city of Ottawa is not bound to decide upon the con-
firmation of an assessment, on the day fixed for that purpose, by the notice

given. The day named was for hearing objections ; deliberation may be neces-

sary.

This was a special assessment for grading, graveling, and
otherwise improving Main street, in the city of Ottawa.
The delinquent list of the collector sets forth the lots within

the limits of the city of Ottawa benefited by the improvement of

Main street, the valuation of such lots, and the sums of money
assessed thereon, which remain due and unpaid.

There w^as proof of publication of the notice of the applica-

tion for judgment.

Such notice gives a description of the improvement, and of

lots, and states in whose names they were assessed, the valuation

and the amount of the assessment on each lot.

On the 8th day of March, the following, among other objec-

tions, was filed

:

The city clerk did not give sufficient notice of the time and
place of confirming the assessment.

The record of the proceedings of the city council shows, that

on the 8th day of September, 1857, said assessment roll was
reported to the council, and taken up for consideration, and all

objections thereto read, after which the assessment and objections

were referred to the finance committee.
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September 15th, 1857, no quoi'um. On motion of Alderman
Smith, adjourned to Thursday evening next.

On said Thursday evening the finance committee reported back
said assessment, and recommended several corrections and
alterations, upon which the council then confirmed the assess-

ment, after correcting the same.

Leland & Leland, and J. Avery, for Plaintiff in Error.

0. C. Gray, for Defendants in Error.5

Breese, J. In addition to the objections considered in the

case of The City of Ottawa v. George B. Macy et a/., this one

is made, namely, that the city council did not finally dispose of

and determine the question of confirming the report of the

commissioners on the day it was made.

It will be seen that the day fixed in the notice was for hear-

ing objections, not for deciding upon them. They might require

time and much deliberation. The parties interested could at-

tend the meetings of the council until a final disposition was
made of the matter, if they deemed it important.

The judgment of the court below is reversed, and the cause

remanded, with instructions to render judgment against the lots,

notwithstanding the objections.

Judgment reversed.

The City of Ottawa, Plaintiff in Error, v. The Trustees

OF THE Free Church et ciL Defendants in Error.

ERROR to LA SALLE.

Church property may be assessed for special purposes, though not liable for ordi-

nary taxes.

This was a proceeding to enforce a special assessment in the

city of Ottawa.

The delinquent list of the collector sets forth the lots within

the limits of the city benefited by a sewer in Jefferson street,

the valuation of such lots, and the sums of money assessed

thereon, which remain due and unpaid.

The return of the collector is in the words and figures fol-

lowing :



424 OTTAWA,

City of Ottawa v. Trustees of the Free Church et al.

I, Albert F. Dow, city collector of the city of Ottawa, county and State

aforesaid, certify that the above and foregoing list upon which an assessment has

been made for the purpose set forth in the caption hereof, and which remains un-

paid, is true according to the best of my knowledge and belief, and that I have

been unable to find goods and chattels of the owners thereof upon which to levy

and make good such assessment.

Ottawa, Jan. 18th, 1858.

Sworn to, Feb. 23rd, 1858.

ALBERT F. DOW, Citi/ Collector.

The affidavit of the city clerk shows that no payments were
made on said list from the date of said return up to February
23rd, 1858.

There was proof of the publication of the notice of the

application for judgment.

Such notice gives a description of the improvement, and of

the lots, and states in whose name they were assessed, the valu-

ation and amount of the assessment. There was proof of the

regularity of the other proceedings.

On the first day of the term a rule was taken on the defend-

ants to file objections by the 8th day of March.

Among other objections was the following :

Some of the lots were church property and not subject to

assessment.

Leland & Leland, and J. Avery, for Plaintiff in Error.

0. C. Gray, for Defendants in Error.

Breese, J. All the objections made in the case of The City

of Ottawa V. George B. Macy et al.^ are made in this case,

and are disposed of in the same way.

The additional objection that church property was assessed, is

not tenable. Though not liable for ordinary taxes, it is for local

assessments of this character.

The principles of the case of The Tnisteesof the 111. Sj' Mich.

Canal v. The City of Chicago, 12 111. R. 403, govern this case.

The judgment of the court below is reversed, and the cause

remanded, with instructions to render judgment against the lots

assessed.

Judgment reversed.
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Divilbiss, adm'r, etc. v. Whitmire, assignee, etc.

George Divilbiss, Administrator of Nathan'l C. Divilbiss,

deceased, Plaintiff in Error, v. James S. Whitmire, As-

signee of D. J. Stew^art, Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO MARSHALL.

The return to a summons in chancery, which states service by delivering a true

copy to the within named, etc., he being a white person over ten years old, on,

etc., as within commanded, is a nullity, and no default can be taken upon it.

This was a bill in clianceiy, filed in the Marshall Circuit

Court, in March, 1856, by Whitmire, as assignee of Stewart,

against Nathaniel C. Divilbiss, who is now deceased. A summons
was issued, and returned as set out in the opinion. Upon this re-

turn a default was taken, and a decree of foreclosure bj default

was entered upon it.

N. H. Purple, for Plaintiff in Error.

J, Clark, for Defendant in Error.

Breese, J. It is only necessary to advert to the first error

assigned, which is, " Rendering a decree by default against the

defendant, there being no service of process on him, and no
equity on the face of the bill."

The summons is in the usual form, against Nathaniel C. Divil-

biss, and the return upon it is as follows

:

I have served this writ by delivering a true copy of the same to the within

named James Divilbiss, he being a white person over 10 years old, on this second

day of May, A. D. 1856, as within commanded.

A. GARDNER,
Sheriff Marshall County, III.

The seventh section of the Chancery Practice Act, (R, S.,

chap. 21,) is as follows

:

" Service of summons shall be made by delivering a copy
thereof to the defendant, or leaving such copy at his usual place

of abode with some white person of the family of the age of

ten years or upwards, and informing such person of the contents

thereof, which service shall be at least ten days before the

return day of such summons."—p. 94.

This return is so destitute of all these important requirements
as to render it unnecessary to expend words about it— it is a

perfect nullity. Townsend et al. v. Griggs., 2 Scam. R. 366

;

Montgomery et al. v. Brown et al.., 2 Gilm. R. 584. The de-

28
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fendant not having been served with process, his default was
improperly entered, and the final decree thereon irregular and
erroneous.

The decree is reversed, and the cause remanded.

Decree reversed.

Peter Schoonover, Plaintiff in Error, v. Thomas Christy,

Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO LA SALLE COUNTY COURT.

If a party contracts in writing to work for another a certain length of time, and
afterwards to perform other work upon specified terms, for which he was to be
compensated by a colt and a cow, if he refuses to perform, the other party may
take him at his word, and the claim to the animals will be lost.

This is an action of assumpsit, commenced before a justice of

the peace, and appealed to the La Salle County Court, and tried

before Cotton, Judge.

In the County Court, the plaintiff, on the trial, introduced tes-

timony tending to show that plaintiff commenced work on defend-

ant's farm about the 9th day of March, 1855, and so continued to

work until about the 9th day of April, 1855 ; that on or about

the 9th day of April, 1855, plaintiff agreed to work for defend-

ant until the 1st day of October, 1855. That defendant was to

give plaintiff, for such labor, one sorrel horse or mare. That
after the contract made on the 9th day of April, the plaintiff

and defendant made a written contract or agreement, in which
plaintiff agreed to work for defendant from the 1st day of April

to the 1st day of October, 1855, and immediately after said 1st

day of October, to commence hauling straw and manure for de-

fendant, and to spread the same upon defendant's farm. That
plaintiff was to haul and spread all the straw and manure around
defendant's barn, and continue to haul and spread the same until

it was finished. That for said work and labor the defendant

was to give plaintiff one sorrel horse and one red cow. That
plaintiff continued to work for defendant until about the 15th

day of July, when plaintiff was taken ill and remained idle for

about twenty-seven days. That after plaintiff recovered his

health, he again commenced work for defendant, with the appro-

bation of the defendant, and worked until about the 1st of Oc-

tober. That on or about the 10th day of October, the plaintiff

offered to go on and work the number of days he had lost during

his sickness. The defendant replied, that if the plaintiff would
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go on and haul out the manure and straw, that he then might
work the number of days he had lost by sickness. This the

plaintiff absolutely refused to do. That plaintiff and defendant

both signed the agreement, after it was read to the plaintiff.

Plaintiff' can read writing with difficulty. That something was
said about dating the last agreement back to April 1st. That
Christy agreed to the same, and that the first contract was to

be destroyed.

The defendant then offered in testimony a written agreement,

signed by plaintiff and defendant, and proved the execution of

the same by one Silas JSlorey, who testified that he was present

when the agreement was executed by the parties, that both plain-

tiff and defendant signed the same, which agreement is in the

words and figures following, to wit

:

April the 1st, 1855.

An Article of Agreement, Made and entered into this day, between Peter

Schoonover and Thomas Christy. The said Christy doth agree to work for the

said Schoonover, faithfully, from the day of this date until the first day of October

next, and the said Christy then agrees to commence hauling manure by the job, as

described. The said Schoonover agrees to furnish team and wagon, and find feed

for the team. The said Christy agrees to take good care of the team, and board

himself, and haul and spread all the manure on Schoonover's farm, including that

which is under the barn, together with all the old straw piles on said farm; also, to

help haul all the last year's straw unstacked—all to be neatly spread and drawn

according to Schoonover's direction—for which the said Schoonover agrees to give

the said Christy one large sorrel horse colt, one year old in June next, and one red

cow, bought of Silas Morey, with her increase. The said Schoonover is to take

good care of the same, without further responsibility. It is further understood the

said Schoonover is to retain said stock until said labor is done.

Silas Moeey. PETER SCHOONOVER.
THOMAS CHRISTY.

That said Morey signed the contract at the request of the par-

ties, as a witness. That said contract was made on or about the

17th day of April, 1855. The said agreement was read to

plaintiff, and I think it was fully understood by him.

The defendant then showed another contract to witness Morey,

who testified that he had seen the agreement before; saw it on

the 9th day of April, 1855, the day on which it was made. It

was signed by plaintiff and defendant. Said agreement is in

the words and figures as follows, to wit

:

April the 9th, 1855.

Memorandum of an Agreement, Made and entered into this day, between

Peter Schoonover and Thomas Christy. The said Christy agrees to work for the

said Schoonover from this date, faithfully, until the first day of October next, for

which the said Schoonover agrees to give the said Christy the sorrel colt, being a
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horse colt, one year old in the month of June next. The said Schoonover agrees

to take good care of the colt until said labor is performed.

In presence of PETER SCHOONOVER.
Silas Morey. THOMAS CHRISTY.

That the parties had this contract on the 17th day of April,

when the first contract above mentioned was made. That
Schoonover said, " Here is the old contract; it is of no use now;
take it, do what you please with it." That Christy knew that

the first contract was dated back to April ; it was read to Christy

as being made on the 1st day of April.

The court then instructed the jury, on the part of the plaintifi",

as follows :

1st. If the jury believe, from the testimony, that the con-

tract made on the 9th day of April, 1855, was the contract

under which the work was done from the 9th day of April to

the first day of October, 1855, and Schoonover refused to let

plaintiff make up his lost time by work, he had a right to aban-

don the contract and sue the defendant in an action of assumpsit

for his work, and recover what his work was worth.

The jury found a verdict for plaintiff, and thereupon defend-

ant moved for a new trial. The court overruled the motion ; to

which ruling of the court the defendant then and there excepted.

There was a judgment on the verdict in the court below for

181.36.

BusHNELL & Gray, for Plaintiff in Error.

A. W. Cavarly, for Defendant in Error.

Breese, J. All the facts and circumstances in this case con-

cur in showing that the contract dated April 1st, 1855, though
actually signed on the 17th, is the true contract between these

parties ; and as the defendant in error refused to comply with it,

the plaintiff had a right to take him at his word, and to act on
that refusal. His refusal destroys the claim he might have
perfected to the cow and colt. Fox v. Kitton, 19 111. R. 519.

The first instruction, therefore, given in behalf of the defend-

ant in error, was erroneous.

The judgment is reversed and the cause remanded.

Judgement reversed.
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Elisha Freeman et al, Appellants, v. Gustavus "W. Morse,
Appellee.

APPEAL FROM KANE.

The purchaser of goods at a sheriffs' sale, which have been receipted for to him, is

the owner of such goods, and may replevy them.

This was an action of assumpsit. The declaration contained

but one count, which was for money had and received. There
was a plea of the general issue and a replication.

The bill of particulars filed with the declaration, stated an
account for money had and received, |1,000, and claiming ^700
for a note made by G. W. P. & A. H. Bowman, to one Harris

Hoyt, and by him assigned in blank, to the plaintiff below, but
appellee in this court.

The appellants had a judgment against Harris Hoyt, and the

appellee gave them the said note against the Bowmans, for

collection, with the express understanding that whatever might
be collected upon it should be applied in satisfaction of the

judgment against Harris Hoyt. The appellants enforced their

judgment against Hoyt by sale of his goods on an execution,

which was returned satisfied. The appellants also collected

three hundred dollars or thereabouts on the note of the Bow-
mans, which was not applied in any way in satisfaction of the

judgment in their favor against Harris Hoyt. Morse brings

this action to recover from appellants whatever sum they re-

ceived from the Bowmans upon the note. The appellants resist

this claim by an attempt to show that a melodeon, a carpet and
some other articles bought by them at the sale of Hoyt's goods
on their execution, were not delivered by Hoyt. The cause was
heard before I. G. Wilson, Judge, and a jury, at January
term, 1858, of the Kane Circuit Court. There was a verdict

and judgment for appellee in the Circuit Court, for $318.33
and costs.

Eastman, Beveeidge & Lumbaed, for Appellants.

T. C. MooEE, for Appellee.

Beeese, J. This case lies in a small compass, although the

papers are voluminous. The record shows quite plainly, that

the appellants here are seeking a double satisfaction of the debt

due them from Harris Hoyt.
It appears this note on the Bowmans was payable to Hoyt,

and he had assigned it in blank to Morse, and Morse had de-
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livered it to the appellants with directions to appropriate it on

the judgment they held against Harris Hoyt. That after col-

lecting a portion of it, they caused an execution on their judg-

ment to be issued against Harris Hoyt's property, and coerced

the collection of the debt.

Of course, then, Morse had a clear right of action to recover

of the appellants the amount of the Bowman note.

But the appellants say, they did not get all the property of

Hoyt that they bid off at the sale ; that Hoyt kept a carpet and
melodeon which he refused to deliver up to them, saying " ap-

pellants had a note of his which was to be applied on this judg-

ment, and if he delivered up these things they would get pay

twice." Appellants had receipted to the sheriff for these

articles, and by the purchase at the sheriff's sale, they became
to all intents and purposes the owners of them, and they could

have replevied them out of Harris Hoyt's possession.

They did not choose to do so, but attempt to set up this fact,

the detention by Harris Hoyt of the carpet and melodeon,
against the claim of Morse for the value of the Bowman note,

which they had released and given up to Bowman. This they

cannot do.

In looking into the evidence, we think it fully sustains the

verdict, and there does not appear to be any substantial objec-

tions to the instructions.

The judgment is affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

"William H. Gardner, Appellant, v. The People, Appellees.

APPEAL FROM WARREN.

Before a party can be tried on an indictment, it must appear from the record that

it was returned into open court.

Because an incorporated city is authorized to pass ordinances, in relation to the

sale of spirituous liquors, declaring such sale a nuisance, the general law is not

thereby repealed. While a license from city authorities would protect the holder

of it, yet if those authorities fail or refuse to grant a license, the general law
would be violated by a sale in the city limits, and the aggressor may be punished
under it.

The appellant was indicted for selling spirituous liquors, with-

out license, at the March term, 1856, of the Warren County

Circuit Court. The indictment contains two counts.



APRIL TERM, 1858. 431

Gardner v. The People.

There is an entry on the record as follows, to wit

:

" The People, etc., ) Indictment for selling liquor.

vs. > A true bill.

William H. Gardner.
)

John Brown, Foreman.
Ordered that a capias issue herein, instanter, returnable to

the present term of this court, and that said defendant be held

to bail in the sum of one hundred dollars."

This is the first appearance of the case on the record, and
there is no other entry of the return of the indictment into open

court.

At the September term, 1857, before Thompson, Judge, the

defendant having plead not guilty, was tried. The jury found

him guilty, as charged in the second count. The defendant

moved for a new trial, and also in arrest of judgment, both of

which motions were overruled, and the defendant excepted.

On the trial, the prosecution proved that the defendant sold

spirituous liquors, in a quantity less than one gill, and received

ten cents in payment, in the month of March, 1857, at the de-

fendant's drug store, in the city of Monmouth, county of Warren,
and State of Illinois. That the witness told defendant, before

he bought the liquor, that he was not very well, and that the

witness was not, in fact, well at the time, and that he drank the

liquor in the store ; that the defendant kept a drug store, and
the witness never bought liquor of any kind, from the defendant,

but the once.

The defendant then proved, by John T. Morgan, the city

clerk of the city of Monmouth, and the records of the city

council, that an ordinance was passed on the 12th day of June,

1854, which had remained in force ever since, which is entitled,

" An ordinance relating to spirituous, malt, fermented and intoxi-

cating liquors."

Section 1 declares the keeping on deposit and in store, etc.,

for the purpose of selling, a nuisance.

Section 2 makes the selling a nuisance, and provides a

penalty.

Sections 3 and 4 establish the method of proceeding for a

violation of the ordinance.

Section 5 provides that the provisions of the ordinance shall

not apply to the sale, etc., made by any established apothecary

or druggist, for sacramental, chemical, mechanical, or medicinal

purposes, provided the same is sold in good faith, under the pre-

scriptions of a physician, or upon satisfactory assurances made
by or on behalf of the person purchasing the same, in respect to

the use thereof, and provided further, that said druggist shall

furnish a list, under oath, to the clerk of the city council, of all
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sold during the previous quarter, and then declares the druggist

liable to a penalty for omitting to do so.

The ordinance was read in evidence, which was all the evi-

dence offered in the case.

The court gave the following instructions, at the request of

the prosecution, to which the defendant excepted.
" The court will instruct the jury, that if they believe from the

evidence, beyond a reasonable doubt, that defendant sold spirit-

uous liquors in a less quantity than one gallon, within eighteen

months prior to the finding of the indictment, they will find the

defendant guilty, although they may also believe the said liquor

was sold in the town of Monmouth, if they also believe the said

liquor was sold in the county of Warren and State of Illinois, if

the same was not so sold in good faith, in conformity with an
ordinance of the said city of Monmouth."
The reasons assigned for a new trial were, that the verdict

was against the law and the evidence.

The reasons assigned for arrest of the judgment, were the

want of jurisdiction in the court, and that the defendant was
liable to, and controled by, a city ordinance.

The defendant in this court assigns for error, as follows,

to wit

:

1st. The Circuit Court erred in refusing to grant a new trial.

2nd. The Circuit Court erred in refusing to arrest the judg-

ment.

3rd. The Circuit Court erred in entering a fine against the

defendant, and rendering judgment for the fine and costs.

4th. The proceedings are otherwise informal and erroneous.

A. G. KiRKPATRiCK, and Goudy & Judd, for Appellant.

J. B. Hawley, for Appellees.

Walker, J. The defendant was indicted by a grand jury,

and tried in the Warren Circuit Court on a charge of selling

liquor without a license to keep a grocery. The jury found a
verdict of guilty. The defendant entered a motion for a new
trial and in arrest of judgment, which motions were overruled by
the court, and judgment rendered on the verdict for a fine of

$10 and costs ; and the defendant brings the case to this court

! y appeal.

The motion in arrest of judgment should have been allowed

by the court below. It nowhere appears from the record, that

the indictment was ever returned into open court. It is error

to put a defendant on trial on an indictment unless it is returned

into open court, and the only evidence of that fact must be found
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in the record of the case. Gardner v. The People^ 3 Scam. R.

85 ; 4 Black. Com. 306 ; R. S. 1845, p. 309, sec. 3. This require-

ment is proper for the protection of the citizen against being

forced to defend himself against charges never acted upon or

presented by a grand jury. If it were otherwise, by either

accident or design, he might be compelled to make such

defense.

It appeared in evidence, on the trial below, that the city of

Monmouth, in Warren county, was legally incorporated, and
had passed an ordinance declaring the keeping of spirituous

liquors on deposit or in store for sale, and selling it, a nuisance,

and provided a penalty. It also provides the mode of proceed-

ing for the recovery of the penalty. There is a provision in

the ordinance that its provisions shall not apply to sales by any
established apothecary or druggist, for sacramental, chemical,

mechanical or medicinal purposes, provided the same is sold in

good faith under the prescription of a physician, etc. There
was no question raised as to the authority of the city to pass

this ordinance. The evidence shows that defendant sold spirit-

uous liquor in a less quantity than one gill, and received ten

cents in payment, in the month of March, 1857, at his drug

store, in the city of Monmouth, county of Warren, and State of

Illinois. That this ordinance was in force and unrepealed at

the time defendant sold the liquor.

It is urged that when the legislature gave to the city of Mon-
mouth the power to license, regulate and prohibit the sale of

spirituous liquors in the city limits, that they repealed section

132, of the chapter R. S. entitled criminal jurisprudence. That
section imposes a penalty for selling liquor without a license.

The act incorporating the city of Monmouth, gives the city the

exclusive right to license the sale of spirituous liquors. If they

grant a license, that license will protect the holder from the

penalty of section 132. But if they fail or refuse to license

the sale of such liquors, the general law of the State would be

violated by their sale in the city limits. The charter of the

city does not in terms repeal the general law, and if it operates

as repeal, it is because the provisions of the two acts are re-

pugnant. Jurisdiction may be concurrent and yet not repug-

nant. This same charter authorizes the city to levy taxes, to

suppress gaming and bawdy houses, to suppress gaming, and
disorderly conduct, and to impose penalties for a breach of the

peace, and many other things that are prohibited by general enact-

ments of the State ; and if the grant of power to license and
regulate the sale of spirituous liquors repeals the general law on

that subject, it must follow that the State has, for the same

reason, no power to levy taxes, to punish persons for keeping
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gaming houses, for gaming, for breach of the peace, or any other

offense that the city is authorized to punish, when committed
in the city limits. Such a power would be antagonistic to the

very principles of government. An act may, at the same time,

be an offense against the United States government and also

against a State government. Moore v. The People^ 14 Howard
R. The same act may also constitute several crimes or mis-

demeanors, and the trial and punishment for one will be no bar

to a prosecution of another growing out of the same act. Free-

land V. The People, 17 111. R. 380. It has been held that by
the legislature conferring upon an incorporated city or town
such power, does not, by implication, repeal the general law on
the same subject ; but to have that effect, the repeal must be

express or the acts repugnant in their provisions. The People

V. Morris, 13 Wend. R. 325 ; Village of Rochester y. Harrington
et al, 10 Wend. R. 547 ; Baldivin v. Green, 10 Mo. R. 410

;

Harrington v. The State, 9 Mo. R. 525 ; Stone v. The State,

8 Blackford R. 361. We are of the opinion that both reason

and authority are in favor of the construction that the legisla-

ture did not, by merely giving the city the right to act, repeal

the general law of the State on the same subject. What
effect the recovery of a penalty under the ordinance might
have, we are not now called on to determine, and until that

question is presented for determination, we are not disposed to

discuss it.

The judgment of the Circuit Court is reversed, and the

cause remanded.

Judgment reversed.

Andrew J. Topper, Appellant, v. Samuel P. Snoav,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM KNOX.

Where a plea of partial failure of consideration is interposed to an action upon a
note, tlie affirmative rests with the defendant, and if he fails to sustain his plea,

judgment will go against him.

Assumpsit on two notes given by Topper to Snow, dated

April 3rd, 1854, one for $219, due Oct. 1, 1855, and one for

$231, due Oct. 1, 1856.

1st. Plea, general issue.

2nd. Plea, that notes were given for the purchase of land,

and sets out contract from Snow to Topper, bearing date April
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3, 1854, reciting the said notes ; also, the sale of land ; also,

that whereas Topper purchased the land for taxes of 1852, in

case he should obtain a tax deed on the premises on the 28th

June, 1855, or as soon thereafter as could be, the land remain-

ing unredeemed, and he having advertised the same according

to law, then Snow was bound to make to Topper a warranty

deed of the land ; which plea further averred that the time

for the redemption of said land had expired ; that the same had
been advertised according to law, and Topper had obtained his

deed upon said tax sale, but that plaintiff had not, before the

commencement of said suit, made and tendered to the defend-

ant any warranty deed of said land, according to the terms of

said contract. The replication denies that the said sale of said

land was the consideration of said notes ; admits that the tax

sale had passed redemption ; that the same had been properly

advertised ; that the land had not been redeemed ; that the

deed had been properly made on said sale, and that plaintiff did

make and tender to defendant a warranty deed of said land

before the commencement of this suit.

The cause was tried before the court, Thompson, Judge, with-

out jury. On the trial the notes and contract were read in

evidence, and Robert L. Hanneman testified to a tender of a

warranty deed for the land described in the contract, before

suit, to L. Douglass, one of defendant's attorneys, and that

Douglass admitted the tender was made.
L. Douglass testified that he had acted as attorney for de-

fendant, in a previous case between the same parties, and was
his attorney in this suit ; that before the commencement of this

suit, Hanneman tendered to witness the deed referred to ; that

witness inspected it and handed it back to him ; that afterwards

he saw defendant, and supposed he told the defendant of the

tender, but could not say ; that defendant told witness to let

them go on and collect the note if they could ; that he was
never authorized by defendant to get the deed, or receive it

;

that he never intended, in conversation with Hanneman, to say

that the tender was a good tender to defendant, but only

intended not to dispute the offer of the deed to witness.

Judgment was rendered for plaintiff below.

Manning & Merriman, for Appellant.

GouDY & JuDD, for Appellee.

Caton, C. J. This was an action upon several promissory

notes. The defendant filed a plea of the general issue, and
also a plea of part failure of consideration, setting out a written
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contract between the parties, bearing even date with the. notes,

reciting a conveyance of certain lands by quit-claim deed, and
an agreement to give a warranty deed for the same land, in case

the grantor should obtain a tax deed. Avers that the notes

were given for this land, and that the plaintiff had obtained the

tax deed, and had neglected to make the warranty deed, etc.

The plaintiff, in his replication, denied that the notes were
given for the land, but avers the tender of the warranty deed.

The case was tried by the court, who found for the plaintiff, for

the amount of the notes, which decision is now assigned for

error.

The court was certainly bound to find the issue for the plain-

tiff. The contract, as set out in the plea, does not show or

intimate that the notes were given for the land in the contract

and plea mentioned, nor is there a particle of evidence in the

case showing for what the notes were given. That contract

also has a provision to deduct from the notes, in case the land

shall be redeemed from a tax sale to Snow, but makes no refer-

ence to the notes in case it is not redeemed, and in that event,

it obliges Snow to get a tax deed, and convey, by warranty
deed, to the defendant. That part of the contract is perfectly

independent of the notes, and that is the part which, in the

plea and upon the trial, it was complained had been broken by
the non-delivery of the warranty deed. . That part of the con-

tract has no connection with the latter part, which provided for

a certain reduction on the notes, in case the land should be
redeemed, any more than as if they had not been upon the same
-piece of paper. The plea is based upon that first part, averring

that the notes were given for the land, and that the considera-

tion had failed because the deed was not made. The issue was,

that the notes were not given for the land, and the affirmative

of this issue was on the defendant, and he failed to produce any
evidence in support of his plea. There was nothing left for

the court to do, but to find the issue against him. Even had
the defendant set up a defense under the latter part of the

contract, claiming a reduction on the notes, by reason of a

redemption of the land from the tax sale, he must have failed

in this, for the reason that there was no proof of such redemp-
tion, and consequently, no right to claim the reduction.

The judgment must be af&rmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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Benjamin 0. Hodge, Appellant, v. Marcus D. Oilman

et al, Appellees.

APPEAL FROM COOK COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

The party receiving a paper interlined in a material part, should see that the

interlineation is noted in the attestation. Such interlineations must be explained

by those who claim the benefit of them.

Where a material alteration appears upon the face of the instrument, the onus is

upon the person holding it, to show that the alteration was made before attesta-

tion, or has been assented to.

This was a proceeding in chancery. The bill states that the

complainant was indebted to the defendants, on the 7th day of

July, 1857, in a certain sum of money, for which indebtedness

the defendants requested him to give his note at sixty days, and
promised him that they would allow him that time to pay said

indebtedness, if he would give his note ; that being desirous of

the extension, he did so, and drew the note, which is hereinafter

set forth ; that he also signed, in connection with said note, and
on the same sheet of paper, a power of attorney, in the usual

form, etc., to enter up judgment on said note, at any time after

the same became due ; that it was the distinct understanding

between him and the defendants that he was to have sixty days'

time in which to pay the note.

The bill further states that, on the 9th day of July, 1857, the

said defendants caused judgment to be entered upon said note

against the complainant, that execution was issued, and a levy

threatened on the goods of the complainant, until the defend-

ants were informed of the complainant's discovery of the facts

hereinafter set forth, since which time no proceedings have been

taken with said execution, which still lies in the hands of the

sheriff, to the great damage of the complainant, who expressly

states that he would have been able to pay the note in sixty

days, and had made arrangements so to do.

The bill further states that the complainant has seen the

papers on which the said judgment was entered. " And your
orator expressly states that the said note is the note that he

signed for M. D. Gilman &, Co., but that the said power of

attorney last mentioned is not the power of attorney that was
signed by your orator in connection with the note aforesaid

;

that the words ' before or' are interlined with a pen before the

printed words ' after due,' in the power of attorney by virtue

of which the judgment and execution above mentioned were
entered and issued in said court ; and your orator further adds,

that if the signature of ' B. 0. Hodge' was written by your
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orator to the said power of attorney (and your orator believes

that it was), then the interlineation above mentioned must have

been made, and your orator is confident that it was made, after

your orator had signed the same ; for your orator is well

acquainted with the instruments commonly called judgment
notes, and your orator took particular pains to read, and did

read, that portion of the power of attorney which gave the

power to enter up judgment, and the said power of attorney

was filled out in a printed form, and expressed that judgment
might be entered on the said note at any time after the said

note became due ; and your orator saw no printed or written

words that modified the meaning of said note and power of

attorney, as your orator has hereinbefore expressed the same to

be. And your orator says that, according to the best of his

knowledge and belief, the said interlineation was made after

your orator signed the said note and power of attorney. And
your orator expressly charges that the same was made for the

purpose of defrauding and injuring your orator, and that it was
made by, or procured to be made by, the said defendants, M. D.
Gilman & Co."

The bill further states that the said power of attorney is a

sealed instrument, that the same is witnessed, that the witness

knows nothing of the interlineation, nor was his attention called

to it. That the attestation to the signatures, which was filed

with the clerk of the court when judgment was entered, was by
E, P. Hooker, and not G. H. Morrison, the subscribing witness

to the note. The complainant craves leave to refer to the note.

The bill charges that the alteration was made fraudulently,

etc., and prays for an injunction, and that the judgment should be

set aside for fraud. The bill waives the oath of the defendants.

The injunction prayed for was granted.

The answer of the defendants is joint and several, and admits

that a judgment was entered, as stated in the complainant's bill.

The answer denies that said sixty days' note was made on
any such understanding as is stated in the bill, but states that

they were to have the election to retain said sixty days' note,

and return two other notes, made by said Hodge, or to return

said sixty days' note, and retain said other two notes ; and
that, accordingly, they retained the said sixty days' note, and
returned said two other notes.

The answer admits that the words " before or" are interlined,

but says that they were interlined before signing ; denies that

there was any agreement to wait sixty days before entering

judgment, and says that they already had the complainant's

notes, due and past due, for the same debt, on which they might

have recovered judgment in less than sixty days. The defend-
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ants do not know whether the attention of the witness was
called to the interlineation of the words " before or," but say-

that the attention of the complainant was called to them. The
answer denies all fraud and collusion.

The answer further says, that the only treaty which was had
concerning giving sixty days' time for the payment of said note,

was in connection with a proposition that the . complainant

should secure his own note by pledging other notes as collateral.

The answer further admits the issuing and levy of the execu-

tion as charged.

The answer denies fully and repeatedly that the interlineation

referred to was made after signature.

A general replication was filed.

Two depositions were taken, but the testimony elicited is of

no importance, except the answers of G. H. Morrison to certain

questions, which are as follows :

Interrogatory 2nd. Did you, some time in July, 1857, witness

a certain note and power of attorney to enter up a judgment,

drawn in favor of M. D. Gilman & Co., and signed by Beuj. 0.

Hodge, of Galena ?

Ans. Yes.

Int. 3rd. Was your attention called to any interlineation in

said power of attorney ?

Ans. It was not.

Int. 4th. Did you see any interlineation of said power of

attorney when you signed it as a witness ?

Ans. No. I did not.

Cross-Int. 7th. Did or did not Hodge look over the DOwer
of attorney to confess judgment before signing it ?

Ans. I saw him looking at it, and think I heard him read a

portion of it before I signed it as a witness.

The note and power of attorney are copied in the opinion of

the court.

At the January term, 1857, a decree was rendered dissolving

the injunction, and dismissing the bill, with costs ; from which
decree the complainant appealed. J. M. Wilson, Judge, ordered
the decree.

J. A. Ware, for xVppellant.

Mather & Tapt, for Appellees.

Caton, C. J. This bill was filed to enjoin the collection of,

and to set aside and vacate a judgment entered in the Common
Pleas, in favor of the respondents, against the complainant.

The judgment was confessed by an attorney, and the ground
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alleged for the relief sought, is, that the power under which the

attorney acted was altered in a material part after it was exe-

cuted by the complainant, without his authority, and so it was
not his deed. The note and the power of attorney, as they

appeared at the time the judgment was confessed, were as fol-

lows,—those parts in Roman letters being in print, and those in

italics being in writing

:

$1047.87. Chicago, July Ith, 1857.

Sixty days after date, promise to pay to the order of M. D. Gilman

Sj- Co., ten hundred and forty-seven 87-100 dollars, for value received, with interest

at the rate of ten per cent, per annum after due, payable at their office in Chicago.

B. 0. HODGE.

Know all men by these presents, that whereas, the subscriber, B. 0. Hodge,

justly indebted to M. D. Gilman ^~ Co., upon a certain promissory note for the

sum of ten hundred and forty-seven 87-100 dollars, bearing interest^ at the rate of

after due and

ten per cent, per annum due sixty days from date, and payable to the order of M.
A

D. Gilman ^ Co. Now, therefore, in consideration of the premises, I do hereby

make, constitute, and appoint Gallup ^- Hitchcock, or any attorney of any court

of record, to be my true and lawful attorney irrevocably, for and in my name and

stead to enter my appearance at any time, when the same can be legally done

before any court of record or justice of the peace, in any of the States or territo-

bejbre or

ries of the United States of America, at any time after the said note becomes
A

due, to waive service of process, and confess a judgment in favor of the said M.

D. Gilman Sj- Co., or their assigns, upon the said note, for the above sum, or for

as much as shall appear to be due, according to the tenor and effect of said note

and interest thereon, to the day of the entry of said judgment ; and also twenty-

five dollars for counsel fee, and release all errors that may intervene in entering

up said judgment or in issuing execution thereon.

Hereby ratifying and confirming all which they, said attorneys, may do by

virtue hereof.

Witness my hand and seal at Chicago, this 1th day of July, 18.57.

In presence of B.O.HODGE. \L. S.\

G. H. Morrison.

The alleged alteration is in the interlining of the words
"before or" between the words "time" and "after," in the

power of attorney. It is not denied that tlie words are mate-
rial, for it was in fact only by force of these words that the

judgment was entered at the time it was, which was before the

maturity of the note. The only testimony taken at all material

to the point in issue, was that of the subscribing witness, (Mor-
rison), who says he witnessed the power of attorney, and that at

that time, his attention was called to no interlineations in the

power of attorney, and that he saw none. This, in fact, amounts
to but very little, for the first interlineation which occurs, and
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of which no complaint is made, we may fairly presume was made
at the time it was executed ; or, at least, if it was inserted

afterwards, it was in pursuance of an implied authority from
the maker, for it made it correspond with the note to which it

referred and was attached. The fact, however, that there was
a subscribing witness to the instrument, whose attention should

have been called to the interlineation, and it noted in the attest-

ation, by the party for whose benefit the paper was executed,

should by no means be overlooked in the consideration of the

case. The party who receives a paper interlined in a material

part, should see that the interlineation is noted in the attesta-

tion, or he must assume the responsibility of explaining it after-

wards. It is, at least, the settled law of this court, that such

interlineations must be explained by the party claiming the ben-

efit of the paper, the presumption of law being that the inter-

lineations were made after the execution by the maker. This
presumption arises from business convenience, the security of

parties, and the necessities of the case. The law must presume
either that it was made before or after it was executed ; and if

the former, no man would ever be safe in signing any paper, no
matter how fairly drafted, for the holder, having it in his pos-

session and control, could interline it at pleasure, and then call

upon the maker to show that the alterations were made after its

execution, which, if the alterations were made by the same hand
that wrote the body of the instrument, it would, in most cases,

be impossible for him to do. But we shall not stop to discuss

at length the propriety, and even the necessity, of this legal

presumption. It is sufficient that it has been deliberately settled

by this court, in the case of Walters v. Short, 5 Gilui. R. 252,

and that we now entirely approve of that decision.

In the argument here, a distinction is attempted to be drawn
between this case and that, insisting that there the party pro-

ducing the instrument was claiming to recover a judgment upon
it, while here a judgment has already been obtained upon the

note, which the maker seeks to avoid by setting up affirmatively

that the power of attorney has been altered since its execution.

It is true, that the complainant in this case must take the af-

firmative, to show that the instrument has been altered since he
signed it ; and so it is when an action is brought upon a promis-

sory note, when the handwriting of the maker is proved. That
binds him prima facie, and to avoid the apparent obligation of

the instrument, he must assume the responsibility of showing
that it is not the instrument it was when he signed it ; that it

has been since altered ; and anything which would prove an

alteration in the one case, would establish it in the other.

That, we say, as matter of law, is done by showing to the court,

29
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that the instrument has been interlined in a material part, which
changes the onus and imposes the duty upon the other side to

show that the alteration was in fact made before it was ex-

ecuted ; or that it was done subsequently, with the authority or

consent of the maker. Nor does this necessarily require the

production of a witness who saw the alteration made. The
very face of the paper may show satisfactorily that the altera-

tion was made with the consent of the maker, or at least it may
raise that presumption, and destroy the first presumption arising

from the simple fact of interlineation. The first interlineation

in this power of attorney may be of this kind. Again, an inter-

lineation may be shown to be in the handwriting of the maker.

In that case, when the instrument is inspected, and a material

interlineation or alteration is apparent, the law at once pre-

sumes that it was without authority, but that presumption is at

once destroyed and succeeded by another when the alteration is

shown to be in the handwriting of the maker. And so in many
other ways may the first presumption be destroyed by a further,

inspection of the face of the paper.

In this case there is nothing on the face of the paper itself,

or in the extrinsic proof, in the least weakening the presumption

of law already stated. The alteration is in a material part of

the paper, to the palpable detriment of the complainant, and as

manifestly to the advantage of the respondent, and above all, it

is not naturally consistent with the terms of the note to which
it refers, and is a harsh and unjust provision, which, if the law
will not at once repudiate, as oppressive and inconsistent with

public policy, yet it may be characterized as a modern inven-

tion of refined avarice, to which it is to be presumed no sane

man will submit, until his children are crying for bread, or his

affairs are so desperate that the most reckless measures cannot

make them worse. There is nothing then in the character of

this alteration calculated to rebut the legal presumption which
arises from the fact of interlineation. That presumption is left

' to work its way, and under its influence we are bound to say

that the power of attorney under which the attorney acted,

who confessed this judgment, was not the one which the com-
plainant executed. Several other jwints have been raised on
the argument—as to the jurisdiction of the court of law to set

aside the judgment, and some others which we do not think it

necessary to discuss.

The decree below must be reversed, and decree entered here

according to the prayer of the bill.

Decree reversed.
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Aaron E. May, Plaintiff in Error, v. James B. Tallman,
Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO BUREAU.

An actual removal of an entire mass of a cumbrous article (as a crib of corn,) is

not necessary to constitute a delivery and change of possession.

Where one party is to deliver another three hundred bushels of com, and points

to a crib in which it is, which is accepted, and two wagon loads are taken out of

it, this constitutes a good transfer of title.

When two instructions are asked for, both of which contain the same principle of

law, the court may give the one and refuse the other.

Circuit Courts may refuse to repeat a principle of law which has previously been
fairly stated to the jury.

This cause was heard before Hollistee, Judge, and a jury,

at March term, 1856, of the Bureau Circuit Court. The bill of

exceptions states the proof as follows :
" The said plaintiff, to

maintain the issue on his part, amongst other things, gave testi-

mony tending to prove that the corn mentioned in the pleadings

was sold and delivered by the defendant to plaintiff; and the

defendant, on his part, amongst other, gave in evidence facts

tending to prove that said corn was not sold and delivered to

the plaintiff"."

Taylor & Stipp, and 0. C. Gray, for Plaintiff in Error.

Peters & Farwell, for Defendant in Error.

Caton, C. J. This was an action of trover. The evidence

tended to show the case supposed in the following instruction,

which was giA'en for the plaintiff, and an exception taken

:

" 4th. If the jury believe, that when the plaintiff" called upon
the defendant for the corn that was to have been received by
the plaintiff" upon the contract, and the defendant pointed to a

crib, and said, there is your corn, take it, and thereupon the

plaintiff, after consulting with the witness, Dana, as to whether,

in his opinion, there was three hundred bushels, as the contract,

if proved, was that the plaintiff was to receive, and upon the

witness giving his opinion there was, he went without objection

and took two loads of the corn, which was not measured by the

parties, and May was not even present, and that afterwards,

when the plaintiff came for the balance, the defendant would
not let him have it, that then the defendant is guilty of a con-

version of the balance of the corn, unless the jury believe it

was the intention of the parties that the corn was not, by their

acts, to be the property of the plaintiff." To the rule of law
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here laid down we can see no just exception. As between the

parties to the sale, at least, the evidence here supposed was suf-

licient to prove that the title passed. Even where a strict

delivery is necessary to protect the purchaser, an actual removal

of the entire mass of a cumbrous article like a crib of corn is

not necessary to constitute a delivery and change of possession.

An offer was made by the seller of the crib of corn on certain

terms, which after consultation were accepted by the purchaser,

who took two loads of the corn away without objection. It is

difficult to conceive what would be a good transfer of title, if

this was not. The instruction was properly given.

The court refused to give this instruction for the defendant

:

" If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the plaintiff was
to take out of the crib only enough corn to pay him (plaintiff)

the balance on the price of the sheep, and the jury also believe

that there was more corn in the crib than would pay said bal-

ance, theii the jury must find for the defendant on the corn."

But gave the following: "In order for the plaintiff to recover

for tlie .corii, it is necessary for the jury to believe, from the

evidence, that it was the intention of both parties that Tolman
should have the whole of the corn pointed out, as what was due

on the contract." We shall not stop to examine whether the

instruction refused was law or not ; it is sufficient to say that

the instruction given contained the same principle manifested in

the.one refused, but in a broader and more favorable form for

the defendant, and therefore he cannot complain. The princi-

ple of law upon which the defendant rested his defense was
fairly and broadly laid down to the jury in such a form, that

they mKst have found a verdict for him had they found the facts

to exist upon which alone that principle of law could serve him.

When the court once fairly and intelligibly states a principle of

law to the jury, it may refuse to repeat it ; and Avhen two in-

structions are asked at the same time, containing the same
principle of law, the court may select the one which it thinks

expresses it the best and most fairly, and refuse to trouble the

jury with the other.

The judgment must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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Albert E. Goodrich et al, Plaintiffs in Error, v. The City

OF Chicago, Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO COOK.

The legislature, by the charter granted to the city of Chicago, authorized the city

authorities to remove obstructions, and to widen, deepen and straighten the

Chicago river and its branches to their sources, and to extend one mile into Lake
Michigan. This grant did not create the obligation to do all these acts ; and the

city would not be liable to any party in damages for the non-performance of

these permitted acts, unless it commences some of them and does them in so

improper a manner that injury results therefrom.

If a party receives damage resulting from a sunken hulk in the harbor, he cannot
recover of the city, because the city has not exercised the powers conferred upon
it, to clear out the harbor.

The demurrer in this case was decided at the April term,

1858.

This was an action on the case for damages sustained by the

plaintiffs, by reason of an alleged obstruction of the Chicago

river. The plaintiffs in their declaration allege, that the city

by its charter was bound to remove all obstructions from the

river, and that it had entered upon its duty by the passage of

ordinances and levying taxes for that purpose. That the plain-

tiffs were the owners of a steamboat plying to and from Chicago

;

and that the defendant suffered the wreck of a vessel to remain

in the river at the mouth of the harbor, under water and out of

sight, upon which the plaintiffs' steamboat ran and was greatly

damaged.
The defendant filed a general demurrer, which was pro forma

sustained by the court below, and plaintiffs bring the case to

this court.

The charter of the city of Chicago provides, that the common
council shall have power, by ordinance, to do and perform the

several acts following, as is shown by the following extracts

:

" To remove and prevent all obstructions in the waters which
are public highways in said city, and to widen, straighten and
deepen the same."

" To preserve the harbor ; to prevent any use of the same, or

any act in relation thereto, inconsistent with or detrimental to

the public health, or calculated to render the waters of the same,

or any part thereof, impure or offensive, or tending in any degree

to fill up or obstruct the same ; to prevent and punish the cast-

ing or depositing therein any earth, ashes or other substance,

filth, logs, or floating matter ; to preiwM and remove all obstruc-

tions therein, and to punish the authors thereof; to regulate and

prescribe the mode and speed of entering and leaving the har-

bor, and of coming to and departing from the wharves and



446 OTTAWA,

Goodrich et al. v. City of Chicago.

streets of the city, by steamboats, canal boats, and other craft

and vessels, and the disposition of the sails, yards, anchors, and
appurtenances thereof, while entering, leaving or abiding in the

harbor ; and to regulate and prescribe, by such ordinances or

through their harbor-master or other authorized officer, such a
location of every canal boat, steamboat, or other craft, or vessel,

or float, and such changes of station in and use of the harbor as

may be necessary to promote order therein, and the safety and
equal convenience, as near as may be, of all such boats, vessels,

craft and floats ; and may impose penalties not exceeding one

hundred dollars for any offense against any such ordinance : and
by such ordinance charge such penalties, together with such

expenses as may be incurred by the city in enforcing this section,

upon the steamboat, canal boat, or other vessel, craft or float.

The harbor of the city shall include the piers and so much of

lake Michigan as lies within the distance of one mile into the

lake, and the Chicago river and its branches to their respective

sources."
" To make, publish, ordain, amend and repeal all such ordi-

nances, by-laws and police regulations, not contrary to the

constitution of this State, for the good government and order of

the city and the trade and commerce thereof, as may be neces-

sary or expedient to carry into effect the powers vested in the

common council or any officer of said city by this act ; and
enforce observance of all rules, ordinances, by-laws, and police,

and other regulations made in pursuance of this act, by penalties

not exceeding one hundred dollars for any offense against the

same. The common council may also enforce such rules, ordi-

nances, by-laws and police and other regulations as aforesaid,

by punishment of fine or imprisonment, or both, in the county

jail, bridewell or house of correction, in the discretion of the

magistrate or court before which conviction may be had. Pro-

vided, such fine shall not exceed five hundred dollars, nor the

imprisonment six months."
" To annually levy and collect taxes, not exceeding three and

one-half mills on the dollar, on the assessed value of all real and
personal estate in the city made taxable by the laws of this

State, to defray the contingent and other expenses of the city

not herein otherwise especially provided for ; which taxes shall

constitute the general fund."
" To abate and remove nuisances, and punish the authors

thereof, by penalties, fine and imprisonment, and to define and
declare what shall be deemed nuisances, and authorize and direct

the summary abatement thereof."

The charter further provides, that " in all cases where expenses

may be incurred in the removal of any nuisance, the common
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council may cause the same to be assessed against the real estate

chargeable therewith, in the manner prescribed in the foregoing

section. Such expenses shall be likewise collectable of the

owner or occupant of such premises in suit for money expended
to his or their use. In case the same should not be chargeable

to any real estate, suit may, in like manner, be brought for such

expenses against the author of such nuisance, when known, or

any person whose duty it may be to remove or abate the same."

Aenold, Larned & Lay, for Plaintiffs in Error.

Beckwith & Merrick, for Defendant in Error.

Caton, C. J. By the city charter of Chicago, authority is

conferred upon the city to remove obstructions from, and to

widen, deepen and straighten the harbor of Chicago ; and that

harbor is declared to embrace the Chicago river and its branches

to their sources, and to extend one mile into the lake. This

action is brought for neglecting to exercise the authority here

conferred, to remove the hulk of a sunken vessel, near the mouth
of the harbor, by reason whereof the plaintiffs had sustained

damage. To maintain this action we must hold, that the city is

bound to exercise all the authoritv here conferred, and to do all

the acts here authorized. Such, we are satisfied, was not the

intention of the legislature. If they were liable to one party

for the damage he has sustained by reason of their having neg-

lected to do one of the acts authorized, they are equally liable

to another, for the damages which he has sustained, because they

omitted to do another of these acts ; and so they must do all

that is here authorized, or be answerable for all the damages
which may be suffered by the omission. The courts cannot dis-

criminate and say, you shall remove this wreck, but you need

not remove that sand bar, or deepen the river in another place,

or straighten it in another. The law has either left it to the

discretion of the common council to say which of these acts the

public good requires them to perform, or it is imperative that

they shall perform all. Did the legislature ever intend that the

municipal authorities should be absolutely bound to remove all

obstructions in, and to straighten, widen and deepen the Chicago

river and its branches to their sources, extending back as they

do for more than twenty miles into the country ? The very

extent of the powers conferred, and the magnitude and expense

of the work which they are authorized to perform, in reference

to this harbor, show that it was never the intention of the legis-

lature to impose the absolute obligation upon the city to perform

it all, and if not all, then no part was imperative ; for no author-
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ity is vested anywhere except in the common council of the city,

to say what part it is necessary, expedient and proper that they

shall perform. If does not follow, that no pecuniary responsi-

bility rests upon the city in connection with the subject. If the

city undertakes to do any of the acts authorized by the law, it

must do them in a careful and proper manner ; and if it does

not, whoever suffers for the want of such proper care would be

entitled to compensation for the damages he thus sustains. If

the city authorities had undertaken to remove this hulk, and in

so doing had carelessly left it in an exposed position, by reason

whereof the plaintiffs' steamer had run against it and was injured,

they might well have claimed damages for such negligence. But
until they had assumed the responsibility of removing the wreck,

we cannot hold that they were bound to remove it, any more
than to remove the sand bar at the mouth of the harbor, or to

remove driftwood from the North Branch ten miles above the

city. We think the demurrer to the declaration was properly

sustained, and the judgment must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Alexander Ewing, Appellant, i\ Cornelius Eunkle,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM KNOX.

Under the statute of frauds and perjuries, it must be the intent of both parties

to a conveyance, in order to render it void, to practice a fraud ; that it has the

effect to delay and hinder creditors, does not bring it within the statute.

The conveyance to be void, must be contrived of malice, etc.; if it is made by the

consent of other creditors besides the grantee, duly acknowledged and recorded,

absolute on its face, without any secret trust, it will be good, although the

grantee is first to be paid, and the residue of the proceeds of the property is to

be divided among other creditors of the grantor.

Where one of several creditors, by consent of others, took a bill of sale from a
failing debtor, of certain personal property which was scattered, with the agree-

ment that he was to collect the property, be paid his expenses in doing so, and
out of the proceeds pay his whole debt, and divide the surplus among the consent-

ing creditors, the transaction being in good faith, it was held, that the contract was
not within the statute of frauds and perjuries, that the taking a judgment bj--

this creditor did not defeat the agreement, and that the consenting creditors

were bound by it, and that the property acquired by the bill of sale, before any
liens attached, should be protected in the creditor.

Instructions should be so given as not to leave the jurors to conjecture about the

truth, but so as to direct their minds to the facts as proved.

This was an action of trespass, commenced in the Knox
Circuit Court, to recover the value of two wagons and seven

horses, claimed by the plaintiff, and was tried in that court.
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Thompson, Judge, presiding, before a jury, at October term,

1857. Verdict and judgment for defendant. A motion for a

new trial was overruled.

Pleas were filed as follows

:

The general issue.

That on the 20th day of August, 1856, seven attachments

were issued out of the Circuit Court of Knox county, against

Smith A. Brown and Ira Brown, as follows : One in favor of

Hugh and Washington Hagey ; one in favor of Robert C. Price
;

one in favor of Thomas P. Benson ; one in favor of John Eiker

and others ; one in favor of Miles Smith ; one in favor of Na-
than Barboro ; one in favor of John Pendegrast. All of which
were returnable to the September term, A. D. 1856, of said

court.

That said attachments were levied on the property in contro-

versy by defendant, who was then sherifl" of said county, on the

20th of August, as the property of Smith A. Brown and Ira

Brown, whose property it really was.

That personal service was had on the Browns, and judgment
rendered in each of the attachment suits for plaintiff, at the

September term, 1856.

That on the 28th day of September, 1856, execution issued

in favor of Price, and on the 1st day of October, 1856, execu-

tions issued on the judgments in favor of Hagey and Benson.

On the 6th of October, executions issued in favor of Eiker and
Smith.

That at the September term, 1856, the plaintiff, Alexander
Ewing, recovered a legal judgment against Smith A. and Ira

Brown, for the sum of $1,555.40 and costs, and execution

issued thereon on the 28th day of September, 1856.

^That said executions were delivered to the sheriff as follows:

Price, 29th September, 1856 ; Benson, 4th October, 1856 ; Eiker,

6th October, 1856 ; Ewing, 29th September, 1856.

That said executions were levied by the defendant, who was
sherilf, on the property sued for, as the property of Brown &
Son, on the 20th day of October, 1856, and said property was
sold at public auction on the 1st day of November, 1856, by the

defendant, as sheriff. The plea then alleges that personal ser-

vice was. had in each of the attachment cases, and that general

judgments were rendered therein, and that the executions were
levied upon the property as the property of Smith A. and Ira

Brown, whose property it really was.

The third plea sets up a license from the plaintiff to the de-

fendant to commit the trespass set forth.

Alleges that Ewing, the plaintiff, did, at the September term,

A. D. 1856, of the Knox Circuit Court, recover a legal judg-
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ment against Smith A. and Ira Brown, for the sum of $1,555.40
and costs of suit— that execution issued thereon, on the 28th
September, 1856, and on the 29th day of the same month, was
placed in the defendant's hands (who was then sheriff,) for ser-

vice, and that the defendant levied said execution upon the

property in controversy, for the benefit of the plaintiff.

A demurrer to the fourth plea was sustained by the court.

1. Issue was joined on defendant's first plea.

2. To the second plea, plaintiff replied that no such attach-

ments were issued and placed in the hands of the sheriff, as set

forth in said plea.

3. Replication to second plea, that no such judgments were
rendered.

4. Special replication to second plea, that no such executions

were issued.

5. Special replication to second plea, that said attachments

and executions were not levied on the property described in

said plea.

6. Special replication to second plea, that said goods and
chattels were not the property of Smith A. and Ira Brown, but

was the property of plaintiff.

7. Special replication to second plea, that the judgment and
execution against Smith A. and Ira Brown, in favor of Ewing,
was obtained without the knowledge or consent of plaintiff.

8. Replication to third plea, denying the license.

There was a special rejoinder to plaintiff's seventh special

replication, which alleged that the judgment and execution were
obtained with the knowledge and consent of Ewing.

Issue was joined to the country on all the replications.

The plaintiff, to sustain the issue on his part, introduced the

following bill of sale :

Know all Men by these Presents, That we, Smith A. Brown and Ira

Brown, copartners under the name, style and firm of S. A. Brown & Son, have bar-

gained, sold, and by these presents do bargain, sell, transfer and set over and deliver

unto Alexander Ewing, of the county of Knox, and State of Illinois, the follow-

ing property, to wit : One span of horses ; one grey, and one bay, with a white

face ; one span, one bay, and one sorrel, with white face ; one span of black

horses ; one span, one small grey and bay ; one cream colored mare, and one

roan horse ; one sorrel mare, and one sorrel horse ; one large bay horse ; one small

bay horse ; one small sorrel horse ; one dark bay or brown horse ; one span of

spotted horses ; one small bay, with white stripe in the face, and one glass eye,

as it is called ; one light grey, with big joint on hind leg ; one large black horse,

little knee sprung ; one dark bay horse, grey hairs intermingled ; one span of old

horses, one black or brown, and the other dark brown ; one bay horse, and one

bay or sorrel mare, and one bay mare, in the possession of S. A. Brown ; two

yoke of oxen, one yoke black and white, and one yoke red and white ; fifteen lum-
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ter wagons, twelve two-horse plows, fifty scrapers and fifty log chains, four hun-

dred shovels, ten crowbars, fifteen sets double harness, one log wagon, a lot of

double trees, Whipple trees, clevises and chains; also, one shanty, at Swab Run,

in possession of Dennis Burk ; one at French Creek, in possession of Eoger

Mack; one in the possession of Litey Patrick, near O'Selby's ; one between

Maquon and Haw Creek, occupied by Mooney ; one near Denipsey's, in posses-

sion of John O'Harren ; another close by, put up by Abner Brown ; another at

Haw Creek, occupied by John Long ; a lot of hewed timber, at Haw Creek, and
a lot at Galesburg, delivered to S. A. Brown & Son, for the sum of five thousand

dollars, duly paid by the said Alexander Ewing to the said S. A. Brown &
Son, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged ; to have and to hold all and

singular the above described goods, chattels and personal property', to the said

Alexander Ewing, his heirs and assigns, forever, as his sole, absolute property,

hereby delivering and investing the said Ewing with the possession of said goods,

chattels, and efi^ects, and full and ample power to take possession of the same

wherever found, hereby imparting and conveying to said Ewing, complete and

absolute control over the said goods, chattels and personal property, as fully and

amply as we may have, hereby warranting and defending the title and possession

of said goods, chattels and personal property, to and in the said Ewing, his heirs

and assigns forever.

In witness whereof, we have hereunto set our hand and seal, this 27th day of

August, A. D. 1856.

S. A. BROWN & SON. [seal.]

This bill of sale was acknowledged and recorded on the 29th

of the same month.
The plaintiff then called ;S. A. Brown, who testified that the

bill of sale was made on the day of its date, at Knoxville, for

the purpose of securing his indelDtedness to the plaintiff Ewing

;

that Brown & Son were indebted to plaintiff, to secure which
they gave Ewing twelve notes, all dated 9th August, 1856,
amounting to $1,316.96 ; that he sold Ewing a span of horses,

for $325, which was to be credited on the notes ; that some
account was made with Ewing after the notes were given ; that

the bill of sale was given to secure said notes and account, and
to pay the same ; that at the time of the date of said bill of sale

he was in the county of Warren, and came down to Knoxville

a day or two afterwards, for the purpose of signing and acknowl-

edging said bill of sale ; that at the time of the making of the

bill of sale, the property described therein was very much scat-

tered in the counties of Knox, Fulton and Peoria, along the line

of the Peoria and Oquawka Railroad, and some of it had been
taken out of the State. That he had been contractor on said

road, and employed a large number of hands. That he had
failed, and was unable to pay them their wages, and some of

them had taken some of the property and hid it in the woods,

and some of it was buried in the ground. Some of the cattle

and horses were levied on by attachment, some of them run
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off by workmen, and some hid in the woods. That some of the

Irish on the road had threatened personal violence towards him,

and that he had left the work and gone home to Warren county,

where his family resided.

He further testified, that all the property mentioned in the

bill of sale was worth at least $7,000. That the same was sold

to Ewing, to pay the indebtedness of S. A. Brown & Son to

Ewing, being the notes and the book account. That the notes

had never been surrendered, but were still held by Ewing.
That they had never received any discharge of their indebted-

ness to Ewing, excepting the bill of sale. That at the time the

bill of sale was made, they (said S. A. Brown & Son) were in

failing circumstances, and owed more than they could pay, and
had stopped business some days before sale bill was made. Ew-
ing was fully aware of our condition, and wanted to secure his

claims against us. When we gave the notes, Ewing wanted
security, and proposed two ways—one by taking small notes and
a power of attorney to confess judgments before a justice of the

peace, and issue executions ; the other by taking mortgage on
personal property. But this last was objected to, because it

might alarm his other creditors. That the first mode was adopt-

ed, and judgments were confessed before Sanburn, justice of the

peace. I signed the bill of sale because it was the best thing

that could be done. Some of the property had been attached

in this court and some before Justices' Court, in Maquon. The
attachments were issued and levied because people supposed I

had gone out of the State ; but I had not.

When I gave the notes, plaintiff wanted security. He thought

I would break up, but I thought not. I said I would give him
any security, but declined giving chattel mortgage, because it

would make it public.

I did not sign the bill of sale with intent to hinder or delay

creditors. That it was my understanding that Ewing was to gath-

er the property together, and pay himself for his trouble and ex-

penses, then pay my indebtedness to himself, and if there was any

left, to divide it among my creditors in equal portions. I agreed

to pay Ewing for his time and trouble in looking up and getting

together the property. That Ewing was to pay all liens upon
the property, where the claims were honest and fair, by advanc-

ing the money. That he did advance, to one Thomas Kerns,

the sum of fifty dollars, to pay his debt, which was just, said

Kerns having attached a span of horses ; and also to Jesse Pick-

rel the sum of fifty dollars, for a similar purpose. That the sale

was in good faith, for the purpose of having it gathered together

for the benefit of my creditors, after paying Ewing' s debt.



APRIL TERM, 1858. 453

Ewing V. E,unkle.

The plaintiff then called Erastus Rice, who testified, that S.

A. Brown wanted him to come to Knoxville and make any ar-

rangement he thought best for his benefit and for the benefit of

his creditors. I came up, and, by my advice, Ira Brown came
also. This bill of sale was then executed ; was then drawn up
and executed as far as it then could be. The consideration was,

to pay Brown's debts and save the property from being squan-

dered. It was my judgment, and Swing's, and Brown's, that

there was property enough to pay all the debts. Swing's debt

was about a thousand dollars. The intention was, to sell all the

property the Browns had on the line of the railroad. Some
attachments were then issued at Knoxville, and some at Maquon,
on the ground that Brown had left the State. The sale was not

made to hinder, or delay, or defraud any one. Ewing was to

be paid expenses in collecting the property. If the plaintiff got

enough to pay his debt, he was to be paid, and his expenses.

The same offer was made to James Price. Ewing took the bill

of sale. It was talked that Ewing might have to pay ofl" some
small debts. In cases where a small debt was levied on prop-

erty worth more than the debt, they were to be paid. Nothing

was said about paying Ewing for his trouble. Another talk

was, that when Ewing got all the property together, all Brown's
creditors should meet and bid it ofl" to pay their debts.

Ewing was to gather up all the property, and then it was to

be disposed of for the benefit of all the creditors. The talk

was, that if not much property was got, that Ewing was to be

paid, and his expenses. It was thought there was enough to

pay all the debts. Several of the creditors were present—

I

think Hagey, Armstrong and Price.

H. N. Keightley stated that he drew up bill of sale. Brown
would not sign it. Ewing did not know that I went to Warren.
Price came the next day, and said the only way Ewing could

be safe was to take the bill of sale. The property was scat-

tered and some attached before justices of the peace ; some in

Knox, some in Fulton and Peoria, as I was told. Armstrong,
James Price and Hagey were out and in the office at the time

the arrangement was made. Ewing first refused to take a bill

of sale ; said he had about as soon lose his debt as to gather the

property. All appeared to be afraid of the risk. We suggested

to Price to take the sale bill. We offered it to James Price

and to Hagey. I prevailed on Ewing to take the bill of sale.

It was agreed, by all present, for Ewing to take it, and to take

out his debt first, if there was not enough to pay all. It was
offered to Price and Hagey in the same way. They refused to

take it. I offered to transfer the bill of sale to them if they

would pay Ewing's debt. The agreement was, that Ewing was
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to have his pay and his expenses in getting the property together.

There were attachments then pending. I think the attachments

were then issued, but not levied. Eice came, and the arrangement

was made the 27th of August. Some claims and debts were

right and just, and Brown was not willing to let Ewing have

sale bill without his agreeing to pay the just debts in suit in Jus-

tices' Court. One span spotted horses, in Fulton county, claim

on them was fifty dollars, by Games. Carnes said, if Ewing
would pay the fifty dollars, he might have the horses. Brown
said the claim was right, and Carnes said Ewing paid it. Was
a claim of fifty dollars, by Pickrel, on a team. Ewing spent

twelve or fourteen days gathering up property. I notified the

defendant of the bill of sale the very day it was made, and for-

bid his touching anything further. Don't think he made any
particular reply. James Price, Hagey, Grimes, Burtnett and
Thompson went along to help find property. Ewing brought

home from ten to fourteen horses and two yoke of oxen. The
oxen, and two or three horses, and some plows and scrapers

were afterwards sold on executions that were prior liens. Ew-
ing got four or five double wagons and two old wagons. One
wagon and two horses were replevied by Potter, and retained.

Cannot say Ewing gathered the ones replevied. Ewing got

some chains.

On the part of the defendant, George F. Harding^ being

sworn, stated : I had a power of attorney, from Brown <fe Son,

to confess judgment in favor of Browns' creditors, against them.

I had power to confess in favor of Ewing, for $1,000. After-

wards, |500 was added to this amount. Thinks the $1,000
mentioned in power of attorney was the residue due Ewing on
the notes.

He next offered in evidence the writs of attachment before

mentioned, which were in due form, and dated 20th August,

1856, with the return of the sheriff as to the levy and sale.

The execution in favor of Hugh D. and Washington Hagey,
was issued 1st October, 1856.

The execution in favor of Thomas P. Benson was issued on
the 1st day of October, 1856.
The execution in favor of John Eiker and D. M. Eiker was

issued on the 6th October, 1856.
The execution in favor of Miles Smith was issued 6th October,

1856.

The execution in favor of Alexander Ewing was issued 28th
September, 1856.

On this execution was the following return :

I, Cornelius Runkle, sheriff of Knox county, Illinois, do hereby certify, That,

in the following cases in the Circuit Court of said county, commenced by attach-
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ments against the parties hereinafter named as defendants, returnable at the Sep-

tember term of said court, A. D. 1856, to wit: Hugh and Washington Hagey vs.

Smith A. and Ira Brown. Thomas P. Benson vs. Smith A. and Ira Brown. John

Eiker and others vs. Smith A. and Ira Brown. Miles Smith vs. Smith A. and Ira

Brown. Robert C. Price vs. Smith A. and Ira Brown. Nathan Barboro vs. Smith

A. and Ira Brown. And John Pendegrast vs. Smith A. and Ira Brown. In all

of which cases general judgment was rendered, except the last two, which were

continued. The following property being the same property named in my return

written on the attachment issued in said court, was levied upon by me, to wit

:

seventeen horses, four of which and one set of double harness, and two double

wagons I never had in my possession, the same having been levied on by Joshua

Lowman, a constable, in attachment from Justices' Court, issued and levied on

the same, before the levy in the above causes, which suits are undetermined, and

I could not find the property, to sell the same, as it was secreted from me. Also,

said attachments were levied by me upon two yoke of oxen and yoke, seven dou-

ble wagons, and six and a half sets of double harness, and three shanties. Three

of said horses, two yoke of oxen and yoke, and two sets of double harness, were

sold by M. Smith, constable, upon executions in his hands, which were prior liens

as against said attachments, and two and a half sets of harness . Three horses

and one wagon were replevied out of my hands by A. S. Potter, which suit is

imdetermined. The said four horses stated as being in Joshua Lowman's hands,

and two wagons and one set of harness, were levied upon by said Lowman, under

attachment from Justices' Court, before my levy, which suits in Justices' Court are

undetermined. The said shanties were claimed by other parties than the defend-

ants and were removed, so the same could not be sold by me. The remainder or

other harness never came to my hands.

And I further certifj^, That by virtue of execution issued out of the Circuit

Court on the judgments as aforesaid recovered, and by virtue of an execution

issued out of the same court, in favor of Alexander Ewing vs. said Smith A.

Brown and Ira Brown, recovered at the same terra, I levied upon and sold prop-

erty as follows, that was attached for the following prices, to wit : which sale

was made on the 20th day of October, 1856, excepting as to property sold

to B. Booth and W. H. Smith, which was sold on the 1st day of November,

1856:
One double wagon to H. D. Hagey, for $72.00

One " " to R. Benson, for 79.75

One '' " to T. Carnes, for .54.25

One black horse to J. Pendegrast, for 99 . 00

One " " to J. Smith, for 116.00

One bay " to Casteel, for 63.00

Received from M. Smith, balance on sale of oxen 18.78 .

One sorrel horse to B. Booth, for 72 . 00

One grey horse to W. H. Smith, for 30.25

And I further certify, That under said executions, I levied upon the property of

Smith A. and Ira Brown, and sold on 1st day of November, 1856, property not

attached, as follows :

One spotted horse to Isaac Hasten, for Si 08. 00

One " " to H. D. Hagey, for 102.00

One sorrel " to E. Lotts 96.00

One brown " to E. Patrick 70.00
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And I further certify, That one wagon, levied on by the attachment writs by

me, was replevied by Alexander Ewing, and has not yet been returned ; and that

two of the horses attached were run off by one Croucher, and have not been

returned.

And I further certify, That the property levied upon as aforesaid by the above

named attachments, was, after said levy, attached by me on a writ of attachment

issued from Warren Circuit Court, in the case of Armstrong and others is. said

Smith A. and Ira Brown.
C. RUNKLE, Sheriff.

It was then agreed that Keightley ordered out an execution

on the judgment confessed in favor of Ewing, on the day the

same was confessed.

It was then agreed that defendant was acting sheriff of Knox
county at the time of the levy and sale, and acted as such in so

doing.

It was then admitted that the property replevied by the plain-

tiff, in the suit against Runkle, had since been taken out of his

possession, by one Potter, on a writ of replevin, and that Pot-

ter held said property, except one wagon.
The plaintiff then asked the court to instruct the jury as

follows

:

1. Before the jury can find the sale from Brown to Ewing
fraudulent^ they must believe, from the evidence, that Ewing
intended to delay, hinder or defraud the creditors of Brown.

2. If the sale was made in good faith, for the purpose of

gathering the property, and paying Ewing first, and dividing the

balance of the property among the creditors, such sale is valid

and binding, and passed the title to so much of the property as

Ewing was able to reduce to possession.

3. If the creditors knew the object and intention of the bill

of sale, and assented thereto, they cannot afterwards insist that

it was fraudulent.

4. If the sale was fair and honest at the time it was made,
the legal title to so much of the property as Ewin^- reduced to

possession, passed to him ; and any effort on the part of the

creditors, or of Ewing, to procure judgments afterwards against

Brown, would not render the sale void.

5. If the sale was fair and honest when it was made, the

obtaining of a judgment afterwards by Ewing against the

Browns, would not render such sale fraudulent or void.

6. If the judgment in favor of Ewing against the Browns
was obtained without his knowledge or consent, and if he did

not consent to it when informed of its existence, such judgment
cannot be used to liis injury.

7. A debtor, in failing circumstances, has a right to prefer

one creditor over another, and pay him in full, if he chooses to
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do SO. And he may lawfully assign all his property to pay one

creditor, and divide the remainder, after such payment, among
his other creditors.

8. Brown had a legal right to defend against the attach-

ments, and to employ counsel for that purpose, and his doing so

is of itself no evidence of fraud.

9. If the attachments were illegally issued, and without any

cause, everybody interested in the property attached had a right

to defend and defeat them, and the doing so is no indication of

fraud.

10. The return of the officer upon the attachments and execu-

tions in this case, are onlyprima facie evidence for the defendant,

and may be disproved or contradicted by parol evidence.

11. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the attach-

ments from the Circuit Court were levied upon the property in

controversy, ivithout seeing it, and without the property being

present when the levy was made, such levy is illegal and void,

as against subsequent purchasers in good faith.

12. If the agreement between the Browns and Ewing, with the

knowledge and consent of the Browns' other creditors, was that

Ewing was to receive the property in controversy, on the bill of

sale read in evidence, and to either first pay himself, and the

balance to go to the other creditors, or for the property to be

divided amongst all the creditors, and he did so receive the pos-

session of the property, then, in either event, Ewing was the

legal owner of the property, and held it as trustee for himself

and other creditors.

Unless the same was fraudulent in fact.

All of which were given except No. 5, which the court refused,

and plaintiff excepted.

The defendant then asked the court to instruct the jury as

follows :

1. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the several

writs of attachments issued in favor of Browns' creditors, were
duly issued, and levied by the defendant, as sheriff, in the proper
discharge of his duties, on the property in controversy in this

cause, before the sale of the said property, by the Browns to

Ewing, and that this is the only trespass complained of, then

they will find for the defendant.

2. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the sale of the

property in controversy, from the Browns to Ewing, was made
with the intent to hinder or delay the other creditors of the

Browns, in the collection of their debts, then such sale is void,

as to such creditors ; and in such case, it makes no difference if

Ewing was a creditor of the Browns, and was to have his debt

paid by such sale.

30
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3. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the sale bill to

Ewing was only intended to be a security for the payment of

Ewing's debt, and that after making such sale bill, either by him-

self or attorney, with his knowledge and consent, Ewing volunta-

rily took a judgment in the Circuit Court, against the Browns,
for his said debt, in lieu of the said sale bill, then such judgment

» was an extinguishment of said sale bill, and the property became
released therefrom, and liable to be taken on execution or attach-

ment issued against the Browns, notwithstanding the said sale

bill.

4. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that a part of the

property described in the sale bill was sold to Ewing to hinder

or delay the Browns' creditors, or any of such creditors, in the

collection of their demands against the Browns, then the said

sale bill is void entirely, and cannot give the plaintifl" any right

to recover in this action.

5. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the sale bill to

Ewing was made with a private or secret understanding between
the parties thereto, that Ewing's debt should first be paid out of

the property therein described, and that then the balance should,

at Ewing's discretion, be applied for the benefit of the Browns'
other creditors, then such bill of sale is void, as to all such other

creditors as have not assented to such secret understanding.

And if this is so, and the said bill of sale is the only foundation

and evidence of the plaintiff's title in this case, and the defend-

ant levied legal writs on the property, in the due discharge of

his duty, and this is the only trespass proved against the defend-

ant, the jury must find in favor of the defendant.

6. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that at the time of

the making of the bill of sale, there was any secret or private

trust, injurious to the rights and interests of the other creditors

of the Browns, and in regard to the manner in which the prop-

erty or its proceeds should be applied, and different from that

expressed on the face of the bill of sale, then such sale bill is

void, as against such other creditors of the Browns, if the carry-

ing out such trust would hinder or delay such creditors in the

collection of their debts.

7. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the sale bill to

Ewing was only intended as a payment of Ewing's debt against

the Browns, which amounts to only something over one thousand

dollars, and that said bill of sale was not intended as an abso-

lute and bona fide conveyance of such property, and that said

sale bill conveyed property of the value of from five thousand to

seven thousand dollars, then such bill of sale is voluntary, as to

the excess of the value of such property over Ewing's debt, and

as such, void, as against the Browns' other creditors.
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8. The sale bill from the Browns to Ewing, is absolute on
its face, and if at the time of making the same, there was any
secret understanding between the parties to such bill of sale, as

to the disposition of the property thereby conveyed, which would
be injurious to the rights and interests of the creditors of the

Browns, then such sale bill is void as against such creditors'

rights and interests ; and, therefore, if the jury believe, from the

evidence, that the writs given in evidence were duly issued and
levied on the property by defendant, and such writs were in

favor of such creditors, and that said sale bill shows the only

title which the plaintiff had to such property, they will find in

favor of defendant, if such levy is the only trespass proved
against defendant.

9. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that it was a part

of the agreement, upon which the bill of sale from the Browns
to Ewing was given, that the attachment suits then pending
against the said Browns should be defended, and the plaintiffs

in said suits prevented from obtaining judgments, and collecting

their just debts, or hindered or delayed in so doing, this renders

the said bill of sale void as against such creditors, if the jury
believe, from the evidence, that said suits were rightfully brought,

and that the plaintiffs were entitled to maintain them.

10. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that it was a part

of the understanding or agreement, and that it was secretly made
between the Browns and Ewing, upon which the bill of sale was
made, that said Ewing should account to the said Browns, or
either of them, or to any other person for their benefit, for all

of the property mentioned in, or conveyed by said bill of sale,

not necessary to pay said Ewing's debt ; this secret agreement
or understanding would render the bill of sale void, as against

the creditors of the Browns, and would not authorize the plaintiff

to recover in this suit, so as to injure their rights.

11. If the jury believe the plaintiff, by himself, or attorney,

with his knowledge and consent, obtained a judgment against the

Browns, for the same debt intended to be secured or paid by the

bill of sale, after the execution of such bill of sale, that he caused
the execution in his favor, shown in evidence, to be placed in

the hands of the defendant, as sheriff, to execute, and that he,

or his proper attorney, gave the defendant license to levy the

same on the property described in the declaration, and that the

defendant levied said execution accordingly, with other execu-
tions, and that these levies are the only trespasses proved in

this cause, then they will find for the defendant.

12. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that Ewing ob-

tained a judgment, as mentioned in the last instruction, and
caused, by himself or attorney, an execution to be issued thereon,
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which came duly to the hands of the defendant, as sheriff, to ex-

ecute, this would be prima facie evidence that said Ewing gave

the defendant authority to levy such execution on the property

of the said Browns, wherever he might find the same, in said

defendant's county.

13. The jury is instructed, that if they believe, from the

evidence, that the property in controversy, at the commence-

ment of this suit, was the property of Alexander Ewing, John
Ewing, and Albert Burdett, and not of the plaintiff alone, and

that the property was taken from the possession of the said

Alexander Ewing, John Ewing, and Albert Burdett, or from

the possession of their agent, they will find for the defendant.

All of which were given, except No. 13.

The plaintiff moved the court for a new trial, which was
denied.

Weed & Williamson, for Appellant.

Manning & Lander, for Appellee.

Breese, J. The principal question in this case, arises out of

the instructions given on behalf of the defendant, Runkle, in

which a construction was given to our statute of " Frauds and
Perjuries," Chap. 44, sec. 2, R. L., 258, to which it seems to us

not to be entitled.

The language of that part of this section necessary to be

noticed, is as follows: " Every gift, grant or conveyance of

lands, tenements, hereditaments, goods or chattels, or of any
rent, common or profit of the same, by writing or otherwise

;

and every bond, suit, judgment or execution, had and made, or

contrived of malice, fraud, covin, collusion or guile, to the intent

or purpose to delay, hinder or defraud creditors of their just and
lawful actions, suits, debts, accounts, damages, penalties or for-

feitures, or to defraud or deceive those who shall purchase the

same lands, tenements or hereditaments, or any rent, profit or

commodity out of them, shall be from thenceforth deemed and
taken only as against the person or persons, his, her, or their

heirs, successors, executors, administrators or assigns, and every

of them, whose debts, suits, demands, estates and interests by
such guileful and covinous devices and practices as aforesaid,

shall, or might be, in anywise disturbed, hindered, delayed or

defrauded, to be clearly and utterly void ;" and, moreover, if

the conveyance " be of goods and chattels only, then acknowl-

edged or proved by two witnesses before any court of record,

in the county wherein one of the parties live, within eight
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months after the execution thereof, or unless possession shall

really and bona fide remain with the donee."

This section is substantially a transcript of the statute of

13th Eliz., Chap. 5, and is the basis of all American jurispru-

dence on this subject. It is, however, only declaratory of the

common law, whose antipathy to every species of fraud is so

well known and understood, 2 Bac. Abr., "Fraud;" 2 Com.
Dig., " Covin."

The emphatic words of this section, the test words, by which
the validity of voluntary assignments is tried in all our courts,

are, " with the intent or purpose to delay, hinder or defraud

creditors."

Every conveyance, having the effect to delay or hinder credi-

tors, of their just and lawful actions, suits, debts, etc., is not

therefore fraudulent within this statute, for such is the effect

of all voluntary assignments, made expressly for the benefit of

creditors, and which the courts will always sustain. But the

conveyance must be " had and made, or contrived of malice,

fraud, covin, collusion, or guile," with that intent, to bring it

within the statute, and both parties, grantor and grantee, must
have, that purpose in view.

Was this conveyance to Ewing of that sort ? Where is the

evidence of the " malice, fraud, covin, collusion or guile ;" words
of great meaning and of vast importance, in construing this

statute ?

The facts of the case show that Brown and Son, who con-

veyed to Ewing, were broken down railroad contractors, largely

indebted, and perhaps of considerable property, valued at about

seven thousand dollars, scattered over the country
;
part of it

claimed by other parties, some secreted, some run off, and a

large portion of it seized on writs of attachment, and such the

state of feeling against the Browns, that it was hazardous for

them to search for, and collect the property, or meddle with it.

Ewing, Price, Hagey and Armstrong, creditors of the Browns,
Ewing to the extent of one thousand dollars, met and con-

sulted on the subject, when it was agreed that Ewing should

take a bill of sale of the property, collect it together, pay him-

self out of it, and then divide the balance among the creditors of

Brown and Son, Ewing, accordingly, took the bill of sale, and
at considerable expense, collected a portion of the property,

to the value of about fifteen hundred dollars, paid out money
to relieve it from claims made on it, and brought it to Knox-
ville, where, it seems, these other creditors who had made this

agreement, were ready, with executions in the hands of the

sheriff, to levy upon it, who did seize and sell it, as the prop-
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erty of Brown and Son, and which acts are the foundation of

this suit.

We think it very clear, that there is no evidence whatever
of such fraud as is contemplated by the statute. There must be

fraud in the getting up, and setting on foot, the conveyance, and
not merely the execution of a conveyance, which may delay or

hinder other creditors. A vigilant creditor is entitled to all

legal advantages, and can protect himself by a bona fide trans-

action.

The conveyance, to be void, must be made and contrived of

malice, fraud, covin, collusion or guile, and the intent must be
marked by these characters, or some one of them. As Lord
Mansfield observed, in Cadog-an v, Kenneit, Cowper's R. 434,
" the question in every case is, whether the act done is a bona

fide transaction, or whether it is a trick and contrivance to de-

feat creditors." And so. Chief Justice Marshal, in the case

of the United States v. Hooe, 3 Cranch R. 88.

This conveyance seems to possess none of these ingredients,

and nothing attaches to the transaction, as fully appears from

the testimony, calculated to stigmatize it as fraudulent. The
debt to Ewing was really due ; the deed was not made in secret,

but on consultation with, and by the consent of three other

creditors ; was duly acknowledged and recorded ; is absolute

on its face, and no secret trust connected with it, but an open
and clearly expressed declaration that, the balance of the prop-

erty, after paying Ewing's debt, and expenses, should be dis-

tributed among the creditors of Brown and Son.

In the language of Grose, Justice, in the case of Meux et al.y

qui tarn., v. Howell and Atler, 4 East R. 1: "It makes one
shudder to think that persons who appear like the defendants,

to have acted most honestly, should have been in any hazard

of being subjected to punishment for having endeavored to pro-

cure an equal distribution of their debtor's effects among all his

creditors. Their conduct was meritorious, and the judgment
confessed by Norton was not covinous or feigned, but given

bona fide, and upon good consideration, for debts due to the de-

fendants and the other creditors."

It is attempted, however, to give a fraudulent color to this

transaction, by the fact that after the execution of this convey-

ance, Brown and Son confessed a judgment in favor of Ewing,
for the amount of this same indebtedness. From the testimony,

it appears that this confession was made by an attorney of the

court, without the knowledge of Ewing, and without his pro-

curement, or that of his attorney, though it appears his attor-

ney had an execution issued upon it. Be this as it may, there

is no evidence that the judgment was to stand in place of the



APRIL TERM, 1858. 463

Ewing V. Ruakle.

conveyance, and taking judgment could not, independent of any
agreement to that effect, release the property covered by the

conveyance. Ewing might have a double security, and two dis-

tinct remedies for his debt, and avail himself of either ; he
insisted, however, on his bill of sale.

It is very certain, all the parties who were present at the sale

to Ewing, and assented to it, ought to be bound by it, and could

have no pretense to levy their executions upon the property

after such assent.

As to all others who were not present and assenting, the sale

is considered good, as to such property of which Ewing got pos-

session before any liens attached. His vigilance should not go

without its reward. He had an undoubted right to secure him-

self, and get the property in his possession for such purpose.

As to the instructions on behalf of the defendant, the views

already presented fully dispose of them. Taking them in their

order, the first assumes that the trespass consisted in levying the

attachments, whereas, by the record, it appears that four of

the horses taken and sold by the defendant, had not been seized

by attachment, but had been levied on and sold on execu-

tions issued after the sale from Brown and Son to Ewing. It is

agreed that such was the fact, and the instruction could not but

mislead the jury.

The second instruction is too loose, and is predicated on the

idea, that if it was the intention of the Browns to hinder or de-

lay their other creditors, by making the bill of sale, it is therefore

void as to such creditors. Both parties must conspire to hinder

and delay, the grantee as well as the grantor, and must be made
with malice, fraud, covin, etc., on the part of both. And it ex-

cludes the fact from the consideration of the jury, that certain

other creditors assented to the sale.

As to the third instruction, we have already said that taking

the judgment was not, of itself, an extinguishment of the bill of

sale. The fourth instruction is liable to the same objections as

the second. It considers the sale void as to all persons, how-
ever honest Ewing's intent may have been. It would not be

just that he should suffer, if he acted honestly and with no evil

intent. He must have been a knowing party to the criminal

transaction, and joined in the fraud, covin and guile, and a party

to all the fraudulent and covinous intents and purposes.

As to the fifth instruction, it will be perceived, there is no
evidence on which to base it. Coughlin v. The People, 18 111.

R. 266. There is no proof that after Ewing's debt was paid,

he was, at his discretion, to pay the balance over to the other

creditors. There is no proof of any secret trust or understand-

ing, but the only trust reserved is open and patent, and is for
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the benefit [of the creditors generally, and which they could

enforce in a court of chancery. Had there been a benefit or

advantage reserved, secret or otherwise, to the Browns, it would
have avoided the deed ; but there is none such, nor pretense of

any. After Ewing's debt was paid, the creditors were to par-

ticipate in the balance.

AH the property was devoted, by the Browns, to the payment
of their debts, and they seem to have acted, throughout, with
the most honest intentions. The sale was as well for the benefit

of the creditors, generally, as for Ewing's benefit, and much
credit is due to him for his exertions in collecting it together,

scattered as it was, in three or four counties, and under em-

barrassments of no ordinary character. He may be considered

the trustee for tlie creditors, of the balance remaining after his

debt is paid. The same remarks will apply to the sixth in-

struction. There is no proof on which to raise an inference of

a secret trust, and in the absence of it, there is a manifest im-

propriety in directing the attention of the jury to that which
is not in the case, and call upon them to tax their imagination,

to supply the want of facts. The same is the case with regard

to the seventh and eighth instructions.

As to the ninth instruction, that is calculated to mislead. It

was the undoubted right and duty of Ewing, acting for himself,

and as trustee for the other creditors, to defend all suits not

properly instituted, whether by attachment or otherwise, and
whether they were " rightfully " brought or not, was no ques-

tion for the jury.

The tenth instruction, has not any evidence on which to base

it, and the court should not send the jury out into the broad
field of conjecture, but confine them to the facts as proven, on
which, alone, instructions can be properly raised.

The objection to the eleventh instruction is as to the form.

The jury are instructed, " If they believe the plaintiff, &c."
Juries should be permitted to believe nothing, except that be-

lief be occasioned by the evidence, and tlieir minds should

always be directed to that, and to that only, as the ground of

their belief. To the substance of this, and of the twelfth instruc-

tion, there can be no objection.

The Circuit Court having entertained views and opinions in-

consistent with this opinion, the judgment is reversed, the cause

remanded, and a venire de novo awarded.

Judgment reversed.
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Burton Ayres, Appellant, v. Findre Clinefelter, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM LA SALLE.

The granting of letters testamentary, under the act of 4tliMarch, 1837, which pro-

vides for the election of probate justices of the peace, was a ministerial act

;

and it is competent to prove, by other than record evidence, that some of the

persons named in the letters testamentary, refused to act as executors.

This was an action of ejectment, originally commenced in the

Circuit Court of La Salle county, at the November term, 1852,
by Henry Clinefelter and Mary Clinefelter, his wife, against

Burton Ayres. The declaration was in the usual form, claiming

one undivided ninth part of a certain tract of land, being a part

of the north-west quarter of sec. 14, T. 33 N., R. 1 E., 3rd
P. M., bounded as follows :

" Commencing at a point on a line

dividing sections fourteen and fifteen of said township, nine

hundred and twenty-eight feet north of the south-west corner of

said section fourteen ; thence north seven rods and a half ; thence

east three hundred and sixtv feet ; thence south seven rods and a

half, (to the north-east corner of lot one, block two, of Lapsley's

addition to La Salle); thence west to the place of beginning
;

which said plaintiffs claimed in fee, as the property of the said

Mary Clinefelter."

The second count claimed one undivided eighth part of the

same premises.

The defendant Ayres pleaded the general issue.

At the November term, A. D. 1853, of the La Salle Circuit

Court, the cause was tried, and a verdict and judgment rendered
for the defendant. The case was brought to the Supreme Court,

and argued at the June term, 1854, and the judgment reversed,

and the cause remanded. The case is reported in 16th 111. R.,

page 329.
" State of Illinois, La Salle County : In the Circuit Court

thereof—Vacation after the May term, A. D. 1855

:

" The declaration of Findre Clinefelter, filed by leave of the

court, by way of amendment to the original declaration, in suit

in ejectment in said court, entitled, Henry Clinefelter and
Mary Clinefelter, his wife^ v. Burton Ayres ; said Mary Cline-

felter having deceased, and said Findre Clinefelter, being the

son and heir at law of said Henry and Mary Clinefelter. And
now comes the said Findre Clinefelter, by E. S. Holbrook, his

attorney, and by leave of the court first obtained, and according

to the statutes in such case provided, the death of the plaintiff",

Mary Clinefelter, having been suggested, substitutes his own
name as plaintiff", in the place of the said Henry and Mary
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Clinefelter, as the son of the said Mary Clinefelter, and heir at

law of one-sixth of the real estate of which said Mary Cline-

felter died seized ; and as such heir, successor to the title of

said plaintiff, as to the one undivided sixth thereof, of the

premises described in the original declaration, filed in said

cause, and the several counts thereof."

At the February special term of the La Salle Circuit Court,

1857, the cause came on for trial ; a jury was waived, and the

cause submitted to Hollister, Judge of said court.

The plaintiff offered in evidence an agreed state of facts, as

follows

:

That both parties claim title from Samuel Lapsley, now de-

ceased, who died in said county, June 21, 1839, seized of the

premises sued for.

That Findre Clinefelter is one of the heirs at law of Lapsley,

and as such, had Lapsley died intestate, would have been entitled

to one undivided forty-eighth part of said premises, by descent

;

and that the defendant Ayres was in possession, claiming title

at the time of the service of declaration and notice in this cause.

That Lapsley, prior to his death, and while of sound mind,

executed, published and declared, as his last will and testament,

the following, viz

:

" I, Samuel Lapsley, of the county of La Salle, and State of

Illinois, do make and publish this my last will and testament,

hereby revoking and making void all prior wills by me at any
time heretofore made.

" First, I direct that all my debts and funeral expenses be

paid as soon after my decease as possible, out of the first moneys
that shall come into the hands of my executors, from any por-

tion of my estate, real or personal.
" Also ; I give and bequeath to Benjamin Faughander, Julia

Ann Faughander, and Emily Faughander, children of John
Faughander, of said county of La Salle, the sum of one thousand

dollars each, to be paid to them respectively, at their respective

ages of twenty-one years, or days of marriage, which shall first

happen ; the same to be kept out to interest, at the discretion

of my executors, and the interest accruing thereon to be applied

to their education and maintainance, respectively, until their

said respective ages or marriages ; and if either of them shall

die before the age of twenty-one or marriage, then I give the

share of the one so dying, unto the survivors of them.

"Also; I give and bequeath unto Julius C. Coe, the sum of

one thousand dollars, as well for the respect which I bear

toward him, as for his kindness and attention to me during

sickness.
" Also ; I give and bequeath to Martha Clinefelter. Margaret
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Clinefelter, Findre Clinefelter, Eliza J. Clinefelter, and Lncinda
Clinefelter, children of my sister, Mary Clinefelter, the sum of

one thousand dollars, each, to be paid to them, respectively, at

their respective ages of twenty-one years, or days of marriage,

which shall first happen ; the same to be put out to interest, at the

discretion of my executors, and the interest accruing thereby to

be applied to their education and maintainance, respectively, until

their said respective ages or marriages ; and if either of them
shall die before the age of twenty-one years or marriage, then

I give the share of the one so dying, unto the survivors of them.
" Also ; I direct my executors to sell and dispose of, as soon

as may be, after my decease, all my personal property, for good
current money ; and that all the real estate of which I die

seized or possessed, shall be sold by my executors, at any time

when they may think proper, for its reasonable value, for like

current money, or on such credit as they may think proper

;

and the amount thereof secured in such manner as is usual in

like cases, to insure the full and punctual payment thereof;

and to effectuate this my intention, I hereby vest in my execu-

tors full power and authority to dispose of my real estate, in

fee simple, or for a term of years, or otherwise, in as full and
large a manner, in every respect, as I could myself do if living.

" And I do hereby make and ordain my friends. Burton Ayres,

John Faughander and William Waddingham, executors of this

my last will and testament."

Signed and sealed, March 26, 1839, and witnessed by Lorenzo
Leland and Aaron Gun,
And that Lapsley never afterwards revoked or in any manner

altered said will.

That said will was duly proven, and recorded in the office

of the Probate Court of La Salle county, on the 28th day of

June, 1839.

That Ayres and Waddingham, two of the persons named as

executors in said will, never took out letters testamentary on
said will ; and that letters were issued by the Probate Court

of said county, to John Faughander, the other person named
as executor in said will ; that Faughander was qualified as

sole executor ; and that Ayres and Waddingham were both

alive at the time of the issuing of said letters to Faughander,
and at the time of the conveyance by Faughander, hereinafter

stated ; and that they [Ayres and Waddingham] were in no
wise legally disqualified from acting as executors.

That on October 2nd, 1841, and after Faughander had been
qualified as executor, and while he held that office, he, as such

executor, executed, acknowledged and delivered to John and
Mary Swanson, a deed of the premises in controversy, and that

afterwards, sometime in the year 1846, John and Mary Swanson
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duly conveyed by deed to Burton Ayres, whatever title they

obtained by the deed from Faughander to them.

The defendant then offered in evidence the will of Lapsley,

above set out, and the probate thereof.

The defendant called Samuel W. Raymond, as a witness, who
testified that he was county clerk, and keeper of the records of

the probate office of La Salle county. A book was shown wit-

ness, which he testified was the record book, or book of entries,

of the Probate Court of La Salle county, for 1839. The defend-

ant then offered in evidence an entry in said book, as follows :

" September 6th, 1839.
" John Faughander, Executor of ]

the last Will and Testament of > Application for Letters.

Samuel Lapsley, deceased. )

" This day came the said John Faughander, one of the ex-

ecutors named in the will of the said Samuel Lapsley, deceased,

heretofore proven and admitted to record, and made application

for letters testamentary. It appearing that the said Lapsley is

dead ; that the other persons named in said will, as executors, de-

cline acting ; and that the said applicant is entitled to letters, as

sole executor of said will ; and that the said applicant having filed

in this office the requisite bond, with satisfactory security, letters

testamentary are therefore granted to the said John Faughander."
The plaintiff, by his counsel, objected to the introduction of

said order, but the court admitted the same, subject to be either

considered or excluded, as the court might determine, on full

consideration.

The defendant then gave in evidence the bond of Faughander,

as executor.

The defendant then called John V. A. Hoes, as a witness,

who testified that he was probate justice of La Salle county, in

1839, and that the entry of Sept. 6, 1839, above set out, was in

his handwriting. A written memorandum, which had been pre-

viously proven by the witness Raymond, to be on file in the

probate office, among the papers relating to Lapsley 's estate,

was here shown to witness Hoes, which memorandum is as

follows

:

"Letters testamentary—copy of will

—

with letters

—

refuse

other executors named in will fail to

qualify.

John Faughander sole executor.

Zachariah Merritt,^
Daniel Dimmick, )> Appraisers."

Michael Leonard,
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This memorandum was indorsed as follows :
" Mem. Sept.

6th, 1839."

The witness Hoes, after examining the memorandum, testi-

fied that it was in his handwriting ; that the will of Lapsley

was indorsed in his handwriting ; also, the affidavit attached

thereto ; that he was acquainted with Burton Ayres and Faugh-

ander. Hoes also testified, that it was his best impression that

Ayres and Waddingham did refuse to qualify, as executors of

Lapsley's will ; that this was his best recollection, gathered from

the papers and memoranda made by himself, and from his gen-

eral recollection of the transaction, and what occurred before

letters were issued to Faughander.

Hoes further testified, that the general and usual practice of

doing business in the Probate Court, in 1839, was this : When
executors, administrators, or others, appeared before that

court to transact business, the papers on file in the particular

estate were taken down, and it was ascertained what was to be

done, and a written memorandum made ; and the memorandum
was placed among the files, with the date of the transaction in-

dorsed on it. The memorandum, with the files, were then tied

together and laid away, to be entered on the record at leisure
;

and they were entered according to the dates. The memo-
randum, above set out, was such a memorandum of what was
done in the matter of the Lapsley estate, on the 6th Sept.,

1839. The memorandum above set out was then oflered in

evidence by defendant. Plaintiff objected ; the court sustained

the objection, and defendant excepted.

The witness Hoes also testified that his recollection was, that

. the personal estate of Lapsley was insufficient to pay the debts

of the estate and the legacies. The inventory of said estate was
shown the witness Hoes, and he testified that the words " good,"
" desperate," and " doubtful," on the margin of the inventory,

were in his handwriting. He also testified that Faughander
did pay some of the debts of the estate.

On cross-examination, Hoes testified that he derived his im-

pression that Ayres and Waddingham refused to qualify, from
the papers, and his general recollection of the transaction and
his course of business as probate justice ; that he may have
been told by Ayres at the time, that he [Ayres] refused to act

;

that he did not recollect Waddingham ; that he [Hoes] had
reliable information of Ayres' and Waddingham's refusal to act,

at the time he issued letters to Faughander, but could not now
say how he received such information.

On direct examination resumed, Hoes testified that he had
no doubt about the fact that he did receive his information of

Ayres' and Waddingham's refusal to act from some other source
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than from Faughander ; that he should be inclined to think that

they [Ayres and Waddingham] appeared before him in person

;

in that case no other memorandum would have been made than

the one above set out.

Philo LindJey was then called, as a witness for defendant,

and testified that he knew Lapsley, Ayres, Faughander, and had
seen Waddingham. After Lapsley's death, witness was talking

with Ayres, and told him he thought he ought to qualify as ex-

ecutor ; Ayres replied that Lapsley's business was so mixed up
that Lapsley himself knew nothing about it, and he [Ayres]

would not have anything to do with it. This was in 1839 or

1840, witness could not say which ; that he had a dozen conver-

sations with Ayres on the subject, and he never heard Ayres
express any diiferent determination than that he would not serve

as executor. Lindley further testified, that he had lived in the

neighborhood where Lapsley lived and died, ever since 1836.

The defendant's counsel asked Lindley " whether there was any
general rumor in the neighborhood as to whether Ayres and
Waddingham have refused to qualify as executors of Lapsley's

will ?" Plaintiff's counsel objected to the question ; the court

sustained the objection, and defendant excepted.

On cross-examination, Lindley testified that Waddingham was
engaged in packing pork, and had some connection with a brick

yard in St. Louis. He married Lapsley's sister, as witness un-

derstood. Mrs. Clinefelter, wife of Henry Clinefelter, was a

sister of Lapsley's. Findre Clinefelter was a son of Mrs.
Clinefelter.

Lorenzo Leland was then called, by defendant, and testified

that in 1839 he practiced law in Ottawa ; was acquainted with

Lapsley, who lived near Peru, and with Faughander and Ayres.

He [witness] drew Lapsley's will, and was one of the witnesses

thereto. He acted as attorney for Faughander, as executor.

Thinks Ayres was at Lapsley's house when the will was drawn.
His impression was, that there was not sufficient personal prop-

erty belonging to Lapsley's estate to pay his debts ; that he was
attorney for Lapsley three or four years previous to his death,

and got his impression of Lapsley's personal estate and debts,

from Lapsley himself, and from what he knew of the condition

of the estate after Lapsley's death.

Witness was clerk of Circuit Court, and knew the fact ; was
certain there was not sufficient of Lapsley's personal estate to

pay the debts and legacies ; witness thought Ayres knew he was
to be one of the executors when the will was drawn.

The defendant, after proving the identity of the papers next

offered in evidence, by the witness Raymond, then offered in

evidence

:
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1st. The inventory of the estate of Lapsley, showing debts

due the estate to the amount of $3,770.33 ; the same above

referred to in connection with Hoes' testimony.

2nd. An appraisement bill of said estate, showing personal

property and real estate amounting to $353.50.

3rd. An account current, rendered by Faughander, as ex-

ecutor, to the Probate Court, in 1847, showing money received

by him, (including the amount the land in controversy was sold

for,) amounting to |2,249.70,^and payments made by the ex-

ecutor, amounting to |1,438.81'; showing a balance of $810.89
in the hands of the executor.

4th. An entry in the records of the Probate Court of said

county, showing an approval of said account rendered, by the

said Probate Court, May 13, 1847.

The defendant then offered in evidence, the deposition of

John Faughander; the plaintiff objected, because Faughander
was interested ; but no exceptions having been taken to said

deposition before trial, the court overruled the objection. Said

deposition was then read in evidence, in which Faughander tes-

tifies, in substance, that both Ayres and Waddingham did refuse

to act as executors of Lapsley's will.

The defendant then gave in evidence, the letters testamentary

issued to Faughander.

The defendant then proved by the witness Raymond, that

there was no evidence on the records of the Probate Court, that

either Ayres or Waddingham ever applied for letters testa-

mentary.

The defendant then gave in evidence, the deed from Faugh-
ander, as executor, to John and Mary Swanson, which is made
a part of the agreed state of facts.

The plaintiff's counsel objected to all the oral testimony, or

testimony of acts in in pais, as incompetent to show a refusal by
Ayres and Waddingham to act as executors ; but the court ad-

mitted the same, subject to be either considered or rejected by
the court, on full consideration.

The defendant here rested his case.

The plaintiff then called said Raymond, who testified that he
had examined the records of the probate office, and found no
evidence that any citation ever issued to Ayres and Wadding-
ham, to appear and qualify as executors. He further testified,

that there was nothing on record to show that Faughander had
ever paid the legacies, and that he left the country in the spring

or summer of 1848.

The court below decided that it was incompetent to prove

that Ayres and. Waddingham refused to act as executors, by any
other than record evidence, or by a citation having issued to
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them, or by their having renounced in writing ; and on motion

of plaintiff, the court excluded all the evidence of the witnesses,

Hoes, Lindley, Leland, Raymond, Quigley and Faughander, on
that subject ; to which defendant excepted. The court also

held, that the entry on the probate record, dated Sept. 6, 1839,
did not show such refusal ; and thereupon the court found the

issues for the plaintiff.

The defendant moved the court for a new trial ; which motion

was overruled, and the defendant excepted.

The defendant then moved in arrest of judgment ; which mo-
tion the court overruled, and defendant excepted.

The court then rendered judgment for plaintiff, that he re-

cover one-forty-eighth part of the premises, describing them by
metes and bounds ; to which the defendant excepted.

Dickey & Wallace, for Appellant.

E. S. HoLBROOK, for Appellee.

Breese, J. By the act entitled " An act to provide for the

election of Probate Justices of the Peace," approved March 4,

1837, (Laws of 1837, page 176,) it is provided in the first §ec-

tion, that from and after the first Monday of August next, so

much of an act, entitled " An act relating to Courts of Probate,"

approved Jan. 2, 1829, as relates to the establishment of courts

of probate in the several counties, be repealed. Section 2,

provides for an election to be held on the first Monday of

August next, after the passage of the act, and on the first Mon-
day of August, 1839, and every fourth year thereafter, for the

purpose of electing one additional justice of the peace, for each

county, to be styled, by way of eminence and distinction, the pro-

bate justice of the peace, of their respective counties. Section

3, gives them the same jurisdiction in civil cases as possessed by
ordinary justices of the peace, allowing appeals and writs of

certiorari from their proceedings. By section 4, jurisdiction is

conferred upon them in all cases of debt and assumpsit, express

or implied, when executors or administrators are parties, when
the amount claimed on either side shall not exceed one thousand

dollars.

By section 5, it is provided that in addition to these judicial

powers, " they shall have, possess, and exercise, within their

respective counties, the following ministerial powers, to wit

:

Power to administer all oaths or affirmations, concerning any

matter or thing before them ; to issue and grant letters of ad-

ministration, letters testamentary, and letters of guardianship,

and repeal the same ; to take probate of wills, and record the
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same ; to determine the person or persons entitled to letters

of administration, or to letters testamentary, and in general, to

do and perform all things concerning the granting of letters

testamentary, or of administration or of guardianship, which the

judge of probate may do by the existing laAvs ; to receive and
file and record inventories, appraisement bills and sale bills, as

is required by existing laws ; to require executors, adminis-

trators and guardians to exhibit and settle their accounts, and

to settle for the estates and 'property in their hands, and for

that purpose, may issue citations and attachments into every

county in the State, to be executed by the sheriff, etc. ; and,

finally, to do and perform all other acts of a ministerial char-

acter, which judges of probate could then perform in their

respective counties.

The 6th section provides the mode by which their proceedings

can be made matters of record, and the 7th vests them with all

the judicial powers theretofore exercised by the judges of pro-

bate ; but in all cases of the exercise of such judicial powers,

they were required to report their proceedings to the next term
of the Circuit Court of their respective counties, for their ap-

proval or rejection, and if approved by the Circuit Court, they

were then to be considered as matters of record in the Circuit

Court.

The court, and the profession generally, throughout the State,

always regarded this law, on account of the mongrel character

bestowed upon the probate justice, and the incongruities and
anomalies of the act, as entitled to very little regard, and it

was soon after repealed, being condemned by the common judg-

ment of the country.

It is evident from this act, which was in force at the time the

letters testamentary were granted in this case, that granting such

letters shall be a ministerial act, and nothing more. Though
the justice had important questions to consider before he could

decide upon such applications, in many cases requiring a high

exercise of the judgment, his decision is, nevertheless, a minis-

terial act, and so to be considered ; and though no reference to

this law is made by the court, in the opinion delivered in 16 111.

R. 329, it might have been cited as controlling authority.

If then, granting the letters in this case was a mere minis-

terial act, it was, as such, open to the country, and all the facts

and circumstances attending the granting thereof should have

been admitted in evidence.

If it was a judicial act, the parties are concluded by the

decision of the probate ; if ministerial, then the evidence of Mr.

Hoes and the others, except Faughander, who was interested,

31
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having executed a conveyance with full covenants, should have

been admitted.

The judgment of the court below is reversed, and the cause

remanded, with instructions that it is competent to prove that

Ayres and Waddingham refused to act as executors, by compe-

tent evidence other than record evidence, or by a citation hav-

ing issued to them, or by their having renounced in writing,

and that the testimony of Hoes, Lindley, Leland, Raymond and
Quigley should not have been excluded.

Judgment reversed.

The People, on the relation of Joseph N. Kies et al,

Appellants, v. Richard Brewer, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM BUREAU.

A poll-book which shows the election of a school trustee for a town, by name, may
be good, by proving tliat the town named and the congressional town were the

same territory, and that the former trustees had, before the election, ordered that

the school business of the township should be done under the particular name
stated in the poll-book.

The postponement of an election of a school trustee is wrong. If within the time
required by law a sufficient number of fiualified voters organized and held an
election, the person so elected will hold his office, notwithstanding an adjourn-

ment of the election at another hour in the day.

It will be intended that the election was in tlie proper county, if the returns were
made to the school commissioner of the county, although tlie oath of the officer

docs not in the jurat or elsewhere show the name of the county.

The facts of this case are detailed in the agreed statement

of the facts, as follows, to wit : This Avas an information in the

nature of a quo loarranto against the defendant, for usurping

and intruding into, and unlawfully holding and executing the

office of " trustees of schools of township sixteen north, of range

ten east, of the fourth principal meridian."

Pleas : not guilty and justification—that the said defendant

was legally elected to said office on tlie 9th day of November,
A. P. 1857, and had been legally qualified.

Issues of fact were taken by the People upon both pleas, and
a jury empanneled to try the issues.

The defendant admitted that he was in said office.

The questions which arose on the trial of the cause, and which
were all decided by the court, Ballou, Judge, in favor of the

defendant, were as follows, to wit

:

1. That the poll-book of the election under which the de-

fendant claimed, showed the returns for an election for " trustees
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of schools of the toivn of Selby." The People objected to the

admission of said poll-book ; but upon the defendant showing
that the said " town of Selby " and the aforesaid township six-

teen were the same territorially, and that the said township

was called the " toTvn of Selby," and that the former trustees

of said township had, before said election, ordered that the

school business of said township should be done in the name of

fe'aid " town of Selby," the said, poll-book was admitted in evi-

dence to the jury ; to w^hich the People excepted.

2. That on the day wdien said defendant professed to have
been elected, a number of the voters of the aforesaid township

met at the proper place for holding an election for " trustees of

schools of said township sixteen," and having waited until half

past two o'clock in the afternoon of said day, and there being

only six voters present, one of whom w^as a trustee of said town-

ship, and the voters present desiring it, without having organ-

ized into a board of election, it was moved that the said election

be postponed until the next Monday, and at the same place

and hour ; and the said trustee (acting as chairman) having

proposed said motion, and all the voters present having voted

for a postponement of said election as aforesaid, the election

was postponed and the voters present dispersed. No notice of

said postponement was posted on the door of the school-house,

(the place for holding said election), nor were the proceedings

of said voters reduced to writing. That about an hour after said

postponement, a number of voters assembled, and being verbally

informed of said postponement, but claiming that such post-

ponement was illegal, organized a board of election and held

an election, at which twenty-four votes were polled, of which
said defendant received twenty-two ; that said judges of said

election delivered the poll-book of said election to the school

commissioner of the county of Bureau aforesaid ; that the said

defendant took and subscribed an oath of office and the anti-

dueling oath, and an oath to support the constitution of the

United States and of this State, but the affidavit did not in any
part of it contain the words " Bureau county " or " State of

Illinois ;" said affidavit was made before a magistrate who was
justice of the peace of said Bureau county, but it was not so

stated in the body of the affidavit nor in the jurat to the same.

An election was subsequently held at the time and place fixed

by the aforesaid postponement, and the three first mentioned

relators were elected to said offices, receiving each thirty-two

votes ; of which last election the poll-book was delivered to the

aforesaid school commissioner, and the said three relators were
duly qualified by taking the prescribed oaths.



476 OTTAWA,

People ex rel. Kies et al. v. Brewer.

The court, upon the motion of the defendant, instructed the

jury that the said postponement was Illegal ; that a postpone-

ment could not be had without a prior organization of a board

of election ; that a legal election could afterwards be had on the

same day, in case no such prior organization was entered into

;

and that the trustees or judges could alone order an adjourn-

ment if desired by the voters present ; to all which the People

excepted.

The court overruled and refused to give an instruction offered

by the People, " that the law did not require that notice of said

postponement should be posted upon the door of said school-

house, or that the postponement should be in writing ;" to

which the People then and there excepted.

The jury found for the defendant, and the court rendered

judgment against the relators for costs, to which the People

excepted, and an appeal was prayed for and allowed to said

relators.

The errors assigned are,

1st. In admitting in evidence the poll-book of defendant's

pretended election.

2nd. In instructing the jury that the postponement of the

election on the 9th of November, A. D. 1857, was illegal, and
that a legal election could be held afterwards on the same day.

3rd. In refusing to give the People's instruction, " that no

notice of the said postponement need be posted on the door of

the said school-house, and that said postponement need not be

in writing."

4th. In not holding that the afiidavit made by said defendant

to qualify was insufficient.

5th. In rendering judgment in favor of the defendant, and
asiainst said relators for costs.

Wherefore the People, by said relators, pray that the said

judgment be reversed and said defendant ousted from said office.

GiBONS & Peters, for Relators.

Taylor & Ide, for Appellee.

Breese, J. This was an information in the nature of a gtto

luarranto against Brewer, to show cause why he had presumed
to exercise the office of school trustee for township sixteen

north, of range ten east of the fourth principal meridian.

The defendant justified under an election, and in his plea

alleged that he was legally elected to that office on the ninth

day of November, 1857, and had been legally qualified.

Issue was taken on this fact, and the cause tried by a jury.
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To sustain the issue on his part, the poll-book of the election

under which the defendant claimed, was offered in evidence,

which showed the returns of an election for trustees of schools

of the town of Selby. On objection made by relators, the

defendant proved that Ihe town of Selby and township sixteen

north, range ten east, were the same territory, and that the

township was called " the town of Selby," and that the former

trustees of that township had, before defendant's election, ordered

that the school business of that township should be done in the

name of the " town of Selby." The poll-book was admitted.

"We think it was properly admitted, the former trustees hav-

ing required it, and there being nothing in the law to prohibit it.

The postponement of the election at the first meeting of the

inhabitants, to the next Monday, amounts to nothing. The
facts show that within the time required by law, on that day,

a sufficient number of inhabitants, qualified to vote, organized a

regular board of election, the result of which was the election

of the defendant. The returns were duly made to the school

commissioner of Bureau county, and all the oaths required by
law administered to the defendant by a magistrate of that

county. The objection that it does not appear from the body of

the affidavit or the jurat to the same, that it was in Bureau
county, State of Illinois, is not important. It will be intended

it was in the proper county, as the returns were made to the

school commissioner of the proper county.

The subsequent election at which the relators were elected,

was invalid, the power of voters in this regard having been

exhausted at the regular election at which the defendant was
duly elected ; so that we are of opinion that the Circuit Court

did not err in admitting the poll-book in evidence, nor in

instructing the jury that the postponement of the election on
the 9th of November, 1857, was illegal, and that a legal elec-

tion could be held afterwards on the same day by the qualified

voters then and there assembled, nor in holding that the act of

qualifying by said defendant was sufficient, nor in rendering

judgment in his favor.

The judgment is affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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The Galena and Chicago Union Railroad Company, Ap-
pellant, V. Frederick Jacobs, who sues by his next

friend, Appellee.

APPEAL FROM COOK.

An instruction, unless it be upon an abstract proposition of law, must have some
evidence for its foundation, and must spring out naturally from such evidence.

The Circuit Court is not limited to the instructions asked for, but may supply by
its own suggestions any omission of counsel.

A permission to employees of a railroad company to occupy land within the inclo-

sure of the road of the company, is a permission to special persons, not to be

extended to those not in this relation to the company.

Instructions may be modified, but error may be assigned on the refusal of the court

to give them as asked for.

A party should cross a raih-oad track at the usual crossing. The track is the ex-

clusive property of the company, on which an unauthorized person cannot go
except at his own hazard, unless it be under certain qualifications.

To maintain an action for negligence, there must be fault on the part of the defend-

ant, and no want of ordinary care on the part of the plaintiff.

In proportion to the negligence of one party should be measured the degree of care

required of the other. Where there are faults on both sides, the plaintiff may
recover ; his fault is to be measured by the negligence of the defendant, and the

plaintiff need not be wholly without fault. The relative degrees of negligence of

the parties may be measured and considered.

This was an action on the case for the use of Frederick

Jacobs, for injuries sustained by being run over by a locomotive

owned by the appellant. The damages were laid at $15,000.

There was a trial, and a verdict and judgment for $2,000, from

which the defendant below. appealed.

The first count in the declaration avers that the plaintiff in

the court below, was being in and passing along a certain public

and common way, which was crossed by the railroad track of

the appellant, upon which a locomotive and tender was running

;

and that by the carelessness of the servants of the appellant, the

appellee was run over and injured.

The second coimt is like the first, but avers that the appellant

did not ring a bell or blow a whistle, and that appellee was run

over and injured, and lost his arm.

The third count avers that appellee was upon the railroad

track of appellant, and was run over by a locomotive, etc.

The fourth count avers the injury to have happened to ap-

pellee while he was standing on the railroad of appellant, near

to and by a certain public road or street, where the said road

was crossed by the railroad on the same level, and that

appellant had not caused any sign or board to be placed across

the highway, giving warning, and did not ring a bell or blow a

whistle, etc.
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There is no averment in the declaration that the appellee was
himself without fault.

To this declaration there was filed the general issue, and three

special pleas.

The second plea avers that the appellant was running its lo-

comotive, etc., along its road, as it lawfully might do, in pursuit

of its ordinary business, and that tlie appellee negligently, care-

lessly, and improperly remained in and upon the railroad track
of appellant without its consent, and without being seen, and
that if he was injured, it was caused by his own fault in

remaining upon the railroad track, and not by any default of the

appellant or its servants.

The third plea avers that appellee went upon and carelessly,

negligently, etc., remained on the railroad track of the appel-

lant, and if injured, it was by accident, and without any default

on the part of the appellant, but by and through the want of

due care on the part of the appellee.

The fourth plea, after averring that appellee was on the rail-

road of appellant, etc., says if he sustained any injury, it was
in part caused by, and resulted from the said carelessness and
fault of the appellee, and not by the sole default and negligence

of the appellant.

There was an answer to each of these pleas, denying them,

and an issue to the country. The appellant filed a motion for a
new trial, which was overruled ; and an appeal was then prayed
and allowed.

The bill of exceptions states, among other, the following proofs.

The plaintiff introduced as a witness, Mrs. Kell, who testified

as follows

:

I know the plaintifi". At the time of the accident in May, 1856,
I was living on the Geneva road inside the railroad fence.

There were five shanties there. I lived in the fifth one, that is

the one farthest west. I lived with my husband ; he was at

work at the depot for the railroad company. Irish families

lived in the other shanties. Dempsy lived in the second house

towards the cattle guard. The other men living in those shan-

ties worked for the company. Those families had children then.

At the time of the accident I was acquainted with Mr. Jacob's

family. , I had been at their house two days before the accident.

I had taken the little boys to my house twice before the accident,

once two days before, and once about a week before. They
were the same children who were run over ; their names were
Frederick and William.

The counsel for the plaintiff here put the question, " how did

people living inside the railroad inclosure get backwards and
forwards ?" To which the defendant's counsel then and there
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objected, but the court overruled the objection and admitted the

evidence.

Answer. Along the track. It was rather difficult walking

there. They walked on the timbers when they crossed the cattle

guard.

Cross-examined. These children never went on the track

there alone. They had been to my house twice ; I went with

them. Mr. and Mrs. Jacobs both knew that the children went
to my house. I have two children, the oldest about twelve, and
the other about eight. I don't allow them to go on the railroad

track. I keep watch of them to see that they do not go on the

track. I don't think it safe to allow them to go on the track.

Mr. Jacobs did not object to my taking his children to my house.

He insisted on my coming back with them. I did come back
with them. There is only one fence between my house and
Jacob's ; there is one fence around Mr. Jacob's house, and one
about the railroad. The children, to get to my house, had to

get through or over these fences. When the people went from
these shanties to the junction, they always went along the rail-

road. When I first went for the children, I did not climb over

the railroad fence, but went along the track. When I took the

children home, I went along the track. I never took the children

over the fence. I took the children along the railroad. I did

not take them through the guard. I do not go over any fence.

I went to the nearest point on the railroad and then went along

it, part of the time on the track, and part of the time at the

side of it. The tallest boy walked over the cattle guard, and I

carried the smallest one all of the way.

The defendant admitted that the plaintiff was four and a half

years of age when the accident happened.

The plaintiff's counsel admitted that there was no pretense

that the injury complained of was willful or intentional.

The defendant then introduced as a witness, Charles Watson^
who testified as follows

:

I live at the Junction. At the time of the accident to the

plaintiff, Mr. Jacobs lived in my house. I am well acquainted

with the premises. The Galena & Chicago Union Kailroad Com-
pany own the land inside of the railroad fence, and also that

outside up to the highway which is open. I own the land next
north of this open place. That is my barn north from the cattle

guard. The people who live inside of the railroad fence, used

to annoy me, by pulling down my fence and coming through

there with teams to get to their shanties, and I opened a place

at the corner next to the railroad fence, for them to pass through.

The cattle guard is not the same now as it was then ; then they

were laid with the corners or edges of the joists up. Some of
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the people nailed slats across the guard to walk over on. People

usually passed that way. The cattle guard was made with two
by four joists or scantling laid cornerwise, that is, with the edges

up. At the time the accident happened, that way around was
open. I had opened that space for the people living in the shan-

ties to use with teams. It was the only way for them to go with

teams to the shanties. There were eight or ten trains a day
passed that place. There were about thirty-five or forty arrived

and departed from the Junction daily.

Those people living in the shanties inside of the railroad, when
on foot, went through the cattle guard. It was the usual way
for them to go.

The plaintiff, by his attorney, requested the court to instruct

the jury as follows

:

" The plaintiff was not a trespasser, if he was on the land of

the defendant, by the permission of the defendant either express

or implied."

Which instruction the court refused to give as asked, ])ut

added to it, and gave the instruction as follows

:

" The plaintiff was not a trespasser if be was on the land of

the defendant by the permission of the defendant, either ex-

press or implied

—

and it is for the jury to determine, from the

evidence, ivhether such permission ivas expressly given, or can be

implied from the circumstances and facts in proof
."

The plaintiff, by his attorney, then asked the court to instruct

the jury as follows ; which instructions were given by the court

as asked for

:

2nd. " If the jury shall find, from the evidence, that at the time

of the accident, b}^ the permission of the defendant, persons were
living within the inclosure of the track near where the accident

occurred, and were permitted by the defendant to come and go
over the same, and that at the time of the accident, the plaintiff

was, by the express or implied permission of the defendant, at

the place where the injury occurred, then it was the duty of the

defendant to use due care and diligence in running their trains

over the place in question.

3rd. "If the jury shall find, from the evidence, that the

plaintiff was lawfully in the place where the injury occurred,

either by the express or implied permission of the defendant,

and that the injury was solely the result of the negligence of

the defendant, without any negligence on the part of "the plain-

tiff or his parents, then the plaintiff is entitled to a verdict."

The defendant requested the court to instruct the jury as

follows :

1st. " A party seeking to recover damages for a loss which he

alleges has been caused by the negligence or misconduct of

another, must show to the jury that his own iiegligence or
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misconduct has not in any way contributed in producing the in-

jury corapLained of.

2nd. " The burthen of proof is on the plaintiff, to show not

only that the defendant was guilty of negligence, but that the

plaintifi" exercised proper care and circumspection in his own
conduct ; and if he was of insufficient age to exercise care and
circumspection, then he must show that those who were bound
to take care of him, did not by their negligence suffer the

plaintifi" to expose himself to the injury.

3rd. " If the jury shall believe, from the evidence, that the

plaintiff was of such tender years as would be likely to make
him inconsiderate or imprudent, and that he therefore required

the control and oversight of his parents ; then they should find

that his parents were exercising such care and prudence over

the plaintiff" as judicious and careful parents ought to have done,

at the time the injury was received, or the law is with the de-

fendant, and the plaintiff" cannot recover."

All of which- instructions were given by the court, as asked
for by the defendant. The fourth instruction asked for by the

defendant, was .as follows :

4th. " If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the plaintiff

or his parents knew that tliere was a railroad at the place where
the injury occurred, upon which locomotives and cars were
frequently running, and that if the plaintiff' wandered thereon

that he would be exposed to injury and danger, then plaintiff"

w^as on the railroad of defendant at his own peril, and the

plaintiff and his parents were guilty of such negligence as should

prevent a recovery in this case."

Which fourth instruction the court refused to give as asked

for by the defendant, but gave it altered and modified as follows :

" If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the plaintiff" or

his parents knew that there was a railroad at the place where
the injury occurred, upon which locomotives and cars were fre-

quently running, and that if the plaintiff" wandered thereon,

that he would be exposed to injury and danger, and that

notwithstanding the plaintiff was permitted 7iegligentJij to ivan-

der thereon, then plaintiff" was on the railroad of defendant

at his own peril, and the plaintiff" and his parents were guilty

of such neglect as should prevent a recovery in this case."

To which refusal of the court to give said fourth instruction

as asked for, and to which alterations and qualifications of said

fourth instruction, the defendant excepted.

The defendant then asked the court to instruct the jury as

follows

:

5th. " Under the issue raised by the pleadings in this case, if

the jury believe, from the evidence, that the plaintiff was guilty of
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any negligence on his part by going upon and remaining upon

the railroad track of the defendant, at the time when the acci-

dent complained of happened, then the law is with the defendant,

and the plaintiff cannot recover.

6th. " If the jury believe, from the evidence, that both

plaintiff and defendant were in fault, then the defendant cannot

recover,

7th. " The plaintiff must show that he was without fault,

by going and being upon the railroad track at the time the in-

jury happened, or he cannot recover ; although it may appear

that the defendant was also guilty of negligence."

Which instructions were given by the court as asked. The
defendant asked the court to instruct the jury as follows:

8th. " If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the de-

fendant has exercised ordinary care in fencing the railroad, and
in running trains thereon, then the law is with the defendant,

and the plaintiff ought not to recover."

Which said instruction the court refused to give, to which
refusal the defendant excepted.

The defendant requested the court to instruct the jury as

follows :

9th. "• If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the land

where the injury occurred was owned by the defendant, and was
in the use of the defendant, the plaintiff was a trespasser thereon,

and if he was on said grounds without permission of the de-

fendant, and not for any necessary purpose, he was there in his

own wrong and at his own risk, and the law is for the defendant,

and the plaintiff cannot recover, unless the jury believe, from
the evidence, that the defendant willfully injured the plaintiff"."

Which said ninth instruction the court refused to give as

asked for, but having altered and qualified it, gave it to the jury

as follows

:

"If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the land where
the injury occurred, was owned by the defendant, and was in

the use of the defendant, the plaintiff was a trespasser thereon,

unless there by the express or implied permission of the de-

fendant, and if he was on said grounds without permission of

defendant, and not for any necessary purpose, he was there in

his own wrong and at his own risk, and the law is for the de-

fendant, and the plaintiff' cannot recover, unless the jury believe,

from the evidence, that the defendant was g-uiUy of gross neg-

ligence, and willfully injured the plaintiff."

To which refusal to give said ninth instruction as asked for,

and to which alterations and qualifications of said instruction,

the defendant excepted. The defendant then requested the

court to instruct the jury as follows

:
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10th. " That the defendant was not required by the statutes

of this State to ring a bell to warn persons against danger upon
its own premises ; that such a warning is designed for persons

upon and at road crossings, and unless defendant was injured

at a road crossing, the omission to ring a bell, unless it was a

willful omission, does not in such case show that the defendant

was negligent.

11th. " If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the plain-

tiff was injured on the premises of the defendant, and not at a

road crossing, then the omission to ring a bell or blow a whistle

is not prima facie evidence of negligence on the part of the

defendant.

12th. "If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the

plaintiff had not sufficient discretion or knowledge to have the

care of himself, and was suffered to wander on the premises of

the defendant, by the negligence or want of care of his parents,

he was there in his own wrong and at his own risk, and the law
is for the defendant, unless the jury believe that the defendant

willfully caused the injury complained of."

\ Which said tenth, eleventh and twelfth instructions were
given as asked for.

13th. " If the evidence in this case shows that the injury

complained of happened on the ground or right of way used

and occupied by the defendant, and that the plaintiff had no
right to be where he was, then the defendant was not answerable

for the injury unless it was done willfully, because the defendant

in the use of the road is not bound to keep a look out on its

own ground, as against those having no lawful right on the road,

but may use the same for its own purposes in its own way, and
any person going upon the track without permission (^express or

impUecT) at such place is there at his own peril and in his own
wrong, and therefore if he is injured he cannot recover, because

his own neglect or carelessness has contributed thereto."

Which said thirteenth instruction the court refused to give as

asked for, but altered and qualified it by inserting the words
express or implied^ between the words permission and at in the

concluding ^sentence. To which refusal to give said thirteenth

instruction as asked for, and to which alteration and qualifica-

tion of said thirteenth instruction, the defendant excepted.

The defendant then requested the court to instruct the jury

as follows

:

14th, " Persons not in privity with a railroad company, wish

ing to cross its track, are bound to cross at a public crossing, or

take the consequences of any accident which may happen in

consequence of any collision with the cars, not occasioned by

the willful and reckless act of the servants of the defendant."
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Which said fourteenth instruction was given as asked for.

There was a finding for the plaintifl", and damages were

assessed at two thousand dollars.

The errors assigned are

—

1st. The court below gave improper instructions to the jury

on the part of the plaintiff.

2nd. The court below refused to give proper instructions, as

asked, on the part of the defendant, in that court.

3rd. The court below improperly altered the instructions

asked for on the part of the defendant below.

4th. The court below gave instructions on the part of the

plaintiff below, which were calculated to mislead, and did mis-

lead the jury.

5th. The court below admitted improper evidence on the

part of the plaintiff.

6th. The court below improperly overruled the motion for a

new trial, and gave judgment for the plaintiff in that court.

E. Peck, for Appellant.

Goodrich & Farwell, for Appellee.

Breese, J. Without recapitulating the facts of this case as

they appear on the record, we will consider the instructions

upon them as given and refused by the court below.

It is a case of negligence against a railroad company, the

plaintiff being, at the time of the injury, but four and a half

years of age.

The first instruction asked by the plaintiff below, was clearly

objectionable, as it makes no reference to the evidence ; as modi-

fied by the court it .does, but in other respects is not essentially

different, but still remains objectionable.

We hold in all cases, an instruction, unless it be upon an ab-

stract proposition of law, which the court may grant or refuse at

its discretion, must have some evidence on which to base it, and
spring out naturally fr-om such evidence. Coug-hlin v. The
Feople, 18 111. R. 266 ; Eioing- v. Faink/e, 20 IlL^R. 448.

In scanning the testimony in this case, after a critical and
searching examination, we find no one witness deposing to one
single fact or circumstance, giving any color to a permission to

the plaintiff to be on the land of the defendant for any purpose

whatever. There are no facts or circumstances sworn to from
which such an inference can be rationally deduced, but, if we
understand them, quite the contrary. All the instructions on
behalf of the plaintiff are put by the court, on the ground of this

express or implied permission on the part of the defendant to
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the plaintiff to be on their land, which was in their hourly and
constant use, and as the case turns upon this, it requires a care-

ful examination.

The evidence shows that Jacobs lived outside of the railroad

grounds, at some considerable distance from the point where the

injury toolc place, and to reach which point the plaintiff would
have to climb over or creep through three fences. Other per-

sons, Irish, with their families, employees of the company, lived

in shanties inside of the railroad inclosure—as many as five

families—the head of one of them, Mrs. Kell, sworn for plaintiff,

says she lived in the fifth shanty, that is, the one farthest west

;

Irish families lived in the other slianties ; Dempsy lived in the

second towards the cattle guard ; those families had children

there ; was acquainted with Mr. Dempsy's family ; had been at

their house two days before the accident ; had taken the little

boys to her house twice before the accident, once two days before

and once about a week before—the same children that were run

over ; their names are Frederick and William ; showed them at

her house something to make music, an instrument for children

to play on. To this question .of the plaintiff, " how did people

living inside of the railroad inclosure get backwards and for-

wards," she ansv^ers, "along the track; it was rather difiicult

walking there, they walked on the timber when they crossed

the cattle guard."

On her cross-examination she says, these children never went
on the track there alone ; they had been to her house twice

;

she went with them ; the parents both knew that the children

went to her house ; has two children herself, the oldest about

twelve and the other about eight ; don't allow them to go on the

railroad traclv ; keeps watch of them to see they do not ; don't

thinlv it safe to allow them ; Mr. Jacobs (the father) did not

object to her taking his children to her house ; he insisted that

she should come back with them, and she did come back with them.

Among the mass of testimony in the case, this is all that has

the slightest allusion or most remote reference to the fact that

this child, the plaintiff, was ever on the railroad track at any time

before he met with the injury, and how, from this, it can be

inferred that the company or their agent knew it, and knowing
it and not forbidding it, they therefore permitted it, when unat-

tended, we cannot discover. It seems to us, as he was never on

the track before without a prudent and cautious woman for his

protector, both going and returning, the inference would be

directly the other way ; that a permission can only be implied

that he might be there with a competent protector, not by

himself. There does not seem to be anything on which to base

the theory of implied permission. It surely cannot be drawn
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from the two occasioQS spoken of by Mrs. Kell, for the legitimate

inference from them, and it should so have been put to the jury,

is, that the child having never been on the track without a com-
petent attendant, could not rightfully be upon it unattended.

I^ut the court told the jury that they might infer a permission

by the company to be on their track, from facts which establish

its opposite ; for going on the track with a careful and watchful
attendant is the opposite, when done by a child not five years of

age, of going there unattended.

This testimony shows too, that the father of the child, before

he would permit him to go with Mrs. Kell, insisted that she

should return with him, which she did.

These instructions, placing the case upon an implied permis-

sion of the defendant, in the absence of any evidence on wliich

to base it, were erroneous. They must have controlled the find-

ing of the jury, or contributed largely to it, for the idea of an
implied permission being excluded, it is not probable such a
verdict would have been rendered.

A court does not sit to see injustice done, or to permit it, nor
is it restricted, in communicating with the jury, to the instruc-

tions asked on either side. It is the province of the court

—

their undisputed realm, in which to exert to the fullest extent
this power—to impart instructions as to the law of the case, on
the facts as the juiy may find them to exist, and for that pur-

pose, supply, by its own suggestions, any omission or want of

observation of the counsel.

The plaintiff can derive no support or advantage from the

fact that the employees of the railroad, with their families and
children residing within the inclosure, were permitted by the

company free ingress, egress and regress in and upon their

track and land. This was a permission to special pci'sons, for

the benefit and necessities of the road, and cannot be extended
to those not in this relation to the company.

Jacobs and his family lived outside of the railroad inclosure,

and some distance from the switcli and the cattle guard, and
the cabins or shanties whoi'e Mrs. Kell lived. He was not an
employee of the company, but was, a baker and kept a grocery,

and could claim no such privilege for himself or children as the

company awarded to their employees. Did he or any of his

family have occasion to visit these shanties, it would have been
his and their duty to go the way open and free to the public,

and not use the track at any other place than at the usual

crossing, and then only for the purpose of crossing. The
railroad track is the exclusive property of the company, on
which no unauthorized person has a right to be for any pur-
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pose ; if there, it is at his own peril, under certain qualifica-

tions, which we will consider as we proceed.

As to the instructions asked by the defendant, some of which
were modified and then given, we can only say that we have
always considered the court was at liberty to modify an instruc-

tion, for the error could be assigned on refusing to give it as

originally proposed. What we have said as to the plaintiff's

instructions apply to the fourth and thirteenth of defendant's

instructions, as modified, and in their modified form are objec-

tionable.

As this case will be remanded and a new trial had, it becomes
necessary for the court to submit some considerations on the

question of negligence, and the principles which should govern it.

The question has been considered at great length by this

court, heretofore, in the following cases : The Aurora Branch
Railroad Co. v. Grimes, 13 111. R. 585 ; in which the court

say :
" The degree of care wdiich the plaintiff is bound to

exercise, will be found to depend upon the relative rights or

position of the parties in relation to the rights exercised, or

position enjoyed by the plaintiff at the time the injury complained

of happened. As growing out of these relative positions of

right, two classes of cases will be found.

Where both parties are equally in the position of right, which

they hold independent of the favor of each other, the plaintiff

is only bound to show that the injury was produced by the negli-

gence of the defendant, and that he exercised ordinary care and
diligence in endeavoring to avoid it, or that by the exercise of

ordinary care he could not have avoided it." The court cite and
approve the principle of the case of Bvlterjield v. Forrester,

11 East R. 60, as expressed by Lord Ellenborough :
" Two

things must concur to support this action, an obstruction in the

road by the fault of the defendant, and no want of ordinary

care on the part of the plaintifiV

In the case of Dt/er, impleaded, etc., v. Talcott, 16 111. R.

300, the court refer to this rule in Grimes' case, as maintaining
" that the burthen of proof is on the plaintiff, to show that he

exercised due care and caution, or that his own negligence did

not contribute to produce the injury complained of, as well as

that the injury was produced by the negligence of the defendant."

In the case of the Chicagv Sf Mississippi Railroad Co. v.

Palchin, ib. 198, the court say, " Railroads may and ought to

be liable for malicious mischief or willful injuries ; nor should

the scrutiny be too critical in cases of convictions for that gross

negligence which indicates the absence of the lowest degree of

care and attention. Railroads may not omit all care, prudence

or skill, and ground themselves upon an immunity from all
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responsibility because they are lawfully pursuing their own busi-

ness upon their own land. They are ever under the strictest

duty of care, and liable for slight neglect, while there are passen-

gers or freights to be endangered by experiments in running on

stock. Yet even without this, they may not with impunity,

wantonly or willfully, nor with such total or gross negligence as

evidences willfulness, run upon and injure persons or stock

trespassing upon the road.

In the Galena and Chicago Union Railroad Co. v. Fay, ib.

559, the court say, page 570 :
" It is enough in law to constitute

a defense, that the negligence or carelessness (of plaintiff)

caused or contributed to the injury complained of."

In the Great Western Railroad Company v. Thompson, IT

111. R. 131, the court reconsider and approve the decision in

Patchin's case.

In the Central Military Tract Railroad Co. v. Rockafelloiv,

ib. 541, the court again refer approvingly to Patchin's case,

and say, "The evidence clearly fails to show gross negligence in

plaintiff (railroad company) in killing the ox, and the jury was
erroneously instructed as to the degree of diligence required,

and the degree of negligence for which they would be liable for

damage done to property circumstanced as the ox was in this

case. The degrees of care or diligence are three, and are well

defined and illustrated in Story & Jones on Bailments. Neg-
lio-ence is similarlv divided, and made or defined to be the

counterparts or opposites of each degree. There is little diffi-

culty in laying down the rule for care and for neglect, while

we are content to state in the language long known, familiar to,

and used by the courts and profession. The difficulty is very

little greater in determining what degree of each is applicable

to any given state of facts. The great difficulty is the appli-

cation of the rule to determine whether the particular facts

show the want of the ascertained degree of care, or guiltiness

of the negligence applicable to the relation of the parties under
the circumstances.'"

In the case of the Illinois Central Railroad Co. v. Reedy, ib.

680, the court, at page 582, refers with approbation to Patchin's

case, and further say, "The conduct of the servant must evince

a total want of care for the safety of the stock, whereby it is

injured, in order to make the company liable for his negligence.

In other words, a case of very gross negligence must be shown."
" The burden of proof is on the plaintift', and it is for him to

show by facts and circumstances, and by those acquainted with

the management of trains, that it was practicable and easy to

have avoided the collision, and that in not doing so, those in

charge of the train were guilty of the measure of carelessness
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or willful misconduct which the law requires to establish the

liability of the defendant below. The defendant's train was
rightfully on the track, and could go nowhere else ; the plain-

tiff's steer was there wrongfully. He was wrongfully allowed

to be in the most dangerous place which could be found, and
where there was every reason to suppose he would be killed."

In the case of the City of Chicago v. Major, 18 111., at page

361, the court say, "In this, as in all other cases, it must be left

to the jury to determine whether the parents of the child have

been guilty of negligence, in suffering the child to be in the

streets ; on this point the court justly instructed the jury in the

last instruction. The jury were there told that they must be-

lieve, from the evidence, that the defendant was guilty of neg-

ligence which produced the injury in not keeping the tank in

repair, and also that its parents were not guilty of negligence

;

and in another part of the charge they were told that the burden
of proof rested on the plaintiff to show not only negligence on
the part of the city, but also, that the parents were not negligent."

The rulings of other courts, British and American, do not

essentially differ from these, as will be perceived by reference

to them as cited by the court.

In addition to the cases cited, reference may with propriety

be made to 2nd Chipman Vt. R. 128 ; 2 Pickering R. 621 ; 12
ib. 177 ; 6 Cowen R. 189 ; 4 Mass. R. 422 ; 2 Taunton R. 314

;

all proceeding on the ground not only that the defendant was
guilty of negligence, Imt that the plaintiff exercised ordinary

care, and throwing the onus in each aspect upon the plaintiff.

In 2 Taunton, it is held, " if the proximate cause of damage be

the plaintiff's unskillfulness, although the primary cause be the

misfeasance of the defendant, the plaintiff cannot recover."

The earliest case we have cared to find, in which this priciple

was declared, is that of Blyth v. Topfuwi, Croke's James, 158,
and is as follows :

" Action upon the case :—for that he digg'd a

pit in such a common, by occasion whereof, his mare being stray-

ing there, fell into the said pit and perished. The defendant

pleaded not guilty, and found for him. And now the plaintiff,

to save costs, moved in arrest of judgment upon the verdict that

the declaration was not good, for when the mare was straying,

and he shows not any right why his mare should be in the said

common, the digging of the pit is lawful as against him ; and
although his mare^fell therein, he had not any remedy, for it is

damnum absqiie injuria, wherefore an action lies not by him

;

and of that opinion was the whole court. Wherefore it was
adjudged upon the declaration that the bill should abate ; and
not upon the verdict."

This, and all the cases subsequent to which we have referred;
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have one common basis, and that is found in the old law maxim
that, " no man shall take advantage of his own wrong or negli-

gence" in his prosecution or defense against another. Sheppard
V. Hees, 12 Johns. R. 434 ; Bush v. JBrainerd, 1 Cowen R. 78.

All the cases upon this subject, proceed on this maxim. The
leading case of Butterfield v. Forrester, 11 East R. 60, is of

that character, in which Lord Ellenboeough gives the rule

referred to by this court in Grimes' case. To state it more at

length than is there to be found, the following presents it in

substance. A party repairing his house, had put a pole across

the road adjacent to the building, leaving a free passage on the

other side. The plaintiff set out from an inn not far distant

from the pole about candlelighting, and while the obstruction

could be seen for one hundred yards. He, however, riding

violently, did not observe it, but rode against it, fell with his

horse, and was injured. Bailey, J., directed the jury, that if a
persifh riding with reasonable and ordinary care, could have
seen and avoided the obstruction, and if they were satisfied the

plaintiff was riding along the street extremely hard and without

ordinary care, they should find a verdict for the defendant

;

which they accordingly did. On a motion for a new trial. Lord
Ellenboeough, C. J., said: "A party is not to cast himself

upon an obstruction which has been made by the fault of another,

and avail himself of it, if he do not himself use common and
ordinary caution to be in the right. In cases of persons riding

upon what is considered the wrong side of the road, that would
not authorize another purposely to ride up against them. One
person being in fault, will not dispense with another using ordinary

care for himself. Two things must concur to support this action
;

an obstruction in the road by the fault of the defendant, and no
want of ordinary care to avoid it on the part of the plaintiff.

Rule refused."

So in the case of Pluckwell v. Wilson, 5 Carr. &, Payne R.

375, which was for an injury to the plaintiff's chaise by a carriage

of the defendant, driven by his servant, the court left it to

the jury to say, whether the injury to the plaintiff's chaise was
occasioned by negligence on the part of the defendant's servant,

without any negligence on the part of the plaintiff himself,

for that if the plaintiff's negligence in any way concurred in

producing the injury, the defendant would be entitled to a ver-

dict ; and so, if it was altogether an accident.

In the case of Woolf v. Beard, 8 ib. 435, which was an action

on the case for the negligent driving of a cab by the defendant's

servant, the court said :
" If the plaintiff has contributed to the

accident by her own neglect, she cannot recover in this action.

No one has a right of action if he meets with an accident which
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by ordinary care lie might have avoided. If the plaintiff took

reasonable and proper care, and it was on account of the extra-

ordinary speed of the cab—nine or ten miles an hour—that she

could not save herself, and thus met with the accident, she is

entitled to your verdict ; but if she, by her own negligence or

want of care, contributed to the accident, she cannot recover,

<8ven though you should think the driver of the cab was driving

too fast, and was therefore guilty of negligence as well as the

plaintiff." It was argued in this case, that the accident hap-

pened by the plaintiff's own want of caution in stepping off the

curb stone when a cab was coming up, and that the man who
d'rove it was not at all to blame.

In ^ilh V. Brown^ 9 ib. 245, the question was, whether the

plaintiff", by his negligence or improper conduct, substantially

contributed to the occurrence of the injury of which he com-
plaias ; not to the amount of it, but to its occurrence. There-

fore where a brig was carrying her anchor in a position contrary

to the by-laws of the river Thames, at the time she came in col-

lision with a barge, it was held that the improper carrying of

the anchor would not of itself be sufficient to make the owner of

the brig responsible in damages, if the barge, by departing from
the known rule of the river, brought herself into the situation

in which the brig struck her, although but for the position of

the anchor the collision would not have produced the injury

complained of. The court say emphatically, the position of the

anchor will not be sufficient to make the defendant liable, if the

plaintiff, by his servants, substantially contributed to the occur-

rence of the injury ; not to its amount, but to the occurrence of it.

In Raisin v. Mitchell, ib. 252, which was for negligence in

running defendant's brig against the plaintiff's sloop, at anchor
in the river Thames, the damages claimed were five hundred
pounds. TiNDAL, C. J., in summing up, said, " The question is,

whether the plaintiff has made out a case to entitle him to dam-
ages. You must be satisfied that the injury was occasioned by
the want of care or the improper conduct of the defendant, and
was not imputable in any degree to any want of care or any
improper conduct on the part of the plaintiff." The jury found

for the plaintiff', damages two hundred and fifty pound?,.

TiNDAL, C. J., asked the jury how they made up their verdict.

The foreman answered that there were faults on both sides.

C. J. " Then you have considered the whole matter ? " The
foreman answered in the affirmative.

The counsel for defendant submitted to his lordship, that the

fact which the foreman of the jury had stated, entitled the de-

fendant to the verdict. C. J. "No; there may be faults to a

certain extent." Counsel requested a note might be made of
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the objection. The Chief Justice assented, and the verdict was
entered bj the associate, for two hundred and fifty pounds.

The reporter says in a note :
" The verdict in this case, as

well as the opinion of the learned Chief Justice, seem to be quite

correct, and sustainable in point of law, according to the most
modern authorities," and refers to several cases, among them,

Bridge v. The Grand Junction Raihvay Co. 3 Meeson & Welsby,
244. This was an action on the case for the negligent man-
agement of a train of railway carriages, in which Parke, Baron,

said, " The question is, whether the plea is not altogether bad
in substance. It is consistent with all the facts stated in it,

that the plaintiff, or they under whose guidance he was, was
guilty of negligence, and the defendant also ; and yet that the

plaintiff is entitled to recover. All the facts alleged in it may
be true ; there may have been negligence in both parties, and
yet the plaintiff may be entitled to recover. The rule of law is

laid down with perfect clearness in the case of Bidterfie/d r.

Forrester, and that rule is, that although there may have been

negligence on the part of the plaintiff, yet, unless he might by
the exercise of ordinary care have avoided the consequences of

the defendant's negligence, he is entitled to recover. If by
ordinary care he might have avoided them, he is the author of

his own wrong. That is the only way in which the rule, as to

the exercise of ordinary care, is applicable to questions of this

kind."

In Marriott v. Stanley, 1 Scott R. (New Cases) 392, it was
held that in an action to recover compensation in damages for

an injury occasioned by an obstruction of the highway, it was
not a misdirection on the part of the judge to leave it to the

jury to say, " whether or not the plaintiff was himself in any

degree the cause of the injury ; whether he had acted with such

a want of reasonable and ordinary care as to disentitle him to

recover ? " In this case. Smith v. Pelah, 2 Strange R. 1263, is

cited. This was that case : The chief justice ruled, that if a

dog once bit a man, and the owner having notice thereof, keeps

the dog, and lets him go about or lie at his door, an action will

lie against him at the suit of a person who is bit, though it hap-

pened by such person treading on the dog's toes, for it was
owing to his not hanging the dog on the first notice ; and the

safety of the king's subjects ought not afterwards to be en-

dangered.

So, in Bird v. Holbrook, 15 Eng. C. L. R. 91, where the de-

fendant, for the protection of his property, some of which had
been stolen, set a spring gun, without notice, in a walled garden

at a distance from his house ; the plaintiff, who climbed the wall
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in pursuit of a stray fowl, having been shot, it was held that the

defendant was liable in damages.

In Davies v. Man, 10 Meeson & "Welsby, 545, the general

rule of law in respect to negligence was held to be, that although

there may have been negligence on the part of the plaintiff, yet,

unless he might, by the exercise of ordinary care, have avoided

the consequence of the defendant's negligence, he is entitled to

recover. Therefore, where the defendant negligently drove his

horses and wagon against and killed an ass which had been left

in the highway, fettered in the fore feet, and thus unable to get

out of the way of the defendant's wagon, which was going at a
smartish pace along the road down a slight descent, the driver

of the wagon being some little distance behind the horses, Parke,
Baron, said, " that the jury were properly directed, that the mere
fact of negligence on the part of the plaintiff in leaving his

donkey on the public highway, was no answer to the action, un-

less the donkey's being there was the immediate cause of the

injury ; and that if they were of opinion that it was caused by
the fault of the defendant's servant in driving too fast, or, which
is the same thing, at a smartish pace, the mere fact of putting

the ass on the road would not bar the plaintiff of his action.

All that is perfectly correct ; for, although the ass may have
been wrongfully there, still the defendant was bound to go along

the road at such a pace as would be likely to prevent mischief.

Were this not so, a man might justify the driving over goods left

on a public highway, or even over a man lying asleep there, or

the purposely running against a carriage going on the wrong-

side of the road."

In Lynch v. Nurdin, 41 Eng. C. L. R. 422, where the defend-

ant negligently left his cart and horse unattended in a thronged
street, the plaintiff, a child seven years old, got upon the cart in

play ; another child incautiously led the horse on, and the plain-

tiff was thereby thrown down and hurt. The court, Lord Den-
man, C. J., held, that the defendant was liable in an action on
the case, though the plaintiff was a trespasser and contributed

to the mischief by his own act ; that though he was a co-opera-

ting cause of his own misfortune by doing an unlawful act, he is

not deprived of his remedy. And that it was properly left to

the jury, whether defendant's conduct was negligent and the

injury caused by the negligence.

The learned judge, in his elaborate comments on the case,

concludes by saying, " his, the child's, misconduet bears no
proportion to that of the defendant, which produced it."

The cases referred to above are principally cases decided by
the English courts, some of them going considerable length be-
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yond those of our own courts. We will refer to a few of those

cases in which the difference is apparent.

In Simpson et al. v. Hand et al.^ 6 Wheaton R. 311, Gibson,

C. J., sajs, " It is an undoubted rule, that for a loss from mutual
negligence, neither party can recover in a court of law ; and so

general is it, that it was applied, in Hill v. Warne^ 14 Eng. C.

L. R. 391, to the negligence of agents respectively appointed by
the parties to superintend the taking down of a party wall."

In Rathbun cmd West v. Payne et aL, 19 Wend. R. 399,

Bronson, J., says," When both parties are equally in the wrong,
neither can maintain an action against the other. Indeed, it has

been said, that a plaintiff suing for negligence must be ivholly-

without fault."

In Barnes v. Cole and Fitzhvgh, 21 ib., the same judge says,

" The verdict was also, I think, plainly against the weight of

evidence. I do not see how the plaintiff could escape the charge

of having, to some extent, contributed to bring the misfortune

on himself, by leaving his boat in an improper situation."

In Hartfield v. Roper and Newell, ib. 615, where a child two
years of age was permitted by its parents to be in a public high-

way without any one to guard him, and was there run over by a

person traveling in a sleigh, and injured, it was held, that nei-

ther trespass or case would lie against the traveler, in the absence

of proof that the injury was voluntary, or arose from culpable

negligence on his part. In an action for such injury, if there is

negligence on the part of the plaintiff, there cannot be a recov-

ery ; and although a child, by reason of his tender age, is inca-

pable of using that ordinary care which is required of a discreet

and prudent person, the want of such care on the part of the

parents or guardians of the child furnishes the same answer]_to an
action by the child, as would its omission on the part of an adult

plaintiff". To allow small children to resort to a common high-

way alone, is a criminal neglect ; and although that confers no
right upon travelers to commit a voluntary injury upon either,

neither does it warrant gross neglect ; and to make them liable

for anything short of that, would be contrary to law. Cowen,
J., further says, " The child has a right to the road for the pur-

poses of travel, attended by a proper escort. But at the tender

age of two or three years, or even more, the infant cannot per-

sonally exercise that degree of discretion which becomes instinct-

ive at an advanced age, and for which the law must make him
responsible, through others, if the doctrine of mutual care be-

tween the parties using the road is to be enforced at all in his

case. An infant is not sui juris. He belongs to another, to

whom discretion in the care of his person is exclusively confided.

That person is keeper and agent for this purpose ; and in respect
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to third persons, his act must be deemed that of the infant ; his

neglect, the infant's neglect. It is a mistake to suppose that,

because the party injured is incapable of personal discretion, he

is therefore above all law."
" It therefore seems to me," he says, " that here was a good

defense established at the trial, on the ground that the defend-

ant being free from gross neglect, and the plaintiff being guilty

of great neglect on his part,—indeed, being unnecessarily, not

to say illegally, occupying the road, having no right there,—for

he does not appear to be traveling, nor even on the land which
belonged to his famil}^,—the injury was a consequence of his

own neglect, at least such neglect as the law must impute to

him through others."

This case was questioned on the argument by the counsel for

the appellee in no mild terms, and it may be, as he insisted, that

it carries the law to the extreme verge, but it has been referred

to by this court in two cases

—

Grimes'' case, 13 111. R. 585, and
Patchin''s case, 16 ib. 202—certainly not with marked disappro-

bation. In the last case the court refer to it as opposed to the

principle declared in Lynch v. Nurdin, and it has received the

sanction of the highest New York courts, as will be seen by

reference to Brownell v. Flagler^ 5 Hill R.. 282, Broivn v.

Maxwell, 6 ib. 592, and Munger v. Tonaivanda R. R. Co., 4
Comstock R. 359.

We do not question the correctness of many of the legal

principles affirmed by it, but as authority in this case it is not

admitted, since the decision in Major^s case, 18 111. R. 361, and
as not in conformity with the principles we afl&rm in this case.

It will be seen, from these cases, that the question of liability

does not depend absolutely on the absence of all negligence on
the part of the plaintiff, but upon the relative degree of care or

want of care, as manifested by botli parties, for all care or

negligence is at best but relative, the absence of the highest

possible degree of care showing the presence of some negli-

gence, slight as it may be. The true doctrine, therefore, we
think is, that in proportion to the negligence of the defendant,

should be measured the degree of care required of the plaintiff—

that is to say, the more gross the negligence manifested by the

defendant, the less degree of care will be required of the plain-

tiff to enable him to recover. Although these cases do not dis-

tinctly avow this doctrine in terms, there is a vein of it very-

perceptible, running through very many of them, as, where there

are faults on both sides, the plaintiff shall recover, his fault

being to be measured by the defendant's negligence, the plain-

tiff need not be wholly without fault, as in Raisin v. Mitchell

and Lynch v. Nurdin.
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We say then, that in this, as in all like cases, the degrees of

negligence must be measured and considered ; and wherever it

shall appear that the plaintiff's negligence is comparatively

slight, and that of the defendant gross, he shall not be deprived

of his action.

The judgment of the Circuit Court is reversed, the cause

remanded and a venire facias de novo awarded for further pro-

ceedings not inconsistent with this opinion.

Judgment reversed.

AViLLiAM H. Stow, Plaintiff in Error, v. John Yarwood
et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO COOK.

Where a party received an engine for repairs and retained a portion of it, and
before action was brouglit against him, had made an assignment in bankruptcy
under the general bankrupt law and obtained his discharge; held, that he could
recoup his claim for work done on the repairs.

All claims due to the bankrupt pass to his assignee, but pass to him subject to all

equities and defenses of ever}^ description which existed against them in the

hands of the bankrupt.

If at the time of the assignment mutual demands exist, arising out of a contract

which by the ordinary rules of law might be set off, such right of set-off or re-

coupment would remain unaffected by the bankrupt's assignment. And the

bankrupt, as well as the assignee, can avail himself of such set-off or recoupment.

This was an action commenced in the Cook County Circuit

Court, Manniere, Judge, by Yarwood and others against Stow.

The evidence in the case shows the following facts : In 1839,

the plaintiffs below bought a steam engine of one Allen, which
was at the time at Stow's foundry, and contracted with Stow
to repair it.

Stow repaired the engine and a portion of it was delivered

to plaintiffs below, but again taken away by Stow and part

replevied back by plaintiffs. Stow always retaining portions of

the engine in his own possession, which he converted to his own
use.

Stow made an assignment in bankruptcy under the general

bankrupt law
;
petition filed January 17th, 1843. In the schedule

of his effects was the following item : ".7b/m Yarivood Si' Co.

Unsettled account, $700. From the above I claim the right to

deduct certain portions of an engine noiv in my possession."

Final decree and order of discharge was made September

29th, 1843.

The introduction of the copy of the record of proceedings in

Stow's bankruptcy was objected to on the ground that it was no
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bar to the right of recoupment. The objection was overruled,

and exception taken by defendant below. The defendant asked

the court to instruct the jury, " That if the jury believe, from

the evidence, that plaintifi's were indebted to defendant for re-

pairs made to the steam engine property, the subject of this

action and of evidence, at the time this action was commenced,
they must allow the claim or the repairs to be recouped against

plaintiff's claim for damages." Which instruction the court

refused as asked for, but gave it, having qualified it by adding,
" But if the jury shall find, that subsequent to the accruing of

such account for repairs, the defendant took the benefit of the

bankrupt law of the United States, and was decreed a bankrupt,

then such claim was by that act transferred to the assignee in

bankruptcy, and defendant cannot interpose such claim in this

suit by way of recoupment or otherwise. After such decree,

the plaintiffs became liable to the assignee for the value of the

repairs."

Exception taken by defendant to this refusal and qualification.

Verdict of the jury for plaintiffs, $800.
The defendant below brings the case to this court by writ of

error.

A. W. WiNDETT, for Plaintiff in Error.

HoYNE & Miller, for Defendants in Error.

Caton, C. J. This case has been here before, and is reported

in 14 HI. R. 424. The facts are substantially now as there

stated, except that it now appears, that after the cause for

which this action was brought, and the claim which we then

decided might be set up in recoupment of the damages, had
accrued. Stow, who offers to recoup his claim for work done on
the engine, in reduction of the damages to which Yarwood is

entitled for the conversion, has made an assignment in bank-

ruptcy, under the general bankrupt law, and obtained his dis-

charge. This, the court below held, transferred Stow's claim

for repairs to his assignee in bankruptcy, to whom alone Yar-
wood is bound to make satisfaction for those repairs, and that it

cannot now be used in reduction of the plaintifl''s damages. In

this we think the court erred. It is true, that everything that

was due to Stow, from Yarwood and all others, passed to his

assignee ; but they passed to him subject to all equities and de-

fenses of every description which existed against them in the

hands of Stow. This is a principle recognized everywhere.

What, then, was the legal and equitable position of this claim

which is now offered in recoupment, at the time the legal title
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to it passed to the assignee ? It was, in equity, paid and satis-

fied, or at least liable to be extinguished by reason of the claim,

for damages which Yarwood then had against Stow, for the con-

version of the engine for the repairs of which the claim origi-

nated. Had the assignee sued Yarwood for these repairs, the

latter could have set up the damages which had accrued to him
by reason of the conversion of the engine by Stow, and this

right of recoupment must be reciprocal. If this right of set-off

qr recoupment existed in one, it necessarily existed in the other.

And as the assignee in bankruptcy is but a volunteer, it is in no
respect changed by the assignment. It would hardly be denied,

that if, at the time of the assignment, mutual demands had ex-

isted, arising out of contract, which by the ordinary rules of
law might be set off, one against the other, such right of set-ofF

would remain unaffected by the bankrupt's assignment. It is

none the less so in this case. The recoupment is allowed on the

principle of an equitable set-oft". It is an equitable right recog-

nized by and enforced in a court of law. And, as before

remarked, all equities remain unaffected by the assignment.

We think the court should have allowed the recoupment,
notwithstanding the assignment in bankruptcy.

The judgment must be reversed and the cause remanded.
Judg'ment reversed.

Francis K. Dunshee, Appellant, v. Harmon Hill, Appellee.

APPEAL EROM WINNEBAGO COUNTY COURT.

"Where the evidence is sufficient to warrant the finding of the ju;y, and the instruc-

tions fairly state the law of the case, the judgment will be affirmed.

Where a sjDecial contract to deliver stone is entered into between two parties, and
thej^ agree that a third party may perform the contract, that third party may sue

as on an original undertaking.

This suit was commenced before a justice of the peace in

Winnebago county, and taken by appeal to the County Court,

where it was tried before Miller, Judge, and a jury.

The decision does not require a further statement of the case.

Lathrop & Brown, for Appellant.

L. F. Warner, for Appellee.



500 OTTAWA,

Mclntire, Assignee, etc. v. Benson et al.

Breese, J. The questions in this cause arise out of the

instructions given for the plaintiff, and the refusal to give the

instructions asked on behalf of the defendant.

We have looked carefully into the instructions given and
refused, and can perceive no error in the ruling of the court in

regard to them.

The plaintiff's instructions place the law of the case, on the

facts proved, fairly before the jury. A special contract to de-

liver the stone was set up, between the defendant, Dunshee, and
Pennock, Sterling & Co., which Hill, by arrangement between
all the parties, performed. All parties agreeing that Hill should

finish the contract, he can sue as on an original undertaking by
himself.

The evidence in the case fully sustains the finding of the jury.

This being the view we entertain of the case, the defendant's

instructions were properly refused. The judgment is affirmed.

Judg-ment affirmed.

James E. McIntire, Assignee of Joseph C. Tiffany, Ap-
pellant, ^'. Francis H. Benson, James S. Beach and
Fayette S. Buckley, Appellees.

APPEAL FROM COOK.

A clause in a deed of assignment, that the assignee covenants and agrees to exe-
cute the trust faithfully, according to the stipulations therein contained, being
responsible only for his actual receipts and willful defaults, makes the deed
fraudulent and void.

This was an action commenced in the Cook County Court of

Common Pleas by the appellant, plaintiff' below.

Declaration filed December 11th, 1856, alleging that said de-

fendants, in November last, seized and took certain personal

property, consisting of bricks, lumber and horses, and the im-

plements for making brick, of the value of four thousand two
hundred and seventy-seven dollars and thirty-two cents, of the

said plaintiff, as assignee, and converted and disposed of them
to their own use.

Pleas—First, the general issue ; second, defendants, in several

amended pleas, recite three several judgments rendered in said

court against Joseph C. Tiffany ; that executions were issued

upon these judgments, and levied by the defendants. Beach and
Buckley, upon the property described in the declaration, as

sheriff and deputy sheriff of Cook county, and allege that the
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property set forth in the declaration is not the property of the

plaintiff, but is the property of the said Joseph C. Tiffany,

General replication filed, alleging that the property described

in the declaration and pleas is the property of said plaintiff,

and concluding to the country.

Issue came on to be tried March 12th, 1857, before J. M.
Wilson, Judge of said court, and a jury. It was admitted by
the counsel on both sides that the judgments mentioned in the

amended pleas were properly rendered, executions properly

issued, and levied by the defendants Beach and Buckley, the

then acting sheriff and deputy sheriff of said county, upon the

property mentioned in the declaration, and taken into their

possession.

The assignment of Joseph C. Tiffany, for the benefit of his

creditors, to James E. Mclntire, with schedules "A" and "B,"
was offered in evidence by plaintiff and objected to by defend-

ants, on the ground that it was void per se, by reason of its con-

taining this clause :
" And the said party of the second part

hereby covenants and agrees to execute said trust faithfully, ac-

cording to the stipulations herein contained, being responsible

only for his actual receipts and willful defaults." This objection

was sustained by the court, the assignment excluded and
exceptions taken.

Verdict rendered for defendants, under the instructions of the

court.

D. P. Wilder, for Appellant.

D. L. Eastman, for Appellees.

Breese, J. The only question presented for our consideration

by this record is, as to the effect, in a voluntary deed of assign-

ment, of the following clause, viz :

"And the said party of the second part hereby covenants and
agrees to execute said trust faithfully, according to the stipula-

tions herein contained, being responsible only for his actual re-

ceipts and willfid defaults."

We think this clause makes the deed fraudulent and void, for

these reasons : that as trustee, the assignee is bound to manage
the trust property for the benefit of the creditors with all the

care and caution and diligence of a prudent owner, and, so far

is this rule extended, that however fully a discretionary power
of management may have been given, yet if the trustee omits

doing what would be plainly beneficial, he will be answerable.

Willis on Trustees, 8 Law Lib. 125—169.
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And he should exercise the same care and solicitude that a
prudent person or a man of reasonable or ordinary diligence

would use for himself, and consequently, he ought to be 'liable

for every loss sustained by reason of his negligence, want of

caution or mistake, as well as for positive or willful misconduct,

or by omitting to do what is plainly beneficial for the estate

;

for notwithstanding the utmost latitude is given them for con-

ducting the trust, they would still be liable for a breach of trust.

lb. 172, 173, 174 ; 2 Kent's Com. 230.

The principle is a sound and a safe one, that every provision in

a deed of assignment exempting the assignee from any liability

he is by law subject to as assignee, is, of itself, a badge of fraud.

The exemption in this clause is too broad, and not qualified

by the stipulation that he will faithfully execute the trust, for

this covenant precedes the exemption—the exemption really qual-

ifying the undertaking to discharge the trust faithfully, " being

responsible only for his actual receipts and willful defaults."

Being bound by law for more than this, he attempts an ex-

emption from the full measure of the liability which the law
attaches to the office of trustee. It is not an absolute, uncon-

ditional and unqualified surrender and appropriation of the

debtor's property for the payment of his debts, for on its

face it protects the assignee in a degree of negligence which
would certainly delay and defraud creditors, and might greatly

benefit the debtor. It is the policy of the law to hold the assignee

personally liable, and he must be able to respond. If he is ex-

empted from personal liability, the creditors are exposed to loss.

The law binds him to due diligence, and he cannot stipulate that

he shall be responsible only for willful defaults, which is no
more nor less than gross negligence.

The effect of the assignment being to withdraw the property

from the reach of creditors pursuing their legal remedies, and
to place it in the hands of an assignee of the debtor's own se-

lection, where it may be wasted and lost unless he chooses to

exercise a much greater degree of diligence than he has under-

taken to bestow upon it, shows the impropriety of such a pro-

vision. He is exonerated from the principal legal liabilities of

a trustee, and such is the practical operation of th& assignment

as expressed on its face, and plainly discloses an intent to hin-

der and delay creditors; or why the stipulation? If losses

happen for the want of proper diligence, it must fall on the

creditors, and a failing debtor cannot be permitted to put at

hazard the trust fund which justly belongs to his creditors by
authorizing the trustee to manage it without due prudence and
caution. Litchfield v. White, 3 Selden E,. 445.



APRIL TERM, 1858. 503

Mclntire, Assignee, etc. r. Benson et al.

The covenant that he will discharge the trust " faithfully,

according to the stipulations herein contained," is qualified and
controlled by that which immediately follows, "being responsible

only for his actual receipts and willful defaults," and which ex-

onerates him from the liability the law imposes on him as trustee.

We have been referred to the case of Jacobs v. Allen, 18
Barbour R. 549, as a later decision than that of Litchfield y.

White ^ and as in conflict with it. The last case is not referred

to in Jacobs v. Allen. In this case we prefer the reasoning in

the dissenting opinion of the court, but it has in no view any

authority with this court. Besides, it differs very considerably

from this case. In that case the covenant that he would faith-

fully execute the trust follows the exemption claimed—that not-

withstanding I shall not be responsible except for willful default,

yet I will nevertheless faithfully execute the trust according to

the law governing such an office. In this case the covenant

faithfully to perform precedes the exemption claimed, and the

exemption destroys the covenant—thus, I will faithfully execute

the trust, but I will not be responsible except for willful defaults

;

or, I will faithfully execute the trust, on condition that I shall

be liable for gross negligence only.

We have examined all the authorities cited on both sides.

Comments on them are unnecessary.

To make such a deed valid, the debtor's property must be

unconditionally and without restriction transferred to the

assignee, with a general authority to him to receive, hold and
dispose of it for the equal benefit of all the creditors. He then

becomes a trustee for such creditors, and is bound by all the

rules that govern trustees, from the operation of which an ex-

emption cannot be stipulated.

To hold this clause valid, would be to say in effect that the

assignment need not be unconditional. This we cannot say.

A proper regard for safety suggests the propriety of as few
special clauses in deeds of this kind as possible. If they are

unusual, they are regarded with great suspicion. Fraud is sup-

posed to be concealed in their provisions, and with that taint

upon them they must die.

The great and indispensable requisite in all voluntary assign-

ments by debtors, is good faith; the great and fatal objection,

fraud, or the intent to defraud creditors.

The judgment of the court below is affirmed.

Judgment afprmed.
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Jacob Claypool ei al, Appellants, v. Archibald McAllis-

ter et al., Appellees.

appeal from will.

Where a party who had been keeping a ferry near to another ferry, leased his boat

to be used by the person keeping the other ferry, he will not be held liable for an
accident occurring on the boat while in the use of another.

Nor will the party who owned the boat be liable for not maintaining a ferry, in an
action on the case for an injury to animals, while the boat was in the use of

another ferry keeper.

A ferryman has the absolute right to direct what position each person shall take on
the boat, without reference to priority of arrival at the ferry. If a party shall

not be ferried in proper time, he must seek his remedy by action.

This was an action on the case brought by appellees against

appellant.

The plaintiffs allege, that on the first day of November,
1854, they delivered to the defendants, being then and there

the owners, duly licensed, of a certain ferry across the Illinois

river, at Morris, and common carriers, and defendants, as such
owners and occupants of said ferry, and common carriers, re-

ceived from the plaintiffs upon the ferry boat of defendants, a

span of horses, harness, and wagon loaded with stoves, to be by
defendants ferried across the Illinois river at Morris, for reward

;

and the defendants so being such ferrymen and common carriers,

and their servants and agents, so carelessly behaved and con-

ducted themselves in the premises, that by and through the

carelessness, negligence and default of defendants and their

servants and agents in the premises, the said horses, harness,

wagon, etc., were wholly lost.

That on the 14th day of Nov., 1850, the defendants obtained

a license to keep a ferry across the Illinois river, at a point be-

tween the S. frac. of the N. E. i of Sec. No. 9, R. 7, and the

E. i of block 17 of the canal addition to Morris, for five years

from the 27th day of Feb., 1851, provided the defendants

should enter into a bond to keep said ferry in all respects in

accordance with the statute, and should pay a certain tax named
in said order ; that defendants complied with the requisitions

aforesaid, and accepted the powers and franchises so granted,

and afterwards, to wit, on the first day of April, 1851, at the

place mentioned in said license, did establish the ferry across

the Illinois river.

And plaintiffs aver, that by reason of the acceptance by the

defendants of said powers and franchises, it became and was
the duty of defendants to be furnished and provided at that

place with good tight boat or boats, of sufficient number, dimen-



APRIL TERM, 1858. 505

Claypool et al. v. McAllister et al.

sions, etc., for the transportation of all passengers, teams, etc.,

and with men of sufficient number, skill and strength to manage
the same.

And plaintiffs aver that on the first day of Nov., 1854, at the

place of the ferry aforesaid, upon the ferry boat so as aforesaid

furnished by said defendants, they delivered one span of horses,

wagon, etc., to be ferried across the river for certain toll in that

behalf.

That on the day aforesaid, and previously, the defendants

neglected and omitted to provide themselves with a good tight

boat or boats, but the boats furnished were old and leaky, with-

out sufficient rigging or implements, and did neglect and omit

to furnish suitable small craft, and did neglect and omit to fur-

nish said boats with men of sufficient number, strength and skill

to manage the same, and by reason of such insufficiency of said

boat, rigging and implements, and the carelessness and indis-

cretion of the men upon the same, and the insufficiency of the

number of the men, and the omission to furnish any small craft,

etc., the horses, wagon, and other property of the plaintiffs, were
thrown into the river, and the horses were drowned and the

other property damaged.
Plea, general issue.

There was a change of venue to Will county on petition of

plaintiffs.

There was proof that defendants established a ferry at Morris

in the spring of 1851, under a license for five years.

Evan Roberts testified, that he drove the team that was
drowned : the property belonged to plaintiffs ; that they went
on to a ferry boat at Morris, in Grundy county ; that they went
overboard from the ferry boat into the river, and the horses

were drowned and the property damaged; that the cause of the

accident was a want of sufficient bars or chains across the ends

of the ferry boat, and there was no sufficient small craft to

assist in saving the horses after they went over. The ferry was
at Morris ; there were two ferry boats connected together ; the

boat farthest from shore, and from which the team went off",

was called the Claypool boat, and that the man who directed

him what place to take upon the boat was called Slyter.

John McCrary showed, that the team of the plaintiff's was
drowned and their property injured, at a ferry in Morris, and
showed the amount of the loss, and that the boats were deficient

in not having chains or bars at the end, and that the ferriage

was paid. There was no other ferry at that time near that

;

I know the boat the team went off" from was the Claypool boat

;

Slyter had the boat at that time, and was working it ; Slyter

was running the ferry at that time ; know that he had charge of

33
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the ferry sometime before the accident ; did not see either of

the Claypools about the ferry that summer, except when crossing

as passengers.

C. M. Gould testified. I reside at Morris ; have resided

there twelve years ; William E. Armstrong originally run a

ferry at Morris ; Mr. Claypool run a ferry at Morris after Arm-
strong did ; a free ferry company also run a boat there ; Mr.

Ciapp was the ferryman for the free company ; a part of the

time he run the boat for whatever he could get ; a Mr. Slyter

run the same ferry after him in 1854 ; Slyter was running the

ferry ; Clapp used the boat that Claypool had run when he,

Clapp, was running under the free ferry company ; Slyter used

it after he had got the ferry of Clapp. Claypools commenced
running their ferry in the year 1850 or 1851 ; Claypools had
two boats then ; they charged and received ferriage ; two boats

were attached together in the summer, or early in the fall of

1851 ; one of the boats belonged to the Claypools, the other to

the free ferry company ; I knew the Claypool boat from the

time it was first put on ; I never knew any chains or bars across

the end of it ; the ferriage was done by the Claypool ferry for

any one except for the members of the free ferry company

;

Clapp and Anderson made an agreement with the free ferry

company for their boat, and then hired the Claypool boat

;

Clapp and Anderson then let Slyter have both boats, who after-

wards run the ferry.

Alonzo Keith testified. I was at the ferry in Morris at the

time plaintiffs' horses were drowned ; Slyter had charge of

and was running the ferry ; the driver disobeyed Slyter's

instructions.

Curtis Cobler testified, that he was present at the time of the

accident, and that the boats were in good repair ; Mr. Slyter

had charge of that ferry at the time of the accident.

Isaac N. Fitch. The testimony of this witness tended to

show that he was present when the team was drowned ; that the

driver of the team disobeyed the orders of the ferryman ; that

the team was drowned from his neglect. A man by the name
of Slyter had charge of the ferry at that time.

Andrew Ober. Deposition read by defendants.

The testimony of this witness tended to show that the acci-

dent was occasioned by the fault of the driver of the team, in

disobeying the instructions of the ferryman ; that Mr. Slyter

was running the ferry, and gave directions as to the teamster

about placing his team on the boat.

Jos. James testified, that he was present at the time the team
was drowned ; that the accident happened solely from the fault

of the driver of the team. Mr. Slyter was on the ferry at that
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time ; think he had charge of it ; seemed to have most to say-

about it ; Mr. Slyter gave directions to the drivers of the teams
in relation to their order of coming on the boat.

Allan W. Slyter testified as follows : One of the boats was
owned by the Claypools, and the other by the Morris Free Ferry
Company ; I controlled the boats at the time, and received the

money for the ferriage, or my hands did for me, for my own
use ; the ferry had been erected by William Clapp, and put by
him into the hands of Smith, Clapp & Anderson, and I gave
them, a stipulated price for what I could make out of it, tc^ the

expiration of their time ; the agreement between myself. Smith,

Clapp & Anderson, was, that I was to pay them a stipulated

price for the use of the ferry during the balance of their term,

and they were to deliver the ferry to me clear and free from all

incumbrance, and in good running order ; the accident happened
while I was running the ferry.

The jury found a verdict for the plaintiffs for $479.
The defendants moved for a new trial. The court overruled

the motion, and the defendants appealed.

Glover & Cook, for Appellants. .

W. K. JMcAllister, for Appellees.

Caton, C. J. This action was brought against the defend-

ants, as ferrymen, for the loss of property from their ferry boat.

The evidence shows that the defendants had a license to run a

ferry at Morris, and under that license they established a ferry,

and for a time run the boat from which the team was lost.

That they subsequently leased this boat to other parties who
were running a rival ferry near by, and that while the boat was
in the possession of, and being run as a ferry by those other

parties, the team was received on the boat by the parties who
had thus rented the boat, and while it was being ferried over

the river was lost. It may be inferred that the defendants had
ceased to run a ferry under their license. Under this state of

facts the court instructed the jury that the defendants were
liable for the loss to the plaintiffs.

In this case it is unnecessary to say whether the ferry license

of the defendants could be assigned or not. Slyter did not

profess to run the ferry under the defendants' license. The
only connection the defendants had with this ferry was that

they had leased one of the boats, which was used for that ferry.

This created no greater obligation against them for losses which
might occur from its bad management or the carelessness of the

ferryman, than as if they had sold the boat absolutely. They
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sold its use for one year, and were to receive a compensation at

the rate of ten dollars per month for such use. As well might

the owner of the rope used, who had leased it to Slyter, be

held responsible for its improper or negligent use. Indeed,

there would be as much propriety in holding the man who built

the boat to the same responsibility.

Nor could the defendants be held responsible for this loss

because they neglected to keep up their ferry, as they were
bound to do under their license. Whatever liability they in-

curred for such neglect was in another form of action. As well

might the railroad company which neglects, or refuses to furnish

passage for a man, be held responsible for his death, when,
being thus compelled to start on foot, he falls down and breaks

his neck. No such liability attaches to such violation of legal

duty.

There is one other instruction which we deem it proper to

notice. It is this :
" That all persons had a right to be re-

ceived upon the ferry boat and conveyed across the river in

question, according to their arrival, or first coming to the ferry,

and if the team in question arrived first at the said ferry, the

driver thereof had the legal right to go upon the said boat on
its first passage over the river." The evidence showed that the

ferryman directed the plaintiffs' driver to take a different posi-

tion on the boat, and allow another team to go on first, and that

the driver refused to obey his orders. A witness also swore
that if the plaintiffs' team had taken the position assigned it by
the ferryman, the accident, most probably, would not have hap-

pened. As was held by this court, in the case of Fisher v. Clis-

bee, 12 111. R. 344, the ferryman must be the captain of the

ferrv boat, and must have the absolute right to assis-n to each

one his position on the boat. He best knows the capacity of

his boat, and is supposed to be most skilled in its management.
At any rate, there must be a head,—a controlling power to a

ferry, as well as anything else that is safely and successfully

conducted. If the ferryman abuses his powers, and refuses to

to take a passenger or a load on the first trip, when he could
safely do so, he would be liable to an action for damages ; but
still, the safety of all requires that he must be permitted to de-

termine when and how he can safely take a passenger, a team,

or a load. But of all others, the claim here set up by the

driver, was the most groundless. What difference, in point of

right, whether he was put in the middle of the boat instead of

the end ? The instruction was improperly given.

The judgment must be reversed and the cause remanded.
Judgment 7'eversed.
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James McFadden, Appellant, v. Bartholomew Fortier,

Appellee.

APPEAL PROM PEORIA.

A proceeding by scire facias to foreclose a mortgage, is a proceeding in rem, and
the writ is both process and declaration, and defects therein can be reached by
demurrer.

A ".scire facias " should, like other process, run in the name of the people, etc.

;

if not, it is void on its face, and may be reached by general demurrer, though a
motion to quash would be more proper.

If a party withdraws his demurrer and pleads over, it is a waiver of the error.

A scire facias, not running in the name of the people, may be amended.
If a scire facias sets out a mortgage not under seal, a mortgage under seal is not

admissible in evidence under it.

A demurrer to an amended plea may be carried back to a scirefacias or declaration,
if judgment under them could be arrested for defects in them, but not in

a case where appearance and pleading has cured the error.

Upon a scire facias to foreclose a mortgage given for the purchase money of land,

a plea, which avers that the vendor represented himself to be the owner of the
land in fee simple, which he was not, etc., and that the vendee has since acquired
the legal title from the real owners, etc., is defective, unless it also avers that

the vendee relied upon such representations, and was thereby induced to take
the conveyance.

In applying payments, the interest is first to be satisfied, and if the payment ex-
ceeds the interest, the balance is to be applied in diminution of the principal.

If the payment falls short of the interest due, the balance of interest is not to be
added to the principal, but remains as interest, to be satisfied by the next ade-
quate payment. The interest is first to be paid.

The writ issued in this case was in the words and figures

following

:

State of Illinois,

County of Peoria, \
' To the Sheriff of Peoria county, in

the State of Illinois, Greeting :

Whereas, on the 14th day of August, A. D. 1854, Bartholo-

mew Fortier filed in the office of the Circuit Court of said

county, a precipe- in substance as follows, to wit :

Bartholomew Fortiek )

vs. > In Peoria Circuit Court. To Sept. Term, A. D. 1 854.

James McFaddex. )

The clerk of said court will please issue writ of scirefacias to foreclose mortgage

herewith filed in the above entitled cause, returnable to said term.

[Signed] MANNING & MERRIMAN,
Attorneys for Plaintiff.

And whereas, also, on the same day was filed in said office a
mortgage, in substance as follows, to wit

:

This Deed, made this seventeenth day of April, in the year of our Lord one

thousand eight hundred and forty-nine, between James McFadden, of Peoria, in

the county of Peoria, and State of Illinois, of the first part, and Bartholomew

Fortier, of the county of St. Clair, in the State aforesaid, of the second part, wit-
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nesseth : That the said party of the first part, for and in consideration of the sum
of five thousand dollars, paid by the said party of the second part, the receipt of

which is hereby acknowledged, doth by these presents grant, bargain and sell unto

the said party of the second part, his heirs and assigns, a certain tract or parcel of

land, containing fifty-four thousand eight hundred and ninety-eight square feet and

fourteen-hundredths of a square foot, surveyed and designated as covered by claims

one, eleven, forty-one and forty-two, in the south-east fractional quarter of fractional

section nine, in township eight north, of range eight east of the fourth principal me-

ridian, in Illinois, according to the survey approved 1st Sept., 1840, by the surveyor

of the public lands in the States of Illinois and Missouri, in which said lots are par-

ticularly described in a certain patent from the President of the United States to

the legal representatives of Francis Welette, and their heirs, dated the 28th day of

August, A. D. 1845. To have and to hold the said premises as above described,

together with all and singular the hereditaments and appurtenances thereto be-

longing, or in anywise appertaining, to the said party of the second part, his heirs

and assigns, forever.

And the said party of the first part, for himself and his heirs, executors, and

administrators, doth hereby covenant to and with the said party of the second

part, his heirs and assigns, that he is well seized of the premises above conveyed,

as of good and indefeasible estate in fee simple, and has good right to sell and con-

vey the same in manner and form as aforesaid ; that they are free from all incum-

brance, and that the above bargained premises in the quiet and peaceable posses-

sion of the said party of the second part, his heirs or assigns, against the claims of

all persons whomsoever, he will forever warrant and defend. Provided, never-

theless, that if the said party of the first part, his heirs, executors or administra-

tors, shall well and truly pay to the said party of the second part, his heirs, admin-

istrators or assigns, the just and full sum of five thousand dollars, in manner

specified as follows : That is to say, six hundred dollars cash down, four hundred

dollars 1st of November, 1849, and the residue in equal annual payments of one

thousand dollars each, as specified in certain promissory notes bearing even date

herewith, then this deed, as also certain notes bearing even date with this

indenture, given by the said party of the first part to the said party of the

second part, conditioned to pay the said sum of money at the time aforesaid,

shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and virtue.

In testimony whereof, the said party of the first part hath hereunto set his hand

and seal, the day and year first above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered )

in presence of
[

JAMES McFADDEN.
H. J. RUGG. )

Upon which mortgage is a certificate of Jacob Gale, clerk of

the Circuit Court within and for the county of Peoria, an oilicer

authorized by law to take acknowledgments of deeds, of the

acknowledgment of the execution of said mortgage, by said James
McFadden, the maker thereof, which certificate is in substance

as follows, to wit

:

STATE OF ILLINOIS, )

PEORIA COUNTY,
J

I, Jacob Gale, Clerk of the Circuit Court within

and for said county, do certify that on this day personally appeared before me,

James McFadden, whose name appears subscribed to the foregoing deed of con-
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veyance, as having executed the same, and who is personally known to me to be

the real person who and in whose name the acknowledgment is proposed to be

made, and acknowledged the execution thereof as his voluntary act and deed for

the uses and purposes therein expressed.

Given under my hand and seal of said court at Peoria, this seventeenth day of

April, eighteen hundred and forty-nine.

Ll. s.] JACOB GALE, Clerk.

Which said mortgage was duly executed and recorded in the

recorder's office of Peoria county, and the whole of the money
secured to be paid by the same, has become due.and payable.

And the said plaintiff further avers that the said promissory
notes in the mortgage referred to, are in substance as follows

:

$1,000.—On the first day of November, 1850, I promise to pay Bartholomew

Fortier, one thousand dollars, with six per cent, interest.

April 17, 1849. JAMES McFADDEN.

$1,000.—On the first day of November, 1851, I promise to pay Bartholomew
Fortier one thousand dollars, with six per cent, interest.

April 17, 1849. JAMES McFADDEN.

$1,000.—On'the first day of November, 1852, I promise to pay Bartholomew

Fortier one thousand dollars, with six per cent, intei-est.

April 17, 1849. JAMES McFADDEN.

$1,000.—On the first day of November, 1853, I promise to pay Bartholomew

Fortier one thousand dollars, with six per cent, interest.

April 17, 1849. JAMES McFADDEN.

And for that whereas the said plaintiif avers that the said

defendant, although often requested so to do, hath not paid the

said sums of money mentioned in said notes referred to in said

mortgage, and secured to be paid by said mortgage, with interest

according to the tenor of said notes, or any part thereof, or the

accruing interest thereon, to the said plaintiff, nor hath any per-

son paid the same or any part thereof to the said plaintiff, for

the said defendant, but that the said sum of five thousand dol-

lars, being the amount of the notes secured to be paid by the

said mortgage, with interest thereon from maturity of said

notes, still remains due and unpaid.

You are therefore commanded to summon the said James
McFadden, if he be found in your county, to be and appear be-

fore the Circuit Court of Peoria county, on the first day of the

next term thereof, to be holden at Peoria, in and for said county,

on the second Monday of September next, to show cause, if any
he has, why judgment should not be rendered for such sum ot

money as may be found to be due by virtue of said mortgage,
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and a special v^r'it o? fieri facias requiring the property mort-

gaged to be sold to satisfy such judgment.
Witness, Jacob Gale, Clerk of said county, and the

[seal.] seal thereof, at Peoria, this 14th day of August, A.D.
1854. Jacob Gale, Clerk.

The defendant demurred to the writ, which was overruled.

The defendant then filed three pleas, to the first and second of

which the plaintiff replied.

1st. That the mortgage was not his.

2nd. Payment.
3rd. Fraud, etc. The plea is in substance as follows : And

for further plea in this behalf, the said defendant says actio non,

because he says that the said mortgage was, with said notes,

given to secure the' payment of the purchase money for the land

therein described, and that on the same day of the making and
execution of said notes and mortgage, to wit, on the 17th day
of April, A. D. 1849, and as constituting a part and parcel of

the same contract, and as a consideration for the same, the said

Bartholomew Fortier and Angelica his wife, made, executed and
delivered to the defendant, a deed for the said land in said

mortgage described, in substance as follows :

This Indenture, made this seventeenth day of April, A. D. 1849, between

Bartholomew Fortier and Angelica his wife, of St. Clair county, in the State of

Illinois, of the first part, and James McFadden, of Peoria, in the county of Peoria

and State of Illinois, of the second part, Witnesseth, That the said parties of the

first part, for and in consideration of the sum of five thousand dollars to them paid

and secured to be paid by the said party of the second part, the receipt whereof is

hereby acknowledged, have granted, bargained and sold, and by these presents do

grant, bargain and sell unto the said party of the second part, and to his heirs and

assigns forever, in fee simple, the following described lots or tract of land, that is

to say, the lot or lots containing fifty-four thousand eight hundred and ninety-eight

square feet and fourteen-hundredths of a square foot, surveyed and designated as

covered by claims numbered one, eleven, forty-one and forty-two, in the south-east

fractional quarter of fractional section nine, in township eight north, of range

eight cast of the fourth principal meridian, in Illinois, according to the survey

approved September 1, 1840, by the surveyor of the public lands in tlie States of

, Illinois and Missouri, which said lots are particularly described in a certain patent

from the President of the United States to the legal representatives of Francis

"VVilitte and their heirs, dated the 28th day of August, A. D. 1845, to which, for

greater certainty, reference is hereby made.

To have and to hold the premises aforesaid to the said party of the second part,

and to his heirs and assigns forever. And the said parties of the first part do, for

themselves and their heirs, covenant and agree with the said party of the second

part, that the said Angelica, wife of the said Bartholomew Fortier, is the sole heir

and legal representative of Francis Wilitte, mentioned and described in the patent
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aforesaid, and that they will warrant and defend the title to the said premises

against all persons claiming the same from, by or through the said parties of the

first part.

Witness our hands and seals the day and year above written.

his

BARTHOLOME^y X FORTIER. [seal.]

mark.

her

ANGELICA X FORTIER. [seal.]

mark.

Witness : H. J. Rudd.

Witnesses to the signature of Mrs. Fortier,

John Engleman,
D. W. Hopkins,
Andrew Grimes.

And the said defendant avers, that the said premises in the

said deed and in the said mortgage described, are one and the

same premises, and not other or diflferent.

And the said defendant further avers, that at the time of the

making and execution of the deed aforesaid, the said Angelica,

wife of the said jjlaintiflf, was not the sole heir and legal repre-

sentative of the said Francis Wilitte ; and that as to the land

purported to be conveyed by said deed, she was not the heir or

legal representative of the said Wilitte, and that neither she nor

the said plaintiff had, at the time aforesaid, any interest in or

title to said real estate, nor any part thereof, either in posses-

sion, remainder, reversion, or otherwise however; and this he

is ready to verify. Wherefore he prays judgment, etc.

The plaintiff below interposed a demurrer to the third plea.

Demurrer was sustained, and leave was given to amend.
The following amendment to the third plea was filed

:

Bartholomew Fortier, ^ In the Circuit Court of Peoria county.

vs. > Sci. Fa. on Mortgage.

James McFadden.
)

Amendment to third plea.

And the said defendant further avers, that at the time of

making and executing the said deed in said plea mentioned, the

said plaintiff falsely and fraudulently represented to the said

defendant that the said Angelica, wife of the said plaintiff, was
the owner in fee simple of said land in said deed and mortgage
described ; and the defendant avers that the said Angelica was
not the owner in fee simple of said land, nor any part thereof,

neither had she, at the time, any interest in the same, either in

possession, remainder or reversion ; and that since the execu-

tion of said mortgage, said defendant has purchased the legal

title and acquired possession of the said land from the real

owners of the same.

To the plea, as amended, the plaintiff demurred, and the

court sustained the demurrer.
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On the trial there was a verdict for plaintiif. The defendant

entered a motion for a new trial.

The plaintift' ofiered in evidence a mortgage dated April 17,

1849, which was the same as that set out in writ, except that

the word " in " is omitted, and that it had a seal.

The plaintiff offered four notes in evidence.

Plaintiff admitted payments amounting to five hundred and
ten dollars.

The plaintiff asked the following instructions, which were
given

:

1. The rule of counting interest, where payments have been
made, in this case is, that the payments shall be first applied in

the payment of interest. The payment is to be deducted from
the amount of principal and interest then due, and the remain-

der is to constitute the principal on which interest is to be cal-

culated until the next payment, and so on.

2. If the payment does not amount to the interest at the

time of its being made, then the principal, as then due, is to be

constituted the principal on which interest is to be calculated,

until the payment or payments exceed the amount of interest,

when the amount of the payment is to be deducted from the sura

of interest and principal and interest as above stated, and the

remainder is to form the principal on which interest is to be

calculated—following these rules until the computation of inter-

est is ended. If the payments at any time do not exceed the

amount of interest then due, no interest is to be calculated upon
the payments up to that time.

The defendant entered a motion for a new trial, which was
overruled, and the defendant excepted.

The defendant appealed.

The plaintiff now assigns the following errors on the record

:

The court below erred in overruling the demurrer to the writ.

The court erred in sustaining the demurrer to the third plea

of the defendant below.

The court erred in not extending the demurrer to the writ.

The court admitted improper evidence on the part of the

plaintiff.

The court gave improper instructions on the part of the plaintifi".

The court erred in the rule laid down computing interest.

The court erred in overruling the motion for a new trial.

H. Grove, for Appellant.

Manning & Merriman, for Appellee.
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Breese, J. This is a proceeding by scire facias to foreclose a

mortgage. To the writ a general demurrer was filed, which the

court overruled, and leave was given to withdraw the demurrer

and plead.

The defendant then filed three pleas, and to one of them, the

third, there was a demurrer, which was sustained, and leave

given to amend ; and to this amended plea there was also a de-

murrer, which was also sustained.

The errors assigned question the correctness of these decisions.

The proceeding by scire facias to foreclose a mortgage, is a

proceeding in rem, and the writ is considered both as process

and declaration, and defects therein can be reached by demurrer.

Marshal v. Maury, 1 Scam. R. 231.

The defect in the writ is very apparent. It does not run in

the name of " the People of the State of Illinois," as the con-

stitution declares all writs and process shall run. The writ is

Toid on its face, and the objection can be raised by general de-

murrer, though it would be more proper to reach it by motion to

quash.

This court has decided that a fee-bill, which by law has the

force and effect of an execution, is void, if it does not run in

the name of the People of the State of Illinois. Reddick v.

Cloud's Adm'r, 2 Gilm. R. 678 ; Ferris v. Croiv, 5 ib. 100

;

and cases there cited. So in a criminal case, if the indictment

does not contain the words " in the name and by the authority

of the People of the State of Illinois." Breese R. 4.

The court should have sustained the demurrer to this scire

facias. But as the party withdrew the demurrer and pleaded

over, he cannot assign this as error, for by pleading, the de-

murrer is waived. Bucktnaster v. Grundy, 1 Scam. R. ; Gil-

bert V. Haggard, ib. 471. It has, however, been decided by

this court, Qhe President and Directors of the State Bank v.

N. Buckmaster, Breese R. 133,) in precisely such a case as this,

that the omission of, these words in a writ of sci. fa. is a mere
misprision of the clerk, and is amendable after a motion is made
to dismiss, on account of the omission. Here no motion was
made to amend.
On the trial, the mortgage was introduced as evidence, which,

showed an instrument under seal. That set out in the scire

facias, is not under seal. The variance is apparent, and the

mortgage therefore should have been excluded.

It is urged by the appellant that the demurrer to the amended
plea should be carried back to the declaration, although a de-

murrer had been overruled as to the scire facias.

As a general rule, when the declaration or scire facias is so

defective that the judgment would be arrested, the demurrer
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"would be carried back to it, and judgment given against the

party committing the first error. But in this case the judgment
would not be arrested on account of the imperfection of the

writ, for appearance and pleading cures the defect ; and this is

the rule even in the case of void process like this. Easton v.

Altum, 1 Scam. R. 250.

The demurrer was properly sustained to the third plea

amended, because it does not allege that he confided in and
relied upon the representations of the plaintiff as set out in the

plea. It is not shown they were the causes which induced the

execution of the deed.

The rule adopted for computing the interest was correct.

The rule is now nearly universal, that in casting interest on

notes, bonds, etc., upon which partial payments have been made,
every payment is to be first applied to keep down the interest,

but the interest is never allowed to form a part of the principal

so as to carry interest.

The correct rule in general is to calculate interest whenever
a payment is made ; to this interest- the payment is first to be

applied, and if it exceeds the interest due, the balance is to be

applied to diminish the principal. If the payment falls short of

the interest, the balance of interest is not to be added to the prin-

cipal so as to produce interest, but is to be set apart, to be extin-

guished, together with the accumulated interest, by the next

payment, and so on until final payment or judgment, the princi-

ple of the rule being that interest is to be first paid.

There is great uniformity in the courts of the different States

on the propriety of this rule. Lightfoot v. Price, 4 Hen. &
Mun. R. 431 ; Smith v. Shaw's Adm'r, 2 Wash. C. C. R. 167

;

Penrose v. Hart, 1 Dallas R. 379 ; 8 Serg. & R. 458 ; 1 Pick.

R. 194 ; 17 Mass. R. 417.

For the variance, however, between the mortgage set out in

the sci. fa. and the one offered in evidence, the judgment is

reversed and the cause remanded.
Judgtnent reversed.

Daniel W. Cokbin, PlaintifT in Error, v. Samuel E. Tur-

rill et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO COOK COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

Where a case is brought to a trial term of the Common Pleas Court, and there is

no evidence that a declaration with a rule to plead has been served, and if, before

any step is talten, a plea with affidavit of merits is filed, the defendant is in time

and his plea should not be stricken from the files, and a default entered—the

defendant is entitled to a trial on the merits.
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This action was commenced to the February term, 1856, but

service was not made at that term. Alias summons was made
returnable to the April term ; was served 31st March. On the

4th day of J-une, the general issue was filed by leave of the

court, and an afiidavit of merits.

No further order was taken until the 10th day of September,

when the plea was stricken from the file and a default entered,

and on the 12th day of September the damages were assessed

by the court, and judgment rendered for $149, or thereabouts.

W. B. ScATES, for Plaintiff in Error.

Hooper & Clements, for Defendants in Error.

Breese, J. Taking judgment by default in this case was
irregular. The action was brought to a regular trial term of

the Common Pleas of Cook county, and is, of course, governed

by the provisions of the act. to regulate the practice in that

court, approved February 12th, 1853. 1 Purple's Stat. 322.

By section three of that act, it is provided that any party

having commenced suit in said court, " shall be entitled to a

default at any vacation term, upon proof of due service of process

upon the defendant, and a copy of the declaration with a rule

to plead at least ten days before such term, unless such defen-

dant or the attorney of such defendant, if such defendant be a

resident of such county, shall, before the expiration of said ten

days, if the suit be founded on a contract, file a plea to said

action, and also an affidavit setting forth that he believes he has

a good defense to said suit upon the merits."

The record does not show that the provisions of this act were

in any respect complied with by the plaintiff below, prior to his

obtaining the default, except the proof of due service of the

process. No copy of the declaration with a rule to plead was
served on the defendant.

Before any step wlmtever was taken in the cause by the plain-

tifl", the defendant had filed his plea with an affidavit of merits.

He was in time before any movement by the plaintiff. Sec. 14.

The court should not, under such circumstances, strike a plea,

accompanied by an affidavit of merits, from the files, and default

the party. Castle et al. v. Judson et al.., 17 111. 381.

The judgment of the Court of Common Pleas is reversed and
the case remanded, with instructions to set aside the default,

to restore the plea to the files and award a venire, or otherwise

try the issue that may be presented, according to the rules and
practice of that court, and the laws of this State.

Judgment reversed.
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George Curtis, PlaintijQT in Error, v. Anson Root and
Thomas Avery, Defendants in Error.

error to KENDALL.

A, on the 5th of March, 1845, being the owner of certain premises, by an article

of agreement, granted, bargained, sold, aliened, conveyed and confirmed, etc., the

same unto B, for which B agreed to pay three thousand dollars in installments,

etc., upon the payment of one of which, B was to take possession. On full

payment, A was to give full deeds to B. Upon failure to pay any of the install-

ments, the contract was to be void at the election of A, who might reenter and
re-possess, etc. B took possession and commenced building, and continued in

possession fourteen months. B borrowed of A two sums of money, and exe-

cuted mortgages on the same premises to secure the payment of them. A and
B afterwards agreed, that on failure by B to pay any installment, A might reenter

by force, which he subsequently did, and held open possession. A foreclosed his

senior mortgage by scirefacias, and obtained execution, upon which the premises
were sold, and A was the purchaser. At the same term, C, a creditor of B,
obtained a judgment against B, upon which execution issued, upon which C, in

proper form, etc., redeemed from A, who took the money. The sheritf then
advertised on the execution in favor of C, and sold to D, and D conveyed to E,
all proceedings being regular. E brought ejectment against A, who all along
held possession ; held, that the first contract from A to B was a mere agreement
to sell, it appearing from the contract and circumstances that such was the inten-

tion of the parties; held further, that B had such an interest in the premises as

authorized him to mortgage them, and that A was not estopped from asserting

his title as the original vendor of the premises, by any act or omission of his,

and that E was, by the levy, redemption and purchase under D, placed in the

same position in which B stood by his relation and contracts with A.
The doctrine of estoppel considered and examined.

This was an action of ejectment, by plaintiff, against defen-

dant, commenced in the Kane Circuit Court, Nov. 18, 1850, and
afterwards taken by change of venue to Kendall county.

Prior to the 5th of March, 1845, Root, (defendant), was the

owner in fee of the property described in the declaration.

That on that day Root sold the property to Ruel Ambrose, by
an article of agreement, which states that Root, in consideration,

etc., "has granted, bargained, sold, aliened, conveyed, and con-

firmed, and by these presents doth grant, bargain, sell, etc.," the

property to Ambrose—this agreement was under seal.

For which Ambrose agreed to pay Root, three thousand dol-

lars, in six equal annual installments, except $40, which was to

be paid on the 23rd of May then next, and to apply on the first

installment of interest, etc., and Ambrose was then to have pos-

session, and the first installment was to be paid in one year from
the 23rd of May then next.

Root covenanted to give full deeds when Ambrose complied.

It was further agreed, that upon non-compliance by Ambrose
by payment, etc., Root might, at his election, declare it void, and
re-enter and possess the premises.
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The $40 was paid at the time agreed ; but no more was paid

by Ambrose on it. Ambrose entered into possession of the

premises, and commenced building a mill, and continued in

possession until July, 1846.

In July, 1845, Ambrose borrowed of Root, about $670, and
executed a mortgage to Root, to secure its payment, on the

premises ; this was payable in June, 1846.

In August, 1845, Ambrose borrowed of Root the further sum
of $1,568, and to secure this sum executed to Root another

mortgage on the same premises, payable September 1st, 1846.

The last mortgage has not been paid, or foreclosed, but is still

held by Root.

On the 20th day of May, 1846, Root and Ambrose entered

into another agreement, by which Root extended the time of

payment, of the first installment, until the 23rd of July then

next, and Ambrose covenanted that if he did not pay the install-

ment by that time, Root might put liim out of possession by force.

In pursuance of this agreement. Root took possession of the

premises in July, 1846, and has been in possession ever since,

Avery being in possession with him.

On the 30th of July, 1846, Root commenced suit by sci.fa. to

foreclose the first mortgage, and on the 31st of August, 1846, he

obtained judgment of foreclosure.

On the 24th of December, 1846, the premises were sold by
virtue of a special execution on said judgment of foreclosure, to

Root, for the amount of his judgment, and cost, etc., and a cer-

tificate of sale was issued to him.

At the same August term of court, 1846, one Thaddeus Spen-

cer obtained a judgment against Ambrose, for the sum of

$3,786.75 and costs, which judgment was afterwards assigned

to one Jonathan Haven.

On this judgment, execution issued, and in proper time and
form. Haven, in Spencer's name, redeemed from Root's sale, by
paying Root the amount of his bid, and ten per cent, interest,

which was received by Root. The premises were advertised by

the sheriff on Spencer's execution, and sold on the 5th of April,

1848, to said Haven, all id due form.

That afterwards Haven conveyed the premises to the plaintiff,

February 12, 1850.

The court found for the defendants, and plaintiff excepted,

and assigned for error, the finding of the court.

B. S. Morris, and Farnsworth & Burgess, for Plaintiff in

Error.

B, C. Cook, and W. B. Plato, for Defendants in Error.
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Breese, J. This is an action of ejectment brought by Curtis

against Root and AA'ery in the Kane Circuit Court, and by
change of venue tried in the Kendall Circuit Court, for a certain

lot of land and mill, in the town of Elgin. The cause was
tried by the court without a jury. The facts, as agreed, are

as follows

:

That on and prior to the 5tli day of March, 1845, the defen-

dant Root was the owner in fee of the property described in the

declaration. On that day he sold the property to one Ruel
Ambrose, by an article of agreement which states that Root, in

consideration, etc., "has granted, bargained, sold, aliened, con-

veyed and confirmed, and by these presents doth grant, bargain,

sell, alien, convey and confirm" unto the said Ambrose, the pro-

perty in controversy, for which Ambrose agreed to pay Root
three thousand dollars, in six equal annual installments, with
eight per cent, interest annually, except the sum of forty

dollars, which was to be paid on the 23rd of May then next,

and to apply on the first accruing interest, and Ambrose was
then to have possession, and the first installment was to be paid

in one year from the said 23rd of May. Root covenanted to give

full deeds on full payment by Ambrose. It was further agreed

that upon failure by Ambrose to pay any of the installments, the

contract was to be void, at Root's election, and he might re-enter

and repossess himself of the premises. The forty dollars was
paid at the time and indorsed on the agreement, but no more
was paid at any time by Ambrose.
Ambrose entered into possession of the premises and com-

menced building a flouring mill thereon about the 23rd of May,
1845, and continued in possession until July, 1846.

On the 23rd of July, 1845, Ambrose borrowed of Root six

hundred and seventy dollars, to be paid in June, 1846, and exe-

cuted a mortgage on these premises to secure the payment, which
was duly acknowledged and recorded.

On the 5th of August, 1845, Ambrose borrowed of Root the

further sum of $1,568, and executed to Root a like mortgage
on the premises to secure its payment, which was filed and re-

corded at the same time with the first mortgage. This last

mortgage has not been paid, or foreclosed, but is yet held by

Root.

On the 20th of May, 1846, Root and Ambrose entered into

another agreement, by w'hich Root extended the time of pay-

ment of the first installment to the 23rd of July, 1846, and
covenanted if he failed to pay it then, Root might put him out

of possession by force and enter himself into possession.

In pursuance of this agreement. Root entered and took posses

sion of the premises about the last of July, 1846, and has been
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in possession ever since, Avery being then in possession with

him.

On the 30th of July, 1846, Root commenced suit by scirefacias

to foreclose the first mortgage of July, 1845, and on the 81st of

August, 1846, he obtained judgment and a special execution.

On the 24th of December, 1846, the premises were sold by
virtue of said special execution to Root for the amount of his

judgment, and costs, and a certificate of sale delivered to him.

At the same August term, one Thaddeus Spencer obtained a
judgment against Ambrose for the sum of $8,786.75 and costs,

which judgment he afterwards assigned to one Jonathan Haven,
who, in Spencer's name, took out execution thereon in proper

time and in proper form. This execution he delivered to the

sheriff, together with a sufiicicnt amount of money to redeem the

premises from the sale made to Root under his first mortgage
judgment, which was done in proper time and form, and the re-

demption money paid to Root by the sheriff and by him received.

The premises were then advertised by the sheriff on Spencer's

execution, and sold on the 5th of April, 1848, to Haven, all in

due form. Haven, February 12th, 1850, conveyed the premises

to the plaintiff.

On these facts the court found for the defendant, and plaintiff

excepted, and assigns for error here this finding of the court.

The first question which presents itself is, what is the character

and effect of the agreement of i\Iarch 5th, 1845 ? The plaintiff

insists that the legal title passed to Ambrose by it, and that

it is, to all intents and purposes, a deed conveying the legal title.

The defendant insists that it was a mere agreement to sell.

To determine this question, the intention of the parties is to

be regarded, in this, as in all other cases, and that is to be ascer-

tained from the instrument itself, and concurring circumstances.

The instrument does not purport to be a deed, but " Articles

of Agreement made and concluded " on the day of their date,

with a covenant, that on payment of the money as agreed, Root,
" the party of the first part, shall and will without delay, imme-
diately, well and faithfully execute and deliver in person a
good and sufiicicnt full covenant deed, or deeds, and thereby

assign and convey to the said party of the second part, his

heirs and assigns, a good, perfect and unincumbered title in fee

simple to the above described premises, with their appurte-

nances." This is the language of the instrument, as to the

covenant on the part of Root.

But there is a mutual covenant, also, to be considered in ar-

riving at the intention of the parties, and this is it

:

" And it is mutually covenanted and agreed between the par-

ties hereto, that in case default shall be made in any of the

84
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payments, principal and interest, at the time or any of the

times above specified for the payment thereof, then this agree-

ment and all the preceding provisions hereof shall be null and
void and no longer binding, at the option of the party of tlie

first part, his representatives or assigns."

We have then, but to look at the instrument to determine its

character. It speaks for itself, and is a mere agreement to con-

vey, so understood and accepted by Ambrose, and not an abso-

lute conveyance, or intended so to be.

The next question is, had Ambrose, by this contract, such an
interest in the premises, as authorized him to mortgage them ?

The doctrine is understood to be that every thing which may
be considered as property, whether in the technical language of

the law denominated real or personal property, may be the sub-

ject of mortgage, as advowsons, rectories, tithes. Reversions and
remainders being capable of grant from man to man, and possi-

bilities also being assignable, are mortgageable, a mortgage of

them being only a conditionablc assignment. Rents, also, and
franchises mav be made the subject of mortgage. 1 Powel on
Mort. 17, IS."

By the agreement in this case, Root had a right to re-enter at

liis option, if the payments were not made at the time fixed,

and time was thereby of the essence of this contract, and to

save the contract, who can doubt the power of Ambrose to

pledge his interest in the land, to raise the money for such pur-

pose ? Who can doubt his power to sell and assign the con-

tract ? His power to mortgage it to Root, is unquestionable.

Besides, the case shows that the mortgagor had built a mill on
the property with money borrowed of Root, and with Root's

knowledge, and had paid a portion of the purchase money, all

wdiich makes a mortgageable interest. 2 Story Eq. Juris., sec.

1021. Under our statute, Ambrose's interest could be sold on
execution, and would pass to his heirs, so that he had a mort-

gageable estate.

The next question is, is Root, by the acceptance of this mort-

gage, estopped from asserting his title as the original vendor

of the premises, and did he admit thereby, that the interest

thus disposed of by Ambrose was paramount to his own as

holder of the legal title ?

This question need only to be stated to be answered. It an-

swers itself. It is an admission by Root, that he recognized

such an equitable interest in the premises in Ambrose, as would
secure him in his advances of money to be expended on it, and
in which a court of equity, under all circumstances, would pro-

tect him. Had Ambrose paid the mortgage, he would only have
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been remitted to the agreement of March 5th, for the sale and
conveyance, and Root to his position as vendor.

It follows, therefore, that Ambrose having a mortgageable in-

terest, and Root a right to take the mortgage on it, he had a right

to pursue it, and foreclose on condition broken, and sell under it.

Having a right to sell, he had the right to purchase all such in-

terest as Ambrose had, and purchasing, he placed himself in the

position all purchasers of land under a}?./a., special or otherwise,

are placed by the law, that is, to have such rights as they may have

acquired by their purchase taken from them, by returning to them
their money, with ten per cent., and nothing more. He could not

be deprived, by accepting such moneys, of any rights he owned
outside of, and beyond, and independent of those acquired by

the sheriff's sale and purcliase. Such is not the the meaning or

policy of the law. Suppose Ambrose, himself, had redeemed
from this sale, in what position would the parties be then ?

"Why, precisely in statu quo, in the very same position they

were before the judgment on the sci. fa. and sale,—Ambrose
remitted to his rights under the contract to convey, and Root
to his under the same contract, as owner of the fee.

The judgment creditor, Haven, having redeemed, he is re-

mitted to Ambrose's equities, and nothing more. He is placed

in Ambrose's shoes, and as by the record he is notified of the

subsequent mortgage to Root, and by the open and visible pos-

session by Root, of the premises, that he, being in Ambrose's
position, must go on and perfect Ambrose's contract.

With what propriety can it be urged, that Root is estopped

by any of these acts done, from falling back on liis original

title? Estoppels are not to be favored because the truth may
be excluded ; therefore, no party ought to be precluded from

making out his case according to its truth, unless by force of

some positive principle of law.

Do the facts as they appear, as done by Root, amount to an

estoppel ? If they operate at all, it must be as an equitable

estoppel, arising from these matters in pais. These estoppels

are rather favored in modern days, as tending to prevent or

punish frauds.

It seems there must be some affirmative act done, or some
declaration or admission made by one party, which if acted on
by the other party, would, by deceiving him, subject him to loss

and injury. Estoppels were once accounted odious in law, and
not allowed, unless very plainly and clearly made out. Samp-
son V. Cooke, 7 Eng. C. L. R. 205.

There must be something said or done which amounts to a

fraud in fact. Stephens v. Baird, 9 Cowen R. 274 ; Presby-

terian Congregation of Salem v. Williams, 9 Wendell R. 147.
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Where one, by bis word or conduct, willfully causes another

to believe in the existence of a certain state of things, and
induces him to act on that belief, so as to alter his own previous

position, the former is concluded, estopped, from averring against

the latter, a different state of things as existing at the same
time.

As expressed by Justice Cowen, in the case of Degell v.

Odell, 3 Hill B,. 219 :
" An admission by the defendant

intended to influence the conduct of the man with whom he was
dealing, and actually leading him into a line of conduct which
must be prejudicial to his interests, unless the defendant be cast

off from the power of retraction,—this I understand to be the

very definition of an estoppel in pais. For the prevention of

fraud, the law holds the admission conclusive."

Instances in illustration are innumerable, as where a party

stands by at the sale of his -property, though under a void

authority, and encourages purchasers to bid, he is guilty of a

direct fraud. So, if one at a sheriif's sale of his lands,

declares a certain tract to be included in the levy, and thereby

the purchaser was induced to purchase, it gives him an equity

which a court of chancery will enforce.

And the eflfect is the same, if one, seeing another acting under

a delusion, stands quietly by, without giving notice of his superior

right. Epic?/ V. Wilkeroio, 7 Watts R. (Penn.) 168.

It is quite apparent from these cases and many others which
might be cited, there can be no fraud, where the purchaser or

other actor was, or ought to have been, acquainted with the

matter in which he was engaged, or even had the means of

knowledge and neglected to avail himself of them, or where
the party was not influenced to act on the faith of the false

suggestion or silence of one bound to speak. And it is a rule

if an act can be referred to an honest motive the party will not

be estopped, although upon one construction his conduct may be

inconsistent with the right which he afterwards sets up. Heare
V. Pwgers, 17 Eng. C. L. R. 450.

Testing this case by these principles, it will readily be per-

ceived this doctrine cannot apply to Root. In the first place,

he did not induce Haven to redeem the land as a judgment
creditor. In the next place, Haven had the means of knowing
Root held another mortgage, for it was on record ; and Root
was in open, visible possession, under the terms of that very

mortgage. This would be notice of his right to hold it as the

original owner of the fee. In redeeming. Haven acted at his

own peril, and wholly on his own advice and responsibility, and
Root had a perfect right to receive the money, as well from

Haven as from Ambrose himself. All that Haven could well
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claim on redeeming, is the privilege of performing Ambrose's
contract, and there is no proof to show that he did not know
well the rights he acquired by redeeming. It is clear, therefore,

that the act of Root in receiving the redemption money, can

have a construction consistent with honesty and good faith, and
that is, to let Haven in to perform Ambrose's contract, which
under the circumstances, as the money had been used in improv-

ing the land, and the land rising in value, might have been a

very desirable object.

A case quite analogous to this is reported in 13 Johns. R.

463, Jackson ex clem. Whitlock v. Mills. Where land was
purchased under a junior judgment by an agent, who took a

deed from the sheriff to himself and then conveyed the land to

his principal, the agent is not thereby estopped from levying on
the same land, under a senior judgment, and purchasing it

himself.

It is urged, however, that the fee which Root possessed in

the premises was merged in this mortgage. An estate in fee

can hardly be merged in one of much less dimensions—into a

conditional estate, subject to be defeated.

Merger, too, is a question of intention. Jarvis et al. v. Frink,

14 111, R. 396. No one fact in this case shows that Root
intended, by proceeding on the first mortgage, to give up his

second mortgage or his original fee in the land. On the con-

trary, all the facts go to show he did not so intend, for, in

accordance with the agreement, after condition broken, he took

possession of the land and remained in possession until the com-
mencement of this suit. He resumed his position as owner of

the fee.

Seeing no error in the finding of the court, we accordingly

affirm the judgment.

Judgment affirmed.

The Board of School Inspectors of the City of Peoria,

Plaintiffs in Error, v. The People of the State of Illi-

nois, on the relation of Henry Grove, Defendants in

Error.

error to PEORIA COUNTY COURT.

The Peoria County Court has not power to award a writ of mandamus.
In construing grants of power to inferior courts, nothing is to be held as granted

by implication, save only what is necessary to a full exercise of their general

powers.
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Courts vested with the power to issue the writ of mandamus, are all of them supe-

rior courts of unlimited jurisdiction.

A writ of mandamus should show that the relator has no other remedy. It is only
granted in extraordinary cases, where, without it, there would be a failure of jus-

tice. If the party has sought, or may seek, other means of redress, this writ

should be denied.

The courts will not interfere with the discretion vested in the School Inspectors,

unless they attempt a plain violation of the law.

On tliG 7tli day of January, 1858, Henry Grove filed his

petition in the County Court of Peoria county, for a mandamus
to issue out of said court, against the " Board of School In-

spectors of the city of Peoria."

Petition states that said Grove is a free white citizen of the

United States, a resident householder and taxpayer in said city,

and has a child named Clara Priscilla Grove, aged about fourteen

years, residing with him, whom he wishes to send to and have

instructed in the public schools in said city. That there are

five large school-houses in said city, in each of which, schools are

taught under the control of said board. That the houses in the

second and third districts of said city are most convenient to

petitioner, and there is room enough in them for his child, to

the school taught in one of which, he claims the right to send

her. That he has demanded admittance for her into one of

them and been refused by the board. That he knows of no
valid reason why she should be excluded therefrom. Prayer of

petition : That a mandamus issue to the board, requiring them
to receive and instruct said child in some one of the schools in

said second or third districts.

On filing which petition, said court ordered that the defend-

ants show cause on the next day, at 10 o'clock a. m., why the

prayer of the petition should not be granted, a copy of which
order was served on the same day.

On the 8th day of January the defendants moved to dismiss

the said petition, upon affidavit filed, setting forth that the sub-

ject matter of the petition has been already fully adjudicated

in the Circuit Court of Peoria county. Which motion was over-

ruled by the court, and said court thereupon ordered that an
alternative writ of mandamus issue to said board, returnable to

the February term of said court, requiring said board to receive

said Clara into one of the schools of the second or third districts

of said city, or show cause to the contrarj', and that said writ

be served on Jacob Gale, Esq., Superintendent of Public Schools

for said city.

January 14, 1858, alternative writ issued. Return thereto

filed by said Gale, February 1st, 1858 : that he is not a member
of said board, nor a party defendant to said suit ; that he has

no control over said board, nor authority to appear and answer
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for them, and submitting that no proceeding can be had against

him therein,

February 2nd, 1858, order of court directing an alias alter-

native writ to issue in said cause, and to be served on the Presi-

dent and Secretary of said Board ; which said alias writ issued

the same day, and sets out : That it having been, on the 7th day
of January, 1858, represented to said court that Henry Grove
is a citizen, etc., of said city of Peoria, and hath a child whom
he has a right to have received and instructed in one of the

public schools in said city, adjacent to his residence. That said

board have laid off a school district in said city, in which there

is no public school-house or school within the city limits, and in

which district said Grove resides. That there are two public

school-houses in said city—one in district No. 2, and one in

district No. 3—both of which are adjacent to the residence of

said Grove. That these are the only public school-houses within

said city adjacent or convenient to him. That there is no suf-

ficient reason why said Clara should not be received and in-

structed in one of them, and that said board, without reasonable

cause, refuse to admit her into either. Said writ then commands
said board to admit said Clara into one or other of said schools,

or show cause to the contrary by the 5th of February instant.

February 5th, 1858, defendants moved to quash said alias

writ : 1st, Because it is returnable within ten days ; 2nd, Be-

cause it should have been returnable to the next term of court

;

3rd, Because it does not show the relator entitled to the relief

sought ; 4th, Because defendants are not required by law to

receive said Clara into the schools of either said second or third

districts ; 5th, Because it does not appear that said relator has

no other specific legal remedy ; 6th, For want of jurisdiction
;

7th, Said writ is otherwise informal and insufiicient.

Which said motion was overruled "hj the court, and defend-

ants excepted.

The defendants then filed their return to said alias alternative

writ, in substance as follows : That it is true said Henry Grove
is a resident, etc., of said city, and hath a child, whom, in com-
mon with other children in said city, and on the same terms,

etc., and not otherwise, he hath a right to send to and have
instructed in some one of the public schools of said city, but

deny his right to send her to either of the schools in said second

or third districts, or to the relief claimed. That said relator

is not, nor was he when said writ was issued, a resident of either

of said districts, and that by law and the regulations of the

board, a resident of one school district is not entitled, against

the consent of the board, to send his child to the public schools

of another district. That the residents of each school district,
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who apply in due season, are entitled to have their children re-

ceived and taught in the public schools of the district where they

respectively reside, and before children from outside any such

district are admitted into such school. That at the time when,

etc., all the public schools in said second and third districts

were full to overflowing with the children and pupils resident in

said districts respectively, and so that Clara could not have

been received into either, without first turning out some one

already admitted, and who had a prior and better right therein

than herself. Defendants admit that said board refused to admit

said Clara into either of said schools, but deny that in so doing

they acted without reasonable cause. That said board is by law
vested with authority over the public schools of said city ; to

make rules and regulations therefor ; to lay off and district the

city for school purposes, and in their discretion to alter the

same. That before the grievance complained of they had dis-

tricted said city, making six school districts, which said districts,

as then formed, still exist ; that the relator resides within dis-

trict No. 5. That there is no school-house, nor any public

school in said district No. 5, within the corporate limits, but

at the time when, etc., there was, and still is, a public school

established and kept by the board for said district, upon the

same terms, as to residents within the city, as other public

schools of said city, which school is kept in a house comfortable

and commodious, and convenient to the residence of the relator

and all the inhabitants of said district No. 5, but is situate

about one hundred feet outside the city limits. That said house

was built before the organization of the board, and said school

established, and still kept therein, at the request of all the

people of said district except the relator ; and that to dis-

continue it would operate a hardship upon said inhabitants, as

there is no school-house within the district, and said board have

not the means speedily to erect a suitable one. That the loca-

tion of said house a few feet outside of the corporate limits is

not, of itself, a legal impediment to establishing and keeping a

school therein by said board. That the child of the relator

might at all proper times have been sent to and instructed in

said school; that at the time when, etc., the relator was besides

offered the privilege of sending said child to either of the

schools in the fourth and sixth districts in said city, said schools

not being full, and said board being willing to accommodate as

far as in their power. Defendants aver that the relator has not

been pi^vented from sending his child to the public schools of

said city, as assumed in said writ; that he hath not sustained

injury as charged, etc.
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On the 2nd day of March, 1858, the relator filed his motion

to quash said return, and for a peremptory mandamus, for the

reason that said return is uncertain, argumentative, irregular,

non-issuable and insufficient. Which said motion was, sustained

by the court, and said return ordered to be quashed. Thereupon
said defendants moved for leave to amend their said return,

which the court refused to grant, and then and there ordered

that a peremptory writ of mandamus do issue against said de-

fendants, commanding them to receive said Clara Priscilla Grove
into the schools of said second or third districts, and instruct

her therein, and said court then and there rendered judgment
against said defendants for costs. To all of which said defend-

ants excepted, and prayed an appeal to this court.

Appellants assign the following errors upon said record.

Error in overruling motion to dismiss petition herein, and in

awarding an alternative writ of mandamus thereon.

In directing the service of said writ upon the Superintendent

of Schools of said city.

In directing an alias alternative writ to issue.

In overruling motion to quash said alias writ.

In sustaining motion to quash return, and in quashing the

same.

In refusing leave to amend the return.

In ordering a peremptory writ of mandamus to issue, and ren-

dering judgment against defendants for costs.

Said judgments, orders and proceedings are against law, in

contravention of the just authority, powers and duties of appel-

lants, and beyond the jurisdiction of said court.

JoNA. K. Cooper, for Appellants.

H. Grove, for Appellees.

Breese, J. This was an application for a mandamus to the

County Court of Peoria county, against the Board of School

Inspectors of that county, to compel them to admit the child of

the relator, Henry Grove, to one of two public schools, in the

city of Peoria; and the first question presented is, has the

County Court power to award such writ ?

This is an important question in some respects, chiefly, how-

ever, confined to these courts, not affecting, materially, the pub-

lic at large.

By the Constitution, Art. Y, Sec. 18, the jurisdiction of said

court shall extend to all probate and such other jurisdiction as

the General Assembly may confer in civil cases, and such crimi-
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nal cases as may be prescribed by law, where the punishment is

by fine only, not exceeding one hundred dollars.

The General Assembly, conferring power upon the County
Court of Peoria county, provided, by the Act of Feb. 9, 1855,
page 194, " that its jurisdiction is hereby so extended, that said

court shall have jurisdiction with the Circuit Courts in this

State, of all matters, suits and proceedings at common law or

by statute, in civil cases, except actions in ejectment, within

said county, and shall have concurrent jurisdiction of all mis-

demeanors punishable by fine only, not exceeding one hundred
dollars, commenced otherwise than by indictment." Sec. 3 pro-

vides that appeals and writs of error may be directly prosecuted

from that court to the Supreme Court.

In civil cases then, it has jurisdiction over all subjects and
suits, except in actions of ejectment, co-extensive with the Cir-

cuit Court.

On the Circuit Court, H. L. 1845, Ch. 67, title " Mandamus,"
is conferred the power to issue writs of mandamus, and, by Ch.

86, of quo ivarranio.

The question then arises, are the cases in which these writs

issue, civil cases ? The plaintiff in such writ is the people, on

the information of some one claiming an interest in the subject

matter to which the writ relates. The writ of mandamus is a

prerogative writ, and issues to compel the performance of a

public duty by a public functionary, in a case in Avhich the pub-

lic have a right to complain of neglect of that particular duty.

Courts vested with the power to issue this writ, by direct grant

of the legislature, are all of them superior courts, of unlimited

jurisdiction. It has never been conferred upon inferior courts

expressly, whose powers and jurisdiction are limited, and even

if conferred, it would extend only to their inferiors.

For the ordinary conduct of business in civil cases in the

County Court, we see no necessity of giving it the power to

issue such a writ. It has not been given in express terms, and
in construing grants of power to inferior courts, nothing is to

be held by implication, as granted, unless absolutely necessary

to a full exercise of its granted powers.

Something may be gathered of the views the legislature en-

tertained in enacting this law. It may be safely inferred from
the known condition of the business in the Circuit Court of that

county, having within it one of the most flourishing cities in the

State, that the main design in extending the jurisdiction of the

County Court, in civil cases and in small misdemeanors, was to

relieve the Circuit Court from a great pressure, a pressure so

great as to amount, in ordinary civil cases of small or large

amount, to a great delay of justice. It was for this kind of
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business their power was extended, the important action of

ejectment being withheld from their cognizance, and in criminal

cases, all indictable offenses, and all offenses where the fine to

be imposed exceeded one hundred dollars. Here will be seen

great care and caution on the part of the legislature, in ex-

tending the jurisdiction of this court, and we think it would
be going too far to admit they have, by implication, the vast

and formidable power now claimed in this case.

This case goes far to show the impropriety of implying such

a power, for we are informed by it, that the relator in two dif-

ferent proceedings before the Circuit Court, in both of which
he failed, endeavored to accomplish the same object contem-

plated by this application for a mandamus. Admitting, then, the

power of the County Court in the premises, it amounts to an
appeal, in another form, from the Circuit Court to the County
Court. This is the consequence, and it will be so in all similar

cases.

We do not think the County Court had jurisdiction to award
this writ. It is not expressly given by statute, and not being

necessary to carry into full effect the jurisdiction granted, it

cannot be implied.

But the writ itself is defective in not alleging that the relator

had no other remedy. He had previously, as the record shows,

attempted to attain his object by certiorari and bill in chancery

in the Circuit Court, in which latter proceeding full and com-

plete justice could be done, and the parties were heard on bill,

answer, replication and testimony, and the bill was dismissed,

and we have affirmed that decree. Tliis was alleged in support

of the motion to dismiss the petition for this writ, and the court

should have allowed the motion, for the relator having chosen

his forum, and the decision being against him, his proper remedy
was by appeal or writ of error, oij dismissing the bill.

There are a few cases in which a party can pursue several

remedies at the same time, but this, as situated, does not seem
to be one of those cases.

Nor does the petition 'show a clear legal right to the remedy
asked. 12 111. R. 254. This writ is of such a nature that

courts will grant it only in an extraordinary case, where other-

wise there would be a failure of justice, which cannot be pre-

tended here.

The return to the writ should not have been quashed. It is

full and complete, is issuable and triable, and in bar of the

remedy sought.

The board of inspectors are vested with a large discretion

in the performance of their important duties, and courts will
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not attempt to control its exercise except in a palpable case,

where a plain violation of the law is manifested.

In this case the board seem to have discharged their very

onerous and responsible office, with every regard to the public

interest, and with no disposition to deprive the relator of any

of his rights. The deprivation of which he complains, is

chargeable rather to his unfavorable position in the city for

school advantages for his children, than to maladministration

on the part of the board. What we have said in the chancery

case between these parties, is applicable here, and we can add
nothing to it. The judgment of the court refusing to dis-

miss the application for a mandamus was erroneous. It should

have been dismissed.

The judgment is reversed.

Judgment reversed.

Henry Grove, PlaintifF in Error, v. The Board of School

Inspectors of the City of Peoria, Defendants in Error,

a Chancery proceeding, and

The Same v. The Same, a proceeding by certiorari.

ERROR TO PEORIA.

The School Inspectors of Peoria are authorized to district the city, as to them
may seem best ; and they may also establish such rules for the admission of
pupils as they judge proper; and these duties will not be interfered with,

except in extreme cases.

They may also sustain a school in a house outside of the city, and pay for repairs,

for the use of children living within it.

The plaintiff in error presented his bill in chancery for an
injunction against the defendants in error, at the November
term, A. D. 1857, of the Peoria Circuit Court.

The bill sets forth in substance, that by the Act of the Gen-
eral Assembly, approved Feb. 14, 1855, and by the Act ap-

proved Jan. 29, 1857, the voters of the city of Peoria were
authorized to elect a Board of School Inspectors for said city of

Peoria.

That under the acts aforesaid, inspectors were elected, and
proceeded to organize, and took upon themselves the duties of

their office.

That said board was required to perfect a good system of

schools in said city.
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That said board has full authority and power, and abundance
of means to furnish, provide and maintain sufficient schools for

all the children in said city.

That there is in said city, five large, commodious school-

houses, capable of accommodating all the scholars in said city,

if the board would district the city with reference to the loca-

tion of the school-houses, and if said board would prevent

scholars residing out of the city limits, from attending said

schools.

That complainant owns lots 21 and 22 in Ashael Hale's ad-

dition to the city of Peoria, and lots 1, 2 and 22, in Coleman's

subdivision of lot 20, of said Ashael Hale's addition to Peoria,

all in said city of Peoria.

That he is a resident tax-payer of said city, and resides with

his family in his dwelling-house on said lots 21 and 22, and has

resided thereon for six years.

That his family consists of himself, his wife and two children.

That the eldest of said children is over twelve and under
fifteen years of age. That said child is anxious and willing

to attend the public schools in the city of Peoria, under such

reasonable rules as said board might prescribe.

That complainant is also anxious to send his child to said

schools, but is prevented from so doing by said board.

That said child is a free white child, and complainant knows
of no valid objection to her attending^ said schools.

That said board have so districted the city, as to locate com-
plainant in district No. 5.

That there is no school-house within the city in district No. 5.

That said board has received, and is now instructing in said

schools, several scholars who do not reside within the city.

That the school-house intended for use of district No. 5, is

outside the corporation limits of the city.

That said board has fitted up, at the expense of the city, a

one-story school-house, outside of the city limits, to compel
scholars in that vicinity, residing in district No. 5, to attend

the same.

That said board has received two scholars residing outside

of the city limits, to attend said school.

That on the llth of December, 1857, complainant presented

petition for certiorari. That writ was allowed, issued and re-

turned, and same is made part of bill.

That said board adopted a rule requiring each scholar to pay

^1 per term, for tuition fees.

That complainant tendered amount last term and present

term, but was refused.
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That said board has divided the city into six districts. That
in each, except No. 5, there is a good substantial school-house,

fitted up with seats, maps, etc.

That complainant resides in district No. 5.

That said board has issued an order, prohibiting a scholar

residing in one district from attending a school in another dis-

trict, except by leave of the superintendent.

That superintendent has adopted a rule, that he will not per-

mit scholars residing in one district from attending school in

another, unless such scholar is sufficiently advanced to be ad-

mitted to a higher school.

That complainant's right to send to the public schools does

not depend upon such advancement.

That said board sometimes pretend that complainant's child

cannot be received in said schools, because the schools are full.

That the pretense is not true. That if true, said child has rights

equal with other scholars.

That if said board would discharge scholars attending said

schools, residing without the city, there Avould be abundant

room.

That school taught in second district, is most convenient for

said child to attend, and most contiguous to complainant's resi-

dence. That said child did attend said school. That the City

Council constructed a plank walk from said school-house to, and

terminating on the blufp, in dictrict No. 5, for convenience of

scholars residing therein.

That there is room in said school-house for additional seats.

That complainant proposed, at his own expense, to put up

seats.

That said board has no right to admit foreign scholars to

said schools, to the exclusion of scholars of resident citizens,

tax-payers of the city.

That said board expended five hundred and twenty-three dol-

lars and fifty-five cents, on said school-house outside of the city

limits, during the year ending August 31, 1858.

That said board intend, and threaten to expend further and

larger sums on said school-house, for repairs, tuition, etc.

That said board has no right to appropriate the school funds

collected out of tax-payers in the city, to keep up a school out-

side of the city limits.

That said board has no right to compel scholars of district

No. 5, to attend said school.

That said school-house contains but one room, and is unfitted

for grading the scholars therein ; the number of which does

not exceed thirty scholars.
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That complainant has no adequate remedy at law. That
complainant sued one of the teachers of said school No. 2, for

refusing to receive and instruct said child.

That said suit is now pending in the Circuit Court of Peoria

County, on the law side thereof, undetermined, having been
brought on by an appeal from the decision of a justice of the

peace.

That complainant filed his petition for a writ of certiorari^

for the purpose of reversing, annulling and setting aside the

various orders, entries and lines made by said board, on their

maps, records, etc., prohibiting said child from attending said

school.

That complainant has no adequate redress ; as said return

does not show that said board is receiving foreign scholars into

said public schools, and appropriating the school funds to fur-

nish and maintain said school outside of the city limits.

That if complainant is compelled to prosecute said board for

every refusal to admit said child to school, complainant will be

involved in an endless and ruinous litigation.

That complainant called personally on several members of

said board, and requested them to rescind their orders, prohib-

iting said child from attending said school, which they refused

to do.

That the acts and doings of said board are intended to vex,

harrass and aggrieve complainant.

The answers admit passage of acts, and organization of board.

Insist that said board have powers of trustees of schools within

township, and have organized as such. There are no directors

in district five outside of the city, and that part of district five

outside of city cannot be attached to any other district.

Admit their duty to provide schools for all scholars in the

city, but deny that they have sufficient means for that purpose.

That there are 4,000 children in the city, and only have ac-

commodations for 1,150, and submit they have done all they

can do.

Admit report to be true.

Admit that there are five school-houses, one in each of the first,

second, third, fourth, and sixth districts, but that they would not

hold all if fifth district was admitted.

Admit that complainant owns the property and has the right

to send, but deny that he has been prevented from sending to

the public schools in said city.

Admit that complainant has been prevented from sending out

of his district unless with permission of superintendent.

Admit there is no school-house in district five within the city.
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Admit that complainant owned stock in third district, and
that he consented to sell with the understanding that the house

would be used for the benefit of children within the city, and in-

sists that he was not disappointed.

Admit that the only school-house for district five is outside of

city, and that two scholars attend from outside. That it is one

story high.

Deny that school-house has been fitted up at expense of tax-

payers of city. Deny that school is kept therein to compel
complainant to send there, but that the school is kept there to

accommodate scholars in said district.

That prior to act of 1855, district five had built the school-

house, had elected directors, voted a tax—house cost $1,200
—and kept a school therein. In March, 1856, one Smith applied

to board to keep a school in said house, which was done, and
defendants have kept school therein under same regulations as

other schools. Said school-house stands one hundred feet out-

side of city limits, and scholars outside pay $2.50 per scholar

per term, and those inside $1.00 per terra; and said house is

convenient to complainant. That most all the inhabitants of

district five desire school to continue, and refer to return made
to writ of certiorari.

Complainant never has been prevented from sending to said

school in No. 5.

Admit issuing of writ and return thereto.

Admit that complainant offered to pay the tuition for second

district only.

Admit division of city into six districts, and that in each there

is a school-house except in No. 5.

Answers insist that they are not confined to city limits in

location of school-houses.

They intend to continue said school, and support it out of

public funds in their hands.

Said school-house is a small one and not so well calculated to

grade the school ; but inconvenience is remedied by power
vested in superintendent to allow advanced scholars to attend

schools in other districts when he thinks best, which discretion

has been and will continue to be wisely exercised.

Do not admit having prohibited complainant from sending his

child to the public schools in the city, but in districting the city

they have prevented him from sending to the second district.

Know of no rule of superintendent prohibiting a scholar in one
district from attending school in another only when sufficiently

advanced, except in case of high school.

Learn from superintendent that complainant might have sent
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to fourth or sixth district if he had applied during first three

days, those schools then not being full.

No persons residing in the city excluded from the schools by
reason of the admission of scholars out of the city.

When schools in the city are not full, scholars from outside

are admitted on paying $3.50 per term.

That of scholars attending the schools in the city and who
reside outside of the city, three attend in third district, five in

fourth district, two in fifth district, six in sixth district—sixteen

in all.

All the schools in the city are graded.

School in fifth district will seat forty scholars, and not adapt-

ed to a graded school. Average attendance about thirty.

Complainant filed replication.

The court refused to grant an injunction and dismissed the

bill, and complainant excepted. . .

The plaintiff in error assigns the following errors upon the

record :

The court below erred in overruling the plaintiff's motion for

a new trial.

The court erred in dismissing the bill, and in refusing to

allow an injunction as prayed in the bill.

The petition and proceedings upon the certiorari are as fol-

lows :

The plaintiff in error sued out of the Circuit Court of Peoria

county a writ of certiorari, directed to the Board of School'

Inspectors of the city of Peoria. The writ followed the petition

in substance. ^

The petition was as follows :

To the Hon. Elihu N. Powell, Judge of the Circuit Court of

Peoria county, in the State of Illinois :

—

Your Petitioner, Henry Grove, of the city and county of

Peoria, and State of Illinois, respectfully represents that he is

now, and for the six years last past has been a citizen, a resi-

dent householder and tax-payer in the said city of Peoria ; that

he is the owner of lots twenty-one and twenty-two in Ashael
Hale's addition to the city of Peoria, in said city, with the im-

provements thereon. That he has a family, consisting of a wife

and two children ; that he, with his said family, has resided on

said lots during the said six years last past; that he and his said

children are free white inhabitants of the United States of

America, and were all born within the United States. That the

eldest of his children, named Clara Priscilla Grove, is now over

twelve years of age, and less than fifteen years. That he desires

35
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to educate his said child, and claims the legal and moral right

to send his child to the public schools in said city of Peoria.

That said Clara Priscilla Grove is also desirous and wishes to

attend said public schools in said city of Peoria, but is now and
has been prevented and hindered from so doing by the direction,

order and action of the Board of School Inspectors in the city

of Peoria.

He further states, that to the best of his knowledge, inform-

ation and belief, he knows of no legal, valid or moral objection

to his said child attending and receiving instruction in the

public schools in said city of Peoria.

He further states, that some months since, as he is informed

and verily believes, the Board of School Inspectors in the

city of Peoria, passed an order, direction, resolve or decree,

and spread the same on the maps, plats and records of their

proceedings, forbidding and prohibiting your petitioner from

sending his said child to the public schools in said city of

Peoria. That the name of your petitioner and of his said child

is not probably mentioned in said order ; but the premises in

which your petitioner resides, is marked on said record and map
as being excluded from any and all the several school districts

in said city.

That your petitioner has sent his said child to one of the

public schools in said city, since the passage of said order, and
requested admittance to said public schools, in said city; she

was prohibited by the teachers, under said order, from entering

or receiving instruction in taid school.

He further states, that he cannot state the precise terms of

said order, nor of the marks on their said maps or plats, but

he states, that said orders, and the entry on said maps or plats

so made by said Peoria School Inspectors, is unjust, oppressive,

illegal, tyrannical, irregular and beyond the jurisdiction of said

Board of School Inspectors.

That in the adoption and passage of said order, said Board of

School Inspectors, as he verily believes, exceeded their lawful

power and jurisdiction, and thereby excluded his said child

from said schools.

He further states, that so far as his knowledge extends, the

law does not provide for an appeal from said order, and he has

no remedy to have the same set aside, cancelled or reversed,

except by the order of your Honor to allow a writ of certiorari

to be issued in due form of law, directed to. said school inspec-

tors, directing and commanding them to certify and bring the

said record of their proceedings in that behalf, and their said

marks and lines on their said maps and plats, before the Honor-
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able the Circuit Court of Peoria county, that said order and
entries may be reversed, set aside, and wholly for naught
esteemed; which he prays may be granted.

To this writ the defendants made return,

1. That the board had adopted a rule that a scholar residing

in one district, shall not attend a school in any other district,

without authority from the superintendent.

2. That one Ira Smith, from the fifth district, had presented

a petition praying that the board might maintain a school out-

side of the city limits, for the accommodation of the scholars in

the fifth district, which was done, the school established, and a

teacher employed.

3. Giving boundaries of districts, accompanied by a map
with districts and boundaries marked.

4. Showing that there is no school-house in the fifth district,

being the district in which petitioner resides.

On the filing of the return, the petitioner entered a motion,

That the court order, direct and decree that all xhe entries,

marks, lines or records made, rendered or placed by the de-

fendants on their records, books, maps, or plats, prohibiting

petitioner from sending his child to the public schools in said

city of Peoria, be reversed, set aside, cancelled and wholly

for naught esteemed. And that the court vacate, reserve, set

aside and cancel all orders, entries, marks, or lines made by
said defendants in their records, maps or plats, compelling him
to send his child outside of the city limits.

The court overruled the motion and dismissed the petition,

and plaintifl" excepted.

The plaintiff now assigns the following errors upon the record :

1. The court erred in overruling the motion of the plaintifl".

2. The court erred in dismissing the petition.

3. The court should have sustained the motion made by
plaintifl" below.

H. Grove, in proper person.

J. K. Cooper, for Defendants in Error.

Breese, J. The scope and prayer of the bill in this case is

threefold. The complainant prays,

First, That the Board of School Inspectors be enjoined from
receiving into the public schools of the city of Peoria, scholars

not resident within the city limits, to the exclusion of the child

of the complainant, who is such resident.

Second^ That they be restrained from pj^eventing and hinder-
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ing the complainant from sending his child to the public schools

in the city, and receiving instruction therein.

Thirds That they be restrained from using and appropriating

any of the moneys raised and received by them out of the taxes,

or credit or moneys of the tax-payers of the city of Peoria, for

school purposes, to the repairs or furnishing the school-house

outside of the corporate limits of that city, or to maintain or

support a school therein.

As to the first proposition, it does not appear that the board

have, at any time, received into the public schools of the city,

scholars residing or belonging outside of the city limits, to the

exclusion of complainant's child. The answer, which is under

oath, denies it expressly, and no witness establishes the fact.

Gilbert Voodry, one of the witnesses for complainant, does

,not so state, nor does Mr. Gale. Voodry says, he went to the

of&ce of the board on the morning of the first day of the Fall

•term, 1857, of the public schools, at the request of complain-

ant, to procure a ticket of admission for his daughter, and that

he did, in the presence of Amos P. Bartlett, and John Hamlin,

-the treasurer of the board, offer to pay the treasurer one

^dollar, the tuition fee for the term, and for her admission to the

•second district school. This is all the testimony to that point.

The answer goes fully into the reasons governing the board

fin districting the city for school purposes, and for establishing

iTules and regulations to govern them. The application of com-
plainant was special—for the admission of his daughter into

ilhe school in the second district, she living in the fifth, as the

case shows. The answer discloses the fact that no non-resident

scholars had been admitted into that school—that it had its

complement of pupils, and no place for complainant's daughter

could bo made, except at the expense of some other pupil.

The fact that complainant proposed to furnish her seat and desk

at his own expense could not have any weight against the sys-

tem of rules and regulations the board had adopted, as to

seating the room. They were the judges as to how many desks

and seats were proper in the room, and if the school was full,

allowing the complainant to add to the complement, merely

because he was willing to provide a desk, would be to repeal

their rules, and be a license for any other person outside of, or

inside the district, to do the same thing, the consequence of

which might be, as the board could well foresee, the school in

this favorite district would be filled to overflowing, while

others might be empty, or but partially filled. Every authority

like this, having a trust so great committed to it, must have a

system of wise and salutary rules, and as inflexible as circum-

stances will allow.
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Mr. Gale states in his deposition, that at the term to which
complainant made his application, " the second district school

was full, and more than twelve, residing in that district, were
compelled to attend in other districts." It would then have
been a gross departure, had the board, under such circum-

stances, admitted the complainant's child into this school. The
case shows that non-resident scholars have, at no time, been
admitted into the city schools, except in the fourth, fifth and
sixth districts, neither of the schools therein being full.

The second proposition is disposed of as the first, by the

answer and the evidence, the one denying, and the other forti-

fying it, that at no time has the board refused the complain-

ant's child a place in the public schools of the city, and receiving

instruction therein. The answer shows she could have gone to

either the fourth or sixth district school. But the proposition

embraces more than this, and goes to the power of the board
so to exercise the discretion with which they are endowed, as

to district the city in such mode and form as to them may seem
best.

The great complaint seems to be, that the school districts are

so established by the board, as to make it necessary, if com-
plainant's child attends the school in tlie proper district—the

fifth—she will be compelled to occupy a small room roughly

furnished, and with pupils with whom she cannot be classed, she

being greatly advanced beyond those attending the fifth district

school.

The power of the board of inspectors over this branch of

their duties is plenary. Laws of 1855, page 197, sec. 4. By
clause seven of section four, they have power " to lay off and
divide the city into school districts, and from time to time, to

alter the same or create new ones as circumstances may require."

As they are elected by the qualified voters of the city, it is

reasonable to expect, in the exercise of this power, they wiU
feel their responsibility to them, and so act as to give general

satisfaction. It is a very difficult duty to perform, and it is not

reasonable to expect, however just, wise and impartial they

may be, that there will be no single complaint. It requires

much deliberation and the exercise of sound judgment, and in

such case, a court could not well interfere unless gross injustice

had been done, or the marks of corruption in the board so

evident as to compel the court to interpose. Nothing of this

kind is alleged or proved, and we must remit the whole subject

of the districts, and the lines by which they are bounded, to the

electors of the city, who will, doubtless, if injustice has been

done any considerable portion of the city, or partiality shown,
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or oppression attempted, effect a cliange by a change in the

board of inspectors at the next election,

The power of the board to establish rules and regulations for

the admission of pupils, is found in clause eight of section four,

and by a compliance with those rules, the complainant's child

could have been admitted into the school in the fourth or sixth

district, at the option of complainant.

The last proposition involves the consideration of the author-

ity of the board to sustain a school for the fifth district in a house

outside of the city limits, and expending money in its repairs.

This is a part of the discretionary power with which the

board is clothed. By the first clause of section four they have

power to erect, hire or purchase buildings for school-houses, and
keep the same in repair. By the eighth clause they are em-
powered to establish, support and maintain public schools for

all the children of the city.

When it is considered that a new, and we may say, noble

system of public education was being inaugurated in one of our

infant but rapidly increasing cities, it must be very apparent

that it would be the work of years before the necessary build-

ings could be erected and furnished adapted to such purpose.

Whilst these were in process of erection, many of the children

of the city would be rapidly advancing beyond the age at which
instruction is most readily imparted to them, especially the

elementary branches. It would not then, in view of this con-

sideration, and the object being to educate all the children of

the city, and power given to erect, hire or purchase buildings

for school-houses, be in our judgment at the commencement of

such a noble system, any violation of duty or usurpation of au-

thority, to hire a school-house in which a portion of the children

could be educated, even though the building might not be within

the corporate limits. The facts show that the inhabitants of

this district had built and fitted up this house expressly for

school purposes at their own cost. They had placed it at the

place most convenient to those requiring schooling, and who
otherwise might be greatly incommoded by going elsewhere.

The house was built, was suitable for the purpose, and was a

convenient auxiliary to the design of the board, and to dis-

charge their duty to provide educational facilities " for all the

children of the city." It cannot be a grave matter that the

building is a few feet without the city limits. For aught that

appears, it is convenient and accessible to a majority of the

residents in the fifth district. By accepting the use of this

house, and keeping a school in it, quite a large population are

accommodated and the original grand design carried out. As
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the board has the power to erect or hire buildings, for the pur-

pose of educating all the children of the city, we cannot doubt
they had the power to accept the use of this building for the

same purpose, and appropriate money to its repair.

The school kept in it is a public school of the city, to all in-

tents and purposes, under any fair construction of the law. It

is under the charge and control of the board, is subject to all

the rules and regulatious established by the board, common to

the entire system, and should be supported out of the fund pro-

vided for the general purposes of the system. We think the

eleventh clause of section four protects the action of the board.

It is contended the board should have prepared the way for

levying a tax in the mode provided in the eighth section, for the

purpose of building a school-house for the fifth district within

the city limits.

This duty must be performed by the board, but it must rest

with them to determine, under all the circumstances, what is

necessary for the accommodation of the several districts, or for

the support of public schools, whether buildings or whatever it

may be. The board have, necessarily, the discretion to deter-

mine this, and with their determination, apart from any oppres-

sion, corruption, or act of gross injustice, this court could not
interfere.

It is certainly matter of rejoicing, that in the infancy of this

system so much has already been done. In less than three years

edifices have been reared capable of supplying the wants of a
city of more than twenty thousand inhabitants, well provided in

every respect, and with competent teachers, by taxes voluntarily

imposed by the people themselves. It is one of the great orna-

ments of our noble State, and the benefits resulting from it will

be felt throughout its whole extent.

We cannot see wherein the court erred in refusing the injunc-

tion and dismissing the bill. We cannot discover any good
ground for complaint properly traceable to the action of the

board of inspectors. They have done their duty, and nothing

but their duty, so far a^ we can discover, and we therefore

afi&rm the judgment of the Circuit Court.

Same
^

V. > On certiorari.

The Same.
)

All the questions arising in this case have been fully consid-

ered in the chancery cause between the same parties. The
judgment is accordingly affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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Edwin Hunt, Appellant, v. John Q. Hott and Wife,

Appellees.

APPEAL FROM COOK COUNTY COURT OF COMMON PLEAS.

It is negligence for a party, in hanging a sign on a windy day, in a city, upon an
active thoroughfare, to use a swinging stage for the purpose, that has not a rim,

or some other preventive against the sliding off of tools, which may occasion

injury to passers on the street.

A person injured by reason of such negligence may recover for the length of time

the sickness continued, as a component part of her claim.

This was an action on the case, brought by Hoyt and his wife

against Hunt, to the September term, 1857, of the Cook County
Court of Common Pleas, for an alleged injury to the wife, by

the falling of a hammer from a building in the city of Chicago,

upon which the defendant's servants were putting up a sign, and
striking Mrs. Hoyt upon the head while walking along the street

of said city.

The declaration contains two counts, and alleges that Martha
Ann Hoyt, the wife, on the first day of June, was walking along

Lake street in said city, and in front of a building possessed by
Fisk & Ripley ; that the defendant's servants were engaged in

putting up a sign upon said building, and for that purpose were
using a certain iron hammer ; that the said servants so care-

lessly and improperly used, managed and directed said hammer,
that the same, by and through the carelessness, negligence and
improper conduct of said servants, fell and struck the said

Martha Ann Hoyt upon the head, etc.

The second count is substantially the same.

The defendant pleaded the general issue.

The material evidence is stated in the opinion of the court.

The jury found the defendant guilty, and assessed the plain-

tiffs' damages at five hundred dollars.

Thereupon the defendant moved the court for a new trial,

which was denied.

The court entered judgment for the plaintiffs for the said sum
of five hundred dollars, the damages assessed.

ScATES, McAllister & Jewett, for Appellant.

S. B. Perry, for Appellees.

Breese, J. Three points are made by the counsel for appellant:

First. That the men engaged in putting up the sign, were em-
ployed by, and were the servants of Fisk & Ripley, and not of

the appellant.
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Second. If the appellant is to be regarded as the master of

these workmen, then he would be liable only for a want of or-

dinary care, or for gross negligence.

Third. That positive proof of negligence must be produced

by the plaintiff. And that proof of the accident and injury is

not sufficient to show negligence, nor can it be inferred from the

fact of the accident or injury.

The first point is disposed of by the testimony of David B.
Fisk, the first witness sworn on behalf of plaintiffs below. He
says he engaged Robbins and Gaylord to paint some signs for

Fisk & Ripley, and they informed him that Mr. Hunt put up
signs, and told him the price he charged. He then went to

Hunt's store to ask the price, and was told by some one at the

desk what it would be, and he agreed with Mr. Hunt's foreman

to put up the signs. Hunt said they had men for that purpose,

and he would send them up. After waiting, and the men not

coming, he went again to see about it, and this time saw Mr.
Hunt, and he promised to send the men up at once. They
came and put up the signs, and in putting them up, broke a

pane of glass. He paid Mr. Hunt for hanging the signs.

Roswell F. Farr states, after the injury was received by Mrs.

Hoyt, Mr. Hunt came into the store and had a conversation

with him about it. Hunt said his workmen were as good and
as careful as any workmen in the city, and that he would have
nothing more to do with putting up signs, it was too dangerous,

and too much risk in it.

The defendant's witness also set this point at rest. George
Hauslein, his foreman, states, Mr. Fisk employed him to do the

job, and he sent the men there, and superintended putting up

the signs ; was told by Mr, Hunt not to put up any more signs.

John Cline states, he worked for Mr. Hunt, and was em-

ployed by Hauslein, with Hunt's approbation, to put up the

signs ; Henry Brandon, another man employed in the shop,

was with him ; had been working on the staging nearly all
' day, putting up signs ; did not tell Hunt that day about an

accident having happened there before.

Henry Brandon states, he was at work on the staging ; did

not tell Mr. Hunt that any accident happened in the morning.

Benjamin F. Robbins states, that he painted the signs for

Fisk & Ripley, and referred them to Mr. Hunt, to get them put

up ; owned the staging, and lent it to Hauslein, to put up the

signs for Mr. Hunt.
This evidence is clear and conclusive, upon the first point,

that the men employed to put up the signs were the servants of

the defendant, and not of Fisk & Ripley.

How stands the proof on the question of negligence, and
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does it show that the injury was the result of mere accident,

against which ordinary care could not have guarded ? R. F.

Farr states that he was an eye-witness to the injury Mrs. Hoyt
received ; saw Mrs. Hoyt cross the street, from the north to the

south side ; when she reached the side walk, Mr. Hunt's men
were at work, on a swing stage, attached to the store of Fisk

& Eipley, putting up signs for them ; as she was walking on the

sidewalk, he saw a hammer fall from the staging, and saw it

strike her on the head ; she fell partly down, and he caught her

before she struck the sidewalk. The men were on the staging,

putting a sign over the top of the second story window, about

thirty feet above the sidewalk ; they could be seen from the side-

walk, and no others at work except the men putting up the

signs ; the hammer had a handle ; one end had a face, and the

other end wedgeshaped, and would weigh about one pound

;

the staging was a swinging stage, supported by ropes ; the injury

happened about half-past two o'clock in the afternoon.

George Hauslein states, when the hammer fell from the stag-

ing, he was on the opposite side of the street, looking to see

that the sign was put up straight. At the time the hammer
fell, the men were holding up the sign and screwing it to the

building, and were not using the hammer ; it fell between the

staging and the building; it was a windy day, and the wind had
some effect on the staging, to swing it, and loose the fastenings.

John Cline says, he used the hammer to drive the screw in a
little, and then laid it down behind him on the staging ; it fell

without his knowing how it came to fall ; the wind was blowing

pretty hard, and they were then at the corner of the building,

just where the wind caught them over the top of the roof of the

city hotel, a much lower building than the one they were at work
upon. The staging was about two feet wide, and had no rail-

ing or board upon the sides ; nothing to prevent the tools from

sliding off; the wind made the staging swing some, and he

tried to fasten it to some ornamental work on the iron columns,

but the wind slipped off the fastenings ; the ornaments were too

weak to hold it ; the columns were about a foot out from the

building, so that the staging rested against them, leaving a space

between it and the face of the building ; the staging was sus-

pended by ropes, from the top of the building ; does not know
how the hammer got off the staging, but saw it falling.

H. Brandon says, he worked on the staging with Cline; was
holding up the sign while he screwed it to the building ; was on
the left, and Cline on the right side ; both sitting on the staging;

Cline knocked a screw in, and laid the hammer on the staging

behind him ; saw it on the middle of the staging ; don't know
how it came to fall ; it was very windy.



APRIL TERM, 1858. • 547

Hunt V. Hoyt et ux.

These workmen, it seems, do not know how the hammer came
to fall, though one of them, Cline, saw it falling. He says,

after driving in the screw, he laid the hammer down behind
him on the staging—'the wind was blowing pretty hard, and
Brandon says it was very windy, and so does Robbins, and his

testimony fully explains, " how the hammer came to fall," and
fixes the charge of negligence upon the appellant, although

Robbins gives it as his opinion that the staging was a proper

one to use in putting up signs, and combined all the qualities

needed for such a purpose. The staging belonged to him, and
as he had used it, successively, for the same purposes, he is of

the opinion it could not be improved. He says, " It was twen-

ty-two feet long and two feet wide, and had no protection on the

sides!"

Mr. Robbins is a practical man, doubtless, and should be pre-

sumed to have correct notions of such a matter, but we, not so

practical, are at a loss to perceive how ho could have judged
such a staging to possess all the requisites necessary for the

dangerous business in which it was employed, and in the great

thoroughfare (Lake street) of our most populous and stirring

city. No witness, it is true, has stated that the injury oc-

curred in that street, but the declaration so alleges, and it was
admitted on the argument. In a quiet town,''on a calm day, in

a secluded place which foot-passengers seldom frequent, the ap-

paratus might be safe, and sliould a sudden gust of wind cause

it so to swing as so throw oif the tools, thereby causing injury

to a person, a charge of negligence might not be sustained. In

a city, and in a street, where people congregate and pass in

crowds, and on a very windy day, to suspend such a staging by
ropes, with no bottom or other stays, from the top of a high

building, and thirty feet above the sidewalk, and with no pro-

tecting rim on the sides or ends, is such an exhibition of negli-

gence as to deserve, as it has received, the severe but just

judgment of the jury. The workmen say they did not know how
the hammer came to fall. Surely, there is no difficulty on that

head from their own evidence, and that of Mr. Robbins. The
day was very windy—the staging was swinging back and forth

by the wind—the workmen were not self-possessed—the ham-
mer, when used, was hurriedly and carelessly placed on the stag-

ing, which, having no stays, or board rim at the sides or ends,

could not retain it, when it was swayed to and fi'o by the wind,

throwing it against the columns with great violence, producing

a powerful concussion, and causing the hammer to slide off.

Had the staging been a proper one for use in a populous city^

and kept from swaying by proper fastenings at bottom, secured

to the pavement or railings, which are always at hand in cities,
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and the sides and ends protected by a slight rim, this injury

would not, in all human probability, have happened ; or, if hap-

pening, no jury would say the workmen had not used all the

care and diligence, and caution required of them. Mr, Rob-
bins may be taught, at some future day, by the finding of a jury,

that his staging, as he has described it, is not " all that is needed "

for the purpose of putting up signs on " a very windy day," on
a tall building, in the great thoroughfare of a populous city.

The facts are made to bear more heavily against the appel-

lant, because he was informed that an accident had happened in

the morning of the same day, at the same place, occasioned by
the high wind, causing the destruction of a sign and of a pane
of glass. He said the men told him,—though they say they did

not,—that they were obliged, in the morning, to drop a sign on
account of the wind, to save themselves from falling, and that

they were afraid to work there.

Under these facts, we are free to say, that the grossest negli-

gence marked the conduct of the appellant in permitting to be

used, on such a day, at such a time, in such a crowded street,

and forewarned, an apparatus so unfit for the dangerous business

in which it was employed.

We have examined the cases cited by the appellant's counsel,

but think they do not bear upon this case, except so far as the

maxim of respondent superior is applicable. The case shows
actual negligence in the master, in the particulars Ave have
pointed out, and the views we have expressed on the facts re-

quire no support from adjudicated cases.

Another point was raised, but not much relied upon by appel-

lant's counsel, on the second instruction given for appellees, that
" in estimating the damages, if they found for the plaintiff, the

jury should take into consideration the length of time Mrs.
Hoyt was sick in consequence of the injury, the effect of the

injury upon her, and the bodily suffering consequent thereupon."

The counsel thinks this instruction is too broad, and involves

damages for loss of time, for which the husband alone would
be entitled to an action.

The length of time the injured party was sick, is, we think,

an important element in her claim for damages, and taken in con-

nection with the effect of the injury upon her, and of her bodily

sufferings, also, they all become properly component parts of

such claim. There is no color for the idea that the jury were
so misled as to give damages for loss of time. We see no
error in the instruction as given. Slater y. Rink and Wife, 18
111. R. 527.

The judgment is affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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Truman Whitcomb et al, Plaintiffs in Error, v. Frances H.
Sutherland, by her next friend, Defendant in Error...;

Pe?' curiam. Since the re-argument we have attentively con-

sidered this cause, and are of opinion that the former judgment
herein was correct, and therefore now enter the same judgment,
and we do not think it necessary to add anything to the opinion

of the court given on the former hearing.

The decree is affirmed.

This case is reported in 18 111. R. 578. Upon a re-hearing of

the case the foregoing opinion was pronounced. The same
counsel who argued the cause in the first instance, were heai'd

at the re-argument.

Augustus 0. Garrett, Plaintiff in Error, ?>. William S.

Moss et al., Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO PEORIA.

Any corrupt agreement among; bidders, which prevents competition at a public sale,

is a fraud upon the owner, which will vitiate the sale.

An agreement on the part of a senior mortgagor to foreclose and sell only a part

of the mortgaged premises, and bid them off in satisfaction of his judgment, is

not a fraud upon the debtor, nor is it against justice or equity.

Where a notice of sale under a decree is ordered to be advertised in a newspaper
for "three weeks successively," or, "for three successive weeks," and there were
twenty-one days between the date of the notice and the day of sale, and there

were nineteen days intervening between the first publication and the day of sale,

and there were three publications of the notice, if it appears that no injury has
resulted to either party, the deviation from a strict compliance with the order of
publication will not be a sufficient cause for refusing to confirm the sale.

A chancellor has a large discretion in the approval or disapproval of sales made by
a master, and a bidder acquires no independent right to the property, but his

purchase depends upon the confirmation by the chancellor.

Exceptions to the proceedings of i^ master in the sale of property, taken ten years

after the approval and confirmation of his acts, come too late, unless it is made
to appear that positive injury has resulted.

If it appears that the purchasers under a sale, and the commissioner who conducted
it, used means to prevent bidding, the sale would be set aside. But such a state

of case should be shown to have existed, before the court will act.

In order to set aside a sale because of inadequacy of price, a case of sacrifice must
be made out to justify the setting aside of a sale.

While several distinct tracts of land should not be offered for sale in block, yet an
officer is not, unless required, bound to divide a tract of land into smaller parcels

than any previously indicated, and offer them for sale.

On the 14th of Sept., 1840, Garrett and wife made a mort-

gage to Moss on the south-east quarter of Sec. 5, 8 N., 8 E., for
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$1,000, due at one year, with twelve per cent, interest. At
May term, 1843, a decree of foreclosure was rendered in favor

of Moss by default, the money, $1,326.66, found due upon the

mortgage, to be paid in ten days, or tlie mortgaged premises to

be sold after being advertised three successive weeks. H. 0.

Merriman, one of the complainant's counsel, was appointed

commissioner to make the sale.

On the 8th day of February, 1841, Garrett and wife made
another mortgage to Pettingill and Bartlett, for $510, with ten

per cent, interest. At the same May term, 1843, a decree of

foreclosure was rendered in their favor, for $629.10, with the

same order of sale as made in the case of Moss, and William
Mitchell appointed commissioner to make the sale.

The decrees were rendered on the 6th day of June, 1843,

and the sales were made July 10th, 1843.

The notices vv^ere published for three weeks successively, as

appears by the reports of the commissioners.

Before the time of sale, Moss agreed with Pettingill &, Bart-

lett, that he would bid the amount due on his mortgage on that

part of the tract, about eighty acres, lying south of the Farm-
ington road, and to release the residue from his mortgage.

This agreement was reduced to writing, and is as follows

:

Agreement, Made and entered into this first day of June, A. D. 1843, between

William S. Moss, of the one jDurt, and Moses Pettengill and Amos P. Bartlett, of

the other part, witnesseth, that whereas the said Moss has commenced a suit against

Augustus 0. Garrett, Moses Pettingill and Amos P. Bartlett and others, in the

Peoria County Circuit Court of the State of Illinois, for the foreclosure of a mort-

gage held by the said Moss, given to him by the said Augustus 0. and Maiy
Garrett, on the south-east quarter of section number five, in township number eight

north, range number eight east of the fourth principal meridian, to secure the pay-

ment of one thousand dollars and interest, as is alleged by said Moss in his bill

filed in said suit, which suit is now pending and undetermined in said court. Now
it is agreed by the said Moss, that in consideration that the said Moses Pettingill

and Amos P. Bartlett will make no defense to the rendition of a judgment of fore-

closure in said suit at this term of said court, and the making of a decree by said

court, ordering so much of said land to be sold as will satisfy the mortgage of said

Moss, and so much of tlie remainder to be sold as will satisfy a mortgage on the

same premises, held by said Pettingill and Bartlett, executed to them by the said

Augustus 0. and Mary Garrett, that then on the sale of said land under the decree

of said court to be rendered in said suit, the said Moss will bid the amount of his

said mortgage on that part of the said mortgaged premises lying south of the

Peoria and Parmington road, running through the said land from east to west near

the centre of said quarter section, and will release the remainder of said land from

any incumbrance or claim held by him on the same by reason of the said mortgage

to him, or by reason of said judgment of foreclosure. Witness my hand and seal

affixed the day and year first above written.

WM. S. MOSS, [seal.]
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The quantity sold was one hundred and thirty-five acres.

Moss bought the part south of the Farmington road for $1,327.43,
and, Pettingill and Bartlett the residue for $632.67, being

$14.51 per acre.

The original bill was filed Oct. 19,1847, four years and three

months after the sales under the decrees, seeking to set aside

the sales solely upon the ground of a fraudulent combination

and conspiracy between Moss, Pettingill and Bartlett, and H.
0. Merriman, one of the commissioners, to prevent bidders from
attending the sale, and that the land was sold for less than its

value.

In this bill no claim was made or set up, that the land was
susceptible of a better division than was made, or that it ought
to have been subdivided and sold in smaller parcels, or that it

had not been advertised according to the order of the court.

Moss filed his answer and amended answer to the original bill,

and in the latter set up and asserted another title to the lands,

acquired through Ballance, who purchased the same at sheriff's

sale, upon executions against Garrett and others, issued against

them upon judgments obtained against them as securities of

Bryant, late sheriff of Peoria county.

Garrett then filed a supplemental bill, setting out the record

judgment and proceedings under which Moss's new title was
acquired, alleging that such sale was also fraudulent and void,

because the land in controversy, with other lands, were sold en

masse, and below their value, and praying also that the same
might be set aside.

It was not until July 31, 1854, more than seven years after

the filing of the original bill, that it was discovered that the

land, at the time of sale, ought to have been put up in smaller

lots, or that the sale had not been advertised according to law.

At this time an amended bill was filed, setting up these pretended

facts.

The amended answer of Moss was filed June 9th, 1848.

This answer sets up the further facts, that after the sale to

Moss on the foreclosure, Garrett should have the avails of the

spring on the land, which was sold, and by Moss deeded to the
" Peoria Water Company " for $250, which Garrett received

;

and also that Garrett might redeem from the sale in one year.

Garrett received the $250 for the spring, in stock of the

" Peoria Water Company."
After the death of Wm. Mitchell, a paper is found by his

administrators, by which Pettingill and Bartlett give to Garrett

thirty-five days time in which to redeem from their sale. This

paper is dated July 10, 1843.
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At the October term of the Circuit Court of Peoria county,

Garrett applies to the court for an order setting aside the sale

made under their decree, alleging and setting forth precisely

the same causes therefor as are stated and set forth as grounds

of relief in the plaintiff's original bill, filed in this cause.

Affidavits were filed and evidence heard for and against said

motion, and a decision made thereon overruling the same, and
Garrett prayed an appeal to the Supreme Court, which was not

prosecuted or perfected.

In the affidavits filed by Garrett upon this motion, he distinctly

states and admits, that he had made the contract with Moss that

he might redeem the premises in one year after the sale.

At April term, 1856, this cause having been submitted to the

court at the October term, A. D. 1855, upon the bills, answers,

replication, evidence, and exhibits and depositions on file, and
the court being sufficiently advised in the premises, did order,

adjudge and decree that the said complainant's bill be dismissed,

and that the complainant pay the costs of this proceeding, and
that execution issue therefor.

Merriman & Manning, and Lander, for Plaintiff in Error.

N. H. Purple and C. Beckwith, for Defendants in Error.

Walker, J. It is urged that this decree should be reversed,

and the order confirming the commissioners' reports be vacated,

because Moss, who holds a senior mortgage, and Pettingill and
Bartlett a junior mortgage, on these premises, agreed that the

latter would make no defense to Moss's suit for a foreclosure,

and that he would bid the amount of his mortgage on that por-

tion of the premises south of the Peoria and Farmington road,

and would release his mortgage to the remainder of the quarter

section.

It is a well established doctrine, that any corrupt agi-eement

amongst bidders, which prevents competition at a public sale, is

a fraud upon the owner, for which a sale should be set aside.

If this arrangement was for that purpose, and had that effect,

then these sales should be vacated, and the property resold.

Upon a careful examination of the agreement, we can only see,

from its terms, that Moss agreed that if the junior mortgagees

would interpose no defense to prevent his getting a decree of

foreclosure, he would release a portion of the premises upon
which he had the elder mortgage. To him it Avas desirable to

prevent delay, to them to collect their debt without having to

redeem from this prior incumbrance. To the debtor it could

work no injury, as it subjected the land to sale in smaller lots,
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of convenient size, which would insure a better price, and the

payment of these debts, while, if sold under both decrees and
the junior mortgagees had not been able to pay oif the prior

mortgage, they would not have bid, and after the property was
sold the debt might not have been satisfied. There was no stip-

ulation in this agreement that neither party should bid, but

Moss bound himself to bid the whole amount of his mortgage
debt upon a portion of the property, and the other mortgagees
were left perfectly free to bid more than that amount on that

part, and left him free to do the same on the remainder. In

the light in which we view this agreement, it was no more
than a release, by the senior mortgagee, of a portion of the

mortgaged premises, to the junior mortgagees. And it cannot

be doubted that he has such right, and in doing so violates no
principle of justice or equity.

It is again urged that the advertisements of the time, place

and terms of these sales were not inserted the proper length of

time. The notices were each inserted in the newspaper, first

on the 21st of June, again on the 28th, and lastly on the 5th of

July, and each bore date on the 19th of June, and the sale was
made on the 10th of July. From the date of the notices till

the day of sale there were twenty-one days ; and from the date

of the paper, in which they first appeared, there were nineteen

days intervening before the sale. In the case of Pettingill and
Bartlett's decree, it provides for the sale, etc., " after having

given notice of the time of said sale by inserting an advertise-

ment of the same, for three weeks successively, in the ' Peoria

Democratic Press,' a newspaper printed and published in the

town of Peoria, county of Peoria, State of Illinois." The
decree in favor of Moss provides for the sale, etc., "after hav-

ing advertised the same by putting up notices in three of the

most public places in Peoria county, or by inserting such an
advertisement for three successive weeks in the ' Peoria Demo-
cratic Press,' a newspaper printed and published in the town of

Peoria, Peoria county, Illinois."

In cases of the foreclosure of mortgages without redemption,

it has been the uniform practice of the court of equity, in this

State, to decree a sale of the property, for the payment of the

mortgage debt and other liens, and to pay the surplus, if any,

to the mortgagor. This seems to be the practice in most of the

States of the Union. And to effect a sale the court must impose

the duty upon the master, or upon a commissioner appointed for

that purpose. The court, when it decrees the sale, also fixes

the terms and conditions upon which it shall be made, having

reference to the interest of all the parties. It is also usual to

fix a time within which the mortgagor may pay the debt and

36
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prevent a sale. But the terms upon which the sale is to be

made, are necessarily, to a great extent, discretionary with the

court decreeing it. The master or commissioner is the agent of

the court, and derives his authority to act from the decree, and
should be required substantially to conform his acts to its condi-

tions and terms.

But on an application to have the report of his proceedings,

under the decree, confirmed, the court should not regard mere
captious objections. Any slight deviation from the require-

ments of the decree, which has not resulted in injury to either

party, should not be a cause for refusing to confirm the sale.

And while it is not the practice to refuse biddings in this State,

it is not to be doubted that the chancellor, as elsewhere, has a

large discretion, limited only by sound equitable considerations,

in the approval or disapproval of sales made by his master.

The accepted bidder at a master's sale, acquires no independent

right to have his purchase completed, but is nothing more than

a preferred bidder, who proposes for the purchase of the prop-

erty, depending upon the sound, equitable discretion of the

chancellor for a confirmation of the sale by his ministerial

agent. Freeman v. Hunt, 3 Dana R. 614 ; Campbell v. Jo/in-

son, 4 Dana R. 186; Oivenv. Oiuen, 5 Humph. R. 355. In

determining this discretion, a regard to the stability of judicial

sales has necessarily a large influence. This policy has rejected

here the practice of refusing the biddings on an offer of an

advanced price. But a higher policy, that of maintaining the

purity of decretal sales, and of preserving the public confidence

in their entire fairness, must prevail over the policy of giving

stability to them. And where there has been fraud, accident,

mistake or unfairness in the sale, the chancellor should not hesi-

tate to withhold his approval of the sale, by his commissioner.

In this case there was a sale on the day fixed by the notice,

at the time and at the place fixed by it, and by the proper per-

son. The notices were inserted three times, once in each suc-

cessive week, on the same day of each week, and the last

insertion some five days before the sale. And while the inten-

tion of the court may have been to require three full weeks
from the first publication to the day of sale, it was not required

in terms by the decree. The notices were returned and filed

with the commissioner's report, and by its approval they were
regarded as in compliance with the decree. And the com-
plainant must have so regarded them at the time, atid for many
years afterwards. In resisting the confirmation of the sales,

this was not noticed as an objection in his affidavit, and was not

urged in this proceeding until he filed his amended bill, in Feb-

ruary, 1854, ten years and nine months after these sales were
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approved. This objection is thus urged at such a length of

time after the sale was confirmed, that, unless it be shown that

positive injury resulted, the objection can have no weight to

vacate these sales. If the party had urged it promptly, upon
the filing of the master's report, it might have been heard with

more favor, but as the court has exercised its discretion in

adopting this sale, and no positive injury is shown, we do not

feel justified in reversing the decree, upon this objection.

It is again insisted that the decree should be reversed,

because the purchasers under these sales and the commissioners

used means to, and did prevent bidders from attending the sale.

If such were true, than it would amount to a fraud for which
the sale should be set aside. The evidence shows that Hotchkiss

inquired of Bartlett and of Merriman whether they supposed

the sale would be made, and they informed him that they

supposed it would not. And it also appears from the evidence,

that complainant had promised to pay the money before the day
of sale, and relying on that assurance they gave the opinion.

But he does not say that if he had attended the sale, he would
have bid a greater or even a less sum than it was sold for.

He says that he had means for the purpose of purchasing pro-

perty, that this property suited him, and he wanted to buy it

if the price at the sale suited him, but had not made up his

mind to bid until he saw how it went. He was at the place of

sale and left just before the biddings commenced, in consequence

of some one informing him that there would probably be no sale.

Who this person was, he does not remember, and he is unable to

connect it with any of the parties to the transaction. This we
think is not sufficient to establish fraud in keeping bidders from

attending the sale. And there is no evidence that any thing

was said to others for the purpose. And on the other hand it

appears that Merriman notified persons that the sale was about

to commence, and requested them to attend and bid.

It is again urged that there was such a sacrifice in the sale of

the property, that the sale should be set aside and a re-sale or-

dered. The evidence in regard to the value of this property,

like all evidence of value depending upon the opinion of wit-

nesses, is conflicting. A number of witnesses give the opinion,

that the property at the time of the sale was worth from twenty

to one hundred and twenty-five dollars an acre. Others again

fixed the value at less than twenty. And the evidence shows

that lands adjoining this were about and after that time

purchased for about the same price, and even much less than this.

Bryan sold eighty acres adjoining this tract and lying nearer the

city, the year after this sale for ten dollars an acre. Bradley,

more than a year after, purchased the undivided half of an
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adjoining quarter for sixteen dollars and sixty-six cents an acre,

and in the spring of 1846, purchased the other half at the same
price. He purchased in the spring of 1848 eighty acres of the

north-west quarter of the same section, in which this land was
situated, with thirty acres improved and in cultivation, for

twelve dollars and fifty cents per acre. And Underhill sold

land adjoining this, in 1843, at eight dollars per acre, worth
about half the price of this.

A number of witnesses give their opinion that the land

sold for its value. And Bartlett and Pettingill gave complain-

ant thirty-five days to pay the money and get back his land. If

sold at such a sacrifice, it is strange that he did not raise the

money by the sale of a portion of the land or by mortgage, and
prevent its being lost. And if it was purchased at such a

sacrifice, it is strange that they should sell it at an advance of

only about one hundred dollars near a year after they became the

owners. At the time of the sale there was an unsatisfied judg-

ment against complainant and others as securities of Bryant,

which was a lien on the premises, and the probability is, that

had some effect in fixing the value of the land. When we take

into consideration the great scarcity of money, that the property

was then only valuable for farming purposes, and that no person

could foresee the rapid growth of the city which has since

taken place, it is not strange that it should have only sold at

fourteen dollars and fifty-nine cents per acre. And in view of

all the evidence of the case, while it is conflicting, we are not

prepared to hold that there was such a sacrifice as would justify

the reversal of the decree.

It is again urged that the land was susceptible of a more
advantageous division than the one made, and the property should

have been offered in smaller lots, and failing to do so, the sale

should be set aside. It has been repeatedly held that it is

erroneous to offer several distinct tracts together, because, when
thus offered, the presumption is, that the price was by that

means depressed, as it required more means to purchase the

several tracts together, and cut off competition, and in cases of

redemption, when sold separately it affords the debtor the means
of redeeming a part, while he might be unable to redeem all.

We have been referred to no authority, and we are aware of

none, that requires a sheriff or commissioner to divide land, on
his own motion, into small parcels for sale. Yet when required

by the debtor to do so, and when it would not produce a loss on
the property, we do not hesitate in saying he should so offer it.

But in this case there does not appear to have been such a

request by the complainant or any one else. He was required

by the court to sell all, or so much as would pay the mortgage
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debt. It directed no division unless the bids had run the price

beyond the amount to be raised. And the evidence shows that

it was then valuable for farming purposes only, and the reason-

able probability is, that to have so divided it would have reduced
instead of increasing the price.

This objection was not urged against the confirmation of the

sale, and was not embraced in the original bill, from which it is

inferrable that it was not regarded as any serious objection at

the time the sale was made.
And whether we consider the evidence in the case in refer-

ence to these objections singly or collectively, we do not perceive

that the allegations of the bill are sustained. And we are of

the opinion that there was no error in the dismissal of the bill,

and that the decree of the court below should be affirmed.

Decree affirmed.

Nathaniel B. Curtiss, Appellant, v. Warrick Martin, who
sues for the use of Wilshire Scott Courtney and
Springer Harbaugh, Appellee.

appeal from MARSHALL.

It is not erroneous to sustain a demurrer to a special plea, or to strike it from the

files, if the same end can be attained under the plea of the general issue, filed

in the same case.

Where a demurrer is sustained to sp'ecial pleas, because they only amount to the

general issue, whether they did or not, is immaterial, if the facts alleged in them
could be given m evidence under that plea; and unless the bill of exceptions

shows to the contrary, it will be presumed that the evidence received was ad-

mitted under the general issue.

Where a commission issues to Jasper E. Brady, to take the testimony of J. Gardner
Coffin, if he signs it, J. E. Brady, commissioner, and certifies that he has ex-

ecuted the commission by taking the deposition of J. G. Coffin, the identity of

the parties will be presumed.

A letter from the drawer of a bill from which a promise to the holder to pay the

bill may be implied, is proper evidence, as showing a waiver, for omission to

present the bill for acceptance or payment.
The affidavit of a security for costs, may be read to the court, as laying a founda-

tion for an objection to the admission of the answer of a plaintiff to a bill of dis-

covery, which is offered as evidence to the jury.

Admissions made by the owner of a bill or note, are admissible as evidence against

a purchaser after maturity. And the evidence of a plaintiff, upon bill of discov-

ery, who sues for another, as to any matter which existed before he parted with

the bill, may be read in evidence.

The purchaser of an overdue bill or note, takes it subject to all infirmities and ob-

jections, and at his peril.

Instructions which present the same propositions of law, in nearly the same terms,

need not all be given.
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It is a proper questiou for a jury to determine, whether the presentment of a bill

has been waived.

If a drawer of a bill deposits a particular kind of funds with the drawee, to be dis-

posed of, and have the proceeds applied to meet the payment of the bill when it

becomes due, it may be considered by the jury as evidence, with other circum-

stances, as to whether a waiver has been made or not.

A subsequent payment of money may be a waiver of presentment.

A party may show any sufficient excuse for the want of dilligence, in making pro-

test for non-acceptance and non-payment.

The acceptance of a less sum, in payment, than that which is due, is not a satis-

faction of the whole debt ; unless it be in compromise of a controverted claim,

or from a debtor in failing circumstances.

The holder of a note withoat suspicion of bad faith, is presumed to be the legal

owner.

This suit was commenced in the Circuit Court of Peoria

county, on the 15th day of October, 1853, upon two bills of ex-

change, which are as follows :

$4,000. No. 1275.

Columbus, Ohio, September, 1st, 1847.

Four months after date, pay to the order of Messrs. Warrick Martin & Co., four

thousand dollars TiJ^, value received, and charge the same to account of

Your Obdt. Servant, N. B. CURTISS.
To E. Platt, Esq., Cashr.

Leather Manufacturers' Bank, New York.

$5,000. No. 1276.

Columbus, Ohio, Sept. 10th, 1847.

Pour months after date, pay to the order of Messrs. Warrick Martin & Co., five

thousand dollars, value received, and charge the same to account of

Your Obdt. Servant, N. B. CURTISS.
To E. Platt, Esq., Cashr.

Leather Manufacturers' Bank, New York.

The declaration contains five counts on each of the bills.

The first count upon the first bill describes the bill, and con-

tains the following averments : 1st, That bill was duly pre-

sented for payment at maturity, which was refused ; 2ud, That
it was duly protested for non-payment ; 3rd, That defendant was
duly notified of presentment and non-payment.

The second count is upon the second bill, and contains the

same averments as the first count.

The third count is upon the first bill, and avers : 1st, Pre-

sentment to drawee, and refusal to pay ; 2nd, That defendant

had not, at any time, funds in the hands of the drawee ; 3rd,

Drawee had not received any consideration from defendant for

the acceptance or payment by him of said bill ; 4th, Defend-

ant sustained no damage by reason of his not having notice of

non-payment.
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The fourth count is upon the second bill, and contains the

same averments as the third count.

The fifth count is upon the first bill, and contains the follow-

ing averments : 1st, That when the bill was drawn, and at its

maturity on the 4th of January, 1848, plaintiffs were ready to

present the bill to the drawee for acceptance and payment, and
to demand acceptance of said bill, and payment of the money,
and would have done so, but defendant requested the plaintiff

not to present the same for acceptance and payment, and dis-

pensed with and discharged the plaintiffs from the presentment

of the bill for acceptance and payment.

The sixth count is upon the second bill, and contains the

same averments as the fifth count.

The seventh count contains the common count, for money lent

and advanced, and paid, laid out and expended ; money had
and received by defendant for the use of the plaintiff.

The eighth count is upon an account stated.

The ninth count is upon the first bill, and contains the follow-

ing averments : That at the time of making the bill, it was
understood and agreed between the plaintiff and defendant, that

the bill should not be presented to the drawee for acceptance or

payment, but that the defendant should, at or before the ma-
turity of the bill, pay the same to the plaintiff. That the

defendant did not pay, and therefore became liable, and agreed

to pay, etc.

The tenth count is upon the second bill, and contains the fol-

lowing averments : That at the time of making the bill, it was
agreed between the plaintiff and defendant that the bill should

not be presented to the drawee for acceptance or payment, but

that defendant, before the maturity of the bill, would furnish

and place in the hands of the plaintiffs, funds to meet and pay
the bill at maturity. That defendant did not do so, and there-

fore became liable, and agreed to pay, etc.

The following pleas were filed 18th September, 1854:
1st. Nil debet to the whole declaration. Issue to the

country.

2nd. Set-off, $15,000 for goods, wares, etc., sold and de-

livered ; money lent and advanced, and paid, laid out and
expended ; money had and received ; money due and owing
from the plaintiffs to the defendant for interest; money due

upon an account stated.

Replication. Plaintiff not indebted, as stated in the plea.

Issue to the country.

3rd. Payment.
Replication. Defendant did not pay, etc. Issue to the

country.



560 OTTAWA,

Curtiss V. Martin, use, etc.

4tli. Statute of limitations, five years.

Plaintiff demurred to this plea. Demurrer sustained. De-
fendant abided by the demurrer.

6th. Causes of action set forth in the declaration, are all

upon accounts or promises not in writing, and that the several

causes of action did not, nor did any or either of them accrue

to the plaintiffs within five years.

Special demurrer to this plea, as not being responsive to

the declaration, and amounts only to the general issue. De-
murrer sustained, and defendant abided by demurrer.

11th. To fifth and sixth counts. Defendant did not request

the plaintiffs not to present said bills to the drawee for accept-

ance and payment, nor dispense with nor discharge the plain-

tiffs from presenting said bills for acceptance or payment.

To this plea there was a special demurrer, because not

responsive to the counts. Amounts only to the general issue.

Demurrer sustained. Defendant abided by demurrer.

12th. To ninth and tenth counts. That there has been no
agreement, arrangement or understanding between the defend-

ant and plaintiffs, that said bill should not be presented to the

drawee for acceptance or payment, within five years next before

the commencement of this suit, nor has defendant agreed to

pay the same within five years, etc.

Special demurrer to this plea, because it contained no answer
to the counts— no defense to the action. Carried back to the

ninth and tenth counts of the declaration. Plaintiffs abided by

demurrer.

loth. To ninth and tenth counts. That the agreement that

the plaintiffs need not present said bills to the drawee for

acceptance and payment, was a verbal agreement, made at

the same time said bills were made and executed, and not

afterwards.

Special demurrer to this plea was, no defense to the action.

Sustained to ninth and tenth counts of amended declaration.

Plaintiffs abided by the demurrer.

14th. To ninth and tenth counts. That the agreement that

the plaintiffs need not present said bills to the drawee for ac-

ceptance and payment, and that defendant would pay said bills

on or before maturity, was a verbal agreement, made at the

same time said bills were made, and not after, and that there

was no consideration for said agreement, except that stated in

said bills.

Special demurrer to this plea, no defense to the action. Sus-

tained to the ninth and tenth counts of the declaration, as

amended. Plaintiffs abided by the demurrer.
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Pleas to ninth and tenth counts, filed December 11th, 1854.

1st. Nil debet.

Demurrer sustained to ninth and tenth counts of amended
declaration. Plaintitis abided by the demurrer.

2nd. Defendant had, at maturity of the bills, funds in the

hands of the drawee sufficient to pay the same, but plaintiffs

neglected to present the same for payment.

Special demurrer. Amounts only to the general issue. Pre-

sents no defense. Sustained to ninth and tenth counts of

amended declaration. Plaintiffs abided by demurrer.

3rd. Defendant, at the maturity of the bills, had funds in

the hands of the drawee sufficient to pay said bills.

Special demurrer. Same causes. Sustained to ninth and
tenth counts of amended declaration. Plaintiffs abided by the

demurrer.

There were pleas to all the counts.

4th. Causes of action in all the counts the same. Plea same
as second plea last before stated.

Special demurrer. Same causes. Sustained. Defendant
abided by demurrer.

5th. Causes of action in all the counts the same. Plea same
as third plea last before stated.

Special demurrer. Same causes. Sustained. Defendant
abided by demurrer.

6th. Causes of action in all the counts the same. That bills

were made in the State of Ohio, payable in the State of New
York, and that by the laws of Ohio and New York, a parol

contract to dispense with presentment and demand for payment,
made at the time of the making of the bills, was void, being

inconsistent with the terms, conditions and legal import of the

bills.

Special demurrer. Same causes, and also because the laws

of New York have nothing to do with the construction of the

contract. Sustained. Defendant abided by demurrer.

7th. That before sai,d bills were, made, he paid plaintiffs

$9,000 in bank notes, issued by the New Hope and Delaware
Bridge Company, the full amount of said bills. That they were
received by plaintiffs for $9,000, and credited by plaintiffs to

defendant upon their books. That said notes, when paid to

plaintiffs, were in good repute, and circulated at par, the com-

pany solvent, and redeemed its notes in specie ; that the plain-

tifl's might have paid the same out at par, but retained them
until the bank broke, and then charged them to the defendant.

Special demurrer. Same causes as are assigned against the

validity of the first plea of Dec. 11, 1854. Overruled. Leave

to reply was granted.
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Replications.

1st. Said New Hope and Delaware Bridge Company notes

were not accepted by plaintiffs in payment or discharge of said

bills of exchange, as stated in said plea.

Demurrer to this replication overruled. Defendant abided by
the demurrer.

2nd. The notes of the New Hope and Delaware Bridge
Company Bank were left with the plaintiffs as collateral security

for the payment of said bills of exchange, and to be put in cir-

culation in the ordinary course of business, and to.be allowed

as payment only so far as put in circulation and value should

be received therefor.

Before they could be put in circulation, the bank failed,

leaving $5,880 in plaintiffs' hands, which were returned to de-

fendant on the 20th June, 1848, and accepted by him as part of

the same $9,000 so deposited by him with plaintiffs.

Rejoinders to second replication to seventh plea, filed Dec.
11th, 1854.

1st. Said notes of the New Hope and Delaware Bridge
Company were not left with plaintiffs as collateral security for

the payment of said bills, and to be put in circulation in the

ordinary course of their business. Issue to the country.

2nd. That said $5,880 New Hope and Delaware Bridge
Company notes were not returned by plaintiffs to the defendant,

and received as part of the $9,000 deposited with plaintiffs by
defendant—but w^ere sold by plaintiffs to defendant for $1,470,
which was to be in full satisfaction of said bank notes, and also

all matters connected with said bills of exchange.

Surrejoinder. Said $5,880 New Hope and Delaware Com-
pany notes were not sold by plaintiffs to defendant for $1,470
in satisfaction of said bills of exchange, as alleged. Issue to

the country.

8th. That after making the bills of exchange, and before

they became due, defendant paid plaintiffs $9,000, the amount
due on said bills, in notes of the New Hope and Delaware
Bridge Company, a company duly authorized to issue bank
notes. That the same was at the time credited to the defend-

ant by plaintiffs—notes good at the time, passed at par, and
were redeemed in specie. The bank broke about two weeks
after, and the money was depreciated. Notes w^ere paid to

plaintiffs in December, 1847. They retained them until June,

A. D. 1848, and then sold them to the defendant for $1,470,
which was to be a full satisfaction for said notes or bills.

Special demurrer. Same causes. Sustained. Defendant
abided by the demurrer.
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Pleas filed March 14th, 1855, to the fifth and sixth counts.

1st. That the request to dispense with the presentment of

said bills to the drawee was a verbal one, made at the time of

the making of the bills, and at no other time.

Replication. Request not a verbal one, as stated in the plea.

Issue to the country.

2nd. Defendant at no time after making said bills, requested

the plaintiffs not to present them to the drawee for acceptance

or payment, nor dispense with or discharge the plaintifl's from

such presentment for acceptance or payment.

Plaintiffs moved to strike this plea from the files. Motion
sustained.

3rd. Bills were made in the State of Ohio. That by the

laws of Ohio, a contract to dispense with presentation of same
for acceptance and payment was void.

Replications.

1st. That contracts were not void. Issue to the country.

2nd. Said bills were not drawn in the State of Ohio. Issue

to the country.

4th. Bills were made payable in the State of New York,
and by the laws of the State of New York, contracts for ac-

ceptance and payment were void, as being inconsistent with the

terms, conditions and legal import of the said bills.

Demurrer sustained. Defendant abided by the demurrer.

Additional plea filed 2nd February, 1858.

That on the 1st January, A. D. 1850, and before tlie com-

mencement of this suit, defendant settled and accounted with

the plaintiffs, of and concerning said bills of exchange in said

declaration mentioned, and settled and fully paid the same and
all the interest and damages then due thereon.

Replications.

1st. Defendant did not settle and account as stated in the

plea. Issue to the country.

2nd, Defendant never did fully pay the bills of exchange in

plaintiffs' declaration mentioned, and interest and damages then

due. Issue to the countrv.

A motion was made to suppress the deposition of J. G. Coffin

and J. B. McVay, taken by the plaintiffs, for the following

reasons

:

Of J. G. Coffin for the following reasons

:

1st. Because the notice is to take the deposition of J. Gard-

ner Coffin, and the deposition taken purports to be that of J.

G. Coffin, there being nothing to establish the identity of the

parties.

2nd. Because the commission is directed to Jasper E. Brady,
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and executed by J. E. Brady, without any evidence of the iden-

tity of the parties.

3rd. Defendant excepted to the answer of the witness to the

2nd interrogatory, so far as the same related to the business

of defendant, or his contemplated business, because he said he
learned it from conversation with him, without stating what the

conversation was.

4th. To the answer to the 5th interrogatory, because said

witness attempted to explain the meaning of a written contract.

5th. To the answer to the 6th interrogatory for irrelevancy

and incompetency.

6th. To the answer to the 7th interrogatory, because it sets

up a parol contract, contrary to the terms, conditions and legal

effect of the written contract declared on.

7th. To the answer to the 8th interrogatory, because the

same is irrelevant and incompetent, and the statement of the

witness as to the return of the notes is uncertain and indefinite.

Of Ira B. McVay

:

1st. Because the commission is directed to Jasper E. Brady,
and is executed by J. E. Brady, without any evidence of the

identity of the parties.

2nd. To answer to 1st interrogatory, because he says " the

drafts were given in some way in conveyance with the New
Hope and Delaware Bridge Co., and is wholly irrelevant."

The court overruled the motion, with the following excep-

tions :

" In Coffin's answer to 5th interrogatory, the words ' waiving
acceptance ' were put on the face of the draft, for the purpose

of obviating the necessity of the bank's accepting them, or |iav-

ing them protested for non-acceptance, as it was well under-

stood at the time, that Mr. Curtiss had no funds in the bank to

draw upon."

To 6th interrogatory

:

" From the conversation which I had with the defendant, at

the time the drafts were drawn or negotiated, it was not in-

tended that he should have funds in the bank to meet them at

their maturity ; the arrangement contemplated a different mode
of payment."

The defendant excepted to the opinion of the court, and the

court then and there signed a bill of exceptions.

The plaintiffs, to maintain the issue on their part, read in evi-

dence two bills of exchange, one dated September 1st, and the

other September 10th, 1847, which said bills of exchange are

those described ante.

He next read in evidence the deposition of /. G. Coffin,

taken under a commission to Jasper E. Brady, upon interroga-
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tories to J. Gardner Coffin, which interrogatories and answers

read, are as follows :

On the part of the plaintiffs

:

1st. Do you know Warrick Martin and Frederick Kahl,

plaintiffs above named, and Nathaniel B. Curtiss ? How long

have you known them, or either of them, and where does said

Curtiss now reside ?

Ans. To the 1st interrogatory, he answers and says, I know
Warrick Martin and Frederick Kahl, the plaintiffs in this case,

and also Nathaniel B. Curtiss, the defendant. 1 have known
Martin for at least twenty years, and Curtiss and Kahl for, I

suppose, twelve years.

2nd. In what business were said plaintiffs engaged in the

fall of 1847, and under what name and style did they then con-

duct their said business, and where ? What was the business

of said Curtiss at that time ?

Ans. To the 2nd interrogatory, he answers and says, in the

fall of 1847 the plaintiffs were engaged in the business of ex-

change brokers, in the name and style of Warrick Martin &,

Co., in the city of Pittsburg, Pennsylvania. At that time

Curtiss was not engaged in any business ; he was making ar-

rangements to go into a sort of brokerage business, in Philadel-

phia or New York, and to act as an agent for the New Hope
and Delaware Bridge Co. Bank. This is my recollection of

what he was about engaging in, from what I learned in conver-

sation with him.

3rd. Do you know the handwriting of said Curtiss, and how
do you know it ?

Ans. To the 3rd interrogatory, he answers and says, I know
the handwriting of Curtiss ; I have seen him write frequently.

4th. Look at the papers now shown you, purporting to be

drafts or bills of exchange, drawn by said Curtiss, in favor of

Warrick Martin & Co. ; describe them by numbers, dates, re-

spective amounts for which drawn, on whom drawn, and on what
time. State in whose handwriting they are filled up and signed,

if you know ; mark and g,ttach the same to your deposition, and

designate the marks so placed by you thereon, in your answer

to this question.

Ans. To the 4th interrogatory, he answers and says, one of

the drafts is numbered 1275, dated September 1st, 1847, for

four thousand dollars, drawn on E. Piatt, Esq., cashier of the

Leather Manufacturers' Bank, New York, at four months after

date ; the other is numbered 1276, dated September 10th, 1847,

for five thousand dollars, drawn on E. Piatt, Esq., cashier of

. the Leather Manufacturers' Bank, New York ; they are both

filled up and signed in the handwriting of N. B. Curtiss, the de-
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fendant. I have marked these drafts J. G. C, No 1, and J. G.

C, No. 2, on the back of each draft.

5th. What word, if any, do you find written across the face

of said drafts ? By whom, and when were they written, if you
know ? Were you or not present at the time when said drafts,

or either of them, were or was made ; and do you or not know
the reason for placing said words thereon ?

Ans. To the 5th interrogatory, he answers and says, the

words " waiving acceptance " are written across the face of

these drafts, in the handwriting of Curtiss. My recollection is,

that the drafts were made by Curtiss in Warrick Martin & Co.'s

office, in Pittsburg, in the fore part of December, 1847. 1 was
present when the arrangement was made for giving the drafts,

but I do not recollect whether I saw the drafts filled up or not,

but I presume I did.

[Here follows that portion of the answer which was sup-

pressed.]

6th. Had or had not said defendant, at the time of making
said drafts, or when they or either of them fell due, any funds in

said Leather Manufacturers' Bank, or in the hands of said

drawee, to meet said drafts ? What have you understood from

said defendant, if anything, on that subject ?

Ans. To the 6th interrogatory, he answers and says, [here

follows that part of the answer excluded by the court,] I can-

not say whether the defendant had any funds in the bank at

the time they matured.

7th. Do you or not know the reason why said drafts were
given ? What understanding or arrangement, if any, was made
in regard to them, or existed at the time ? What consideration

was paid to said Curtiss therefor, and how was it expected said

drafts would be paid ? Please state fully all your knowledge
touching the several branches of this question.

Ans. To the 7th interrogatory, he answers and says, War-
rick Martin & Co. gave Curtiss their drafts on New York, for

ten thousand dollars, and received these drafts and one thou-

sand dollars in money, from Mr. Curtiss, in payment ; the drafts

which Warrick Martin & Co. gave for ten thousand dollars,

were paid by the person on whom they were drawn. At the

time Warrick Martin & Co. received the drafts from Curtiss, it

was agreed between the parties, that the plaintiffs should receive

nine thousand dollars of the notes of the New Hope and Dela-

ware Bridge Co. Bank, and if they paid them out, it was to be,

with the thousand dollars in cash, a payment of the drafts

;

but if they did not, then whatever amount they did pay out was
to be credited upon the said drafts, and defendant was to pay

the balance ; they did receive nine thousand dollars of the notes
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of tlie said bank, at different times, and paid a part of them
out, when the bank failed, leaving in their hands five thousand

eight hundred and eighty dollars. At the several times at

which the said notes of said bank were received by plaintiffs,

the amount was placed to the credit of the defendant, on their

books. About, I suppose, the time that these drafts matured,

they were charged, together with the amount of the bank notes

unused, to the defendant, on the same books. These facts I

state, without a reference to the books, from recollection of

what occurred at the time, and from a reference to the books
this morning, I find my recollection to be correct ; by these

facts, I mean the charges and credits to the defendant.

8th. If funds or securities of any kind were deposited witli

said Warrick Martin & Co., to apply in any way on said draft,

state what they were, by whom, the amount and nature thereof,

on what terms, and when left ; the connection of defendant with,

or his interest in said securities ; whether any and what part of

them was used or disposed of by said Warrick Martin <fe Co.,

and how much, if any, of said funds or securities were not used

by said firm, or applied on said drafts ; how much of them ; why
they were not all used, and what became of those not used, and
what proportion of said drafts remained unpaid, if any

;
please

state the whole fully ; what, if anything, passed between said

parties, to your knowledge, in relation thereto
;
your situation

at the time, and means of knowledge in the premises.

Ans. To the 8th interrogatory he answers and says, the

notes of the New Hope and Delaware Bridge Company Bank,
which were deposited with plaintiffs by defendant, and which
were not used, were returned to defendant, according to my
recollection, in June, 1848, at which time there appears a credit

on the books of Warrick Martin & Co., to the defendant, of one

thousand four hundred and seventy dollars, leaving a balance

due on the draft of four thousand four hundred and ten dollars

against the defendant, as appears from the books. I was, at the

time of the transactions which I have related, book-keeper and
clerk of Warrick Martin Sf Co.

I have fully answered all the rest of this interrogatory in my
answer to the seventh interrogatory.

Deposition of Ira B. McVay.
1st. Examine the papers attached to the deposition of J.

Gardner Cof&n herein, purporting to be drafts drawn by N. B.

Curtiss, in favor of Warrick Martin & Co. upon E. Piatt, Esq.,

Cashier of the Leather Manufacturers' Bank, dated September
1st, and September 10th, 1847, and numbered 1275 and 1276,

respectively, and state what you know, if anything, relative to

the making of said drafts by said Curtiss ; the occasion of giv-
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ing the same ; what was the understanding and arrangement
between the parties in relation thereto, and hosv you derive your

knowledge on the suljject.

Ans. To the first interrogatory, he answers and says, I have

examined the drafts mentioned in this interrogatory, and at-

tached to J. G. Coffin's deposition. I know that these drafts

were drawn and signed by N. B. Curtiss ; they were given some
way in connection with some notes of the New Hope and Dela-

ware Bridge Company Bank, which notes were left with and
forwarded to Warrick Martin & Co. for circulation. There was
a considerable amount of these notes in the hands of Warrick
Martin & Co. uncirculated at the time the bank failed, but I

cannot say what the amount was. I know nothing about the

understanding and arrangement between the parties in relation

to the matter. All the knowledge I have of these, results from

the fact that I was teller in the office of Warrick Martin & Co.,

except that I know the handwriting of the body of the drafts,

and the signatures thereto to be in the handwriting of Curtiss.

I have frequently seen him write.

2nd. What, if anything, have you heard said Curtiss say

about the drafts, or either of Ihem, remaining in whole or in

part unpaid ; why they were not fully paid ; how much was still

due ; when, where, and to whom, and under what circumstances

were these statements made ?

Ans. To the second interrogatory, he answers and says, I

have no distinct recollection of the purport of any conversations

of Mr. Curtiss about these drafts ; I have heard him talk about

them, but not feeling any interest in the matter, I do not recollect

the purport of his conversations.

To the 3th interrogatory, he says, I never heard defendant

make any promise to pay these drafts.

The defendant objected to said depositions, for irrelevancy

and incompetency. The court overruled the objection and
admitted the evidence, and the defendant excepted.

Plaintiffs next read in evidence a letter from the defendant to

Warrick Martin & Co., dated January 8th, 1847, together with

the postoffice mark or stamp thereon, which said letter is as

follows

:

New York, January 8th, 1847.

Messrs. Warrick Martin & Co. — Gevts : Your favor of the 4th instant

was duly received and contents noted. No one can regret the course things have

talven more than the writer of this, and T deem it unnecessary to multiply words

with you, but when the proper time comes, I will make square work; at present

we are completely tied up, and cannot CA'er pay the bank what we owe her in her

own notes, as an attachment has been issued against the bank as a foreign cor-

poration. It will depend on what course the bank pursues towards us, what time
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I shall get in proper position ; but rest assured the time will come, and now take

notice—I wish you to write me immediately upon the receipt of this, stating the

exact amount of N. Hope notes you have on hand, received from me, wliieii vou

have never circulated ; state also that yoa must hold them as collateral until

some arrangement is made about that bill ; without going into particulars, also

at what price the whole or any part of them can be sold in Pittsburgh, and in

that letter state nothing else. I wish to show that letter to Mitchel, who knows

nothing of my arrangement with you, and it is best as things are now that he

should not. The $9,000 N. H. was charged to me, and I wish to make a return

of what was not used, and although I cannot command the same notes, I can

obtain them from other sources. Be discreet, and keep your own councils, and

by so doing I trust you will promote your own interests as well as mine. I

think you had better not correspond with St. John on the subject. I shall come

to Pittsburgh as soon as I can leave New York. Please let me hear from you

soon. Kespectfully,

N. B. CURTISS.
Messrs. Wakrick Martin & Co.,

Bankers, Pittsburgh, Pa. .
•

'

The defendant then read to the jury a bill of discovery filed

in this cause against Warrick Martin, May 13th, 1857, stating

that he did not read the same as evidence, but only for the

purpose of showing the application and relevancy of the answer
of the said Martin to the same.

The defendant tlien offered to read the answer of said Martin
to said bill of discover}^ to w-hicli the plaintiif objected, and
before the said answer was read, the plaintiff read the affidavit

of Jonathan K. Cooper, filed February 2, 1858, which is as

follows

:

Jonathan K. Cooper, being duly sworn, says that he is and has been of coun-

sel for said Courtney and Harbaugh, the parties in interest in this suit, ever since

the same was instituted; that the firm of Cooper and Reynolds, of which affiant is

a member, received from said Courtney and Harbaugh the bills of exchange declared

on, and on which said suit is founded, some four or five years since, and were then

and still are retained by them, as the holders and equitable owners and holders of

said bills, to institute and prosecute said suit, and to look to them alone as the par-

ties to whom alone they are responsible for its management, and the disposal of

whatever may come to their hands in the prosecution of said claim. Said suit was

originally brought in the name of sa!id Martin and Frederick Kahl, (since deceased,)

for the use of said Courtney and Harbaugh, but neither said affiant nor said Rey-

nolds, as affiant is informed and believes, ever knew or had any intercourse with

said Kahl, nor with said Martin till about a year since, when said Martin came to

Peoria. Affiant states that he lias knowledge, derived as well from said Curtiss as

from said Courtney and Harbaugh, that said Courtney and Harbaugh are the real

parties in interest in this suit. Said Curtiss has uniformly, since affiant's connec-

tion with the subject, recognized said Courtney and Harbaugh as the actual parties

in interest, and entuled to control and manage the same, and has on more than one

occasion, proposed to treat with them for the settlement of said claim, and as con-

firmatory in part hereof, affiant refers to the affidavit of said Curtiss, filed in said

37
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cause, under date of March 26th, 1855, for which purpose only, affiant asks to

have the same taken and treated as part hereof. Affiant has heard said Curtiss say

iu connection with propositions of settlement, that if the money was coming

to the said Martin or his family, he, said Curtiss, might be induced to make more

liberal offers, but that as not a dollar of anything he might pay would come to

them, he was not disposed to do anything better than he had offered.

JONATHAN K. COOPER.
Sworn to before me, this second day of February,

A. D. 1858. James Wescott, Cla-h.

The defendant objected to the reading of said affidavit, be-

cause said Cooper was interested in the suit, he being security

for costs, and on account of its incompetency and irrelevancy.

The affidavit was read to the court only, with a view and for the

purpose of laying a foundation for an objection to the answer

of said Martin, and therefore the plaintiff's' counsel objected to

the reading of the answer of said Martin in evidence. The
court overruled the objection, and plaintiffs excepted to the

opinion of the court, and the answer was read in evidence.

The plaintiff then olfered in evidence a bill of discovery,

filed in this cause by the defendant against one of the then

plaintiffs, Frederick Kahl, on the 16th May, 1855, which is the

same, substantially, as the bill of discovery filed by the said

defendant against Warrick Martin in said cause, stating that

one object of the evidence was to contradict the answer of said

Martin. The defendant objected to the same as evidence for

such purpose, but the court overruled the objection and admitted

the same in evidence.

Defendant admitted that an injunction had been issued upon
the filing of the bill of discovery against Frederick Kahl.

The jury found a verdict for the plaintiff for debt, $4,410,
and $3,551.28 damages. The defendant entered a motion for

a new trial. .

The errors assigned are

—

1st. Sustaining the demurrer of plaintiff to the 4th, 6th and
11th pleas of the defendant, filed Sept. 18, 1854.

2nd. Sustaining plaintiff's demurrer to pleas Nos. 4, 5, 6

and 8, filed Dec. 11, 1854.

3rd. Rendering judgment for the plaintiff upon the verdict.

4th. Overruling demurrer to plaintiff's first replication to

the 7th plea, filed Dec. 11, 1854.

5th. Striking from files 2nd plea, filed March 14, 1855.

6th. Sustaining demurrer to 4th plea, filed March 14, 1855.

7th. Hefasing to suppress depositions of J. G. Coffin and
Ira B. McYay.

8th. Admitting said depositions in evidence.

9th. Admitting improper evidence, offered by plaintiff.
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10th. Giving the instructions asked by plaintiff.

11th. Refusing instructions asked by the defendant.

12th. Overruling defendant's motion for a new trial.

loth. Entering judgment on the verdict.

N. H. Purple, for Appellant.

Glover & Cook, and J. K. Cooper, for Appellees.

Walker, J. The first objection urged against this judgment,

is the sustaining the plaintiff's demurrer to the defendant's plea

to the fifth and sixth counts of the declaration. This plea trav-

ersed the allegations in these counts, that when the bill was
drawn and at its maturity, defendant requested plaintiff not to

present the same for acceptance and payment, and dispensed

with and discharged the plaintiff from the presentment of the

bill for acceptance and payment. The first plea filed, was a

plea of nil debet to the whole declaration, which fully traversed

every material allegation it contained. And this plea did no
more than again traverse facts already traversed. According
to the ancient rules of pleading, the defendant had a right to

file such a plea as this, traversing any material allegation in the

declaration, or he might plead the general issue. When he

pursued the former course, it put the plaintiff upon the proof of

the fact traversed, and failing to prove that fact, he failed in

his action ; and by pleading the general issue, he put tlie plain-

tiff to the proof of every material allegation, and failing in any

one of them, he was defeated in a recovery. But we do not

understand the defendant has the right to plead both pleas in

the same action, and upon doing so, the court may strike such a

plea from the files as unnecessarily incumbering the record. By
having filed the general issue, everything could be attained un-

der it that could be under both. And it was in the nature of,

and in part amounted to the general issue, and was obnoxious

to a special demurrer for that reason, as that plea had already

been filed. There was no error in sustaining this demurrer.

A demurrer was sustained to the fourth and fifth pleas, filed

December, 1854, on the ground that these pleas only amounted
to the general issue. Whether they did or not is not material,

if the facts alleged in them could have been given in evidence

mider the general issue already pleaded in this action. Unless

the bill of exceptions showed that the evidence was offered on

the trial and rejected by the court, the presumption would be

that it had been admitted under the general issue.

The same may be said of each of the remaining pleas, to

which demurrers were sustained. And as the bill of exceptions
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nowhere shows that the evidence which was admissible, as well

under them as under the general issue, was rejected by the

court, there was no error in sustaining the demurrers to these

pleas, for which the judgment should be reversed.

It is insisted that the court erred in refusing to suppress the

deposition of CofFm, because the notice was to take the deposi-

tion of J. Gardner Coffin, and the deposition taken purports to

be that of J. G. Coffin, and because the commission is directed

to Jasper E. Brady, and executed by J. E. Brady, when there

was no evidence to identify the persons as being the same. We
see that a commission was issued to a person giving his full

name, and was executed by a person of the same surname, and
with the initial letters of his christian name. This, it is be-

lieved, is sufficient to raise a presumption, that hardly admits of

a doubt, that he is one and the same person, and in addition, he

certifies that he acts in pursuance of the commission which is

annexed to the deposition, and he signs his name to the certifi-

cate as commissioner. This, Ave think, is sufficiently certain,

that the person to whom the commission was directed had exe-

cuted it. He also certifies, that in pursuance to the commission

he had taken the deposition of J. G. Coffin. In the commission

he was commanded to take the deposition of J. Gardner Coffin,

and we think the certificate renders it reasonably and sufficiently

certain that he had examined the proper person. The same
objections were taken to McVay's deposition, and were properly

overruled. We are also of the opinion, that there was no error

in overruling the motion to suppress these depositions for the

other reason assigned, and that they were properly permitted to

be read in evidence on the trial, as the evidence was pertinent

and material under the issue.

It is insisted that the court erred in admitting the letter of

defendant, written to Warrick Martin & Co., from New York,

under date of the 8th of January, 1848, and mailed to their

address at Pittsburgh, on the same day. The materiality of

this letter under the issue, will depend upon whether a subse-

quent promise or agreement to pay by the drawer of a lull made
to the drawee or holder, who had failed to present it for accept-

ance or payment, waives the right to insist that he is discharged

from liability, on account of such failure to present. It is said

by Chitty, in his treatise on Bills, that, " The consequences,

however, of a neglect to give notice of non-payment of a bill

or note, or to protest a foreign bill, may be waived by the per-

son entitled to take advantage of them. Thus, it has been

decided, that a payment of a part, or a promise to pay the

whole or part, or to see it paid, or an acknowledgment that it

must be paid, or a promise that he will set the matter to rights,
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or a qualified promise, or a mere unaccepted offer of composi-

tion made by the person insisting on a want of notice, after he

was aware of the laches, to the holder of a bill, amounts to a

waiver of the consequence of the laches of the holder, and
admits his right of action. Where there has not been an
express waiver of notice of dishonor, facts implying' a waiver

must be left to the jury." Page 501. In this letter there are

expressions which clearly imply a promise to pay the bills held

by the plaintiff, and it was, for that reason, proper evidence to

go to the jury.

It is urged, that the court erred in admitting the affidavit of

Cooper, because he was security for costs in the suit. It

appears that this affidavit was read for the purpose of laying a

foundation for an objection to the admission of the answer of

Martin, the plaintiff" of record, to a bill of discovery, filed by
defendant. This evidence was, obviously, directed to the court

and not to the jury, and notwithstanding it was read to the court,

the answer of plaintiff" was permitted to be read, and we arc at

a loss to see in what manner it could have prejudiced the

defendant in the slightest degree.

It was also urged, that the court erred in permitting the

plaintiff to read in evidence a bill of discovery, exhibited by
defendant, against Frederick Kahl, one of the then plaintiffs,

for the purpose of contradicting the answer of the plaintiff,

Martin, On the argument, it was urged with a considerable

degree of earnestness, that the defendant had no right to

discovery from the plaintiff" of record, who sues for the use of

the equitable holder of a bill or note. And it was insisted,

that as his admissions were not evidence against the holder,' his

answer to a bill of discovery, for the same reason, should be

rejected. It is believed to bo the law, that any admissions

made by the holder, while he was the owner of the bill or note,

are, as against a purchaser after maturity, admissible. And even

if they were not, we see no reason why the defendant should be

deprived of the evidence of the plaintiff, simply because he may
have instituted suit for the use of some other person. When
the equitable holder purchases a note or bill over due and dis-

honored, he takes it subject to all of its infirmities, and the law
requires him to ascertain whether the maker or other person

apparently liable, has any defense, and failing to do so, he acts

at his peril, and must submit to any loss he has incurred for the

want of care in purchasing. We think that all the reasons,

why a plaintiff suing for the use of another, should be required

to discover any matter of defense which existed before he

parted with the instrument, apply with equal force as in the

case of any other plaintiff. And it has been held by this court.
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that the partj^ against whom an answer to a bill of discovery

has been read, may contradict it by any legitimate evidence.

The court says, " It is true, that, after reading the answer to

the jury, the appellants were not at liberty to discredit it, by
impeaching the general reputation of the appellee for truth ; for

the reason, that a party is not permitted to show that his own
witness is unworthy of belief; but he may always controvert

the correctness of the statements made by his own witness, by
the introduction of other evidence, and in that way discredit his

testimony. An answer to a bill of discovery is entitled to no
higher consideration than the answers of a party's own witness

upon the stand, and may be controverted in the same way."
Chambers et al. v. Warren, 13 111. R. 321.

There would seem to be greater reason to permit the benefi-

cial plaintiff to contradict the answer of the nominal plaintiff,

than to permit a defendant to do so, after having compelled the

discovery, and if he were not permitted to do so, his position

would be worse than that of the defendant or nominal plaintiff.

And such a rule would be manifestly unjust.

The case of Chambers v. Warren is, we think, decisive of

the question, and renders further discussion unnecessary.

The plaintiff asked for, and the court gave, these instructions,

to which the defendant excepted :

1. That if the jury believe, from the evidence, that at the

time the bills sued on were made, Curtiss agreed to waive or

dispense with the presentment of said bills for acceptance and
payment, the liability of said Curtiss on said bills was complete

at their maturity, without presentment for acceptance or pay-

ment, or protest for non-acceptance or non-payment, or notice

thereof to said Curtiss.

2. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that when said

notes were made, Curtiss deposited with Warrick Martin & Co.,

notes of the Now Hope and Delaware Bridge Company equal in

amount to said bills, and from the proceeds of which it was
agreed by said parties, said bills would be paid, said Warrick
Martin & Co. were not bound to call on the drawee of said

bills for acceptance or payment, but might at once sue Curtiss

on said bills when they fell due, if not then paid conformably

to the understanding of the parties, out of the fund so provided.

3. That the payment by Curtiss, if proven, of any part of

said bills after they fell due, is in law a waiver of presentment

to the drawee for acceptance and payment, and notice for non-

acceptance and non-payment.

4. That the counts in the plaintiff's declaration, alleging due

diligence in presenting said bills to the drawee for acceptance

and payment, and protest thereof for non-acceptance and non-
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payment, arc sustained by proof of anything showing a suffi-

cient excuse for the want of such diligence.

5. An acceptance by a creditor from his debtor of a less

sum than is admitted by the debtor to be due, is not a satisfac-

tion of the whole debt, and will not bar a suit by the creditor

to recover the balance of the debt.

6. If Curtiss was indebted to Martin & Kahl in a sum
exceeding five thousand dollars, and if Martin & Kahl agreed

to take twenty-five cents on the dollar of their debt in full satis-

faction of the whole debt, and in pursuance of said agreement
Curtiss paid twenty-five cents on the dollar of his debt to Mar-
tin <fe Kahl, these facts would not be a bar to a recovery, by
Martin & Kahl, of the remainder of said debt.

7. A bill of exchange payable on a specified day, and not

to be presented for acceptance till it is presented for payment,
and if in such case acceptance is waived, it dispenses with pre-

sentment for payment also, and the drawee is at once liable

upon it, if not paid at maturity.

8. If the jury believe, from the evidence, that Warrick
Martin & Co. received from said Curtiss, and held the notes of

the New Hope and Delaware Bridge Company, as collateral

security to the payment of the said bills of exchange sued on,

the sale of said notes, or any part of them, to said Curtiss,

by said Warrick Martin & Co., for twenty-five cents on the

dollar, or any other price, would not discharge said bills of

exchange, only to the amount actually paid by said Curtiss for

said notes, upon such purchase.

9. The possession by Courtney & Harbaugh, of the bills

sued on, are evidence of ownership in said Courtney & Harbaugh.
10. The fact that this suit is brought and prosecuted upon

this record in the name of Martin, for the use of Courtney &
Harbaugh, is evidence from which the jury may presume that

said Courtney & Harbaugh are the real parties in interest.

11. If the jury shall be of opinion that the plaintiffs are

entitled to recover, they shall find for said plaintiffs the amount
of said bills of exchange still unpaid, as debt, and interest on
that amount from the time it fell due, as damages.

12. If the defendant, Curtiss, did give to the plaintiffs the

bills of exchange sued on in this case, and did deposit with the

plaintiff $9,000 of notes of the New Hope and Delaware
Bridge Company, with the agreement that plaintiffs should put

said notes into circulation, so far as they could, and so far as said

notes were put in circulation the same were to be credited upon
the bills of exchange, and that Curtiss should pay the balance of

said bills of exchange, and plaintiff' did circulate the New Hope
and Delaware Bridge Company notes, until said company failed.
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and liad $5,580 of said notes on hand at that time, and Curtiss

purchased the said notes of plaintiffs for twenty-five cents on
the dollar, said notes being then held as collateral security for

the payment of said bills of exchange, then the sale of said

New Plope and Delaware notes to Curtiss would not discharge

the liability of Curtiss on said bills of exchange, except as to

the amount Avhich plaintiff actually received from said New
Hope and Delaware Bridge Company.

13. This suit being brought for the use of Springer Har-
baugh and Wilshire S. Courtney, the presumption of the law is,

that they are tlie real parties in interest in this suit.

14, Although the answer of Warrick Martin has been ad-

mitted in evidence, yet the jury are not bound to take it as

absolutely true ; they are to give it just such weight as they

believe it is entitled to, as a means of coming at the truth.

We will take occasion to say that it is a matter of regret that

the records of courts should be incumbered by numerous instruc-

tions presenting the same proposition of law in the same terms,

or so nearly so as to leave no difference in their meaning. We
can see no benefit resulting from such a practice, and think it

should be discouraged, and when asked, no more of them should

be given by the court than embody the principle intended to be

announced. The practice seems to be growing, and it can have

no other tendency that we can perceive, than to confuse the

jury, and induce them to suppose that the slight variance in the

language implies a difference of principle. A number of the

foregoing instructions are of this character, and should for that

reason have l)een refused, though containing correct legal propo-

sitions.

In determining the question of whether these instructions

were properly given, it will be necessary to ascertain what the

law is, in regard to the rights and liability of parties to nego-

tiable paper.

The docrine as laid down by Story on Bills, p. 438, sec. 371,

seems to be the well-established law. He says, " So, if there

be an express agreement, either verbal or in writing, between
any of the parties to the bill, to waive or dispense witli the

necessity of a due presentment of the bill at its maturity, that will,

as between themselves, although not as to other parties, consti-

tute a sufficient excuse for non-presentment thereof." The first

instruction announces this legal proposition, and it was a ques-

tion for the jury to find, whether a presentment was waived by
agreement of the parties, and there was evidence in the case

that justified its being given.

The second instruction on the same principle was properly

given. It told the jury that if the drawer had placed in the
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hands of the payee, at the time the bills were drawn, the amount
of the bills in a particular kind of funds to be disposed of, with
the agreement by the parties, that the proceeds of these funds

should be applied to meet the bills when due, that such agree-

ment would amount to a waiver of presentment, and that the

payee might sue the drawer at maturity, if they were then not

paid according to the agreement. The evidence all tends to

show that presentment was dispensed with, and that notice was
not required. The drawer wrote across the face of the bills

" waiving acceptance," and that he had placed in the hands of

the payees, funds to be converted to meet these bills, all of which
showed an intention and agreement to waive a presentment
and notice.

The jury are told by the third of tliese instructions, that if

they believe, from the evidence, that defendant paid any part

of these bills after they fell due, it would be a waiver of pre-

sentment for acceptance and payment. This Ave have already

seen is the law, and there was evidence in the case which jus-

tified its being given. The evidence showed a subsequent pay-

ment, and it was for the jury to determine of what character it

was.

The fourth instruction was properly given, as the decisions

settle, that evidence which shows an excuse for not using dili-

gence, supports the averment of diligence. Taunton Bank v.

Richardson, 5 Pick. R. 436 ; Baker v. Parke?', 6 Pick. R. 80.

The fifth instruction presents the question, Avhether the accept-

ance of a smaller amount than that which is due as a payment
in full, is binding on the creditor. On this question the decis-

ions, which are numerous and uniform, hold that it is not. They
proceed upon the ground that tliere is no new consideration to

support the agreement. It is said that a payment of a part of

a debt, or of liquidated damages, is no satisfaction of the whole

debt, even when the creditor agrees to receive a part for the

whole, and gives a receipt for the whole demand, and a plea of

payment of a smaller smn in satisfaction of a larger, is bad,

even after verdict. 2 Pars, Contracts, 130 ; and the numerous
authorities cited support this doctrine. But if the smaller sum
be taken by way of compromise of a controverted claim, or

from a debtor in failing circumstances, in full dischai-ge of the

debt, no reason is perceived why it should not be binding on the

parties. This instruction was properly given, as it only pre-

sents this principle of law.

The ninth instruction was properly given, as the principle,

that the holder of a note, when there are no circumstances of

suspicion of mala fides, is presumed to be the legal holder and
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owner. This principle is too familiar to require discussion or

authority.

The other eight instructions asked by and given for the plain-

tiff, except the fourteenth, (the principle upon which it was
properly given has already been discussed,) only present the same
questions involved in the six, already considered, and it is deemed
unnecessary to notice them further.

The instructions asked by the defendant, and which the court

refused to give, only present the reverse of the instructions

given for the plaintiff, and the discussion of those disposes of

these ; and they were, consequently, properly refused.

Upon the whole record, we are unable to perceive any error,

for v/hich this judgment should be reversed.

Judgment affirmed.

Charles II. Swits and William P. Dennis, Plaintiffs in

Error, v. Ira K. Carver and Bloomer Carver, Defen-

dants in Error.

ERROR TO WINNEBAGO.

A party who does not enter an appearance, but permits his name to be called and
a default to be entered, if he attempts to avoid the default by unfairly getting a
plea into the record, must see that his pleading is in every particular accurate, so

that it will not require extraneous proof to identify it, or the default will not be
set aside, and the judgment will be sustained.

This was an action of assumpsit, brought by the defendants

in error, against the plaintiffs in error, on a promissory note, at

the December term, A. D. 1857. The summons was duly

served, and the declaration filed November 23, 1857.

The declaration was in the usual form in assumpsit on a pro-

missory note.

December 7, 1857, the second day of the term, a plea of

general issue was filed, by 0. Miller, Jr., attorney for de-

fendants.

December 8, 1857, default was entered against the defend-

ants, and judgment rendered against them for $273.34, the

amount of the note.

February 27, 1858, the plaintiffs in error sued out their writ

of error and supersedeas, and assign for error that the court

erred

:

1st. In entering defendants' default while there was a plea

on file.
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2nd. In rendering judgment against the defendants, by de-

fault, without noticing the plea on file.

Jason Marsh, for Plaintiffs in Error.

L. F. Warner, for Defendants in Error. •

Breese, J. The record in this case shows an ordinary ac-

tion of assumpsit, on a promissory note, with the money counts
and account stated. The process was duly served, returnable

to the December term, 1857, of the Winnebago County Court.

At that term, Dec, 8, on motion of the plaintiffs' attorney,

the defendants were three times solemnly called, and came not,

nor any one for them, and their default was entered, and a

judgment rendered against them, for the amount of the note and
interest, as damages. The record shows that on the 7th Dec,
in a cause entitled Charles Swits and William P. Dennis ads.

Bloomer Carver et al.^ a plea of non-assumpsit had been filed.

By a supplemental record, brought here on suggestion of

diminution by counsel for defendants in error, it appears that

at the following March term, the plaintiff Carver, defendants

being present by counsel, submitted their motion, and asked
leave to file in said court, in the cause of Ira K. Carver
V. Charles Swits and William P. Dennis, tried at the last

December term, a motion to strike from the files of said

cause the plea purporting to be filed in said cause, on a day
previous to the entry of the judgment in that suit, for the reason

that at the time of the judgment in the cause, the plea was not

on file with any of the papers of the cause, and that no appear-

ance of the defendants in the cause had been entered previous

to the judgment, upon the docket or otherwise, and that no no-

tice of the plea was given, and in support of the motion, asked

leave to file affidavits, which being allowed, the plaintiffs sub-

mitted the affidavit of Hulin, the clerk of the court, to the

effect that there was no, appearance entered in the cause at the

last term of the court, by the defendants, upon the records of

the court or upon either of the dockets of the court, in the

cause ; that after the term of the court closed, he found among
the loose papers belonging to various cases, a paper purporting

to be a plea in the cause ; that he has no recollection of ever

seeing the plea until after the court had finally adjourned ; that

the plea bears his signature as clerk, as having been filed by
him, and that is all his recollection about it ; that he never saw
the same among the papers of the cause in its appropriate pack-

age, that he remembers, until after the last term, when he found

it and put it with the papers in the cause, in its proper envelope.
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Also the affidavit of L. F. Warner, plaintiffs' attorney, to

the effect that when judgment was rendered in the cause, no
appearance had been entered for either of the defendants upon
the court's, clerk's or bar docket, and no plea on file in the

cause, among the papers of the cause, at the time the default

was taken ; and he had no notice that any plea had been filed

at the time the default was taken, or at any time during that

term of the court, and that no appearance of defendants, or

either of them, was entered upon the records of the court.

After argument by counsel, the court allowed the motion,

save and except the motion to strike the plea from the files.

Leave was given only to file the affidavits of which the above

is the substance. The effect of this is simply to make the

affidavits a part of the record of the proceedings of the Decem-
ber term.

The questions are questions of practice, and may deserve a

few remarks.

It is a deplorable fact, as the history of proceedings in our

Circuit Courts prove, that a degree of looseness prevails in

them, quite inexcusable, and which ought not so to be. In-

stead of being modes by which to obtain justice, courts become
snares to entrap the honest suitor, and a protection for dis-

honesty. Several instances like the one now before us, have
been noticed, where a defendant having entered no appear-

ance, and having given no notice of any defense or plea, has

contrived to set aside a default, by the trickery of causing

a plea to be marked as filed by the clerk, and then retain-

ing possession of it himself and afterwards putting it among
papers to which it does not belong. The clerk, in the hurry of

business in court, cannot know or remember the fact of mark-
ing each paper handed to him as filed, and all the inquiry

that might be instituted by the plaintiff"'s counsel, when his

cause is called, would fail, as in this case, to discover a plea

regularly filed.

We think it should be made the duty of the clerks of the

Circuit Courts to keep a book, in which the defendant's attorney

shall enter notice of appearance or plea, as the case may be, so

that upon reference to it, the true condition of the cause can be

at once ascertained.

But this particular case wall be tried by the record, and as

it there appears.

The original record shows that the defendants were three

times solemnly called and came not. They were then in

default for want of appearance, no one of the dockets showing

an entry of the appearance of either of them. The plaintiff'

was then at liberty to have their default entered without pro-
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ceeding farther, and which could only be avoided by showing a
plea regularly filed.

If a plea was filed in time, the party could have called the

attention of the court to it, and the default would have been set

aside on motion.

We have high authority for saying, that in no case where
the court below would give relief on motion, this court will

entertain error, or an appeal ; and such a rule would seem to be
consonant to justice.

The ground, however, on which this judgment by default can
be sustained, is, that the plea actually filed is not a plea in the

cause then pending, and as technical advantages are sought by
the plaintifis in error here, so the defendants should be allowed
the benefit of such advantages, the merits being clearly with
them. We say the plea is not a plea in the cause then pending.

That action was in the name of Ira K. Carver and Bloomer
Carver vs. Charles H. Swits and William P. Dennis. In the

plea, the suit is entitled Charles H. Swits and William P. Dennis
ads. Bloomer Carver et al.

Bloomer Carver et al. may mean Ira K. Carver and Bloomer
Carver, we cannot tell. It is not a plea in this cause. It can-

not be identified without extraneous proof.

We do not wish to be understood that such an objection to a

plea that had been acted on, would be entertained by this

court, for in such case, the plea would be considered as in by

consent, and no after objection of this kind would be tolerated.

This plea was not acted on—it was in surreptitiously, and the

defendants shall have no advantage of it ; and their attorney

can reflect upon the rebuke administered to him in this opinion,

for his conduct in the premises.

The judgment is affirmed.

Judgment offinned.

Alexander Ferguson et al, Appellants, v. Asa Tallmadge,

Appellee.

APPEAL FROM WINNEBAGO.

A party who insists that land was bought for him in the name of another, who
loaned the money at usurious rates, must coimect innocent purchasers with a

knowledge of such facts ; and if he has been ejected from tlie premises without

setting up such facts in his defense as a notice to others, and has abandoned the

premises, declaring an intention to forego all claim thereto, he cannot have an

equitable right to pursue subsequent purchasers and recover the land.
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This bill in chancery states, that in May, 1839, a joint stock

company was formed at Aberdeen, Scotland, to loan money to

persons in the United States, desirous to purchase lands at the

government sales, particularly in Illinois, called " The Aberdeen
North American Investment and Loan Company." Its affairs

were under the direction of D. Chalmers, Littlejohn, Yeates,

Catto, Williamson, A. Smith, C. Chalmers, Farquahar and
Foulerton, residing in Aberdeen and its vicinity.

On 10th May, 1839, these directors entered into an agree-

ment under seal, with one William Taylor, then of Thomaston,
Scotland, appointing him manager of the company's business in

America, for the term of five years, and Taylor covenanted to

proceed to the United States, and continue in the service of the

company for five years, and to act as manager, for a salary

stipulated in the agreement, and would not enter into or be con-

cerned with any transaction whatever in business in America, in

his own name or that of another, and that all investments in

America which should be made in his name or another's for his

behalf, should be held to be made with the funds and for the

behalf of the company.
The directors furnished Taylor with a large amount of money,

with which he came to Illinois, to loan the same to persons de-

sirous of borrowing it to purchase public lands at government
sales thereof, upon the security of such lands. For that pur-

pose he attended previous to and at a land sale at Chicago, pre-

vious to the sale at Galena afterwards mentioned in the bill,

and loaned a large number of thousand dollars to a great many
persons, to enter lands at the sale, at the rate of thirty-three

and a third per cent, interest to the year or higher, and to

secure the payment of the loan and interest, had the lands bid

ofi^ in his own name, and gave the purchasers thereof contracts

to convey the legal title to their lands respectively upon the

repayment of the loan and interest, in the same printed form as

the contract between Taylor and complainant afterwards men-
tioned in the bill, the parcels entered lying in McHenry, Boone,
De Kalb and La Salle counties.

For two or three years previous to the land sale at Galena,

in the latter part of October, 1839, complainant was settled

upon a tract of land in the county of Winnebago, consisting of

south half of Sec. 34 and west half of Sec. 35, Town. 45 north.

Range 2 east, 3rd principal meridian, containing 640 acres.

He had a pre-emption right to a quarter section of it, by resi-

dence, and had improvements thereon of considerable value.

The tract, including improvements, was then worth f 2,000

;

and he held the whole tract as his claim, according to custom.

He intended to acquire the legal title by purchase from the
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government, for his own benefit, when it should be sold, and he
held possession for that purpose.

A sale of lands, including this section, was proclaimed by the

President, at Galena, about 24th October, 1839, but the procla-

mation was known in the vicinity only about six weeks previous

to the sale.

Complainant had not means to enter the land, nor could raise

the same otherwise than by loan, and from the shortness of the

time and other causes, could not go East where the money
could be procured.

Taylor had shortly before lent money at the sale at Chicago

;

and shortly after the publication of the proclamation, he gave

out word that he would attend the sale at Galena, to lend

money in the same manner as at Chicago ; and complainant was
induced to rely upon borrowing of him, and made no other

provision.

Taylor accordingly attended at Galena, previous to and dur-

ing the sale, for the purpose of loaning money as aforesaid, and
so loaned $16,000 or thereabouts.

Complainant went to Galena shortly before the commence-
ment of the sale, for the purpose of effecting a loan from Taylor

to purchase the two half sections at the usual rate of $1.25
per acre. Complainant made application to Taylor, to lend

him $800 for that purpose, to which he readily consented, and
thereupon a discussion arose as to the rate of interest ; where-

upon Taylor stated to complainant that he loaned money to all

others at the rate of thirty-three and a third per cent, or more,

and that he would lend to complainant at no lower rate.

Having no other resource, complainant was obliged to com-

ply, or lose his improvements, and the chance of entering the

half sections, and was forced to and did consent to borrow the

$800 at the rate of thirty-three and a third per cent, by the

year, to be paid in four installments, or fifty per cent, for one

year, if complainant desired to pay it in one year.

Complainant inquired what security he would require, and

was informed by Taylor that he in all cases required the land

to be bid ofl^ in his own name, and the receipts to be given in

his own name, and held the title as security for payment, and
should require the same of complainant.

It was therefore agreed that complainant should bid off the

half sections in Taylor's name; that Taylor should furnish the

$800 to pay for them, and that complainant should repay him

with thirty-three and a third per cent, interest as follows : $261
in one year, $261 in two years, $264 in three years, and $1,064
in four years ; and should covenant to convey the land to com-

plainant on payment. It was further agreed that the payment
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should be made at Chicago, and that the payment of $1,200
in one year should be taken in full satisfaction of the above

sums, and of the $800 and interest. Taylor showed complain-

ant a printed form, which he stated he required every person to

execute, and should require complainant to execute.

Complainant, with the knowledge and approbation of Taylor,

employed one Wade to bid off the half sections in Taylor's

name, and complainant agreed to pay him one dollar for such

service.

Wade, on 29th October, 1839, bid off the laud in half quarter

sections, in Taylor's name, at |1.25 per acre, the $800 was
advanced by Taylor, the receipts were made out in his name

;

complainant paid Wade the dollar, and Taylor was not present

at the sale.

At the conclusion of the land sale, a contract under seal was
executed by Taylor and complainant in the printed form, in

pursuance of the said agreement made before the lands were
bid off, dated said 19th October, 1839, whereby complainant

covenanted to pay the three sums of $264, and the $1,064, in

one, two, three and four years, and Taylor covenanted to convey

the lands to complainant upon the money and interest being

paid as above mentioned.

Complainant continued in possession of the lands, and resided

thereon, until November, 1846, claiming them as his property,

subject only to the incumbrance of security for the loan

aforesaid.

Patents were issued to Taylor ; and about April, 1842, he
died at New Orleans, having 4th September, 1841, made and
published at New Orleans, a paper purporting to be his will,

whereby he bequeathed pecuniary legacies to several relatives,

payable out of his personal property ; and he inserted a clause

purporting to leave and bequeath the residue of his estate what-

soever to the defendant, Ferguson, of St. Louis, and James
Duncan, of New Orleans, and appointed them and defendants,

Farquhar, G. Porter, G. Taylor and W. Primrose, his executors.

The w^U was not attested by two witnesses, as required by
statute of this State, nor by any witness whatsoever, so that it

was insufficient to convey land or any interest tlierein lying in

this State. The will was not admitted to probate in this State.

At Taylor's decease the first three installments only had fallen

due, and no part had been paid ; and after his decease there

was no person in this State authorized to receive the money,
nor was there any person authorized to release or convey the

legal title to the land.

The directors of the loan company, on the 8th of Feb. 1845,
filed in this Circuit Court their bill in equity, setting forth the
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contract between them and Taylor, and that Taylor received

from them a large amount of money for investment in the United
States, with which he came to Illinois as manager ; that defend-

ant Ferguson, of St, Louis, when the bill was filed, was appoint-

ed accountant ; that Taylor, at divers times, entered with those

moneys divers tracts of land in Illinois, in Winnebago, Boone,
McHenry, De Kalb, Whiteside, Rock Island, La Salle, Kane and
Madison counties, specified in schedules, including the half sec-

tions purchased by complainant as aforesaid, amounting to fifty-

three half quarter sections in Winnebago, forty-five in Boone,
fifty-four in McHenry, twenty-seven in De Kalb, seventeen in

W^hiteside, twelve in Rock Island, fifteen in La Salle, twenty in

Kane, and one in Madison ; that Taylor, in direct violation of

the agreement, purchased and took the title to those lands in his

own name, and not in his and Ferguson's as manager and ac-

countant, as he ought to have done, and thereby Taylor became
trustee of the directors, and was bound to convey the lands as

they might appoint ; that after the purchase of the tracts, Tay-
lor made several contracts in his own name for sale of portions

thereof, which were outstanding and unperformed ; that about

the 4th Sept. 1841, Taylor, at New Orleans, made his will, ap-

pointing Ferguson one of said directors, George Porter, of

Aberdeen, George Taylor, of 93rd regiment British army, Wil-
liam Primrose, of Harrisburgh, Pa., Ferguson and James Dun-
can, of New Orleans, his executors ; that he made several

bequests in money, specified in the said bill ; and that the resi-

due of his estate, of whatever kind, he left and bequeathed to

Ferguson and Duncan, after paying debts and funeral expenses;

that he directed his executors, in six months to sell sufiicient of

his personal property to pay the legacies, so as to leave Fergu-

son and Duncan in the undisturbed possession of the residue of

his estate. A copy of the will was annexed. That about April,

1842, Taylor died at New Orleans, leaving Isabella Taylor, his

mother, his said brother George, his sisters EUspet Porter and
Elizabeth Primrose, his only heirs him surviving, and sufficient

personal individual estate to pay legacies, without resorting to

real estate ; that the will was, on the 22nd April, 1842, admit-

ted to probate and record in New Orleans, but no letters testa-

mentary had ever been granted, nor administration had ; that

after the probate, Duncan died at New Orleans, leaving heirs or

devisees unknown to the directors. The directors insisted, that

notwithstanding the devise to Ferguson and Duncan, the lands in

equity belonged to them as directors and trustees of the com-
pany, and they had an equitable and legal right to require them
to be conveyed as they might appoint, to be disposed of for the

benefit of the company. They made Isabella Taylor, Elizabeth

38



586 OTTAWA,

Ferguson et al. v. Tallmadge.

Primrose and William Primrose, her husband, Ellspet Porter

and George Porter, her husband, Ferguson and the unknown
heirs and devisees of Duncan, defendants ; required them to an-

swer without oath, and prayed that the lands might be con-

veyed to Ferguson.

The defendants were brought in by advertisement only, and
at April term, 1845, the bill was taken as confessed, and with-

out proofs a decree was made, declaring that Taylor purchased

the lands with the moneys of the directors as such directors, and
in trust for them ; that said persons named as his heirs were his

heirs; that the real estate of Taylor was devised to Duncan and
Ferguson ; that the heirs of Duncan were unknown ; that a con-

veyance of all the interest the defendants might have in any of

the tracts ought to be made by them to Ferguson, in trust for

the directors ; that the trust in Taylor and his representatives

for said directors, be established ; that what Ferguson had by
the devise be held by him in trust for the directors, for their

exclusive benefit ; and that defendants should, by 24th of April,

release to Ferguson.

No release was made. James M. Wight was appointed com-
missioner, and in May, 1845, executed a deed in conformity to

the decree, which w^as confirmed 19th of August, 1845.

Under color of that conveyance, Ferguson ousted defendant

Tallmadge in November, 1846.

In 1848, Ferguson negotiated with defendant Robert Smith
for the east half of the south-west quarter, and the east half of

the north-east quarter of Sec. 35, Town. 45, north, Range 2 east

of the third principal meridian, containing 160 acres.

About the same time Ferguson also made some agreement
with defendant Montgomery for the west half of the south-east

quarter of Sec. 34, and the north half of the east half of same
quarter section, under which Montgomery went into possession.

On the 22nd November, 1849, Ferguson deeded to defendant

Kirk, with general warranty, for a consideration expressed to

be $320, the west half of the south-west quarter of Sec. 35.

About January, 1849, defendant Ralston negotiated with Fer-

guson for the south-west quarter of Sec. 34, and the west half

of the north-west quarter of Sec. 35, and went into possession

of those tracts, and has occupied them ever since, but complain-

ant is not aware what agreement was made.

Within a year, or thereabouts, before filing of bill, defendant

Dennis negotiated with Ferguson for the purchase of the south-

east quarter of the south-east quarter of Sec. 34. Complainant

is not aware what contract was made, and the land has been

imoccupied.
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Complainant avers and insists that it is not true, as alleged

by the directors in their bill, and declared by the decree, that

the two half sections described were entered and purchased with
the moneys of the said company, or in trust for them ; but com-
plainant entered and purchased them for his own benefit, and
they were paid for with his moneys, loaned of Taylor, and not

with moneys of the directors ; complainant had them bid off in

Taylor's name to secure repayment.

The other tracts were in like manner purchased by divers

persons, and paid for with moneys borrowed by them of Taylor

;

and complainant avers, that the allegations in the said bill, that

the said lands were purchased with the moneys of the company,
and in trust for them, are not only untrue, but false and fraud-

ulent.

It is not true, as declared in the decree, that the real estate

of Taylor was devised to Ferguson and Duncan ; and he insists

that the alleged will is palpably insufficient to convey real es-

tate in Illinois, so that the said lands descended to the heirs of

Taylor ; and the complainant insists that the said allegation was
fraudulently obtained to be inserted in the decree.

The alleged contracts with Taylor were none other than the

contracts of complainant and others with Taylor, to secure to

him repayment of moneys borrowed, with exorbitant rates of

interest, and all of them were mortgage securities.

The bill, decree, and proceedings under it, were fraudulently

set on foot by the said directors, unjustly and unlawfully to get

the legal title to the tracts vested in a trustee in their behalf, so

as to defeat the resulting trust and equity of redemption which
the said purchasers had in the same, and to defraud complainant

and the rest of them of their purchases. And complainant in-

sists that the right of Taylor being only a mortgage interest,

and the contract for the payment of the mortgage moneys not

being assigned to the directors, the supposed conveyance of the

legal title under the decree was nugatory and conveyed no right

whatever, if it were otherwise legal.

It appears by said bill, and is true, that there was no execu-

tor or administrator of Taylor, or other person who could

receive payment of the contracts with Taylor, or release them,

so that if the transfer to Ferguson should stand, complainant is

still liable to any executor or administrator of Taylor who may
appear, without means of obtaining title, and the other said pur-

chasers are in the same predicament.

If Taylor were the agent and trustee for the directors, and
they were entitled to the proceeds of his operations, the only

lawful and honest mode to avail themselves was to cause some

person to administer in this State, collect the moneys due for the
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loans, and to procure the heirs or devisees of Taylor to convey

title, and to cause the administrator to account to them. The
reason why they did not, and why they filed their bill was, they

intended, by getting the legal title into a trustee for themselves,

to defraud the complainant and the other purchasers of their

equity of redemption, and, under color of having the legal title,

to extort large and exorbitant sums not due, to get title, or if

the purchasers refused or were unable to pay.

In pursuance of this plan, Ferguson, in September, 1845, de-

manded of complainant $2,385.60, for a conveyance of the two
half sections, and upon complainant refusing, proceeded to oust

him, and offered to sell to others.

The bill and decree were fraudulent in this, that the last in-

stallment in complainant's contract was not due at Taylor's

decease, and he had not an opportunity to make payment to any
representative of Taylor ; and the other purchasers were in the

same predicament.

Ever since the time for payment of the last installment, com-

plainant has been willing and desirous to pay the $800, with

legal interest, and get title, and he is now ready and willing,

and offers to do it, and to pay any sum the court may decree.

Complainant was not a party to the bill of directors, nor were
other purchasers, and he had no opportunity to defend his rights

or prevent the decree, nor had the other purchasers, although

according to rule, he and they were indispensable parties. The
omission was fraudulent, and complainant insists that the decree

was void as to him.

The defendants to complainant's bill, especially Robert Smith,

Montgomery, Kirk, Ralston and Dennis, at all times since the

entry of the half sections, had notice of the rights and claims

of complainant, and of his possession of and residence upon the

same under such claim.

On the 17th of June, 1850, Ferguson executed a deed of the

half sections, except the quarter quarter section he had deeded

to Kirk, with divers other tracts mentioned in the decree, pur-

porting, in consideration of $1, to release them to defendant

William Primrose, of St. Louis, with special warranty.

Charge that the contract was fixed to conceal usury, and give

the contract the appearance of a sale and purchase.

By reason of the Sntphen suit, the directors and their agents

becoming alarmed lest others might avail themselves of their

equity of redemption, on the 8th of February, 1845, after proofs

taken as aforesaid, filed their aforesaid bill in the Circuit Court

of Winnebago county, and fraudulently omitted to make com-

plainant and other purchasers parties, for the purpose of antici-

pating and forestalling them, and of defrauding and depriving
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tliem of their equities of redemption, before they should be

aware of the result or pendency of the Sutphen case, and thus

prevent their redemption, and the directors obtained a decree

by collusion with Ferguson and other defendants, to their bill.

Complainant's bill required defendants to answer under oath,

in the usual form, and interrogates as to contracts of Smith,

Montgomery, Ralston, Kirk and Dennis with Ferguson, and the

payments made upon them ; about claim, residence and posses-

sion of complainant, and the time when the defendants knew
thereof; about their knowledge of Taylor's transactions and
contract with complainant ; whether, at the time of contracts, it

was not a subject of common conversation in the neighborhood,

that the complainant had entered the half sections as stated, and
intended to insist on his right ; whether they were not called
" The Tallmadge lands," and whether Ralston did not come
into the neighborhood of the lands and inquire into the title,

and had not been told of complainant's possession and claims.

That said decree as to complainant and the half sections may
be decreed fraudulent, null and inapplicable ; that the convey-

ance of the half sections under it may be set aside, that com-
plainant's equity of redemption may be declared, and account

taken ; a day be assigned for paying principal and interest into

court for the use of the persons entitled to it, to be paid out

when right to it is established ; that Taylor's heirs, etc., and
Ferguson and Primrose release and convey ; and that possession

be given ; and for general relief.

The answer of Thomas Primrose admits the existence of a

company in Scotland with directors, as stated in the bill, and
that the business of the company was to invest their capital in

property and securities, real or personal, in the United States,

and that they contracted with William Taylor, as stated in the

bill.

Said Taylor proceeded to the United States, located at the

city of St. Louis, and carried on business for said company, and
among other things, he made large investments of money in the

purchase of lands in Illinois ; attended the land sales at Galena,

and there purchased large tracts of land, taking the title in his

own name. That after the purchase, said Taylor made contracts

with persons to sell them the lands purchased by him at said

sales, but did not make loans to any person at that time.

Defendant denies having any knowledge or information of

complainant ever having resided on the lands in question, or of

having any dealings with William Taylor.

Admits that Taylor purchased the lands in controversy at the

public land sale, and gave the contract set out in the bill, to

complainant, but denies any loan having been made.
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April 20th, 1846, a judgment was rendered in the Winnebago
Circuit Court in favor of said Ferguson against said complain-

ant in an action of ejectment, in consequence of which com-

plainant abandoned said premises about November, 1846.

Denies that complainant did the ordinary acts of ownership,

such as cultivating, improving, etc.

Admits that Wm. Taylor died in March or April, 1842, hav-

ing made a will as stated in the bill.

When Taylor died there were two installments due and unpaid

on complainant's contract ; from that time until the title of the

lands became vested in said Ferguson, complainant might have

paid either to Alexander Brand in Chicago, or to said Ferguson
in St. Louis, who were authorized to receive the money due on

said contract. Said complainant had not paid the taxes accru-

ing on said land while he resided on it.

Admits the proceedings in chancery, decree, and conveyance

to said Ferguson as stated in the bill, but that testimony was
taken in the suit, and the proceedings were all in good faith,

without fraud, and that complainant remained in possession of

the land a long time after he had forfeited all right to the same
by his contract.

Said Ferguson made a written contract with defendant Mont-

gomery, dated June 26, 1848, to sell to him the west half of the

south-east quarter of said Sec. 34, for the price of $480, payable

$150 Nov. 1, thereafter
;
$165 Nov. 1, 1849, and $165 Nov. 1,

1850, with interest and the taxes ; that said Montgomery paid

all of the said purchase money prior to the commencement of

this suit, except $114.63 which was paid Aug. 28, 1851, when
a deed was executed to said Montgomery by this defendant, in

whom the title then was. Montgomery had had possession of

and had cultivated and made improvements and paid the taxes

on said land since the date of his contract.

Said Ferguson made a similar contract with William Ralston,

April 27, 1849, to convey to him the south-west quarter of Sec.

34, and the west half of the north-west quarter of Sec. 35, for

$960, payable $320 down, $320 in one year, and $320 in two
years, with interest and the taxes ; that said Ralston at that

time paid the $320, took possession of the land—paid after-

wards, and before this suit was commenced, $358.40 ; May 5,

1851, he paid the balance, and Aug. 28, 1851, took his deed
from defendant. He made a similar contract with defendant

Kirk, Nov. 26, 1847.

June 27, 1849, Ferguson contracted to convey to Jas. E.

Dennis the south-east quarter of the south-east quarter of Sec. 34,

for $200 ; $50 was paid down, the balance payable, $75 in one

year, and $75 in two years, with interest and taxes. Dennis



APRIL TERM, 1858. 591

Ferguson et al. v. Tallmadge.

paid before the commencement of suit $114, and since $102.50,
together with the taxes—has had possession since the date of

his contract, and received his deed from defendant.

Defendant was not advised of the suit or proceedings in

chancery until after the termination, but denies all fraud, and
insists upon their legal effect to vest the title of the lands in the

trustee appointed by the decree.

Complainant never paid or offered to pay the amount specified

in the contract of sale of said Taylor, and after Ferguson
became vested with the title, he brought a suit in ejectment

against complainant, and obtained judgment, and complainant

abandoned the premises, never having paid or offered to pay
anything, even the taxes thereon. Soon after, Ferguson adver-

tised the lauds for sale until the lands were sold, and complain-

ant took no steps to prevent a sale, or to assert his claims.

Ferguson conveyed the lands to defendant in good faith, and
he never had any notice of complainant's claim until the com-
mencement of this suit.

Defendant claims the benefit of the act entitled "An Act con-

cerning conveyances of real estate," passed January 31, 1827,
also an act of Congress entitled "An Act for the relief of pur-

chasers of public lands," etc., passed March 31, 1830. Also that

more than six years have elapsed since the making of the

contract, before the bringing of this suit.

By the terms of the contract, Taylor or his grantees had the

right to declare it forfeited, and Ferguson had so declared it

long before the sale to said defendants.

- The answer of William Ralston denies any knowledge of

complainant's residence on the land in dispute, or of his desire

or purpose to purchase it. Admits that it was originally entered

by Wm. Taylor ; that said Taylor died, and proceedings in

chancery were had in behalf of David Chalmers et al. vs.

Alexander Ferguson et al., to vest the title of the land in said

Ferguson. On the 27th day of April, 1849, defendant purchased

the land in question of Alexander Ferguson and Thos. Primrose

for the sum of $960: paying for it $320 May 21st, 1849, and
agreeing to pay $640 in two annual payments, with interest and
taxes ; said Primrose executing to him an agreement in writing

to convey the laud on payment of said amount. On the 26th

day of May, 1850, defendant paid to Ferguson on the contract,

$358.40, and May 5th, 1851, he paid the balance, $339.73, to

Primrose, the grantee of Ferguson, and received from him a

warrantee deed, dated August 28th, 1851.

Defendant entered into possession of the land about May 20th,

1849, and before he had any intimation of complainant's claim

he had paid for purchase money $698.40, and for permanent im-
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provements ^320 ; and since service of the summons in this suit,

$220 for improvements, and $22.02 for taxes.

Denies all knowledge of fraud in the chancery suit, and insists

that it was instituted rightfully for the purpose of determining

the title of the land, and defendant claims the benefit of the

same as constituting a part of his chain of title.

Denies any knowledge of complainant having any claim to the

land until the service of the summons and until defendant had
paid out $998.40 ; at the time of the purchase the land was
unoccupied and unimproved ; defendant, before purchasing, care-

fully examined the public records of the county of Winnebago,
which showed the title in said Ferguson, and there was no indi-

cation on record of complainant or any other person having any
conflicting title or interest. Defendant claims the benefit of

the statute entitled " An Act concerning conveyances of real

property," approved January olst, 1847, complainant not having

had his contract with Taylor recorded within thirty days, nor

before defendant's purchase.

Defendant also claims the benefit of the act of Congress

entitled " An Act for the relief of purchasers of public lands,"

etc., passed March 31st, 1830. Defendant claims the benefit of

the lapse of more than six years—Ferguson had declared the

contract forfeited.

The answer of James E. Dennis admits that complainant some
time resided on some part of the tract of land mentioned in the

bill, but denies all knowledge of the existence, nature or extent

of complainant's claim, or of his dealings with William Taylor.

June 27th, 1849, defendant bought of Alexander Ferguson
the land in question for $200, paying down $50, and taking

from him contract for a deed on the payment of the balance, with
interest in two equal annual payments, together with the taxes.

Previous to the commencement of this suit defendant had
taken possession of the land and had paid to Ferguson $114 of

the purchase money, and afterwards he paid the balance, $102.50,
to Thomas Primrose the grantee of Ferguson, and received from
him a warrantee deed of it, dated April 22, 1851.

There was no improvement on the tract purchased by defen-

dant ; complainant had abandoned his residence in the neighbor-

hood—the whole tract of land had been advertised for sale a

considerable time before defendant's purchase.

In all other respects same as the answer of William Ralston.

The answer of James Montgomery states the purchase of the

land being made by him June 24, 1848, and that he paid Nov.
18, 1848, $150; Nov. 21, 1848, $60; Oct. 2, 1850, $100;
Nov. 1, 1850, $100 ; and the balance $114.63, Aug., 1851, and
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received his deed. In other respects mainly the same as the

answer of Ralston.

The answer of defendant Kirk shows that he purchased his

laud of Ferguson Nov. 22, 1848, and paid for it $320, and took

his deed Nov. 2, 1849.

He built a house and made other permanent improvements on
the land, to the amount of about $1,000. Previous to making
the purchase, defendant had examined the records of the county

and found no appearance of title in other person than Ferguson
;

and complainant had abandoned the land, and told defendant

that he had abandoned his claim to it.

He admits the conveyance from Wight to Ferguson, and
insists that the chancery proceedings were valid and cannot be

impeached.

In other respects same as answer of Ralston.

Deposition of Samuel Cook. Witness is acquainted with the

lands in question, and has been a good many years, and was as

early as the winter of 1836 or 1837.

Should think there was some breaking done on the south-east

quarter of south-west quarter Sec. 35, in the fall of 1836 or 1837.

In 1837 or 1838, he broke some prairie on east half of south-

east quarter Sec. 34, for Tallmadge. There was some fencing

on the piece last described. There was a house on the west half

of north-west quarter Sec. 35, previous to land sale in 1839.

Before the land sale, Tallmadge told me he claimed the two
half sections, and I supposed he did, as no other person claimed

to hold them. I claimed the whole or a greater part of the

half sections, and sold it to Mr. Spoors for 1,000 rails in 1836
or 1837. Afterwards in 1836 or 1837, Mr. Spoors came to me
with Tallmadge, and said if I would take him (Tallmadge) for

the rails, he would give up the trade to him. I told him I

would. Tallmadge furnished me the rails, and I considered the

claim his. Tallmadge took possession in 1836 or 1837, built a

house and put on the fencing before referred to, and lived on the

premises witli his family up to and for a number of years after

the land sale. He commenced living on the land in the latter

part of tlie year 1836 or 1837. (Answer objected to.)

The sale commenced in October, 1839. The notice was very

short. Witness attended, and saw Taylor. He said to witness

and to other settlers, he would enter their lands provided they

would have them bid off" in his name, and he would give a bond
to deed after a certain number of years, in case they would pay
him according to the stipulations in the bond. The rates as he

gave them to me and some others, were that we should pay him

$33 per year for each eighty, and at the end of the term $133.

Taylor said to me and other settlers, that he would furnish us
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the money to enter our lands for 33 per cent., if we would get

the land entered in his name, and he would give us a bond for a

deed. Taylor made such a contract with me and others in my
presence. Was not present when Tallmadge's contract was made.

Witness has known defendant Robert Smith about ten years
;

Montgomery ten. Kirk twelve or fourteen, Ralston three, and
Dennis eight or ten. They have all of them resided, except
Ralston, in the neighborhood of the lands above referred to,

since he became acquainted with them. Ralston has lived most
of the time since I kncAV him on the premises above described.

It appeared in proof that there were two fields broke and
fenced, and a house on the land in 1838. Tallmadge was living

with his family in the house in 1838 or 1839. Both half sections,

so far as he knew, were called one claim, and were called the

Tallmadge claim.

That Robert Smith, Montgomery, Dennis and Kirk have
resided in the immediate neighborhood of the Tallmadge lands.

Kirk said he had bought eighty acres of the Tallmadge land,

and had built a good house on it, and if Tallmadge got the land

he would get a good house. The lands have always been called

the Tallmadge lands.

John Dyer testified, that the two half sections were considered

as one claim, and Asa Tallmadge was in possession of it, and
claimed the same. He lived on the claim with his family as

early as 1837, and had possession and lived on the premises up
to and after the land sale.

That the loan to Tallmadge was to enter the land in question.

That Tallmadge resided on the lands after the land sale over

three years.

That defendants Robert Smith, Montgomery, Kirk and Dennis
have all of them, except Ralston, resided in the immediate neigh-

borhood of the Tallmadge lands. Ralston lived about three

miles from these lands previous to and up to the time he moved
on the Tallmadge land, where he now resides.

One witness stated that he had some conversation with de-

fendants Kirk, Ralston, Smith and Mongomery about Tallmadge's

claim to the lands. Ralston said Tallmadge had forfeited his

bond, and he did not think he could hold the land. He said

Tallmadge had never paid any thing on the land, and had for-

feited it, and he did not think he could hold it. The duplicate

had been taken in Taylor's name, and he could hold it. Don't

recollect what was said with Montgomery. Kirk seemed to carry

the idea that Tallmadge stood a good chance to get the land back.

That when Tallmadge first went to Taylor, he said he wanted
to hire money to enter the lands in question, and asked what
terms he would enter it on, and what interest he asked. Tay-
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lor said he should want thirty-three and one-third per cent, per

annum for three years ; said he would take the duplicate in his

own name, and give him a bond for a deed. Tallmadge objected

to giving so high a rate of interest, and tried to beat him down.
Taylor said that was his rate, and would not let it go for a less

rate ; that he had the lands bid oft" in his own name, and gave
bonds for deeds.

That the contract of sale from Taylor to complainant, was
dated October 29, 1839.

Deposition of Robert Montgomery. James Montgomery re-

sides about one mile from the Tallmadge land, and has lived

there six or seven years. He is my father. Witness has lived

with him since he resided there ; Tallmadge had not left the

lands when his father came into the neighborhood; and his

father knew that Tallmadge lived on the land when lie first

came ; don't recollect working on these lands, unless in the

garden ; his father got timber from the grove on the Tallmadge
land, to build a house ; don't know of whom it was purchased.

Is acquainted with defendant Ralston ; he was in the neighbor-

hood but a few weeks before he purchased a part of the Tall-

madge lands.

Deposition of James: Ralston. William Ralston (defendant)

is witness' father ; he has resided on what is called the Taylor

lands, about three years—the lands sometimes called the Tall-

madge lands ; he went there from about half a mile this side of

Roscoe, in this county ; he went to examine the lands before

he purchased ; thinks one or two days ; Robert Smith, and John
Smith, brother to Robert, went with him to show him the land.

Defendant Ralston lived in Hamilton county, Ohio, before he

moved to near Roscoe ; left there four years ago last March,

and had lived there about ten years.

George Pratt testified that he had been present at several

times, at conversations between complainant and defendant

Kirk ; heard one at Kirk's house, in fall of 1851 ; heard them
talk about this suit ; heard each one say that they would not

disturb each other about the property ; that they should have no

difiiculty about the property ; Kirk said he would not do any-

thing to prevent complainant from getting the property, if com-

plainant would not disturb him ; Kirk said complainant ought

to have some of the land or some pay ; complainant said Kirk
would not have any trouble from him, from the fact that lie had

told him to buy the land before he bought it; don't recollect

what was said about future prosecution of the suit. Tallmadge

said he would not disturb Smith ; I think he said he would

settle loith him ; he said Smith and Kirk were fine people, and

he would not disturb them.
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There is a stipulation of tlie parties attached to the record,

that the bill of Tallmadge correctly sets out the original bill

filed by said company ; also the will of said Taylor ; the deed
from James M, Wight, commissioner, to said Ferguson, and the

deed from Ferguson to said Primrose, and that the same were
in evidence in the Circuit Court, as set out.

William Magoon testiiied that defendant Kirk was in posses-

sion of one eighty of the south half of Sec. 34 and west half of

Sec. 35, Town. 45, Eange 2. Montgomery of one eighty and
forty, Dennis of one forty, and Ralston of some part. Com-
plainant was in possession of the lands at the time of land sale.

Mr, Tallmadge rode up with me from Rockford, to ]\tr. Kirk's

house, and on the way we got into conversation about the land

Kirk had bought, and at that time Tallmadge said to me that

Kirk had told him he wanted to purchase that piece of land,

and he said to him to go ahead and get it if he wanted it ; this

conversation was a year ago this fall.

Thomas Lake testiiied, complainant lived on some part of

said land previous to the land sale in 1839 ; can't say when he

left there ; it was before Kirk took possession ; understood he

removed to the Kishwaukee, sixteen or eighteen miles distant

;

same lands are now occupied by Kirk, Michael, Ralston and
Montgomery ; the improvements on the lands at the time com-
plainant left, consisted of a field that had been fenced, but the

fence had been removed, and a house that he had lived in, of no
value. Kirk has made improvements, worth $600 or $700 ; two-

thirds broke, and a good frame house on it ; enclosing and im-

proving the land worth $200 to $300 ; these improvements
have been made about three years. Ralston has built a house

and enclosed a large field, about three years since ; improve-

ments worth $400 or $500. The house built by Kirk was a

frame house worth about $300 ; the fence was worth $175, and
the breaking $125 ; the estimate of Ralston's improvements
was for his fencing and breaking.

Samuel Hovie testified that defendants Ralston, Kirk, Mont-
gomery, Smith and Michael had occupied the lands for four

or five years ; complainant left them in 1846 ; were no improve-

ments on the land when complainant left ; witness estimates the

improvements made by the defendants, about the same as the

last witness ; complainant took rails from that land ; Tallmadge
told witness once before he left the land, that Mr. Kirk liad said

to him, Tallmadge, tliat if he did not want to buy that land, he.

Kirk, wanted to buy an eighty of it, and as near as I recollect,

Mr. Tallmadge said he told him he might.

Wm. T. Kirk testified that he lived on the farm adjoining

complainant, in DeKalb county ; complainant had lived there
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six or seven years last fall, and came there from his former

place in Winnebago county ; he was intimate with witness, and
conversed freely about his affairs ; he said he had once given

up all hope of getting the land, but now was going to try for it;

he had struck a new lead ; this was about four years ago ; he

said Kirk was on the land and was improving it. Complainant

was in the habit of visiting the lands frequently about five years

since ; he advised me to buy the quarter north of Kirk ; about

five years ago, witness said to complainant that Elisha Kirk
wanted to buy the lot north of him ; I do not recollect the pre-

cise answer he gave, but he said Elisha had better go and buy

it, or something to that effect ; he once said that there was an

understanding between him and Elisha Kirk, that he should

never disturb him.

Jason Marsh testified that he was attorney for Ferguson, in

an ejectment suit against complainant ; after judgment was ren-

dered, complainant came to him and wished him not to issue a

writ to get possession, for a certain time, and then he would
leave voluntarily, to which witness consented.

Robert Smith testified that complainant told him that he was
going to leave the land and go on to a claim he had on the

Kishwaukee, and that witness might and had better buy it, if he

wished to buy land ; this conversation was in the spring of

1846, and he communicated it to the defendant Montgomery,
before he purchased ; also to defendant Kirk, soon after com-

plainant told him, but he does not recollect whether it was be-

fore or after Kirk bought. Witness went over the land with

defendant Ralston, before he purchased, and told him that Fer-

guson had the sale of it ; Ralston was in the country about ten

days before he purchased ; there was no improvement on that

part.

John Smith testified that he had known the land about eleven

years ; in the spring of 1846, complainant and defendant Smith,

were walking over the land, and complainant told him if he was
going to buy land, to go on and buy some of this, for he, com-

plainant, did not intend to have anything more to do with it

;

complainant was then residing on the land ; he remained there

about six months afterwards ; defendant Kirk went on to the

land in 1846 or 1847 ; complainant moved to DeKalb county,

and was in the habit of coming back into the neighborhood of

the land for several years ; he knew of the land being occupied

and cultivated.

By the first decree it was ordered thai the bill be dismissed

as to defendants Kirk and Smith. That complainant be al-

lowed to redeem the lands as against defendants Montgomery,
Ralson and Dennis, by paying to them the moneys paid by them
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before the filing of the bill, to Ferguson or Primrose, and for

taxes paid by them, and the value of permanent improvements

made by them before that time, charging them with the rent

of the premises, and that it be referred to the master to take

proofs and state an account.

It was finally decreed that defendant Ralston pay to complain-

ant $396.70 ; being the amount for rents over and above the

purchase money paid by Ealston, and that execution be issued

for that sum May 1, 1858 ; that said Ealston convey said lands

to complainant and give possession to him by said 1st May, or

that a commissioner be appointed by the court to make the con-

veyance ; that the defendant Dennis convey said land to com-

plainant in the same manner ; that defendant Montgomery make
conveyance of his said land by the same time and manner, on
condition of the said complainant paying him the said sum of

$219.10 and interest by the said 1st May, and in case of default

of complainant to make such payment, then he to be foreclosed

of nil equity of redemption in said premises ; and that the com-

plainant recover his costs against said defendants Ferguson and
Primrose, and one-third of his costs against said defendants

Ralston, Montgomery and Dennis severally. If Montgomery,
Ralston and Dennis take appeal, complainant to have thirty days

after it is disposed of, to pay balance to him.

From this decree there was an appeal by defendants Ralston,

Montgomery and Dennis. Stipulation for the same record to

be used by appellants and plaintiffs in error.

Errors assigned on the record by appellants are as follows

:

In not requiring the complainant to bring the moneys into

court, and in not dismissing the bill.

In not allowing the defendants' exceptions to the bill.

In allowing to complainant rents and profits on improvements

made on said lands by defendants.

In rendering a decree for said lands to be conveyed to com-

plainant, without requiring him to pay any purchase money.

In rendering a decree in favor of complainant against defend-

ants Ralston, Montgomery and Dennis.

In rendering a decree for costs against defendants Ferguson,

Primrose, Ralston, Montgomery and Dennis.

In not rendering a final decree in favor of defendants.

In not rendering a final decree in respect to the rights of de-

fendants Ralston, Montgomery and Dennis, as against defendants

Ferguson and Primrose.

Jason Marsh, for Appellants Ralston, Montgomery and Dennis.

James M. Wight, for Appellants Ferguson and Primrose.

Francis Burnap, for Appellee.
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Caton, C. J. Admitting that the original arrangement be-

tween Tallmadge and Taylor amounted to a loan of money, and
that the title was made to Taylor in trust for Tallmadge, and to

secure the money loaned, and it does not advance the case for

the complainant in the least, till he brings home notice of those

facts to the subsequent purchasers. The papers, on their face,

show simply an entry by Taylor of the land at the land office, and
afterwards, an agreement to sell the land to Tallmadge, on a

credit of one, two, three and four years, making time of the essence

of the contract. After the expiration of the term of credit, the

payments not having been made, the parties holding the title of

Taylor, brought ejectment against Tallmadge, and recovered of

him the possession of the premises. After this, the present

owners purchased the premises, paid the purchase money, took

conveyances and possession, and made improvements, long be-

fore this bill was filed. It is unnecessary to examine whether
the defendants purchased with a knowledge of the original con-

tract of sale from Taylor to Tallmadge, for there is not in the

whole of this record any fair pretense for saying that they had
any notice of the secret parole understanding which would
change it from an agreement to sell, into a security for a loan.

If they were chargeable with notice of any thing, it was with

the rights of the parties as they appeared on the face of the

papers. If they knew that Tallmadge had a contract for the

purchase of the land from Taylor, they also knew that he had
forfeited all rights under that contract by not complying with

its terms, and had even been ejected from the premises. If he

had any equities, by which he was entitled to enforce a convey-

ance of the land, not apparent on the face of the papers, it was
due to third persons that he should have interposed these equi-

ties in a proper mode at the time he was sued in ejectment.

When he let judgment go against him in that action, without a

pretense of either a legal or an equitable claim to the land, and
without even a struggle,—when he afterwards abandoned the

possession, and tore down the house, and carried off the fences,

and left it without imprqvements,—when he proclaimed pub-

licly that he intended to have no more to do with the land, and
advised others to purchase of Ferguson and Primrose,—the sub-

sequent purchasers certainly had a right to suppose that they

were getting a title divested of any claim which he might have

had to the premises.

The decree in this case will have to be reversed and the bill

dismissed.

Decree reversed.
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Asa Tallmadge, Plaintiff in Error, v. Elisha A. Kirk
et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO WINNEBAGO.

See the preceding case for a statement of this.

Caton, C. J. This case is brought here by writ of error, by

Tallmadge, upon the same record uj)on which the appeal was
taken, in the case of Ferguson et al. v. Tallmadge., decided at this

term, for the purpose of reversing that portion of the decree by

which the bill was dismissed as to Kirk and Smith, two of the

original defendants. So far from the court having erred in

dismissing the bill, as to these defendants, we have in the case

referred to, decided that it should have dismissed the bill as to

all of the defendants. What has been there said is sufficient

for both cases.

The decree must be affirmed.

Elias Nixon, Plaintiff in Error, v. Peter Weyhrich,
Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO TAZEWELL.

In order to recover of the indorser of a note, it must be made to appear, that the

maker was sued in good time, and that collection of the judn;ment against him
was pursued with proper diligence ; and if from the want of diligence the money
was not, when it might have been, made from the maker, the assignor is released.

The diligence required in making the collection from the maker of the note, is

such as a prudent man would use in the conduct of his own affairs.

If by the exercise of reasonable diligence, property of the maker of a note might
have been found, sufiBcient to satisf}' the debt, then the indorser is released.

This was an action of assumpsit, brought by Weyhrich against

Nixon, at January term of the Tazewell County Court, A. D.

1858, to recover a sum of money against him as an indorser of

a promissory note.

The plaintiff below sets out in his declaration that one Paul
Goodale, on the 8th day of June, 1857, gave his note for the

sum of $150 to said Nixon, payable on the 15th day of August,

1857, for value received ; and that Nixon, before it became due,

indorsed the note and then delivered it to the plaintiff; that at

the first term of the court at which Goodale could be sued

thereon, the plaintiff sued him and recovered judgment for the
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sum named in the note, and that immediately thereafter, execu-

tion was issued on said judgment, against said Goodale, and
delivered to the sheriff of Tazewell county, where Goodale
resided, and that on the 23rd day of December, 1857, the

sheriff returned the said execution, indorsed with the sum of

^20.60, made by sale of horses, and no more property found

;

avers due diligence against Goodale, and that he could not

collect the debt or any part of it, except the $20.60, and that

therefore, the defendant, Nixon, was liable to pay hiai the

amount of the note and interest, which he afterwards promised

to pay, but which he refused to do ; and the plaintiff" added the

common counts in his declaration.

The defendant pleaded specially, that since the suit was insti-

tuted against Paul Goodale, and tlie execution was issued against

him, and the sale of the horses named, and on the day of the

date of the execution, he had in said county, other property

liable to said execution, consisting of lands and personal prop-

erty ; also, promissory notes and other sums due and owing to

him, other and different property from the horses so sold, all of

which the plaintiff, Weyhrich, then and there had notice, and
that, therefore, he had not used due diligence and ought not to

recover, and the defendant also plead the general issue.

On tliese pleas, the plaintiff, Weyhrich, took issue, and on the

trial, read the record of a judgment in favor of Weyhrich on
said note against Goodale, rendered at the October term of the

Circuit Court of Tazewell county, 1857, for the sum of $155
and costs, and the execution issued thereon, with the indorse-

ment, " came to hand the 2nd of November, 1857, and levied on
one bay and one sorrel horse, 1st day of December, 1857

;

and received December 12th, on the within execution of sale of

horses, $20.60 ; and no more property found," and showed
that the same was then so returned by the sheriff. He then

proved by the deputy sheriff, that he, (the deputy,) had called

four times on Goodale, the said Goodale being a householder,

residing with his family, at his residence, in Tazewell county,

on the land hereafter named, and demanded property to satisfy

the execution, and that Goodale turned out the property levied

on by said execution, and so indorsed on it, and denied having

any other property subject to execution, and that he knew of

none.

On cross-examination, he said, there was other property,

horses and wagons, in Goodale's possession, but Goodale repre-

sented that they belonged to other men, and that Goodale

showed him some $1,200 worth of notes, on one and two years,

which he said were on good men and that he would sell them

to pay this debt to Weyhrich. The plaintiff further proved, by

39
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one Parker, that as plaintiffs' attorney and at his instance, he

made search of the records of the county, for real estate of

Goodale, whereon to levy, and that he found two hundred and
forty acres of land belonging to Goodale, subject to a mortgage
of $3,200, which he thought, and so advised Weyhrich, was
all the land was worth, but that he was not personally acquainted

with it and did not know its value, and that he was advised that

Paul Goodale lived on one eighty acre tract, and that he had
paid |1,000 on the mortgage, and that the mortgagee had
released the eighty acre tract from the mortgage. The note of

Paul Goodale, dated 8th June, 1857, for $150, and indorsed by
Nixon, the defendant, was read in evidence, and plaintiff rested.

Nixon then gave evidence, showing title in fee in Paul

Goodale to the north-east quarter of Sec. 7, Town. 22 north,

range 4 west, and the east half of south-west quarter of Sec.

25, Town. 22 north, range 5 west, subject to a mortgage dated

October, 1856, for $3,200, to one Rupert, and that on the 21st

day of September, 1857, $1,000 of the mortgage was paid by

Goodale, and that one eighty acre tract of the quarter section

was released by Rupert on the record, from the lien of the

mortgage, on the 1st September, 1857.

The defendant then called one Austin Melton, who testified

that he was well acquainted with the land named, that it was
all good improved prairie, and was all worth from $25 to $30
per acre, and that Goodale resided on the eighty acre tract, and
that he had three head of cattle, which he had raised, worth

$60, and had a lot of hogs and farming utensils, but could not

fix a value on them ; one plow, worth eight dollars, and that he

had two good horses and a new two-horse Avagon, all together

worth about $280, and one old two-horse wagon, worth ten

dollars ; that he lived a next neighbor to him, and that Goodale
had all in his possession at his residence, and he used and
claimed to own them ever since the witness knew them, which

was about two years ; no one else claimed them, and they were
at his residence, in Tazewell county, at the date of the execu-

tion, and up to the time of the trial, and that these horses

named by the witness were other horses, beside the ones levied

on by the sheriff and sold under the execution.

Emanuel Purcell testified, that he knew Paul Goodale's

property, and the horses and wagon named by the witness

Melton ; that the horses had belonged to Goodale about two
years, and that the wagon was new ; that Goodale offered to

sell him one of the horses in the fall of 1857, and that the

horses and wagon were worth about $285. He lived in the neigh-

borhood, and never heard of any other person having the horses

in possession or claiming them.
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Stewart Hite, also a neighbor of Goodale, testified that he
knew the cattle named by Melton, and the other property, and
that the cattle and horses and the other property had always
been on the farm of Goodale and in his possession, since he
knew him, which was about a year ; that Goodale had always
claimed to own them, used and attended to them ; that the cattle

were worth about $60, and the horses and wagon were worth
about $285, and that Goodale had also a set of harness for two
horses. The witness knew of Goodale putting in winter wheat
with a drill, on his farm, in the fall of 1857 ; he sowed about

twenty acres, which, at the time of the trial, looked well, and
that it was worth three dollars per acre. He knew the land

named in the mortgage of Goodale to Rupert very well, it was
good and improved prairie, and was worth now in cash $20 per

acre, and would bring, on twelve months credit, $22.50 per acre,

and was worth $20 per acre in cash, at the date of the execu-

tion ; and that all of said property, real and personal, was, and
had been since he knew it, in Tazewell county ; and that the

horses named by him were other than the ones levied on by the

sheriff and sold under execution.

Tice Smith was called by plaintiff, who testified that in

October, 1857, Goodale owed him a debt, and he took these

horses on the debt ; that he bought them in Pekin, where Good-
ale had brought them, and after the purchase he let Goodale
keep them in his possession and take them home with him to use,

Goodale agreeing to give him four dollars per month for the

use, and that he had paid him for three months use of the team,

whicli was, at the time of the trial, in Goodale's possession
;

which was all the testimony given in the cause.

The plaintiff asked the court to instruct the jury,

That if the plaintiif prosecuted the maker of the note at the

first term after the note was due, and recovered judgment upon
it at the said term, and had his execution issued to the sheriff

of Tazewell county, (the county where Goodale resided,) and
the sheriff returned the said execution, in whole or in part, no
more property found, then the plaintiff is entitled to recover,

unless the defendant had other property liable to execution, and
that the plaintiff, or his agent, or his attorney knew of it.

That under the issue in this case the defendant must not

only prove that the said Goodale had other property liable to

execution, but that the plaintiif knew it, or his attorney—and

if the defendant fails to prove that the plaintiff knew of said

Goodale having said property, they must find for the plaintiff,

even if they believe he had property liable to execution, out of

which the debt might have been made. Which instructions

were given by the court, and excepted to by the defendant.



604 OTTAWA,

Nixon V. Weyhrich.

The defendant asked the court to instruct the jury,

That if the jury believe, from the evidence, that Goodale had
in his possession, liable to execution, personal property in said

county which belonged to him, while the execution was in the

hands of the officer, sufficient to satisfy the same, they will find

for the defendant.

If the jury believe, from the evidence, that Paul Goodale had
real estate in said county sufficient to satisfy the said execution,

liable to execution, while it remained in the hands of the offi-

cer, they must find for the defendant.

If the jury believe, from the evidence, that Goodale sold the

horses and wagon to Smith absolutely, and still kept possession

of them, the sale is absolutely fraudulent and void, as against

all creditors, and that they still remain subject to the execution,

notwithstanding the sale.

If the jury believe, from the evidence, that the sheriff

demanded property of Goodale to satisfy said execution, it was
his duty to turn out the same to the sheriff, and if he did not

then do it, he could not afterwards, if the property had been

levied upon by the officer, claim it, under the statute, as exempt
from execution.

The court then modified the first, by adding, "if they are satis-

fied that the plaintifl' knew of said property ;" and modified

the second instruction of the defendant, by adding, " if the

jury arc satisfied that the plaintifl" knew of said property ;"

to which modifications the defendant objected, and the court

overruled the objection, then gave them all as modified, to

which modification the defendant excepted ; and the plaintiff

also excepted to the giving of the defendant's instructions.

The jury found for the plaintifl", $151.85. The defendant

then moved the court to set aside the verdict and for a new
trial, because,

The finding of the jury was contrary to the law and evidence.

The finding of the jury was contrary to the instructions of

the court.

The instructions of the court, given for the plaintiff, are con-

trary to the law, and the court improperly modified the defend-

ant's first and second instructions.

The court overruled the motion to set aside the verdict and
for a new trial, and rendered judgment for the plaintiff for

$151.85, to which the defendant excepted.

B. S. Prettyman, for Plaintiff in Error.

A. L. Davison, for Defendant in Error.
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Caton, C. J. This was an action brought against Nixon,
as the indorser of a promissory note. The proof shows the re-

covery of a judgment against the maker, upon which an execu-

tion was issued, which was returned satisfied in part, and no
property found to satisfy the balance. The proof in the case

tends Ycry strongly to show that the maker, at the time the

execution was in the hands of the sheriff, was in the actual,

open and notorious possession of an abundance of property, both

real and personal, subject to the execution, out of which the

amount thereof might have been made. Tlie court instructed

the jury that the plaintiff was entitled to recover in this action,

unless he knew the maker had property out of wliich the balance

due on the execution might have been made. This instruction

we think was wrong. The statute, giving the right sought to be

enforced by this action, is this : "Every assignor or assignors,

or his, her or their executors or administrators, of every such

note, bond, bill or other instrument in writing, shall be liable

to the assignee or assignees thereof, or his, her or their execu-

tors or administrators, if such assignee or assignees shall have

used due diligence by the institution and prosecution of a suit

against the maker or makers of such assigned note, bond, bill

or other instrument in writing, as against his, her or their heirs,

executors or administrators, for the recovery of the money or

property due thereon, or damages in lieu thereof. Provided^ that

if the institution of such suit would have been unavailing, or that

the maker or makers thereof had absconded or left the State, when
such assigned note, bond, bill or other instrument in writing be-

came due, such assignee or assignees, or his or her executors or

administrators, may recover against the assignor or assignors, or

against his or their heirs, executors or administrators, as if due
diligence by suit had been used." It was admitted, by the in-

structions asked and given for the plaintiff, on the trial below,

that the simple institution and prosecution of a suit to judgment,

and the issuing of an execution against the maker, was not

necessarily and of itself, conclusive evidence of due diligence

to collect the amount of the maker, for the court instructed

that if the plaintiff knew of property belonging to the maker,

out of which the money might have been made, then he had
not used due dilio-ence, and could not recover in this action.

So far as it went this was undoubtedly right, but it did not go

far enough. The plaintiff was bound to prosecute a suit against

the maker, with due diligence, not only to judgment but also to

satisfaction. The intention of the law is that the amount shall

be made of the maker, if by reasonable diligence that can be

done. Due diligence means reasonable diligence ; it means

such diligence as a prudent man would exercise in the conduct
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of his own affairs. If for the want of such diligence the money
is not collected of the maker, it is designed that the loss should

fall upon the holder and not on the assignor. And this should

be so. The hands of the assignor are tied up ; he has no con-

trol over the proceedings or the execution. Were the rule

otherwise, by the neglect of the holder the loss of the debt

might be thrown upon the assignor, for although he should go
and pay up the amount at once, before he could get judgment
against the maker to indemnify himself, the property which was
ample when the first execution was out, might be beyond his

reach. The instruction should have been, if the plaintiff, by
reasonable diligence, might have known of property of the

maker sufficient to satisfy the debt, then he could not recover.

The judgment must be reversed and the cause remanded.
Judg-ment reversed.
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ThOxMas L. Cotton, Plaintifi" in Error, v. Lewis Reed et aL,

Trustees of Schools, etc., Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO HARDIN.

However regular all anterior proceedings of a school teacher up to the time of
presenting his schedule to the school directors, may be, under the law of 1855,
unless the schedule is properly certified and presented in proper time, the pay-
ment for his services cannot be enforced against the trustees of schools by bill in

chancery; if there is any remedy, it is by mandamus.

The facts of this case are fully stated in the oi^inion of the

court.

J, M. Warren, for Plaintiff in Error.

Logan & Allen, for Defendants in Error.

Walker, J. The facts of this case show that complainant

taught a public school, and did all things required of him by the

law to entitle the schedule of his school to allowance and pay-

ment out of the school fund. He had obtained the proper cer-

tificate of qualification, kept a regular schedule and presented

it properly certified by him, to one of the directors of the school

district, two days before the first Saturday in October. The
director to whom it was delivered, also examined and certified

* The remainder of the decisions of this term will appear in volume twenty-one.
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to its correctness, as required by law, but neither of the other

directors, owing to their absence, certified to its correctness

before that day, nor was it presented to the township treasurer

by that time. The defendants, as trustees of schools, refused

to allow it or order its payment, because it was not filed with their

treasurer by the day required by law. And the complainant, by
his bill, seeks to compel the defendants to allow and order the

payment of the money due him on this schedule by the township

treasurer.

We have the question presented, w^hether the time is material

when the teacher's schedide shall be certified and filed with the

township treasurer, to entitle it to payment out of the public

school fund. The act to establish and maintain a system of free

schools, approved the loth of February, 1855, Sess. Laws, p.

68, was in force when complainant was employed, taught this

school, and the schedule was returned, and by it the rights of

the parties are governed. The 50th section of tliat act provides

the mode of certifying teachers' schedules, by the teacher and
at least two of the directors, and when certified as prescribed,

requires that they shall be filed with the township treasurer of

schools by the directors. The 51st section, p. 70, provides that

such schedules so certified shall, at least two days before the

first Saturday of April and October, be delivered to the town-

ship treasurer. The 36th section, p. 61, after enumerating the

funds to be distributed, provides that they shall make distribu-

tion, first, to the township treasurer, two per cent. ; second, for

the payment for the books of the treasurer, if anything be due

for that purpose ; third, for the payment of the expenses of di-

viding common school lands; fourth, "The balance they shall

appropriate on the several schedules certified and returned from
each school in the township according to law, in proportion to

the number of days certified on such schedules respectively to

have been taught since the last regular return day fixed by the

act or trustees of schools."

The duties and powers of trustees of schools in the distribu-

tion of the school fund, are regulated bv legislative enactment.

In that respect they have no discretion whatever. They must
distribute this fund at the time, and to the persons and for

the purposes directed. They are compelled to pursue the re-

quirements of the law. The language is peremptory that the

schedule must be examined, corrected and certified hj two di-

rectors or a committee appointed for that purpose, and filed two
days previously to the first Saturday in April and October, and
that the fund shall be distributed on the schedules certified and
returned from each school in the township, according to law.

This schedule wholly fails to comply with this requirement,
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either as to the certificate or return. And the language em-
ployed leaves no doubt that the legislature intended that these

provisions should be complied with to authorize money to be ap-

portioned to the payment of teachers. If this requirement may
be dispensed with, we can see no reason why any other provision

of the act may not be disregarded. That such requirements

should be imposed is perhaps necessary to protect the fund

from waste, and may have been tlie considerations which influ-

enced the legislature in adopting them. But we in this act find

no authority either for the trustees of schools or the courts to

disregard these provisions. And if the legislature shall be

satisfied that such requirements work hardship and injustice,

they will doubtless apply the corrective.

But it is urged that a court of equity should entertain juris-

diction and grant the relief sought, upon the grounds of acci-

dent. In an examination of the numerous authorities to which
we have had access, we have been unable to find any authority

to relieve a party from an officer's neglect in performing his

duties. In such cases the officer is liable to the party injured,

in an action at law for damages, and such remedy at law is com-
plete. In this case all that is claimed as an accident, was no
more than a neglect of duty by the directors. They had the

power to appoint a committee to examine, correct and certify

this schedule in their absence. This was a duty easily performed,

and no reason is given for its non-performance. This is not the

kind of accident against which courts of equity relieve. It was
not an unavoidable accident, but on the contrary the means to

avoid it were simple and easily performed, and were not em-

ployed. We are not able to perceive that a court of equity can

entertain such jurisdiction.

But if the defendants had failed to perform a duty imposed
upon them as officers, by the law, they may be compelled to its

performance by a writ of mandamus. Courts of equity have no
such power, and must leave the party to his legal remedy, by
writ of mandamus, or action against the persons charged with

the non-performance of duty which has produced the iujury.

5 J. Ch. R. 232. Though the complainant in this case may be

wholly blameless, and may have performed his entire duty, we
think he is not entitled to relief in the mode sought, and that

the court below committed no error in dismissing his bill, and

the decree of that court must be affirmed.

Decree affirmed.
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Thomas G. S. Herod et a!., Plaintiffs in Error, v. Michael
K. Lawler, Administrator of John E. Hall, deceased,

Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO GALLATIN.

Under the twenty-third section of Chapter 26, of Revised Statutes of 1845, entitled
" Costs," if a fee bill is improperly taxed, the court is not required to quash the

fee bill, or to impose any fine or penalty on the clerk, beyond the forfeiture of

his fees of taxation, and the refunding of the amount wrongfully received on the
fee bill.

Under the twenty-seventh section of Chapter 41, of Revised Statutes cf 1845,
entitled " Fees and Salaries," the clerk will only be required to restore the money
collected on the illefral item.

The clerk may properly charjre for the entry of each order or judgment under the

same caption, when said judgments or orders might have been properly entered
under separate captions.

This was a motion made in the Circuit Court of Gallatin

county, against John E. Hall, as clerk of said court, to quash

two fee bills, made out by said clerk, in a certain cause which
liad been determined in said court, wherein Herod and Colvard

were plaintiffs, and Milton Bartley, administrator of Samuel
Seaton, deceased, was defendant.

The fee bill of plaintiffs' costs contains the following items

:

Filing 18 papers 90

Entering plaintiffs' attorney's appearance 10

Entering suit on docket three times, 30 ; two continuances, 40. . .70

Issuing five subpoenas, 1.75; four witness' affidavits, 40 S2.15

Appeal bond, 50 ; entering demurrer to plea, 20 70

Entering demurrer to amended plea 20

Motion for new trial, 20 ; overruling same, 20 40

Entering order for appeal, 20; swearing nine witnesses, 45 05

Entering judgment, 25 ; entering satisfaction of judgment, 15. . .40

Issuing execution, 40 ; docketing, 10 ; ent'g return, 10 ; filing, 5 . . .65

Making and entering bill of costs, 30; certificate and seal, 35. . .65

To this fee bill is attached a certificate of the clerk and the

seal of the court.

The fee bill of defendant's costs contains the following items

:

Filing fifteen papers, 75 ; eight witness' affidavits, 80 §1.55

Ent'g appearance of administrator, 20 ; leave to amend pleas, 20, .40

Issuing five subposnas, 1.75; suggesting death of defendant, 20. . 1.95

Exceptions to deposition, 20; leave to amend pleas, 20 40

Leave to withdraw pleas, 20 ; order for writ return, 20 40

Order for detention damage, 20 ; swearing one witness, 5 25

JIaking and entering bill of costs 30

Certificate and seal 35

To which is also attached a certificate and the seal of court.
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The aggregate amount of said two fee bills is $91.10, for

which an execution issued.

The return on the execution shows the payment of the costs.

The order of the court, in the cause in which the fee bills

and execution issued, shows that there is contained in one entry

the following

:

The plaintiffs file their demurrer to the pleas of no property

in the plaintiffs, No. 2 ; of property in the defendant, No. 3, and
of property in James Layton, No. 4 ; the demurrers to said

pleas Nos. 2 and 3, sustained, with leave to amend said pleas,

and demurrer to plea No. 4 disallowed ; defendant, by leave,

amends pleas 2 and 3, and demurrer to said amended pleas

;

said demurrer disallowed, and plea No. 3 withdrawn.
The plaintiffs asked the court to quash said fee bill, for the

following erroneous charges, to wit

:

Certificate and seal 35

'
: Certificate and seal 35

, Entering demurrer to pleas 20

Entering demurrer to amended pleas 20

Leave to withdraw plea 20

Leave to amend pleas 20

The court, at the December term, 1854, found the item of 35
cents in each fee bill to be erroneous, and ordered the clerk to

repay to plaintiffs the amount of such overcharges, seventy

cents, and fined the clerk two dollars. The plaintiifs excepted.

N. L. Feeeman, for Plaintiffs in Error.

T, B. Tanner, for Defendant in Error.

Walker, J. It appears from the record in this case, that

plaintiffs entered a motion in the court below, to quash a fee

bill and a cost bill, which had previously accrued in a cause

in which they were plaintiffs, and Milton Bartley, adminis-

trator of Samuel • Seaton, deceased, was defendant. On the

hearing, the court held that the charge of thirty-five cents in

each bill, for certificate and seal, was improperly charged, and
ordered the clerk to pay the same to plaintiffs, and imposed upon
him a fine of two dollars.

The plaintiffs insist that the court erred in not quashing the

fee bills, and ordering the clerk to pay the amount of them to

plaintiffs, because they contained the charges for certificates and
seal, which were struck out.

In determining this question, it becomes necessary to examine
some of the provisions of the statute regulating the taxation of

costs in legal proceedings.
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The twent3"-third section in Chapter 26, R. S. 1845, page

129, provides that if any person shall feel himself aggrieved by
the taxation of any bill of costs, by the clerk, he may apply to

the court in which the proceeding was had, to tax the same ac-

cording to law. And it also provides, that if the court shall

find charges allowed for services not rendered, or for which the

person charged is not liable, or any item overcharged, the court

shall correct such taxation ; and if the party aggrieved shall

have paid such wrongful charge, the clerk shall forfeit all his

fees for taxation, and shall pay to the party aggrieved the

amount paid by reason of such wrongful charge. There is no
provision in this section which requires the court to quash the

fee bill, or to impose any fine, or that imposes any penalty on
the clerk, beyond the forfeiture of his fees of taxation ; nor

does it require the court to compel the clerk to pay the whole
amount of the fee bill to the party aggrieved, but only the

amount he may have wrongfully paid on the fee bill. If the

proceeding was had under this section, no error is perceived,

of which the plaintiffs have any right to complain.

But it was insisted that the proceeding was had under the

twenty-seventh section of the Chapter of Revised Statutes, en-

titled " Fees and Salaries," page 249. That section requires

that the fee bill complained of, must have been paid, or re-

plevied in the manner specified, before the court can proceed

to quash it, impose the fine, and render a judgment for any
amount. In this case there is an entire absence of proof that

these bills of costs were cither paid or replevied. It appears

from the evidence, that the execution in the original suit was
satisfied, but the return of the sheriff on it, in no way refers to

the cost bills, and there is no other evidence of their payment,

or that they were ever in his hands. And if the proceeding is

under this section, as it gives a penalty, its provisions must be

complied with before these penalties can be recovered.

But if the requirements of the statute had been satisfied, we
do not think the clerk is liable to the party aggrieved for the

whole amount of the bill of costs, when it may include an erro-

neous item. The section requires the court, when the case is

presented in the manner provided, to inspect the fee bill ;
" And

if it appear that any item or charge is contained in said fee bill,

not authorized by law, or for services not actually rendered, the

said judge shall proceed to quash such fee bill and bond, if one

be given ; and if the money has been collected thereon, he shall

order the clerk to restore the same, and shall impose a fine on
such clerk, in favor of the party injured, of not less than one

dollar nor more than three dollars, for every item erroneously

charged in said fee bill by said clerk." The whole question
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turns upon what the phrase, " and if the money shall have been
collected thereon," has reference to in the preceding portion of

the section. It necessarily refers to a payment on the fee l)ill, or

l^pon the item erroneously taxed, as it can have no other. The
object of the two provisions is to prevent the taxation and col-

lection of costs not authorized by law. By the one the court is,

on motion, required to retax ; and by the other, if items are

erroneously charged, to quash the fee bill. By the first, the

court is required to inflict, as a penalty, the costs of taxation

;

and by the latter, a fine of not less than one dollar and not more
than three dollars, for each erroneous item charged. And the

first requires the money, if paid on such a charge, to be returned

to the party injured, and the latter the money " collected there-

on." The striking similarity of the two provisions affords

strong reasons to conclude that the legislature, by the latter in-

tended to repeal no provision of the former, although they

added other provisions, and give in terms other penalties. And
we are unable to perceive any reason why such a difference

should be made as is claimed. The injury resulting to the party
paying the wrongful charge is the same. Both provisions, al-

though in different chapters and adopted at the same time, and
for the same purpose ; and as there is no mistaking the meaning
of the provision of the cost act, the provisions of the fee bill law
should not be held to repeal its provisions, unless the language was
clear. And that the provision of the last named section may as

well be construed to require only the restoration of the money
collected on the illegal item, as of the whole fee bill. And being

susceptible of such construction, it should be given, rather than

impose so heavy a penalty as the payment of the entire fee-bill,

when it is doubtful whether such was the legislative intention.

It is again insisted that the court below erred in not quasliing

the fee bill, because it contained several separate items for enter-

ing different orders of the court in one paragraph under the

same caption. The paragraph out of which the charges com-
plained of originated, contained the judgment of the court on
three several demurrers to pleas, granting leave to amend pleas

and granting leave to withdraw pleas from the files. Each of

these judgments of the court might have been entered under its

own caption and in a different paragraph, and have been a full

and complete judgment. But we are referred to a portion of

the seventh section of an act of 1849, Sess. Laws, p. 78, amend-
atory to an act entitled " Fees and Salaries," which is this

:

" For entering each order or rule of court for continuance, de-

fault to plead, or any order actually entered in the progress of

a suit, and counting the whole entry as one," the clerk may
charge twenty cents. This provision clearly allows the clerk to
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charge for each order or rule actually entered, counting each

whole entry as one order. We are unable to perceive that an

order or rule of the court is not as entire and complete, when
fully entered in the same paragraph with other orders or rules,

as if it were under a separate caption and in another paragraph.

The legal effect is the same, the entry of the order is just as

whole and complete in the one case as in the other. The object

of the legislature must have been to prevent the clerk from
making more than one charge for each order or rule of court,

and not to compel him to enter each of such orders in a sepa-

rate paragraph. We perceive no force in this objection.

Upon the record in this case, we discover no error for which
the judgment of the court below should be reversed, and are of

the opinion that it should be affirmed.
• Judgment affirmed.

The City of Chicago, Relator, v. George W. Colby,

Eespondent.

APPLICATION POR A MANDAMUS.

The second section of the act entitled "An Act to amend the charters of the sev-

eral towns and cities in this State," approved March 1st, 1854, repeals so much
of the act of 1851, as empowered tlie common council of the city of Chicago
to order a sale of real estate to enforce the payment of assessments.

Special assessments and taxes are different, and the same rule of construction

where the words are used in statutes, will not be indiscriminately applied to these

terms.

The language used in tlie case of the City of CJiicago v. The Rock Island Railroad
Company, ante, page 286, qualified and explained.

The act of February 14th, 1857, amendatory of the city charter of Chicago, repeals

the second section of the act approved March 1st, 1854, aforesaid.

The Cook County Court of Common Pleas and the Circuit Court have jurisdiction

to render judgments for taxes and assessments ; but the County Court, unless
extraordinary powers have been conferred upon it, has not.

The grounds of this application for a mandamus, are stated

at length in the opinion of the court.

ScATES, McAllister & Jewett, for Applicant.

E. Anthony, for Respondent.

Walker, J. The petition for mandamus in this case alleges,

that on the 5th day of October, 1855, the common council of

the city of Chicago ordered that a survey be made, and notice
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given, that the city intended to proceed to take so much land
as would be necessary for the extension of La Salle street from,

its terminus on Madison street on a straight line tliroiigh blocks

95, 96, 97, 116, 117, and 118, to Jackson street. And that the

city"surveyor proceeded forthwith to survey, mark out, plat and
record in a book which had been provided for that purpose, the

improvement and real estate required to be taken for that pur-

pose. That due notice of the intended proceeding was given in

the corporation newspaper, published in the city of Chicago, on
the 20th day of October, 1855, for ten consecutive days. That
afterwards, on the 12th day of November, 1855, and the 10th
day of January, 1856, by an order of the common council, three

reputable, discreet and disinterested freeholders of the city

were duly elected by ballot, as commissioners to ascertain the

damages and compensation due the owners respectively of such

real estate as should be taken and appropriated for the opening-

La Salle street from Madison to Jackson street, in accordance
with the survey, and to assess the amount, with the costs upon
the real estate benefited by the improvement, as nearly as might
be, in proportion to the benefits resulting to each parcel of

ground. That the commissioners were qualified on the 16th day
of January, 1856, and gave notice by advertisement in the

corporation newspaper, that they would, on the 24th day of

January, 1856, meet at the supervisors' room in the court-house

in Chicago, at 10 o'clock, a. m., for the purpose of hearing testi-

mony, and of examining into the damages and benefits resulting

from such improvement. That the common council, on the

application of the commissioners, on the 18th day of February,

1856, extended the time for them to report, for forty days, and
afterwards, on the 24th day of March, 1856, further extended

the time to report, fifteen days. That they made and returned

the assessment roll of all lots or real estate damaged or taken,

and all the lots and real estate deemed benefited by theimprove-

ment, to the common council, and the same was filed in the

city clerk's office on the 5th day of April, 1856. That the com-

mon council caused due notice of the assessment to be given by
advertisement in the public newspapers of the corporation for

ten days, that all persons interested might be and appear on the

21st day of April, 1856, before the common council, and make
objections thereto, and that the common council would then and
there revise and confirm the assessment roll ; that on that day
the common council did revise the same, and on the 9th day of

June following, confirmed the assessment in every particular,

and ordered that a warrant issue for its collection ; that a

warrant issued, directed to the city collector of assessments for

the south division of Chicago for the years 1856 and 1857,
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which bears date the 17th day of June, 1856, and was under
the hand of the Mayor and the seal of the city. That George
W. Colby was duly elected city collector of special assessments

for the south division of the city of Chicago for the years 1856
and 1857, and qualified as such, and entered upon the duties of

his office, and was, when the warrant issued, qualified and
acting as such collector ; that the warrant was delivered to him
to execute, and that he entered upon the collection of the war-

rant and collected divers sums of monc}^ of the owners of the

lots so assessed, amounting to $23,913.03 ; and that he was
unable to collect the remainder of the assessment, and on the

21st day of July, 1856, made return of the warrant that he had
demanded payment of the several owners of the lots so assessed,

and that they had not paid the same, and that he had not been

able to find personal property subject to the payment thereof,

and unsatisfied as to all of the assessments not marked "paid,"

And that the common council then made an order of sale of the

several lots, and parts of lots, and tracts of land, so assessed,

for the amount assessed severally and unpaid on each, and that

the warrant was redelivered to Colby, commanding him to sell

the several tracts, lots, and parts of lots, for the collection of

such unpaid assessments. That he advertised the lots, tracts,

and parts of lots for sale for the assessments ; that before the

day fixed for the sale of the same under the order, to wit, the

6th day of September, 1856, the Board of Supervisors of Cook
county sued out of the Cook County Court of Common Pleas a

writ of injunction against the city of Chicago and Colby,

restraining them from further proceeding to sell the real estate

assessed to Cook county as block ninety-nine, being the court-

house or public square, and they were further restrained by a

writ of injunction issued from the same court, bearing date on
the 29th day of January, 1857, at the suit of Yolney E. Roscoe,

from selling lots 3, 4, 6, 7, and 8, in block 109, for such assess-

ment, and that other injunctions were threatened by other

owners, if the collector proceeded to make sale ; and to avoid

further expense, it was agreed, that no further sales should take

place until these cases were determined, and that the other

assessments should abide the event of these suits. That the

injunctions in those cases have been dismissed; and that peti-

tioner has applied to Colby to proceed and sell the property,

and collect the assessments, but that he neglects and refuses to

make sale under the order of the common council.

By agreement of the parties, Colby enters his appearance, and
waives the service of an alternative writ of mandamus, and makes
return as if such a writ had issued and he had been duly served,

and by his return he admits all of the material facts charged in
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the petition, and agrees that if the court shall be of opinion

that the facts warrant it, a peremptory mandamus may issue as

though the return was to an alternative writ.

The question presented by this record is, whether Colby, who
was the special collector of assessments, is authorized, under
the (M'der of sale made by the common council, to sell the land,

lots and parts of lots, to satisfy the assessments severally due
and unpaid, on this warrant. In determining this question it

will be necessary to examine the provisions of several legislative

enactments. By the provisions of the act of 1851, amendatory
to the city charter. Chap. 8, Sec. 8, page 159, the authority is

conferred upon the common council to direct the sale of real

estate for the non-payment of taxes and assessments, by an order

entered of record. Under this provision the common council

liad the right to make the order in this case, unless the provi-

sion of the act of 1851 was repealed by the act of the 1st of

March, 1854; Scates' Stat. p. 201 ; the first section of which
enacts, " That in all cases where taxes assessed on real estate

by the corporate authorities of any city or town in this State,

except in the city of Chicago, are not paid within the time fixed

by the corporate authorities of any such city or town, it shall

be lawful for the collector of any such city or town, after giving

notice of such application, by advertisement, at least thirty

days previously to such application, in some newspaper published

in said town or city, or if no newspaper should be published in

said town or city, then by posting up printed or written notices

of such intended application in at least four of the most public

places in such town or city, to apply to the County Court of the

county in which such delinquent real estate may be situated, and
cause judgment to be entered against such delinquent real estate

for the amount of taxes due and unpaid, and costs," etc. And
it further provides, that when the County Court shall render

judgment, it shall issue its precept or order to the collector of

such city or town, directing him to sell said real estate at public

auction, etc. By the second section it is provided, that " In all

cases where assessments have heretofore been made, or where
assessments may hereafter be made, by the corporate authorities

of any town or city, in this State, on any lot or real estate in

such town or city, for the purpose of improving any street, side-

walk or alley in front of such lot or real estate, or for any

purpose whatever, either by ordinance, resolution or other

proceeding, and such assessment is not paid within the time

fixed by the order, resolution or ordinance making such assess-

ment, the corporate authorities of the several towns and cities

in this State, may apply to the County Court of the proper

county for judgment against said lot or real estate for the

40
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amount of said assessment and costs ; and the County Court, on
such application being made, shall render judgment against such

lot or real estate for the amount of said assessment and costs,

and shall issue its precept to the sherifl" of the proper county,

commanding him to sell said lot or real estate, or so much
thereof as may be necessary to pay said judgment and costs, in

the same manner and with like effect as if sold upon execution

at law," etc.

This latter act in no way afi'ects the power of the common
council to order the sale of real estate for the collection of

taxes. The first section relates to taxes alone, and excepts the

city of Chicago from its provisions, while the exception in terms

is omitted in the second section. It was urged that by implica-

tion the exception extends to the second section also, as the

same reason and necessity existed for its exception in the one
as in the other. If the second section was in relation to the

same subject matter, and only made some further provision in

regard to it, the position would doubtless be correct. But the

first section relates alone to taxes, while the second refers to

assessments for the improvement of streets, sidewalks and
alleys. This court has held that a special assessment is not a

tax.' Canal Trustees v. The City of Chicago, 12 111. R. 406.

And the same distinction is again recognized in the case of Hig-

g'ins V. The City of Chicago, 18 111. R. 281. Then if a tax

and a special assessment are different things, no rule of con-

struction would authorize us to hold that the same exception

was intended to apply to the second section, that is expressed

in the first, but on the contrary the fact that the city of Chicago

is expressly excepted from the provisions relating to taxes, and
is not referred to in the provision relating to assessments, raises

a strong presumption that it was not intended to be excepted in

the second section. The language employed in the second sec-

tion is, likewise, comprehensive, in terms embracing all cities

and towns in the State, and we think, in the absence of such an
exception, the city of Chicago must be held to be embraced in

its provisions. It then follows that the second section of the

act of March 1st, 1854, repeals so much of the act of 1851, as

empowered the common council to order a sale of real estate to

enforce the payment of assessments ; and any order for such

purpose, made by them after the act of March, 1854, went into

operation, would be unwarranted and inoperative.

The language used by this court, in the case of The City

of Chicago y. The Rock Island Railroad Company, ante, p. 286,

is too broad, and should have been limited to all orders of sale

made by the common council prior to the time the latter act

took effect. The language employed on that occasion was,



NOVEMBER TERM, 1858. 619

City of Chicago v. Colby.

" That the act of 1851 was in force when the assessment was
made and confirmed, and when the warrant was issued, and for

several months after its return day. Colby, under that act had
the undoubted right to return this warrant and procure an order

of sale from the common council at any time before the passage

of the act of February, 1857." That decision was made with-

out any reference to the act of March, 1854, the statement

appearing from the facts of that case that the warrant had not

been returned, and it did not appear that the common council

had ever granted an order for the sale of this real estate, while

these facts do appear in the present application. That decision

should be limited in so far as it holds that the common council

had power to order a sale, or the collector to sell the property

under such an order, after the adoption of the act of March,

1854, and so far as it holds the act of 1857 in force after the

adoption of the former named act.

The question is then presented whether the act of March 1st,

1854, was repealed by the act amendatory of the city charter of

Chicago, approved 14th February, 1857. By section 27 of that

act, Scates' Stat. p. 892, it is provided that there shall be no
special collectors of revenue and assessments appointed by the

common council, other than assistants to the city collector, who
shall in all cases be the principal in the treasury department.

The 40th section, ib. p. 902, provides that, " If from any
cause the taxes or assessments charged in said assessment war-

rants are not collected or paid on lands or lots described in

said warrants on or before the first Tuesday in January ensuing

the date of said warrants, it shall be the duty of the collector

to prepare and make report thereof to some court of general

jurisdiction to be held in the city of Chicago, at any special

vacation or general term thereof, for judgment against the lands,

lots or parcels of land, for the amount of taxes, assessments, in-

terest and costs respectively due thereon. And he shall give

ten days' notice of his intended application, before the first day

of the said term of the said court, briefly specifying the nature

of the respective warrants upon which such application is to be

made, and requesting all persons interested therein to attend at

such time ; and the advertisement so published shall be deemed
and taken to be sufficient and legal notice, both of the aforesaid

intended application by the collector to said court for judgment,

and a refusal and demand to pay the said taxes and assess-

ments."

The 87th section, ib. p. 911, repeals all parts of the act of

which it is amendatory, and the several acts amending the city

charter as are inconsistent with, or are repugnant to, its pro-
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visions, but provides that all acts and parts of acts not incon-

sistent with its provisions shall remain in full force.

Then is the second section of the act of March, 1854, incon-

sistent with the provisions of the act of February, 1857, as

regards the mode of collecting these assessments ? The former

act requires the corporate authorities to make application for an

order of sale, and that such application should be made to the

County Court, and the order should be applied for after the

time limited by such city or town, for the payment of such as-

sessment, had expired ; and that the precept should issue to the

sheriff, to be executed in the same manner as executions at law :

while by the provisions of the latter act, the collector is au-

thorized to apply for a judgment, and his application must be

made to a court of general jurisdiction, to be held in the city

of Chicago ; and he can only apply for an order of sale for the

assessments that remain due and unpaid on the first Tuesday in

January ensuing the date of the warrant ; and it also requires

the process for the sale of the property to issue to the collector.

Thus it is seen that the provisions of these enactments are clearly

inconsistent and repugnant, as to the time when the application

shall be made, the court that shall order the sale of the prop-

erty, and the person who shall enforce the order of sale ; conse-

quently the act of February, 1857, repeals that of March, 1854,

so far as it relates to the city of Chicago.

We held in the case of the City of C/ncao^o v. The Rock
Island Railroad Company, that the city collector was alone au-

thorized, under the act of February, 1857, to apply for an order

for the sale of real estate to enforce the payment of assessments.

We do not perceive any reason to be dissatisfied with that de-

cision, and are disposed to adhere to that construction. That
act requires the collector to apply to a court of general juris-

diction in the city of Chicago for an order of sale. That the

Circuit Court of Cook county is such a court, none will doubt,

and we have held that the Cook County Court of Common Pleas

is such, and we have no doubt either of these courts have juris-

diction to render judgment for taxes and assessments. But the

County Courts of this State, as they are generally organized,

are not courts of general jurisdiction, and unless b}^ the organ-

ization of the Cook County Court, it has such general jurisdic-

tion, it could not order the sale of property for the non-payment
of taxes and assessments under the act of 1857 ; and we have
been referred to no law conferring general jurisdiction on that

court.

The application for a peremptory mandamus is denied.

Writ of mandamus refused.
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Daniel Myers, Administrator of Simon Albert, deceased.

Plaintiff in Error, v. John Malcom, Administrator of

Joseph Malcom, deceased. Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO MARION.

The declaration made by a deceased party while living with a step-son, that he
intended to give the step-son a note he held' against him, does not give the step-

son a legal claim to have the note surrendered to him, nor is it any defense to

an action upon it.

Where parents have been living with a step-son, it is proper for a jury to decide,

upon all the focts, whether the parents were to pay for their board, or whether
they were living upon the hospitality of their relatives.

John Malcom, administrator of Joseph Malcom, deceased,

sued Simon Albert on a note given by him to Joseph Malcom.
Suit before Probate Court, and judgment for plaintiff below for

$61.48. Defendant appealed to Circuit Court, and died.

Daniel Myers, administrator of Simon Albert was made a

party, and the cause was heard before Breese, Judge, and a

jury, at August term, 1857. Verdict for plaintiff below for

$108.57 ; motion for new trial denied
;
judgment for plaintiff.

The note sued on was as follows :

One day after date I promise to pay Joseph Malcom, the sum of one hundred

dollars and seven dollars and fifty cents, for value received of him this April

the 13th, 1855. Witness my hand and seal.

SIMEON ALBERT, [seal.]

There was a set-off by defendant as follows :

Malcom to Albert, Dr.

To money paid going to Missouri $200.00

To money paid for teams going to Chester 5.00

To use two teams seven days, at $2.50 each 35.00

To boarding and washing from first of April, 1855, to Sep-

tember, 1855, six months, at $16 per month 9G.00

To same fi-om October 1st, 1855, to February, 1856, four

months, at $16 64.00

To 110 boards 1.00

$401.00

Levi Albert testified for the defendant below, that he went

with Malcom and Albert to Missouri and back ; Albert paid all

the expenses there and back.

Thomas Saunders. Knows that Albert went to Chester after

goods for Malcom and himself—gone five or six days—went

with two teams—one Simon Albert's and one Levi Albert's

—

Malcom and wife staid with Albert from first of May, 1855,

until last of August or first of September, 1855, at another time
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from March to September 1856—at one time four months, at

another six months ; board was worth $2.00 to $2.50 each, per

week ; Malcom and wife were very old and feeble, did nothing,

were a great deal of trouble, etc. Don't think they contributed

anything to support of family ; old lady required a good deal of

waiting on.

Hiram Torrey testified to same fact as last witness, and says

further, their board worth $2.50 each, per week ; saw two teams

start to Chester
;
gone a week ; teams worth $2.25 or $2.50

per day ; one team Simon's, other Eli Albert's.

Eli Albert testified that Simon Albert went to Chester for

old man Malcom's things, with two teams, one was Simon's, the

other witness''s ; witness charged Simon for his team, $2.50 per

day
;
gone a week.

Robert Malcom said he moved old man Malcom to Simon's,

(defendant) in December, 1856 ; that old man died February,

1857 ; the old man wanted to go to Simon's, and Simon took him.

Anise Malcom. Knows that old man Malcom and wife

boarded at Simon Albert's two months, from December, 1856,

until in February, 1857 ; don't know what it was worth.

Mary Moore. Old man Malcom said he intended to give the

note to Simon.

WiLLARD & Haynie, for Plaintifi" in Error.

S. L. Bryan, for Defendant in Error.

Caton, C. J. The first item of set-off claimed in this case,

is satisfactorily answered by the fact, that the intestate Malcom
loaned the money to Albert to bear the expenses to Missouri,

and for that money the note was given, upon which this action

was brought. This circumstance conclusively shows, that it was
the understanding of the parties, that Albert was to bear those

expenses. As to the items for board of Malcom and wife, and
transporting his goods from Chester, the question was fairly put

to the jury by the instructions of the court, whether those services

were intended by Albert as a gratuity to his father-in-law or not,

and they have found tliat they were so intended, and we think

that finding warranted by the evidence. We do not deem it

necessary to review the evidence in the case at length, which
leads to this conclusion. The relationship between the parties

prepares the mind at once to believe, that Albert was extending

towards his step-parents, when taking care of them in their old

age, a gratuitous and grateful hospitality, rather than keeping
them for the mercenary consideration of dollars and cents. The
declaration made by Malcom, while there, that he intended to
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give this note to Albert, shows that a sense of the relationship

between them, and the kind attention and hospitality which he
was enjoying- from his son-in-law and daughter, were present to

his mind, and of itself rebuts the idea that he supposed he was
there as a boarder. We may regret that the old gentleman
died before he executed this intention, but that cannot alter the

legal question presented. Such declared intention created no
legal claim in Albert to have the note given up to him, and no
defense against the note in the hands of the administrator.

The judgment of the Circuit Court must be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

The Ohio and Mississippi Railroad Company, Plaintiff in

Error, v. Sidney Dunbar et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO MARION.
.

' ^

'

A railroad company cannot relieve itself from liability by leasing its road ; espe-

cially so where the power to lease is not expressly given by the charter.

WI»ere parties hire the use of cars from a railroad company, to be employed in

transportation of freight, to be laden as the hirers choose, the compan}' does not
incur any risk as to the mode adopted in loading the cars.

Common carriers are not liable for losses occasioned by an inherent defect of the

article causing its destruction, nor for the loss of weight in cattle transported by
rail ; but every reasonable effort must be used to deliver property at its destina-

tion in proper time, and an omission to perform this dutj' creates a liability; and
all proximate damages resulting from a neglect of it, may be recovered.

Plaintiffs below (defendants here,) filed their declaration in

an action of " trespass on the case," containing three counts.

1st count demurred to, and demurrer sustained.

2nd count. That plaintiffs below, on, etc., at, etc., delivered

to defendants a certain lot of hogs, viz., two hundred and forty-

two, of value $2,000, at Salem, to be carried thence to Illinois-

town, to be there safely and securely delivered for plaintiffs,

and in consideration of certain rewards, etc., defendants under-

took, and then, etc., promised they would carry and convey said

hogs from, etc., to, etc., and there safely and securely deliver said

hogs for said plaintiffs, and that they would furnish a suitable

number of cars, to wit, five, and that they would start from the

station house on the next morning, to wit, January 26th ; avers

that defendants received said hogs, etc., and did not furnish said

cars, nor did they start on the next morning, nor safely and
securely deliver the same at Illinoistown, etc. ; refused to fur-

nish cars ; did not start for seven days \ and so carelessly and
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negligently did defendants conduct themselves, that thirty head
of hogs, being crowded, etc., in pens and on cars, died and were
lost, in consequence of the failure aforesaid. Plaintiffs lost a

large amount of money, etc., by shrinkage, and hire of hands,

from the time of delivery to defendants, to delivery to plaintiffs

;

expenses in renewing engagements, etc.

3rd count. That in consideration that plaintiffs had then,

etc., delivered to defendants certain, to wit, two hundred and
forty-two pork hogs, to be carried, etc., (as in second count,)

and delivered to plaintiffs, for certain rewards, etc., the defen-

dants undertook and promised to carry said hogs from, etc., to,

etc., and there deliver the same for plaintiffs, in a reasonable

time then following. Averment that defendants received the

hogs, etc., but did not in a reasonable time, carry and convey

said hogs from, etc., to, etc., and there deliver the same, etc.,

within said reasonable time, but neglected and refused so to do

;

in consequence whereof, plaintiffs lost thirty head of hogs and
a large sum, to wit, ^600, in loss of weight and trouble and
expense, after the lapse of said reasonable time, in watching

hogs in pen ; were forced to lay out money, $100, to renew en-

gagements, etc. Conclusion in case ad damnum, $1,500.
Defendants plead, 1st, general issue in case ; 2nd, general

issue in assumpsit ; 3rd, a special plea. Actio 7ion, because ^je-

fore the 25th January, 1856, or the accruing of the causes of

action, in plaintiffs' declaration, defendants had hired and let

their road, with fixtures, engines, cars, machinery, etc., to one

G. W. Jenks, who, at the time when, etc., had entire control

over the whole, and by his agents, etc., completely managed the

same, free from control of defendants, and that the contract,

etc., if any such was made, was with Jenks and his agents, then

lawfully in possession and control of said road. Verifica-

tion, etc.

Demurrer to third plea sustained ; defendants stand by third

plea ; issue joined
;

jury, and trial ; verdict for plaintiffs,

$371.72. Motion for new trial overruled, and judgment on
verdict ; excepted to, and bill of exceptions signed.

F. A. Blair, defendants' witness, was station agent at the

time plaintiffs came to the Salem station ; that he was the only

person who was authorized to make contracts for shipment of

freight ; never made any contract to ship hogs ; would not do
it. The company charged so much ($18.50) per car; have
seen cars as closely loaded as these were ; do not consider hogs
in care of company till on cars ; we could not have got the

hogs away sooner than we did. It was extremely cold ; had to

keep men to bail water for passenger trains.
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Andy Harmon was at station, working for defendants, when
plaintiffs came with hogs ; never made any contract with them

;

freight trains run very irregularly ; very cold ; water froze in

tanks and pumps ; impossible for us to get them off before we
did ; hogs put in cars by plaintiffs' consent. I stated at the

time, the hogs were shipped at owner's risk, and the company
would not be responsible for loss by crowding, but the owners
must run that risk themselves ; that they had the car at so

much and loaded it as they pleased. I have seen more hogs in

same cars than plaintiffs put in ; they went well enough ; freight

trains ran no further than to Sandoval ; the reason was, there

was no water except at Carlyle, and they could only take water
enough to run to Sandoval and back to Carlyle, and if they

came to Salem they got out of water.

Verdict, $371.72. Motion for new trial, overruled and ex-

cepted to.

Errors assigned

:

1st. The court erred by proceeding to try the foregoing

cause, without an issue joined.

2nd. The court erred by proceeding to try issue joined upon
the plea of not guiltij in case, and 710n-assumpsit filed in this

cause.

3rd. The court erred in sustaining plaintiffs' demurrer to

defendants' third plea.

4th. The court erred in refusing to carry demurrer back to

plaintiffs' declaration, and sustaining it to said declaration.

6th. The court erred in admitting testimony for plaintiffs.

6th. The court erred in refusing to allow testimony offered

by defendants, to go to the jury.

7th. The court erred in giving improper instructions to jury,

for plaintiffs.

8th. The court erred in refusing proper instructions asked

by defendants.

9th. The court erred in overruling defendants' motion for

new trial, and entering judgment for plaintiffs, on verdict of

jury, and against defendants.

Wherefore defendants pray that said judgment be reversed,

set aside, annulled, made void, and a new trial granted, etc.

I. N. Haynie, for Plaintiff in Error.

S. N. Bryan, and R. S. Nelson, for Defendants in Error.

AValker, J. In this case, numerous exceptions were taken

on the trial below, but we shall confine our attention to those

only which were urged in the argument. We are asked to re-
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verse the judgment of the Circuit Court, because the plaintiffs'

demurrer to defendants' third plea was sustained. That plea

alleged, as a defense to the action, that the defendant had, prior

to the 25th of January, 1856, leased their road, engines, cars,

machinery and fixtures, to G. W. Jenks, who had entire control

of the road, free from any contx'ol of the defendants, and that

the contract, if an}'' such were made, was with Jenks and his

agents, and not with defendants. This plea presents the ques-

tion, whether an incorporation of this kind has the legal ca-

pacity to lease its corporate property and franchises, so as to be

relieved from liability to the public for injuries sustained and
damages resulting from breach of contract entered into by the

lessee.

The question seems to be new, and we have been referred to

no authority sustaining the position, nor have we been able to

find any. And in determining this question, it may be well to

advert to some of the general principles which govern bodies

of this character. They undoubtedly derive all of their privi-

leges, as well as their existence, from the power that creates

them ; and we must look to their charter for their power to

act. The privileges of such bodies must be either expressly or

impliedly granted. The rights and privileges legally exercised

by them are exclusive in their nature, and for that reason they

should be held strictly to act within the powers granted. It

will not do to say that it is more convenient, more profitable to

the company, or that it would render the company less respon-

sible, to act in a particular manner, that we may infer such

authority. Power to act in a particular manner, can only be

inferred when such act is necessary to perform an object ex-

pressly authorized, and the mode of its performance is not speci-

fied ; or when the exercise of the power claimed is necessary to

accomplish the object of the company's creation. When these

bodies accept their charters, they are held to enter into a con-

tract with the State, to discharge all the duties imposed, and to

exercise the rights and privileges conferred on them, in the man-
ner prescribed. And they must be held to a performance of

this contract in precisely the same manner as is required of

individuals.

The sixteenth section of the charter of this company, (Pri-

vate Laws, 1851, p. 94,) authorizes them to borrow money, in

such sums as may be necessary, for finishing and operating their

road ; to issue and dispose of the bonds of the road for money
so borrowed ; to mortgage their corporate property and fran-

chises, or to convey the same by deed of trust, to secure the

payment of any debt contracted by the company for such pur-

pose. While these powers are extensive, it will hardly be con-
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tended that they confer any power to lease the property and
franchises of the road, so as to release the company from liability

for the non-performance of duties devolving upon them as a cor-

poration. We are unable to perceive that it is necessary that

they should lease the road and franchises, to perform any act

expressly authorized by their charter, or to effectuate the ob-

jects of its creation. Other sections of their charter authorize

them to make, ordain and establish all by-laws, rules and regu-

lations necessary to carry out the powers conferred ; to regulate

the manner of transportation of persons and property ; the width

of their track ; the construction of wheels ; the form and size of

the cars ; the weight of loads, and all other matters and things

respecting the use of the road. It will be observed that the

legislature has been specific in the enumeration of the powers
granted, but in them all, we nowhere find any, either expressly

or impliedly giving this power to lease their road so as to re-

lease them from liability. If such leases may be made, and the

effect claimed results from them, railroads may avoid all liability

to the public. And if such leases should be to irresponsible

and reckless persons, the remedies for wrongs inflicted, duties

omitted, and contracts violated by the lessee, would not be

worth pursuing. That the legislature intended to confer such

power on these companies, we do not believe. And we there-

fore think the court below committed no error in sustaining the

demurrer to the })lea. But we do not undertake to determine

whether a railroad may make such a lease as w^ould authorize

the lessees to run and use such roads or not, as that question is

not presented by the record in this case.

Exceptions were taken to the giving of plaintiffs' instructions.

The second of these is, " That if the jury believe, from the

evidence, that the plaintiffs, for the want of a sufficient number
of cars, were compelled by necessity to ship in four cars, which

were insufficient, the fact of the agent telling them that they

shipped at their own risk, does not relieve defendant from lia-

bility for failing to supply the proper number of cars." If this

property freighted on defendant's road, is to be governed in all

respects by the rules governing common carriers, and plaintiffs'

having hired cars to freight these hogs, will not have any effect

on the rule, then the instruction was properly given. But it

must l>e admitted that plaintiffs had the right by contract to

hire the use of cars to freight their hogs from Salem to Illinois-

town, and to load the hogs in such manner as they might choose.

And by doing so the company could incur no risk as to the mode
plaintiffs adopted in loading the cars. That would be entirely

under their control, and they would be responsible for their

want of judgment in so doing. There was evidence in this case
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without any conflict, that plaintiffs had hired cars of the com-

pany to ship these hogs, at eighteen dollars and fifty cents for

each car, and that while loading them they were informed that

they loaded them at their own risk. If this evidence was true,

we think the plaintiffs, wlien they had contracted for more cars

than were furnished, should have insisted upon the contract, and
if they did so, they would have the right in a count on this con-

tract to recover for the damage sustained by its breach. But
under the counts in the declaration in this case, plaintiffs had no

right to recover damages for a breach of such contract. And
we are therefore of the opinion that this instruction should not

have been given.

The sixth instruction is this, " The court is asked to instruct

the jury, that if they believe, from the evidence, that defend-

ants ordered the plaintiffs to put their property in the cars for

transportation from Salem to lllinoistown, then the defendants

are liable as common carriers for all damages done to property

of plaintiffs while in their care and possession ; and if the jury

believe, from the evidence, that by the delays, carelessness or

negligence of defendants, the plaintiffs, without their fault, have

sustained damages, they should find for the plaintifls and fix the

damages according to the evidence of the case." The doctrine

seems to be well settled that common carriers are not liable for

losses occasioned by an inherent defect of the article causing

its destruction. Addison Contracts, 807. And this principle

applies to live stock in so far as tliey are liable to decrease in

weight from this mode of transportation, and this instruction

should have been so modified, and with that modification it

would have been proper. The defendants, after receiving the

property, were bound to use every reasonable effort without delay

to deliver it at its place of destination, and failing to do so, were
liable as common carriers for the damages resulting from such

neglect of duty. The law implies such a promise on their part.

But this liability would only extend to immediate and proximate

damages, growing out of the non-performance of their implied

contract, and not to such as are remote or contingent. If plain-

tiffs had a contract for the sale of these hogs at St. Louis, and
the defendants, by their unnecessary delay, rendered it necessary

for plaintiffs to go to St. Louis to get the time of delivery ex-

tended, we see no reason why, as the damages are specially

laid in the declai-ation, that they should not be recoverable.

But the evidence as presented by the bill of exceptions leaves it

doubtful whether there was a contract requiring the delivery of

the hogs at an earlier date than they arrived at their destina-

tion ; or whether the extension might not have been obtained by
other less expensive means than by going there in person.
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We are unable to perceive any objection to the other instruc-

tions given, as they seem to correctly announce the law of the

case.

The judgment of the court below should be reversed and the

cause remanded.

Judgment reversed.

The Ohio and Mississippi Railroad Company, Plaintiff in

Error, v. William E, Middleton et al, Defendants in

Error.

ERROR TO MARION.

Where a party proceeds to trial upon a replication, which he insists is not an
answer to his plea, without demarring to, or moving to strike it from the files,

he will be held to have admitted its sufficiency.

In declaring on a contract executed by an agent, the contract may be described as

having been signed by the principal, or by his agent for him.

When it is doubtful whether the contract was intended to bind the principal or the

agent, extrinsic evidence may be received to ascertain the intention.

The ratification by the principal of a contract of the agent, amounts to a waiver
by the principal of a want of authority in the agent.

This was an action of " trespass on the case on promises " by
defendants in error against plaintiff in error. Declaration con-

tained three counts. Damages, $500.
1st count, is upon a special contract—charged and averred to

have been made by plaintiffs, by Wm. P. Whittle, their agent,

who signed said contract by B. B. Thomas, his agent—to the

effect following : That the said plaintiffs below agreed to dig a

well for the use of the Ohio and Mississippi Railroad Company,
defendants below, at the side track to be laid out by defendants

below, at Middleton depot, in Marion county, Illinois. Well to

be dug twelve feet in diameter, until rock of sufficient strength

is reached to support a wall one foot thick—of height to reach

surface—and was to be built as directed by the engineer in

charge of the work at that point. Then the well was to be ten

feet in diameter until water was reached of sufficient quantity

for the purpose aforesaid—said well to be dug and walled as

required by engineer in charge of the construction of the work,

for the following consideration, to wit: $10 per foot for the

first twenty feet dug and walled as required, etc.
;
$12 per foot

for the second twenty feet
; $15 per foot for the third twenty

feet ; and $3 per foot additional for each twenty feet thereafter.

Defendants were to furnish a force pump and a chain pump, if
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necessary, to keep water out of well while at work—furnishing

pumps discretionary with defendants' engineer—piaintiflfs not

ijound to dig more than one hundred feet, nor bound to finish

well if life endangered by the gas or damp ; this to be decided

by defendants or their engineer. Averment that in considera-

tion of plaintiffs' (below) promise to perform, etc., defendants

undertook and promised to fulfill tlieir part, etc. Averment of

performance by plaintifi's below, under inspection of engineer in

charge, and approved by him ; that it was dug deep enough to

supply sufficient water, etc., and was so determined by said

engineer, and all of said work was approved by said engineer,

and received by him for said defendants below as completed.

Averment that said contract was executed by Whittle, by B. B.

Thomas, on defendants' behalf. No breach to first count, and
no averment that it was delivered to plaintiffs.

2nd count, For that, etc., defendants on the 16th of February,

1855, made, etc., and delivered to said plaintiffs their certain

other contract, in writing, dated February 16th, 1855, which
said contract, etc., the said plaintifts aver, was executed on the

part of said defendants, and at the special instance and request

of said defendants, by the agent of said defendants, Wm. P.

Whittle, signed and abreviated thus, " Wm. P. Whittle, by B.

B. Thomas," in consideration of the promises of defendants,

and on behalf of defendants, and at special instance of defend-

ants, etc., the plaintiff's agreed to dig a well for the use of

defendants, at the side track to be laid out by said defendants

by the said Wm. P. Whittle, or his assistant, at a place in

Marion county, called Middleton depot ; said well to be dug
twelve feet in diameter till they struck rock, etc., sufficient to

support wall one foot thick, etc., to be built as directed by the

engineer in charge, etc., then ten feet in diameter until water
sufficient for the use of Ohio and Mississippi Railroad Company
was found ; said well to be dug and walled as required, etc., for

the following consideration : |10 per foot for first twenty feet

;

$12 per foot for second
; $15 per foot for third ; and $8 addi-

tional for each twenty feet thereafter—that is to say, $3 addi-

tional to the last named sum of $15 per foot. And it was fur-

ther agreed that if water sufficient to retard the digging of said

well was found, and not sufficient for the purposes named, etc.,

then defendants were to furnish plaintiff's a chain pump free of

charge, to be furnished, however, at defendants' discretion, etc.

Further that plaintiff's should not be bound to dig more than one

hundred feet, etc., and were not bound to finish the same if gas

or damp endangered life, to be decided by defendants. Plain-

tiff's aver that they, at special instance, etc., of defendants, and
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upon the consideration, undertaking and agreement of said

defendants in said contract, executed said contract. Plaintiffs

aver that they dug well fifty-four feet, and were then notified

by defendants not to dig any deeper, because there was water
sufficient, etc., and thereby completed, walled and finished said

well, and delivered possession to defendants, and it was, on the

1st of November, 1855, accepted by defendants. Averment
that defendants broke their agreement in this, to wit: That
plaintifis found water sufficient to retard digging and not suffi-

cient for the use aforesaid, and notified defendants thereof; that

the engineer in charge declared a pump necessary, and said

defendants then, etc., promised to furnish a chain pump, as

bound, etc., by said contract. Averment that defendants failed

to furnish a chain pump, etc., whereby an action accrued to

plaintiffs, to demand, etc., ^400.
3rd count, Indel)itatus assumpsit, on 1st April, 1856, for dig-

ging and Availing well, $500—common conclusion; damages,
$500.

Defendants plead general issue, and joinder, and three special

pleas as follows, to wit

:

Special plea, to 3rd count, to wit: That the work, etc., was
done under a written contract between Wm. P. Whittle and
said plaintiffs, dated 16th February, 1855, and that other than

under said contract they never dug any well at Middleton
depot, or elsewhere, for use of said road, etc.

2nd special plea to 1st count, actio non^ because the work
therein (1st count) mentioned, if done at all, was under a writ-

ten contract with Wm. P. Whittle, and not otherwise, etc.

Verification, etc.

3rd special plea to 2nd count, actio nan, because the chain

pump was to be furnished under agreement between Whittle and
plaintiff's, and was to be so furnished at Whittle's discretion, and
not by defendants.

Replication as to 2nd, 3rd and 4th pleas, preclndi nan. because

they say, that by virtue of the said contracts in the said plaintiffs'

declaration mentioned, in manner and form as therein set forth,

the said defendants did undertake and promise as alleged there-

in in the said declaration, etc. ; conclusion to the country, etc.

No issue joined on this by defendants.

B. B. Thomas testified, "for plaintiffs below, that in December
and January, 1855, he was assistant engineer under Wm. P.

Whittle, on the Ohio and Mississippi Railroad ; that said Wliit-

tle authorized him to sign his (Whittle's) name to an agree-

ment with plaintiffs, to dig a well at Middleton station, on the

Ohio and Mississippi Railroad ; witness did not write the agree-
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ment, except the latter clause ; witness had a minute in a mem-
orandum book of what he wrote. Mr. Whittle did not give

witness written autliority.

Witness was then asked by plaintiffs, " for whom he executed

the contract sued on, y/hether for Whittle or the company."

Defendants objected to the question, court overruled objection

;

witness stated that he believed he executed or signed Whittle's

name for the Ohio and Mississippi Railroad Company, as the

well was for the use of the company. Defendants excepted to

decision of court, in overruling their objection, and admitting said

testimony at the time. Plaintiffs then offered the following instru-

ment in evidence, being the instrument alluded to by witness

Thomas, viz

:

STATE OF ILLINOIS, )

CLAY COUNTY. ) All Article of Agreement, made and entered

into the fifth day of January, A. D. 1855, by and between W. E. Middleton, and

L. L. Morgan, of the first part, and William P. Whittle, (res'd. engineer, on

Ohio and Mississippi Railroad,) of the second part, that party of the first part

hereby covenant and agree to dig a well for the use of the Ohio and Mississippi

Railroad, at the side track to be laid by the said party of the second part or his

assistant, in Marion county, Illinois, known as the Middleton depot ; said well to be

dug as follows : twelve feet in diameter, until they strike rock of sufficient strength

to support a wall one foot thick, and of sufficient height to reach surface of the

ground, (and to be built as directed by the engineer in charge of the work,) then

the party of the first part shall dig but ten feet in diameter, until water is found

sufficient for the purpose named above ; said well to be dug and walled as required

by the engineer in charge, for the following consideration, to wit : The party of the

second part, hereby covenants and agrees to pay the said party of the first part ten

dollars for each foot for the first twenty feet dug and walled as required by the

engineer, and twelve dollars for the second twenty feet, fifteen dollars for the third

twenty feet, and three dollars per foot additional for each twenty feet thereafter.

And the party of the second part further agrees, that if the said party of the first

part shall find water sufficient to retard the digging of said well, and not sufficient

for the purpose named in this contract, then said party of the second part will fur-

nish said first party with a chain pump free of charge, but it is the understanding

of the said parties, that it shall be left to the discretion of the second party, when

said pump is necessary that he shall furnish it at his discretion, it being understood

that the said party of the first part shall not be bound to finish said well, if the

damp or gas shall arise sufficient to endanger the lives of persons employed to do

such work ; said party of the second part shall decide whether or not such is the

case, or if it is or shall be dangerous for such hands.

Witness the hands of said parties, at Xenia, this the sixteenth day of February,

A. D. 1855.

WM. E. MIDDLETON.
L. L. MORGAN.

Witness, C. D. Brown, WM. P. WHITTLE,
Wm. Elston. By B. B. Thomas.
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Defendant objected to the introduction of said instrument as

evidence ; the court overruled the objection, allowed it to be
read, and defendant excepted, etc.

B. B. Thomas, continuing, stated that he made two estimates

of work done on Ohio and Mississippi Railroad, and returned

them to Whittle, and I suppose they should go to Walker,
engineer in chief; believe work was done by plaintiff on well.

Witness said he remembered no payment, but presume he made
a payment ; might have taken a receipt and it might have gone
to Whittle ; I received the money from him, Whittle; was not

properly the person to pay money for said company, on said

work. Witness had made payments several times for Whittle

on contracts for Ohio and Mississippi Railroad Company, and
other payments ; Mr. Whittle told me to do so

;
paid some on

trestle work for the company, I believe, of money received from

Whittle. To all which testimony defendant objected, and moved
court to exclude it, but court overruled motion, and defendant

excepted.

There was a verdict for $635 ; remittitur of $332 by plain-

tiffs ; motion for a new trial, and in arrest, overruled by the

court, and judgment entered for plaintifls for $303, to all of

which defendants excepted.

Errors assigned: '

The court erred in admitting testimony objected to by
defendants below.

The court erred in refusing to sustain motion of defendants

below to exclude evidence.

The court erred in entering judgment for plaintiff below,

against defendants below.

The court erred in proceeding to trial without issues on de-

fendants' special pleas.

Wherefore, etc., plaintiff in error prays that the same be set

aside, reversed, etc., and judgment arrested, etc.

IsHAM N. Haynie, for Plaintiff in Error.

S. L. Bryan, for Defendants in Error.

Walker, J. The appellant urges the reversal of this judg-

ment upon the ground that the appellee's replication is no

answer to appellants' special pleas. The declaration counted

on a contract of appellant, and the filing of the general issue

put the appellees upon the proof of the contract declared on,

or under the common count, the proof of a contract of appel-

lant, either express or implied. They could not recover on the

contract of another person. These pleas alleged that the work

41
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sued for was performed under a contract with Whittle. If

these pleas amount to anything, it is an argumentative denial

that the contract sued on was that of the defendant, and that

fact was directly traversed by the general issue. These pleas,

only in a different form, traversed what had been put in issue

by the plea of non-assumpsit, and the replication only reaf-

firmed what had been averred in the declaration. And whether
it was an answer to the pleas or not, could make no difference,

as neither it, or the pleas, in the slightest degree changed the

right of either party, under the issue already formed. And the

appellant having proceeded to trial under this replication tend-

ering an issue to the country, and having failed to demur or to

move to strike it from the files, must be held to have admitted

its sufficiency. This objection is not well taken.

It was again objected that the agreement was improperly ad-

mitted in evidence under the declaration in this case, because

it was not signed by the company. It is a rule of pleading,

that in declaring on a contract executed by an agent, that the

contract may be described as having been signed by the princi-

pal himself, or as signed by his agent for him. Nickleson v.

Croft, 2 Burr. E. 1188-9. It then becomes necessary to de-

termine whether this contract was that of the defendant, or

that of Whittle. It seems, from the evidence in the case when
taken together, that the intention of the parties was to bind the

company, and not Whittle.

But it is insisted that the court could not receive extrinsic

evidence to explain that intention, and that the instrument alone

could determine the question. The principle is familiar, that

the contract made by the agent as such, is the contract of his

principal, and that the former is the instrument by which the

contract is effected, and he is not clothed with any legal interest

in it, which can render him responsible on the agreement,

although in some instances he may sue in his own name. 1

Chit. PI. 34. And it has been held, that where an agent fails to

disclose that he is acting merely as an agent, and the principal

is unknown, the latter may, when discovered, be sued on the

agreement. 1 Chit. PI. 39. To bind the principal by the con-

tracts of his agent, it is not material whether they are verbal

or in writing, unless i^equired to be in writing by the statute of

frauds, the question being, to whom was the credit given, to the

agent or to the principal. If, from the agreement itself, it

clearly appears that the intention was to bind the agent and not

the principal, the agent is held to be liable. But when from the

whole instrument there is doubt whether it was the intention to

bind the principal or the agent, courts have held that extrinsic

evidence may be received to ascertain the intention.
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In the case of The Mechanics^ Bank v. The Bank of Colum-
bia, 5 Wheat, R. 326, the Supreme Court of the United States

held, where the cashier of the Mechanics' Bank had drawn a check
on the Bank of Columbia, signed by him, in his own name, with-

out any addition to indicate that he signed it officially, that as it

was doubtful on its face whether it was an official or a private

act, parol evidence was admissible to show that he signed it in his

official character. In that case the circumstances appearing on
the face of the check, which must have been relied on to create

the doubt, were, the making it payable to order instead of to

bearer, and its bearing date, " Mechanics' Bank of Alexandria,"

as there is nothing else distinguishing it from ordinary checks

drawn by individuals. The court say, '^' The only ground on
which it can be contended that this check was a private check,

is, that it had not, below the name, the letters cas. or ca. But
the fallacy of the proposition will at once appear from the con-

sideration, that the consequence would be that all of Paton's

checks must have been adjudged private. For no definite mean-
ing could be attached to these letters without the aid of parole

testimony.
" But the fact that this, on its face, appeared to be a private

check, is by no means to be conceded. On the contrary, the

appearance of the corporate name of the institution on the face

of the paper, at once leads to the belief that it is a corporate

and not an individual transaction ; to which must be added the

circumstances that the cashier is the drawer, and the teller the

payee ; and the form of ordinary checks deviated from by the

substitution of to order for to bearer. The evidence, therefore,

on the face of the bill, predominates in favor of its being a bank
transaction," etc. " But it is enough for the purposes of the

defendants to establish that there existed, on the face of the

paper, circumstances from which it might reasonably be inferred

that it was one or the other."

" It is by no means true, as was contended in argument, that

the acts of agents derive their validity from professing on the

face of them to have been done in the exercise of their agency.

In the more solemn exercise of derivative powers, as applied

to the execution of instruments known to the common law, rules

of form have been prescribed. But in the exercise of the duties

of a general agent, the liability of the principal depends upon
the facts, 1st, That the act was done in the exercise ; and 2nd,

Within the powers delegated. The facts are necessarily inquir-

able into by a court and jury, and this inquiry is not confined

to written instruments," etc. " But to any act with or without

writing, within the scope of the power or confidence reposed in

the agent."
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The agreement in the case under consideration, certainly pre-

sented on its face as many circmnstances to indicate that it

was the agreement of the defendant, or to create a doubt as to

whether it was theirs, or was that of Whittle, as the case in the

Mechanics' Bank v. The Bank of Columbia. This instrument

describes Whittle as the " resd " engineer of the road. Again,

the plaintiffs agree and bind themselves to dig a well for the use

of the company, at the side track to be laid by the party of the

second part or his assistant, at Middleton depot ; the wall of

the well was to be built as directed by the engineer in charge of

the work, and in another portion of the contract plaintiffs agree

to dig and wall the well as required by the engineer. If this

language in the agreement does not bear the construction, that

the contract was entered into on behalf of, and with the inten-

tion of, binding the company, it most clearly leaves it in doubt,

whether it is their contract or that of Whittle. And viewing

it either way, it was not error to receive parol evidence to

explain what was intended by the parties. It is true, that the

name of the company was not signed to it ; but we have seen

by the case of the Mechanics' Bank v. The Bank of Columbia.,

that the want of their signature can make no difference, when it

appears from the instrument to be their contract, or when it is

from its face left in doubt, and extrinsic evidence shows it to

have been entered into on their behalf by their authorized agent.

And that such signature was not material, was held in the cases

of Hodgson V. Dixter, 1 Cranch R. 345 ; Bank of Columbia v.

Patterson's Administrator., 7 Cranch R. 299 ; and Randall v. Van
Vechten et a/., 19 J. R. 60.

Thomas testifies, that Whittle, when he gave him instructions

in regard to closing this contract with appellees, said the chain-

pump was to be furnished by the company, and that he believed

Whittle directed him to sign his name on behalf of the com-
pany. James Higgins testified, that Wyman, the paymaster and
agent of the company, told Middleton to come to Xenia, and he
would send an engineer and have the work measured and settle

for it. Pleasant Middleton testifies, that a man, whose name he

did not know, was at Salem settling and giving notes, and
seemed to be acting as agent in settling debts for the company,
offered to give iliddleton two hundred dollars and settle the

matter. Charles Higgins testifies, that a man, whose name he
did not know, came on the cars, and left a force pump, to be put

in the well. D. J. Middleton testified, that a man came and
measured the well, and left. All of these circumstances seem to

render it almost certain, that the company considered the con-

tract as made with them and not with Whittle. But it is not

material whether they were legally bound by the contract when
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it was made or not, even if Whittle had no authority to bind

them by the agreement, the work was performed for them, and
they by their various acts adopted and ratified the contract.

Had they not ratified it, then his authority should have been
shown, to have held them liable. 19 John R. 60.

The objection, that Whittle could not delegate his authority

to Thomas, may be disposed of in the same manner. The
ratification of the contract waived that objection, even if it had
been well taken, which we by no means admit. As Thomas in

closing this contract exercised no discretion, but only followed

the instructions given him by Whittle. And in doing so, he

was no more than Whittle's scrivener to draw the contract, and
procure the signatures of appellees. And having only followed

the specific directions of Whittle, he cannot be said to have had
power delegated to him by the agent of the company. If so,

every employee and common laborer of the company, who does

not make his contract with the directors, acts under a delegated

power from their agents, and this will not be claimed.

Besides all this, the whole of the cireumstances of this case,

from the time the contract was entered into to the time suit was
brought, together with the question of authority of the agent,

the ratification of the contract and the reception of the work,

were, by the instruction of the judge who tried the case, left to

the jury, and the evidence warranted their finding. For these

various reasons the judgment should be afiirmed.

Judgment affirmed.

Justice Beeese having tried this cause in the court below, took

no part in this decision.

William K. Carr, Adm'r, etc., Plaintiff in Error, v. Zadoc

Casey et al, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO JEFFERSON.

Where the complainant in a bill in chancery dies, and a decree is entered abating

that suit, and the administrator of the deceased complainant files anotlier bill in

the Circuit Court which is pending, if a writ of error is sued out, intended to

reverse the judgment abating the first suit, the writ of error will be abated on a

plea filed showing the facts.

The plaintiff's intestate, Nancy Dotson, filed her bill on the

chancery side of the Jefferson Circuit Court, complaining of the

defendants for overreachino- her in a contract for her share of
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her sister Sarah Piggot's estate, made with said Zadoc and
Thomas, by a suppression of the facts, and also for other reasons

stated at length in the bill.

The complainant, Nancy, died after the filing of the bill, and
at a term of the Jefferson Circuit Court, her counsel moved the

court to continue the cause, announcing to the court the death of

his client, the said Nancy, and asking the court to continue the

cause, with leave to revive the same in the name of the adminis-

trator, when it should be ascertained. Whereupon the defend-

ants in error entered a cross-motion to dismiss the suit. The
court overruled the motion of complainant's counsel, and sus-

tained defendants' motion, and dismissed the bill.

The plaintiff in error assigns for error, the order of the court

dismissing bill and refusing to continue cause with leave to

revive in the name of the administrator—also, overruling the mo-

tion of counsel for complainant, Nancy, and sustaining motion

of defendants, and brings the cause into this court by writ of

error.

To this writ of error a plea in abatement was filed, setting

forth the facts as stated in the opinion of the court.

To the plea in abatement to the writ of error, there was a

demurrer.

R. S. Nelson, for Plaintiff in Error.

Davis & Wingate, for Defendants in Error.

Caton, C. J. Pending this suit in the Circuit Court, the com-
plainant died, and the Circuit Court entered a decree abating

the suit. The administrator of the deceased complainant then

filed another bill in the Circuit Court, which is still there pend-

ing. Afterwards he brought this writ of error to reverse the

decree abating the first suit, and the defendant in error has

filed a plea in abatement in this court, showing these facts, to

which a demurrer is filed, which presents the question for our

consideration. TVe think the plea good, and that the demurrer
should be overruled. By filing another bill for the same cause

of complaint, the complainant acquiesced in and approved of

the decree abating the former suit. While that suit is pending

in the Circuit Court, and he is there calling upon the defendant

to answer the matters complained of, he shall not be at liberty

also to bring him into this court to defend the decree by which
alone the complainant was placed in a position authorizing him
to file the bill now pending. The demurrer must be overruled

and the writ of error abated.

Writ abated.



NOVEMBER TERM, 1858. 639

Hungate v. Rankin et al., use, etc.

John D. P. Hungate, Appellant, v. Robert W. Rankin
et al, for the use of Thomas A. Apperson, Appellant.

r

APPEAL FROM CLAY.

Where, by an agreement, both parties are mutually bound, each to the other, to

perform at the same time; as the one to deliver hogs, and the other to pay for

them on delivery; neither can sue on the contract until the property is delivered,

or until the price therefor is ready and offered to be paid, or a reasonable de-

mand for the delivery of the property.

The admissions of a nominal plaintiff will be received to bind a beneficial one, if

they were made in the presence of a beneficial plaintiff, and he does not contra-

dict them. And if the nominal plaintiff acts as agent, the beneficial plaintiff

will be bound by the admissions of the agent, within the scope of his authority.

This Avas an action of trespass on the case on promises, tried

by the Clay Circuit Court, without the intervention of a jury,

founded upon the following written contract

:

Clay County, III., July 2Sth, 1857.

I, John D. P. Hungate, have this day sold to R. M. Rankin and L. Fulkhouser

one hundred and seventy-five head or more, of well-fatted hogs—one hundred and

fifty of said hogs to weigh two hundred pounds and upwards, twenty-five to weigh

one hundred and eighty pounds ; said Rankin & Co. to receive said hogs between

the 1st and 10th of December, on the farm of said Hungate, and pay $4.25 per

hundred gross, $800 in gold, the balance in currency.

JOHN D. P. HUNGATE.
R. M. RANKIN.

Receipt on the back :

Received on the within contract, $200.

JOHN D. P. HUNGATE.

Also assigned, August 26th, 1857 :

Received of T. A. Apperson, $200, for the within contract and above receipt.

R. M. RANKIN.

The testimony of defendant was in substance as follows

:

George Monical being called, testified, that he knew Rankin,

one of the plaintiffs, and the defendant ; that he heard Rankin
say there was a plot laid to break the contract with the defend-

ant, on the morning of the 10th of December, 1857 ; that it

was arranged to go to defendant's house late in the evening of

that day, but not in time to weigh the hogs ; thought they did

not intend to take the hogs, but wanted to brealv the contract

with defendant ; that he knew the hogs of Hungate—he had

200 head on the ninth of December last ; that he bought 180

head of hogs from Hungate a short time after Rankin was
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there ; the hogs were well fatted ; 140 weighed 200 pounds and

upwards ; some twenty or thirty weighed 180.

Dr. Bougher testified, that he heard Rankin say, a day or

two ago, that it was understood when they went to defendant's

house, that they would not take his hogs, but wanted to break

the contract.

John Connelly testified, that he lived in the neighborhood of

defendant ; that he had 19 well-fatted hogs, which weighed be-

tween 200 and 300 pounds ; that he had sold them to defend-

ant, to apply on his contract with plaintiff ; that on the 9th and

10th days of December they were subject to the order of de-

fendant. He had seen the hogs of Hungate ; they were a good

lot of well-fatted hogs.

David Shields was then called, and testified, he liTcd within

a mile of defendant ; had 45 head of well-fatted hogs, which

he had sold to Hungate to apply on his contract with Rankin
;

that the hogs were subject to the order of Hungate, when Ran-
kin was there ; that the hogs would weigh over 200 pounds

;

that Rankin came to his house when the sun was about one hour

high, on the 10th of December, and told him that Hungate did

not have the hogs weighed, and he would not take them.

3Iarffaret Moniccd testified, that she was at the house of Hun-
gate on the 10th day of December last ; that late in the evening

Rankin and others came to the house of defendant, and asked

him if he had the hogs weighed, and defendant said he had not,

but that he would weigh them, if there was time, but he thought

it was too late in the evening to get through ; that the hogs

were handy, and he wanted him (Rankin) to take them under
the contract. Rankin refused to take the hogs because they

were not weighed. Hungate proposed to commence weighing

them, but Rankin said he had not time to get through before

night.

The plaintiff (Rankin) called Mr. True, who testified that

he went with Apperson and Rankin to the liouse of Hungate,
on the 10th day of December last ; that he went on the request

of Nichols, who was to get the hogs from Apperson ; that he

and Apperson went to the house of Rankin on the morning of

the 10th of December, and that they and Rankin rode over to

the house of Hungate in the afternoon ; that they got to the house

of defendant about the middle of the afternoon on the 10th of

December, and Rankin demanded the hogs of defendant, and
asked him if they were weighed, and Hungate said not, but that

he could weigh them, and that the hogs were ready, but thought

there was not time to weigh them that evening ; but said he

would commence and get through as soon as he could.
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Saw Rankin and Apperson together through the day of the

10th ; thinks they were conversing about the contract with
Hungate ; that the understanding was not to take the hogs, if

they could break the contract made with Hungate, who appeared
anxious that they should take the hogs, and wanted to commence
weighing them that evening.

Whereupon the court proceeded to render judgment for the

plaintiff for two hundred dollars. And the defendant, by his

attorney, entered a motion for a new trial.

The court overruled the motion for a new trial, and rendered

judgment against the defendant for two hundred dollars. De-
fendant excepted.

Silas L. Bryan, and E. L. Howett, for Appellant.

A. KiTCHELL, for Appellees.

Walkee, J. By the provisions of this agreement, the par-

ties were mutually bound, each to the other, to perform their

several undertakings at the same time. The terms of this agree-

ment require the appellant to deliver the number and kind of

hogs specified, between the first and tenth days of December,
and the appellees to pay the contract price for them when de-

livered. Appellant was not bound to deliver them until the

appellees should pay for them, nor were appellees bound to pay
until they received the property. The performance of these

acts being mutual and dependent on each other, the appellant

could not maintain an action for a breach of contract until he

delivered the property, or was ready and willing and ofiered to

deliver, within the time limited by the contract, nor could appel-

lees insist upon a breach of contract unless they were ready and
willing and offered to perform their part of the agreement with-

in the same time. Greenup v. Stoker, 3 Gilm. R. 213 ; 1 Saund.

R. 33.

The evidence shows that appellant, on the ninth and tenth

days of December, had two hundred head of well-fatted hogs
;

that soon after that time he sold of those hogs one hundred and
eighty head to Monical, who testifies that one hundred and forty

of that number weighed over two hundred pounds, and that

twenty or thirty of the remainder of them weighed over one

hundred and eighty pounds. Of the weight of the remainder

of the lot there is no evidence, except that when Rankin made
the demand, appellant informed him that he had the hogs con-

venient, and no objection appears to have been made either to

the number or weight. Other portions of the evidence show
that appellant, previous to that time, had purchased from Shields
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forty-five head, weighing from two to three hundred pounds each,

and had also purchased of Connelly nineteen head, weighing

over two hundred pounds each, all of which were conveniently

situated in the neighborhood, and were subject to appellant's

order on the tenth of December. The evidence shows that

when Rankin and Apperson went to appellant on the tenth of

December to demand the hogs, he offered to commence weigh-

ing and delivering them, and to continue until it was completed.

At that time Rankin made no objection that the hogs were not

all on appellant's farm, and there is nothing in the evidence

from which we can infer that they could not have been there by
the time those on his farm were weighed and delivered, if it

had been necessary to deliver them to fill his contract. From
this evidence we are not prepared to say that appellant was not

ready and willing to perform, or that he did not offer to perform

his part of the contract.

The objection made at the time, was, that appellant did not

have the hogs weighed when the demand was made, and this is

urged as a breach that should entitle appellees to recover. The
evidence shows that Rankin and Apperson had determined not

to receive the hogs, and delayed going to appellant, on the

tenth of December, until it was too late to deliver the hogs.

There was no evidence that they were ready and willing to pay
for and receive the hogs if they had been weighed when they

were demanded. But the determination formed by them not to

receive the hogs, and the delay in going for the purpose of pre-

venting a delivery, very clearly indicates that they were not

willing and ready to perform their part of the agreement, and
no offer to perform was attempted to be shown. And unless

appellees were ready, willing and offered to perform, they have
no right to recover for a failure on the part of appellant to

tender the hogs. Appellees were equally bound to tender the

money as appellant was to have tendered the hogs.

It was urged that the admissions of Rankin should not have
been received to bind Apperson, the beneficial plaintift". He
was undoubtedly bound by what was agreed between him and
Rankin before they went to demand the hogs, and he is likewise

bound by the statements of Rankin in his presence, in reference

to the contract, which he failed, at the time, to contradict.

And the evidence of the understanding had between them on
the tenth of December, before going to appellant, was a cir-

cumstance from which a jury might have inferred an agency,

and if Rankin was acting as his agent in this matter, he should

be bound by the admissions made by the agent within the scope

of the power delegated, while engaged in carrying out the ob-
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ject of the agency. We are, therefore, of the opinion that the
court did not err in admitting this evidence.

The judgment of the court below should be reversed, and the

cause remanded for further proceedings.

Judgment reversed.

Jesse Williams, Appellant, v. John Conley, Administrator,

etc.. Appellee.

APPEAL FROM CLAY.

The proceeding authorized by the ninetieth section of the statute of Wills, was not
designed to aid in the collection of debts due to estates ; but for the purpose of

obtaining the possession of the identical articles, or the identical money, which
belonged to the deceased in his lifetime.

This case is stated in the opinion of the court.

S. L. Bryan, and E. L. Howett, for Appellant.

A. Kitchell, for Appellee.

Caton, C. J. This was a proceeding under the ninetieth

section of our statute of Wills, which is in these words :
" If

any executor, or administrator, or other person, interested in

any estate, shall state upon oath to any court of probate, that

he believes that any person has in his possession, or has con-

cealed or embezzled any goods, chattels, moneys, or effects,

books of account, or any evidences of debt whatever, or titles

to land belonging to any deceased person, the court shall require

such person to appear before it by citation, and may examine

him on oath touching the same, and if such person shall refuse

to answer such proper interrogatories as may be propounded

by the court, or person interested as aforesaid, or shall refuse

to deliver up such property or effects as aforesaid upon a requi-

sition, being made for that purpose by an order of the said court

of probate, such court may commit such person to jail until he

shall comply with the order of the court thereon."

Williams was cited to appear before the probate court upon

an affidavit, stating that he had money in his possession belong-

ing to the estate of John Conley, deceased, and in answer to

interrogatories, showed that his wife, who was a daughter of

the deceased, had received a pocket-book from her father before
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his decease, whicli contained money, a part of which he had paid

to one Maxwell for his trouble in taking care of the deceased.

What became of the balance of the money, does not appear.

Conley died a few days after the pocket-book was given to

Mrs. Williams, and two years before the examination on the

citation. Williams supposed that the money was given to his

wife as a present. There is no probability, nor do we presume,

that the court found, that Williams still had the money in his

possession in specie, although it is undoubtedly true, that he
was indebted to the estate for the amount received by his wife

of her father for safe keeping. We think the statute quoted

was not designed to afford the means of collecting debts due to

estates, but for the purpose of obtaining the possession of money,
books, papers, or property, which remained in specie, and which
was capable of being identified and pointed out. Unless
Williams had the identical money in his possession which had
been received by his wife, the court could not properly order
him to pay it over to the administrator, nor would it be possible

for him to comply with such order. The payment of other

money to an equal amount, would not be a compliance with the

statute, nor of a proper order of the court made under the

statute, any more than it would be to deliver one horse, when
he had received another. We think the court misconstrued the

statute, and its judgment must be reversed and the cause

remanded.

Judgment reversed.

Harvey T. Pace, Plaintiff in Error, v. County Commis-

sioners OF Jefferson County, Defendants in Error.

ERROR TO JEFFERSON.

In order to exempt a building erected for a school-house from taxation, under the
revenue law of 1853, it should be held by the school directors, under such title

as will give them the right to possess and control it at all times for the use of the
district.

The facts of this case are fully stated in the opinion of the

court.

Nelson & Johnson, for Plaintiff in Error.

Tanner & Casey, for the County.
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Walker, J. From the record in this case, it appears that

the plaintiff was the owner of a school-house, built on his land,

with his own means, in the town of Mt. Vernon. That the

same was listed for taxation for the taxes of the year 1856, by
the assessor, without the same having been returned by the

plaintiff, and that he was the owner of the property when it

was listed, and so continues. That plaintiff built the house for

a female school, and it is well adapted to the purpose ; that a

school was kept in it the two first years after its erection, by a

female teacher who was regularly examined by the board of

school directors of the district, who granted her a certificate of

qualification as a teacher, as required by law ; and that she also

obtained a certificate of good moral character in due form

;

that she was employed to teach the school by plaintiff, who re-

ceived the tuition bills and public school funds ; that the school

was under the superintendence and control of the school direc-

tors of the district, and regular schedules of the school were
kept. That plaintiff paid the teacher for her services the sum
of three hundred dollars per annum, and furnished her board

and lodging during the continuance of the school. That no
other school was ever kept in this house, and it has been unoc-

cupied for four years, and ever since the close of the school.

That plaintiff' has offered to rent it for a common school, but

the school directors have never applied to rent it of him for

that purpose.

The County Court held that the property was subject to taxa-

tion, from which decision plaintiff appealed to the Circuit Court

of Jefferson county, when, upon a trial of the case, that court

affirmed the judgment of the County Court, and plaintiff' prose-

cutes this writ of error to reverse that judgment.

It will be proper to refer to the provisions of the revenue

laws in force at the time this property was listed, to determine

whether it was exempt from taxation. The 3rd section of the

revenue act of the 12th of February, 1853, Scates' Stat. p. 1029,

provides, " That all property described in this section, to the

extent herein limited, shall be exempt from taxation ; that is to

say, 1st, All lands donated for school purposes, not sold or

leased. All public school-houses, and houses used exclusively

for public worship, the books and furniture therein, and the

grounds attached to such building necessary for the proper oc-

cupancy, use and enjoyment of the same, and not leased or

otherwise used with a view to profit."

Then to bring this property within the exemption of this en-

actment, it must have been either donated for school purposes,

or a public school-house. It was not contended that the acts

of plaintiff amounted to a donation of the property for school
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purposes, nor does anytliing he did imply such an intention.

He at no time conveyed or even proposed to convey it to the

directors or other school officers. And the fact that he offers

to rent it, rebuts the presumption of any such intention. And
it shows that he desires to derive a revenue from this property,

which of itself is a strong reason why it should be held liable

to taxation.

Then was it a public school-house ? To constitute it such, it

must be property under the immediate control of the school di-

rectors. They should hold it in such a manner that they can

use it at all times for the use of public schools, independent of

the will or action of other persons. They should hold it either

in fee or by such other estate as would give them the right to

possess and control it at all times for the use of the district.

The fact that it may have been once used by them for the pur-

poses of a public school, does not of itself give it the character

of a public school-house after it ceases to be so used. This is

private property, under the exclusive control of the owner, and
may at any time he cliooses be converted to any purpose he

may deem proper, and the school directors would have no pre-

tense of a right to object. They have not the remotest interest

in the property, and before they can have, they must acquire it

by purchase or donation from the owner. They occupy to this

property the same relation, as directors, that they do to any
other private property. It may become a public school-house

by purchase or lease, and so may any other property when pro-

cured for the purpose.

Notwithstanding the plaintiff has acted with a liberality in

advancing the cause of education that is highly commendable, it

does not, as we think, bring this property within the exemption
of the statute.

The judgment of the Circuit Court should therefore be
affirmed. .

Judgment affirmed.

Jackson Farrar, Assignee of William F. Watson, Plain-

tiff in Error, v. Benjamin P. Hinch, Adm'r de honis non

of Sylvester Eveleth, deceased, Defendant in Error.

ERROR TO GALLATIN.

In an action upon notes given for a patent right, for which a deed was executed,
expressing the consideration for the notes, it is incompetent for the defendant to

show by parol evidence that anything else than was expressed in the deed was to

be conveyed by it.
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The law presumes that the contract between the parties expresses the whole agree-

ment between them.

This cause was brought into the Gallatin Circuit Court, at

the June term, 1856, of said court, by Jackson Farrar, assignee

of William F. Watson, on appeal from the County Court of

Gallatin county, from a judgment rendered in said County
Court against said Farrar, who was the plaintiff in that court,

and Winder Bailey, administrator de bonis non of Sylvester

Eveleth, who was the defendant. The judgment of said County
Court was rendered at January term, 1856.

Before the June term, 1856, of the Gallatin Circuit Court,

said Winder Bailey departed this life, and at the said June
term of said court the death of said Bailey was suggested, and
Benjamin P. Hinch, as administrator de bonis nofi, is made a

party to this suit, and was duly summoned to the October term,

1856, of said court.

At the October term, 1857, of the Gallatin Circuit Court, this

cause was tried by a jury, Wesley Sloan, judge, presiding.

The jury found for the defendant, Benjamin P. Hinch. Motion

was made for a new trial, and in arrest of judgment. The
court overruled the motion, and entered judgment for defendant

for costs, etc.

The bill of exceptions shows that the plaintiff introduced the

following notes in evidence, to wit :

$1,000. Shawneetown, III., July 13th, 1853.

Twelve months after date I promise to pay to the order of William F. Watson,

one thousand dollars, for value received, negotiable and payable without defalca-

tion or discount. (Signed) SYLVESTER EVELETH.

Upon the back of which note was the following indorsement,

to wit

:

I assign the within note to Jackson Farrar for value received.

(Signed) WILLIAM F. WATSON.
$250. Shawxeetowk, III., July 13th, 1853.

On or before the first day of January next, I promise to pay to the order of

William F. Watson, two hundred and fifty dollars, for value received, negotiable

and payable without defalcation or discount.

(Signed) SYLVESTER EVELETH.

Upon the back of which said note was the following indorse-

ment, to wit

:

I assign the within note to Jackson Farrar for value received.

(Signed) WILLIAM F. WATSON.

$250. Shawneetown, III., July 13th, 1853.

On or before the first day of April next, I promise to pay to the order of

William F. Watson, two hundred and fifty dollars, for value received, negotiable

and payable without defalcation or discount.

(Signed) SYLVESTER EVELETH.
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Upon the back of which note was the following indorsement,

to wit

:

I assign the within note to Jaclison Farrar for value received.

(Signed) WILLIAM F. WATSON.

To the introduction of which said notes the defendant object-

ed, which objection was overruled, and the defendant excepted,

and the said notes were read to the jury in evidence. The
plaintiff then rested.

"Whereupon the defendant introduced in evidence the follow-

ing indenture, made and executed by William F. Watson and
Jackson Farrar (plaintiff,) by William F. Watson, attorney, to

Sylvester Eveleth, to wit

:

Whereas, James M. Clark, of the city of Lancaster and State of Pennsylvania,

did obtain letters patent of the United States for improvements in combining

grinding and bolting machines, known as James M. Clark's Patent Portable Flour-

ing Mill, which patent bears date May 13th, 1851 ; and whereas the said James M.
Clark did, for a consideration to him in hand paid, on the 10th day of September,

185] , lawfully assign, sell and set over all the right, title and interest which he had

in said invention, as secured to him by said letters patent for, to and in the United

States, to Thomas M. Clark ; and whereas, Jonathan H. Smith, William F. Watson
and Jackson Farrar did, on the second day of April, 1852, obtain of said Thomas
M. Clark all the right, title and interest which he had in and to the counties of

Alexander, Pulaski, Massac, Pope, Hardin, Union, Jackson, Eandolph, Perry,

Franklin, Hamilton, White, Wabash, Edwards, Wayne, Jefferson, Washington,

Marion, Clay, Eock Island, Lawrence, Crawford, Jasper, Effingham, Fayette,

Montgomery, Shelby, Christian, Cumberland, Clark, Edgar, Coles, Moultrie, Ma-
con, Piatt, Champaign, Vermillion, Scott and Calhoun, all in the State of Illinois.

And whereas, the said William F. Watson and Jackson Farrar did, for a valu-

able consideration, obtain the exclusive interest and title of the said Smith in the

said counties, as will more fully appear by reference to deed of the 26th May, 1852,

and recorded at Washington City, in liber Y, T, page 268, of transfers of Patents.

And whereas, Sylvester Eveleth is desirous of obtaining an interest therein. Now
this Indenture witnesseth, that the said William F. Watson and Jackson Farrar,

for and in consideration of the sura of fifteen hundred dollars, to them in hand

paid, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, have granted, bargained, sold

and conveyed, assigned and set over, and by these presents do grant, assign, sell

and set over to said Eveleth, all their right, title and interest in the said invention,

as secured to them by said deeds, for, to and in the counties of Gallatin, White,

Saline, Williamson, Franklin, Hamilton, Jefferson, Wayne, Edwards and Wabash,
in the State of Illinois, for his own use and benefit, of his heirs and assigns, to the

full end of the time for which said letters patent were patented, as fully and en-

tirely as the same would have been enjoyed by us, if this assignment and sale

had not been made. In testimony whereof, we have hereunto set our hands and
affixed our seals this 12th day of July, 1853.

WILLIAM F. WATSON, [seal.]

D. T. Hazen. JACKSON FARRAR, [seal.]

Per William F. Watson, Attorney.



NOVEMBER TERM, 1858. 649

Farrar, Assignee, etc. v. Hinch, Adm'r, etc.

Whereupon the said defendant introduced D. T. Hazen, the
subscribing witness, who stated that William F. Watson signed
and executed the said deed for himself and the said plaintiff.

The said defendant then offered to read the same in evidence,

to which the plaintiff" objected, which objection was overruled
;

to which the said plaintiff excepted, and the same was read in

evidence. Defendant then introduced said D. T. Hazen and
others, to show that Watson had verbally agreed to deliver a
mill, as described in the assignment, to be exhibited, to induce
purchases.

The jury found for the defendant. A motion for a new trial

was denied.

The plaintiff in the court below brought this writ of error.

Milton Baetley, for Plaintiff in Error.

J. Olney, and N. L. Freeman, for Defendant in Error.

Caton, C. J. Assuming that the defendant's proof estab-

lished that the notes in controversy were given for the consid-

eration expressed in the deed of assignment of the patent right,

executed by Watson and Farrar to Hinch, the defense relied

upon was not in the least advanced thereby. That defense was,
that Watson had also agreed to deliver a mill within a specified

time, with the patent, and as a part of the sale thereof.

As there was a deed executed at the time of the sale, showing
what was sold for the consideration of the fifteen hundred dol-

lars mentioned in the deed, which was all the right, title and
interest of the grantors in the invention, within certain specified

counties, it was incompetent to prove, by parol evidence, that

anything else was to be conveyed for the consideration men-
tioned in the deed. The law presumes that the deed speaks the

whole intention of the parties, and the evidence tending to show
that Watson also agreed to deliver a mill, was incompetent.

But even if such proof were competent, we think it quite insuf-

ficient to show that such was the agreement, as a part of the

sale of the patent. It may be that there was a separate agree-

ment, by which the defendant agreed to buy of Watson a mill,

and that the mill was never delivered, but there is not a particle

of proof tending to justify the inference that those notes were
given for such mill. If they had any connection with this

transaction at all, they were given for the consideration of the

sale of the patent right, and for aught that appears, the defend-

ant has enjoyed the benefit of that unmolested. The verdict

was wrong, and the judgment must be reversed and the cause

remanded.
42 Judgment reversed.
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Samuel S. Taylor^ Appellant, v. George Taylor et al,

owners of the steamboat H. D. Bacon, Appellees.

APPEAL PROM ALEXANDER.

An action for money had and received, may be maintained, wlienever the defendant

has obtained money of the plaintiff, which in equity and good conscience the

defendant has no right to detain.

All the acts of an agent, performed under the direction of his principal, and within

the scope of his agency, will bind tlie principal, and will be regarded as his

own acts.

The above entitled cause was instituted by the appellees

against the appellant, prior to the April term of the Alexander
Circuit Court, A. D. 1856, and was tried before Parish, Judge
of said court, without a jury, at the October term, 1856, of said

court.

The declaration was in assumpsit, upon the common money
counts ; among them a count for " money had and received," to

which the defendant pleaded " non-assumpsit," and on whicli

issue was joined.

Upon trial, the plaintiffs introduced as a witness, William A.
Hacker, who testified that he was and had been for some time

acquainted with defendant, but was unacquainted with plaintiffs.

He thought that Samuel S. Taylor was the United States mail

agent at Cairo, in the fall of 1851 ; witness was appointed Mr.
Taylor's successor in 1855, and received the books and papers

from him.

The plaintiffs next introduced Thomas J. Wood as a witness,

who testified that he knew the steamboat H. D. Bacon, and
some of the plaintiffs, if not all, and also was acquainted with de-

fendant, and had been for some years ; defendant acted as mail

agent in the fall of 1854 ; so acted in November and December
of that year, but did not act personally in that capacity. When
he first took charge of the business, Mr. Candce acted in his

place ; but in the spring of 1854, myself and others, constitut-

ing the firm of T. J. Wood k Co., having fitted up the Patrick

Henry, (a steamboat,) as a wharf-boat, commenced doing a for-

warding, storage and commission business, and made an arrange-

ment with defendant to transact his duties as United States mail

agent, to receive and forward the mails, pay all transportation

charges, ship the mails, and the like ; we fitted up a room on

the boat for the mail matter, and our clerk did all the business

;

we paid the clerk $75 per month, and have understood that

defendant also paid him something ; we continued to do so until

the spring of 1855 ; and did all the business during the fall of
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1854, in the month of November as well as December ; Mr.
Taylor did not give his personal attention to the mail matters,

except to see that the clerk did his business properly ; if any
money was paid or charges advanced for the H. D. Bacon, it

was to our clerk, who did the mail business ; we did the busi-

ness with the H. D. Bacon, and all other mail boats, at that

time.

The plaintiff's next introduced the deposition of Arthur Steiv-

art, taken in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, who testified as follows

:

He was not acquainted with either of the parties to the forego-

ing suit ; that to the best of his recollection, the H. D. Bacon
carried the United States mail from New Orleans to Cairo, in

the month of November, 1854 ; and the steamboat Yorktown,
from Cairo to Louisville ; that the Bacon's charges for said ser-

vices were $80, and the Yorktown's, $20 ; witness paid the

charges of the H. D. Bacon to the mail agent at Cairo, which
was $80 ;

paid in the month of November or December, 1854,
to the best of witness' recollection.

The plaintiff's next introduced the deposition of A. D. G.
Cnnsol, taken in New Orleans, who testified as follows : Knows
the plaintiffs, and has for over two years ; knows that George
Taylor, John Lowrie and Martin Burke were the owners of the

steamboat H. D. Bacon, in the months of November and Decem-
ber, 1854, so far as he is informed ; that the mail agent at New
Orleans shipped on board the H. D. Bacon, a mail, consisting of a

a number of mail bags, consigned, per way bill or contract, to the

postmaster at Louisville, Kentucky, the mail to be delivered at

the diff"erent offices mentioned in said way bill, between Nevr

Orleans and Cairo ; and the mail bags for the offices between

Cairo and Louisville to be delivered to the mail agent, for whicli

he was to pay to the steamboat H, D. Bacon the sum of $80.
The mail was delivered to the mail agent at Cairo; at the time

of delivering the mail, the way bill had been left at one of the

offices below ; the mail agent said he would forward the mail,

and pay the H. D. Bacon her portion, $80, on her return. On
the return of the boat, he said the way bill had been received

in time to accompany the mail, and was all correct ; that he had
not the amount in the office at the time—that he was short of

funds, or something to that eff'ect—that he would pay it on the

upward trip of the boat ; on the upward trip of the boat, wit-

ness made inquiry and learned that he was absent. On the

same trip that the Louisville mail was delivered to him, and not

paid for, the Bacon had another mail for St. Louis, consigned

to the postmaster at that place, which was signed by the Cairo

agent, for the number of bags entered on the bill at Cairo, whicli

was recognized, and regularly paid for by the postmaster at St.
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Louis. The amount to be received for carrying said mail was

$80 ; that was the amount usually paid for carrying the mail

from New Orleans to Cairo ; the mail agent at Cairo agreed to

pay the charge of $80 for carrying said mail ; this promise in-

duced us to leave the mail and go on without it.

The foregoing was all the evidence. The court rendered a
verdict for the plaintiffs for $80 and costs.

The defendant entered his motion for a new trial, which was
overruled Ijy the court, and judgment accordingly entered.

Defendant appealed to this court.

I. N. Haynie, for Appellant.

R. S. Nelson, for Appellees.

Walker, J. It seems that there can be no reasonable doubt,

that the clerk of T. J. Wood & Co. was the agent of appellant.

The evidence shows that he so acted, and was recognized as

such, in the performance of the various duties of mail agent.

Appellant had employed the firm of T. J. Wood & Co. to dis-

charge these duties, and they assign them to this clerk, and it

appears that he acted under the direction of appellant. Wood
testifies that appellant did not give the business his personal at-

tention, further than to see that the clerk did the business of

the agency correctly. Whether the clerk was originally em-
ployed by Wood & Co., or by appellant, can make no difference,

if he recognized him as his agent.

The other witnesses testify that the business was transacted

with the acting agent, at Cairo, and this clerk performed these

duties, as the evidence shows. It then follows that all the acts

of this agent, performed under the direction of appellant, or

within the scope of his agency, must bind appellant, and be re-

garded as his own. And if this clerk received money to pay to

appellees, and that was a part of the duties devolving upon the

mail agent, then his receipt of the money must be regarded as

that of appellant. It would seem from the evidence, that he
contracted with Wood & Co., to receive and forward the mails,

to pay transportation charges on them, etc. ; and it seems that

a part of the duty of the mail agent was to pay the price of
transportation of these mails, and it is only reasonable to sup-

pose that the Government had arrangements by which the means
came into his hands for the purpose, and that the receipt of

such money was as much a part of the agent's duty as that of

forwarding the mails after they were received.

It appears from the evidence, that when the mail was brought
from New Orleans to Cairo, that the boat transporting the
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New Orleans mail from that point to Louisville, paid the charges

for bringing it from New Orleans to Cairo, and had the money
refunded to it by the postmaster at Louisville ; and the money
advanced by the Louisville boat, upon receiving the mail, was
paid to the boat to which it was due, for bringing it from New
Orleans to Cairo. And in this manner the money passed

through the hands of the acting mail agent at Cairo, as a part

of his business. And Stewart, the captain of the Yorktown,
testifies that he paid to the agent at Cairo eighty dollars, to be

paid to the H. D. Bacon, for bringing the Louisville mail from

New Orleans to Cairo, at the time that mail was delivered to

him, and the agent promised to pay it to the H. D. Bacon. The
evidence also shows that when the H. D. Bacon left that mail at

Cairo, the way bill had been left at some point below and the

charges of the boat for bringing it, for that reason, could not be

paid. But this agent agreed, that on the return of the boat,

the next trip, he would pay the money, and on the return of the

boat he said he had received the way bill, which was all correct,

and he would pay the eighty dollars on the next return of the

boat, but when it did return, he was inquired for, but was
absent. The evidence fails to show that the money was ever

paid.

It then remains to inquire, whether appellant is liable to pay

the money thus received by his agent. It is the well recognized

doctrine, that the action for money had and received may be

maintained, whenever the defendant has obtained money of the

plaintiff, which in equity and conscience he has no right to

retain. And in Comyn's Digest, title Assumpsit, letter E, it is

said :
" If money be given to A, to deliver to B, that B may

have this action." And Roll's Abridgment and Hardress R.

321, are referred to as authorities. This doctrine seems to be

recognized by more modern authorities, both in this country and
in Great Britain. Hall v. Marston, 17 Mass. 578 ; M. and S. 578

;

1 Chit. PL 387. When money has been thus received, the law
implies a promise to pay, notwithstanding there was no privity

between the parties. Buckner v. Patterson, Litt. Sel. Ca.

234. We are satisfied with the doctrine as recognized by these

authorities, and are disposed to follow them. They are based

on principles of equity, and are well calculated to promote

justice, by avoiding circuity of action, and cutting off useless

litigation.

We are unable to perceive any error in this record, for which

the judgment of the Circuit Court should be reversed, and

therefore the same should be affirmed.

Judgment affirmed.
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The Illinois River Railroad Company, Plaintiff in Error,

V. Henry Zimmer, Defendant in Error.

The Same, Plaintiff" in Error, v. John W. Casey, Defendant
in Error. '''

ERROR TO TAZEWELL.

Although a railroad charter requires that each subscriber shall pay ten per cent, at

the time of his subscription, on a suit against a subscriber to enforce payment
of a subscription, it need not be averred in the declaration that such per centage
was paid. Such fact is a matter of averment in defense.

The fact of non-payment of such per centage would not relieve the subscriber

from liability.

An act of incorporation may be amended by the legislature, and if the amendment
is accepted by the directors, the stockholders under the original act, unless other-

wise stated, will be held liable. The only question for consideration, is, whether
the value of the stock as an investment will probably be benefited thereby.

An acceptance of an amendment to a charter may be manifested, by the stock-

holders, by the managers of the company, or by user of and action under such
amendments.

These were actions of assumpsit brought by the Illinois River

Railroad Company, at the January term of the Tazewell County
Court, 1858, to recover sums of money of defendants as subscrib-

ers to the capital stock of said company.

The plaintiff sets out in its declaration, that on the 11th day
of February, 1853, the legislature of Illinois incorporated the

said company for the purpose of building a railroad from Jack-

sonville, in Morgan county, to La Salle, in La Salle county,

which was approved by the Governor the same day, and became
a law of the State of Illinois ; also, that afterwards, to wit : on
the 1st March, 1854, the legislature passed another law,

amendatory to the above law, which was approved the same
day, and became a law ; and afterwards, on the 29th January,

1857, the legislature passed another law, entitled, " An Act to

amend an act to amend the charter of the Illinois River Rail-

road Company," which was approved January 29th, 1857, and
became a law ; and afterwards, on the 16th day of February,

1857, the legislature passed an additional act, entitled, " An
Act to amend an act entitled an act to construct a railroad from

Jacksonville, in Morgan county, to La Salle, in La Salle county,

Avhich last act was approved 16th February, 1857, of which
several acts the declaration makes profert, and avers that the seve-

ral acts Avere in force at that time, and that there having been

sufficient amount of the capital stock of said railroad company
subscribed, according to the provisions of said charter, on the

* These cases were heard at Ottawa, April Term, 1858.
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6th day of September, 1856, the said company became duly

organized under the provisions of the several acts first above
mentioned, by the stockholders electing the officers, etc., and
that the defendant assented to the said organization ; and that

the defendant, on the 13th November, 1856, for the purpose of

constructing said railroad, among others, subscribed to the fol-

lowing agreement, to wit :
" Know all men by these presents,

that we, the undersigned, do hereby subscribe the number of

shares of the capital stock of the Illinois River Railroad Com-
pany, hereinafter set opposite our names respectively, and in

consideration of our mutual subscription to said company, for

the purpose of building said road, and of the premises herein,

do severally agree to pay to the said Illinois River Railroad

Company the amount of capital stock hereinafter subscribed by
us and set opposite our names, and pay all demands to the said

company when called for, according to law, by said company."
Dated Pekin, November 13th, 1856. And the said plaintifl' avers

that the defendant subscribed his name for ten shares, amount-

ing to $1,000, and that the company accepted his subscription,

by means of which he became liable to pay plaintifl" according

to the terms of said subscription, and that at the meeting of the

directors of said company, at Jacksonville, on 2nd December,

1857, the directors passed an order requiring that subscribers

who resided in Tazewell county, or whose subscriptions were
made payable there, should pay on the 1st January, 1858, $65
per share on each and every share so subscribed, and they should

on the 1st Monday in each month thereafter, pay $5 on each

share, until all was paid, and that the payment should be made
to Joshua Wagenseller, or B. S. Prettyman, and that they

should give twenty days' notice of time and place where such

payments were to be made, by publication in some newspaper
published in Pekin. The plaintifl" avers notice, by publication,

as required by the last made order. Plaintifl" avers that ou the

1st day of January, 1857, the said defendant paid to the said

plaintiff", on said subscription, two installments on said subscrip-

tion, to wit : $10 on each share, and also avers that the defend-

ant made his subscriptions in Tazewell county, and that Wag-
enseller and Prettyman attended at the time and place given in

said notice, to receive payment
;

plaintiff avers that by reason

of the premises the defendant became liable to pay the sum of

$650, or $65 on each share so subscribed, to which declaration

was added the common counts ; the plaintiff also files a copy of

account sued on.

The defendants pleaded the general issue to all but the first

count.
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To the first count tlie defendant demurs, and assigns for

cause of demurrer,

1st. There is no allegation in the declaration that the defend-

ant paid ten per cent, on his subscription.

2ud. It does not appear that the $1,000,000 has ever been

subscribed to the capital stock.

3rd. It does not appear in the declaration, that the call on

which the suit was brought was general upon all the stockhold-

ers, but it appears the call was partial and only upon part of the

subscribers.

4th. It appears from the declaration and the laws therein

referred to, that the plaintiff has procured and adopted such

amendment to its charter as will enable the plaintiff to build

any and any such part of the railroad and run the same, as the

plaintiff may see fit, and leave the plaintiff under no obligation

to ever finish and complete said road from Jacksonville to

La Salle, and authorizing the plaintiff to finish and complete any

portion of said road on the route which may be laid off as a

division, and abandon any other part of said road.

5th. It appears from the declaration and the laws therein

referred to, that said company has procured such an amendment
of its charter as allows the company to take subscriptions to

stock, on any credit that may be contracted for, and payable in

property, labor or any other thing, thereby enabling said com-

pany to soil its stock upon terms much more favorable to new
than old subscribers, and because the declaration and the laws

referred to therein, show that the said company have procured

and adopted an amendment to the charter of the company, by
which subscribers are required to pay calls named by said com-

pany on a notice of twenty days, instead of a notice of ninety

days, as the charter provided when the defendant subscribed,

and that the said declaration is in other respects informal and
insufficient.

The court entered the following judgment : And now again

come the parties, and the court having fully considered the spe-

cial demurrer to the declaration, and having been fully advised

in the premises, it is ordered that the demurrer be sustained

for the special causes. No. 3 and 4 ; thereupon the plaintiff

asked and obtained leave to amend its declaration, which being

done, adding the averment of the payment of ten per cent, on

each share subscribed by the defendants, and afterwards, and
the cause being again submitted to court, the court rendered

judgment for costs against said plaintiff; to all which orders

and judgment the plaintiff excepted.

The i^leadings in each case were similar, except showing that

one of the defendants subscribed for two and the other for ten

shares of stock.



APRIL TERM, 1858. 657

Illinois Eivev Railroad Co. i;. Zimmer. Same v. Casey.

W. Thomas, N. H. Purple, and B. S. Prettyman, for Plain-

tiff in Error.

Davison & Parker, for Defendants in Error.

Caton, C. J. The first question which we shall consider

upon these demurrers, is that which is raised by the objection that

the declarations do not aver that the defendants, at the time

they made their subscriptions, paid in the ten per cent, as re-

quired by the first amendment to the charter which was in force

at the time the subscriptions were made. Admitting that in order

to make the subscriptions obligatory on the defendants, it w^as

necessary that they should have paid the ten per cent, at the

time of subscribing, we are of the opinion it was not neces-

sary to aver that fact in the declaration. The liability arises,

prima facie, upon the subscriptions, and if any fact exists

which may defeat that liability, the defendants should plead

that fact in defense. But waiving this question of pleading, we
are clearly of opinion that the mere fact of the non-payment of

the ten per cent, at the time of subscription would not render

it void. If the commissioners, at the time the subscriptions

were made, saw fit to give time upon the part which should have
been paid down, they could not, for that reason, be permitted to

refuse to the defendants the stock, when they should pay it in

obedience to the call of the company for it. If the company
violated its strict duty in giving them time on the first payment,

they could not be allowed to take advantage of that wrong and
refuse the subscribers the benefit of the stock, when they should

offer to pay for it. So, on the other hand, the defendants can-

not be allowed to take advantage of the indulgence extended

to them when they made their subscriptions, for the purpose of

repudiating them. This indulgence is a most ungracious de-

fense, which should not be allowed, unless it is strictly required

by some inflexible rule of law. Good faith to other subscribers,

who may have been induced to take stock on the strength of

these very subscriptions, requires that the defendants shall go on

with them in the execution of tlie enterprise. Good faith to

the creditors of the company, who had a right to look to the

list of subscribers, to determine whether the company was
worthy of credit, imperiously demands that those, who by their

subscriptions induced the credit, shall be compelled to contri-

bute to the fund from which they are to receive their 'pay.

Wight V. Shelby Railroad Coiirpany, 16 B. Monroe, 5 ; Vermont

Central Railroad Company v. Clayes, 21 Vermont R. 30.

The other questions raised by the demurrer all depend upon

the right of the legislature to pass the amendments of 1857,
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and whetlier those amendments have been adopted by the com-
pany and have become a part of its charter.

We shall first examine the several objections to the provisions

of these amendments as they are supposed to affect the individual

stockholders.

At the time the defendant subscribed for the two shares of

the capital stock of the company, the charter required ninety

days' notice to be given of calls for payment on the subscription,

before the same could be made payable. By the amendment of

the charter, a notice of but twenty days was required. This, it

is insisted, is a change of the terms of the contract, which
could not be made without the express individual consent of the

defendant. The language of the subscription is this :
" Know

all men by these presents, that we, the undersigned, do hereby

subscribe the number of shares of the capital stock of the Illi-

nois River Railroad Company, hereinafter set opposite our

names respectively, and in consideration of our mutual subscrij:>-

tion to said company, for the purpose of building said road, and
of the premises herein, do severally agree to pay to the said

Illinois River Railroad Company the amount of capital stock

hereinafter subscribed by us, and set opposite our names, and
pay all demands to the said company, when called for according

to law, by said company." It will be seen that by the terms of

this subscription, it is not in terms made payable upon calls with

notice of ninety days, but the subscribers agree to pay " wdien

called for according to law, by said company." When this

subscription was made, the defendant knew that the charter of

the company was not unalterable. He knew that it might be

amended by the legislature, and that the company might accept

such amendment, when that would become the law of the com-
pany; and he agreed to pay the money when called for, in pursu-

ance of such law. If the ninety days' notice were deemed essen-

tial, and designed to be made a condition precedent to a legal

liability to pay the money, it should have been inserted in express

terms in the agreement of subscription, when the condition pre-

cedent would have to be performed before the liability would
become complete.

There is in this case the same implied reservation of the

right to change the law, and thus vary the precise extent of the

liability, that there is in case of official bonds given by public

officers and their sureties, conditioned that they shall faithfully

perform the duties of their office according to law. In tliat

case it is well settled that new or additional duties may be im-

posed upon the officer, so as they are germain to the office, and
the sureties are bound for his faithful performance of those new
duties, although the extent of their liability is thereby increased
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beyond what it was when they executed the bond ; and this too,

notwithstanding the great strictness which is usually observed

in favor of sureties. Governor v. Pddgiuaij, 12 111. R. 14
;

Bartlett v. The Governor, 2 Bibb R. SSG".

This is not one of those cases where the provisions of the

law are by implication incorporated into the contract, and con-

stitute a part of it, unless we also introduce into the contract

by implication, that other principle of law by which the right

to the legislature and the company is reserved to change the

provisions of the charter, as the public good and the interests

of the company at large may require. And this principle dis-

poses substantially of all the other objections which grow out

of the amended charter, for all that is complained of was au-

thorized by these amendments. Even admitting that but for

the amended charter, it was necessary to aver that one million

of dollars should have been subscribed before an organization

was authorized, the first amendment of 1857 recognizes the

company as a legally existing corporation, and cured any defect

of that character. And, surely, there was no implied condition

in the contract of subscription, that no organization should take

place, with the sanction of the legislature, upon a less subscrip-

tion than was originally required.

The objection that by the amendments to the charter, the

company was authorized to build the road in sections, and not

build it at all upon a part of the original route, has been fully

disposed of by the decision of this court in the case of Spragne
V. Illinois River Railroad Company^ 19 111. R. 174.

It is also objected that the call is not general upon all the

subscribers to the stock, but is confined to subscribers in Taze-

well county. This was expressly authorized by the first amend-

ment of 1857, when, as was the case here, the money was to be

devoted to the construction of that portion of the road which

lies in that county. We are not prepared to say that this is

beyond the legislative power to permit. That this provision

was for the public good, is demonstrated by the passage of the

amendment, and that it was promotive of the interests of the

company at large, is to be inferred from the fact that it has been

adopted by the company ; and we may well imagine a state of

things where justice to these very defendants, as well as all other

subscribers, required that the money which they should pay on

these subscriptions should, in good faith, be exclusively devoted

to the construction of the road in the vicinage of the subscribers.

And so of the authority granted by the amendment to the

charter, to take subscriptions, and receive payment therefor

upon different, and, it may be, more advantageous terms than

those upon which the original subscriptions were taken. It
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is not difficult to suppose a case where sucli a course was indis-

pensable to save what had already been expended in the prose-

cution of the enterprise. If that was the only means, or the

best means, by which money could be raised to complete the

road, and thus make available what had already been done, no
one will doubt that it was for the common good of all that it

should be done. It is no new thing in business affairs that sac-

rifices have to be made to save an inadequate investment from a

total loss. Suppose in the same state of case, the legislature

had authorized the company to issue bonds, convertible, at

the will of the holder, into stock, and to sell them at ninety

cents on the dollar, or even unconvertible bonds, the same
hardship would have been done to the original subscribers, and
yet a transaction so familiar as that would be questioned by no
one. In either case, those who come in at the last to help out

an embarrassed concern, have the advantage of those who came
in at first, while the first subscribers might have had the advan-

tage of the last had the enterprise promised so well that the

stock had commanded a premium. The first who engage in such

an enterprise are entitled to the chances of a rise, and must
take the chances of a fall.

Although the fifth special cause assigned in the demurrer
admits that these amendments to the charter have been adopted
by the company, it has been urged against the declaration that

it does not aver that fact, and in fine, it has been insisted that

no amendment, which could affect any individual shareholder

injuriously, could be adopted by the company, so as to be bind-

ing on him, without his consent, and this suggestion requires a

moment's consideration.

As was said in the case of Spragne above referred to, the

law will not admit the idea that any one acquires an interest,

or subscribes for stock in an incorporated company, from any
ulterior considerations, or in view of any incidental advantages
beyond the value of the stock as an investment. Every share-

holder must look for the promotion of his individual interest to

the advancement of the general interest of the concern ; and
whatever advances that general interest, must necessarily be

held to be a promotion of his interest. Each shareholder has a

right to expect the cordial co-operation of all his co-sharehold-

ers in everything which tends to promote that general good.

No one should be permitted to turn traitor to the concern, and
set up an individual interest as hostile to it. No one can be
known in the concern except by the stock which he represents,

and all must be presumed to have a single eye to the enhance-
ment of the value of that stock. These are general considera-

tions which must be ever borne in mind in considering of amend-
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ments to charters of incorporations. If an amendment is

promotive of the general interest of the company, it is necessa-

rily promotive of the individual interest of each shareholder,

to the extent of his shares in the company ; and any company
has an undoubted right to accept any amendment to its charter

which it believes promotive of the objects and interests of the

company. Of this the company is necessarily the judge, and
those who represent and act for the company, so long as they

act with an honest purpose and a bona fide intent, must be held

to have acted for the best, or at least their action must be sus-

tained, as obligatory upon the company, the same as in the

exercise of any other discretionary power with which they are

vested, although it may turn out that they may have erred in

their judgment. They are no more likely to err in this than in

the exercise of any other important power with which they are

invested.

There are various modes by which amendments to charters

may be accepted by corporations, or rather by which such ac-

ceptance may be established, either for or against the corporation.

The first, and perhaps the most satisfactory, is where an amend-
ment is asked for in a general meeting of the shareholders, or

where an amendment, after it is passed, is accepted by a ma-
jority in interest at such a meeting. But this is not the only,

nor indeed the most usual mode, in this country of accepting

amendments to corporate charters. This is generally done by
the board of directors, who are for the most part vested with

all the corporate powers of the company. We know of no case

where it has been questioned that the board of directors have

power to accept an amended charter, while that power has been
expressly asserted in at least two different cases by this court.

Barret (reported Banit^ v. The Alton Sf Sangamon Railroad

Company, 13 111. R. 508, and Sprague v. The Illinois River

Railroad Company, 19 111. R. 174. Indeed, upon examination,

it would probably be found that not one in twenty of the

amended or even original charters under which corporations in

this State are now exercising their franchises, has ever been

accepted by a formal vote of the stockholders at large, and
probably a majority have never been adopted by a formal

vote even of the board of directors, but have been accepted

by user alone, which is another and the most common mode
of accepting an original charter by the corporators, and even

of amendments thereto, both of which stand upon precisely

the same footing in point of law. In neither case does

the act of incorporation become the law of the corporators,

prescribing the extent of their rights and the measure of their

liabilities, till they have accepted its benefits and consented to
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be bound by its liabilities. If they claim the one, they must
submit to the other. This is an acceptance of a charter or an
amendment thereto, and may be done by user. We may illus-

trate this by referring to our general statute, providing for a

mode of condemning the right of way for public works, which
statute also imposes certain obligations upon companies con-

structing such works. Suppose a railroad company already in

existence at the passage of this general law, proceed to condemn
land for its road way, it would thereby adopt such portions of

that law as are applicable to it, and subject itself to the bur-

dens therein imposed ; while, if it refrained from availing itself

of the benefits of the law, it might in no way be subjected to its

provisions. We shall refer to l3ut one case to show the appli-

cation of this rule of accepting an amendment of a charter by
implication or user. It is that of The Lincoln and Kennebeck
Bank v. Richai'dson, 1 Greenl. R. 79. There the defendant

was sued by the bank on a stock note, and was a stockholder

in the bank, making the case precisely like this in every sub-

stantial feature. The action was not brought till the charter of

the bank had expired, but its existence had been revived and
continued by an act amendatory of the charter. It was ad-

mitted on all hands that the amendment was inoperative till it

was accepted by the corporation, and there was no evidence of

such acceptance except the bringing of the action. The court

said : '• By bringing the present action the plaintiffs have de-

clared their acceptance of the new powers granted by the ex-

tending or revivor act of December 14, 1816, and of course

are liable to be sued by their creditors as well as empowered to

enforce payment by their debtors. It would be a liarsh and
unjust principle which would compel them to pay their debts

because they have accepted the new powers, and yet deny them
the use of legal process to enable them to collect the funds

necessary for the purpose. If it should be urged, as it has

been, that there is no assent on the part of the debtors of the

bank of the extension of the charter, and that the bringing of

this suit, though it may be proof of acceptance on the part of

the bank, is not so on the part of Richardson, it may be replied,

in addition to what has been before observed, that it appears by
the agreement of the parties that the note in suit is a stock note,

and of course Richardson is a stockholder. He is then bound
liy the act of acceptance on the part of the directors, the prose-

cutors of this action. The stockholders are bound by their

official acts within the limits of their ordinary duties." It

would be difiicult to find a case more precisely in point in all

respects to the one before us, than this is, unless it be that of

Foster v. The Essex Bank, 16 Mass. R. 245. We deem it un-
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necessary to enlarge upon a point so well settled. Exceptional

cases may no doubt be found, where a majority of the share-

holders in number and interest have denounced and opposed an
amendment so soon as they learn of its enactment, and the acts

of user are limited and equivocal, as in the case of Covimon-
ivealth ex rel. v. CuUen, 13 Pa. State R. 133. But the general

rule is as stated above, that acts of user under an amendment
to a corporate charter, for which no authority can be found ex-

cept in such amendment, and which amendment is supposed in

good faith to be beneficial to the corporation, are evidence of an

acceptance of such amendment by the corporation, and make it

the law of the corporation and binding upon all its members.
If the act of acceptance by the board of directors or other con-

trolling power, is prompted by sinister motives and not with a

single eye to the general good of the company, it becomes
fraudulent, and for that reason void, and might as such be re-

pudiated by the corporators or shareholders. But nothing of

the sort appears in this declaration, nor has there been even

an intimation of it on the argument.

Here the declaration makes express reference to these amend-
atory acts as conferring authority to bring these actions. In-

deed the very act of making this call on less than ninety days'

notice, and bringing this action within that time, is a distinct

and unequivocal act of user under these amendments of 18-57,

for only in the provisions of those laws can any authority be

found for these acts. And this brings the case precisely within

the case referred to in 1 Greenl., to which might be added, were

it necessary, an unlimited number of authorities.

Judgment reversed.
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Cook, 129.

2. Where the clerk of a court of record of another State, certifies that the ac-

knowledgment to a copy of a recorded deed, was, when it was taken to the

origin.ll, in conformity with the laws of such State, and that the person who took
it was then a justice of the peace, it will be sufiicient ; although the certificate

of conformity bears date the seventh of August, 1855, and the acknowledg-
ment the fourteenth of July, 1821. Dunlap v. Daugherti/ et al. 397.

3. That the justice who took the acknowledgment, was such, and acted in Wind-
ham county, Connecticut, will be presumed, where the grantor is described in

the deed, as residing in the same county, and the county is named in the cap-

tion of the certificate. Ibid. 397.

ACTION.

1. Possession of personal property is evidence of ownership, and the possessor may
recover in trespass against the person who takes it from him, unless such per-

son proves the property to be his own. Gilson v. Wood, 37.

2. Each part}^ engaged in the commission of a joint trespass is liable for the acts

of all. Ibid. 37.

3. In trespass, the measure of damages is what the property was worth when
taken. Ibid. 37.

4. In an action for slander, the pecuniary circumstances of the slanderer may be

given to the jury. Hosleij v. Brooks et ux. 115.

43
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5. The law will imply malice in the uttering of slanderous words, and heat of

passion does not rebut the malice thus implied. Ibid. 115.

6. It is no mitigation of the offense to show that the person slandered was quar-
relsome. Ibid. 115.

7. In a suit for slander, the jury may consider the pecuniary circumstances of the

defendant ; also that defendant obtruded himself into the house of the plaintiff

and offered undue familiarities to his wife, when the offensive words were
uttered, in fixing their damages, which may be by way of punishment, as well

as for compensation. Ibid. 115.

8. It is not a defense to such an action, to show that the wife of plaintiff used the

first harsh words, and that the slanderous words resulted from sucli previous

harsh words. Ibid. 115.

9. The time of the speaking of the words as laid in the declaration, is not mate-
rial. Ibid. 115.

10. In an action of trespass, unless the act complained of is willful, vindictive

damages cannot be given. Williams v. Reil etal. 147.

1 1

.

Where a sheriff, entrusted with an execution, calls on the defendants for pay-
ment, which was promised, but afterwards refused ; which execution was lost,

so that it could not be returned by the slicriff, and he paid the amount he was
commanded to malvc, the law will imply a promise on the part of the defend-

ants in execution to refund to the sheriff the amount which he has paid. Rees,

Adm'r, etc., v. Eames et al. 283.

12. The remedy by a sheriff against parties for whom he has paid money by virtue

of his office, will depend upon the good or bad faith of his conduct. Ibid. 283.

13. In an action of assumpsit for worlv and labor as a distiller, the plaintiff is en-

titled to recover the price fixed by contract, if there was one ; if not, then
what his services were reasonably worth. If the plaintiff was to employ an
assistant for the service of his employers, without a contract on his part to pay
such assistant, then whatever sum is paid such assistant is not to be deducted
from the plaintiff. Frazer v. Gregg et al. 299.

14. Whatever understanding may have existed between the plaintiff and his assist-

ant, as between themselves, would not affect the employers. Ibid. 299.

15. Where a special contract to deliver stone is entered into between two parties,

and they agree that a third party may perform the contract, that third party
may sue as on an original undertaking. Dunshee v. Hill, 499.

16. Where a party who had been keeping a ferry near to another ferry, leased his

boat to be used by the person keeping the other ferry, he will not be held liable

for an accident occurring on the boat while in the use of another. Claypool

et al. V. McAllister et al. 504.

17. Nor will the party who owned the boat be liable for not maintaining a ferry,

in an action on the case for an injury to animals, while the boat was in the

use of another ferry keeper. Ibid. 504.

18. A ferryman has the absolute right to direct M'hat position each person shall

take on the boat, without reference to priority of arrival at the ferry. If a
party shall not be ferried in proper time, he must seek his remedy by action.

Ibid. 504.

19. An action for money had and received, may be maintained, whenever the de-

fendant has obtained money of the plaintiff, which in equity and good con-

science the defendant has no right to detain. Taylor y. Taylor et al. 650.

See Contract. City of Chicago, 5, 6. Negligence, 9, 10. Pkocess.
Eeplevin. Damages.

AGENTS.

1. It is not error to allow the statements of an agent, made at the time of the sale

of personal property, to be given in evidence. Gilson v. Wood, 37.

2. If a principal ratifies a purchase made by his agent, he will be responsible for

the acts of the agent, and the question of ratification is for the jury to deter-

mine. Goodellv. TFooc?n(^, 191.
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3. An agent is, on general principles, a competent M'itness for all purposes. NicJiols

V. Guibor, 285.

4. In declaring on a contract executed by an agent, the contract may be described
as having been signed by the principal, or by his agent for him. Ohio Sj- Mis-
sissippi Railroad Co. v Middleton et al. 629.

5. When it is doubtful whether the contract was intended to bind the principal
or the agent, extrinsic evidence may be received to ascertain the intention.
Ibid. 629.

6. The ratification by the principal of a contract of the agent, amounts to a
waiver by the principal of a want of authority in the agent. ri)id. 629.

7. The admissions of a nominal plaintiff will be received to bind a beneficial one,
if they were made in the presence of a beneficial plaintiff, and he does not
contradict them. And if the nominal plaintiff acts as agent, the beneficial

plaintiff will be bound by the admissions of the agent, within the scope of his

authority. Hungate v. Rankin et al., use, etc. 639.

8. All the acts of an agent, performed under the direction of his principal, and
within the scope of his agencj-, will bind the principal, and will be regarded as

his own acts. Taylor v. Taylor et al. 650.

See Railroads. Servants.

AGREEMENT.

1. Where, by an agreement, both parties are mutually bound, each to the other,

to perform at the same time ; as the one to deliver hogs, and the other to pay
for them on delivery ; neither can sue on the contract until the property is

delivered, or until the price therefor is ready and offered to be paid, or a
reasonable demand for the delivery of the property. Hungate v. Rankin et al.,

use, etc. 639.

2. The law presumes that the contract between the parties expresses the whole
agreement between them. Farrar, etc. v. Hindi, 646.

ALTERATION OF INSTRUMENTS.

1. The party receiving a paper interlined in a material part, should see that the

interlineation is noted in the attestation. Such interlineations must be ex-

plained by those who claim the benefit of them. Hodge v. Gilmun et al. 437.

2. Where a material alteration appears upon the face of the instrument, the onus

is upon the person holding it, to show that the alteration was made before

attestation, or has been assented to. Ibid. 437.

ANCIENT DEEDS.

1. Ancient deeds will not be admitted as evidence, without proof of their execution

in some way which shall be satisfactory to the court. The party producing
such papers must do everything in his power to raise a presumption in favor of

their genuineness. Smith v. Rankin, 14.

APPEALS—APPEAL BOND.

1. On an appeal from a trial before a justice of the peace, as to the right of prop-

erty, the appellant may amend his appeal bond in the appellate court, if he
has in good faith attempted to execute a valid bond. Patty v. Winchester, 261.

2. The constitution confers upon the Circuit Courts jurisdiction in all cases of

appeals from all inferior courts ; and the legislature cannot take away this

jurisdiction, although it may give other courts concurrent jurisdiction in that

regard. Burns v. Henderson, 264.

3. The word " shall," in the fourth section of the act extending the jurisdiction

of the Peoria County Court, is construed to mean " may," so as to make that

act harmonize with the constitution. Ibid. 264. \
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APPEARANCE.

1. The entry of amotion to quash is not such an appearance as amounts to a

waiver of a variance between the writ and declaration. Schoonhoven v. Goit, 46.

AEBITEATION—AWARD

.

1. On a submission to arbitrators of all the claims of A, and B, upon C, for work,

etc., done on certain buildings, for C, some of which work C said was defect-

ively done, it was competent for the arbitrators to admit A and B to prove

that C had not furnished certain materials within the time agreed upon by him,

and that therefore the defect occurred. Waughop v. Carter et al. 111.

2. Where a suit is pending before a justice of the peace, arbitrators may be chosen,

and a judgment rendered upon their award; but unless a suit is pending, a
justice cannot acquire jurisdiction. Because a justice of the peace prepares a
submission to arbitrators, the Circuit Court does not thereby get jurisdiction

of the controversy by an appeal. Shirk v. Trainer, 301.

3. Where a case is referred by order of court to arbitrators, who by the order were

directed to seal their award and file it in court, etc., and the clerk swore the

arbitrators, and notified them to take upon themselves a general submission,

which they did, of all matters ; held, that the arbitrators were only a special

tribunal for the matters litigated by that suit, and that they should have noti-

fied both parties of the time and place of hearing, and that the award was bad.

Reeves v. EldricJg, 383.

ASSESSMENTS.

1

.

The City of Chicago has no authority to levy special assessments for deepening
the river. Wright et al. v. City of Chicago, 252.

2. Special authority delegated by legislative enactment to particular persons, or

summary proceedings without personal service, to take away a man's property

and estate against his consent, must be strictly pursued, and tins must be
shown on the face of the proceedings. City of Chicago v. Rock Island Rail-

road Company, 286.

3. Since the act of February, 1857, amendatory of the charter of the city of Chi-

cago, there is but one collector and his assistants, and that collector must apply
to some court of general jurisdiction for an order of sale of lands, etc., to sat-

isfy assessments. Special collectors cannot make this application. Ibid. 286.

4. Whei'e a command issued to a special collector to levy of the goods and chat-

tels, had he made a levj', he could have completed tlie execution, even after

the passage of the amendatory act. Plad the warrant been issued against

lands, the special collector could not have sold, as he had only been com-
manded by the common council, and not by some court of the city, having
competent jurisdiction. Ibid. 286.

5. Where a statute directs that assessments for city improvements shall be made
upon real estate in any natural division of the city l)enefited thereby, it is a
limitation on tlie powers of the commissioners not to go out of a natural or

obvious division, to make assessments ; but having selected the area, then to

assess such property in it, for taxation, as will most likely be benefited. City

of Ottawa V. Macy et al. 413.

6. A notice to parties interested in the property assessed, which conforms to the

law under which the city is incorporated, and to the city ordinances in that

regard, will be sufficient, aliliough it is general, to " all persons interested,"

to attend and make their objections to the confirmation of the assessment.
Ibid. 413.

7. Where the city charter does not, but the ordinance passed under it does direct,

that the collector shall make return of his warrant in thirty days, an omission
to make the return within that time, will not make the proceedings void

;

such an ordinance is merelv directory and for the benefit of the citv council.

Ibid. 413.
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8. If the collector shall make a return that he could not find goods and chattels

whereon lo levy and collect the amount assessed, that will be conclusive of
the fact stated. If the return is false, the officer is responsible. Ibid. 413.

9. The common council of the city of Ottawa is not bound to decide upon the
confirmation of an assessment, on the day fixed for that purpose, by the no-
tice given. The day named was for hearing objections ; deliberation may be
necessary. Same v. Fisher et al. 422.

10. Church property may be assessed for special purposes, though not liable for

ordinary taxes. Same v. Trustees, etc. 423.

11. The second section of the act entitled "An Act to amend the charters of the

several towns and cities of this State," approved March 1st, 1854, repeals so

much of the act of 1851, as empowered the common council of the city of

Chicago to order a sale of real estate to enforce the payment of assessments.

City of Chicago v. Colby, 614.

12. Special assessments and taxes are different, and the same rule of construction

where the words are used in statutes, will not be indiscriminately applied to

these terms. Ibid. 614.

13. The language used in the case of the City of Chicago v. The Bock Island Rail-

road Company, ante, page 286, qualified and explained. Ibid. 614.

14. The act of February 14th, 1857, amendatory of the city charter of Chicago,

repeals the second section of the act approved March 1st, 1854, aforesaid.

Ibid. 614.

See Right op Wat.

ASSIGNMENT.

See Insolvent Debtor. Bankeupt.

ASSIGNOR AND ASSIGNEE.

1. The lessor cannot assign a lease by indorsement, so as to give the assignee such

a legal interest as can be enforced in his name, although the assignee may, in

that way, acquire an equitable title to the rents. Chapman, etc. v. McGrew, 101.

ASSUMPSIT.

1. In an action of assumpsit for work and labor as a distiller, the plaintiff is en-

titled to recover the price fixed by contract, if there was one ; if not, then

what his services were reasonably worth. If the plaintiff" was to employ an
assistant for the service of his employers, without a contract on his part to pay
such assistant, then whatever sum is paid said assistant is not to be deducted

from the plaintiff. Frazer v. Gregg et al. 299.

2. Whatever understanding may have existed between the plaintiff and his assist-

ant, as between themselves, would not affect the employers. Ibid. 299.

3. An action for money had and received, may be maintained, whenever the de-

fendant has obtained money of the plaintiff, which in equity and good con-

science the defendant has no right to detain. Taylor v. 2\tylor et al. 650.

See Sealed Instrument, 1. Promissory Note, 15.

ATTACHMENT.

1. A party who has wrongfully produced a confusion of goods, consisting of a

cargo " of plank, boards and scantling," by an unauthorized intermixture,

forfeits his right to the whole, and his creditors cannot levy an attachment
upon such cargo. Beach et al. v. Schmultz, 185.
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BAIL.

1. An affidavit to hold to bail must show that the defendant has refused to surren-

der his estate, or has been guilty of fraud. Gorton v. Frizzell, 291.

2. An affidavit before a justice of the peace, which states that a defendant "with-

holds his money or secretes his pi'operty from the officer so that the debt can-

not be levied," is insufficient to authorize the arrest of the debtor. Ibid. 291.

3. When a capias recites such an affidavit as its foundation, an officer who executes

it will be a trespasser; he cannot justify under a void writ. Ibid. 291.

4. In an action against a sheriff for the escape of a party arrested under such a
process, the court should instruct the jury that it is void, or should exclude it

from the jury altogether. Ibid. 291.

See Secukitt, 4.

BANKEUPT.

1. Where a party received an engine for repairs and retained a portion of it, and
before action was brought against him, had made an assignment in bankruptcy
under the general bankrupt law and obtained his discharge ; held, that he could
recoup his claim for work done on the repairs. Stow v. Yarwood et al. 497.

2. All claims due to the bankrupt pass to his assignee, but pass to him subject to

all equities and defenses of every description which existed against them in the

hands of the bankrupt. Ibid. 497.

3. If at the time of the assignment mutual demands exist, arising out of a contract

which by the ordinary rules of law might be set off, such right of set-off or

recoupment would remain unaffected by the bankrupt's assignment. And the

bankrupt, as well as the assignee, can avail himself of such set-off" or recoup-

ment. Ibid. 497.

See Insolvent Debtor.

BILL OF EXCEPTIONS.

1 . If the bill of exceptions includes the pleadings of the parties, the costs of so much
of the record as contains these pleadings in the bill should be taxed against

the party who caused their insertion. The Joliet and Northern Indiana Rail-

road Company v. Jones, 221.

See Justices of the Peace, 1.

BILL OF EXCHANGE.

1. It is no defense to an action upon a bill of exchange that it was accepted for

the accommodation of the drawer, of which the drawee had notice, and that

time was given the drawer to make payment, by the drawee, after the maturity
of the bill. Cronise v. Kellogg, 1 1

.

2. The acceptor of a bill of exchange is primarily liable to pay it, whether he
has funds of the drawer in his hands or not. An accommodation acceptor is

in the same position as one who accepts with funds, as to all persons who
receive the bill for value. Ibid. 11.

3. The acceptor of a bill can never be discharged except by payment or a release,

except in cases where to enforce the payment by the acceptor, would be in vio-

lation of the agreement of the parties at the time of the acceptance. Ibid. 11.

4. The holder of a bill of exchange is not under obligation to the acceptor to

seek payment of it from any other party. Ibid. 11.

5. A letter from the drawer of a bill from which a promise to the holder to pay
the bill may be implied, is proper evidence, as showing a waiver, for omission

to present the bill for acceptance or payment. Curtiss v. Martin, etc. 557.

G. The affidavit of a security for costs, may be read to the court, as laying a foun-

dation for an objection to the admission of the answer of a plaintiff to a bill

of discovery, v/h'ich is offered as evidence to the jury. Ibid. 557.
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7. Admissions made by the owner of a bill or note, are admissible as evidence
against a purchaser after maturity. And the evidence of a plaintiff, upon bill

of discovery, who sues for another, as to any matter which existed before he
parted with the bill, may be read in evidence. Ibid. 557.

8. The purchaser of an overdue bill or note, takes it subject to all infirmities and
objections, and at his peril. Ibid. 557.

9. It is a proper question for a jury to determine, whether the presentment of a
bill has been waived. Ibid. 557.

10. If a drawer of a bill deposits a particular kind of funds with the drawee, to be
disposed of, and have the proceeds applied to meet the payment of the bill

when it becomes due, it may be considered by the jury as evidence, with other
circumstances, as to whether a waiver has been made or not. Ibid. 557.

11. A subsequent payment of money may be a waiver of presentment. Ibid. 557.

12. A party may show any sufficient excuse for the want of diligence, in making
protest for non-acceptance and non-payment. Ibid. 557. %.

13. The acceptance of a less sum, in payment, than that which is due, is not a
satisfaction of the whole debt ; unless it be in compromise of a controverted
claim, or from a debtor in failing circumstances. Ibid. 557.

14. The holder of a note without suspicion of bad faith, is presumed to be the
legal owner. Ibid. 557.

See Indoeser—Indorsee. Promissory Note.

BOATS AND VESSELS.

See Eerry.

BOND.

See Security, 4.

CAPIAS.

See Bail.

CAVEAT EMPTOR.

1. The purchaser of an article, not warranted as to quality, must take the hazard of

his bargain. If he was not to keep the article purchased, unless it pleased

him, he should return it, if it displeased him, at the earliest practicable

moment. Nichols v. Guibor, 285.

CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT.

1 . The court may assess damages on a certificate of deposit, payable in currency.

Swift et al. V. Whitney et at. 144.

CHANCERY.

1. Where it appears that in June, 18-35, A and B had improvements upon public

land which entitled them to a preemption, which they sold and conveyed to C,

selling all the right they then had or might acquire, they binding themselves

to pay the government the price of the land ; that in 1842, D, a brother of A
and B, obtained a certificate by preemption in his own name, but represented

to C, that he, D, had been put to trouble and expense to procure his title,

whereupon C paid to D the full amount of such trouble and expense, and
took a receipt therefor, and A, B, and D, occupied the land as tenants of C,
and that D conveyed a part of said land to A : held, that an injunction M'ould

lie, to prevent further sales of the land, and that the prayer of the bill, asking

a conveyance to C, and for general relief, should not be dismissed upon
demurrer, and that the sale and subsequent ratification of it were not in viola-

tion of any law at the time they were made. May v. Symmes et al. 95.
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2. A court has no power to reform the deed of a married woman, for any mistake
in its provisions. Moulton et ux. v. Hurd, 137.

3. On a bill to foreclose a mortgage, the note or bond to secure which the mort-
gage was given, should be produced, or its non-production properly accounted
for. Lucas et al. v. Harris, 165.

4. This rule should be especially regarded in old transactions. Ibid. 165.

5. The holder of the obligation secured by a mortgage, can control the mortgage.
Ibid. 165.

6. A release of a debt secured by a mortgage need not be under seal. Ibid. 165.

7. One party to a contract cannot complain until he has put his adversary in

default by a substantial performance of the contract on his part, nor until a
failure or refusal to perform by the other. Bishop v. Netvton et al. 175.

8. Where a party contracts to give a title free from incumbrances, the purchaser

is not bound to pay his money and receive a deed, while incumbrances exist

against the property. Ibid. 175.

9. Where A contracted to sell land to B, for which the latter paid down $1 ,000,

and was to pay $2,000 more by a day named, or within fifteen days thereafter,

or forfeit what he had paid, and satisfy a certain mortgage, except the interest

for a named year, which A was to pay ; B being in default by not having paid

the $2,000 by the day named, within fifteen days thereafter A sold the land to

other parties : held, that as A was himself in default, and tliat B performed a

part of his contract, and had, within a reasonable time, offered to perform
entirely on his part, that on a bill tiled for that purpose, A should be made to

convey to B. ibid. 175.

10. The contract between A and B was of record, and was notice to all other per-

sons ; and whoever dealt with A in relation to those lands, was bound to take

notice of it. Ibid. 175.

11. In equity, a party to a suit, as also his attorney, if he purchases property sold

under an execution, is chargeable with notice of all irregularities attending

the sale. Dicherman et al. v. Burgess et al. 266.

12. A party cannot claim a benefit, or the aid of a court of equity, who has been
guilty of laches in protecting his rights, unless such ladtes may be imputable

to the party claiming against him. Ibid. 266.

13. If a sheriif makes a sale of real estate by merely indorsing it on the execution,

and making out a certificate of sale, without going to the court-house door,

without any outcry or bidders, or any circumstance to arrest pubhc attention,

or to indicate that a sale was going on, and returned the execution, satisfied

by a sale, to the plaintiff's attorney, who was the assignee of the judgment,
but sent a certificate of sale to a person indicated by said attorney, the attor-

ney will be held to be the purchaser, although the sheriff should subsequently

have amended his return, so as not to have it appear that the attorney became
the purchaser. Ibid. 266.

14. In such a case, where the holder of the certificate of sale, who disclaims all

knowledge of or interest in the transaction, assigned it to a brother of the

attorney, and he to a cousin, under such suspicious circumstances as showed a
design to conceal a wrong, they will all be held as acting in trust for the ben-

efit of the attorney, and all the proceedings will be set aside for the irregular-

ities and frauds connected with them. Ibid. 266.

15. Gross inadequacy of price, under such circumstances, should be considered in

the conclusion to be arrived at. Ibid. 266.

16. There should be entire uniformity in the return to the execution, the certificate

of sale, and the deed where i-eal estate is sold, or they will be invalid. Ibid.

266.

17. A certificate of sale by a sherift' to another person than the purchaser, shown
by his return to the execution, is a void act. Ibid. 266.

18. A bid by letter may be recognized by the sheriff, if it is announced by him

;

and if there is no advance upon that bid, he may sell upon it. Ibid. 266.

19. A sold a lot of railroad ties to B, who again sold them to C, who confused

them with other ties laid upon a road bed. A notified C that tlie ties belonged

to him, and C thereupon refused to pay B for them. B then sued C, and ob-

tained a judgment against him for the value of the ties. A then filed his
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bill, alleging fraud, etc., in B, and obtained a perpetual injunction against C,
restraining him from paying the judgment in favor of B, and commanding
the sheriif to collect it for the benefit of A ; held, That C should have made
this defense at law in the action brought by B, and that it was not a proper
exercise of chancery powers to interfere with the collection of a judgment,
fairly obtained as between the parties to it. Scott v. Whitlow, 310.

20. A court of equity is not always bound to act, even where it has authority.

Ibid. 310.

21. The return to a summons in chancery, which states service by delivering a
true copy to the within named, etc., he being a white person over ten years

old, on, etc., as within commanded, is a nullity, and no default can be taken
upon it. Divilbliss, etc. v. Whitmire, etc. 425.

22. Any corrupt agreement among bidders, which prevents competition at a public

sale, is a fraud upon the owner, which will vitiate the sale. Garrett v. Moss
etal. 549.

23. An agreement on the part of a senior mortgagor to foreclose and sell only a
part of the mortgaged premises, and bid them off in satisfaction of his judg-

ment, is not a fraud upon the debtor, nor is it against justice or equity. Ibid.

549.

24. Where a notice of sale under a decree is ordered to be advertised in a news-
paper for "three weeks successively," or, "for three successive weeks," and
there were tv/cnty-one days between the date of the notice and the daj^ of sale,

and there were nineteen days intervening between the first publication and the

day of sale, and there were three publications of the notice, if it appears that

no injury has resulted to either party, the deviation from a strict comphance
with the order of publication will not be a sufficient cause for refusing to con-

firm the sale. Ibid. 549.

25. A chancellor has a large discretion in the approval or disapproval of sales %0
made by a master, and a bidder acquires no independent right to the prop- /^

_

erty, but his purchase depends upon the confirmation by the chancellor. Ibid.

549.

26. Exceptions to the proceedings of a master in the sale of property, taken ten

years after the approval and confirmation of his acts, come too late, unless it

is made to appear that positive injury has resulted. Ibid. 549.

27. If it appears that the purchasers under a sale, and the commissioner who con-

ducted it, used means to prevent bidding, the sale would be set aside. But
such a state of case should be shown to have existed, before the court will act.

Ibid. 549.

28. In order to set aside a sale because of inadequacy of price, a case of sacrifice

must be made out to justify the setting aside of a sale. Ibid. 549.

29. While several distinct tracts of land should not be offered for sale in block,

yet an officer is not, unless required, bound to divide a tract of land into

smaller parcels than any previously indicated, and offer them for sale. Ibid.

549.

30. A party who insists that land was bought for him in the name of another, who
loaned the money at usurious rates, must connect innocent purchasers with a
knowledge of such facts ; and if he has been ejected from the premises with-

out setting up such facts in his defense as a notice to others, and has aban-

doned the premises, declaring an intention to forego all claim thereto, he can-

not have an equitable right to pursue subsequent purchasers and recover the

land. Ferguson et al. v. Talhiadge, 581.

31. However regular all anterior proceedings of a school teacher up to the time

of presenting his schedule to the school directors, may be, under the law of

1855, unless the schedule is properly certified and presented in proper time,

the payment for his services cannot be enforced against the trustees of schools

by bill in chancerj^ ; if there is any remedy, it is by mandamus. Cotton v.

Reed et al. Trustees, etc. 607.

Sec Mortgage.

44
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CHURCHES AND CHURCH PROPERTY.

1. Cliurcli property may be assessed for special purposes, though not liable for

ordinary taxes. Town of Ottawa v. Trustees, etc, 423.

CIRCUIT COURTS.

L Where an appeal is taken to the Circuit Court, from a discharge by the County
Court of an insolvent debtor, it is his duty to attend the Circuit Court and
submit to an examination; and if he fails to attend, the case should be con-

tinued, if the appellant desires a continuance. Cooley et al. v. Culton, 40.

2. The judge of a Circuit Court has power to adjourn its sessions for such short

periods as in his discretion may seem proper, and an adjournment over two
days is not error. Cook v. Skelton, 107.

3. The constitution confers upon the Circuit Courts jurisdiction in all cases of

appeals from all inferior courts ; and the legislature cannot take away this

jurisdiction, although it may give other courts concurrent jurisdiction in that

regard. Burns v. Henderson, 264.

4. The apportionment of costs by the Circuit Court, on an appeal from the de-

cision of a justice of the i^eace, is the exercise of a discretion with which the

Supreme Court cannot interfere. Lee v. Quirk, 392.

5. AVhen two instructions are asked for, both of which contain the same principle

of law, the court may give the one and refuse the other. Mai/ v. Tallman,

443.

6. Circuit Courts may refuse to repeat a principle of law which has previously

been-fairly stated to the jury. Ibid, 443.

7. An instruction, unless it be upon an abstract proposition of law, must have
some evidence for its foundation, and must spring out naturally from such
evidence. Galena and Chicago Union Railroad Compamj v. Jacobs, 478.

8. The Circuit Court is not limited to the instructions asked for, but may supply
by its own suggestions any omission of counsel. Ibid. 478.

9. In construing grants of power to inferior courts, nothing is to be held as granted

by implication, save only what is necessary to a full exercise of their general
powers. School Inspectors, etc. v. People, etc. 525.

See Courts.

CITY OF CHICAGO.

1. The City of Chicago has no authority to levy special assessments for deepening
the river. Wright et al. v. City of Chicago, 252.

2. Special authority delegated by legislative enactment to particular persons, or
summary proceedings without personal service, to take away a man's prop-
erty and estate against his consent, must be strictly pursued, and this must be
shown on the face of the proceedings. City of Chicago v. Rock Island Rail-

road Company, 286.

3. Since the act of February, 1857, amendatory of the charter of the city of Chi-
cago, there is but one collector and his assistants, and that collector must
apply to some court of general jurisdiction for an order of sale of lands, etc.,

to satisfy assessments. Special collectors cannot make this application.

Ibid. 286.

4. Where a command issued to a special collector to levy of the goods and chat-

tels, had he made the levy, he could have completed the execution, even after

the passage of the amendatory act. Had the warrant been issued against
lands, the special collector could not have sold, as he had only been com-
manded by the common council, and not by some court of the city, having
competent jurisdiction. Ibid. 286.

5. The legislature, by the charter granted to the city of Chicago, authorized the

city authorities to remove obstructions, and to widen, deepen and straighten

the Chicago river and its branches to their sources, and to extend one mile
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into Lake Michigan. This grant did not create the obligation to do all these
acts ; and the city Avould not be liable to any party in damages for the non-
performance of these permitted acts, unless it commences some of them and
does them in so improper a manner that injury results therefrom. Goodrich
et al. v. Citi/ of Chicago, 445.

6. If a party receives damage resulting from a sunken hulk in the harbor, he can-
not recover of the city, because the city has not exercised the powers conferred
upon it to clear out the harbor. Ibid. 445.

7. The second section of the act entitled "An Act to amend the charters of the
several towns and cities in this State," approved March 1st, 1854, repeals so
much of the act of 1851, as empowered the common council of the city of
Chicago to order a sale of real estate to enforce the payment of assessments.

City of Chicago v. Colby, 614.

8. Special assessments and taxes are different, and the same rule of construction

where the words are used in statutes, will not be indiscriminately applied to

these terms. Ibid. 614.

9. The language used in the case of the City of Chicago v. The Rock Island Railroad
Company, ante, page 286, qualified and explained. Ibid. 614.

10. The act of February 14th, 1857, amendatory of the city charter of Chicago,
repeals the second section of the act approved March 1st, 1854, aforesaid.

Ibid. 614.

11. The Cook County Court of Common Pleas and the Circuit Court have juris-

diction to render judgments for taxes and assessments ; but the County
Court, unless extraordinary powers have been conferred upon it, has not.

' Ibid. 614.

CLAIM AJSTD COLOR OF TITLE.

1. Where there is a contract for the sale of land unexecuted, it makes no difference

so far as claim and color of title is concerned, whether the taxes are paid by
the vendor or vendee, or by the assignee of either. Darst v. Marshall, 227.

2. "Where a party had a contract for a deed of land, to be delivered when he should
make certain payments, the contract providing also that he should repay the

taxes assessed after a certain date, which contract was assigned by the vendor
as the payment of money, and the assignee of the contract paid taxes for

three years, and until the deed was delivered ; when the party purchasing paid
those taxes and all others for a period of seven years, during all which time he
was in actual possession, this established such a claim and color of title as

•would defeat an action of ejectment brought by any other claimant. Ibid.

227.

3. A judgment for taxes is fatally defective, if it does not show the amount of tax
for which it was rendered. The use of numerals, without some mark indi-

cating for what they stand, is insufficient. Lawrence v. Fast, 338.

4. The separate record book of judgments for taxes should be so kept, as without
reference to the general record, it could furnish a full exemplification of a
judgment. Ibid. 338.

5. A party who interposes the benefit of limitation, derived under the ninth section

of the twenty-fourth chapter of the Revised Statutes, to an action of eject-

ment, must show that the payment of taxes, and the color of title, were by
and in the same person. Payment of taxes by different persons, for seven
years, one of whom had only a contract for a conveyance, is insufScient.

Dunlap V. Daugherty et al. 397.

COIN.

See CuEEENT Money. Conteact, 10, 11.

COMMON CARRIERS.

1. Where a box, shipped at Adrian for Chicago (the usual railroad time of trans-

portation being three days) on the twenty-ninth October, arrived at Chicago
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on the third of November, and Vv^as not delivered by the freight agent until the

fifteenth of the latter month, this will be considered so unreasonable a delay
as to entitle the owner to damages. Michigan Southern Sf Northern Indiana
Railroad Company v. Day, 375.

2. Where the agent of a railroad company for the delivery of freight, authorized

to make all necessary arrangements as to the time and place of its delivery,

agrees to forward freight by another company, or by a line of boats, if this

agreement is neglected, the railroad company will be liable. Ibid. 375.

3. Where it is the custom of a railroad company to receive the directions of ship-

pers and owners of goods to be sent beyond the terminus of their road, if

directions are given to forward by a particular line, which are not obeyed, the

railroad company will be liable. Ibid. 375.

4. Shippers and owners of goods have the right to control their destination ; and
if their directions are obeyed, no responsibility for loss is incurred. Ibid. 375.

5. The employment of an agent by a railroad company, to deliver all freights,

necessarily includes the authority to make terms for its delivery at or beyond
the terminus of the road. Ibid. 375.

6. To terminate its liability as a common carrier, a railroad company is not bound
to give notice of the arrival of goods. Richards v. Michigan Southern Sc Nor-
thern Indiana Railroad Company, 404.

7. When goods reach their destination, and are properly stored, the responsibility

of the carrier ceases, and that of warehouseman attaches. Ibid. 404.

8. If notice of the arrival of goods, requiring their I'cmoval in twenty-four hours,

is given, it does not follow that the liability as carrier continues for that time

;

such a notice only implies that the goods may remain twenty-four hours free

of charge. Ibid. 404.

9. Carriers by railway are neither bound to deliver to the consignee personally, or

to give notice of the arrival of the goods, to discharge their liability as such.

But they must take proper care of the goods, by safely storing them or by
some other act. Porter v. Chicago Sj' Rock Island Rcdlroad Company, 407.

10. When the articles to be transported, have arrived at their destination, and have
been removed and stored in a v/arehouse which is owned by the carrier, or by
some other party, the duty of the carrier is terminated. If the goods are

stored in a building owned by the carrier, the liability clianges to that of
warehouseman. Ibid. 407.

11. Because goods were destroyed in a railroad car, by an accidental fire, the

carrier is not thereby released. It is the duty of the carrier to show what
becomes of goods entrusted to him; the burden of the proof is with him.
Ibid. 407.

12. The liability of a common carrier by railway terminates, if the goods after

- I. reaching their destination are properly stored in any warehouse ; and notice

need not be given of tlieir arrival, and if it is given, no other liability grows
out of it than that the goods will be retained, free of charge, for the time
specified. Davis et al. v. Michigan Southern i^ Northern Indiana Railroad Com-
pany, 412.

13. Where parties hire the use of cars from a railroad company, to be employed
in transportation of freight, to be laden as the hirers choose, the company does
not incur any risk as to the mode adopted in loading the cars. Ohio S^- Missis-

sippi Railroad Company v. Dunbar et al. 623

1 4. Common carriers are not liable for losses occasioned by an inlicrcnt defect of
the article causing its destruction, nor for the loss of Aveight in cattle trans-

ported by rail ; but every reasonable cff'ort must be used to deliver property at

its destination in proper time, and an omission to perform this duty creates a
liability ; and all proximate damages resulting from a neglect of it, may be
recovered. Ibid. 623.

See Evidence, 1.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT.

1 . In an action upon an agreement, by which it was stipulated that plaintiffs should
dig a stock well, break the prairie that was unbroken, build a stable, crib and
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bin room, and have the farm fenced with a lawful fence, and which conditions

it was alleged were all performed, it was held that from the nature of the con-
tract, that the foregoing were conditions precedent to be performed, and proof
of performance of which was necessary before the rent, $400, should be re-

quired to be paid. Baird et al. v. Evans et al. 29.

2. Before a party can recover on a contract, he must have performed his part of it,

or have been ready and willing to do so, unless prevented or excused from so
doing. Ibid. 29.

See CoNTEACT, 16.

CONFUSION OF GOODS.

1. A party who has ^vrongfully produced a confusion of goods, consisting of a cargo
" of plank, boards and scantling," by an unauthorized intermixture, forfeits

his right to the whole, and his creditors cannot levy an attachment upon sueh
cargo. Beach et al. v. Sclimultzet al. 185.

CONSTRUCTION OF CONTRACTS.

See CoNTKACTS. .
: .

CONSTRUCTION OF STATUTES.

1

.

Upon the question of relocating a county seat, if the law only authorizes the

clerk to canvass the votes cast on the question of relocation, and certify the

result, without regard to other votes cast at the same election, he cannot give
a certificate which will afford legal evidence that the county seat has been
changed, in conformity with the requirements of the constitution. People ex

rel. V. Warfield, 159.

2. A majority of the legal votes cast at a voting for the relocation of a county
seat, is sufficient to determine the question. If the law authorizing the vote

does not provide for determining the question, the courts may do so on proper
application. Ibid. 159.

3. The law of 1857, which authorizes the issuing of injunctions to stay proceed-

ings upon judgments by confession under warrants of attorney, upon demands
not due at the time the judgments may be entered, was within the power of
the legislature, and may apply to antecedent judgments or contracts. Wood et

al. V Child et al. 209.

4. The law of the remedy is no part of the contract. Ibid. 209.

5. If debts already due, as well as those not due, are included in the same judg-
ment, they will alike fall under the effects of the injunction. Ibid. 209.

6. The word "shall," in the fourth section of the act extending the jurisdiction of

the Peoria County Court, is construed to mean " may," so as to make that act

harmonize with the constitution. Burns v. Henderson, 264.

7. The proceeding authorized by the ninetieth section of the statute of Wills, was
not designed to aid in the collection of debts due to estates ; but for the pur-

pose of obtaining the possession of the identical articles, or the identical

money, which belonged to the deceased in his lifetime. Williams v. Conleij,

Adm'r, 643.

See Schools and School Laws.

CONTINUANCE.

1

.

In an indictment for kidnapping, an affidavit for a continuance should show the

particular fact or facts which can be proven by the absent witness, and in what
way those facts are material. Moody v. The People, 315.

2. An affidavit for a continuance, which does not state the residence of a witness,

is insufficient. Lee v. Quirk, 392.
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CONTKACT.

1

.

In an action on an agreement, by which it was stipulated that plaintiffs should
dig a stoclv well, break the prairie that was unbroken, build a stable, ci'ib and
bin room, and have the farm fenced with a lawful fence, and which conditions

it was alleged were all performed, it was held that from the nature of the con-

tract, that the foregoing were conditions precedent to be performed, and proof
of performance of which was necessary before the rent, $400, should be re-

quired to be paid. Baird et al. v. Evans et al. 29.

2. Before a party can recover on a contract, he must have performed his part of it,

or have been ready and willing to do so, unless prevented or excused from so

doing. Ibid. 29.

3. A and B, being brothers, inheriting from their father, B sold his inheritance to

A. The father, by his will, declared that any indebtedness of his sons to him,
should be in reduction of his bequests ; the father, at his death, held a note
against B, assigned to him by C, another brother. Held that B, having sold

bis interest in the estate to A, was bound to pay to A, the amount of the note
B had given to C, and which C had assigned to the father. Merritt v. Mer-
ritt, 65.

4. One party to a contract cannot complain until he has put his adversary in de-

fault by a substantial performance of the contract on his part, nor until a
failure or refusal to perform by the other. Bishop v. Neivton et al, 175.

5. Where a party contracts to give a title free from incumbrances, the purchaser

is not boirnd to pay his money and receive a deed, while incumbrances exist

against the property. Ibid. 175.

G. Where A contracted to sell land to B, for which the latter paid down $1,000, and
was to pay $2,000 more by a day named, or within fifteen days thereafter, or

forfeit what he had paid, and satisfy a certain mortgage, except the interest for

a named year, which A was to pay ; B being in default by not having paid

the $2,000 by the day named, within fifteen days thereafter A sold the land to

other parties : held, that as A was himself in default, and that B performed a
part of his contract and had within a reasonable time, offered to perform en-

tirely on his part, that on a bill filed for that purpose, A should be made to

convey to B. Ibid. 175.

7. The contract between A and B was of record, and was notice to all other per-

sons ; and whoever dealt with A, in relation to those lands, was bound to take

notice of it. Ibid. 175.

8. The law of the remedy is no part of the contract. Wood et al. v. Child et al. 209.

9. A contract will not be enforced, which grows immediately out of, or is connected
with, an illegal or immoral act. And this, if the contract be in part only con-

nected with the illegal transaction ; though it be a new contract, it is equally

tainted. Nash v. Monheimer, 215.

10. The words " good current money," in a contract, will be understood to mean
the coin of the constitution, or foreign coins made current by the act of Con-
gress, unless it appears those terms have a different local signification. Moore
V. Morris, 255.

11. If the person who is to pay under such a contract is led to suppose, by the

declarations of the other party, that other money than coin will be received,

he should, upon a refusal to take paper money, be allowed a reasonable time
within which to procure coin. Ibid. 255.

12. Where a party agreed, without any time being specified, to procure a deed to

a piece of land from another pei'son, and failed to jjerform, the measure of

damages will be the value of the land at the time the person for whom the

title was to be obtained, was notified that it could not be procured. Gale v.

Dean, 320.

13. Where interviews were had by a third person, with the contracting parties, in

relation to procuring said deed, the statements made to such third party and
b}^ him communicated to those in interest, may be considered as having been
made directly to them. Ibid. 320.

14. If a party contracts in writing to work for another a certain length of time, and
afterwards to perform other work upon specified terms, for which he was to
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be compensated by a colt and cow, if he refuses to perform, the other party
may take him at his word, and the claim to the animals will be lost. Schoon-

over V. Christie, 426.

15. Where a special contract to deliver stone is entered into between two parties,

and they agree that a third party may perform the contract, that third party
may sue as on an original undertaking. Dunshee v. Hill, 499.

16. Where, by an agreement, both parties are mutually bound, each to the other,

to perform at the same time ; as the one to deliver hogs, and the other to pay
for them on delivery ; neither can sue on the contract until the property is de-

livered, or until the price therefor is ready and offered to be paid, or a reason-

able demand for the delivery of the property. Hungate v. Rankin, etc. 639.

17. The law presumes that a contract between the parties expresses the whole
agreement between them. Farrar, etc. v. Hindi, etc. 646.

See Pkomissort Note,

COPARTNEKS.

1. If a person suffers his name to be used in a business, or holds himself out as a

copartner, he will be so regarded, whatever may be the agreement between
himself and the other copartners. Fisher v. Bowles, 396.

See Paetneks. Partnership.

CORPORATIONS.

1. To prove the existence of a corporation, it is sufficient to produce the charter,

and prove acts done under it, and in conformity with it. Written proof that

all the preliminary steps, etc., were taken, is not necessai-y. Town of Mendota
V. Thompson, 197.

2. A corporation, acting as such, cannot be questioned collaterally on the ground
that it has not complied with its charter. Ibid. 197.

3. A municipal corporation is not dissolved because, at its organization, persons

not eligible were elected trustees. If their authority is questioned, it should

be by quo warranto. Ibid. 197.

4. If a deed has been given to one corporation, and assigned by it to another, or

if the name of the corporation has been changed, proof of such averments
must be made where the plea of the general issue has been interposed. The
Joliet and Northern Indiana Railroad Company v. Jones, 221.

5. In an action against a stockholder in a company organized under the act of

10th Pebruary, 1849, for manufacturing purposes, etc., to hold him under the

tenth section of the act, there should be an averment of the amount of stock

held by him. If to be held liable under the eighteenth section, there should

be an averment that the debt was due to the laborers, etc., of the company.
If to be held liable under the twenty-second and twenty-third sections, there

should be an averment that the indebtedness of the company exceeded its

capital stock, etc. Sherman v. Smith et al. 350.

6. Although a railroad charter requires that each subscriber shall pay ten per

cent, at the time of his subscription, on a suit against a subscriber to enforce

payment of a subscription, it need not be averred in the declaration that such

per centage (vas paid. Such fact is a matter of averment in defense. Illinois

River Railroad Company v. Zimmer, 654.

7. Tlie fact of non-payment of such per centage would not relieve the subscriber

from liability. Ibid. 654.

8. An act of incorporation may be amended by the legislature, and if the amend-
ment is accepted by the directors, the stockholders under the original act,

unless otherwise stated, will be held liable. The only question for considera-

tion, is whether the value of the stock as an investment will probably be ben-

efited thereby. Ibid. 654.

9. An acceptance of an amendment to a charter may be manifested, by the stock-

holders, by the managers of the company, or by user of and action under

such amendments. Ibid. 654.

See Negligence. Damages. Railroads, 1, 2. Warehouseman, 1, 2.

Towns and Cities.
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COSTS.

1. Expenses attending an assessment of damages in acquiring right of way, include

costs, but these are on the same footing as the damages ; they are to be paid

before the land condemned can be taken. Execution does not issue for such
costs. Chicago and Milwaukee Railroad Company v. Bull, 218.

2. If the bill of exceptions includes the pleadings of the parties, the costs of so

much of the record as contains these pleadings in the bill should be taxed
against the party who caused their insertion. The Joliet and Northern Indiana

Railroad Company v. Jones, 221.

3. The judgment for costs is an incident of the judgment. Sevei'al defendants,

when convicted, are severally liable for all the costs made by the people in the

trial of their several causes, but not for such costs as are made to prociire the

conviction of a co-criminal in the same indictment. Moody v. The People, 315.

4. Where estray animals are taken up and appraised, etc., in conformity to law, if

the owner claims them, he is liable for the costs incurred, as well as for the

expense of keeping the animals. Mahler v. Holden, 363.

5. Under the twenty-third section of Chapter 26, of Eevised Statutes of 1845,

entitled " Costs," if a fee bill is improperly taxed, the court is not required to

quash the fee bill, or to impose any fine or penalty on the clerk, beyond the

forfeiture of his fees of taxation, and the refunding of the amount wrongfully

received on the fee bill. Herod et al. v. Laivler, etc. 610.

6. Under the twenty-seventh section of Chapter 41, of Revised Statutes of 1845,

entitled " Eees and Salaries," the clerk will only be required to restore the

money collected on the illegal item. Ibid. 610.

7. The clerk may properly charge for the entry of each order or judgment under
the same caption, when said judgments or orders might have been properly

entered under separate captions. Ibid. 610.

See Circuit Court, 4.

COUNTY—COUNTY SEAT.

1. The sheriff is not compelled to keep an office open at the county seat. He is

permitted to occupy a room in the court-house, if he chooses to do so. He is

not obliged to provide for the accommodation of the public, and the county is

not liable to pay for his lights, fuel, etc. Armsby v. Warren County, 126.

2. Upon the question of relocating a county seat, if the law only authorizes the

clerk to canvass the votes cast on the question of relocation, and certify the

result, without regard to other votes cast at the same election, he cannot give

a certificate which will aftord legal evidence that the county seat has been
changed, in conformity with the requirements of the constitution. People ex

rel. V. Warjeld, 159.

3. A majority of the legal votes cast at a voting for a relocation of a county seat,

is sufficient to determine the question. If tlie law authorizing the vote does
not provide for determining the question, the courts may do so on proper
application. Ibid. 159.

COURTS.

Where the court which tries a case has jurisdiction of the person and the subject
matter, it will be presumed that the proceedings in it were regular; and
another court will not inquire into them collaterally. Cody v. Hough, 43.

Where a statute has empowered a court of general jurisdiction to call special

terms, it will be presumed, if a record recites that the court convened in pursu-
ance of the order of the judge heretofore made of record, that a special term
was in conformity to law. Cook v. Skelton, 107.

The judge of a Circuit Court has power to adjourn its sessions for such short
periods as in his discretion may seem proper, and an adjournment over two
davs is not error. Ibid. 107.
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4. Courts may assess damages on a certificate of deposit, payable in cun-ency.

Swift et al. V. Whitney et al. 144.

5. On an appeal from a trial before a justice of the peace, as to the right of prop-

erty, the appellant may amend his appeal bond in the appellate court, if he
has in good faith attempted to execute a valid bond. Patti/ v. Winchester, 261.

6. Courts vested with the power to issue the writ of mandamus, are all of them
superior courts of unlimited jurisdiction. School Inspectors, etc. v. People, etc. 525.

7. A writ of mandamus should show that the relator has no other remedy. It is

only granted in extraordinary cases, where, without it, there would be a failure

of justice. If the party has sought, or may seek, other means of redress, this

writ should be denied. Ibid. 525.

8. In construing grants of power to inferior courts, nothing is to be held as granted
by implication, save only what is necessary to a full exercise of their general
powers. Ibid. 525.

9. The courts will not interfere with the discretion vested in the School Inspectors,

unless they attempt a plain violation of the law. Ibid. 525.

10. The Peoria County Court has no power to award a writ of mandamus. Ibid. 525.

11. The Cook County Court of Common Pleas and the Circuit Coui't have juris-

diction to render judgments for taxes and assessments ; but the County Court,

unless extraordinaiy powers have been conferred upon it, has not. City of
Chicago V. Colby, 614.

See Circuit Court. Supreme Court.

CRIMINAL LAW.

1. In an indictment for kidnapping, an aifidavit for a continuance should show the

particular fact or facts which can be proven by the absent witness, and in what
way those facts are material. Moody v. The People, 315.

2. In such a case it is not necessary that physical force be used ; it will be sufficient

to show that the mind was operated upon, by falsely exciting the fears, by the

use of threats, or other undue influence, amounting substantially to a coercion

of the will, as a substitute for violence. Ibid. 315.

3. In coming to a conclusion in such a case, the jury should take into considera-

tion the condition of the person kidnapped, her age, education and condition

of mind, and all the circumstances connected with the transaction, as detailed

by the proof. Ibid. 315.

4. The judgment for costs is an incident of the judgment. Several defendants,

when convicted, are severally liable for all the costs made by the people in the

trial of their several causes, but not for such costs as are made to procure the

conviction of a co-criminal in the same indictment. Ibid. 315.

5. Where the witnesses may be mistaken in identifying the accused, by reason of a
slight acquaintance with him, and an alibi is clearly proven by other witnesses,

who give their residence and occupation, so that the truth or falsity of their

statements may be inquired into on another trial, the court will give the

accused the benefit of a second trial. Lincoln et al. v. The People, 364.

6. Before a party can be tried on an indictment, it must appear from the record

that it was returned into open court. Gardner v. The People, 430.

7. Because an incorporated city is authorized to pass ordinances in relation to the

sale of spirituous liquors, declaring such sale a nuisance, the general law is not

thereby repealed. AV^hile a license from city authorities would protect the

holder of it, yet if those authorities fail or refuse to grant a license, the general

law would be violated by a sale in the city limits, and the aggressor may be

punished under it. Ibid. 430.

CURRENT MONEY.

1. The words, " good current money," in a contract, will be imdcrstood to mean
the coin of the constitution, or foreign coins made current by act of Congress,

unless it appears those terms have a different local signification. 31oore v.

Morris, 255.

45
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2. If a person who is to pay under such a contract is led to suppose, by the decla-

rations of the other party, that other money than coin will be received, he
should, upon a refusal to take paper money, be allowed a reasonable time
within which to procure coin. Ibid. 255.

DAMAGES.

1. In an action upon a promissory note, where the defendant pleads partial failure

of consideration, by alleging that the note was given for spokes and hubs,

which were warranted to be well seasoned, it is erroneous to refuse to let the

defendant ask questions of a witness to elicit evidence tending to show a breach

of the warranty. Woodwortli et al. v. Woodburn et al. 184.

2. Special damages in such a case cannot be shown, unless specially claimed by
the pleadings. Ibid. 184.

3. The measure of damages in the breach of such a warranty, is the difference in

value between those delivered and those contracted for. Ibid. 184.

4. Where an action is commenced in replevin, but is changed to trover under the

authoiity of the statute, the rule of damages which governs in actions of trover

will control. McGavock v. Chamherlain, 219.

5. Juries may give exemplary damages in cases of willful negligence or malice, if

the proof exhibits such a state of case. Peoria Bridge Ass'n v. Loomis, 235.

6. To constitute willful negligence, the act done, or omitted, must be the result of

intention. Mere neglect cannot ordinarily be ranked as willfulness. Ibid. 235.

7. The proprietors of a bridge, if it should be applied to the uses of a railroad,

should provide increased guards against consequential new dangers. Ibid. 235.

8. In actions for negligence, that the plaintiff, if not wholly free from fault, must
be, as compared to the negligence of the defendants, so much less culpable as

to incline the balance in his favor, both being in some fault. Ibid. 235.

9. Where there is an absence of proof of willful negligence, and no foundation for

the damages awarded, and the finding of the jury manifests feeling and pre-

judice, the verdict will be set aside, ibid. 235.

10. The rule of damages for personal injuries resulting from the negligence of

others, is measured by the loss of time and expense incurred in respect of it;

the pain and suffering undergone; permanent injuries sustained; impairing
future usefulness, and consequent pecuniary loss. Ibid. 235.

11. Where a horse, sold as sound, proves to be otherwise, is returned to the vendor
by the purchaser, in an action by the purchaser, the measure of damages is

the price paid for the horse. If he is not returned, it is the difference between
his real value and the price given. Morgan v. Ryerson, 343.

12. It is negligence for a party, in hanging a sign on a windy day, in a city, upon
an active thoroughfare, to use a swinging stage for the purpose, that has not a
rim, or some other preventive against the sliding off of tools, which may occa-

sion injury to passers on the street. Hunt v. Hoyt et ux. 544.

13. A person injured by reason of such negligence may recover for the length of

time the sickness continued, as a component part of her claim. Ibid. 544.

See Common Cakriees. Justices of the Peace, 4. Trespass, 3, 4.

Slander. Inquest. Practice.

DECEEE.
See Chancery.

DEEDS.

1. Ancient deeds will not be admitted, as evidence, without proof of their execu-

tion in some way which shall be satisfactory to the court. The party produc-

ing such papers must do everything in his power to raise a presumption in

favor of their genuineness. Smith v. Rankin, 14.

2. An acknowledgment of a deed, by a notary public of another State, without a seal

or certificate of his appointment, will be altogether invalid. Booth v. Cook, 129.

3. A party may not state in general terms that it is not in his power to produce a
deed ; but he must give such detailed circumstances, in relation to the search
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foi* it, and the probabilities of its loss, as will convince the judgment of the
court of its actual loss, or of the inability of the party to produce it. Ibid. 129.

4. A court has no power to reform the deed of a married M'oman, for any mistake
in its provisions. Moidton et iix. v. Hurd, 137.

5. Where the clerk of a court of record of another State, certifies that the acknowl-
edgment to a copy of a recorded deed, was, when it was taken to the original,

in conformity with the laws of such State, and that the person who took it

was then a justice of the peace, it will be sufficient ; although the certificate of
conformity bears date the seventh of August, 1855, and the acknowledgment
the fourteenth of July, 1821. Dunlap v. Daugherty et al. 397.

6. That the justice who took the acknowledgment, was such, and acted in Wind-
ham county, Connecticut, will be presumed, where the grantor is described in

the deed as residing in the same county, and the county is named in the cap-
tion of the certificate. Ibid. 397.

See Acknowledgment of Deeds.

DEFAULT.

1. A default admits the material allegations of a declaration, and the only question

remaining for trial is the amount of damages. On this investigation the de-

fendant has not the right to give any evidence that will defeat the action, but
only sitch as tends to reduce the damages. Cook v. Skelton, 107.

2. Where three are sued, and service is only upon two, and no appearance for all,

judgment cannot go against all. Sivift et al. v. Green et al. 173.

3. A party who does not enter an appearance, but permits his name to be called

^^^ and a default to be entered, if he attempts to avoid the default by unfairly

getting a plea into the record, must see that his pleading is in every particular

accurate, so that it will not require extraneous proof to identify it, or the de-

fault will not be set aside, and the judgment will be sustained. Swits et al. t.

Carver et al. 578.

See Summons, 3.

DEMUERER.
See Pleading, 13.

DEPOSITIONS.

See Evidence, 17. Pkacticb.

DEVISOR AND DEVISEE. ''

1. Where a testator bequeathes land to his wife and two other persons, and to the

survivor or survivors of them, to have and to hold until his youngest child

should, if a male, attain twenty-one, or if a female, eighteen years of age, in

trust for all his surviving children, their heirs and assigns, as tenants in com-
mon, all of the children of the testator living at the time of his death, became
his devisees. Hempstead et al.\. Dickson, 193.

2. And the devisees, at the death of the testator, took a vested fee simple estate in

the land, subject to the trust estate created by the will, which they might alien-

ate, and which was descendible to their heirs ; and also subject to sale and
execution, subject to the trust term. Ibid. 193.

DILIGENCE.

See Indorsee— Indorsee, 6, 7, 8.

DIVISION FENCE.

1. A partition fence, whether existing by agreement, by acquiescence, or under the

statute, cannot be removed until the parties interested in its remaining are

properly notified of the intended removal. McCormick v. Tate, 334.

2. The case of Buckmaster v. Coole, in 12th 111. R. 76, considered and approved.

Ibid. 334.
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EJECTMENT.

1. A party who insists that land was bought for him in the narae of another, who
loaned the money at usurious rates, must connect innocent purchasex's with a
knowledge of such facts ; and if he has been ejected from the premises without
setting up such facts in his defense as a notice to others, and has abandoned
the premises, declaring an intention to forego all claim thereto, he cannot
have an equitable right to pursue subsequent purchasers and recover the land.

Ferguson et al. v. Tathnadge, 581.

See Mortgage, 7. Taxes. Claim and Color op Title.

ELECTION.

1. A poll-book which shows the election of a school trustee for a town, by name,
may be good, by proving that the town named and the congressional town
were the same territory, and that the former trustees had, before the election,

ordered that the school business of the township should be done under the

particular name stated in the poll-book. People, etc. v. Brewer, 474.

2. The postponement of an election of a school trustee is wrong. If within the

time required by law a sufficient number of qualified voters organized and
held an election, the person so elected will hold his office, notwithstanding an
adjournment of the election at another hour in the day. Ibid. 474.

3. It will be intended that the election was in the proper county, if the returns

were made to the school commissioner of the county, although the oath of the

officer does not in the jurat or elsewhere show the name of the county. Ibid.

474.

EQUITY OF EEDEMPTION.

1. An equity of redemption in land, is a saleable interest, on execution. Curtis v.

Root, 53.

ERROR.

1. Where there is evidence to support a verdict, this court will not be inclined to

disturb it ; unless it is manifestly against its weight. Bush v. Kindred, 93.

2. It is error to try a cause in which a demurrer remains undisposed of. Chapman
V. Wright, 120.

3. In an action of debt the judgment should not be in damages. Ibid. 120.

4. Conflicting testimony is left to the jury, and it is the province of that body to

weigh it, and unless some gross wrong is perpetrated by the jury, the verdict
will not be disturbed. Carpenter \. Anibroson, 170.

5. Unless a verdict is manifestly against the weight of evidence, it will not be
disturbed. Goodellr. Woodruff, 191.

6. Where the complainant in a bill in chancery dies, and a decree is entered abat-
ing that suit, and the administrator of the deceased complainant files another
bill in the Cii'cuit Court which is pending, if a writ of error is sued out, in-

tended to reverse the judgment abating the first suit, the writ of error will be
abated on a plea filed showing the facts. Ca7T, Administrator, v. Casey et al.

637.

See Evidence, 3. Bill of Exceptions.

i:STRAYS.

1. Where estray animals are taken up and appraised, etc., in conformity to law, if the

owner claims them, he is liable for the costs incurred, as well as for the expense
of keeping the animals. Mahler v. Holden, 363.
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EVIDENCE.

1. In an action to recover for lost baggage, it is no objection to the witness that
some of the articles lost may have been in his trunk, or that he may have had
articles of his own in the baggage lost. Parmelee v. Austin, 35.

2. Circuit Courts must be allowed the exercise of a large discretion on the subject
of leading questions. Ibid. 35.

3. It is not error to allow the statements of an agent, made at the time of the sale
of personal property, to be given in evidence. Gilson v. Wood, 37.

4. A copy of a city ordinance, certified in conformity with the charter, is proper
evidence of the existence of such ordinance, in a suit where the city is a
party. Pendergast v. City of Peru, 51.

5. In a suit for violating a city ordinance, by selling liquor without a license, if

the defendant stated that the city charged too much for license, and that he
could not afford to pay the license, and pleads guilty to the charge of violating
the ordinance, it will be held that the fact is established that he had not a
license, that he had sold liquor, and that his plea of guilty had reference to
that offense, although the ordinance contained other provisions of prohibition
and. other penalties. Ibid. 51.

6. The indorser of a note, without recourse to himself, is a competent witness to
prove a promise of the maker of a note so as to take it out of the statute of
limitations. Merritt v. Merritt, 65.

7. The common law of another State may be proved by parol. Ibid. 65.

8. On a submission to arbitrators of all the claims of A and B, upon C, for work,
etc., done on certain buildings, for C, some of which work C said was defect-

ively done, it was competent for the arbitrators to admit A and B, to prove
that C had not furnished certain materials within the time agreed upon by
him, and that therefore the defect occurred. Waughop v. Carter et al. 111.

9. Certificates of deposit are admissible as evidence under the common counts.

Swift et ul. V. Whitney et al. 144.

10. It is not erroneous to refuse to permit a witness to answer a question which
assumes that an arrangement had been made where none had been shown.
Carpenter v. Ambroson, 1 70.

1 1

.

A conversation between a witness and the plaintiff to a suit, long before the
occurrence of the matters in dispute, is not proper evidence. Ibid. 170.

12. Conflicting testimony is left to the jury, and it is the province of that body to

weigh it, and unless some gross wrong is perpetrated by the jury, the verdict

will not be disturbed. Ibid. 170.

13. If the public is to be charged with the abandonment of a road, the proof of
the fact must be accompanied by the further proof that another road has been
adopted in its stead. Champlin v. Morgan, 181.

14. A public road, established by public authority, continues as such until it shall

be vacated by a like authorit}^ Ibid. 181.

15. In an action upon a promissory note, where the defendant pleads partial failure

of consideration, by alleging that the note was given for spokes and hubs,

which were warranted to be well seasoned, it is erroneous to refuse to let the

defendant ask questions of a witness to elicit evidence tending to show a

breach of the warranty. Woodworth et al. v. Woodburn et al. 1 84.

16. Special damages in such a case cannot be shown, unless specially claimed by
the pleadings. Ibid. 184.

17. The measure of damages in the breach of such a warranty, is the difference in

value between those delivered and those contracted for. Ibid. 184.

18. A party ma}"- take a second deposition from a witness, without leave for that

purpose ; but it is discretionary with the court to say, which shall be read.

Beach et al. v. Schmidts, 185.

19. The statutes of a foreign State cannot be proved by parol. But the construc-

tion given to such statutes by the tribunals where they are in force, may be

given in evidence by witnesses learned in such laws. Hoes v. Van Alstyne, etc.

201.
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20. A release under seal, executed to a party in settlement, the party receiving it

promising to get certain notes signed by a security, which he attempted to do,

but failed in his efforts, will be good against the releasor, no fi-aud appearing
in the transaction. The party might be liable, if sued upon a breach of the

contract. Kingsley v. Kingsley, 203.

21. If a deed has been given to one corporation, and assigned by it to another, or

if the name of the corporation has been changed, proof of such averments
must be made where the plea of the general issue has been interposed. The
JolietSc Northern Indiana Railroad Company v. Jones, 221.

22. Where interviews were had by a third person, with the contracting parties, in

relation to procuring a deed, the statements made to such third party and by
him communicated to those in interest, may be considered as having been
made directly to them. Gale v. Dean, 320.

23. In an action for libel, the defendants being publishers of a newspaper, cannot
show that a similar publication to that complained of, had shortly previous ap-

peared in another newspaper. Sheahan et al. v. Collins, 325.

24. The general character of the plaintiff may be shown, but witnesses could
not be permitted to give in detail all the reports in circulation to his prejudice.

Ibid. 325.

25. The plea of the general issue admits that the plaintiff was innocent of the

charges against him, of which he complains. Ibid. 325.

26. A defendant in such a case may show, in mitigation of damages, the general
bad character of the plaintiff, and may show any fact which tends to disprove

malice. Ibid. 325.

27. The truth of a libel can only be shown under a plea of justification. Ibid. 325.

28. It is not necessary, in oi'der to find a defendant guilty of selling spirituous

liquors in contravention of a city ordinance, that the liquor was handed to per-

sons who asked for it, and that it was paid for, or charged to some one. Kim-
hall V. The People, 348.

29. Verbal testimony showing when suit was brought, when declaration was filed,

and when judgment was rendered against the maker of a note, is incompetent.

Sherman v. Smith et al. 350.

30. The general issue against a member of a corporation, renders proof necessary
that the defendant was a stockholder. Ibid. 350.

31. The indorsement of a name of a person on the back of an indictment as a wit-

ness, is no sufficient evidence that such person was the prosecutor. Nor to

establish this character need his name appear on the indictment in any way.
The agency of a party as prosecutor may be established otherwise. Hwd v.

Shaw, 354.

32. In a case for malicious prosecution, it must be shown that a prosecution has
been tried on its merits ; that the defendant was the prosecutor; that he was
actuated by malice, and that there was a want of probable cause, or of that

reasonable ground of suspicion a cautious man would entertain on the facts of
a given case. Ibid. 354.

33. The granting of letters testamentary, under the act of 4th March, 1837, which
provides for the election of probate justices of the peace, was a ministerial

act ; and it is competent to prove, by other than record evidence, that some of

the persons named in the letters testamentaiy, refused to act as executors.

Ayres v. Clinefelter, 465.

34. Where a commission issues to Jasper E. Brady, to take the testimony of J.

Gardner Coffin, if he signs it, J. E. Brady, commissioner, and certifies that he
has executed the commission by taking the deposition of J. G. CoflSn, the

identity of the parties will be presumed. Curtiss v. Martin, etc. 557.

35. When it is doubtful whether the contract was intended to bind the principal or

the agent, extrinsic evidence may be received to ascertain the intention.

Ohio and Mississippi Railroad Company v. Middleton et al. 629.

36. The ratification by the principal of a contract of the agent, amounts to a

waiver by the principal of a want of authority in the agent. Ibid. 629.

37. The admissions of a nominal plaintiff will be received to bind a beneficial one,

if they were made in the presence of a beneficial plaintiff, and he does not



INDEX. 687

contradict them. And if the nominal plaintiiF acts as agent, the beneficial

plaintiff will be bound by the admissions of the agent, within the scope of his

authority. Hungate v. Rankin, etc. 639.

38. In an action upon notes given for a patent right, for which a deed was ex-
ecuted, expressing the consideration for the notes, it is incompetent for the
defendant to show by parol evidence that anything else than was expressed in

the deed was to be conveyed by it. Farrar, etc. v. Hinch, etc. 646.

See New Trial, 1. Chancery, 3,4. Ancient Deeds, 1.

EXECUTION.

1. An equity of redemption in land is a saleable interest on execution. '

Curtis v.

Root, 53.

2. An execution against one of several tenants in common cannot be levied upon
personal property held in common with others ; the proper way is to make a
levy upon the interest only of the judgment debtor. Nearij v. Cahill, etc. 214.

See Eight or "Way. Sheriffs' Sale.

FAILURE OF CONSIDERATION.

1. In a plea of failure of consideration, alleging that land sold the maker of a note
had on it but sixteen hundred cords of wood instead of twenty-four hundred
cords, it should be shown that the deficiency in the quantity of wood was
equal in value to the note sued on, or the plea will be bad. Baldwin v.

Banks et al. 48.

' See Practice, 42. Pleading, 22.

.

' FATHER AND CHILD.

See Parent.

FEES.

1. Under the twenty-third section of Chapter 26, of Revised Statutes of 1845, en-

titled " Costs," if a fee bill is improperly taxed, the court is not required to

quash the fee bill, or to impose any fine or penalty on the clerk, beyond the

forfeiture of his fees of taxation, and the refunding of the amount wrongfully

received on the fee bill. Herod et al. v. Laioler, etc. 610.

2. Under the twenty-seventh section of Chapter 41, of Revised Statutes of 1845,

entitled " Fees and Salaries," the clerk will only be required to restore the

money collected on the illegal item. Ibid. 610.

3. The clerk may properly charge for the entry of each order or judgment under

the same caption, when said judgments or orders might have been properly

entered under separate captions. Ibid. 610.

See Right of Way.

FEMALES.

See Deed. Husband and Wife.

FEMME COVERT.

1. Where, in an action of covenant upon a lease, the parties lessors being some of

them femmes covert, the lease is set out in hcec verba, the peculiar interest of

the femmes covert is exhibited by the lease, without any special averment ; and
the lessees having admitted a special interest in these parties by taking the

lease, are estopped from denying it. Doggett et al. v. JSorton et al. 332.

FENCE.

See Division Fence.
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FERRY.

1. Where a party who had been keeping a ferry near to another ferry, leased his

boat to be used by the person keeping the other ferry, he will not be held liable

for an accident occurring on the boat while in the use of another. Clayppol

et al. V. McAllister et al. 504.

2. Nor will the party who owned the boat be liable for not maintaining a ferry,

in an action on the case for an injury to animals, while the boat was in the
use of another ferry keeper. Ibid. .504.

3. A ferryman has the absolute right to direct what position each person shall

take on the boat, without reference to priority of arrival at the ferry. If a
party shall not be ferried in proper time, he must seek his remedy by action.

Ibid. 504.

FIDUCIARIES.

See Husband and Wife. Deed, 4.

FORFEITURE.

1. In cases of forfeiture of a lease for non-payment of rent, there must be a
demand at the time fixed, or the forfeiture will not accrue. Chapman v.

Wright, 120.

2. A party proceeding for a penalty must show that he is entitled to recover, by a
strict compliance, on his part, with all the requirements of law. Ibid. 120,

See Lease.

FRAUD—FRAUDS AND PERJURIES.

1. Under the statute of frauds and perjuries, it must be the intent of both parties

to a conveyance, in order to render it void, to practice a fraud ; that it has the

effect to delay and hinder creditors, does not bring it within the statute.

Ewing V. Runkle, 448.

2. The conveyance to be void, must be contrived of malice, etc. ; if it is made by
the consent of other creditors besides the grantee, duly acknowledged and re-

corded, absolute on its face, without any secret trust, it will be good, although
the grantee is first to be paid, and the residue of the proceeds of the property
is to be divided among other creditors of the grantor. Ibid. 448.

3. Where one of several creditors, by consent of others, took a bill of sale from a
failing debtor, of certain personal property which was scattered, with the

agreement that he was to collect the property, be paid his expenses in doing
so, and out of the proceeds pay his whole debt, and divide the surplus among
the consenting creditors, the transaction being in good faith, it was held that

the contract was not within the statute of frauds and perjuries, that the taking
a judgment by this creditor did not defeat the agreement, and that the con-

senting creditors were bound by it, and that the property acquired by the bill

of sale, before any liens attached, should be protected in the creditor.

Ibid. 448.

4. A clause in a deed of assignment, that the assignee covenants and agrees to

execute the trust faithfully, according to the stipulations therein contained,

being responsible only for his actual receipts and willful defaults, makes the

deed fraudulent and void. Mclntire, etc. v. Benson et al. 500.

FRAUDULENT CONVEYANCE.

1. Under the statute of frauds and perjuries, it must be the intent of both parties

to a conveyance, in order to render it void, to practice a fraud ; that it has
the effect to delay and hinder creditors, does not bring it within the statute.

Ewing v. Runkle, 448.
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2. The conveyance to be void, must be contrived of malice, etc. ; if it is made by
the consent of other creditors besides the grantee, duly acknowledged and re-

corded, absolute on its face, without any secret trust, i"t will be good, although
the grantee is first to be paid, and the residue of the proceeds of the property
is to be divided among other creditors of the grantor. Ibid. 448.

3. Where one of several creditors, by consent of others, took a bill of sale from a
failing debtor, of certain personal property which was scattered, with the
agreement that he was to collect the property, be paid his expenses in doing
so, and out of the proceeds pay his whole debt, and divide the surplus among
the consenting creditors, the transaction being in good faith, it was held that

the contract was not within the statute of frauds and perjuries, that the taking

a judgment by this creditor did not defeat the agreement, and that the con-

senting creditors were bound by it, and that the property acquired by the

[ bill of sale, before any liens attached, should be protected in the creditor.

Ibid. 448.

See Fkaud, 4.

GUAKANTOK.

1. Where a party has disposed of property, being misled by the false pretenses of

the purchaser, and has taken a note for the payment, and is about to reclaim it

from the vendee, if a third party, upon being informed of tlie facts, puts his

name to the note as security, two days after it was given, by reason wliereof

the property is not reclaimed, such third party will be liable in an action on
the note. Harwood v. Kiersted, 367.

HEIRS.

Sec Wills and Testaments.

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS.

1. If the public is to be charged with the abandonment of a road, tiic proof of the

fact must be accompanied by the further proof that another road has been
adopted in its stead. Champlin v. Morgan, 181.

2. A public road, established by public authority, continues as such until it shall

be vacated by a like authority. Ibid. 181.

HUSBAND AND WIFE.

1. A court has no poAver to reform the deed of a married woman for any mistake

in its provisions. Moultonet ux.\. Hurd, 137.

Sec Landlord and Tenant, 1.

INDICTMENT.

See Criminal Law.

INDORSER— INDORSEE.

1. A third indorsee may maintain a suit against a second indorsee upon a note

which has passed through his hands without his indorsement, and is subse-

cj[uently assigned to him. Roberts v. Haskell, 59.

2. Where a part}"- suing an indorsee has to show the insolvency of the maker of

the note, and attempts to prove the existence of a mortgage against him, he
must have made reasonable efforts to procure the original ; the introduction of

a copy, without showing this, is improper. Ibid. 59.

3. If the maker of a note, where one indorsee is sued by another, had property not

exempt from execution, at the time or soon after the note became due, sufficient

to have paid it, the presumption is, that the note could have been collected of

the maker. Ibid. 59.

46
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The indorser of a note without recourse, is competent to prove a promise to

pay by the maker, so as to take it out of the statute of limitations. Meiritt

V. Merritt, 65.

The indorser of a note, when sued, may shoAV in defense, that if the maker had
been sued in some other court of competent jurisdiction, as before a justice of
the peace, instead of in the Circuit Court, that a judgment could sooner have
been obtained against him and been satisfied, and thus relieve the indorser

from liability. Allison v. Smith, 104.

In order to recover of the indorser of a note, it must be made to appear that

the maker was sued in good time, and that collection of the judgment against
him was pursued with proper diligence ; and if from the want of diligence the

money was not, when it might have been, made from the maker, the assignor
is released. Nixon v. WeyJmch, 600.

The diligence required in making the collection from the maker of the note,

is such as a prudent man would use in the conduct of his own affairs.

Ibid. 600.

If by the exercise of reasonable diligence, property of the maker of a note
might have been found, sufficient to satisfy the debt, then the indorser is re-

leased. Ibid. 600.

See Pleading, 18. Pkojiissory Note, 13.

INJUNCTION.

Where it appears that in June, 1835, A and B had improvements upon public

land which entitled them to a preemption, which they sold and conveyed to C,
selling all the right they then had or might acquire, they binding themselves

to pay the government the price of the land ; that in 1842, D, a brother of A
and B, obtained a certificate by preemption in his own name, but represented

to C, that he, D, liad been put to trouble and expense to procure his title,

whereupon C paid to D the full amount of such trouble and expense, and
took a receipt therefor, and A, B, and D, occupied the land as tenants of C,
and that D conveyed a part of said land to A : held, that an injunction would
lie, to prevent further sales of the land, and that the prayer of the bill, asking
a conveyance to C, and for general relief, should not be dismissed upon
demurrer, and that the sale and subsequent ratification of it were not in viola-

tion of any law at the time they were made. May v. Si/mmes et al. 95.

A sold a lot of railroad ties to B, who again sold them to C, who confused
them with other tics laid upon a road bed. A notified C that the ties belonged
to him, and C thereupon refused to pay B for them. B then sued C, and ob-

tained a judgment against him for the value of the ties. A then filed his

bill, alleging fraud, etc., in B, and obtained a perpetual injunction against C,
restraining him from paying the judgment in favor of B, and commanding
the sherift' to collect it for the benefit of A : held, that C should have made
this defense at law in the action brought by B, and that it was not a proper
exercise of chancery powers to interfere witli the collection of a judgment,
fairly obtained as between the parties to it. Scott v. Whitlow, 310.

A court of equity is not alwa3'S bound to act, even where it has authority.

Ibid. 310.

Sec Judgment, 2, 4.

INJURIES.

See Negligence. Damage.

INQUEST.

1 A court, on overruling a demurrer, if the party pleading it does not ask to plead

over, may give judgment against the defendant and call a jury to assess the

damages. Toiun of S. Ottawa v. Foster, 296.
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2. On an inquest of damages, a defendant is not permitted to introduce a substan-
tive defense. He may cross-examine a witness of the plaintiff to overthrow a
direct examination, but nothing further. He may also introduce witnesses to

reduce the amount of the recovery. If the inquest is taken in open court, he
may ask for instructions. Ibid. 296.

INSOLVENT DEBTOE.

1

.

Where an appeal is taken to the Circuit Court, from the discharge, by the
county judge, of a person under our insolvent act, it is the duty of the insolv-

ent to attend the Circuit Court and submit to an examination ; and if he
fails to attend, the cause should be continued on application of the appellant.

Cooky et al. v. Cultoii, 40.

2. A debtor in failing circumstances may make an assignment for the benefit of

his creditors, and if fairly done, it passes the title to his property to his

assignee. The question of fairness of the transaction, is one of fact, for the

finding of the jury, and the finding of the jviry, when the question is properly
submitted, will not be disturbed. Wilson v. Pearson, etc. 81.

3. Where an assignment by such a creditor covers only personal property, it need
not be recorded, if possession accompanies the assignment. Ibid. 81.

4. Whether certain facts would have the legal effect of an abandonment of an
assignment, may or may not be conclusive ; they should be accompanied with
an intention to abandon, and that intention should be left to the jury for de-

cision. Ibid. 81.

INSTRUCTIONS.

1. It is objectionable that instructions should be drawn at great length, and have
" injected " into them an argument of the case. They should be concise,

and briefly present the points of law on which the party relies. Merriit v.

Merritt, 65.

2. Instructions, unless based upon evidence, should not be given. Hosley v.

Brooks et ux. 115.

3. In an action of replevin against several, it is erroneous to assume in instruc-

tions to the jury that all are derelict ; it should be left to the jury to say,

whether all the defendants were engaged in taking the projDerty claimed or not.

Dart et al. v. Horn, 212.

4. A jury may be called into court for further instructions, either by agreement of

counsel or at their own request. Lee v. Quirk, 392.

5. In an action to recover for work and labor, an instruction which excludes from
the jury all consideration of the proof of a special contract, is erroneous.

Ibid. 392.

6. When two instructions are asked for, both of which contain the same principle

of law, the court mav give the one and refuse the other. Mai/ v. Tallman,

443.

7. Circuit Courts may refuse to repeat a principle of law which has previously

been fairly stated to the jury. Ibid. 443.

8. Instructions should be so given as not to leave the jurors to conjecture about

the truth, but so as to direct their minds to the facts as proved. Ewbuj v.

Rimkle, 448.

9. An instruction, unless it be upon an abstract proposition of law, must have

some evidence for its foundation, and must spring out naturally from such

evidence. Galena and Chicago Union Railroad Company v. Jacobs, 478.

10. The Circuit Court is not limited to the instructions asked for, but may supply

by its own suggestions any omission of counsel. Ibid. 478.

11. Instructions may be modified, but error may be assigned on the refusal of the

court to give them as asked for. Ibid. 478.

12. Instructions which present the same propositions of law, in nearly the same
tenns, need not all be given. Curtis v. Martin, etc. 557.
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INTEREST.

1. In applying payments, the interest is first to be satisfied, and if tlie payment
exceeds the interest, the balance is to be applied in diminution of the prin-

cipal. If the payment falls short of the interest due, the balance of interest

is not to be added to the principal, but remains as interest, to be satisfied by
the next adecjuate payment. The interest is first to be paid. McFadden v.

Fortier, 509.

INTEELINEATION OF INSTRUMENTS.

1

.

The party receiving a paper interlined in a material part, should see that the

interlineation is noted in the attestation. Such interlineations must be ex-

plained by those who claim tlie benefit of them. Hodge v. Gilnum et al. 437.

2. Where a material alteration appears upon the face of the instrument, the omia

is upon the person holding it, to show that the alteration was made before

attestation, or has been assented to. Ibid. 437.

JOINT STOCK COMPANY.

1. In an action against a stockholder in a company organized under the act of 10th
February, 1849, for manufacturing purposes, etc., to hold him under the tentli

section of the act, there should be an averment of the amount of stock held

by him. If to be held liable under the eighteenth section, there should be an
averment that the debt was due to the laborers, etc., of the company. If to

be held liable under the twenty-second and twenty-third sections, there should

be an averment that the indebtedness of the company exceeded its capital

stock, etc. Sherman v. Smith et al. 350.

See Evidence, 29.

JUDGMENT.

1. Where three are sued, and two only are served, and no appearance for all,

judgment cannot go against all. Swift et al. v. Green et al. 173.

2. The law of 1857, which authorizes the issuing of injunctions to stay proceed-
ings upon judgments by confession under warrants of attorney, upon demands
not due at the time the judgments may be entered, was within the power of
the legislature, and may apply to antecedent judgments or contracts. Wood
et al. V. Child et al. 209.

.3. The law of the remedy is no part of the contract. Ibid. 209.

4. If debts already due, as well as those not due, are included in the same judg-
ment, they will alike fall under the eflfects of the injunction. Ibid. 209.

See Taxes, S, 4.

JUDGMENT DEBTOR AND CREDITOR.

1. A judgment creditor cannot, under any circumstances, redeem from a sheriffs'

sale until after the expiration of twelve months. Armsby v. People ex rel. 155.

See Execution, 2.

JURIES.

1. Instructions should be so given r. ; not to leave the jnrors to conjecture about
the truth, but so as to direct tb.eir minds to the facts as proved. Eioing v.

Runkle, 448.

2. Where parents have been living with a step-son, it is proper for a jury to decide,

upon all the facts, whether the parents were to pay for their board, or whether
they were living upon the hospitality of their relatives. Myers, etc. v. Malcom,
etc. 621.
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JURISDICTION.

1. Where the court which tries a case has jurisdiction of the person and the sub-
ject matter, it will be presumed that the proceedings in it were regular ; and
another court will not inquire into them collaterally. Cody v. Hough, 43.

See Circuit Courts, 3. Justices of the Peace, 1,2, 4, 6.

JUSTICES OF THE PEACE.

1. The court will take notice of a summons issued by a justice of the peace, and
of the indorsements thereon, if set out in a bill of exceptions ; and if thejudo--
ment is for a greater amount than is claimed on the back of the summons and
interest, it is eiToneous and will be reversed. CIdcago, Burlington c^- Quincy
Railroad Company v. Minard, 9.

2. A, being the holder of a note against B, to a larger amount than what A owes
B, A may give credit for the amount due to B, so as thereby to reduce the
demand of A against B, to a sum within the jurisdiction of a justice of the
peace, although the money was not then demandable by B, from A. Korsoshi
V. Fostei; 32.

3. In a proceeding before a justice of the peace, technical accuracy in the form of
the judgment, whether it be in debt or for a penalty, will not be held indis-

pensable. Pendergasty. City oj" Peru, 51

.

4. A party, when sued before a justice of the peace, is not bound to set off unliqui-
dated damages. Such a practice would invest justices of the peace with a
jurisdiction laeyond the statutory limits. Bush v. Kindred, 93.

5. An affidavit before a justice of the peace, which states that a defendant with-
holds his money or secretes his property from the officer, so that the debt can-
not be levied, is insufficient to authorize the arrest of the debtor. Gorton v.

Frizzell, 291.

6. Where a suit is pending before a justice of the peace, arbitrators may be chosen,
and a judgment rendered upon their award; but unless a suit is pending, a
justice cannot acquire jurisdiction. Because a justice of the peace prepares a
submission to arbitrators, the Circuit Court does not thereby get jurisdiction

of the controversy by an appeal. Shirk v. Trainer, 301.

7. In order to authorize the testimony of a plaintiff under the statute, in a suit

originating before a justice of the peace, where a defendant refuses to be sworn,
he must make affidavit that he has a claim or demand against the defendant,
and that he has no witness by whom, or other legal testimony by which, to

establish it. Lee v. Quii'k, 392.

See Practice, 40. Courts, 5.

KIDNAPPING.

1. In a case of kidnapping, it is not necessary that physical force be used ; it will

be sufficient to show that the mind was operated upon, by falsely exciting the

fears, by the use of threats, or other undue influence, amounting substantially

to a coercion of the will, as a substitute for violence. Moody v. The People,

315.

2. In coming to a conclusion in such a case, the jury should take into considera-

tion the condition of the person kidnapped, her age, education and condition

of mind, and all the circumstances connected with the transaction, as detailed

by the proof. Ibid. 315.

LANDLORD AND TENANT.

1. Where, in an action of covenant upon a lease, the parties lessors being some of

them, feimnes covert, the lease is set out in hcec verba, the peculiar interest of

thufcmmes covert is exhibited by the lease, without any special averment; and
the lessees having admitted a special interest in these parties by taking the

lease, are estopped from denying it. Doggett v. Norton et al. 332.

See Lessor and Lessee.
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LEADING QUESTIONS.

See Witness, 2.

LEASE.

1, In cases of forfeiture of a lease for non-payment of rent, there must be a

demand at the time fixed, or the forfeiture will not accrue. Chapman v.

Wright, 120.

2. A party proceeding for a penalty must show that he is entitled to recover, by a

strict*^ compliance, on his part, with all the requirements of law. Ibid. 120.

.3. A railroad company cannot relieve itself from liability by leasing its road

;

especially so where the power to lease is not expressly given by the charter.

Ohio and Mississippi Railroad Company v. Dunbar et al. 623.

See Lessor and Lessee.

LESSOR AND LESSEE.

1. The lessor cannot assign a lease by indorsement, so as to give the assignee such

a legal interest as can be enforced in his name, although the assignee may, in

that way, acquire an equitable title to the rents. Chapman, etc. v. McGrew, 101.

See Landlord and Tenant, 1.

LETTERS TESTAMENTARY.

1. The granting of letters testamentary, under the act of 4th March, 1837, which
provides for the election of probate justices of the peace, was a ministerial

act ; and it is competent to prove, by otlier than record evidence, that some of

the persons named in the letters testamentary, refused to act as executors.

Ayres v. Clinefdter, 465.

LIBEL.

1. In an action for libel, the defendants being publishers of a newspaper, cannot
show that a similar publication to that complained of, had shortly previous ap-

peared in another newspaper. Sheahan v. Collins, 325.

2. The general character of the plaintiff may be shown, but witnesses should not
be permitted to give in detail all the reports in circulation to his prejudice.

Ibid. 325.

3. The plea of the general issue admits that the plaintiff was innocent of the

charges against him, of which he complains. Ibid. 325.

4. A defendant in such a case may show, in mitigation of damages, the general
bad character of the plaintiff, and may show any fact which tends to disprove

malice. Ibid. 325.

5. The truth of a libel can only be shown under a plea of justification. Ibid. 325.

LICENSE.

1. Because an incorporated city is authorized to pass ordinances in relation to the
sale of spirituous liquors, declaring such sale a nuisance, the general law is

not thereby repealed. While a license from city authorities would protect the

holder of it, yet if those authorities fail or refuse to grant a license, the gen-
eral law would be violated by a sale in the city limits, and the aggressor may
be punished under it. Gardner v. The People, 430.

2. A permission to employees of a railroad company to occupy land within the in-

closure of the road of the company, is a permission to special persons, not to

be extended to those not in this relation to the company. Galena and Chicago

Union Railroad Company v. Jacobs, 478.

See Evidence, 27. Crimtnai. Law, 67. Towns and Cities.
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LIEN.

1. A mortgage given for the purchase money of land, executed simultaneously
with the deed, takes precedence of a judgment against the morrgagor. And
the principle is the same if the mortgage is to another than the vendor, who
actually advances the means to pay the purchase money. Curtis v. Root, 53.

2. There is no redemption from a sale under a proceeding to enforce a mechanics'
lien ; although the sheriff is directed to execute the decree by a sale of the land.
Armsbij y. The People ex rel. 155.

See Mortgage. Mechanics' Lien.

LIMITATION.

1 . A party who interposes the benefit of limitation, derived under the ninth section

of the twenty-fourth chapter of the Revised Statutes, to an action of eject-

ment, must show that the payment of taxes, and the color of title, were by
and in the same person. Payment of taxes by different persons, for seven
years, one of whom had only a contract for a conveyance, is insufficient.

Dunlap V. Daugkertij et al. 397.

LOST BAGGAGE.

See Witness, 1, 2. "

LOST DEED.

See Practice, 15. Deed. '

MALICIOUS PROSECUTION.

1

.

The indorsement of the name of a person on the back of an indictment as a
witness, is no sufBcient evidence that such person was the prosecutor. Nor to

establish this character need his name appear on the indictment in any way.
The agency of a party as prosecutor may be established otherwise, llurd v.

Shaw, 354.

2. In a case for malicious prosecution, it must bo shown that a prosecution has
been tried on its merits; that the defendant was the prosecutor; that he was
actuated by malice, and thai there was a want of probable cause, or of that

reasonable ground of suspicion a cautious man would entertain on the facts of
Ibid. 354.

MANDAMUS.

Whei'e the parties have commenced proceedings in another tribunal, to obtain

an adjudication of the question, the Supreme Court will not (except in extra-

ordinary cases) interfere by mandamus. The People ex rel. v. Warjield, 159.

The Peoria County Court has not power to award a writ of mandamus. School

Inspectors of Peoria v. The People, etc. 525.

Courts vested with the power to issue the writ of mandamus, arc all of them su-

perior courts of unlimited jurisdiction. Ibid. 525.

A Avrit of mandamus should show that the relator has no other remedy. It is

only granted in extraordinary cases, where, without it, there would be a failure

of justice. If the party has sought, or may seek, other means of redress,

this writ should be denied. Ibid. 525.

MARRIED WOMEN.

See Husband and Wife, 1. Deed. Landlord and Tenant
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MEASUEE OF DAMAGES.

1. "Where a party agreed, without any time being specified, to procure a deed to a
piece of land from another person, and failed to perform, the measure of dam-
ages will be the value of the land at the time the person for whom the title was
to be obtained was notified that it could not be procured. Gale v. Dean, 320.

2. Where a horse, sold as sound, proves to be otherwise, is returned to the vendor
by the purchaser, in an action by the purchaser the measure of damages is the
price paid for the horse. If he is not returned, it is the difference between his

real value and the jDrice given. Morgan v. Ryerson, 343.

See Damages, 1, 2, 3.

MECHANICS' LIEN.

1. In a bill to enforce a mechanics' lien, where the finding is against the weight of
evidence, in a matter of damages arising out of the ciuality of the work, the

decree may be refoi'med in this court. Wolfe v. Stone, 174.

See Lien, 2.

MORTGAGE.

1. A mortgage given for the purchase money of land, executed simultaneously

with the deed, takes precedence of a judgment against the mortgagor. And
the principle is the same if the mortgage is to another than the vendor, who
actually advances the means to pay the purchase money. Curtis v. Root, 53.

2. An equity of redemption in land, is a saleable interest on execution. Ibid. 53.

3. On a bill to foreclose a mortgage, the note or bond, to secure which the mort-
gage was given, should be produced, or its non-production properly accounted
for. Lucas et al. v. Harris, 165.

4. This rule should be especially regarded in old transactions. Ibid. 165.

5. The holder of the obligation secured by a mortgage, can control the mortgage.
Ibid. 165.

6. A release of a debt secured hj a mortg-age need not be under seal. Ibid. 165.

7. A, on the 5th of March, 1845, being the owner of certain premises, by an
article of agreement, granted, bai'gained, sold, aliened, conveyed and confirmed,

etc., the same unto B, for which B agreed to pay three thousand dollars in

installments, etc., upon the payment of one of which, B was to take pos-

session. On full payment, A was to give full deeds to B. Upon failure to

pay any of the installments, the contract was to be void at the election of A,
who might reenter and re-possess, etc. B took possession and commenced
building, and continued in possession fourteen months. B borrowed of A
two sums of money, and executed mortgages on the same premises to secure

the payment of them. A and B afterwards agreed, that on failure by B to pay
any installment, A might reenter by force, which he subsequently did, and held

open possession. A foreclosed his senior mortgage by scirefacias, and obtained
execution, upon wliich tlie premises were sold, and A was the purchaser. At
the same terra, C, a creditor of B, obtained a judgment against B, upon
which execution issued, upon which C, in proper form, etc., redeemed from
A, who took the money. The sheriff' then advertised on the execution in

favor of C, and sold to D, and D conveyed to E, all proceedings being regu-

lar. E brought ejectment against A, who all along held possession ; held,

that the first conti-act from A to B was a mere agreement to sell, it appearing
from the contract and circumstances that such was the intention of the parties

;

• held further, tliat B had such an interest in the premises as authorized him to

mortgage them, and that A was not estopped from asserting his title as the

original vendor of the premises, by any act or omission of his, and that E
was, by the levy, redemption and purchase under D, placed in the same
position in which B stood by his relation and contracts with A. Curtis v
Root et al. 518
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MOTION.

1. The entry of a motion to quash, is not such an appearance as amounts to a
waiver of a variance between the writ and declaration. Schoonhoven v. Gott, 46.

2. The difference in names between Schoonhoven and Schoonhover, may be taken
advantage of by motion to dismiss, though it may in pleading and proof be
shown that the party was as well known by one name as the other. Ibid. 46.

NEGLIGENCE.

1. In a suit against a railroad company for injuries to sheep, arising from neglect

to build a fence, as it had contracted to do, the question is not whether the

fence would have made a perfect inclosure as against the road, but whether
the neglect contributed to the injury. The Joliet ^- Northern Indiana Railroad
Company v. Jones, 221,

2. Where the negligence charged is not in the running of the train, but in not
building the fence, if it does not appear that the sheep got upon the track be-

cause this fence was not built, other parts of the field not being inclosed, the

plaintiff will not be relieved from the exercise of proper care, and he cannot
recover if his negligence was the direct and proximate cause of the injury.

Ibid. 221.

3. Juries may give exemplary damages in cases of willful negligence or malice, if

the proof exhibits such a state of case. Peoria Bridge Ass'n v. Loomis, 235.

4. To constitute willful negligence, the act done, or omitted, must be the result of
intention. Mere neglect cannot ordinarily be ranked as willfulness. Ibid. 235.

5. The proprietors of a bridge, if it should be applied to the uses of a railroad,

should provide increased guards against consequential new dangers. Ibid. 235.

6. In actions for negligence, that the plaintiff, if not wholly free from fault, must
be, as compared to the negligence of the defendants, so much less culpable as

to incline the balance in his favor, both being in some fault. Ibid. 235.

7. AVhere there is an absence of proof of willful negligence, and no foundation for

the damages awarded, and the finding of the jury manifests feeling and pre-

judice, the verdict will be set aside. Ibid. 235.

8. The rule of damages for personal injuries resulting from the negligence of

others, is measured by the loss of time and expense incurred in respect of it

;

the pain and suffering undergone
;
permanent injuries sustained ; impairing

future usefulness, and consequent pecuniary loss. Ibid. 235.

9. The legislature, by the charter granted to the city of Chicago, authorized the

city authorities to remove obstructions, and to widen, deepen and straighten

, the Chicago river and its branches to their sources, and to extend one mile
into Lake Michigan. This grant did not create the obligation to do all these

acts ; and the city would not be liable to any party in damages-for tlie non-
performance of these permitted acts, unless it commences some of them and
does them in so improper a manner that injury results therefrom. Goodrich

ct al. V. Citij of Chicago, 445.

10. If a party receives damage resulting from a sunken hulk in the harbor, he can-

not recover of the city, because the city has not exercised the powers conferred

upon it to clear out the harbor. Ibid. 445.

11. A party should cross a railroad track at the usual crossing. The track is the

exclusive property of the company, on which an unauthorized person cannot

go except at his own hazard, unless it be under certain qualifications. Galena

Sf Chicago Union Railroad Company v. Jacobs, 478.

12. To maintain an action for negligence, there must be fault on the part of the

defendant, and no want of ordinary care on the part of the plaintiff. Ibid. 478.

13. In proportion to the negligence of one party should be measured the degree of

care required of the other. Where there ai'e faults on both sides, the plaintiff

may recover ; his fault is to be measured by the negligence of the defendant,

and the plaintiff need not be wholly without fault. The relative degrees of

negligence of the parties may be measured and considered. Ibid. 478.

47
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14. It is negligence for a party, in hanging a sign on a windy clay, in a city, upon
an active thoroughfare, to use a swinging stage for the purpose, that has not a

rim, or some other preventive against the sliding off of tools, which may oc-

casion injury to passers on the street. Hunt v. Iloyt et ux. 544.

15. A person injured by reason of such negligence may recover for the length of

time the sickness continued, as a component part of her claim. Ibid. 544.

See Pleading, 20, 21. Eailroads.

NEW TRIAL.

1. Where tlie witness may be mistaken in identifying the accused, by reason of a
slight acquaintance with him, and an alibi is clearly proven by other witnesses,

who give their residence and occupation, so that the truth or falsity of their

testimony may be inquired into on another trial, the court will give the accused

the benefit of a second trial. Lincoln et al. v. The People, 365.

NOTICE.

1. Where notice is given the day previous to a trial to produce a paper which is

eighty miles distant, in the control of another person, the court will not take
judicial notice that the paper could not have been obtained, and so exclude
secondary evidence. Cody v. Hough, 43.

See Common Carrier.

OFFICE—OFFICER.

1. For any misfeasance of a sheriff other than a failure to return an execution or

to pay over money collected on an execution, or for any other misconduct than
is mentioned in the statute, the party must resort to his action ; summary
proceedings against a sheriff will be limited to such derelictions as the statute

provides for. Day v. Hackney et al. 133.

2. An officer executing a capias, regular on its face, will be protected. Stafford
V. Low, 152.

See Practice, 8, 9, 10. Service of Process.

PARTIES.

See Witness.

PARTITION—PARTITION FENCE. *

1. A partition fence, whether existing by agreement, by acquiescence, or under the

statute, cannot be removed until the parties interested in its

properly notified of the intended removal. McC'ormick v. Tate, 334.

2. The case of BucJcmaster v. Cole, in 12th 111. R. 76, considered and approved.
Ibid. 334.

PARTNERS—PARTNERSHIP.

1. If a person suffers his name to be used in a business, or holds himself out as a
copartner, he will be so regarded, whatever may be the agreement between
himself and the other copartners. Fisher et al. v. Bowles, 396.

PAYMENT.

1. In applying payments, the interest is first to be satisfied, and if the payment
exceeds the interest, the balance is to be applied in diminution of the princi-

pal. If the payment falls short of the interest due, the balance of interest is



INDEX. 699

not to be added to the principal, but remains as interest, to be satisfied by the
next adequate payment. The interest is first to be paid. McFadden v. For-
tier, .509.

See Current Money. Contract, 10, 11,

PENALTY.

See Forfeiture.

PERSONAL PEOPEETY.

See Trespass, 1, 2, 3. Possession op Personal Property.

PLEADING.

1. The variance in names between Schoonhoven and Schoonhover is material, and
when such variance exists between the writ and declaration, the court should,
on motion, dismiss ; unless the proof should be, that the party is as well
known by one name as the other ; upon a proper state of pleading. Schoon-
hoven V. Gott, 46.

2. In an action upon a note, where the word "not" is omitted in the averment of
non-payment, the omission will be cured by the statute of " Jeofails," and if

not, the obvious sense from the context will make the declaration good.
Baldwin v. Banks et al. 48.

3. In a plea of failure of consideration, alleging that land sold to the maker of the

note had on it but sixteen hundred cords of wood instead of twenty-four
hundred cords, it should be shown that the deficiency in the quantity of wood
was equal in value to the note sued on, or the plea will be bad. Ibid. 48.

4. A parol agreement to vary a contract under seal cannot be pleaded in a court of
law, to defeat a recovery on the original undertaking; and such an agreement
will not discharge a security from liability. Chapman, etc. v. McGrew, 101.

5. The giving of further day of payment to a principal debtor, without the assent
of the surety, discharges the latter from liability. Warner, etc. v. Crane, 148.

6. Pleas stating the above fact amount only to the general issue, and will be bad
on special demurrer; and if there was a plea of non-assumpsit, and no bill of
exceptions showing the contrary, it will be presumed that the party availed

himself of this defense on the trial, and a judgment against him Avill be sus-

tained. Ibid. 148.

7. In an action against a surety upon a bail bond, he may plead in defense that

the affidavit upon which the capias ad respondendum issued, did not show by
facts therein stated, that defendant had refused to surrender his estate, or any
presumption that he had been guilty of fraud—and if the facts pleaded are

true, they will constitute a complete defense to the action. Stafford v. Loio, 152.

8. The officer executing such a capias, it being regular on its face, would be pro-

tected. Ibid. 152.

9. When the representatives of a deceased party are substituted in his stead, the

declaration need not be amended by the insertion of their names. Hoes v.

Van Alsti/ne, etc. 201.

10. Where part of the property claimed by a writ of replevin cannot be found, and
there is personal service, the plaintiff may add a count in trover. Daj't et al.

V. Horn, 212.

11. A plea which avers payment of a note by means of a deed of trust given to

secure its payment, is bad. Brokaw et al. v. Kelsey, 303.

12. A plea which avers that the defendant is only the security in the note, and that

he received no consideration for his suretyship, is bad. Ibid. 303.

13. After a demurrer to a plea in abatement is overruled, it is not regular to grant

leave to reply; the proper judgment on such a plea is, that the writ be

quashed. Cushman v. Savage, 330.
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14. "Where a demurrer to a plea to one of the coimts of a declaration is overruled,

and the plaintiff stands by his demurrer, the order of the court amounts to a
judgment in bar of the cause of action in that count, and it is no longer before

the court for trial. McCor-mick v. Tate, 334.

15. "Where a party alleges in his pleadings in an action of trespass quare clausum

fregit, that the damage to plaintiff arose by reason of the removal of a parti-

tion fence, of which removal the plaintiff had been notified, the pleading

should show that the notice was given in due time, and to a proper person.

Ibid. 334.

16. An averment in such pleading that plaintiff had reasonable notice, is insuffi-

cient. Ibid. 334.

17. An affidavit of merits to a plea which states that the defendant has a good de-

fense to a " part" of the amount of damages claimed, is insufficient. Such
an affidavit, if it specified the nature of the defense, and what part of the

action it extended to, might be good. McDonellT. Murphy, 346.

18. In an action against the indorser of a note, the declaration should aver the

manner in which due diligence was used against the maker, and every fact

necessary to show a right to recover and to rebut negligence. Sherman v.

Smith et al. 350.

19. "Where there is an exception in an enacting clause of a statute, the plaintiff

suing under it must show that the defendant is not within it ; if the exception

is in a subsequent section, it must be pleaded in defense to avoid the penalty.

Chicago, Burlington Sj- Quincy Railroad Company v. Carter, 390.

20. In an action under the statute against a railroad company, for injuries to ani-

mals, the road not being fenced, the plaintiff should aver that the animals
were not within the limits of a village, etc. Ibid. 390.

21. In an action on the case for killing animals, "gross" negligence need not be
averred ; negligence in such a case is matter of proof. An averment that the

railroad company had not fenced, may be treated as surplusage. Ibid. 390.

22. "Where a plea of partial failure of consideration is interposed to an action upon
a note, the affirmative rests with the defendant, and if he fails to sustain his

plea, judgment will go against him. Topper v. Snow, 434.

23. A proceeding by scire facias to foreclose a mortgage, is a proceeding in rem,

and the writ is both process and declaration, and defects therein can be reached

by demurrer. McFadden v. Fortier, 509.

24. A "scire facias" should, like other process, run in the name of the people,

etc. ; if not, it is void on its face, and may be reached by general demurrer,
though a motion to quash Avould be more proper. Ibid. 509.

25. If a party withdraws his demurrer and pleads over, it is a waiver of the error.

Ibid. 509.

26. A scire facias, not running in the name of the people, vnay be amended. Ibid.

509.

27. If a scire facias sets out a mortgage not under seal, a mortgage under seal is

not admissible in evidence under it. Ibid. 509.

28. A demurrer to an amended plea may be carried back to a scire facias or declara-

tion, if judgment under thenr could be arrested for defects in them, but
not in a case where appearance and pleading has cured the error. Ibid. 509.

29. Upon a scire facias to foreclose a mortgage given for the purchase money of
land, a plea, which avers that the vendor represented himself to be the owner
of the land in fee simple, which he was not, etc., and that the vendee has since

acquired the legal title from the real owners, etc., is defective, unless it also

avers that the vendee relied upon such representations, and was thereby in-

duced to take the conveyance. Ibid. 509.

30. It is not erroneous to sustain a demurrer to a special plea, or to strike it from
the files, if the same end can be attained under the plea of the general issue,

filed in the same case. Curtiss v. Martin, etc. 557.

31. "Where a demurrer is sustained to special pleas because they only amount to

the general issue, whether they did or not is immaterial, if the facts alleged in

them could be given in evidence under that plea ; and unless the bill of ex-

ceptions shows to the contrary, it will be presumed that the evidence received

Avas admitted under the general issue. Ibid. 557.
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32. Where a party proceeds to trial upon a replication, which he insists is not

an answer to his plea, without demurring to, or moving to strike it from the

files, he will be held to have admitted its sufficiency. Ohio and Mississippi

Railroad Compamj v. Middleton et al. 629.

33. In declaring on a contract executed by an agent, the contract may be de-

scribed as having been signed by the principal, or by his agent for him.
Ibid. 629.

See Eekor. Scire Facias. Supreme Court.

POSSESSION OF PERSONAL PEOPEETY.

1. The possession of personal property is prima facie evidence of ownership, and
his assertion that such property belongs to another, will not rebut the legal

presumption that it is his. Roberts v. Haskell, 59.

2. That property is incumbered, does not furnish a sufficient reason for not making
a levy upon it, unless the party omitting to do so is prepared to show, in a
case like this, that the claims were valid, and that a levy would have been
wholly unavailing. Ibid. 59.

3. An actual removal of an entire mass of a cumbrous article (as a crib of corn),

is not necessary to constitute a delivery and change of possession. May v.

Tallman, 443.

4. Where one party is to deliver another three hundred bushels of corn, and points

to a crib in which it is, which is accepted, and two wagon loads are taken out
of it, this constitutes a good transfer of title. Ibid. 443.

See Sheriffs' Sale, 15. Eepletin, 4.

PEACTICE.

1. Where an appeal is taken to the Circuit Court, from the discharge by the

county judge, of a person under our insolvent act, it is the duty of the insol-

vent to attend the Circuit Court and submit to an examination ; and if he
fails to attend, the cause should be continued on application of the appellant.

Cooky et al. v. Culton, 40.

2. Where notice is given the day previous to a trial to produce a paper wliich is

eighty miles distant, in the control of another person, tlie court will not take
judicial notice that the paper could not have been obtained, and so exclude
secondary evidence. Cody v. Hough, 43.

3. The variance in names between Schoonhoven and Schoonhover is material, and
when such variance exists between the writ and declaration, the court should,

on motion, dismiss ; unless the proof should be, that the party was as well

known by one name as the other ; upon a proper state of pleading. Schoon-

hoven V. Gott, 4G.

4. The entry of a motion to quash, is not such an appearance as would amount
to a waiver of a variance between the writ and declaration. Ibid. 46.

5. In a proceeding before a justice of the peace, technical accuracy in the form of

the judgment, whether it be in debt or for a penalty, will not be held indis-

pensable. Pendergast V. City of Peru, 51.

G. It is objectionable that instructions should be drawn at great length, and have
"injected" into them an argument of the case. They should be concise,

and briefly present the point of law on which the party relies. Merritt v.

Merritt, 65.

7. The common law of another State may be proved by parol. Ibid. 65.

8. Where a sheriff returns that he did, on the 8th day of September, 1857, serve

a summons on A. B., who attempted to avoid service by concealing himself,

and running from him, etc., it will be held a good service. Where the date is

written at the bottom of tlie indorsement of service, and above the name
of the officer, it is sufficient to fix tlie date of service. Orendorff et al. v.

Stanberry et al. 89.
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9. Where there are several defendants living in different counties, the writs sent to

the several counties for service may contain the names of all the defendants.

Ibid. 89.

10. Where the venue of a writ is, " State of Illinois, Tazewell County," and the

writ is directed to " The Sheriff of Logan County," commanding him to

summon the defendants " to ajipear before the Circuit Court of said county,"

the uncertainty as to which of the counties the defendants are to appear in,

renders the summons void. Ibid. 89.

11. A party, when sued before a justice of the peace, is not bound to set off un-

liquidated damages. Such a practice would invest justices of the peace with

a jurisdiction beyond the statutory limits. Bush v. Kindred, 93.

12. A default admits the material allegations of a declaration, and the only ques-

tion remaining for trial is the amount of damages. On this investigation the

defendant has not the right to give any evidence that will defeat the action,

but only such as tends to reduce the damages. Cooh v.Skelton, 107.

13. It is error to try a cause in which a demurrer remains undisposed of. Chap-

man V. Wright, 120.

14. In an action of debt the judgment should not be in damages. Ibid. 120.

15. A party may not state in general terms that it is not in his power to produce a
deed ; but he must give such detailed circumstances, in relation to the search

for it, and the probabilities of its loss, as will convince the judgment of the

court of its actual loss, or of the inability of the party to produce it. Boothv.

Cook, 129.

16. Where there are various objections to testimony, some of which maybe re-

moved, the party objecting must indicate his grounds, so as to furnish the

opposite party an opportunity to obviate the objection, else he cannot avail

himself of it in this court. Swift et al. v. Whitney et al. 144.

17. Certificates of deposit are admissible as evidence under the common counts.

Ibid. 144.

18. The court may assess damages on a certificate of deposit, payable in currency.

Ibid. 144.

19. Where three are sued, and service of process is upon two, and no appearance

for all, judgment cannot go against all. Suift et al. v. Green et al. 173.

20. A party may take a second deposition from a witness, without leave for that

purpose ; but it is discretionary with the court to say Avhich shall be read.

Beach et al. v. Schmultz, 185.

21. Where a writ is in the hands of and executed by a coroner, it will be presumed
there was no sheriff, and that an elisor was properly appointed by the clerk, to

serve a writ of replevin upon the coroner. Ibid. 185.

22. When the representatives of a deceased party are substituted in his stead, the

declaration need not be amended by the insertion of their names. Hoes v.

Van Alstyne, etc. 201

.

23. A release under seal may be pleaded in satisfaction of a larger sum than was
actually paid. Kingsley v. Kingsley, 203.

24. On an appeal from a justice of the peace on a trial of the right of property,

the appeal bond may be amended. Patty v. Winchester, 261.

25 . A court, on overruling a demurrer, if the party pleading it does not ask to plead

over, may give judgment against the defendant and call a jury to assess the

damages. Town of South Ottaica v. Foster, 296.

26. On an inquest of damages, a defendant is not permitted to introduce a sub-

stantive defense. He may cross-examine a witness of the plaintiff to ovei'-

throw a direct examination, but nothing further. He may also introduce wit-

nesses to reduce the amount of the recovery. If the inquest is taken in open
court, he may ask for instructions. Ibid. 296.

27. After a demurrer to a plea in abatement is overruled, it is not regular to grant

leave to reply; the proper judgment on such a plea is, that the writ be

quashed. Cushman v. Savage, 330.

28. A summons issued in October, returnable on the first day of the next term,

which is on the fourth Monday of October next, is a nullity ; the word " next"
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refers to the month, and not to Monday ; and there being more than one term
intervening between the issuing of the writ and the return day, makes it void.
Hildreth v. Hough et al. 331.

29. Where a demurrer to a plea to one of the counts of a declaration is overruled,
and the plaintiff stands by his demurrer, the order of the court amounts to a
judgment in bar of the cause of action in that count, and it is no longer before
the court for trial. McCormich v. Tate, 334.

30. Where a party alleges in his pleadings in an action of trespass quare clausum
fregit, that the damage to plaintiff arose by reason of the removal of a parti-

tion fence, of which removal the plaintiff had been notified, the pleading
should show that the notice was given in due time, and to a proper person.
Ibid. 334.

31. An averment in such pleading that plaintiff had reasonable notice, is insuffi-

cient. Ibid. 334.

32. An affidavit of merits to a plea which states that the defendant has a good
defense to a "part" of the amount of damages claimed, is insufficient. Such
an affidavit, if it specified the nature of the defense, and what part of the

action it extended to, might be good. McDonnell v. Murphy et al. 346.

33. Verbal testimony showing when suit was brought, when declaration was filed,

and when judgment was rendered against the maker of a note, is incompe-
tent. Sherman v. Smith, 350.

34. The general issue, in a case like this, against a member of a corporation, I'en-

ders proof necessary that the defendant was a stockholder. Ibid. 350.

35. Where a case is referred by order of court to arbitrators, who by the order
were directed to seal their award and file it in court, etc., and the clerk swore
the arbitrators, and notified them to take upon themselves a general submis-
sion, which they did, of all matters ; held, that the arbitrators were only a
special tribunal for the matters litigated by that suit, that they should have
notified both parties of the time and place of hearing, and that the award was
bad. Reeves v. Eldridg, 383.

36. An affidavit for a continuance, which does not state the residence of a witness,

is insufficient. Lee v. %urk, 392

37. In order to authorize the testimony of a plaintiff under the statute, in a suit

originating before a justice of the peace, where a defendant refuses to be

sworn, he must make affidavit that he has a claim or demand against the de-

fendant, and that he has no witness by whom, or other legal testimony by
which to establish it. Ibid. 392.

38. A jury may be called into court for further instructions, either by agreement
of counsel or at their own request. Ibid. 392.

39. In an action to recover for work and labor, an instruction which excludes from
the jury all consideration of the proof of a special contract is erroneous.

Ibid. 392.

40. The apportionment of costs by the Circuit Court, on an appeal from the de-

cision of a justice of the peace, is the exercise of a discretion with which the

Supreme Court cannot interfere. Ibid. 392.

41. Before a party can be tried on an indictment, it must appear from the record

that it was returned into open court. Gardner v. The People, 430.

42. Where a plea of partial failure of consideration is interposed to an action upon
a note, the affirmative rests with the defendant, and if he fails to sustain his

plea, judgment will go against him. Topper v Snoiv, 434.

43. Where a case is brought to a trial term of the Common Pleas Court, and there

is no evidence that a declaration with a rule to plead has been served, and if,

before any step is taken, a plea with affidavit of merits is filed, the defendant

is in time, and his plea should not be stricken from the files, and a default

entered—the defendant is entitled to a trial on the merits. Corbin v. TurrilL

et al. 516.

44. It is not erroneous to sustain a demurrer to a special plea, or to strike it from

the files, if the same end can be attained under the plea of the general issue,

filed in the same case. Curtiss v. Martin, etc. 557.

45. Where a demurrer is sustained to special pleas, because they only amount to

the general issue, whether they did or not is immaterial, if the facts alleged
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ia them could be given in evidence under that plea ; and unless the bill of ex-

ceptions shows to the contrary, it will be presumed that the evidence received

was admitted under the general issue. Ibid. 557.

46. Where a commission issues to Jasper E. Brady, to take the testimony of J.

Gardner Coffin, if he signs it, J. E. Brady, commissioner, and certifies that

he has executed the commission by taking the deposition of J. G. Coffin, the

identity of the parties will be presumed. Ibid. 557.

47. Instructions which present the same propositions of law, in nearly the same
terms, need not all be given. Ibid. 557.

48. A party who does not enter an appearance, but permits his name to be called

and a default to be entered, if he attempts to avoid the default by unfairly

getting a plea into the record, must see that his pleading is in every particular

accurate, so that it will not require extraneous proof to identify it, or the de-

fault will not be set aside, and the judgment will be sustained. Sivits et at. v.

Carver et al. 578.

49. Where a party proceeds to trial upon a replication, which he insists is not an
answer to his plea, without demurring to, or movnig to strike it from the tiles,

he will be held to have admitted its sufficiency. Ohio Sf Mississippi Railroad

Company v. Middleton et al. 629.

See Agent, 1. Leading Questions. Witness, 1, 2. Replevin, 3.

Scire Eacias.

PRACTICE IN COOK COUNTY.

1. Where the ground presented for a change of venue relates to the Judge of the

Cook Circuit Court, the venue may be changed to the Common Pleas Court
of that county. Curran v. Beach, 259.

2. Where a case is brought to a trial term of the Common Pleas Court, and there

is no evidence that a declaration with a rule to plead has been served, and if,

before any step is taken, a plea with affidavit of merits is filed, the defendant

is in time, and his plea should not be stricken from the files, and a default

entered—the defendant is entitled to a trial on the merits. Corbin v. Turrill

et al. 516.

See Practice, 32.

PREEMPTION.
See Cuancery, 1.

PRINCIPAL AND AGENT.

1. If a principal ratifies a purchase made by his agent, he will be responsible for

the acts of the agent, and the question of ratification is for the jury to deter-

mine. Goodcllv. Woodi-uff, 191

.

2. All the acts of an agent, performed under the direction of his principal, and
within the scope of his agency, will bind the principal, and will be regarded
as his own acts. Taylor v. Taijlor et al. 650.

See Agent.

PROCESS.

1. Where there are several defendants living in diff'erent counties, the writs sent to

the several counties for service may contain the names of all the defendants.

Orendorff et al. v. Stanherry et al. 89.

2. Where the venue of a writ is, " State of Illinois, Tazewell County," and the

writ is directed to " The Sheriff of Logan County," commanding him to sum-
mon the defendants " to appear before the Circuit Court of said county," the

uncertainty as to which of the counties the defendants are to appear in, ren-

ders the summons void. Ibid. 89.

See Scire Facias. Service of Process, 1, 2. Justices of the Peace, 1.

Summons.
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PROMISSORY NOTE.

1. A, being the holder of a note against B, to a larger amount than what A owes
B, A may give credit for the amount due to B, so as thereby to reduce the de-
mand of A against B, to a sum within the jurisdiction of a justice of the
peace, although the money was not then demandable by B from A. Korsoski
V. Foster, 32.

2. In an action upon a note, where the word " not " is omitted in the averment of
non-payment, the omission will be cured by the statute of " Jeofails," and if

not, the obvious sense from the context will make the declaration good. Bald-
win V. Banks et al. 48.

3. A third indorsee may maintain a suit against a second indorsee upon a note
which has passed through his hands without his indorsement, and is subse-

quently assigned to him. Roberts v. Haskell, 59.

4. Where a party suing an indorsee has to show the insolvency of the maker of the

note, and attempts to prove the existence of a mortgage against him, he must
have made reasonable eiforts to procure the original ; the introduction of a
copy, without showing this, is improper. Ibid. 59.

5. The possession of personal property is prima facie evidence of ownership, and
his assertion that such property belongs to another, will not rebut the legal

presumption that it is his. Ibid. 59.

6. That property is incumbered, does not furnish a sufficient reason for not making
a levy upon it, unless the party omitting to do so is prepared to show, in a case

like this, that the claims were valid, and that a levy would have been wholly
unavailing. Ibid. 59.

7. If the maker of a note, where one indorsee is sued by another, had property not
exempt I'rom execution, at the time or soon after the note became due, suffi-

cient to have paid it, the presumption is that the note could have been collected

of such maker; Ibid. 59.

8. The indorser of a note^without recourse to himself, is a competent witness to

prove a promise of the maker of a note so as to take it out of the statute of

limitations. Merritt v. Merritt, 65.

9. A and B, being brothers, inheriting from their father, B sold his inheritance to

A. The father, by his will, declared that any indebtedness of his sons to him,
should be in reduction of his bequests ; the father, at his death, held a note

against B, assigned to him by C, another brother. Held, that B, having sold

his interest in the estate to A, was bound to pay to A, the amount of the note

B had given to C, and which C had assigned to the father. Ibid. 65.

10. The indorser of a note, when sued, may show in defense, that if the maker had
been sued in some other court of competent jurisdiction, as before a justice of

the peace, instead of in the Circuit Court, that a judgment could sooner have
been obtained against him and been satisfied, and thus relieve the indorser

from liability. Allison v. Smith, 104.

11. A plea which avers payment of a note by means of a deed of trust given to

secure its j^ayment, is bad. Brokaiu et al. v. Kelscjj, 303.

12. A plea which avers that the defendant is only tlie security in the note, and that

he received no consideration for his suretyship, is bad. Ibid. 303.

13. In an action against the indorser of a note, the declaration should aver the

manner in which due diligence was used against the maker, and every fact

necessary to sliow a right to recover and to rebut negligence. SJierman v.

Smith, 350.

14. Where a party has disposed of property, being misled by the false pretenses of

the purchaser, and has taken a note for the payment, and is about to reclaim it

from the vendee, if a third party, upon being informed of the facts, puts his

name to the note as security, two days after it was given, by reason whereof
the property is not reclaimed, such third party will be liable in an action upon
the note. Harwood v. Kiersted et al. 367.

15. A promissory note executed by one of a firm, in the firm name, with a scrawl,

is a sealed instrument, as to the party who signed it, and assumpsit will not

lie upon it. Fames, etc. v. Preston et al. 389.

48



706 INDEX,

16. If one executes an instrument with a seal, and others sign after him with-

out a seal, they are presumed to adopt the seal already affixed ; it is otherwise

if a party signs an instrument, not aflixing a seal, and others sign and seal

after him without his consent—it is, as to the first signer, a simple instrument.

Ibid. 389.

17 A letter from the drawer of a bill, from which a promise to the holder to pay
the bill may be implied, is proper evidence, as showing a waiver, for omis-

sion to present the bill for acceptance or payment. Curtiss v. Martin, etc. 557.

18. The affidavit of a security for costs, may be read to the court, as laying a foun-

dation for an objection to the admission of the answer of a plaintiff to a bill of

discovery, which is offered as evidence to the jury. Ibid. 557.

19. Admissions made by the owner of a bill or note, are admissible as evidence

against a purchaser after maturity. And the evidence of a plaintiff, upon bill

of discovery, who sues for another, as to any matter which existed before he
parted with the bill, may be read in evidence. Ibid. 557.

20. The purchaser of an overdue bill or note, takes it subject to all infirmities and
objections, and at his peril. Ibid. 557.

21. It is a proper question for a jury to determine, whether the presentment of a
bill has been waived. Ibid. 557.

22. If a drawer of a bill deposits a particular kind of funds with the drawee, to be
disposed of, and have the proceeds apjslied to meet the payment of the bill

when it becomes due, it may be considered by the jury as evidence, with other

circumstances, as to whether a waiver has been made or not. Ibid. 557.

23. A subsequent payment of money maybe a waiver of presentment. Ibid. 557.

24. A party may show any sufficient excuse for the want of diligence, in making
protest for non-acceptance and non-payment. Ibid. 557.

25. The acceptance of a less sum, in payment, than that which is due, is not a
satisfaction of the whole debt ; unless it be in compromise of a controverted

claim, or from a debtor in failing circumstances. Ibid. 557.

26. The holder of a note without suspicion of bad faith, is presumed to be the

legal owner. Ibid. 557.

27. In order to recover of the indorser of a note, it must be made to appear that

the maker was sued in good time, and that collection of the judgment against

him was pursued with proper diligence; and if from the want of diligence the

money was not, when it might have been, made from the maker, the assignor
is released. Nixon v. Wetjhrich, 600.

28. The diligence requii-ed in making the collection from the maker of the note,

is such as a prudent man would use in the conduct of his own afiairs.

Ibid. 600.

29. If by the exercise of reasonable diligence, property of the maker of a note
might have been found, sufficient to satisfy the debt, then the indorser is re-

leased. Ibid. 600.

30. The declaration made by a deceased party while living with a step-son, that

he intended to give the step-son a note he held against him, does not give the

step-son a legal claim to have the note surrendered to him, nor is it an}^ de-

fense to an action upon it. Myers, etc. v. Malcom, etc. 621.

31. In an action upon notes given for a patent right, for which a deed was ex-
ecuted, expressing the consideration for the notes, it is incompetent for the

defendant to show by parol evidence that anything else than was expressed in

the deed was to be conveyed by it. Farrar, etc. v. Hinch, Adm'r, 646.

See Alteration of Instruments, 1. Pleading, 22. Evidence, 28.

PUBLIC ACTS AND RECORDS.

See Records.

PUBLIC ROADS.

See Highways and Streets,
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RAILROADS.

1. A railroad company may assume the double character of carriers and ware-
housemen, and that their duty as carriers is ended when they have placed
goods entrusted to them in a safe depot of their own, or in any other safe

warehouse. Illinois Central Railroad Company v. Alexander et al. 23.

2. Such companies have a right to charge a reasonable compensation for warehouse
services

; and are to be considered and treated like other warehousemen. And
may retain goods in possession until reasonable warehouse charges thereon
shall have been paid. Ibid. 23.

3. In a suit against a railroad company for injuries to sheep, arising from neglect
to build a fence, as it had contracted to do, the qrrestion is not whether the
fence would have made a perfect inclosure as against the road, but whether
the neglect contributed to the injury. The Jolietand Northern Indiana Railroad
Compamj v. Jones, 221.

4. Where the negligence charged is not in the running of the train, but in not
building a fence, if it does not appear that the sheep got upon the track

^ because this fence was not built, other parts of tlie field not being inclosed,

the plaintiff will not be relieved from the exercise of proper care, and he can-
not recover if his negligence was the direct and proximate cause of the injurv.

Ibid. 221.

5. Where a box, shipped at Adrian for Chicago (the usual railroad time of trans-

portation being three days) on the twenty-ninth October, arrived at Chicago on
the third of November, and was not delivered by the freight agent until the
fifteenth of the latter month, this will be considered so unreasonable a delay
as to entitle the owner to damages. Michigan Southern and Northern Indiana
Railroad Company v. Day, 375.

6. Where the agent of a railroad company for the delivery of freight, authorized
to make all necessary arrangements as to the time and place of its delivery,

agrees to forward freight by another company, or by a line of boats, if this

agreement is neglected, the railroad company will be liable. Ibid. 375.

7. Where it is the custom of a railroad company to receive the directions of ship-

pers and owners of goods to be sent beyond the terminus of their road, if

directions ai'e given to forward by a particular line, which are not obeyed, the

railroad company will be liable. Ibid. 375.

8. Shippers and owners of goods have the right to control their destination ; and
if their directions are obeyed, no responsibility for loss is incurred. Ibid. 375.

9. The employment of an agent by a railroad company, to deliver all freights,

necessarily includes the authority to make terms for its delivery at or beyond
the terminus of the road. Ibid. 375.

10. Contractors for constructing a railroad are the servants of the company author-

ized to construct it, and the tortious acts of the contractors, while about the

business of the company, are properly chargeable to it. Chicago, St. Paul and
Fond du Lac Railroad Company v. McCarthy, 385.

11. In an action under the statute against a railroad company, for injuries to ani-

mals, the road not being fenced, the plaintiff should aver that the animals

were not within the limits of a village, etc. Chicago, Burlington and Quincy

Railroad Company v. Cartel', 390.

12. In an action on the case for killing animals, "gross " negligence need not be

averred ; negligence in such a case is matter of proof. An averment that the

railroad company had not fenced, may be treated as surplusage. Ibid. 390.

13. To terminate its liability as a common carrier, a railroad company is not bound
to give notice of the arrival of goods. Richards v. Michigan Southern Sj~ Nor-

thern Indiana Railroad Company, 404.

14. Can-iers by railway are neither bound to deliver to the consignee personally, or

to give notice of the arrival of the goods, to discharge their liability as such.

But they must take proper care of the goods, by safely storing them or by
some other act. Porter v. Chicago and Rock Island Railroad Company, 406.

15. When the articles to be transported, have arrived at their destination, and have

been removed and stored in a warehouse which is owned by the carrier, or by
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some other party, the duty of the carrier is terminated. If the goods are

stored in a building owned by the carrier, the liability changes to that of

warehouseman. Ibid. 406.

16. Because goods were destroyed in a railroad car, by an accidental fire, the

carrier is not thereby released. It is the duty of the carrier to show what
becomes of goods entrusted to him; the burden of proof is with him.

Ibid. 406.

17. The liability of a common carrier by railway terminates, if the goods after

reaching their destination are properly stored in any warehouse ; and notice

need not be given of their arrival, and if it is given, no other liability grows

out of it than that the goods will be retained, free of charge, for the time

specified. Davis et al. v. Michigan Southern and Northern Indiana Railroad

Company, 412.

18. A permission to employees of a railroad company to occupy land within the

inclosure of the road of the company, is a permission to special persons, not

to be extended to those not in this relation to the company. Galena and Chi-

cago Union Railroad Company v. Jacobs, 478.

19. Instructions may be modified, but error may bo assigned on the refusal of the

court to give them as asked for. Ibid. 478.

20. A party should cross a railroad track at the usual crossing. The track is the

exclusive property of the comp.any, on which an unauthorized person cannot

go except at his own hazard, unless it be under certain qualifications. Ibid. 478.

21. To maintain an action for negligence, there must be fault on the part of the

defendant, and no want of ordinary care on the part of the plaintiff. Ibid. 478.

22. In proportion to the negligence of one party should be measured the degree of

care required of the other. Where there are faults on both sides, the plaintiff

may recover; his fault is to be measured by the negligence of the defendant,

and the plaintifit' need not be wholly without fault. The relative degrees of

negligence of the parties may be measured and considered. Ibid. 478.

23. A railroad company cannot relieve itself from liability by leasing its road

;

especially so where the power to lease is not expressly given by the charter.

Ohio
<J-

Mississippi Railroad Company v. Dunbar et cd. 62.3.

24. Whei'e parties hire the use of cars from a railroad company, to be employed
in transportation of freight, to be laden as the hirers choose, the company does

not incur any risk as to the mode adopted in loading the cars. Ibid. 623.

25. Common carriers are not liable for losses occasioned by an inherent defect of

the article causing its destruction, nor for the loss of weight in cattle trans-

ported by rail ; but every reasonable effort must be used to deliver property at

its destination in proper time, and an omission to perform this duty creates a

liability ; and all proximate damages resulting from a neglect of it, may be

recovered. Ibid. 623.

26. Although a railroad charter requires that each subscriber shall pay ten per

cent, at the time of his subscription, on a suit against a subscriber to enforce

payment of a subscription, it need not be averred in the declaration that such
per centagc was paid. Such fact is a matter of averment in defense. The
Illinois River Railroad Company v. Zimmer, 654.

27. The fact of non-payment of such per centage would not relieve the subscriber

from liability. Ibid. 654.

28. An act of incorporation may be amended by the legislature, and if the amend-
ment is accepted by the directors, the stockholders under the oi'iginal act,

unless otherwise stated, will be held liable. The only question for considera-
tion is, whether the value of the stock as an investment will probably be ben-
efited thereby. Ibid. 654.

29. An acceptance of an amendment to a charter may be manifested, by the stock-

holders, by the managers of the company, or "by user of and action under
such amendments. Ibid. 6r;4.

See Common Carriers. Right of Way.
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EECOGNIZANCE.

1

.

A scire facias upon a recognizance should aver that the recognizance had been
returned to, and been made matter of record in the Circuit Court ; also, that
there had been a judgment of forfeiture against the defendants. Conim- v
The People, 381.

2. The scire facias takes the place, in this State, of a summons and declaration,
and should show every allegation necessary to a recovery. Ibid. 381.

RECOUPMENT.

1. Where a party received an engine for repairs and retained a portion of it, and
before action was brought against him, had made an assignment in bankruptcy
under the general bankrupt law and obtained his discharge : held, that he
could recoup his claim for work done on the repairs. Stow v. Yarwood et

al. 497.

2. All claims due to the bankrupt pass to his assignee, but pass to him subject to
all equities and defenses of every description which existed against them in
the hands of the bankrupt. Ibid. 497.

3. If at the time of the assignment mutual demands exist, arising out of a con-
tract which by the ordinary rules of law might be set off, such right of set-oiT

or recoupment would remain unaffected by the bankrupt's assignment. And
the bankrupt, as well as the assignee, can avail himself of such set-off or re-

coupment. Ibid. 497.

EEDEMPTION FROM SALE.

1. The clerk of the Circuit Court is not the proper person with whom to deposit
money for the redemption of land sold under execution. Stone et al. v.

Gardner, 304.

2. A judgment creditor intending to redeem land sold under execution against his

debtor, should at the same time deliver the sheriff an execution on his judg-
ment. Ibid. 304.

3. A court of equity has not power to dispense with the plain requirements of a
statute. Ibid. 304.

4. Money to redeem land sold under execution may be paid to a deputy sheriff, or
to the administrator of a sheriff who is dead, or it may be paid to the pur-
chaser of the land. Ibid. 304.

5. A party may redeem from a sheriffs' sale any one of a number of lots, sold at

one time and separately, to the same purchaser. Robertson et al. v. Den-
nis, 313.

6. The party redeeming can, at his option, pay either to the officer who sold the

land, or if he is out of office, to his successor. Ibid. 313.

7. A, on the .5th of March, 1845, being the owner of certain premises, by an
article of agreement, granted, bargained, sold, aliened, conveyed and confirmed,

etc., the same unto B, for which B agreed to pay three thousand dollars in

installments, etc., upon the payment of one of which, B was to take pos-

session. On full payment, A was to give full deeds to B. Upon failure to

pay any of the installments, the contract was to be void at the election of A,
who might reenter and re-possess, etc. B took possession and commenced
building, and continued in possession fourteen months. B borrowed of A
two sums of money, and executed mortgages on the same premises to secure

the payment of them. A and B afterwards agreed, that on failure byB to pay
any installment, A might reenter by force, which he subsequently did, and held

open possession. A foreclosed his senior mortgage by scirefacias, and obtained

execution, upon which the premises were sold, and A was the purchaser. At
the same term, C, a creditor of B, obtained a judgment against B, upon
which execution issued, upon which C, in proper form, etc., redeemed from
A, who took the money. The sheriff then advertised on the execution in

favor of C, and sold to JD, and D conveyed to E, all proceedings being regu-

lar. E brought ejectment against A, who all along held possession ; held.
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that the first contract from A to B was a mere agreement to sell, it appearing
from the contract and circumstances that such was the intention of the parties

;

held further, that B had such an interest in the premises as authorized him to

mortgage them, and that A was not estopped from asserting his title as the

original vendor of the premises, by any act or omission of his, and that E
was, by the levy, redemption and purchase under D, placed in the same
position in which B stood by his relation and contracts with A. Curtis v.

Root et al. 518.

See Sheriffs' Sale, 12. Lien, 2.

RELEASE.

1

.

A release of a debt secured by mortgage, need not be under seal. Lucas et al.

V. Harris, 165.

2. A release under seal, executed to a party in settlement, the party receiving it

promising to get certain notes signed by a security, which ho attempted to do,

but failed in his efforts, will be good against the releasor, no fraud appearing

in the transaction. The party might be liable, if sued upon a breach of the

contract. Kinysley v. Kingslei/, 203.

3. A release under seal may be pleaded in satisfaction of a larger sum than was
actually paid. Ibid. 203.

REPLEVIN.

1. Where part of the property claimed by a writ of replevin cannot be found, and
there is personal service, the plaintiff may add a count in trover. Dart et al.

V. Horn, 212.

2. In an action of replevin against several, it is erroneous to assume in instruc-

tions to the jury that all are derelict; it should be left to the juiy to say,

whether all the defendants were engaged in taking the property claimed or

not. Ibid. 212.

3. Where an action is commenced in replevin, but is changed to trover under the

authority of the statute, the rule of damages which governs in actions of tro-

ver will control. McGavock V. Chamberlain, 219.

4. The purchaser of goods at a sheriffs' sale, which have been receipted for to him,
is the owner of such goods, and may rcplcA^y them. Freeman et al. v.

Morse, 429.

RIGHT OF WAY.

1. Expenses attending an assessment of damages in acquiring right of way, include

costs, but these are on the same footing as the damages ; they are to be
paid before the land condemned can be taken. Execution does not issue for

such costs. Chicago Sj^ Mississippi Railroad Company v. Bull, 218.

See Highways and Streets.

SCHOOLS AND SCHOOL LAWS.

1. Under the school law of 1857, a tax for the erection of school-houses must be
voted by the people. If a debt has been incurred for this purpose, and a judg-
ment is outstanding, it would seem that a mandamus, commanding the assess-

ment and levy of the tax, would be the proper proceeding. Beverly v. Sabin
etal. 357.

2. A poll-book which shows the election of a school trustee for a town, by name,
may be good, by proving that the town named and the congressional town
were the same territory, and that tlic former trustees had, before the election,

ordered that the school business of the township should be done under the
particular name stated in the poll-book. People, etc. v. Brewer, 474.
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3. The postponement of an election of a school trustee is wrong. If within the
time required by law a sufficient number of qualified voters organized and
held an election, the person so elected will hold his office, notwithstanding an
adjournment of the election at another hour in the day. Ibid. 474.

4. It will be intended that the election was in the proper county, if the returns
were made to the school commissioner of the county, although the oath of the
officer does not in the jurat or elsewhere show the name of the county. Ibid.

474.

5. The courts will not interfere with the discretion vested in the School Inspectors,

unless they attempt a plain violation of the law. School Inspectors, etc. v.

People, etc. 525.

6. The School Inspectors of Peoria are authorized to district the city, as to them
may seem best ; and they may also establisli such rules for the admission of

pupils as they judge proper ; andj these duties will not be interfered with,

except in extreme cases. Grove v. School Inspectors, etc. 532.

7. They may also sustain a school in a house outside of the city, and pay for re-

pairs, for the use of children living within it. Ibid. 532.

8. However regular all anterior proceedings of a school teacher up to the time of

presenting his schedule to the scliool directors, may be, under the law of 1855,

unless the schedule is properly certified and presented in proper time, the pay-

ment for his services cannot be enforced against the trustees of schools by bill

in chancery ; if there is any remedy, it is by mandamus. Cotton v. Reed etal.

Trustees, etc. 607.

9. In order to exempt a building erected for a school-house from taxation, under
the revenue law of 1853, it should be held by the school directors, under such
title as will give them the right to possess and control it at all times for the

use of the district. Pace v. County Commissioners, etc. 644.

SCIEE FACIAS.

1. A scire facias upon a recognizance should aver that the recognizance had been
returned to, and made matter of record, in the Circuit Court ; also, that there

had been a judgment of forfeiture against the defendants. Conner et al. v.

The People, 381.

2. The scire facias takes the place, in this State, of a summons and declaration,

and should show every allegation necessary to a recovery. Ibid. 381.

3. A proceeding by scire facias to foreclose a mortgage, is a proceeding in rem,

and the writ is both process and declaration, and defects therein can be

reached by demurrer. McFadden v. Fortier, 509.

4. A scire facias should, like other process, run in the name of the people, etc. ; if

not, it is void on its face, and may be reached by general demurrer, though a
motion to quash would be more proper. Ibid. 509.

5. If a partv withdraws his demurrer and pleads over, it is a waiver of the error.

Ibid. 509.

6. A scire facias not running in the name of the people mav be amended.
Ibid. 509.

7. If a scire facias sets out a mortgage not under seal, a mortgage under seal is

not admissible in evidence under it. Ibid. 509.

8. A demurrer to an amended plea maybe carried back to a scire facias or declara-

tion, if judgment under them could be arrested for defects in them, but not in

a case where appearance and pleading has cured the error. Ibid. 509.

9. Upon a scii-e facias to foreclose a mortgage given for the purchase money of

land, a plea which avers that the vendor represented himself to be the owner
of the land in fee simple, which he was not, etc., and that the vendee has since

acquired the legal title from the real owners, etc., is defective, unless it also

avers that the vendee relied upon sudi representations, and was thereby in-

duced to take the conveyance. Ibid. 509.

Sec Eedemption fkom Sale, 7.
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SEAL—SEALED INSTRUMENT.

1. A promissory note executed by one of a firm, in the firm name, witla a scrawl,

is a sealed instrument, as to the party who signed it, and assumpsit will not
lie upon it. Eames, etc. v. Preston et al. 389.

2. If one executes an instrument with a seal, and others sign after him without a
seal, they are presumed to adopt the seal already affixed ; it is otherwise if a
party signs an instrument, not affixing a seal, and others sign and seal after

him, without his consent—it is, as to the first signer, a simj^le instrument.

Ibid. 389.

SHERIFFS' AND COMMISSIONERS' SALE AND DEED.

1. There is no redemption from a sale under a proceeding to enforce a mechanics'
lien ; although the sheriff is directed to execute the decree by a sale of the

land. Arinsby v. The People ex rel. 155.

2. A judgment creditor cannot, under any circumstances, redeem from a sheriffs'

sale until after the expiration of twelve months. Ibid. 155.

3. In equity, a party to a suit, as also his attorney, if he purchases property sold

under an execution, is chargeable with notice of all irregularities attending the

sale. Dickerman et al. v. Burgess et al. 266.

4. If a sheriff makes a sale of real estate by merely indorsing it on the execution,

and making out a certificate of sale, without going to the court-house door,

without any outcry or bidders, or any circumstance to arrest public attention,

or to indicate that a sale was going on, and returned the execution, satisfied

by a sale, to the plaintitF's attorney, who was the assignee of the judgment,
but sent a certificate of sale to a person indicated by said attorney, the attor-

ney will be held to be the purchaser, although the sheriff should subsequently
have amended his return so as not to have it appear that the attorney became
the purchaser. Ibid. 266.

5. In such a case, where the holder of the certificate of sale, Avho disclaimed all

knowledge of or interest in the transaction, assigned it to a brother of the

attorney, and he to a cousin, under such suspicious circumstances as showed a
design to conceal the wi'ong, they will all be held as acting in trust for the

benefit of the attorney, and all the proceedings will be set aside for the irregu-

larities and fraud connected with them. Ibid. 266.

6. Gross inadequacy of price, under such circumstances, should be considered in

the conclusion to be arrived at. Ibid. 266.

7. There should be entire uniformity in the return to the execution, the certifi-

cate of sale, and the deed where real estate is sold, or they will be invalid.

Ibid. 266.

8. A certificate of sale by a sheriff to another person than the purchaser, shown by
his return to the execution, is a void act. Ibid. 266.

9. A bid by letter may be recognized by the sheriff", if it is announced by him ; and
if there is no advance on that bid, he may sell upon it. Ibid. 266.

10. The clerk of the Circuit Court is not the proper person with whom to deposit
money for the redemption of land sold under execution. Stone et al. v. Gard-
ner et al. 304.

11. A judgment creditor intending to redeem land sold under an execution against
his debtor, should at the same time deliver the sheriff an execution on his

judgment. Ibid. 304.

12. Money to redeem land sold under an execution maybe paid to a deputy sheriff,

or to the administrator of a sheriff" who is dead, or it may be paid to the pur-
chaser of the land. Ibid. 304.

13. A party may redeem from a sheriffs' sale any one of a number of lots, sold at

one time and sepai'ately, to the same purchaser. Robertson etal. v. Dennis, 313.

14. The party redeeming, can, at his option, pay either to the officer who sold the"!
land, or, if he is out of office, to his successor. Ibid. 313.
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15. The purchaser of goods at a sheriffs' sale, which have been receipted for to
him, is the owner of such goods, and may replevy them. Freeman et al. v.

Morse, 429.

16. Any corrupt agreement among bidders, which prevents competition at a public
sale, is a fraud upon the owner, which will vitiate the sale. Garrett v. Moss
etal. 549.

17. An agreement on the part of a senior mortgagor to foreclose and sell only a
part of the mortgaged premises, and bid them off in satisfaction of his judg-
ment, is not a fraud upon the debtor, nor is it against justice or equity. Ibid.

549.

18. Where a notice of sale under a decree is ordered to be advertised in a news-
paper for "three weeks successively," or, "for three successive weeks," and
there were twenty-one days between the date of the notice and the day of sale,

and there were nineteen days intervening between the first publication and the

day of sale, and there were three publications of the notice, if it appears that

no injury has resulted to either party, the deviation from a strict compliance
with the order of publication will not be a sufficient cause for refusing to con-
firm the sale. Ibid. 549.

19. A chancellor has a large discretion in the approval or disapproval of sales

made by a master, and a bidder acquires no independent right to the prop-
erty, but his purchase depends upon the confirmation by the chancellor. Ibid.

549.

20. Exceptions to the proceedings of a master in the sale of property, taken ten

years after the approval and confirmation of his acts, come too late, unless it

is made to appear that positive injury has resulted. Ibid. 549.

21. If it appears that the purchasers under a sale, and the commissioner M'ho con-

ducted it, used means to prevent bidding, the sale would be set aside. But
such a state of case should be shown to have existed, before the court will act.

Ibid. 549.

22. In order to set aside a sale because of inadequacy of price, a case of sacrifice

must be made out to justify the setting aside of a sale. Ibid. 549.

23. While several distinct tracts of land should not be offered for sale in block, yet

an officer is not, unless required, bound to divide a tract of land into smaller

parcels than any previously indicated, and offer them for sale. Ibid. 549.

See Redemption trom Sale.

SECURITY—SURETY.

1. A parol agreement to vary a contract under a seal cannot be pleaded in a court

of law, to defeat a recovery on the original undertaking ; and such an agree-

ment will not discharge a security from liability. Chapman, etc. v. Mc Grew, 101

.

2. The giving of further day of payment to a principal debtor, without the assent

of the surety, discharges the latter from liability. Warner, etc. v. Crane, 148.

3. Pleas stating the above fact amount only to the general issue, and will be bad

on special demurrer ; and if there was a plea of non-assumpsit, and no bill of

exceptions showing the contrary, it will be presumed that the party availed

himself of this defense on the trial, and a judgment against him will be sus-

tained. Ibid. 148.

4. In an action against a surety upon a bail bond, he may plead in defense that

the affidavit upon which the capias ad respondendum issued, did not show by

facts therein stated, that defendant had refused to surrender his estate, or any

presumption that he had been guilty of fraud—and if the facts pleaded are

true, they will constitute a complete defense to the action. Stafford v.

Low, 152.

Sec GUAKANTOE.

I*
SERVANTS.

See Trespass, 5. Railroads, 10,

49
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SERVICE OF PROCESS.

1. Where a sheriff returns that he did, on the 8tli day of September, 1857, serve a

summons on A. B., who attempted to avoid service by concealing himself, and
running from him, etc., it Avill be held a good service. Where the date is

written at the bottom of the indorsement of service, and above the name of

the officer, it is sufficient to fix the date of service.

—

Orendorff et al. v. Stan-

berry et al. 89.

2. Where a writ is in the hands of and executed by a coroner, it will be presumed
there was no sheriff, and that an elisor was properly appointed by the clerk, to

serve a writ of replevin upon the coroner. Beach et al. v. Schmidtz, 185.

See Summons, 3. Ciiancert, 21.

SET-OFF.

1. The declaration made by a deceased party, while living with a step-son, that he
intended to give the step-son a note he held against him, does not give the

step-son a legal claim to have the note surrendered to him, nor is it any defense

to an action upon it. Myers, Adm'r, v. Malcom, etc. 621.

2. Where parents have been living with a step-son, it is proper for a jury to decide,

upon all the facts, whether the parents were to pay for their board, or whether
they were living upon the hospitality of their relatives. Ibid. 621.

SHERIFF—SHERIFFS' RETURN.

1. The sheriff is not compelled to keep an office open at the county seat. He is

permitted to occupy a room in the court-house if he chooses to do so. He is not
obliged to provide for the accommodation of the public, and the county is not

liable to pay for his lights, fuel, etc. Arnisbij v. Warren County, 126.

2. For any misfeasance of a sheriff other than a failure to return an execution or

to pay over money collected on an execution, or for any other misconduct than
is mentioned in the statute, the party must resort to his action ; summary
proceedings against a sheriff will be limited to such derelictions as the statute

provides for. Day v. Hackney et al. 133.

3. An officer executing a capias, regular on its face, will be protected. Stafford
V. Low, 1 52.

4. Where a sheriff, entrusted with an execution, called on the defendants for pay-
ment, which was promised, but afterwards refused, which execution was lost,

so that it could not be returned by the sheriff, and he paid the amount he was
commanded to make, the law will imply a promise on the part of the defend-

ants in execution to refund to the sheriff the amount which he has paid. Rees,

Adm'r, v. Fames et al. 282.

5. The remedy by a sheriff against parties for whom he has paid money by virtue

of his office, will depend upon the good or bad faitli of his conduct. Ibid. 282.

6. An affidavit to hold to bail must show that the defendant has refused to surren-

der his estate, or has been guilty of fraud. Gorton v. Frizzell, 291.

7. An affidavit before a justice of the peace, which states that a defendant "with-
holds his money or secretes his property from the officer, so that the debt can-

not be levied," is insufficient to authorize the arrest of the debtor. Ibid. 291.

8. When a capias recites such an affidavit as its foundation, the officer who exe-

cutes it will be a trespasser; he cannot justify under a void writ. Ibid. 291.

9. In an action against a sheriff for the escape of a party arrested under such a
process, the court should instruct the jury that it is void, or should exclude it

from the jury altogether. Ibid. 291.

See Pkactice, 8, 9, 10. Sheriffs' Sale. Service of Process.
Redemption from Sale. Summons, 3.
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SLANDER.

1. In an action for slander, the pecuniary circumstances of the slanderer may be
given to the jury. Hosley v. Brooks et ux. 115.

2. It is no mitigation of the offense to show that the person slandered was quar-
relsome. Ibid. 115.

3. In a suit for slander, the jury may consider the pecuniaiy circumstances of the
defendant ; also that defendant obtruded himself into the house of the plain-
tiff and offered undue familiarities to his wife, when the offensive words were
uttered, in fixing their damages, which may be by way of punishment as well
as for compensation. Ibid. 115.

4. It is not a defense to such an action, to show that the wife of the plaintiff used
the first harsh words, and that the slanderous words resulted from such pre-

vious harsh words. Ibid. 115.

5. The time of the speaking of the words as laid in the declaration is not material.

Ibid. 115.

6. Instructions, iinless based upon evidence, should not be given. Ibid. 115.

7. The law will imply malice in the uttering of slanderous words, and heat of pas-

sion does not rebut the malice thus implied. Ibid. 115.

See Libel.

SPECIAL TAXES.

See Assessment.

STATUTE OF WILLS.

1. The proceeding authorized by the ninetieth section of the statute of wills, was
not designed to aid in the collections of debts due to estates, but for the pur-

pose of obtaining the possession of the identical articles, or the identical

money, which belonged to the deceased in his lifetime. Williams v. Conley,

Administrator, 643.

SUMMONS.

1. The court will take notice of a summons issued by a justice of the peace, and
of the indorsements thereon, if set out in a hill of exceptions ; and if the

judgment is for a greater amount than is claimed on the back of the summons
and interest, it is erroneous and will be reversed. Chicago, Burlington and
Quincy Railroad Company v. Minard, 9.

2. A summons issued in October, returnable on the first day of the next term,

which is on the fourth Monday of October next, is a nullity; the word "next"
refers to the month, and not to Monday ; and there being more than one term
intervening between the issuing of the writ and the return day makes it void.

IJildretk V. Hough et al. 331.

3. The return to a summons in chancery, which states service by delivery of a

true copy to the within named, etc., he being a white person over ten years

old, on, etc., as within commanded, is a nullity, and no default can be taken

upon it. Divilbiss, etc. v. Whitmire, 425.

Sec Peocess.

SUPERVISORS.

See County, 1.

SUPREME COURT.

1. Where there is evidence to support a verdict, this court will not be inclined to

disturb it; unless it is manifestly against its weight. Bush v. Kindred, 93.



716 INDEX,

2. Where a statute has empowered a court of general jurisdiction to call special

terms, it will be presumed, if a record recites that the court convened in pursu-

ance of the order of the judge heretofore made of record, that a special term

was in conformity to law. Cooh v. Skelton, 107.

3. Wliere there are various objections to testimony, some of which may be re-

moved, the party objecting must indicate his grounds, so as to furnish the

opposite party an opportunity to obviate the otjjection, else he cannot avail

himself of it in this court. Swift et al. Whitney et al. 144.

4. Where the parties have commenced proceedings in another tribunal, to obtain

an adjudication of the question, this court will not (except in extraordinary

cases) interfei'C by mandamus. People ex rel. v. Warfield, 159.

.5. When in a bill to enforce a mechanics' lien, the finding is against the weight of

evidence in a matter of damages, arising out of the quality of the work, the

decree may be reformed in the Supreme Court. Wolfe v. Stone, 174.

6. Unless a verdict is manifestly against the weight of evidence, it will not be

disturbed. Goodellv. Woodruff, 191.

7. A verdict will not be set aside where the evidence is conflicting, even though it

may be against the weight of evidence. Morgan v Ri/erson, 343.

8. Where the evidence is sufficient to warrant the finding of the jury, and the in-

structions fairly state the law of the case, the judgment will be affirmed.

Dunshee v. Hill, 499.

9. Where the complainant in a bill in chancery dies, and a decree is entered abat-

ing that suit, and the administrator of the deceased complainant files another

bill in the Cii'cuit Court which is pending, if a writ of error is sued out, in-

tended to reverse the judgment abating the first suit, the writ of error will be

abated on a plea filed showing the facts. Can; Administrator, v. Casei/ et al.

637.

See Erroe.

TAXES.

1

.

Where there is a contract for the sale of land unexecuted, it makes no differ-

ence so far as claim and color of title is concerned, whether the taxes are paid

by the vendor or vendee, or by the assignee of either. Darst v. Marshall, 227.

2. Where a party had a contract for a deed of land, to be delivered when he should
make certain payments, the contract providing also, that he should repay the

taxes assessed after a cert.ain date, which contract was assigned by the vendor
as the payment of money, and the assignee of the contract paid taxes for

three years, and until the deed was delivered ; when the party purchasing paid
those taxes and all others for a period of. seven years, during all which time
he was in actual possession, this established such claim and color of title as

would defeat an action of ejectment brought by any other claimant. Ibid.

227.

3. A judgment for taxes is fatally defective, if it does not show the amount of

tax for which it was rendered. The use of numerals, without some mark in-

dicating for what they stand, is insufficient. Lawrence v. Fast, 338.

4. The separate record book of judgments for taxes, should be so kept, as without
reference to the general record, it could furnish a fall exemplification of a
judgment. Ibid. 338.

.'). Under the school law of 1857, a tax for the erection of school-houses must be
voted by the people. If a debt has been incurred for this purpose, and a
judgment is outstanding, it would seem that a mandamus, commanding the
assessment and levy of the tax, would be the proper proceeding. Beverly et

al. V. Sabin et al. 357.

6. In order to exempt a building erected for a school-house from taxation, under
the revenue law of 1853, it should be held by the school directors, under such
title as will give them the right to possess and control it at all times for the

use of the district. Pace v. County Commissioners, etc. 644.

See Claim and Color of Title.
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TAX TITLE.

See Claim and Color of Title. Taxes, 1, 2, 3, 4.

TENANTS IN COMMON.

1. An execution against one of several tenants in common cannot be levied upon
personal property held in common with others ; the pi'oper way is to make a
levy upon the interest only of the judgment debtor. Neary v Cahill, etc. 214.

TENDEE.

See Contract. Current Monet.

TITLE TO PEESONAL PEOPEETY.

1. An actual removal of an entire mass of a cumbrous article (as a crib of corn,)

is not necessary to constitute a delivery and change of possession. May v.

Tallman, 443.

2. Where one party is to deliver to another three hundred bushels of corn, and points

to a crib in which it is, which is accepted, and t^vo wagon loads are taken out
of it, this constitutes a good transfer of title. Ibid. 443.

TOWNS AND CITIES.

1. A copy of a city ordinance, certified in conformity with the charter, is proper
evidence of the existence of such ordinance, in a suit where the city is a party.

Pendergast v. City of Peru, 51.

2. In a suit for violating a city ordinance, by selling liquor without a license, if the

defendant stated that the city charged too much for license, and that he could

not afford to pay the license, and pleads guilty to the charge of violating the

ordinance, it will be held that the fact is established that lie had not a license,

that he had sold liquor, and that his plea of guilty had reference to tliat offense,

although the ordinance contained other provisions of prohibition and other

penalties. Ibid. 51.

3. To prove the existence of a corporation, it is sufBcient to produce the charter,

and prove acts done under it, and in conformity with it. Written proof that

all the preliminary steps, etc., were taken, is not necessary. Town of Mendota
V. Thompson, 197.

4. A corporation, acting as such, cannot be questioned collaterally on the ground
that it has not complied with its charter. Ibid. 197.

5. A municipal corporation is not dissolved because, at its organization, persons

not eligible were elected trustees. If their authority is questioned, it should
be by quo warranto. Ibid. 197.

6. A trial of the speed of a horse, upon a wager, within the corporation limits of a
city, where there is an ordinance against fast driving, is such an act against

good morals as will preclude a court of justice from enforcing a payment of

the wager. Nash v. Monheimer, 215.

7. It is not necessary, in order to find a defendant guilty of selling spirituous

liquors in contravention of a city ordinance, that the liquor was handed to

persons who asked for it, and that it was paid for, or charged to some one.

Kimball v. The People, 348.

8. Where a statute directs that assessments for city improvements shall be made
upon real estate in any natural division of the city benefited thereby, it is a
limitation on the powers of the commissioners not to go out of a natural or
obvious division, to make assessments ; but having selected the area, then to

assess such property in it, for taxation, as will most likely be benefited. City

of Ottawa V. Macy et al. 413.

9. A notice to parties interested in the property assessed, which conforms to the

law under which the city is incorporated, and to the city ordinance in that



718 INDEX,

regard, will be sufficient, although it is general, to " all persons interested," to

attend and make their objections to the confirmation of the assessment.
Ibid. 413.

10. Where the city charter does not, but the ordinance passed under it does direct,

that the collector shall make return of his warrant in thirty days, an omission
to make the return within that time, will not make the proceedings void ; such
an ordinance is merely directory and for the benefit of the city council.

Ibid. 413.

11. If the collector shall make a return that he could not find goods and chattels

whereon to levy and collect the amount assessed, that will be conclusive of the

fact stated. If the return is false, the officer is responsible. Ibid. 413.

12. The common council of the city of Ottawa is not bound to decide upon the

confirmation of an assessment, on the day fixed for that purpose, by the notice

given. The day named was for hearing objections ; deliberation may be
necessary. Citij of Ottawa v. Fisher et al. 422.

TRESPASS—TRESPASSES.

1. Possession of personal property is evidence of ownership, and the possessor

may recover in trespass against the person who takes it from him, unless sucli

person proves the property to be his own. Gilson v. Wood, 37.

2. Each party engaged in the commission of a joint trespass is liable for the acts

of all. ibid. 37.

3. In trespass, the measure of damages is what the property was worth when
taken. Ibid. 37.

4. In an action of trespass, unless the act complained of is willful, vindictive

damages cannot be given. Williams v. Eeil et al. 147.

5. Contractors for constructing a railroad are the servants of the company author-

ized to construct it, and the tortious acts of the contractors, while about the

business of the company, are properly chargeable to it. Chicago, St. Paul and
Fond du Lac Railroad Company v. McCarthy, 385.

TROVER.

See Replevin.

UNLIQUIDATED DAMAGES.
• See Damages.

VARIANCE.

1. The variance in names between Schoonhoven and Schoonhover is material, and
when such variance exists between the writ and declaration, the court should,

on motion, dismiss ; unless the proof should be, that the party was as well

known by one name as the other ; upon a proper state of pleading. Schoon-

hoven V. Gott, 46.

2. The entry of a motion to quash, is not such an appearance, as would amount to

a waiver of a A-ariance between the writ and declaration. Ibid. 46.

VENUE.

1. Where the ground presented for a change of venue relates to the Judge of the

Cook Circuit Court, the venue may be changed to the Common Pleas Court
of that county. Curran v. Beach, 259.

VERDICT.

1. A verdict will not be set aside where the evidence is conflicting, even though it

may be against the weight of evidence. Morgan v. Rgerson, 343.
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VOLUNTARY ASSIGNMENT.

1. A debtor ia failing circumstaaces may make aa assignment for the benefit of
liis creditors, and if fairly done, it passes tlie title to liis property to his

assignee. The question of fairness of the transaction, is one of fact, for the
finding of the jury, and the finding of the jury, when tlie question is properly
submitted, will not be disturbed. Wilson v. Pearson, etc. 81.

2. Where an assignment by such a creditor covers only personal property, it need
not be recorded, if possession accompanies the assignment. Ibid. 81.

3. Whether certain facts would have the legal effect of an abandonment of an
assignment, may or may not be conclusive ; they should be accompanied with
an intention to abandon, and that intention should bo left to the jury for de-

cision. Ibid. 81.

4. A clause in a deed of assignment, that the assignee covenants and agrees to

execute the trust faithfully, according to the stipulations therein contained,
being responsible only for his actual receipts and willful defaults, makes the

deed fraudulent and void. Mclntire, etc. v. Benson et al. 500.
,^

WAGER.

1. A contract will not be enforced, which grows immediately out of, or is connected
with, an illegal or immoral act. And this, if tlio contract be in part only con-

nected with the illegal transaction ; though it be a new contract, it is equally

tainted. Nash v. Monheimer, 215.

2. A trial of the speed of a horse, upon a wager, within the corporate limits of a
city, where there is an ordinance against fast driving, is such an act against

good morals as will preclude a court of justice from enforcing a payment of a
wager. Ibid. 215.

WAGES.

1. If a party contracts in writing to work for another a certain length of time, and
afterwards to perform other work upon specified terms, for which he was to be

compensated by a colt and a cow, if he refuses to perform, the other party may
take him at his word, and the claim to the animals will be lost. Schoonover v.

Christjj, 426.

WAIVER.

See Variance.

WAREHOUSEMAN.

1. A railroad company may assume the double character of carriers and ware-
housemen, and that their duty as carriers is ended when they have placed

goods entrusted to them in a safe depot of their own, or in any other safe

warehouse. Illinois Central Railroad Company v. Alexander et al. 23.

2. Such companies have a right to charge a reasonable compensation for warehouse
services ; and are to be considered and treated like other warehousemen. And
may retain goods in possession until reasonable warehouse charges thereon
shall have been paid. Ibid. 23.

3. When goods reach their destination, and are properly stored, the- responsibility

of the carrier ceases, and that of warehouseman attaches. Richards v. Michi-

gan Southern Sf Northern Indiana Railroad Company, 404.

4. If notice of the arrival of goods, requiring their removal in twenty-four hours,

is given, it does not follow that the liability as carrier continues for that time;

such a notice only implies that the goods may remain twenty-four hours free

of charge. Ibid. 404.'to

See CojiMON Carriers.
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WAERANTY.

1. The purchaser of an article, not warranted as to quality, must take the hazard
of his bargain. If he was not to keep the article he purchased, unless it

pleased him, he should return it if it displeased him, at the earliest practicable
moment. Nichols v. Guibor, 285.

WILLS AND TESTAMENTS.

1. Where a testator bequeaths land to his wife and two other persons, and to the
survivor or survivors of them, to have and to hold until his youngest child

should, if a male, attain twenty-one, or if a female, eighteen years of age, in
trust for all his surviving children, their heirs and assigns, as tenants in com-
mon, all of the children of the testator living at the time of his death, became
his devisees. Hempstead et al. v. Dickson, 193.

2. And the devisees, at the death of the testator, took a vested fee simple estate in

the land, subject to the trust estate created by the will, which they might
alienate, and which was descendible to their heirs ; and also subject to sale and
execution, subject to the trust term. Ibid. 193.

WITNESS.

1. In an action to recover for lost baggage, it is no objection to the witness that

some of the articles lost may have been in his trunk, or that he may have had
articles of his own in the baggage lost Parmeleev. Austin, 35.

2. Circuit Courts must be allowed the exercise of a large discretion on the subject

of leading questions. Ibid. 35.

3. The indorser of a note without recourse, may prove a promise of the maker to

pay, so as to take it out of the statute of limitations. Merritt v. Meiritt, 65.

4. It is not erroneous to refuse to permit a witness to answer a question which
assumes that an arrangement had been made where none had been shown.
Carpenter v. Ambroson, 170.

5. A conversation between a witness and the plaintiff to a suit, long before the

occurrence of the matters in dispute, is not proper evidence. Ibid. 170.

6. The statutes of a foreign State cannot be proved by parol. But the construc-

tion given to such statutes by the tribunals where they are in force, may be

given in evidence by witnesses learned in such laws. Hoes v. Van Alsti/ne,

etc. 201.

7. An agent is, on general principles, a competent witness for all purposes. Nichols

V. Guibor, 285.

See Evidence.

WRIT.

See Process.

WRIT OF ERROR.

See Error. Supreme Court.
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